
'SU4Q~MUROPOWfAN



A PPEND LX

TO THE

THIRTY-NINT- VOLUME

(>F THE

JOURNALS 0F THE SENATE 0F CANADA

SIESSION-", 1904

PRINTED B Y ORDER OF PARLU4MENT

OTTAWA(PRINTED BY S. E DAWSON, PRINTER TO THE KINGIS MOST
EXCELLENT MAJESTY

1905



A. 1904APPENDIX No. 1

REPORT

0F THE

SELECT COMMITTEE OF THE SENATE

ON

POSITION IN CANADA OF THE MUTUJAL RESERVE

FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION OF NEW YORK

SESSION 1904

OTTAWA

FRINTED BY S. E. DAWSON, PRINTER TO THE KING'S MOST
EXCELLENT MAJESTY

1905

4 EDWARD Vil.



4 EDWARD VII.APPENDIX No. 1 .10

ORDER 0F IREFERENCE.

(Extract from Minutes of Procoedings of Ilhe Senate of Canada, Wednesday, 181h
June, 1904.)

'The ilonourable Mr. Iandry rose to a question of privilege, and moved, seconded
by the Ilonourable Mr. Domille,

That an Order of this Huse do issue for the attendance at the Bar of this bous--
-of J. Douglas Wells, of New York, to answer such questions as xnay be put to him
relative to declaration he is alleged to have madle, that there were Members of Parlia.
nient, of the Committee, and of the Government, that had to have good sums, that it
,cost hirn over $10,0O0, -Chat he had found ail the money, excepting for the last bill for
a small amount.

After Debate,

The iFonourable Mr. Gibson, in amendment, moved, seconded by the ilonourable
Mvr. Watson,

That ail the words after " That " to the end of the question be etruck out, and the
-following words be substituted instead :-"l Messrs. J. Douglas Wells and George D.
Eldridge, of New York, be summoned to appear before the Select Committee appointed
tc, investigate the position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, of
New York, in order to answer such questions as may be put to them, relative to de-
clarations alleged to have been made by lMr. Wells, thut there were Members of Par-
liament, of the Committee, and of the Government, that had to have good sums, that
it cost him over $10,000, that he bad found all the money, excepting for the last bill
.for a small amount.")

The question being put on the amendment to the main motion, it was, on a divis-
icn, resolved in the affirmative, and

Ordered accordingly.',

4 EDWARD Vil. à A. 1904
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MINUTES

0F TH-E

SELECT COMÎMITTEE AiPPOIINTED TO IINVESTIGATE THE POSITION
IN CANADA 0F THE MUTUAL lIESERVE FUND

LIFE ASSOCIATION 0F NEW YORK.

EXTRACT from the iMinites of Proceedings of the Senate of Canada. Thursday,
19th May, 1904.

" Ordg-red, That a Select Cominittee of five be appointed to, investigate the posi-
tion of the iMutual IReserve Fund Life Association of New York in Canada, with power
to send for papers, persons, telegrams and records, to employ clerical services, and
with leave to report from tîme to time, the Committee to be composed of the Honour-
able Messieurs Legris, Baker, Cloran, Landry and the mover."

THE SEXATE,_
COMMITTEE IRoom No. 2,

FRIDAY, 2Oth May, 1904.

Pursuant to Rule and notice, the Committee met this day at 2.30 p.m.
Present the Honourable M essieurs Baker, Cloran, Domyjille, Landry-4.
The Law Clerk having called the Ooinmîttee to order, read the Order of appoint-

ment, and requested the Committee to elect a chairmnan.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Domville, it was
iResolved that the Honourable Mr. Cloran be the chairman of this Comninittee.
The Honourab1- IMr. Cloran took the chair.
On motion of the ilonourable IMr. Domville, it was
Ilesolved that, uiiless otherwise ordered, when this Cominittee adjourns on any

day, the next meeting of the Couunittee shall b! held at such time, place and hour
as may from time to time be appointed by the chairman, due regard being had to the
convenience of ail persons concerngd in the investigation, and proper notice thereof to
be given; and that any sucb appointment may be varied by, the chairman, if in bis
opinion it is necessary s0 to do.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. 1ôomvîlle, it was
lResolved to report to the Senatf- recommending that express authority be given

this Committee to examine witnesses on oath, or on affirmation where affirmation is
allowed by law.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Domville, it was
Resolved that the chairman be empowered to summon from tintr to time sucb wît-

nesses as any member of thîs Committep, or the iMinister of Finance or his iepresenta-
tive in the proceedings before this Conimittee, or the Mutual IReserve Fund Life
Association or its counsel or other representative in the-proceedings before this Com-
mittee, may from time to tirne designate eas likely to give evidence, inaterial and
important in the investigation to be made by this Oommittce.

On motion of the ilonourabie Mr. Domville, it was
Ordered that notice be sent to the DepartnN-nt of Finance au'1 to the Mutual

Reserve Fund Life Association of New York, that this Committee bas been organized,

4 EDWARD Vil. A. 1904
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and will proceed with the investigation at a date flot earlier than the 2nd June next,
of which further notice will be given, andi to request that they wilI communicate to
the Committee the names and addresses of any persons whom they may dC'ire to have
summoned te give evidence before the Ccmmittee.

The Committq, then ndjourned to the cali of the chairman.
(Attest)

J. G. A. CREIGIITON,
Law Clerk of the Sonate,

ClerZ, of Committees.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 2,

FaiuAv, 3rd June, 1904.

IPursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointeti to, investi-
gate thw, position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present the Ronourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Domville, Landry, Legris-4.
It was
Resolved te report ircommending that the Committee be authorizeti to employ

counsel to assiat the Coxnmittee in the conduct of their inquiry.
The Ilonourable Mr. iDomville submitted a list of witnkesses whom he desired sum-

inoned te attend before the Comniittee.
Ordered that the Law Clerk send a letter to each of the persons named in the said

Iist, requesting his attendance before the Committee to give evidence on oath on a day
to ba fixed later whereof notice will be given by telegram. The letters to be handed
to the Honourable Mr. ]Jomville for delivery to the 'witnesses.

The Committee then adjourned to the cali of the chairruan.
(Attest)

J. G. A. CREIGITTON,

Liaw Clerc of the Sonate,
Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE,
OommiTTEE Room No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 8th JunIe, 1904.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed te investi
gate thf- position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10.30 a.m.

Present the lionourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Domville, Landry,
Legris-5.

After discussion on the order of business, the Committee adjourneti tili to-morrow,
Thursday, 9th June, at 10 a.m., pending the action of the Senate.

(Attest)
J. G. A. CIIEIGIITON,

Law Clerc of the Sonate,
1Jlerk of Committees.
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THIE SENÂTE,
COMMITTEE RooMr NO. 8,

THuRsDÂY, 9th June, 1904.

Fursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed to investi-
,gate th,4A position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Die Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Domville, Landry, Legris--4.
The following extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate of Canada

for Friday, Srd June, was read:
" The Honourable Mr. Oloran, £rom the Select Committee appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual ReservP, Fund Life Association 0f New
York, presonted their Second R'eport.

"Ordered, That it be received, and
"The same was read by the (ir'rk, and it is as follows:

"THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE ROOM, NO. 2,

" FR!DÂY, 3rd June, 1904.

"The Select Committee appointed to, investigate the position in Canada of the
MIutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York, beg leave to make their Second
Report, as follows -

" Your Committee riecommend that they ble authorized to employ co-unsel-at-law
to assist and advise them in the conduct of their inquiry.

"Ail of which is resprctfu1ly submitted.
"H. J. CLORAN,

IlGharman."

Also the following extract fromn the Minutes of iProceedings of the Senate of
Canada for W."dnesday, Sth June, was read :

" The Huse, according to Order, proeeeded to the consid"eration of the Second
Report of the Select Committee appointed to investigate the position in Canada of
the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New York.

"The Ilonourable Mr. Cloran moved, seconded by the Honourable IMr. lDomville,
SThat the said Report be adopted.
"After Debate,

The Honourable iMr. Young in anindment moved, seconded by the Honourable
Mfr. Béique,

" Thij the consideration of the said Report be postponed until to-morrow.
" The question of concurrefice being put on the amen dment to the main motion,

it was resolved in the neýgative.
" The question then being put on the main motion, it was resolved in the affirma-

tivc, and
" Ordered accordingly."
On motion ort'he Honourable Mr. ]Jomville, it was
Resolved that C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., be r,-tained as counsel to advise and assist

this Committee.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Iandry, it was
Resolved that the chairman be authorized to arrange with C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C.,

tb'i amount of his retainer and remuneration for professional services to be rendered
to this Committee.

On motion of the Honourable Mr. Iandry, it was
Resolved that Mr. George C. Holland, Officiai Reporter of the Senate, be employed

to make a report in shorthand of the evidencc taken before this Committee, and for
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clerical services required by inembers of the Couimittee, and by the counsel retained
to advise and assist the Committne.

-Resolved to proceed with the hearing of evidence as to the position in Canada of
the MIutual Reserve Fund Lif(p Ass~ociation of New York, on Wednesday, 15th June,
at 10 a.in.

Ordered that notice that the Comittee will so proceed be sent to the Mutual TRe-
serve Fund Life Association of iNew York, and that the Association be also nôtifled to
produce then siich documents as are specified in a list to be prepared by the Com-
mittee's counsel.

The ilonourable iMr. iDomville laid frfore the Committee the following documents
relating to the Mutual iReserve Life Jnsuranoe Company:

No. 1. Copy of Annual Statement for the year ending 31st December, 1903, of the
condition and affairs in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Life Insurance Company.

iNo. 2. Copy of the Annual Statement of the Mutual Reserve Life Instirance Com-
pany of Ne w York to the Insurance Department of the State of New York for the
year ended December 3lst, 1903.

No. 3.-Copies of st.atements relating to the business, assets and liabilities of the
Mutual Reserve Life Insurance Company.

The following extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate of Canada
for Wednesday, 8th June, 1904, was read, namely:

" The ilonourable Mr. Landry rose to a question of Privilege, and moved, seconded
by the 1-onourabla Mr. Domville,

" That an Order of this Huse do issue for the attendance at the Bar of this
Huse of J. Douglas Wells, of New York, to answer such questions as may be put ta
him relative to declaration he is alleged to have made, theat there wer!o Membyers of
Parliament, of the Committee, and of the Government, that had to have good sumns,
that it cost him over $10,000, that he had found ail the money, exceptiing for thp last
Bill, for a small amount.

" After Debate,
" The Honourable Mr. Gibson in amendment moved, seconded by the blonoiurable

Mr. Watson,
" That ail the words after " That " to the end of the question bc struck out, and

the followiug words ho substituted instead : "Messrs. J. Douglas Wells and George 1).
Eldridge, of New York, be summoiied to appear before the Select Committee appointed
to investigate the position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association
of New York, in ordfr to answer such questions as may be put to them, relative to
declarations alleged to have been made by Mr. Wells, that there were IMembers of
Parliament, of the Committee, and of the Governnij-nt, that had to have good surns,
that it cost him over $10,000, that he had found ail the money, excepting for the last
Bill, for a small amount."

" The question being put on the amendment to thé main motion, it was, on a divi-
sion, resolvrd in the affirmative, and

" Ordered accordingly."
Resolved that the Committee pioceed at once with the investigation of the moatter

referred to in the abovre Order of the Sonate.
Ordered that a sumomons be issued to George D. Eldridge, Vice-president of the

Mutual iReserve IFund Life Association of New York, to appear and givoe evidence
before this Committee in the motter referred to in the above Order of the Senate, on
Friday, lOth June, at 10 a.m.

James Douglas Wells, Esq., of New York, insurance manager, wvas examined upon.
oath, and bis evidence was takenl down by the o1fcieal reporter. (Vide page 1 of Part
I., Minutes of Evidence, whichi appear further on).

During the examination of this witness the following exhibits were filpd.
Exhibit A.-Memo. of dishursements by J. D. Wells.
Exhibit B.-Copy of letter dated Flatbush, March lSth, 1899. to Frank R. Law-

rence, signed J. D. Wells.
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Exhibit C.-Copy of letter dated Flatbush, April 7th, 1899, addressed F. R. Law-
rence, signed J. ID. Wells.

Ordered that the witness be discharged from attpndance in the motter of privilege
110W being invesfigated.

On motion of the Ilonourable IMr. Landry, the Committee then adjourned unîitl
Friday, June 1Oth, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)

T. G. A. CREIGIITON,
Law Ulerk of the Senate,

Ule'rk of Committees.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 2,

FRiDAY, lOth June, 1904.

Pursuant f0 adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed f0 investi-
gate th;v position in Canada of the iMitual IReserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Domville, Landry, Legris-4.

The Commiftee resumed tbhp inquiry info the matter of privilege referred to them
by Order of the Senate made on Wednesday, 8th June. George ID. Eldridge, of the
city of New York, Vice-president of t4,ý Mufual IReserve Life Insurance Company,
appcared before the Committee in obedience to the summons issued for bis appearance.

A. B. Aylesworth, IEsq., of Toronto, King's Counse], appearfd before the Comi-
mittee, and made flie following statement:

"I1 appear with IMr. Eldridge as bis counsel, anid ask the privilege of being heard
on bis behaîf, and examining hîm affar such questions havpe been put f0 hima as the
inembers of fhe Commîttee fhink desirable."

lResolved that the application of Mr. Aylesworth ha not entertained, the Coin-
mittec being of opinion that IMr. Eldridge is in attendance merely as a witness.

On motion of the Ilonourable lMr. iLandry, thie said George ID. Eldridge was, then
examined upon oath, duly administered by the chairman, and his evidence was faken
down by the officiai reporter. (Vide page 65 of Part I., Minutes of Evidence, which
appear further ou).

During the examination of the witniess the following exhibifs were filed:
Exhibif D.-Printed copy of aflldavit of George ID. Eldridge sworn before G. B.

Clarkson, nofary public, for the counfy of INew York, on the 31sf July, 1899, together
wifh Exhibit A referred f0, in said affidavit.

(iNoTE.-This exhIbit is confained in, and consista of pages 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53,
and the first thirteen liines of page 54, of a pamphlet produced by the wifness, entitled
" Insurance IDeparfmenf Stafe of New York.-In the matter of Mutual Reserve Fund
Life Association of New York City.-Answer of Association and Officers.-Dafed July
26th, 1899.-Deposit ion of Isaac Vanderpool, Esq., Chief Examiner, New York Insur-
ance iDeparfment, dated April 2nd, 1900.")

Exhibit E.-This exhibit is confained in and consista of lines feu to twenfy-fwo,
inclusive, on page 9 of a printed stafement, infituled "lIn re motion pending before the
Honourable the- Senate of Canada, in iParliamenf assembied, for a Commit tee f0 inves-
tiges th-, affaira of the Mutual iReserve Life Insurance Comnpany."

Ordered that thle witness, George ID. Eldridge, do attend before this Comxnitfee on
Wedncsday, l5th June instant, at 10 o'clock in the fotrenoon, and thaf W' produce wifh
him then and there the documents and papers mentioned in a liaf f0 ha furnished f0

the witness to-day by the counsel appointed f0 advise and assisf the Committee.
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Ordered that th-, Law Olerk forward to Angus MacMurchy, Esq., K.OJ., of Toronto,
as solicitor for the company, duplicates of any official communications which the ILaw
ùJerk may be in.structed to direct to the company at its head office in New York.

The Committee then adjourned tili Wednesday, l5th June, at 10 o&clock in the
forenoon.

(Attest)

J. G. A. CREIGU-TON,
Law Clere of the Senate,

Clerk of Committees.

THE SEŽNATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, June 15th, 1904.
iPursuant to adjournmený and notice, thle Select Committee appointed to investi-

gate th-, position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New
York, met this day at 10 a.m.

IPresent the HonourabL-, Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Domville, Landry, Legris--4.
C. J. Coster, Esq., K.O., appeared of counsel for the Committee. A. B. Ayles-

worth, Esq., K.C., anîd Angus MacMurcby, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the
Mutual Reserve Life Association Company.

The following telegram was submitted by the Law Clerk, and was read

"June l4th, 1904.
"To J. G. A. Creigbton,

Law Clerk of the Senate.
lFrom New York, N.Y.

Order received ten-thirty Monday morning. PhysicaL impossibility to reach
Ottawa with any material by ten Wednesday. Hope to have pu--liminary answer in
Ottatwa Thursday.

dEo. D. ELDIRIDGE."

Counsel for the company applied for a delay of proceedings for twenty-four hours,
on the ground that no indication bas been given to tbe company of what charges thoy
have to nl(et.

iResoived, unanimously, to proceed with the inquiry.
Counsel for the cornpany objected to the Oommittee proceeding with the investi-

gation, on the ground that tbe Honourable Mr. Domville, one of the members of the
Committee, is directly and pecuniarily iîitprested in thie matters to be inquired into, and
that legal proceedings by him against the company relating ti the said matters are
110w pending.

Resolved, unanimously, to proceed witb the inquiry.
John M. Stevenson, of Brooklyn, in the State of New York, manager of the

Metropolitan Departmexit of tbe, North American Life Insurance Company of Toronto,
was duly sworn by the chairman, was examined upon oatb, and bis evidence was taken
down by the officiai reporter. (Vide page 21 of Part IL., Minutes of Evidence, which
appear further on).

During the examînation of this witness the following exhibits were produeed and
filed t-

No. 1.-Constitution and By-laws 6f the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association
No. 2.-Memorandum, written in lead pencil, and headed " Amount of business

written and approved-1894 to 1898, inclusive."
Company.
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No. 3.-Copy of letter from IMr. Burnham to Mr. Stevenson, dated April 1 t, 1897.

No. 4.-Copy of letter from Mr. Burnham to Mr. D. IMoss, dated April lst, 1897.

No. 5.-Copy of Draft of Form of Requisition to Auditor of Accounts, for voucher.

It was moved by the Honourable IMr. Landry, seconded hy the ITonourable Mr.

Domville, to report recommending that the quorum of the Committee be reduced to,

three members.
The Committee divided thereon.
Yeaa :-The Ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, Domville, Landry-3.

Nays4:-The Tionourable Mr. ]egrs-1l.
So it was
Resolved in the affirmative.
The Committep dieuî adjourned tili to-rnorrow, Thursday, l6th June, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)

J*. G. A. CREIGIITON,
Law Clerc of the ,Senqte.

Clerc of Committees.

THE SENÂTE,
COMMITTE Room No. 8,

THURSDAY, 16th June, 1904.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed to investî-

gate tb-4i po3ition in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund tif e Association of New

York met this day at 10 a.m.

Prissent the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, de Boucherville,

Cox, Pomyjile, Gibson, Landry, Legris, Lougheed, McMulleu, MeSweeney, Sir Alphonse

Pelletier, Robèrtson, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson, Wood-17.

Tfhe following Order of the Senate, mnade lSth June instant, was read-

Extract from Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate of Canada, Wednesday, l5th

June.
"The ilonourable Mr. ILegris moved, seconded by the Honourable Mr. Young,

"That the Select Committee appointed to investigate the position of the Mutual

Reserve Fund Lîfe Association of New York in Canada ha enlarged to twelve mnei-

byers by the addition of the names of the following Senators&:-The Hlonourablp Mes-

sieurs Cox, Watson, Wood, Iougheed, Béique, Gibson, snd Sir Alphonse Pelletier.

" After Debate.
" The Honourable Mr. Bolduc, in amendment, moved, seconded by the Honourable

Mr. Landry,
" That the names of the Hlonourable Messieurs de Boucherville, McSweeney,

Robertson, Bernier, Sullivan, MeMullen snd Wilson be added therpeto.

" The question of concurrence being put on the amendment to the main motion,

it was resolved iu the affirmative.
" The question of concurrence being put on the main motion, as amended, the

same was resolved in the affirmative, and
" Ordered accordingly."
On motion of the Hon. Mr. Legris, it was

iResolved to report recommending that the quorum of the Committee be reduced to

five (5) inembers.
The Committee thpn proceeded with the inquiry.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Committee. A. B. Ayles-

worth, Esq., K.O., appeared of counsel for the New York Mutual Reserve Insurane

Comipany.
The officiai rcport of the evidence taken yesterday was read over to the Committee.

The exarnination of Jolin M. Stevenson was then continuýed. (Vide page 36 of

Part Il, Minutes of Evideuce, which appear further on).
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Exhihit No. 6l was flled, being two extracts from pages 9 and 10 of a pamphlet

pntitled IlReport of the Superintendent and Examiner of the Inisurancie Department
on the Examination of the Muatual ReEprve Fund Life Association of INew York City.
As of May l6th, 1899."

Ordered that the witness, John M. Stevr-nson, lie allowed to read over the short-
hand report of the evidence given by him, and that, if he dIesires to make any correc-
tions therein, he may add such corrections at the -'nd of the report under bis
signature.

Ordered that the said John M. Stevienson be discharged from attendance on the
Committee.

Ordered that the said John M. Stovenson bie paid, according to ule 88 of the
Senate, a reasonable sum for bis at tendance, and also for bis travelling ý-xpenses, the
same to bie llxed by the chairman.

Ordered that George D. Eldridge, Vice-president of thsý Mutual iReserve IFund
Life Association of New York, bie examined at the meeting of the Committee to-mor-
row.

Thes Committee then adjourned tiIl to-morrow, the 17Tth Juine, at 10 Pi.m.
(Attest)

J. G. A. CREIGHTON,
Law Clerk of the Sena te,

Clerk of Committees.

THE SENATE,
COMMUTTE Room No. 2,

FRIDAY, June l7th, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed to investi-~te th position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund ILife Association of New

York met this day at 10 a.m.
1resent the Ilonourahle Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Cox, Domville, Gili-

son, Landry, Lougheed, iMcSweeney; Plelletier, Sir Alphonse, Robe~rtson, Wntson,
Wood-12,

C. J. Coster, Esq., EI.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.
A. B. Aylesworth, Bsq., -K.C., appenred of counsel for tht' Mutual Iteserve Lifýe
Insurance Company of New York.

The following Orders of the Senate were rend:
Extract from Minutes of Proceodings of the Senate of Canada, Thursday, l6th

June, 1904.
" The? Honourabie Mr. Cloran, from. the Select Committee appointed to consider

the position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York,
presiented their Fourth Report.

"Ordered, That it be received, and
"The same was then rend by the Clerk, and it is as follows:

"THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE RooMi No. 2,

'lTHURSDAY, lOth June, 1904.
"The Select Cormiittee nppoînted to consider the position in Canada of the

Mutuni Reservp, Fund Life Association of Nýew York, beg leave to make their Fourth
Report, ns follows:-

"Your Committee recommmend that their quorum he reducied to five (5) members.
"AIl which is resp ectfiilly subxnitted. .JCLRN

IlChairman.
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" The 1Ionourab'e Mr. Cloran moved, seeondpd by the Honourable Mr. landry,
" That the said Report be adopted, and that thie 'said Committefe he authorized to

cause the evidence taken before it to be printed, and distributed to ail members of the
Senate.

" The question of concurrence being put therteon, the same was resolved in the
affirmative, and

" Ordered accordîiigly."
Ordered that the chairman be authorized to settie as to printing of evidence and

the number of copies required.
George ID. Eldridge, nf the city of Neiý York, Vice-president of the Mutual

R;--serve iLife Jusurance Company. of New York, was duly sworni by the chairman, and
was examincd upon oath, and the evidence given by him was taken down by, the officiai
reporter, (Vide page 61 of Part Il., Minutes of Evidence, which appear further on).

During his examina tion the following exhibits were filed:
Exhibit INo. 7.-Extracts from printed statement entitlod " In te motion pending

belote the Hlonourable the Senate of Canada, in Parliament assembled, for a rom-
mitte,3 to investigate the affaira of thie Mutual Reserve Life Insurance Company."

NOTE.-It was ordered by the Committee that those portions only of this exhibit
which are marked are to be printed.

Exhihit No. 8.-Certified copy of t4,~ lasi Wi]l and Testament of the latte Edward
B. Harper, of the city of New York, formerly president of the Mutital lieserve Fund
hife Association of New York.

Exhibit No. O.-Copy of letter dated 25th Junte, 1898, fromn J. W. Vrooman,
treasurer, to F. A. Burnham, presidrnt of the Mutual iReserve Life Insurance Corn-
pany of New York.

The Committee thien adjourtied until Tuesday, 21st June, at 8 o'clock in the
evening.

(Attest)
J. G. A. CREJGHTON,

Lau' (lerk of the Sena te.
C'lerk of Committees.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE iRoo3I No. 8,

TUESDAY, 2lst June, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Commnittee appointed te investi-

gate t4<e position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund hife Association of New
York met this day at 8 o'clock p.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Oloran, chairman; Béiqve, Bernier, de Boucher-
ville, Cox, Domville, Gibson, Landry, MeMulîlen, iMcSweeney, Sir Alphonse Pelletier,
Watson-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.
A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual IResierve ,lae Insur-
ance Company.

Thi examiration upon oath of George ID. Eldridge, Vice-priesident of the Mutual
iReserve hile Insurance Company, was continued.

The Comrnittee then adjourned until to-morrow, Wednesday, 22nd June, at 10 a.m.
(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Cie r1- of'the Commit tee.
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Tnu SENÂTE,

COMMITTEE Room No. 8,
WEDxESDAY, 22nd June, 1904.

Pui'suant to adjournment and notice, the Select Comnmittee appointed to investi-
gate the pogition in Canada of the iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New
York met tis day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourable Mlessieurs Cloran, chairman; Dornville, Landry,
McSwýeemey, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson, Watson, Wilson.-S.

(3. J. Coster, Esq., K.O., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Oommittee.A. B. Ayleswoi.th, Esq., K.O., appeared of counsel for th,,- Mutual Reserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

The examination on oath of George D. Eldridge, Vice-presidient of the Mutual
Reserve Life Jusurance Company, was continued.

Durîng the said examination thr, following exhibits were flled
Exhibits Nos. 10a, 10b, 10c, 10d, 10e, 10f, 10g, b'eing leaflets issued by the Mutua]

Reserve Fund Life Association of New York.
Exhibit No. ll.-Copy of statement as to real estate and investment exA4-nses.
It was moved by the Honourablie Mr. Watson that the Committee do now ad.journ.
The Committee divided thereon.
Yeas -The Honourable Messieurs Sir A. PAlletier, Watson, Wilson-3.
Nays :-The Iflionourable Miessieurs ]Jomville, Landry, McSweeney, Robertson-4.
So it was
Resolved in the negative.
On motion of the Honourable Mr. Landry, seconded by the flonourable Mr.

McSwýeeney, the Committee adjourned until to-morrow, Thursday, 2Brd June, at 10
a.m.

(Attest)

J. C. YOUJNG,
Clerc of the Committee.

THE SENàTE,
COMMITTEE ROOM No. 8,

THURSDAY, 23rd June, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appoÎnted to investi-

gate t1p position in Cangda of the Mutual Reserve Fund iLife Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Oloran, chairman; Baker, Béique, de Boucher-
ville, Cox, Doravilki, Gibson, Landry, Legris, McMullen, McSween#Ay, iRobertson,
Sullivan, Watson, Wilson, Wood-16.

O. J. Coster,,Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist thie Committee.
A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for tho Mutual Reserve Life Insur-
ance Comipany.

The examination on oath of George D). Eldridge, Vice-president of the Mutual
Reserve Life Insurance Company, was continued.

During the said examination the following exhibit was produced and flled:
Exhibit No. 12.-Return to Canada as to tii? company's business, 1885 to 1903.
The Committee adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this day, if the Senate be not then

sitting, and if the Senate is then sitting, until to-morrow, Friday, 24th June, at 10

(Attest)
J. -C. YOUNG,

Clerc of the Committee.
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THE SENATE,
OOMAIITTEE iROOM iNO. 8,

FRIDAY, 24tli June, 1904.

IPursuant to adjourament and notiez', the Select Committee appointed -to investi-
gate the position in Canada of the Mutual RIeserve Fund ILife Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Domville, Gibson,
Landry, McMullen, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson,
Wood-12.

C. J. Coster. Esq., iK.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist th!Ée Oommittee.
Angus MacMurchy, Esq., IK.C., appeared of counsel for thie Mutual iRoserve Life Insur-
aim~e Company.

The examination on oatli of George D. iEldridge, Vice-president of the Mutual
Bieserve Life Insurance Company, was continued.

Duriîig the examination of the said witness certain questions were put to him by
the Honourable Mr. Landry, whicli questions the witness declined to answer. The said
questions and replies made th,?reto were taken down by the shorthand writ;er employed
by the Comniitttee as follow:

Q. What is the salary of the president l-A. 1 respectfully decline to answLer.
"Q. What is the salary of the vice-president?-A. 1 r,?spectfully decline to answer.
"Q. 'fhere are two vice-president8?-A. Yes.
"Q. The same answer applies to both vice-presidents ?-A. Yes.
"Q. XVhat is the salary of th,- secretary?-A. 1 respectfully decline to answer.
"Q. What is the salary of the treasurer ?-A. I respectfully decline to answer.
Q. Is there any other officer I-A. The comptroller.

"Q. What is the salary of tlie comptroller I-A. I respectfully dpcline to answer.
"Q. What is the salary of the medical director ?-A. I respectfully decline to

answer.
"ýQ. Is the counsel a member of the Associationi?-A. I think lie is a constitu-

tional. oficer uiudr the present constitution.
"eQ. At all events, if he is, what is lis salary ?-A. I riespectfully decline to

answer.
"Q. Is there any other officer I-A. There are two assistant secretaries that are

constitutional officers, I think.
" Q. What arp the salaries of eacli of the two assistant siecretaries ?-A. 1 respect-

fully deeline to answer.
"ýQ. Do you know wbat those salaries are ?-A. From memory 1 could state some

of thein, and from memory 1 could not state exactly others.
"Q. You coul(1 tell us wliat is your own I-A. 1 could.
Q. But 3ýou ýecime?-A. I respectfully declinp te answer.
Q. Why do you decline ?-A. Because I regard the information as coming to me

,confidentially ini my position as chairman of the Executîve Committee. I regard
it as a matter of grpat detriment to the policy-holders of the company to have this
information spread upon the public records to be printed and scattered broadcast. In
addition to that, under the law of the Dominion of-Canada, to which we aml subject,
there is an officer lestablished who lias the absolute pow;gr te visit our office, and ascer-
tain any information that lie may desire in connection with the oompany ; and ini

addition to that, I have to say tliat the Insurance Department of New York, i the
State of New York, und.er our jurisprudence, gives absolute credence and faith to
every act of the Insurance Department of Canada w tli reference te Canadian cern-
panies, and we are entitled to the same credence and the same treatment in reference
to the acts of our own Insurance Departinent as the acts of the Canadian department
are given in reference te Canadian conipanies. And, furthermore, that my dleclining
to answer is by advice of my counsel."

1-B
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On motion of the ilonourable Mr. Landry, seconded by the ilonourable Mr.

Wilson, it was
Ordered that the witness do answler the said questions.
And the witwi-ss p'ersisting in lis refusai to answer, it was, on motion of the

HIonourable Mr. Landry,
Resolved to report at the next sitting of the Senate the refusai of thýe said George

D. Eldridge to comply with the order of the Committee, and to request the action of
the Senatie thereon.

The examination of the said witness, George D. Eldridge, was then continued.
The following exhi bits were filed:
Exhibit No. 13.-Deposition of Isaac Vanderpool, Esq., Chief Examiner, New

York Insurance Department, in the New York Supreme Court, in re Mutual IReserve
Fund life Association vs. J. Thomson Paterson.

Exhibît No. 14.-Opinion of J. C. Davies, Attorney Goneral of the State of New
York, in the matter of the application of James R. Maclay and others, to bring an
action to remove Frederick A. IBurnham as president of the Mutual Rieserve Fund Lift
Association.

The Cornmittee thoni adjourned to the oýall of the chairman.
(Attest)

J. C. YOUNG,
Ulerk of the Commit tee.

Tiix SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 8,

MONDAY, 27th June, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notiqe, the Select Committee appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual R(eserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 8.15 p.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Béique, Rernipr,
de Boucherville, Domville, MlcSweeney, Watson, Wood-9.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.
A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., KÇ.C., appeared of cotinsel for th.-i Mutual Reserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

George D. Eldridge was ite-cal!ed.
It wos movftd by the ilonourable Mr. de Boucherville, that the further examina-

tion of ir. Eldridge be not proceeded with at present, in view of the fact that at the
last sittibg of the Committce the witness who is now about to be examined, Mr. Eld-
ridge, vice-presidrnt of thze Mutual Reserve Fund Lite Association of New York,
declined to answer certain questions put to him by an honourable senator of this Com-
mittee, that this Committee reported the attitude of the witness to the Spnate, and
that this Committee asked the honourable Senate to take action in regard to the said
attitud,eý of the said witness Eldridge in declining to answer the questions put to him;
and that, under the circumstances, this Committec cannot deal with or take evidence
from the present witness until the honourable Senate has decided thte mattor in the
first place; that these facts are known to bise, Senator de Boucherville, by what trans-
pired in the Spnate itself, and thaï, in has opinion, the examination of the said witness
Eldridge cannot be continued until the Senate bas decided in the matter; that the
Senate decided. to postpone the further consideration of it tili Tuesday, the 28th June;
that the Senate not having taken action in the matter, this Committee ought not to
continue the sittings.

In ameudment ther,-to, it was moved by the ilonourahie Mr. Wood, that the
examination of George D. Eldridge he proceeded. with.

The~ Committee divided thereon.
Yeas :-4; Naya :-3.
So it was
R, solved ini the affirmativie.
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The examination on oath of George D. Eldridge was thien continued.

Exhibit iNo. 15.-Letter of J. C. iDavies, Attorney General of the State of New

York, to the Superint1,ndleft of Insurance of the State of New York, re the bringing

of an action against the Mutual iReserve iFund Life Assoiation, was filed.

The Oommnittee then adjourned until Tuesday, 28th June, 1904, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)
J. O. YOUNG,

Clerc of the Committee.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 8,

TUESDAY, 28th June, 1904.

Pursuant to adjourniment and notice-, the Select Committee appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual Reaserve Fund Life Association of New

York met this day at 10 a.m.

Pnes-nt the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, de Boucherville,

Domville, McMullen, IMlSweeney, Watson, Wilson, Wood-9.

C. J. Coster, Esq., IK.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Oommittee.

A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for tb."ý Mutual. Reserve Life Insur-

ance Company.
The examination on oath of George D. Eldridge was eontinued.

The following- exhibits were filed-

No. 16.-Statement as to premiums receiv-d, paymîents to policy-holders, aud

expenses.
No. 17.-Certified copy of Report of the State of New York Insurance Pepart-

muent on examination of the Mutual Res3ervp Fund Life Association of New York city,

as of iDecember 3lst, 1901.

No. 18.-Certified copy of an extract from minutes of a meeting of the directors

of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, Fpbruary l9th, 1896, as to will of

Edward B. Harpter, and contingent fund.

No. 19.-Certified copy of an extract froma the minutes of a meeting of the

dîrectors of the Mutual iReserve Fuud Life Association, August 3rd, 1898, as to audit

of coliting,-xit fund.
No. 20.-Certified copy of an extract from. minutes of a meeting of the directors

of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, August lOth, 1898, as to contingent

f und.
No. 21.-Report of Committee of Board of Directors of the Mutual IReservr Fuud

Life Association on certain letters of John W. Vrooman to the president and vice-

president, this report beiug exhibit No. 10, contained in pagps 87 to 106 of a pamphlet

cntitled " Insurauce Department, State of New York.-Iu the matter of the Mutual

Reservie Fund Life Association of New York city.-Answer of Association aud Officers.

Dated 26th July, 1899."
On motion of the Honourable IMr. Béique, it was

iResolved that a furthcr report be made to the Senato that thc wîtness, Mr. Eld-

ridge, has voluntç,ered to givie for each year the amount in the aggregate, but not in

total, paid to the officers of the company, as asked. for by the Committee.

The Committee then adjourned uintil 8.15 p.rn this day.
<Attest)

J. C. YOUJNG,
Glerk of the Committee.

1-Bà
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THE SENATE,
Co~mmTE ROOM No. 8,

TUESDAY, 28th June, 1904.
Fursuant to adjournment, the Select Committ,-e appointed to investigate the

position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Iife Association of New York met
again this day at 8.15 p.m.

Present the H-onourable Messieurs Baker, Béique, Domville, Gibson, Legris,
McMullen, McSweeney, Watson, Wison, Wood-10.

In the absence of the chairman, on motion of the Honourable Mr. McMullen, it
was

Pesolved that the Honourable Mr. Wood do take the chair.
The Honourable Mr. Wood accordingly took tho chair.
C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assîst.the Committe'e.

A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for thn'Mutual Ileserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

The examination on oath of G4eorge D. Eldridge was continued.
The ilonourable Mr. Cloran,' chairman, took the chair.
The Committep adjourned uintil 'W.cdnesday, 29th June, àt 10 a.=.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerc of the Committeo.

THE SEI'ATE,
COMMITTEE IRoOM No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 29th June, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment -and notice, the Selet Commiittee appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual Ibeserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

iPresent the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran ,chairman; Baker, Béique, iDomville,
Gibson, McMullen, McSweeney, Watson, Wilson, Wood-10.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Coimmittee.
A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for thp Mutujal Reserve Life Insur-
ance Conmpany.

Georg- ID. Eldridgie appeared, and by permission of the Committee made certain
statLments in corrrction and explanation of bis evidence.

James Douglas Wells, of the city of New York, U.S.A., insurance agent, was duly
sworn by the chairman, and was examined upon oath. (Vide page 233 of Part IV.,
Minutes of Evidence, which appear further on).

The following exhibits werefid
INo. 22.-Copy of draft and voucher for payment to Moton D. Moss of $7,260.
No. 23.-Copy of voucher to the book-keeper of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life

Association re payment of $7,260 to Moton ID. Moss.
No. 24.-Copy of letter dated 22nd April, 1898, from J. S. Hoflker, auditor of

accounts, to F. A. Burnham, president.
No. 25.-Copy of letter dated 9th July, 1898, from J. S. Iloffecker to J. ID. Wells.
No. 26.-Copy of lctter dated 3rd August, 1898, froma J. S. Iloffecker to F. A.

Burnham.
No. 27. Letter dated 5th July, 1898, from J. D. Wells, second vie-president to

F. A. Burnham, president.
No. 28.-Copy of letter datied l8th July, 1898, from J. D. Wells to F. A. Burnham.
No. 29.-Copy of recommendations by Mr. Eldridge, 19th August. lffl.
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No. 30.-Copy of letter dated 29th October, 1897, from Moton D. Moss, general

manager, to J. N. Stenson, assistant secretary, as to Spiess & O'Connor account.

The Committee adjourned until 8.15 p.n. this day.
(Attest)

J. C. YOUNG,
Clerc of the Cornmittee.

THE SENrTE,
COMMITTEE IIOOM INO. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 29th June, 1904.

iPursuant to adjournment and notie?, the Select Committee appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual ieserve Fund Lif e Association of New

York met again this day at 8.15 p.m.

Fresent the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Béique, Domvilbie,

]i<'gris, MeMullen, McSweeney, Watson, Wilson, Wood-10.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.

A. B. Aylesworth, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual Ileserve Lifie Insur-

atice Company.
The examination on oath of James Douglas Wells was continued.

The Committee adjourned until to-m-orrow, Thursday, 3Oth June, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

ClerIc of the Uommitrn'e.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE iROOAI NO. 8,

TH-uRsiDAY, 3Oth June, 1904.

IPursuant to adjourument and. notice, the Select Committee appoînted to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New

York met this day at 10 a.m.

Filew',nt the Ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Béique, Domvlle,

Gibson, Legris, MeMiullen, McSweeney, Watson, Wilson, Wood-11.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist tbcý Committee.

Clive iPringle, Esq., barrister-at-law, appeared of counsel for the Mutual IRp'erve

if e Insurance Company.
The examination on oath of J. D. Wells was continued.

The following exhibits were filed:

iNo. 31.-Certified copies of contracts Wtween Moton D. Moss and Mutual iReserve

Fund Life Association.
No. 32.-Letter dated 29th July, 1896, from J. D. Wells to F. A. Burnham.

The Committee then adjourned to the caîl of the chairman.
(Attest)

J. C. YOUING,
Ulerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE iRoom No. 8,

TUESDAY, l2th July, 1904.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed to investi-
gate the position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

iPresent thp Hononrable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béiaue, Domville, Landry,
Lougheed, McMullen, McSweeney, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson-10.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and a.ssist the, Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual iReserve Life

Insurance, Company.
On application of counsel for the MutualP>esprve Life Insurance Company, James

Douglas Wells was re-called, and further examiined upon oath. (Vide page 284 of
Part IV., Minutes of Evidence, which appear f urther on).

James Thompson Patterson, of the city of New York, insurance agent, was duly
sworn by the chairinan, and was examined upon oath. (Vide page 318 of Part V.,
Minutes of Evidence, which appear further on).

The follo'wing exhibits wero filled:
No. 33.-Statement of Bankers' Life Association.
iNo. 34. Coniparison between statements in sworn report of Insurance Depart-

ment, New York State, and statements madie by Mutual Iejserve Fund ILife Associa-
tion.

The Committee then adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this day.
(Attest)

J. O. YOUNG,
Cler7c of the Committee.

THE SENÂTE,
COMMITTEE lRoom No. 8,

TUESDAY, l2th July, 1904.

Pursuant te adjournment, the Select Committee appointed te investigate thý
position in Canada of the Mutual Pieserve Fund Life Association of New York met
again this day at 8.15 p.m.

Priesent the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Baker, Béique, de Boucher-
ville, iDomville, Gibson, Landry, Lougheed, MeMullen, McSweeney, Sir .Alphonse
Pellet,r, Watson, Wilson-13.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the, Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the IMutual Reserve Life Insur-
anee Company.

Thc examination on oath of J. Thompson Patterson was continued.
The following exhibit was filed:
No. 35.-Table showing- total income and amount exppnded in management oi

each $1,000 of income, and memorandumn as to premium note account, 1902.
Exhibit No. 86.-New York Supreme Court.-Copy of A:ffidavit, Summons and

Verifled Complaint.-The Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association (against) John
'Thompson Patterson,--was produced and filed.

Th,- Honourable Mr. Béique objected te the bill of complaint going on the record,
and moved that Exhibit .No. 36 be simply marked for identification, and that it be flot
printed in the 'evidence.

The Committee divided thereon.
Yeas :-4; Nays :-6.
The motion was declared lost.
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The Honourable Mr. Béique asked that the names be taken down.
The chairman rulied that there being nothing before the chair the names could not

be taken.
Exhibit No. 87.-Comparison between sworn annual statornents to Insurancc'

Departments of the State of New York and of the Dominion of Canada, was filed.
.It was moved by the Honourable Mr. Landry that the Committhe adjourn tili

taoinorrow.
The qucetion being put, the Committee divided thereon.
Yeas :-The Honourable Messieurs Cloran, Domville, Landry, Lougheed,

McSweeney, Sullivan-6.
Nays :-The Honourable Messieurs Béique, Gibson, Watson, Wilson-4.
So it was
Resolved in the affirmative.
Th-, Committee adjourned until to-morrow, Wednesday, lSth July, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUTNG,

Clert of the Committee.

THSE SENATE,
COMMITTEE Room No. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 13th July, 1904.

iPursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committee appointed to investi-
gate the position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.sn.

Present the Ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Domville, Gibson,
Landry, Le£gris, Lougheed, MeMullen, McSweeney, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the. Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for th. Mutual Reserve life Insur-
ance Company.

The examination on oath of James Thompson Patterson was continued.
The following exhibits were filed:
No. 38.-Table of expens!ýs other than agents' commissions.ý
No. 39.-Statement as to niortuary receipts used for expenses.
No. 40.-Statement as to cost of new business, 1901-1903, &c., &c.
No. 41.-Stattements as to cost of new business IEtna Life Insurance Company,

Equitabl- Life Assurance Society, and North-western Mutual Life Insuranoe Com-
pany, 1901-1903.

No. 42.-Summary of amounts paid to agents, 1890 to 1903.
No. 43.-Statement as to incoine, dishursements, gand ixet assets.
No. 44.-Statement as to " Selection against the Company," increage of death

rate, &c.
The Committee then adjourn."-d until 8.15 p.m. this day.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUJNG,

Clerk of the CormWitee.
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THz SENATE, R0MN.8

WEDNESDAY, l3th July 1904.

Pursuant to adjournment, the Select Committee appoiiwtýd to investigate the
position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York met
again this day at 8.15 p.m.

Present the ilonourable MesaFurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Domyjille, Gibson,
Landry, Legris, Lougheed, MeMullen, McSw!-eney, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson,
Sullivan, Watson, Wilson-14.

C. J. Coster, iEsq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.
"Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for thie Mutual Reserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

The examination 011 oath of J. Thompson Patterson was continued.
The following exhibits were filed:
No. 45.-Statement as to total death dlaims paid and death dlaims compromîsed.
No. 46.-Comparative stateinent as te deferred premiums.
It was moved by the Honourable Mr. Lougheed,
That th,ý Committee reconsider its action of the l2th instant in admitting Exhibit

No. 36.
In amendment thereto, it was movcd by the Honourable Mr. Landry,
That ail the words after IlThat " be struck out, and the following substituted t-

Ilthe Exhibit No. 36, accepted yesterday, the l2th instant, by this Committee, be
consid-red as tending to prove the consideration for which. a sum of $5,000 has been
paid by the Mutual iReserve Company to one Patterson, and nlot as a proof of the truth
of the charges which sucob document contains."

It was objected, by the ilonourable Mr. Béique, that the amendment was out of
order, on the ground that Exhihit No. 36, having been offered for ievidence and received
as sucb, could niot now be qualified as sought to be doue by the amendment; that,
moreover, the said axnendment was not in accordance with the facts.

The chairman thereupon rulod that it was in the power of this Committee to
qualify its prevîous action in accepting Exhibit No. 36, and that, înasmuch as the
aînendment offered was not a fiat contradiction of such action nor of the main motion,
the amendment was in order.

The question being put upon the amendment, the Committee divided thereon.
Yeas :-The Hlonourable Messieurs Cloran, Domville, Landry, McMullen,

McSweeney, Sullivan, Wilson-7.
Nays :-The Honourable Messieurs Béique, Gibson, Lough!ýed, Sir Alphonse Pelle-

tier, Watson-5.
So it was resolved in the affirmative.
The Honourable Mr. Béique having appealed from the decision of the chairman,

it was
:Resoived that the chairman do r,ýport the facts to the S'enate.
The motion of the Honourable Mr. Lougheed, as so amended, was then carried on

the same division.
The Comittee then adjourn.ed until to-morrow, Thursday, 14th July, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerc of the (Jommittee.l
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Tiuz SENATE,
COMMITTEE lloom No. 2,

THURSDAY, l4th July, 1904.

Pursua-nt to adjournment, the Select Committee appointed to investigate the
position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve iFund Life Association of New York met
this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Hlonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Landry, Legris,
Loughced, MoMullen, McSweexney, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson, Sullivan, Wilson,
Watson-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advise and assist the Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual IReserve Life Insur.
ance Company.

The exarnination on oath of J. Thompson Patterson was continued.
The Committee thien adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this day.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

C'lerk of the Committee.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE IRoom No. 8,

THURSDÂY, l4th July, 1904.

Pursuant to adpournment, the Sel~ect Committee 'appointed to investigate the
position in Canada of the Mutual iReserve Fund Lîfpe Association of New York met
iagain this day at 8.15 p.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béiquc, Domville, Gibson,
Lot.gheed, McMullen, McSweeney, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson, Sullivan, Wat-
son, Wilson-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., 1<.0., appeared of counsel to advis!, and assist the Committee.
Victor Gebifrion, Esq., X.C., appeared of counsel for the Miitual Rieserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

Edmond Pendleton, of Rlichmond, Virginia, U.S.A., was duly sworn by the chair-
man, and was examined upon oath. (Vide page 417 of Part V., Minutes of Evidence,
which appear further on).

Ordered that the said witness be discharged from further attendance.
The examination on oath of J. Thompson Patterson was continued.
The Committee then adjourned until Monday, l8th July, at 8.15 p.m.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Cierk of the Committee.

THE SENATE,
COMMITTEE IRoom INo. 8,

MoxDAY, lSth July, 1904.

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committe!ý appointed to investi-
gate the position ini Canada of the Mutual Resierve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 8.15 p.xn.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Domville, Tandry,
Lougheed, MiMlullen, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, iRobertson, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson
-11.

xxv
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C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advis- and assist the Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, iEsq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual Reserve Lile ]3nsur-
ance Company.

On application of counsel for the Mutl ]Reserve Life Insurance Company, it 'was
Ordered that Mr. Thomas Bradshaw, actuary, of Toronto, Ontario, Vice-p-resi-

deint of the Imperial Iife Insurance Company, ho summoned. to attend biefore the
Committee on Wednesday, 2Oth July instant, at 10 o'dlock a.xn.

The HFonourahie Sir Alphonse Pelletier moved that the witness, John Thompson
Patterson, be discharged from further attendanae on the Oommittee.

The question being put thereon the Committee dividjad.
Yeas :-4; Nays :-5.
So it was
IZesolvpd in the negative.
George D. Eldridge was re-called, du]y sworn by the chairman and further

,xamined, in rebuttal.
The following exhibits were filed:
No. 47.-Balance sheet, 1895 to 1901.
No. 48.-Statenent as to dlaims paid'at less than face in Canada, 1895 to 1903.

both inclusive.
The Committee then adjournied until to-morrow, Tuesday, 1Pth July, at 10 a.m.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerk of the Commiibee.

TFHE SENATE,
OOMMITTEE BOOM No. 2,

TuHsDÂT, l9th July, 1904.
Pursuant to adjourument and notice, the Select (Jommittec appointed to investi-

gate the'position in Canada of the Mutual liesierve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Doinville, Landry,
Lougheed, MeMullen, MeSweenýey, Robertson, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson-il.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to adviae and assist the Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual Deserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

The examination on oath of George iD. Eldridge, in rebuttal, was continued. (Vide
page 450 of Part V., Minutes of Evidence, which appear further on).

The following exhibits were filed:
No. 49.-Statement as te the Bankers' Lii Association.
No. 50a, 50b, 50c.-Statements showing expenditure and receipts re Moton D.

..Xoss.
No. 51.-Voucher, accounts ýand memorandum re credit to, Moton D). Moss for

$37,390.97.
Resolved to report that printed copies of the evîdAnce adduced biefore the Oom-

mnittee are not; furnished as speedily as required, the last printed copy supplied contain-
îng the evidence to the 30th June only, the evidence taken since the Senate
reassembled on the llth July not having been printe for the Committee; and that the
Connnittee are inforxned that; this delay is due to the printing being held back, but by
whose orders is unknown, no such order having been given by the Senate or by this
Comrnittee.
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The Committee then adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this day, or if the Senate be then
sitting, until 10 a.m. to-morro-w, Wednesday, 20th JuIy.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerk of the Commitlee.

Tni-i SENATE,

TUESDAY, 19th July, 1904.
The Senate sitting this evening, the Sýelect Committee appointed to investigate

the position in Canada of the Mutual Res-ýrve Fund Life Association of Nbw York
did flot meet.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerk of thie Committee.

THE SENÂTE,
COMMITTEE iRooM NO. 8,

WEDNESDAY, 2Oth July, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Committec appointed te investi-

gate the position in Canada of t1 e iMutual Res'erve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béiqùue, ljomville, Landry,
Lougheed, MeMullen, MIcSweenuey, Sir Alphonse Pellptier, Robertson, Sullivan, Wat-
son, Wi]son-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to advis!, and assist the Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual Beserve Lif e Insur-
ance Company.

The ilonourable Mr. Landry moved that thýe Superintendent of Printing be sum-
iuoned to appear before this Committe-e te give reasons for thxe delay in the printing
of the evidence.

The question heing put thiereon the Coinmittee divided.
Yeas :-6; INgys :-8.
So it was
Resolvel in the affirmative.
The examination on oath. of George D. Eldridge, in rebuttal, was continued.
The following exhibits were filed:
No. 52.-Certifeed copy of endorsement on indictment file'd 4th June, 1901, by the

Grand Jury, county of New York, against James Thompson Patterson.
No. 53a. 53b, 53c, 53d, 53e.-Comparative tables as to expenses ini Canada.
No. 54.-Memorandum and statement as to determination of proper sharc of

expenses chargeable to Camadian assessment business.
Tlïe Comn'ittee then adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this day, or if the Senate is then

sitting, until 10.15 a.m. to-morrow, Thursday, 2lst Ju]y.
(Attest)

J. C. YOUNG,
Clerk of the Uommittee.

xxvil
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THE SENATE,
WEDNESDAY, 2Oth July, 1904.

The Senate being then sitting, the Select Oommittee appointpd to investigate the
position in Canada of the Mutual Reserve Fund LiiLe Association of New York, did
no*t meet this evenîng at 8.15 p.m.

(Attest)

J. C. YOUNG,
Glerk of the Comrnittee.

THME SENATE,
COMMITTEE IRoom No. 2,

THuRSDAY, 2lst July, 1904.
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Select Oommittec appointed to investi-

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual IResierve Fuiid Life Association of New
York met this day at 10.15 a.in.

Present the ilonourable iMessieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, iDomville, Landry,
Lougheed, Mc:MuI]en, McSweeney, Watson, Wilson-9.

C. J. Coster, Esq., KOC., appeared of counsel to advis" and assist the Committee.
Victor Geoffrion, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel for the Mutual R'eserve Die Insur-
ance Company.

The examination on oath of Georgie D. Eldridge, in rebuttal, was continued.
Thomas Bradshaw, of the city of Toronto, actuary, and vice-president of the

-Imperial Life Insurance Company of Canada, was ctuly sworn by the chairman, and
was examined upon oath. (Vide page 516 of Part V1II., Minutes of Evidenee, which
appear further ou).

The Committee then adjourned until 8.15 p.m. this evening, or if the Senate be
then sittting, until 10 a.m. to-morrow, Friday, 22nd July.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Ulerc of the Comrnittee.

THE SENATE,
THURSDAY, 2lst July, 1904.

The Senate being then sitting, the Select Committee appointed to investi-
gate the position iii Canada of Ilie Mutual Res4erve Fund Life Association of New
York did not mneet this evening at 8.15 p.m.

(Attest)

J. C. YOUNG,
Clerk of the Committee.

xxviii
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THEa SENÂTE,
COMMITTEE 11ooi No. 8,

FRIDAY, 22nd July, 1904.1
Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the S.lect Comm ittee appointed to investi

gate the position in Canada of the Mutual Iteserve Fund Life Association of New
York met this day at 10 a.m.

Present the Honourahie Messieurs Cloran, chairraan; Béique, Bernier, Domville,
Landry, Lougheed, MoSwieeney, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, iRobertson, Sullivan, Watson,
Wilson-12.

C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C., appeared of counsel to adv.s! and assist the Committee.
Victor Ocoffrion, Esq., Iç.C., appeared of counsel for the iMutual iReserve Life Insur-
ance Company.

J. L. Culbert, of the city of Ottawa, lasurance agent. was duly swora hy ths
chairman, 'and was exainined upon oath. (Vide page 527 of Part VIII., Minutes of
Evidence, wh-ch appear further on).

Ordered that the witness Thomas Bradshaw be discharged from further attend-
dance on the Committee.

Ordered that the witness John I. Culhert be discharg!-d hrom further attendance
on the Conimitfep.

The examination on oath of George D. Eldridge, in rebuttal, was continued.
Exhibit No. 55.-Cost of construction of the Home Office building, was fiWc~.
John A. llyland, of New York, book-keeper of th:ý Mutuel Reservie Life Insurance

Comnpany, was duly sworn by the chairman, and was examined upon oath.
Ordered that the said witness be dischargcd from. further attendance, on the

Coîmnittce.
James Dalton, of the city of Ottawa, assistant clerk of lEnglish Journals, Huse

of Commons, was duly swvorn by the chairman, and was examined upon oath.
Orderedthat the said witness be discharged from further attenîdaiue 0on the

Committee.
It was moved by the Honourable Mr. Landry that the Committ!ýe risc and report

the evidence to th4i Sena te.
Inamnendment thereto, it was moved by the 1bonourable Mr. Béique, that, before

the Committee risec the evidence, of Messrs. Cannon and Cameron be heard in reference
to the charge as published in part onie of the evidence taken hefore this Committee, the
said two witnesses being now in attendancie.

The question heing put upon the amendment, the Committee divided thereon.
Yeas :-3; Nays :-7.
So it wis
iResolved in the neg-ative.
The question hfing then put on the main motion of the Honourahie Mr. Landry,

it was, on the saine division, reversed.
Resolv!pd ini the affirmative.
The Committee then adjourned.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Clerc of the Committee.
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THE SENATE,
CommiTTEE Room No. 8,

THURSDÀY, 28th July, 1904.

Pursuant to notice, the Select Committee appointed to investigate the position in
Canada of the Mutual Roserve Fund Life Association of New York iniet this day at
8.15 p.rn.

Present the ilonourable Messieurs Cloran, chairman; Béique, Bernier, Domville,
Landry, McMullen, Sir Alphonse Pelletier, Robertson, Sullivan, Watson, Wilson-il.

The chairman submitted to the Committep, a draft prepared by C. J. Coster, Esq.,
K.O., counsel appointed to advise and assist the Committee, of a proposed report, con-
taining a summary of the evidence taken before the Committee.

The ilonourable Messieurs Béique, Sir A. Pelletier aud Watson protested against
the presentation and reading of the said draft report, snd requested that their protests
le eiiteied of record.

The ilonourable Mr. McMullen moved that tire said draft report be read by the
chairman.

The question being put thereon th, Committee divided.
Yeas:-6; Nays:-g.
So it was
iResolved in thie affirmative.
The said draft report was then read by the chairman, aud is as follows-
The ilonourable Mr. McMullen moved that the draft report just read by the chair-

man be acceepted as read, and reported to the Senate by the chairman.
The question b12ing put thereon the Committee divided.
Yeas :-5; Nays :-3.
So it was
Resolved in the affirmative.
The Ilonourable Messieurs Béique, Sir A. Pelletier and Watson again entered

thpir protests against such action.
ResolvQd that the Committee do rise and report the proceedings.

(Attest)
J. C. YOUNG,

Olerk of the Committee..

N.B.-The said iReport was later on declared nuli and void by the Senate, and
ordered liot to appear in the Journals.
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MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

PART 1.

THE, SENATE, OTTAWA,
COMMITTEE iRom No. 8,

TiuasDAY, Juno 9, 1904.

JAMES DOUGLAS WELLS, Of the City of New York, was called, and having been duly
sworn by the Chairman of the Committee, was questioned by C. J. Coster, Esq., K.C.,
Counsel appointed by the Comxnittee to advise and assist them, and deposed as follows:

Q. You reside in New York ?-A. I do.
Q. You were vice-president of the iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association ?-A. I

was on1e of its vice-presidents.
Q. How long were you connected with the company ?-A. In Canada I was con-

nected with the company from 18.84 until 1890.
Q.Altogether how long were you ?-A. From 1884 until 1899.
Q.Have you read the minutes of the Senate Debates of the nineteenth of May,

1904?-A. I have.
Q. You heard what purported to be the report of the Insurance Department of the

State of New York read by the Hon. Mr. Kerr, of Toronto l-A. I did.
Q. Would you look at that on page 231 of the IRevised Edition of the Senate

Debates.? The statement is made there of an alleged statement of yours, that there had
been good round sums paid out, that there were Members of Parliament, of the Com-
mîttee and of the Government that had to have good sums, and that it cost him. (that
is yourself) over $1Q,0004 that he had found ail the money excepting for ýhe last bill
for a small amount. Did you make any sucli statement as that?-A. I did not. That
is absoltitely false in every particular.

Q. With whom are you supposed to have had this conversation ?-A. With IMr.
Eldridge.

Q.Did you have any conversation with IMr. Eldridge at that time ?-A. I did.
Q.When this evidence and memorandum. is referred to? Did you have a memo-

randum. with you at the time?-A. I did not take a memorandum with me at the time.
Q. Was there a memorandutu there I-A. Mr. Eldridge had a memorandum there.
Q. Who made that memorandum I-A. That memorandum was made up by myseif

at the request of iFrank R. Lawrence, counsel of the company, and given by him, I pre-
sume, to Mr. Eldridge.

Q. A memorandum. was there which had been made by you and given to Mir.
ILldridge?-A. No, not by me.

Q. By whom was it made e-A. It was made by me, and given to Mr. Frank R.
Lawrence, the attorney of the company-at his request, and by him given to IMr.
Eldridge, upon whomn I was requested to eall and discuss one or two items, or produce
some vouchers for expenditure as given by that memnorandum.

Q. When you had thiis conversation with Mir. Eldridge was the memorandum
there ?-A. It was.

Q. Have you a copy of that memorandum I- -A. I have. I now produce it as
Exhibit A. It is as follows:-

WELLM
1-1
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EXHIBIT A.

MEMO. 0F DISBURSEMENTS eY J.. D. WELLS.
Agents:

Buchanan iBurr (check cashed by 'me as when agent)..- 127 54
John Hopper........................347 00
G. L. Lewis ...... ....... ........ ....... ............ 00C. IM. Wad(check for premium cashed by me) ........ 100 00J. W. Gruminon.....................100 00
W. C. Krensch...... ........ ...... ....... ....... 00R. W. Cantwell......................25 00
E. D. Ludwig ........ ........ ...... ....... ........ 355 25
A. J. Tessier.......................100 00C. H1. Ryan ...... .......... .... ....... ............ 25 00
J. Brown.........................27 00
W. S. Bishop....... ........................ 5 00G. IL. IBelIows.......................50 00
W. Vance Harper (check for thjs was received by asso-

ciation and is due J. D. Wells by association, having
been erroneously credited W. V. Harper)......137 50

W. H1. Mondon........................51 00
A. M. Sadier............... ........... ...... 00o
W. B. Shermian-travelling expenses, ordered by Agency

Com. $85. Cash advanced, $100...........185 00
Rich & Fox, travelling expenses.............50 0O
F. W. ]Iolbrooke ........ .............. ..... 150 00A. C. Hlunt (balance of $500 adv.) ........ ............ 100 00
E. N. Lehrherg............................***.....200 00
W. L. Beiler (cash $150, and $25 going to Columbus, O.).. 175 00
]E. L. McCormack ..... ...... ................ 22 00
A. P. Worthley, 32 Pine...................5 00

2,507 29Ralph Evans, London....................300 0à
- Cardner, London....................75 00
Oliver Sumner Teal. .................. 50 00
N. W. Bloss (loaned when director and V. P.).......800 00
F. Braman......................295 00
J. I. Burke, private seeretary F. A. B.........25 00
C. I. Evans......................50 00
G. R. IMcChesney-Going south on c ompany's business,

$500; Iess repaid, $250 .... .... ........ ...... 250 00

Mutual.Be8erve
34 years disb. entertaining agents and visitors, members,

4wsay $50 per month, authorized hy Pres. Harper. 2,100 00
Commission on Canadian business transferred by agents:

Paid by W. Vance Harper ; loaned to him repaid hy
check and erroneously credited his account 137 per
cent; paid for advertising in Fete paper in Fiat-
bush.. ... *................................-......4 00

Paid for advertising Financial Gazette, 100 copies.. 10 00
F. A. Burnham....................... 00

Add Canadian commissions.
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Q. The first part of this memorandum is taken up apparently with payments

made to agents beginning with Buchanan Bun, -A Yes, these were ail Principally

agents.
Q. You say that the payments made to Buchanan Burr, who is the flrst named

ini this memorandum, down to Oliver Sumner Teali were advances made by you to

agents ?-A. They were.
Q. Go through the other items and say what they were for ?-A. N. W. Bloss

was a former director and vice-president to whom I loaned $800. Mr. F. Bram'an was

the former secretary of the company, almost fromn its foundation, T shoilfi say. Mr.

R<. R. Burke was thc private secretary of the president.

Q. These items represented money loaned ?-A.. Yes, they are ail for money

loaned. C. I. Evans and G. R. McChesney are manies loaned. The next item is on

account 1 had against the company for $2,100.

Q. What was that for ?-A. In my capacity as manager and director of the

agency department, in charge of agents throughout the «United States and Canada, the

world, you may say-it devolved, upon me,' whenever visits were made ta the home office,

ta take them in charge and entertain them.

SBy the Hon. Mr. Landry :

Q. 1bat is for personal dishursementa ?-A. Yes, it is customary.

By .Mr. Coster, Coun.sel for the Commîitee:

Q. As manager of agencies an allowance was made to you for entertaining agents

when they came, and this item is a charge for that ?-A. Yes. The next item is in

blank because 1 could not get at the amounts. It was commission due me for agents

in Canada on Canadian business-from whoma orders were accepted by the Company.

The next item is an amount paid by W. Vance Harper for check of bis that I cashed.

The next was an amount paid for advertising. The next is an item of 100 copies

of the Financial Gazette. The next is an amount against Mr. Burnham, money

loaned to him.
Q. Neyer at any time did you make any charge for money paid by you in procur-

ing legisiation ?-A. iNever directly or indirectly.

Q. And this is the memoranduma you say referred to in the statement by Mr.

Eldridge on the minutes of the Senate and the only memorandum that you ever dis-

,cussed. with him g-A. It is.

Q. You say that Frank R. Lawrence was the solicitor of the company ?-A. lie

was the counsci of the company. 0

Q. And you handed this memorandum to him that he gave to Mr. Eldridge, be-

,cause Mr. Eldridge had it when you were there talking ta him ?-A. Certainly, he told

me so.
Q. Did you have any communications with Frank R. JLawrence on the subject r-

A. I did.
Q. Look at Exhibit B, which is a copy of a letter written to you by Frank Law-

rence at the time in reference to this, is it not i-A. It is the memorandum referred

to in the letter. It is the one that is market Exhibit A. The letter is as follow-

EXHIBIT B.

FLÀTBUSH, Mlarch 18, 1899.

FitA%-r P. LAwRENcE, Esq.,

eDEAR SR,--Inasmuch as the memo. which I recently handed te you at your own

request was made up exclusively of dishursements, the largest itemn having been ad-

vanced to Mr. Burnham himself and the next largest upon an understanding with

Mr. Harper that it should be repaid, both items aggregating $7,675, 1 submit that it

is not difficuit te deal with the memo. in a business way.
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'Permit me to remind you that our first interview on this subject took place atyour suggestion and request and that it was, among other things for the purpose ofinforming me that ià[r. Burnham desired to recognize my long service to the associa-

tion by prolonging my saiary gratuitously-' So long as I pleased'. I was obliged,
however, to refuse this offer, partiy because I did not desire to be considered in the ser-vice of the association any longer, even nominaliy, and partly because I could not in
the rneantimne accept any other position without acting incongruousiy.

'It was during our conversation on this subject that I informed you of the cashdisbursements which I had made and showed you two cheques representing advances
to Mr. Burnharn personally to the extent of $5,575.

'I arn advised tlhat I have a legai right to recover, at ail events the two principal
items to which I have referred, and of course, 1 prefer to settie amicably.

'This matter was discussed between you and rue oniy as a business matter. Incommrunicating Mr. Burnham's proposai to me, and in my more moderate counter-
pioposal to you, there was flot a single suggestion about conditions, and if the matter
is further discussed, we wili, I hope, pursue the same uines.

'At one of our interviews I showed to yo'u and you read with great interest a
draft letter which I wrote and addressed to iMr. Bùrnham more than six months ago.I have recentiy revised this draft-and to some extent iengthened it-and I send youherewith a copy of the reviseri letter merely for your perusal and confldentialiy, which
please return at your convenience. I arn anxious to send it to Mr. Barnham as sooil
as possible.

'I arn very much gratifled with your very courteous and considerate treatme.ntcf this matter throughout ail our interviews. In fact, so reflned has been your di-plomacy that it has relieved a very disagreeabie matter of munch of its unpieasantness.
Yours very truiy,

'J. D. WELLS?'

Q. That Buruham. Who is, referred to in Exhibit B is the president of the Com-
pany ?-A. Yes.

Q. Look at Exhibit C, whîch purports to be a copy o! another letter written by
you to the solicitor of the company on this business ?-A. It is. The ietter is as
f£oliows.*

EXHIBIT C.

'Frak R Lawenc, Es' 0 'FLATBUSH, April 7, 1899.

'I have considered the subject-matter o! our interview of yesierday very care-
fuiiy, and have come to the conclusion that I cannot accept your proposition, nor
any other proposition for the payment; to me o! money by the association at this par-
ticuiar crisis of its affairs.

' I have, as you know, very strong views as to the course which ought to be .pur-sued in order to. re-estabiish public confidence in the association. I firmiy believe that
the retirement; of IMr. Burnhama and the reorganization of the directorate is an abso-
lute and pressing necessity, and that it is my duty to the poiicy-hoiders and the agents
of the association generaily ta 'do a11 in my power toward bringing abouft this resuit,
and that your proposition, no matter what form it assumed, would serîousiy impairmy usefulness. In fact, the more I thouglit o! it, the lesa I iiked it.

'I thank you for your courtesy in the treatment of this matter, but I arn sure that
ý ou will believe that I do the right thing in refusing your proposition.

'Wili you kindly,; therefore, intimate my decision to Mr. George Burnham, uponwhom you requested me to cali to-morrow sud, receive a'check for $5,O0O on account?
Y ,ours truiy,

'3'. D. WELLS?'WEMLLÉ
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Q.How much money did they offer to give you 1-A. Fifteen thousand dollars.
Q.Ad you refused to take it ?-A. 1 refused to take it.
Q. fow mucli of that money did you get back that was due you as per that memo-

randumn ?-A. After writing that letter I sued the president for the amount oif the
boan, which hie after a year or so of pleading in the court, paid with ail costs.

Q. And this fifteen thousand dollars you say was offered to you-What for ?-A.
After looking over that account which hie had received back fromn Mr. Eldridge, I
called to see him at bis request. He said, referring to the memo., 'I have been look-
ing over this thing, I think we can satisfactorily dispose of it,' and hie made me two
or three offers. One was to place the amount on the salary list of the association.
He first said, 'We have made up our minds to give you fifteen thousand dollars. The
account docs flot figure up fiftccn thousand dollars, about eleven or twelve thousand,
but we have made up our minds to offer you fifteen thousand dollars hy way of good-
will Lo part on fritaidly Lerms aiid witbout further trouble or hother.'

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. That was as a final settiement 1-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee.

Q. Were you dismissed fromn the company 1-A. No.
Q. You resigned 1-A. Yes.
iMr. Coster, K.C., calîs attention to the fact that on page 9 of the company's

circular sent to ail the members of the Senate, a portion of one of these letters to
Frank R. Lawrence is quoted.

Q. You neyer in any way intimated, either by word or in any other way, that
you had ever paid money to a meinher of the Parliament of Canada, or any mem-
ber of the Government 1-A. Neyer. 1

Q. And the statement tbat you did say so is absolutely false from beginning to
end 1 A. Absolutely false fromn beginning to end.

Q. ]Jid you ever receive one cent of money fromn the Mutual Reserve Fund Life
Association for tbat purpose 1-A. Neyer.

Q. Or from anyhody else 1-A. Or from anybody else.
Q. Dhd you ever ofler anybody any inoney for the purpose of procurilg legisia-

tion 1-A. I neyer oflered it and neyer was asked for it.

By the Chairman:

Q. Especially at the time when you were present during the session of Parliament
hiere asking for an Act of incorporation 1-A. No, that was at the time when insurance
legislation was before iParliament in relation to assessment companies, in 1885.

Q.That charge refers to acts wbich happened in 1885 1-A. Yes.

By the lon. Mr. Landry:

Q. Did you take any part in the passing of that Act in 1885 1-A. No, my brother,
Hon. R. iM. Wells, was here and took part.

Q. The only thing you did at the time was to obtain your license fromn the Gov-
ernment 1-A. That is ail, and there was an assessment Bill before the Flouse at that
time, and I attended the Committee on Banking and Commerce and was in consulta-
tion with the members of the Government. about that Bill, in fact, it was the assess-
ment Bill hefore 'the flouse that I was more interested in than anything else, be-
cause that Bill was the bone of contention at that time.

Q. The passing of it would enable you to get a license 1-A. Certainly, it was
why I was interested in its passing.

Q. The statement made is tbat 'there have been good rounda sums paid out: that
there were members of Parliament, of the Committee, and of the Government that had
ta have good sums; that it cost him over $1O,OOOý; that hae had ta find all thé money

WELLS
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except for the st bill for a small axnount'-what does that mean ?-A. I do flot knowwhat he refera to, probably Lie means that $5,575 in rny bill for disbursements.Q. The statement is that 'lie found ail the money except for the last"biIl for a811151 amount' ?-A. 1 do not know what he refers to.

By, Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commillee:
Q.This alleged interview witli Mr. Wells mentioned by iMr. Kerr-who made thereport of that alleged interview i-A. It ismade to the Insurance Department by Mr.Eldridge or some one in behaif of the company.Q. Did flot the ,Insurance Department niake a report upon it l-A. No, there wasuno report from the Departinent of Insurance in reference to any charges made by me.In fact the Superintenident of Insurance sys in -Lis officiai report that Le did flot gointo the charges. That is in the officiai report.Q. This is simply a statement made by Mr. Eldridge ?-A. Made by Mr. Eldridgeand somebody else connected with the company.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. There is nothing in the item for Canadian commissions to cover payments,made to members of Parliament, or members of the Committee, or members of theGovernment i-A. Not at ail. I was i11 the habit of receiving accounts for com-missions from the comnpany. This was upon business of the company in which theagents to whom I bad personally advanced moneys had an interest by way of renewalcomm iss ions.

JAMES DOUGLAS WELLS.
The Committee adjourned until to-morrow, June 10, 1904.

TRE SENATE, OTTAWA,
COMMITTEE Room No. 2,

F-RiDAY, June 10, 1904.
GEORGE D. ELDRMGE, of the City of New York, Vice-iPresident and Actuary of theMutual Reserve Life Insurance Company, was called, and having been duly swornby the Chairman of the Committee, was examined by Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel ap-pointed by the Conimittee to advise and assist thema, and deposed as follows:
Q. Have you read a copy of the Senate Debates of May l9th, with reference tostatements made by the Hon. Mr. Kerr 1-A. I have seen that before.Q. Have you read it i-A. I have.
Q. The Hon. Mr. Kerr purports to be quoting froni a report of the Insurance]Jepartment, or was it a statement made to the Insurance Department made hy you-what is this 'copied fromi, do you know ?-A. Lt is copied from the printed answçrs ofthe oficers of the Mutual iReserve IFund Life Association, as it then was. That wasprior to, the incorporation under a new name-made to the Insurance Department ofNew York, to, certain charges, copies of which were furnished by that department, saidcharges having been filed, as we were informed, by Mr. J. D. Wells and Mr. JamesStevenson.
Q. Were these statements made under oath i-A. They were.Q. And these statements with reference to the payments of surns of money to,Memhers of Parliameuf, of thé Connnittee and of the Government, were miade by you,were they, te the department 1-A. The statement from which an extract is there

=LRIDGE
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made--I have not compared that extract woTd by word-was contained in an affidavit

made hy me and embraced withiii the answer furnished to the Insu-rance Department.

Q. ls this the language that yoü used, as near as you Temember-that there had

been good round sums paid out, that there were members of Parliament, of the Com-

niittee and of the Government that liad to have good sums, and that it cost hin-

that would be Mr. Wells, would it i-A. Y es.

Q. Over ten thougand dollars, that he had found ail the money excepting for the

last bil for a small amnount ?-A. In substance that is the statement made by me ini

my aflidnvit ns having been made to me by Mr. Wells.

ýBy th'- Tin. Mr. Landri,:

Q. Have you a copy of that affidavit ?-A. I have a printed copy of it as it ap-

peared in the answer to the department (copy produced).

By Mr. Coster, K£C., Cou'nsel for the Committee

Q. What is this ?-A. That is a printed copy of our answer to the Insurance

Depariment of New York.
Q. Pages 49 to 54 of this pamphlet are the affidavit which you produce ?-A. Yes.

(Pages 49 to 54 of printed copy. filed as Exhibit D.)

Q. You admit this is what you swore to: -

'I then took up the memorandum and said to him again: Now, this is what you

want paid, the amounts contained ln this memorandum, together with an equivalent

to a year's salary,,and the association is to thereafter have your good-will, to which

he replied: Yes, but that he would not make anything out of it, that he had spent

lots of money that was not contained in the memorandum, that he had paid ail the

cost of the legislation in Canada that passed the law by which the association pro-

cured its license to do business in the Dominion, for which he had neyer been repaid.

That there had beeiû good round sumis paid out; that there were members of iParlia-

mient, of the Committee, and of the Government that had to have good sums, that it

cost him over ten thousand dollars, that he Lhad found aIl the money eixcepting for the

last bill for a small amount.'
Q.That is what you stated ?-A. That is a portion of the affidavit made by me.

QI am asking whether you made that statement-is that portion of it correct?~

-A. I made that statement. If I may be permitted, I would asic the committee to

include the whole affidavit as bearing on the credibility of the stateraent and showing

the circunistances under which the whole matter was made, and I do it in addition

because I undertand from report-though being barred from the evidence of yesterday,

I do not know whethcr it is a fact or not-that Mr. Wells presentcd yesterday a schedule

which purports to be the schedule which was under discussion at the time referred to

herein. I asic as a matter of privilege that be included ln the evidence.

By, the Chai rman:

Q.That document is ln the pamphlet, is it not i-A. The sehedule is in the liands

of the conunittee.
Q. Your affidavit is practically in the Senate IDebates already ?-A. There is only

one paragraph of it ln the Benate Debates.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. The only paragraph in the Dehates is the paragraph relating to the disburse-

mnente alleged to have been made by MT. Wells for the purchase of the good-will of memn-

bers of Parliarnent:- the next la his intercourse with the company ?-A. The balance

shows the ciTcumstances under which the conversation took place and bears, I think,

upon the credibility of the whole thing.
ELDRIDGE
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By Mr. Coster, K.CJ., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Look at Exhibit A., being a copy of the memorandum. which was producedyesterday by iMr. Wells before the comrnittee, and tell me if that ie flot a correctcopy of the schedule to your affidavit ?-A. Without comparing word for word, itappears to, be a copy identical with this Exhibit A of Exhibit 2 ini the affidavit i-A. I
presume it îs.

Q. There was a statement submitted to the honourable members of the Senate, aprinted statement purporting to corne £rom the company. Look at that statement.You can tell by glancing at it. That purported to corne £rom the company, did itflot I-A. Yes,' sir.
Q. 1)id you prepare that or help to prepare it I-A. I helped te prepare it.

(Extract frern page 9 of printed statement produced, fiied as Ex7ibit E.)
Q.At page nine there is what purports te be an extract from. a letter frern J. D.Wells to Frank R. Lawrence. Have yen that letter ?-A. I have not it with me.Q. You received that letter, did yeu I-A. I did net.Q. Did you see it I-A. 1 have seen it.

Q. You saw the letter marked Exhibit B, a cepy of which was put in evidence
yesterday I

By the Chairman:
Q. Did yeu read the letter g-A. I have testified that I saw the latter from. whichthe extract on page nine was made. I do net testify anything as to the letter put inyesterday or having seen it or heard of it.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Cou-nsel for the Committee:
Q. Yen saw the letter of which that is an extract ?-A. Yes.

By the lien. Mr. Landrp:
Q. In other words, that extract is correct I-A. That extract is correct from aletter I have seen.

By Mlr. Coester, K.C., (Jounsel for the Cemmittee:
Q. iFrank IR. Lawrence was counsel for the company, was lie net ?-A. FrankR. ]Lawrence bas been counsel for the cempany.
Q. And was at that tirne -A. Special counsel, yes.Q. I arn reading new from the letter of March 18th, 1899, marked Exhibit B.Would yen look at that copy and tell*me if that is net a copy of the letter frorn whichlie took the abstract ?-A. It would be absolutely impossible for me te testify fromthis copy as te whether that is a correct copy of a letter that bas net been seen by me£or several monthe at least. I could net possibly testify.Q. Will yen say it is net I-A. I will net say it is net or that it ia.Q. You toek this extract eut of this letter? Yen said yen did q-A. I said thatthat was an extract from a letter that I had seen addressed by Mr. Wells te MVr.Lawrence.
Q. Did yen take the extract from it I Did yen or did yen net I-A. That weulddepend upon what yen mean by taking the extract frorn it. The extract contained inthe document admitted in evidence is a correct copy of a paragrapli centained in aletter £romn Mr. Wells te Mr. Lawrence which j have seen.Q. llew do yen know that paragraph is correct, if yen cannot tell about theothers I-A. I l ad before me a cepy of a letter and I cornpared that with it.Q. Hew ]Qong ago did yen make this staternent te the Senate centaining ExhîbitE. -A. That particular document was prepared, I think, about a month age.Q. Why do yen say yen have not seen the letter for two years I-A. I did net say
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Q. You cannot remember any other portion of the letter but that t-A. That is

the only one that I identify.
Q. You cannot remember any more of it t-A. 1 cannot rernember the other por-

tions of the letter sufficiently to testify wlietlier that typewritten document is a copy

of fthe letter or not.
Q. Who lias those letters e-A. I do not know in whose possession that letter is at

fihe present time.
Q. Wliose possession was it in when you saw it last ?-A. The only time I saw that

letter it was in the possession of Mr. 'Burnham., the president of the cornpany.
Q. Are you prepared to produce the letters with reference to this before this

(Jomxnittee ?-A. I arn not, because it is flot in my possession.

iMlr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for ftle Cornmittee.-I would ask that the letter of

March lSth, to Frank R. Lawrence, and also the letter of April lth, should be pro-

duced by the company to the Committee. We have sworn copies of them, here, and lie

will flot deny them.

Mr. AYLESWORTH, K.C.-Miglit 1 say, on Mr. Eldridge's behaif, Mr. Chairman,

that I understood this was an inquiry whicli concerned only IMr. Eldridge.

The CHÂ&IRAN~Â.-He bas admitted the essential. part.

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Comnmittee.-H-e wrote saying lie would not

take any money from them at ail. That is the essential part whicli they have left out.

I wanted to test the witness's memory or honesty or something or other.

Q. Will you swear that -this was not in the letter received by Frank R. Lawrence:

'I have considered the subject-matter of our interview of yesterday very carefully,

and have corne to the conclusion that I cannot accept your proposition or any other

proposition for the payment to me of money by the association at this particular

crisis in its affairs '?-A. I do not know whether that was contained in a letter ad-

dressed te Mr. Lawrence by iMr. Wells or not.

Q. 'I have, as you know, very strong views as te the course whicli ouglit to be

pursued in order to re-stablish public confidence in the association.' Do you say that

was in it g-A. Mr. Cliairman, I ask a ruling from you as to whether this is not going

into matters relating to the association, and not myseif personally ?

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Comrittee.-It is witli rcfcrencc to the bribery,

wvith reference teo the money whicli he says Wells demanded from hi=.

iMr. AYLESWORTH.-Tlie letter bas not the slightest reference to that, as I under-

stand it. It lias not the slightest reference to the subjeet under inquiry to-day.

The CaÂiRmÀN.-We are not dealing with the affairs of the company now. We

are dealing with a question of fact submitted to the Senate by the Honourable Sen-

ator Kerr. iMr. Eldridge is supposed to, have taken that statement from a document

now before the Cosnmittee, signed and produced as Exhibit lE. We aredealing with

that statement made by Hon. Mr. Kerr, Toronto. It was taken from the document

produced liere from. the report Exhibit D. IMr. Eldridge is supposed to have made

that statement and lie lias corne te this Committee and swore lie did make fthe state-,

ment. That statement was made in a document called an affidavit in connection witli

the buasiness between the Insurance Departrnen 't of New York and tus company. In

that statement is where the question of privilege arises; and it was brouglit before the

House by the Honourable gentleman £rom Stadacona. The fact that IMr. Wells had

stated to you, Mr. Eldridge, that lie had spent $10,000 in practically buying up fthe

members of tlie Government and of the Comrnittee and of Parliament at the. time

when fhey were seeking legisiation in 1884 or 1885-
.ELDRIDGE
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Mr. CosTRn, K.O., Counsel for the Committee.-And that he demanded meney,asked that it should be paid back, and here is his letter in which lie says lie wen'ttake a cent, whicli is ini evidence 1-A. I made ne statement that lie demanded of

the company that the $1OOOO slieuld he paid back.

The CHAIRMAN.-It is easy te ascertain that. The statement is here.

By Mr. Coster, I•.U., Counsel for the Commnittee:
Q.This is what yen want paid 1-A. Yes.
Q.Wliat dees that inean1-.A. That weans the items contained in the schedule,and it does flot contain the $10,000 or any reference to it at ail; no reference te it in

that schedule at ail.
Q. 'Together with the equivalent of a year's salary;' wliat was his year's salary?-A. I think that lis salary et that time was either $12,00O or $15>0O0 a year.

Mr. WELLS.-$1,OO was my salary.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. 'Together with the equivalent of a year's salary': what dees that mean 1-A.

Hie demanded that -a year's salary should be paid to him.Q. That would be $10,000 in addition to the memorandum 1-A. Yes.Q. And tIen you go on te say lie stated lie had spent $10,000 in bribing themembers of the Government? 'A. But that does flot say that lie demanded that$10,000: on the contrary, if this wliole document was put in as I requested, you wil
ind in other portions of it-

Q. 1 should like you to answer my question?

Mr. AYLESWORTI{, K.C.-The witness should not be interrupted.

Q. Will you siy thiat letter was not received refusing to, take any money fremthe company 1-A. Mr. Chairman, I desire te, cali attention te the fact tliat this Tetterbears date nearly two months subsequent to the interviews between myseif and Mr.Wells as reported by me in the affidavit, and could pessibly have no bearing wliatever
upon the matter under investigation.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. Subsequent ?-A. Subsequent ?

By the Chairman:
Q. De yen swear it lias ne bearing wliatever on it ?-A. It has none to my knowl-

edge.
Q. To your knowledge ?-A. No.
Q. Will you swear absolutely it lias none whatever 1-A. 1 do net know. It is aletter addressed te another party, and it is several months subsequent to the allega-

tion made by me and the interview to whieh it relates.

By1 Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Cemmittee:
Q. Wliat is tlie date of your affidavit, please 1-A. The l3th day of July, 1899.Q. This is dated tne 7th April, 1899; why do you say that it was afterwards 1-A.Tlie interview took place in February.
,Q. After your affidavit ?-A. MIy affidavit covers the facts of the interview which

took place in iFebruary,'1891.Q. Tlien yen say that when you made the afidavit yen did flot know that Mr.Wells liad refused to take money f rom the company 1-A. 1 had neyer seen those let-
ters at tlie time.
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Q. Answer my question?-A. I do not know to-day that ho refused to take money
from the comxpany.

Q. Then you neyer saw the letters which went to Frank: R. Lawrence2-A. 1 did.
&.What ?-A. I d.id.
Q.And you saw the letter of April T ?-A. No, I neyer saw the letter April 7

until it was produced here to-day.
Q. And you only saw the letter of March 18: that is the only one -you saw ?-A.

That is the only one I saw.
Q. Now, IMr. Eldridge, don't you know that the letter of April 7 was published

in the public press of New York i-A. If I ciid know it, it lias entirely escaped my
memory that I ever saw i•t.

Q. WilI you tell me that you did flot take sufficient interest in the aiTairs of the
coompany, when you sec a serious charge like that in the press, flot to notice it ?-A. I
saw so many that were made by the same party that I cannot recali the different ones.

Q.Do you know of any money being oflered to Mr. Wells i?-A. 1 do flot.
Q.At any time?-A. Offered to him in what way do &ou mean?
Q.By the company, since he 1eit ?-A. I do flot.
Q.You swear that you do flot y-A. I do flot know of any money being offered

to hlm.
1Q. Was any proposition made to him to pay him. money that you know of ?-A.

Not that I know of.
Q. Through anybody else; did you ever authorîze such a proposition to be made?

-. I neyer did.
Q. Was iMr. MacMurchy representing you ?-A. Representing me personally?
Q. Was he representing the company y-A. Mr. Chairman, I again ask-

The CHIMÂN.-What is the object of the question ?

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Committee.-The object Of the question is
that Mr. Wells says that through him they did make an offer. I just want to get him
to say lie is their attorney.

The Cu1iRmANM.-It la just testing the veracity of the witness.

IMr. COSTRa iË.C., Counsel for the Committee.-Yes.

WiTrNEss.-Mr. MacMurchy lias beon, and at that time was, one of the counsel of
the company in Canada.

Q.And was lie authorized to inake any offers to, iMr. WeIls y-A. I do flot know.
Q.Was Mr. Lawrence authorized to make any offers of inoney to hlm ?-A. I do

not know.
Q. Can you explain to me what this would mean in the letter which Mr. Wells

swore he sent to Mr. Lawrence. 'WiII you kindly therefore intimate my decision to
Mr. George Burnham upon whom lie requested mie to cail to-morrow and recéive a
cheque for $5,000 on accouut': what would that have meant ?-A. I do not know.

Q.Did you ever hear of it ?-A. Ever hear of what?
Q.Eyer hear of his beir4g-requestêd to call and receive a cheque for $5,OOO ?-A.

No, sir.
Q. You never did ?-A. No.
Q. When did Mr. Wells make the statement to you that lie had paid $10,000 to

the members of iParliament and members of the Governement ?-A. Hie made it ln the
interview which took place upon the 28th day of February, 1899.

Q. Who wa&,present at that interview ?-A. Mr. Wells and myseif.
Q. Nobody else y-A. No, sir.
y. 28th February, was itt?-A. Yes.

ELDIDGE~
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Q. You swore to that in your affidavit, did you e-A. Yes. I
Q. This letter is dated March 18 and April 7: so it was flot two inonths ?-A. Oh,

1 spoke in round numbers, a couple of months, referring to the letter of April 7.
Q. I should like you to be a littie careful about the round statement that you

make. There was one item in the memorandum of $5,574: was that paid to Mr. Wells,
do you know i-A. I do flot know.

Q.You do flot know ?-A. No.
Q.Do you know anything about the affairs of the company at alli-A. Yes; I

know considerable about the affairs of the company.
'Q. You say that you do flot know that a suit was conunenced against the presi-

dent F. A. Burnham for that amount and that lie paid it ?-A. I did flot say any-
thing of the kind.

SQ. What did you say i-A. I said that I did flot know whether that $5,575 was
ipaid to iMr. Wells or not.

Q. Don't you know that a suit was coxnmenced by Mir. Wells against Mir. Burnham
for it and that he paid it?-A. I know that Mr. Wells began a suit against Mr. Burn-
bain on some dlaim and I presumne that is it.

Q. And 'hat Mir. Burnham paid it, did lie not ?-A. I do flot know wliether Mr.
Brunham paid it or flot.

By the Chairman:

Q. Is the suit stili pending against the company ?-A. It was a suit against iMr.
Burnham personally.

Q. You know the suit was started: do you know if it is still pending ?-A. I
think flot.

Q. Is it settled I-A. I do flot know what the disposition of the suit between Mir.
Wells and Mr. Burnham was.

B~y Mr. Coster,. K.C., Gounsel for the Comr,'ittee
Q. iMr. Wells stated yesterday that the wliole amount was paid him with costs ?

The CHÂ&inmàse-Re says hie knows nothing personally about it.

Q. Did lie give you any particulars of whom lie made these alleged payments to?
-A. Contained in the schedule?

Q. No, no, confine yourself to the question of the $10,000 -A. The question of
the $10,000?

Q. ies -A. No, sir, lie did not, further than what is stated here in this affidavit.
Q. Tliese are tlie words you say lie used I-A. I do not purport there to quote

,tlie exact words tliat lie used. I am giving tlie substance of the statement lie made
to me.

By the Chairman:
Q.You have to lie very careful. Tlie whole charge is in those few words. We

must have a very ýdirect statement because tlie charge is there I-A. The charge is
there and that is the substance of what lie stated to mie, but I do not purport to give
it word for word, but that statement as contained there, that there were members of
Parliament, of the Comxnittee, and of the Government that had to have good su=s,
that it cost him over $10,OO0, that lie f ound ail the money excepting for the last bill
for a small amount, lie stated to me.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. Wbýat is the meaning of that 'excepting for the last bill for a small amount '?

-A. That hie did receive £rom the company a 'certain portion of the money- which
was the last payment lie made; it was for aý small -amount.,
ELDRIDGE5
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Q. That is, cost him over. $10,000, that lie had found ail the xnoney.

Mr. AvLEswoRiH.-That lie personally had provided it.

Q. Excepting for the last bill for a small amount ?-A. Yes, the hast bill con-

nected with those payments.
Q.Do you know wliat bill it is g-A. I do flot.
Q.There is a bill yet to be paid, I suppose ?-A. A bill yet to lie paid

Q. I conclude that if ail the $10,000 were found, hie wouhd be paid, excepting for.

the lasL bil ?-A. That lie personally had found the entire $10,000 or more, ex-

cepting for one bill which was the last one of ail and that that was found by the

Company.

The CHAIÛMAN.-This matter hm. been discussed by the members, of the Com-
mittee and the members of the Senate. We cannot understand that hast phrase.

Hon. Mr. LANDRY.-AIh I wanted was his explanation because it is hie that made

the affidavit.

Q. Did lie ever tender you any, receipts for the money hie paid in Canada as

vouchers ?-A. 11e neyer did.
Q. For tbe money lie was asking to lie recouped g-A. I did nlot understand him to

be asked to be recouped for that money at any time.

B~y the Chairman:

Q.You did flot what ?-A. I did flot understand him to ask to lie recouped for

the $10,000 at any time.

Mr. COSTrER, IÇ.C., Counsel for the Committee.-Now, Mr. Cliairman, IMr. Eldridge
makes that statement, and I will cali bis attention to the fact that in bis own

affdavit lie swears to exactly the contrary.

The CHAmRMN.Take the two statements.

IMr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Committee.-I 'would only call the attention of

the ilonourable Committee to that fact.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. Did you ever behieve when hie told you lie had spent $10,000 to purchase mem-

bers of the Cafladian Parliament? Dil you ever believe it was true h-A. N o, sir.

Q. And that wàs aù additional reaso-n not to recoup him h-A. It was à reason for

flot admitting the demand that was macle for the payment of the money.

By Mr. Cosier, X.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. I will read this statement agaifl. 'Now this is what you want paid,' &c.

(iReads.) luis demand is for the amount stated in that memorandum and $10,OO0. That

i-, wbat you swore to there and now you say that lie neyer demanded any money from

tbem ?-A. iMr. Chairman, I bave not stated that lie neyer demanded any money from

us ; on the contrary I have sworn that lie demanded the money covered by tlieý sche-

dule liere put clown and one year's salary in addition. I have sworn that lie did not

ask'us to recoup him that sumn paid as lie alleged, for the purchase of the Parliament

of Canada, and lie did not ask, and if you will turn to page 52 of tlie affidavit I have

made-Q. Well, now-

Thxe CHAIMAN.-Finisli the ansver.

.A. ýIf you will- turn to page 52 of the affidavit I have macle you wiil ftnd again

the reference to bis .demand for a, year's salary in additionto the schecle, sliowing
ELDRIDGE
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that he placed it entirely upon the basis of receiving one year's salary after having
b*.en dropped from the association, and that it liad nothing whatever to do witli re-
couping for the $10,000 used in the purchase of the IParliamaent of Canada for that
ainount. H1e neyer did ask for any recouping. I ask, Mr. Chairman, that lie turn to
page 52.

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Committee.-If Mr. Eldridge wants to make a

statement lie cari make it now, but there is no use putting in the old affidavit. If lie

wants to make a statement let hin make it, but to put in a printed document, wliat lie
swore to some time ago--

The CHÀrnmAN.-He can put the statement in if lie swears to it again before the

Committee. You can have this statement go in.

WI'rNEss.--That is ail I ask. Ail the testimony I arn giving here now is given

under oatli and I ask that that portion of the affidavit on page 52 beginning with the
words 'I said to hm-

Mr. COSTER, K.O., Counsel for the Comnttee.-I submait lie sbould swear to it now,

and not put in the written document.

The CHMAIMAN.-It iS understood the statement you are to make now is a continu-
ation of your evidence.

WrrNss.-Yes, it is a continuation of my evidence, and I ask now, Mr. 'Chair-
man, that, as the continuation of my evidence, titis entire affidavit be put in and I

swear to it as .true-the entire affidavit as part of my evidence to-day.

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Committee.-The entire affidavit, outside of

about six lines, lias absolutely notliing to do with this case.

The CHimRmAN.-I have not examined this affidavit, but everything in titis affidavit

pertaining to thte question before the Committee shall go in. We do not want tlie
extraneous matter.

,WITNESS-It lias been pointed out by. thte Counsel titat titere is what lie daims

to be a discrepancy in tite testimony in,.this paragrapli which lias already been put in.

The entire affidavit bears upon the question of tlie demands mnade by Mr. Wells, on

what basis lie made them and whetlier titey were for recouping for expenses alleged
by hima to have been incurred in purcliasing the IParliarnent of Canada. Titerefore,

as part of my testimony I reiterate titis entire affdavit, and reiterate it under oatli
as.bearing upon titis question.

Hon. iMr. LANDRY.-I think we sliould accept that declaration and have the whole

tliing put in.

Mr. CosTER;n K.C., Counsel' for the Committee.-Very welL.

The CaAJmm*N.-Yes, everything else in, the -agidavit pertaining, toý ttis- may go in.

Hon. IMr. LANDRY.-We will pick gîteewardg whàt is pertinent.

Tlie CHIRMN.-Instead of the excerpi being tlie exhibit the 4ffidavit will be the
exhibit.

By the Chairman:

Q.Have you any furtlier statement to make, Mr. Eldridge ?-A. Excepting that
I tender to the Coymiitee, if they adjourn to, meet again, witneaaes who can swear to

IULDRIDGHO
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the saine staIements as to the purchase of the Parliament of Canada having -been

made by Mr. Wells at other times to them.

The CHAI'RMAN.-T do nlot think this Committee can take cognizance of that.

WITNESS.-I Simply tender it for the Committee to take sucli action as they ses
fi t.

Tlie CHBMRMAN.-It is only your matter that is before the Committee. We are
authorized to do one thing; that is, to nqcertain the facts regarding this statement of
yours which was read by Hon. Mr. Kerr. We have no power to ascertain anything
else.

WI'rNESS.-As a matter of privilege I ask the Cliairman to have this taken down.

iMr. CosTER, K.C., Counsel for the Comnmittee.-Wlio are the witnesses? Let him
state the namnes.

Mr. AYLESWORT11, K.C.-I should 1ike to state on Mr. Eldridge's behalf that wit-
nesses are now on tlie way and will be here2 within the next hour anxious to testify
that this man lias made the identical stateient in substance to them. on more than
one occasion that lie made to Mr. Eldridge, using it in the saine way as an effort to
extort money from the company.

WITNESs.-And I wisli, if the Cliairman will give me the privilege, simply to ssy
that ths is an issue of veracity between Mr. Wells and myseif and I tender tlie wit-
nesses, leaving it to tlie Cliairman of the Committee to decide wliether it is gerniane
or witliin tlieir powers.

By the Hon. Mr. Landru

Q. Could you give us tlie riames of tlie witnesses ?-4 One witness is D. E.
Cameron, and tlie otlier is IR. B. Cannon-I think it is R. B. Cannon. Mr. Wells
can tell the initiais better than 1 can.

M. WELLS.-R. D. Cannon-botli employees of the company.

WIrNESS.-They are employees of the company.

By Mr. Coster, K.U., Counsel for the Uommittee

Q. They are botli employees of tlie company, are tliey ?-A. Yes.

Bt, the Hon. Mr. Landry :

Q. If there is anything tdse yeu wisli to volunteer we are prepared to hear it ?-
A. Simp]y as a matter of personal privilege or explanation, 1 would say, to remove
any possibility-that anybody should suppose for an instant that 1 believed this state-
ment, tliat I personally neyer liad any conception or tliought that tlie Parliament of
the Dominion of Canada lias been purcliased or was purchasable.

Q. In fact you did not believe the statement that was made to, you ?--A. I did not
believe tlie statement, and I cail attention also to the f act that tlie event that was
alleged to liave takeii place in the purchase of Parliament occurred over fourteen years
before tlie interview and somne ten years before Il became connectcd with the Mutual
Beserve.

Q. In those fourteen- years were you in the employ of the company ?-A,. The
last four years and one-haif I was,- but nlot before.

The CHMiAR~mA.-When was that legisiation ?

Mr. WELLs.-l885.
ELDRIDGE
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By the Hon. Mr. Londvy:

Q.You neyer heard that any dlaim was made against the company for the
recouping of that money ?-A. No.

Q.During the whole time you were there ?-A. iNo.

By the Ohairman:
Q.Mr. Wells never made any demand on the company £rom 1885 tili February

28, 1899 ?-A. No, flot to my knowledge.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Uommittee
Q. How many years had you been connected with the company ?-A. I went with

the company on May 21, 1894.

By the Chairman :
Q.So that you were connected with the company £rom 1894 until 1899 when Mr.

Wells left ?-A. Yes.ï
Q. And the question of the $10,000 never came before the company or before

you ?-A. I had beard of it but it neyer came before meofcaly

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Uounsel for the Committee
Q. Whom had you heard it from ?-A. I had heard of it from iMr. Harper.
Q. I thought you were flot there ? When did Mr. Harper die ?-A. Hie died in

1895, but I knew him personally for a great many years, but it never came to me as
a demand for the payment of the money in my officiai capacity in anly way.

GEORGE D. ELDRIDGE.

'Ple Committee adjourned tili Wednesday. June 15, 1904.

LIST 0F EXHIBITS.

Filed. No. Description.

9th June A. Memo.-of disbursements by J. D. Wells.

9th June B. Copy of letter dated Flatbush, Mardi l8tb, 1899, to Frank R. Law-
rence, signed J. D. Wells.

9th, June C. Copy of a latter dated Flatbush, April 7th, 1899, addressed F. R. Law-
rende, signed J. D. Wells.

lOth June D. Printed copy of affidavit of George D. Eldridge, sworn before G. B.
Clarkson, Notary Public for the County of New York, on the
3lst July, 1899, together with Exhibit A, referred to in said
affidavit.

NoTE,.-This exhibit is oontained in, and consists of, pages
49, 50, 51, 52, 53 and the first 13 lunes of page 54 of a pamphlet
produced by the witness, antitled: 'Insurance Department, State
of New York.'-' In the matter of Mutual Reserve Fund Lif e
Association of INew York City.'-' Answer of Association and
Officers.' Dated July 26th, 19.'Deposition of Isaac Vander-
bilt, Esq., Chief Examiner, New York Insurance Department.'
Dated April 2nd, 1900.

ELDRIDGE
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10th June. E. This exhibit is contained in and consista of lines 10 to 22, inclusive,

on page 9 of a Printed Statement intituled: 'In Re Motion
pending before the Honourable the Senate of Canada, in Par-
liament Assembled, for a Committee to investigate the Affairs of
the Mutual Reserve Life Insurance Company.'

EXHIBIT A.

Printed in full in the evidence. (Sec page 2.)

EXHIBIT B.

Printed in full in the evidence. (Sec page 3.)

EXHIBIT C.

Printed in full in the evidence. (See page 4.)

EXHTRIT D. (See page 7.)

Ex.hibit .No. 2.

EXHTRIT 'A.'

MEMO. OF DISBURSEMENTS BY J. D. WELLS.
Agents:

Buchanan Burr (Check cashed by me when Agent).. $127 54
John Hopper.. .. 347 00
G. L. Lewis.. .. .. 0.......... .... ........ 0
0. M. Ward (Check for Prem. cashed by me).. .100 00
J. W. Grummon.. .. .. o..c..................
W. C. Krensch.. .. .. 0..0..................
R. W. Cantwell.. ....................... 25 00
E. D. Ludwig.. .... 355 25
A. J. Tessier.. ........................... 100 00
0. H.Ryan.. .. .. 0..0........................
J. Brown...27 00
W. S. Bishop.. .. 0........................0
G. L. Bellows.. ...... 50 00
W. Vance Harper (Check for this was ree'd by Ass'n and

is due J. D. W. by Ass'n, having been erroneously
credited W. V. Harper).. ............... 137 50

W. H. Mondon...51 00
A. M. Sadler. . .50 00
W. B. Sherman-Travelling Expenses-ordered by Agency

Com.. ...................... $85 00
Cash Advanced.. .................. 100 00

185 00
Rich & Fox (Travelling Expenses).. .. .......... 50 00
F. W. Holbrooke......150 0
A. C. Hunt (Balance of $500, adv.). . .. 100 00
E. N. Lehrberg.. ........-............... 200 00

$12-5
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W. L. Beirler (cash $150 and $25, going to Columbus,

O.).. .. .. .. .........-....... .... ... .. ... 175 Q0
H. L IMcCormiek....................22 00
A. P. Worthley, 32 Fine.................5 00
Ralph Evans, London...................00 00
Gardener, London.. .... .... ........ ........... 75 00
Oliver Sumner Teali...................50 00
N. W. Bloss (Loaned when Director & V. .)......800 00
F. Braman......................295 00
J. I. Burke, Private Sec'y F. A. B.............25 00
C. 1. lEvans......................50 00
G. R. MeChesney-Going south on Co.'s business.. $500
Less repaid...................250

- 250 00
IMutual Reserve:

3j years IDishursements, entertaining agents and visitors,
members, etc., say $50 per month, authorized by Pres't
Harper.....................2,100 00

Commission on Canadian business transferred by agents,
Paid by Hlunt................$100 00
Paid by W. Vance Harper-Loan to him re-

paid by check, and erroneously credited
bis ac..................137 50

237 50
Paid for Advt. in Fete Paper, Flatbush..........40 00
Paid for Advt., 'Fnancial Gazette,' 100 copies.......10 où
F. A. Burnham....................5,575 00

STÂTE 0F NEw YoRx,
Oounty of New York, ýss:

BonouGH OP MANHATTAN, j
GEORQE D. ELDRIDE, being duly sworn, says:

I amn, and for more than five years last past, have been an officer of the Miitual
Reserve Fund Life Association. I arn at present its First Vice-iPresident and Actuary.
I know James D. Wells, who until the 25th day of January, 1899, had been a dîrector
and Second Vice-President of the said Association. The term of said Wells as a
.director of said Association expired on said 25th day of January, 1899, on which day
the annual meeting of th -e members of said Association for the election of directors
.and other purposes was held.. Saîd James D. Wells was flot re-elected by the mem-
bers of said meeting as a director, and lis connection with the Association £rom and
after that date ceased.

On Tuesday, the 28th day of February, 1899, at about three o'clock in the after-
noon of that day, the said James ID. Wells came into my office in the Mutual Resserve
Building, by appointment, to discuss with me, as he said, a memorandum of sums of
money submitted by 1dm, for which he souglit repayment £rom the Association. I
had said memorandum on my desk, the original of which 1 herewith identify by xny
initials and dated this day, and a true and correct copy whereof I hereto attadli t'O
this affidavit and mark the same Exhibit 'A.'

After the ordinary salutations of the meeting, I stated to Mr. Wells 'that as an
officer of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association I had been asked to go qver with
him the items of the memorandum, holding the samn in my hand, whidh lie had suh-
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zitted agaiiiat the Awociation. Mlvr. Wells said that lie dtid netý preseut the. memoraa-
4Mm a an accouat collectahle on, ezaforceable fflinat the Association ; that he did, net
alua that tIsa Âsoclutia oed kMm the. pini of moziey stated therein, but that he
1ad ha4& negotiationa witli eounsel, for the "soaisian rsgarding hie, relations to it,
and that inamucI as bis employmezat and oaicia1 relations witla t1e Association liad
ibeen tesuint.i lie thouglit that, ini the intet of a coutiuvne cf Ms friendly
re-lations with thAssociation and in the ixtemest of peace, snd harnmony, some aun of
naoney sliould be psid t. him, and thatý tàis, memorandum waa prssented as a basiS
u-pou whiel the Association eould, audit the amount and pay the saine to him. He
8aid that ther. were a. geod mazy sums. that lie had speut for, the Association or for its
beet, for wliaich e bad not beca, repaid and tlaese formed tIse buis of the memo-
rnandumn subitted.

I zeplied te hlm that na one could b. au o&fer of an institution like the Mutual
Beserve witàout kaviug toe yay out of Mis own pocket for the benet of the institution
xacuey wlaial ould net b. Yfepid and for whlch lie eould net justly maire demand.
He agreed with me s-ad said that this mnemorandum ouly represented sucli items as lie
bad reealled, that lie mmade na pasticular search for tliem and that tliere wsre a lot
more that ke eeuld have put in, but that h.. was neot utaking an account of moiney
due to him, but only to have a basis upon whîch, the Association could safely naire
pa.yaient t&. hua.

Wa wcut over the, Reveral items eontained in the. memorandum and once or twice lie
produoed hin Mis poafretheook note or ordiers, £rom soin, agent againut wliom lie had a
,charge for money advaneed or païd. As to the item of 8214 years disbursements
entertaiusing agents snd visitera, and meaibers, &J., b. said that the amount which lie
had put down as mezatbly expenditure was, und.p rather than aver the amount that hoe
aetuuly expended. That Mfr. E. B. Harper, the late president of the association, had
instrijcted laina te entertain and look alter agent&~ and mnembers visitiRg the home
office, but that h. had kept no account of suela expendlitures. As to the item of'Commissions on Canadien buie ransferred lay agents', the umount of which
was lef t blanli, lie said that in a number of cases ha had personally made adrances te
agent& cut of Mis own pocket, that lAc several commissions which bclenged. to these
agenta were to be paid to him instead of ta thena, te repay bina for these advanees,
and that this arraneet had been approved by the executive comrnittee. That it
would be eaay te fixad what anaou:at was coming te these agents under their contracts,
and it ahould b. carried te lais secount on the books. Tlat there was a debit againqt
luna on the books of the association for moneys that lie bad drawn, but thgt the eon -
missions due £roma the agents as afovesaid would amount to more than the debit, andthat wliatevcr the amount cf the, eredit would lie, alter dcductiag the debit, would b.
the amouat of that item; lic thought tlae balance duc bina for this would be at lest

1 ealle his attention te tlae fnal item in the mernoranduni, 'F. A. Burnham,
$5,575,' snd asked bina what this meant. H. replied that 1 knew as naucla about that ash. did. I said that I knew nothing about it. He answcred that this was an item whîcla
fie had paid out for the benefit of the association, and the association ouglit te pay it
flack te him, but if the association weuld net pay it back, lie would make dlaim cfPresident, Burna personally, as lie had praid out this money at the presidcnt's re-
quest He teck £roma is pocket-book two checks drawn te bis, own order, if 1 remena-
ber it correetly, on The Merchants Exchange NÇational Bank, bcaring date in May,
1898, and amounting in thc aggregatc te the amo-umt statcd in the memorandum, tewit, %5,575. 1 looked ai the checks and said te him tbcy wcre te bis ewn order and
endorsed by him. B e replied that this was truc, that lic lad got the money in Milse
and used it as 3fr. Burnham requested.

1 then asked hlm what the items of this memorandum Exhibit ' A' anaou'nted te,and lie replied about $12,000. 1 asked il this was the ameunt iliat lie thouglit ought
te b. paid te him. Be replied 'yes'1 that lie did, together with a year's salary in ad-

1-21
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dition, mnaking about $25,000 ini aIll I said to hlm, 'Do you think a year's saiary in
addition to, these amounts should be paid te you, that ie, do you ask the arnount of
these items li this memorandum and a year's salary'to which lie replied that he did,
that while hie made no threat against the association, nov did lie intend to make any
blackrnai.xng dernand upon it, that the association had better pay hlm. this suni of
$25,000, or it would have to take the consequences, that lie liad been turned out
without warning and without being given a' dollar, anid that lie did neot intend
to remain in that position without a figlit. Then I eaid, 'What you ask i -
that the association pay you $25,000'? He replied that it wouid ainount to, some-
where between twenty and twenty-flve thousand dollars. He repeated that lie did not
make this as a demand or tlireat or as blackinail, but that as lie was ont of the associa-
tion lie thouglit that in the intereats of peace and harmony and hie continued frien4iy
relations witli the association, and taking into consideration his long services, thie.
ainount should be paid to him, that the association could take this memorandum,
credit hie account with the items thereiu recited, credit hi a year's salary as it
accrued, but that the several arnounts must be paid to hm. li cash and at once. That
lie was extrerneiy axixious te know exactly what hie future relations with the associa-
tion were to be, wlietlier friendiy or otherwise, and lie thouglit that tlie matter should
be ciosed before the ena of the then week.

I then asked. hlma if we paid hlm this arnount, the arnount recited in the memoran-
dum, together with an arnount equal to a year's salary, if there would be any reason
why hie relations witli the association should not continue friendly. He said that
lie did not know of any reason, that lie wanted to see the association go on, and re-
cover £rom. any setback it had, and if the payment was made to him, it would have,
and continue to have, lis beet wiehes. and good-will. He again repeated that lie did
not make any threat or dernand, but that it wouid be a wise business proceeding for
the association to pay hirn this surn. I asked hlm. if ha thouglit we wouid be justified
in niaking sucli a payment. He replied that lie did not Bee why, that it would
be a mere business matter, and that the memorandum, would form. a sufâcient
basis for the credite to, be given to hlm. upon which payrnent couid be made,

*that it would pay the association a great deal botter to make this payrnent te
hlm, than soie money it lad spent, particularly that which Moton D. Mosa had
received. Hes then went on to say that lie had heard that Moss was corning back toe
manage the Agency Departrnent. I replied that I had not; heard of it, and when :Mosa
did corne back that I should know it, and that I could not again be in the sarne com-
pany with Moss, that when Moss carne back, I should go. Wells responded that no-
body knew (but lie did) what that thief Mose had got ont of the association, that lie
cost it more than ail the other thieves that it had had, that if lie had kept on lie would
have ruined the association. I replied that I cared nothing about Mr. Moss' affaire,
exoept that while hie was liere lie wae a good rnan to get business and did get good bus-
iness, that I would not be willing to ses hlm corne back or to stay ifli h*came back,
that I had neyer had anything to do with hlm sociafly, neyer called upon bum, except
a formal caîl on account of a dinner invitation snd that lie, Wells, muet know that
Mose was not coming back.

I thon took up the memorandum and said to hlm again, 'Now this la wliat yeu
want paid, the arnounts in this memorandum together with an arnount equivalent to,
a year's ealary, and the association is to thereafter have your good-will '. To which
lie replisd, ' yes ', but that lie would not makre anything out of it, that lie had spent
lots of monsy that was net contained li the memorandum, that lie had paid ail the
costs of the legielation in Canada that passed the law by whidh the association pro-
çured its license to do business in the Dominion, for which lie had neyer been paid.
That there had been good round surne paid out. That thers were members of Parlia-
ment, of the Committee, and of the Governinent, that had had to have good sumo,
that it cest hlm over $10,000, that lie had found ail the rnoney excepting for the lust
bill for a smail arnount.
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'Now', I Isaid, 'to get back to the memorandum, when do you want this flxed
Up'. He replied, 'Just as soon as it can be done. I have spent more time on it than
1 wanted to. I want to get it out of the way and know just where I stand and what
xny relations with the association are to be. It ought to be got into shape this week.
It is just a business proposition and it ought to be easy to fix it up, and as I Say, in
the interests of peace and harmony.' I told him that I had to go to Albany on Thurs-
-day, as I had madie an engagement for that day, and that as Wednesday (the day
following our interview) was a day for the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
association, ho knew that I would be very busy, that it would not be possible for mie
±o see him agaiin until Friday or Saturday of that week. File then said that he would
make a second appointment with me, and let me know on which day.

On the following Monday, March 6, I arn infornied that just after I had left the
office to go out of town on business, that the said Wells called at my office and asked
.for me.

(Sgd.) GEORGE D. ELDRIDGE.
Subcriedand sworn before me thisi

13th day of July, 1899.

(Sgd.) T. 13. CLARKSON,
Notary Public,

N.Y. Co.

EXHIEBIT E.

On the l8th of Marci of the saine year, two months after Mr. Wells was thua
-dropped, lie writes to Frank R. Lawrence, Esq., attorney of the company, in reference
to this purported letter, as follows.-

'At one of our interviews I showed te you, and you read with much interest, a
-draît letter which I wrote and addressed to Mi. Burnham. more than six months ago.
I have recently revised this draft and to some extent; have lengthened it, and I Bend
you herewith a copy of the revised letter merely for your perusal, and confldentially,
wh'ich please return at your convenience. I amn anxious to send it to Mi. Burnham
-as soon as possible.'

PART 2.

OTTAWA, June 15, 1904

JOHN M. STEVENSON, of the city of New York, called and sworn, and examîned by
~Mr. Coster, K.C., counsel for the conunittee

Q.What is your occupation ?-A. Life insurance.
Q.With what company are you employed now ?-A. At present the North Ameni-

-cani Life, of Toronto.
Q. What is your position with the North American Life ?-A. Manager of the

.Metropolitan flepartinent in New York.
Q. Were you ever associated with the Mutual Reserve Fund Jife Association

ý,of New York ?-A. I was.
Q. In what capacity ?-A. First as a clerk, ini the spring of 1883, snd about

July, 1883, I was elected assistant secretary, and remained in that position until my
resignation in January, 1899.

STEENSON
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Q.You sent in a written resignation, did you ?--A. 1 did.Q.Do you remember the date in January ý-A. It was on the 20tlï, I think.IQ. Look ut the paper now ehown yon ; is it a copy ýof the resignation sent in byy0u ?-A. It is. It is as foliows

'NEw Yoaa, January 25, 18fl.
'To the President and Board of Directors of the Mutual IReserve Fund Li4»Aesociation, Office Building, New York City :
'GENTLEtmEN,--For resns satisfactory to myseif, I hereby tender my resigna-tion as assistant seeretary of the Mutua:l iReserve Lif e Fund Association, the saineto take effect immediately. I have served the Association for nearly sixteen years,.and it is with a natural feeling of regret that circumstances, which it is not necesaryto dletail here, make it my duty to sever this connection.
'This letter will be delivered by IMr. Edmund Pendieton, and I ask if you wouldbe good enougli to designate soineone to whorn I shail surrender the keys and affairs,of my office.

'I have the honour to bie,
'Your obedient servant,

'J. IM. STEVEiNSON.'
Q. That was delivered to the company that day ?-A. No, it was delivered thenext morning. The committee was in session and could not sec me, and it was deliv-ered next morning.
Q. What were the cirdumstances wiceh led you to resign ?-A. Well, I was not inharmony at ail with the then existing management or the methods used.Q. What methods do you refer to? What were you not in harmony with I-A. Oneof the most serions objections I had was to what I consider the misuse of the mor-tuary fund of the company.
Q. Perhaps you would explain to the committee ; when yen speak of the mortuaryfund, what do you nican There are two funds, are there Dlot ?-A. Yes.Q. The mortuary fumd, and what is the other fund ?-A. Dues, it was called.Q. An expense fund ?-A. Dues for expenses.Q. Is the paper 110w shown you the constitution and by-laws of the cempany 1A. Yes. (Filed as Exhibit No. 1.)Q. Is that the constitution as it is now ?-A. There may have been amendmnentsto it since I left the cempany. That is so far as I can recail the constitution that wasin force at the tume of my resignation in1 1899.Q. With reference to the mortuary fund, under the by-Iaws and constitutionwas there any particular use which was to be made of that exclusively ?-A. I think1E had better give the exact wording of the section. Section I of article 5, Mortuary]Jepartinent, is as follows

'The iMortuary ]Jepartment shall be distinct froin the other deparfments of the.Association, and ail moneys received from the mortuary calis, less the cost of collect-ing, shall pass through said department, and, after dedncting the expenses thereof,.governmental taxes, legal and other expenses in defending or protecting the Associa-tien sgainst the payment of unaudited or fraudulent dlaims, shalh be dep0kited by theTreasurer in Banks or Trust Companies, designated by the Board o~f Direetors, to anaecount to be known as 'the IMortuary Account of the Mutual Reserve Fund tifeAssociation,' and shall only be withdrawn fromn said account by transfer, on tise ordeof the President and Treasurer to the Reserve Fund, or for investmeut in suchsecurîties as may.be required by the laws relative to deposits to %ecure admission ferthse transaction of business by thse Association, as mxay be approved by thse Board ofDiretors of the Association, and which securities shall be deposited as reqised byarticle 11, Section 2, of the Constitution or By-laws; or in settiement of deatis cluinig'lWMVfflw
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under certi:ficates of the Association, said dlaims having been first approved by the

Executive Committee of the Association.'

My objection to what I regarded as the wrongful use of the mortuary fund was
this: there were a nurnber of policy-holders who had been adinitted into the association
years before, holding a plan of policy called the fifteen-year plan. The association was
anxious to transfer that business to a new plan called the flve-year plan, and they
allowed the agent who secured the transfer not only the commission for the first year's
business, although it had already been paid on the old policy and this was simply a
transfer, but in addition to that, the misuse of the mortuary mny was in allowing
the agent the amount of the last bi-monthly mortuary caîl paid on the old policy in
addition, thus drawing that mortuary money which had gone into the mortuary account
-drawing it out and paying it as a commission to the agents on the transfer of the
policy. The result of it was, that the income for the Mortuary iDepartment was de-
pleted to the extent of thousands of dollars and for a period of time covering from
twelve to fourteen months.

Q. There would be no încome at al l-A. From that particular policy there would
be no income to the mortuary account.

Q. Who would get this money from the mortuary fund ?-A. The agent who
secured the transfer.

Q.Whereas it was flot new business at all?-A. It was not ncw business.
Q.What was the difference between the fifteen-year plan and the flve-year plan?1-

A. On the frfteen-year plan there were bonds and bond statements issued, and they
matured flfteen years from the date of issue of the policy and became applicable as
cash then to the payment of dues and assessments; on the five-year plan they were
allowed to begin to use the surplus at the end of five years.

Q. So, as a matter of fact, it was just simply a question of the surplus; which
was the better plan policy, the fifteen-year or the five-year ?-A. There was very little
difference, really very littie choice between the two.

Q. Then, when they transferred it f-rom one to the other, did they cali it new
business-A. They called it new business.

Q. Was it new business ?-A. It was nlot new business.
Q. About how much did they say was new business which they simply transferred

from one to the other l-A. The books would show, but to the best of my recollection,
between twenty and twenty-five million dollars-that, is the best of my recollection
now.

Q. Between twenty and twenty-flvc million of business which was not new, they
said was new and paid out of the whole mortuary f-und for a year or fourteen months
for what they said was securing it-is that right I-A. Well, no, not exactly. They
stopped the income on it. They paid out the mortuary money that had come in, the
last bi-monthly cal on a great deal of that business, not the twenty-flve millions, but
a great deal of it, they paid ont of the mortuary fund the last bi-monthly caîl. That
covered two months' time that had already been paid in, but in stopping the income to
the mortuary fund for the remaining twelve months it was because they treated it as
new business, and 65 per cent of it went to the agent and the remnaining 35 per cent
was supposed to go to the company to cover the expenses of getting it ; but the agent
who secured the transfer got 65 per cent, and the general manager, a man by the
name of Moss, got an overriding of 20 per cent, which thus used up 85 per cent of the
firat year's premium on that policy, leaving a net premium, to the company of 15 per
cent for the expense of getting it. Consequently, you can see, as no mortuary inoney
came in for twelve months on the transferred policy, and two months' income of the'
old policy was added, it really took fourteen months of the mortuary reoeipts on that
particular business.

Q.You say, then, they would caîl that new business ?-A. Yes.
Q.Would they keep the old policies on the books, too I-A. Yes, for a whlle they

WOUkL
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Q. What would be the resuit ?-A. You would have about fifteen thousand dollarsworth of insurance nominally on their books, wheu there was only ten-or twenty

thousand when there was only ten ? The way they did was this : They did flot
cancel off the books promptly. As soon as a transferred policy got on the books, it wasincluded as new business and added to the footing, but they did flot as promptly cancel
the surrendered pohicy, the resuit being that for a while they carried both as business
in force, reported it as business in force on both policies. Then, another way that
they included business that was flot in force was in the matter of reductions: say a
man held a ten-thousand-dollar policy carried some years, and for some reasons of his
own wanted to reduce it to five thousand dollars, the new policy was numbered and put
through the books and footed up with the volume of business, but the cancelled ten-
thousand-dollar policy was flot deducted at that time, consequently, aithougli the man
-only really carried five thousand dollars, for the time being it was reported as frfteen
thousand dollars. 1 called Vice-President Eldridge's attention to that particular
thing and showed him in my statement. It was just before the close of 1898, the year
before I resigned. I went to the Actuary Department and asked the man in charge
what was the volume of business going to be reported as new business for the year 1898.JI wanted to know how much we had doue. I kept a daily report of ail business that
was approved and sent up to the president every day, and when the Actuary Depart-
ment told me they were going to report a certain amount of business, I saw Lt exceeded
my memo. by about two million dollars, and I know I was correct, because my amount
was footed up every day, and I investigated to find out, and that was the wa I dis-
covered they were carrying these reductions. When a reduction had been made, they
had carried both policies as business in force. I called Eldridge's attention to that
error s0 that Lt could be corrected, but lis reply was such as confirmed my intention
about that time to get out of the company, to resign. is answer was, that that busi-
ness had been carried before in the annual statement, and that the volume of business
for 1898 was flot very large, and it was not a very advantageous time to make that
change and cut that business out.

Q. What you mean, then, is that you began to be afraid of your personal liability?-A. I began to be afraid of losing my self-respect and manhood if 1 stayed there ally
longer, knowing what I had found out during that year.

Q. Was there any effort made by anyone to induce you ta withdraw your resigna-
tion or to return to the association g-A. There was a very strong effort made.Q. Who was that made by ?-A. By Vice-President Eldridge.

Q. H1e requested you to withdraw your resignation e-A. H1e did. Hie sent for me.
H1e wanted to have an interview ; well, I had enough intercourse with Mr. Eldridge
from the last six months preceding that flot to want to have an interview with hLm
alone. I wanted a witness for everything that passed, and my friend and legal adviser,Mr. Pendieton, of Richmond, 'Y irginia, was with me, and when Mr. Eldridge sent word
lie wanted to see me I sent up word by President Burnham's private secretary that I
would see hLm. at one o'clock, and when I went in at one o'clock I sent up my card and
sent with Lt the card of Mr. Pendleton, my lawyer, whom iMr. Eldridge knew was my
lIawyer, knew that he was an insurance lawyer, and knew the close relationship exist-
,ing between us, and after waiting probably five or ten minutes, we went into IMr.
Eldridge's room, and I remember distinctly Mr. Eldridge opened the conversation with.the remark 'Mr. Stevenson, you have made a mistake.' I said, 'in what way have 1
made a mistake ? ' He said, ' you have made a mistake in resigning from the com--pany.' I told him I did not think 80. Hie said, 'I want you to withdraw that resigna-
'tion and stay with the company.' I said, 'No, I cannot do it.' He said, 'Nobody
lias seen that resignation but President Burnham and myself, flot another member of
-the board of directors knows that you have sent Lt in.' H1e said, 'l want you to giveme permission to go ta President Burnham, and take that resignation and lock it in
-ny safe and nobody will know anything about Lt.' Then he offered various induce-
ments, most complimentary and for a purpose; said that our duties had drawn .us
'81T'VENSON
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together and he knew better than anybody else the services I had rendered to the com-

p)any and the value I was ta the company, and ail that kind of stuif, and that he

wanted me to go away and take a vacation, and he said, '0Of course, iMr. Steveii-

-son, your Balary will be sent you right along. You can go away and stay one or

two, or three or four, or five or six months, and your salary will ho sent you right;

along.' I said, 'iMr. Eldridge, that is one of the objections I have got , the use

of the funds of the company in that way. If I went away and you sent the money

I would feel bound to go into the employ of the company when I came back;' and I

said 1 had n~o intention of goîng back. I said my severance of my rclations was final,

-and I was not going back. And he said my views were strained, that I was the onlY

oaficer of the company who lied resigned and whose sahary 'had stopped immediately

on the resignation; and I would rot allow him to send me the money. Well, lie jaaid,

' You go away if you want; let me send you the money, but do not say anything about

the resignation; take a vacation and corne back after your vacation.' He knew I was

going to Richmond, Virginia-and he said: 'I will meet you either in Richmond,

Virginia or Washington, and will -corne prepared to inake you a proposition that it will

1>-. worth your whule to accept ;' and I said, 'The association cannot make me any

proposition that would be worth my while to accept.' Tliat interview lasted an hour

-and a 'haîf or two hours, certainly over an hour; iPendieton was present during the

whole interview and heard everything that passed. When he insisted sa earnestly on

scnding me tlie money I a littie resented it, because I thouglit it looked like bribery,

-and I resented it rather forcibly that the company liad done that and that was one of

the things I was opposed to; and lis reply when he saw I resented it strongly was

'Yes, Mr. Stevenson, you know and I know that there have been many things flone

here recently that neither you nor I could approve.'

Q. What were your duties as assistant secretary of the -association ?-A. Well,

they were numerous; for instance, take tlie matter of correspondence, my correspondence

was larger by far than tliat of any otlier individual officer, because it covered every

range of subject, from the admission of a policy until it became a death dlaim. I neyer

wrote a letter on a death dlaim, but everything from. tlie time the policy was issued

until that time was under my department, except agency matters. I did not write

lanything on agency matters.
Q. Did you have occasion in tlie course of your duties to inspect the books of

the company occasionally ?-A. Oh, yes.
Q. For what purpose ?-A. Well, among my duties as assistant secretary was

to pass on every change of beneflciary or assignment, to see if it was in proper form.

I had occasion in doing that to examine the policy registers and see if any previous

assignments or changes liad been recorded. That is what I looked at the books for,

end in looking at assessment books it was always best to see if the policies were in

force, if you were wr 'iting to a man, before you answered lis letter, and I would look

at the policy register, and I looked at the general books of the company to see the

agents' accounts ; because, from time to time, an agent would write in, saying '

have collected the premium on this policy ; please credit, and charge to my account.'

Well, that was frequently done, because the agent's account was good for it ; and

I would look and see if lis account would stand a debit of that kind, and I looked at

-the general books for tliat purpose.

Q. IDid you ever examine the books for the purpose of ascertaining whether cer-

tain policies, which were stated by the company to be in force, were actually in force ?

-A. Yes; I had occasion to do that pretty soon after that interview with Mr. Eld-

ridge, in regard to the two million dollar difference between the actuary's report and

mine, because towards the close of the year business had not heen as large as theY

liad hoped, and every effort was made to inerease the volume.

STEVENSON
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Mr. 4le8worth, K.C., Coi&nsel for the Mutual Beserve Life Insurance Coin-

pany of New York :
If I may be excused for interrupting the witness, to inquire whether this investi-

gation is to extend into the affairs of the compauy generally ? The whole tenor of
the exarnination seems to be directed, flot with any reference to the business in Can-
ada, but with reference to the general business throughout the world. It is a very
important matter, and just illustrates one of the reasons why it seerns to us very im-
portant that we should iinow something of the scope of the inquîry before coming
with our answer.

The CH.AimAN=.TIIe point is well taken.

Mr. OosTRu.-If they cannot pay in the States they caillot pay in Canada.
The CHAMR3AN.-Anything that affects the position of the company in Canada.

wifl be adinitted. We do flot want evidence of things that happened outside the juris-
diction and not in touch with the business in Canada.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for th~e Uommittee
Q.I want to cail your attention to the policies which the company alleged ta hoin force, but whieh were not in force, as shortly as you can ?-A. I looked St the book

at that time, because one of the assistant secretaries, Mr. Jones. had said to me that
a large number of applications had corne down to his department for the poJicies f0.
be written, but that the policies were not to be starnped-you know at that time there
was a revenue stamp ou account of the Spanish-Arnerican war ; it had to go on our
policies. The revenue stamp was not to be put on those policies, and they were not to
be signed aud delivered, but they were to bo written up sud eutered in the books, sudthen they were to be sent to, Dr. Bowden's office and held there for instructions. Well,
ini looking that up I know that the business was fictitious, that the policies would
nover be delivered, aud I made a memorandum of four or five or six of the policies
that I thought were flctitious.

Q. Would you look at that memorandum sud say if it was made by you at the
turne ?-A. Yes, that is the one I had i11 mind. (Filed as Exhibit No. 2.)Q. iPerhaps you will explain what that memorandum is ?-A. These were seven
of these policies that I thought would nover be delivered, sud were sirnply put in to
swell the business ; so before the annual meeting, but after the books had been footed
to show the volume of business, I went and examiued the books sud these policies
were included sud reported as in force.

Q. What is the amount of those policies i-A. $190,000, but thoey only represeut
a sample of a large number of tliem; there is $190,000 there.

Q. There is 8190,000 that you have a memnorandum of, but there were plenty
more ?-A. Yos; any number.

Q. Which were not in force, but reported as being in force ?-A. Yes, aud thon
ooon after the report had been made up-

By the Chairman:
Q. You mean the report to the Insurance Departrnent r-A. Yes.
Q. And that report cornes to our Insurance Departrnent i-A. Yes, sud then soon

affer the report had been footed the cancellation clerk went through sud cancelled al
those policios out,

Q. Was that actually in one of the reports by the company to the departrnent ?-
A. The policios were not mentioned by number, but the volume of business was re-
ported, sud the amount, whatever it was, included those particular policios.

B~y Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:
Q.And that would be the saine report that would be ied here at Ottawa ?-A.

Tt should ho.
8TmVNSOIN
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By Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q. According to what you saw, that report vas faisified thiat was put in 1--A.

Lnquestionably, in my judgment.

By the Chairman:
QFrom what you know I-A. Yes, front what 1 know.
Q.That is the reports that were sent in to Ottawa by that company were falsi-

Lied ?-A. In that case to that exteut anyhow.
Q.Of that you are positive?--A. 0f that 1 ami positive.

Q.You spoke -about conipariug the amount; you said that you kept a daily record

of the new business written ecd day by the association ?-A. Yez.

Q.The daily record of the business written eacli day by the association t-A. Yes.

Q.And that you compared with the statement in the Actuary's Department ?-A.

No, I did flot compare it with the statement of the Actuary's Department; it had not

been made then, but I wanted to know what the Actuary's Department was going to

report, and I called and asked verbally of the man in charge, the head clerk there, and

he said that he had made up the figures in a round form and that tie amount of new

business would be so much. I immediately noticed that it was just about two millions

more than my report footed, and tien 1 investigated to see where the discrepancy was.

1 knew that mine was correct.
Q. And the discrepancy was made up of things of that sort?-A. Yèés, but tiat

particular discrepancy of two millions was almost made up entirely of the reductions

by carrying both tic reduced policy and the original policy temporarily and reporting

it as in force.

By Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q.By reporting tiem. both in forceI-A. Yes.

Q.Aithougli ouly one was in force ?-A. Only one in force.

Bp M1r. Coster, K.C., Coi&nsel for the (Jommiftee:

Q.When they would reduce a policy from $10,0OO to $5,OOO they would report

$15,000 ini force l-A. They would if it was in the last six months of thc ycar. They

did not cancel it closely. The canceilation clcrk went througi once or twice or per-

haps tiree times a year, or perhaps oftener, but there was generally about six months

of business that was flot cancclled out.

By Hon. Mr. >andry:

Q.At ail events it was the evil of their methods ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Co'unsel for the <Jommittee:

Q.It was a false stateinent made to the department of insurance being in force

that was not in force r-A. That was the result.
Q. Do you know anything about the delinquent business, that being called in

force?-A. Yes.
Q. That would be business upon which the preniunis were not paid I-A. Yes;

tiat business was generally carried about a year.
Q. Usually about a year after it was dropped ?-.A. Yes. The renson of that was,

iu my opinion, because under the ternas of the policy they were allowed tic privilege

of reinstatement any tume within a ycar by complying witi certain conditions, and

they claimed that tiey did lot; know whieh one of those policies or how many of them

were going to be reînstated, and consequently a policy, if it had not paid a premium,

that was due in January wfts carried through the year.

Bp the Chairmaa:

Q.When there wau no guarantee of its being continued I-A. No.
uov-e
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Cotunsel for th&e Committee:

Q. And it wa8 nlot in force ?-A. No.
Q. If the policy-holders liad died, they would nlot have got a penny t-A. No.
Q. The cornpany, if they chose, could put them back againt You say they would

retain that business for a year after the people dropped out t-A. Yes.
Q. And make that statement to the department as being business in forcet-

A.Yes.
Q. Under oath t-A. Yes.
Q. That this business was in force, when it was not t-A. Yes; they were allowed

to do it under the New York law-I mean, by the Insuranoe Department.
Q. The Insurance Department allowed thern to do that ?-A. Yes, and later on

they began to pursue it in their reports, but in 1898 they did nlot when I was there.

.By the Uhairman:
Q. To what amount would that business corne, roughly t-A. It is too long ago to

state definitely, but I should think it would average for the five years preceding 1898
about thirty or forty millions-probably ; one year I think it was in the neiglibour-
hood of sixty millions, but that is too long ago--

Q. That is, policies out of force, simply with the possibility of being reinstated t
-A. Yes.

Q. And they were sent in by the company as business in force t-A. Yes.

Bv the Hon. Mr. Domville:
Q. Statements were sent out to the public to this effect: Large increase in busi-

ness ; ten millions over January, or February, as the ca.se may be. I received one, two
,or three days ago, and your statement is, that these statements were not only false to
the department, but false to the public, out of whom they were trying to get money. I
arn asking what the effect would be of their sending out those statements, when as a
matter of fact, they were cam.~ing deadwood that did not existt-A. Those statements
that went out referred to new business, and did not refer to that lapsed business.

Q. You do not understand me: the volume of business in force-that was mis-
leading ?-A. Yes, it was.

Q.That was misleading to the public and false ?-A. Yes.
Q. Pd you caîl the attention of the vîce-president to this discrepancy t-A. Be-

tween the Actuary's Department and minetQ. Yes ?-A. Yes, I think the same day.
Q. 1e was the actuary of the association t-A. Yes, he was the actuary, as well

as the vice-president.
Q. What did he say t-A. H1e said that that had been foi years included, and that

business was not as large that year-this is the substance of it-I do flot know his
words-and that it was an inopportune time, or not an advantageous time, to make
that change and cut that business out. The resuit would be, of course, to show two
million les than the report did show finally.

Q. Anyway, he did nlot do it at that time ?-A. No, and I left on the 25th Janu-
ary, but he didnfot do it before that.

Q. Did you receive as assistant secretary written orders from the executive corn-
mittee, verbally or in writing, as to'the conduet of yeur business ?-A. I got both,
sorne written and some verbal.

Q. Any orders which you thought were perhaps not in the interests of the conlpany
that they should be carried out t I do nlot want you to state ail the orders you ever
hiad from the executive cornittee t-A. That order that I got in regard to the matter
i have already touched on, allowing the last bi-monthly caîl as commission-J did not
think that order was right, and thien some time after they had a man named Moton
D. 3loss made general manager ; he was the man in authority although not the con-
stitutional officer.- He gave orders. At firat I paid no attention to it because I was
STEVENSON
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supposed to be governed by the executive committee, and lie complained of it, and I
had a talk with the president, Burnham, and I told him that Mr. Moss had given cer-
tain orders--I do xiot remember now what they were--that conflicted with the previous
instructions I had received £rom the executive committee.

Q. And the rules of the company ?-A. Yes, both, and I asked hlm. what I mnust
do, that he had supported Mr. Moss in some cases, and lis answer was one that rather
offended me. Ris exact reply was, «'Mr. Stevenson, you will be perfectly safe in doing
whatever Mr. Moss says.' It looked as if my going to hlm for, instructions was to
seek safety, and I did flot like his answer, 'You wil be perfectly safe in doing 'what
Mr. Moss says, and the resuit was that Mr. Moss gave o"ders right and Ici t.

Q. Did you on or about the lst April, 1897, receive from Mr. Burnham a letter,
cf whidh that is a copy ? -A. Yez, I got that letter from hlm.

Q. Where is the original ?-A. It is in the archives of the office : it was there
'when I lef t there.

Q. You have not got it i-A. No.
Q. The company have it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And thc other one is addressed to :Mr. MIoss by Mr. Burnham ?-A. Yes, that

is a copy of the letter sent :Mr. Moss, and this other the thing that was sent me by
Mr. Burnham, or a copy cf it, I do flot know'which.

Q.You have got those both from Mr. Burnham ?-A. Yes.

(Documents filed as Exhi7,its 8 and 4.)

Q. This document (Exhibit 4), was inclosed in the letter? 1 I that a copy of

what it is ?-A. Yes.

Mr. COSTER, K.C., Counsel for the Conimittee.-These Exhibits 3 and 4 read as

follows

EXHEBIT 3.

MUTUAL RESERvE BUILDING,
305, 307, 309 BRoÂDWAY, NEw YOnrK,

April i, 1897.
Mr. J. M. STEVENSON,

Assistant Secretary.

DEAit Siîa-I send you herewith a cppy. of an order, which I have this day issued
to Gencral Man 1ager Moss, rcgarding the commissions to be allowed upon transfers
fiom the fifteen and ten--year plans to thc'ncw flve-year combination option plan from
and aiter this date. You will kindly see that this order is strictly complied with.

Yours truly,
F. A. BUIRNHAM,

Preside'at.

EXHIBIT 4.

MUTUAL RESERvE BUILDING,
305, 807, 309 BROÂDWAY, NEW YoRx,

April 1, 1897.
Mfr. M. D. Moss, General Manager,

Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association.

DEAn SiR,-Froln and after th1is date the commissions which will be allowed and
paid upon transfers from thc fliteen and ten-year plans to the new flve-year combina-
tion option plan will be as follows
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1st. T adeým of policies whickhav&e been ini force at leait fWe yena will b.regarded as new business, and th. commissions paid thereon will bc the saine as thos.xew paid fer th* procuring of freak business.
2nd. lJpon the transfer of policies whieh have been in force for a less period than1tre years, the commission wrhich wiil b. paid will be limitcd as follows:-
(a.) Oue-lxalf of th, i4wcease betwe the old and the new rates pd hy the mexm-ber du'ing the fist ycar.
(b.) Renewal com sons, eommnencing afler 1h. association has receiyed a fusllannual premium,4 at the same rate as the agent reoeives uinder his present contraet forbusiness wrltten on the £xve-yeur plan, less any commission paid or payable to the.agent originally securing the. busineses.
It is, of course, understood that ail applications for transfée hereinbefore referredto shail be, as heretofore, made upon the regular application fors cf the association,and shall be accompanied by a regular medical examination, as prescribed by thec rulesof the association.

~'ours very truly,

(Copy.)President.
Q. Would you say that thal was not new business and that the commission shouldflot be allowcd ?-A. That is the view I took of it then, and I have no reasoxi tachange il.
Q. You mentioned with reference to the mortuary fund; for what purpose wastbi.s mortuary fund uscd contrary to the constitution and by-laws of the company Î-A. In pay'ing commissions to agents.Q. Anything cisc that you know of ?-A, That is ail I can recail now. Tiare wereseveral ways that I did not think the xnortuary fund ought to be used, but the Mostglaring case was that of paying commissions to agents.Q. Did you ever receive any order to the effect that agents' commissions shouldbe paid out of the mortuary fund ?-A. No, except allowing the last mortuary cail;that was taking it out of the niortuary fund.Q.Did not your instructions have that effect ?-A. Certainly.Q.As a matter of fact, it did corne ont of it ?-A. It did corne out of i-.

By the Hon. Mr. Landr&:
Q.Did you say mast now 65 per cent ?-A. Sixly-flve per cent was allowed to theagent who secured the transfer and Matou D). 3Moss, tic general manager, got auover-riding of 20 per cent, xnaking 85 per cent.

By the Okairman :
Q4< Fighty-five per cent on the first ycar's preminin ?-A. Yes.

B1, the Hon. Mr. Landry .
Q. That 65 per cent was allowed to the agent as commission ?-A. Thc commis-sion had aixeady been allowed when the policy was taken out.Q. But in lhe subsequent years-nothing to go le the agent for that ?-A. Noth-ing ont of the mortue.ry.

By the Chairman:
Q. Sixty-five per cent would bc taken out of lie rnortuary £und the firsl yeer 1-A. No, none of it was taken out cf the mortuary £und lia. first time.
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Bij Mr. CJoster, K.C., Coussel for the Ciommffle.:

Q.But the second time, they would have to take it out ?-A. Yes, at the time of

the tiansfer.
Q. Look at this document, Exhibit 5-what is that ?-A. That is the form of the

voucher. That was drawn for the purpose of getting thec money out of the mortuary

fund and crediting it to the Agent.
Q.That was the form ?-A. Yes. (Filed as Exhibit 5.)
Q.Who prepared that form ?-A. That was prapared jointly by Mr. Eldridge and

myseif. I say jointly because after an interview with the president in which lie became

sngry because I objected to this thing. I prepared a form to use and sent it up to Mr.

Eldridge, but Mloton D1. Moss was the man who first talked with me and lie approved

the form that I drew up, and then I sent it to Mr. Eldridge and lie said lie would leava

it on bis desk ; lie wanted to sae it a while, and in a few minutes after I was sent for

to go to the president's office. I fou-nd Mr. Eldridge there with this paper that I liad

drawn ; lie bad evidently tallkad to Mr. Burnham about it, and Burnham. was very

angry and the sense of bis ramark was that while he was flot a timid man, that if that

voucher went through and was a matter of record on the books of the office lie would

feel like taking to tha woods.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q. ike what ?-A. Lika taking to, the woods as presidant of the company; and

then lie said to me in a very angry way, 'Mr. Stevenson, it looks like as if you liad

laid a trap.' That was the sense of what ha said, and then ha said, 'Now, you know

what I want. You go and talk with Mr. Eldridga and prepara the form of vouchier that

i-3 to go through with thasa things.' And that is why I say this was done by Eldridge

and mysaif. I sent it up to Mr. Eldridge along the lina the president had orderad, and

M r. Eldridge with a peu made someaslight alterations, and this was the resuit.

B?, Mr. Coster, K.U., Counsel for Mhe (Jommiiiee:

Q. This Exhibit No. 5, says:

'Mr. J. S. HFoffecker,
'Auditor of .&ccounts.

'Dear Sîi,--Please draw voucher for chek for $...(escost of collection),

craditing the account of....and charge to Mortuary Account, being tha amount

oý CAlR No. 94 urider policy No. 500,000. JOHN SMITH!'

By whom would that ba signed ?-A. That would ha signad by me.

Q. That would ha for agent's commissions, would it ?-A. That would ba credited

to agent's account. The agent's nama would ha credited, the account of John Smith,

who was agent.
Q. Ris commission would ha paid out of the mortuary funds ?-A. That would

ha part of it, to the axtent of the last mortuary cali on the particular policy. Say, for

instance, the last mortuary cail was $15, and the first yaar's pramium was $75, ha would

get $15 of it from the mortuary account and the balance the membar was supposad to

pay him i cash.
Q. And was this memorandum which is here below on it ?-A. Yes, that was on

ît. That was an explanation to show why that money was drawn.

Q.The last paragrapi lias nothing to do with it ?-A. No.

QIt says:-
'Memo.: This policy lias beau exchanged for a policy on the flve-year plan No....

and the pramium on the new policy lias bean credited and the new policy lias beeu

returned for cancellation.'

1s that riglit ?-A. No, that should be the old poliey lias been raturned for

eaneellation.
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Q. It continues, 'And under the terms allowed the amount of the last cali paidon the old policy lias been accepted as a part of the premium on the new policy. Saidamount belongs to the agents, who in their settiement had accounted for the entirepremrnm on the new poliey witliout taking eredit thereon for the amount of said iast

cail.'
Now, on this form which you say you had drawn and which the president sailhe would have to take to the woods if it were used, would yonr form have made anydifference ?-A. No, flot a particle of difference in the resuit. I used the word bonus,and lie took offence at that. Mr. :Moss liad told me that it was to be allowed as abonus for the transfer, and 1 used the word bonus there instead of saying part of the.commission-the allowed bonus for securing the transfer-and that made the presi-

dent exceedingly angry.
Q.He did lot like the nasty word ' bonus' ?-A. No.Q.That was the form that was used afterwards lin paying commissions out of

the mortuary funds e-A. Yes.
Q. During the year 1897 did you notice in the course of your business that certainfunds whikh were sent in as premiuins by agents were received by Mr. Moss-tliat isthe manager of the company ?-A. Yes, the general manager.
Q. And credited to has account inatead of being credited to the account of the

policies ý-A. I dld.
Q. Did you draw the attention of Mr. Burnham to this state of affaira ?-A. I

did.
Q. What was lis answer ?-A. He told me to follow the matter up and find outhow mucli there was and ail about it, and have the policies properly credited-to get

the money from Mr. Moss and have the policies properly credited.Q. Did you ever get the money from Mr. Moss ?-A. I had the policies properly
credited, but neyer got the money from Mfr. 3foss.

Q.By whom was the money paid lu ?-A. By policy holders.
Q.Have you any idea of about what the amount would bel ?A. Between fifteeu

and twenty-two thousand dollars.

By Mr. .dylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Co.:
Q.Were those Canadian policies ?--A. I do not know where they were from-

ail over the country, I suppose. I do not suppose it made any difference to hlm.
By, the Chairman:

QIt miglit as well have come from Canada as from the state of New York t-A. As far as I know they came from the country generally. I do not know whetherany of them were from Canada or not. I hardly think there were, but I have no wayof knowing. The only way would be to look at the policies. The records will show
every one I traced Up.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commiltee
Q.And it amounted to how much ?-A. Between $15,000 and $22,000-1 thlnk it

was between $15,000 and $20,000.
1Q., Money that this Mfr. M oss got whi h le was not entitled to I-A Well, lie wasentitled to some parts of it as lis commission. For instance, if it came lie got it ail;it did not make any difference.

Q. You say the books'of your association would show the amounts se wronglycredited ?-A. Yes, I said the books would show it. The book entry would not, butthe voucliers filed would show the details. 0f course, the books themselves would not
show that.'

Q.The vouchers referred to in the books would show it ?-A. Yes.Q.Did you inform Mfr. Burnliam that you had, been unable to collect the moneyfrom. Mr. Moss ?-A. Yes, I told him I had traced the matter up an ssked Mfr. MoasE
9riWENSO«
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for a cheque for the amount, and Mr. Mioss said, ' Charge 1it to My accounit,' and MNr-.
Burnhami said, 'Go on and do it.' The policy-bolders had to be credited, the money
hiad corne "in and Mr. Moss had gotten it, so the policy-holders had to be credited, and
they, were- credited and entries w'cre made charging Mr. Moss xvith the amoint.

Q.So far as you know, Mr. iMoss neyer paid it back ?-A. So f ar as I know, lie
neyer paid it.

Q. I xvould cali your attention to a member of the company, the Mutual Reserve
Fund Life Association, named ILawson N. Fuller; do you remember any peculiar cii-
cum1stances about the surrender of his policy ?-'A. Yes, 1 refmember a settiement they
made with him which was irregular.

Q. State as shortly as you can what it was ?-A. The case was this: he was a
policy-holder for, 1 think, $10,000. le was an old man, a man 'of considerable pro-
ininence in New York. Hie did flot have the money to meet lis premiurn in cash, so,
the company accepted bis notes for a while for probably $,000, in that neighbourhood,
eovering different premiums until it amountcd to about that. Then Mr. Euller wantecl
a, settiement with the company. The policy had no0 surreader cash value at ail, and
the company paid him neariy $2,OOO in cash and returned him his notes, which wetle
neyer paid, and took up tie policy. 1 hold that was an injustice te the other mem-
bers of the association, hecause the risk had been carried on bis life on the strength
of bis notes, which were flot paid, and bis policy had no cash surrender value, and they
had no0 riglit to, draw from the maortuary fund to- make a settiement on that policy. I
remember the voucher in that case was drawn, not hy President Burnham, but by bis
brother, Mr. George Burnhain, who was the one' that signed it, and Mr. John W.
Droomnan was another, and I forget who the thurd was that signed it.

Q. Was Mr. Eldridge's naine on it ?-A. 1 do flot think so. I ar n ot certain
about it, but there were three signed it.

Q. Can yen recail the names of any agents to whom commissions were paid out of
the mertuary funds by direction of the president ?-A. A number of tliem,

Q. Perhaps yeu miglit mention a few names ?-A. Well, tbere was a firma called
Spiess & O'Connor, that was one firm; there was anothier firin of Baumann & Barry;
there was William Jaretzsky; there was the firm of Burger & O'Connor, and E. O.
Lowry. On refleetion, I can give you a dozen, but 1 guess that is enough.

Q. Yeu can gîve a number of others ?-A. Yes, I mcntioned those because they
are in New York state, most of tliem, except Lowry and Barry.

Q. Can you give us a rougli estimate of the amount that was paid out of the moi-
tuary fund altogether ?-A. No, I cannot.

Q. The books would show it ?-A. Yes, the books would show it-I should say
about $25,000. There was that mucli paid out as last eall, more than that including-
bonds, statements of cash. I knew about the exact amount et oe time, but it is sa
long ago I would net like to say now.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. What, was your salary ?-A. At the time I ]eft it was only $75 pet week There
lied been a reduction in all the salaries of the officers, and mine was eut from $85 to
$75, se at the turne I resigned I was drawing $75.

Q. What was the president's salary ?-A. I think $25,000.

By the Hon. Mi,. Dom.ville:
Q.Twenty-fi-ve theusand dollars a week ?-A. Oh ne, $25,000 a year. lie had

other sources of income.

By the Chairman:
Q. That was bis officiai salary 1-A. That is my impression. that la 'wVhat waS

generally understood.
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By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q.And the vice-president ?-A. I think Mr. Eldridge got $18,0O--that is my
impression.

Q. You spoke of an interview that miglit have taken place at Washington or
Richmond ?-A. 11e said if I would notify him he would meet me there, but I hav-.ý
neyer spoken to him since that interview I have mentioned.

By the Chairman:
Q., You said a minute ago that the president of the company had other sources

oî revenue ; is that outside of the Company or inside of the company ?-A. That was
rather in a jest, but I do not mind telling you what I had reference te: There was
a fund left by President Harper, and a resolution was passed which enabled the presi-
dent to handie that, but I do not know how mucli of it.

Q. Wbat .was that fund llHow did it arise ?Was it money belonging te the
policy-holders ?-A. To the best of my recollection it was in this way: in bis will Mr.
Harper made a bequest to lis family, I think one-third, and released the company
under an old contract to the amount of one-third of bis dlaim on condition that Presi-
dent Burnham was elected president, and that money later President Burnham had the
board of directors pass a resolution allowing him. to use that one-third interest re-
leased by Mr. Harper, to the best interest of the company according to bis judgment.
That was the sum. and substance of it.

.Wi the Hon. M1r. Domville:
Q. How mucli would that be ?-A. I think fifteen thousand dollars a year.

B~y the Chairman:

Q. That money is still being paid ? The heirs are stili drawing the money ?-A.
They were when I left.

Q. So'the hieirs must have been paid out of that fund ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q. I understand the witness te say that when Mr. Harper died lie willed bis dlaim
,4gainst the company for so many thousand dollars a year to bis heirs, but that one-
third of it was to go to this Mr. Burnham, and that the company is stili paying that
money to the heirs ?-A. No. What I said was that lie released to the company. His
commission contract was, roughly estimated, about $60,000 a year, and one-third of
that would be of course about $20,000. Hie provided, ini bis will that if the board of
direetors would elect Mr. Burnham. as bis successor lie would release to the Company
one-third of that sum of $60,000.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. And Mr. Btirnham succeeded in getting that $20,000 afterwards ?-A. H1e

cither induced the board of directors, or they of their own free wiIl, passed a resolu-
tion allowing him to use that fund to further the interest of the company.

1Q. At bis own dîscretion ?-A. At bis own discretion if lie liked. Hie did not
have to inake an account.

B1, the Hon. Mr. Doinville:
Q. As I understand, the president got $25,000 a year salary. and $60,O00 besides

ar, commission l-A. I do not think it, because from year to year lie released thea
Company.

Q. But lie was drawing $60,0O0 a year besides $25,000 as salary ?-A. Yes.

Bai the Chairman:

Q. Is that being done to-day ?-A. I do not know.
-Q. It was when you lef t in 1899 ?-A. 'ï es.

STEVMISOIN



THE MUTUAL RESERVE FLIND LIE ASSOCIATION 35

APPENDIX No,, 1

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Uommittee
Q. What you mean is that Mir. Burnham. was getting $25,000 salary and one-third

of $60,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q.Did he make any account of it ?-A. Not so far as I know.

By the lion. Mr. Domville -:
Q.Would there ha vouchers there to show it if lie did ?-A. Certainly.

By the (ihairman :
Q.You said that by the will of Mlr. Harper one-third of the fund whici lie had

control of was to go back to the company, and that the directors voted over that third'
to iMr. IBurnhani to be used at bis discretion ? Were there any other conditions in
that will ?-A. Yes, my memory is flot fresh enough to go into that. It is too long
aigo

By Mur. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. You spoke of this one policy-holder, whose name you mentioned a few moments

ago, giving notes for mortuary premiums; was it the habit to accept notes for mot-
tuary premiums ?-A. It was not the habit.

Q. But it was done sometimes ?-A. Very rarely.
Q. It was against the constitution and by-laws of the company ?-A. So far as 1

know, it was. I did not know that they could be paid except in cash.
Q. What is your salary as manager of the Metropolitan Department of the North

American Life Company ?Is it a better position than the one you had hefore ?-
A. In inimediate returns it is not as good. I draw both salary and commission. The
immediate salary this year is not as raucli as $85 a week.

Q. But the chances are hetter, you say ?-A. Yes.

Oross-examination of witness postponed until to-morrow.

Jane 16, 1904.

The witness having road over the foregoing shorthand report of the evidence given
by him desirés to say with respect to the questions and answers at the foot of page 13,
lines 29, 30 and 31, as follows :-(See page 9 of Evidence as printed).

As soon as the Insurance Department at New York had it brouglit to their notice
that delinquent policies were represented by the company as being in force, they added
new lînes in the blanks supplied to the cpmpany upon which the company were required
iander oath to set forth :-first, policies non-delinquent December Slst ; second,
'jolicies delinquent on which association's liability continued during delinquency;
third, policies delinquient on whieh association's liability was suspended during de-
linquency. Sec sworn report of the company to the Insurance Department in New
York, December 31, 1899, page 3.

(Signed) J. M. STEVENSON.

STEFWMN
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OTTAWA, June 16tli, 1904.

The evidence of J. M. Stevenson taken yesterday was read to the Committee.

The CHiÂIAM.-If any honourahle gentleman wishes to ask the witness any
question lie may do SQ flow.

By the Hon. Mr. iS'ullivan:
Q.What year did Mr. Harper die 1-A. In July, 1895.
Q.Did iMr. Burnham succeed immediately 1-A. Yes, sir.
Q.In what offce was lie before tliat--during Harper's life i-A. Hie wae counsel

of the company..
Q.Was he a relative of Harper's -A. Not that I know of.
Q.He was a lawyer, was lie -A. Yes.

Q. Are there many companies like that in the Urnited States-I niean on that
prînciple ?-A. You mean on the assessment plan-yes, there are a great many on the
assessment plan.

Q. Do you know of any in Canada 1-A. I know very little about Canadian com-
panies, excepting the one I represent. I do not know of any assessment companies
in Canada. There may be the Foresters, or something of that kind, a secret order.

By the Hon. Mr. Rob ertàdn:
Q. Who drew llarper's will 1-A. I could not tell that of my own knowledge. It

was usually supposed that it was drawn by Mr. Burnhaim, but 1, of course, wasi not
present and could not answer.

Q. 11e was a lawyer 1-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q.And attorney for the company at the time 1-A. H1e xvas attorney for the

compàhy at the time.

Byj the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. This sixty thousand dollars that you refer to in your evidence'as Harper's

claim against the éomn'fy of whi h le wiled one-third te Burnham- what claini whs
that I What dlaim. Lad Uarpei, on the company for tlie sixty tliousand dollars 1-A.
It seenis that in the ear ly years of the company Mr. Harper, the president, liad an
agencty contract wherehy lie got a certain commission on the annual dues as paid
eacli year, and. nt the time of his dea-th the buisiness hadl grow,ýn s0 rapidly that under
1,hat old ageiicy contraet wbich ho, leld, the commission anmuted to about $60,000.
1 do not want it to go on the record as stating $60,000 a mnonth.

Q. 1 waxit to khow if that was a just claim Hiarper had against the compainy
nder the contiraet -A. 1 know nothing about tfie legal part of it. I know about
the contract.

É3ý the Itn. Mfr. Sullivan:
Q. H1e founded the company 1-A. H«e was called the founder. It was or-

ganized really by Mr. Bloss.
Q. In your opinion Lad Harper the riglit to dispose of and direct the disposai

of the $60,000 1-A. If it was his property, certainly Le Lad.
1 Q. &nt~ when lie died, what right had lie 1-A. That is a question of law.

STEVENSON
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By the Cliairman:
Q. But as a matter of fact, when lie died, in 1895, this amount'of commisson

was stili paid to the beirs, and a part returned to the company ?-A. Yes, for some
years. I understood Mvr. Harper, prior to his death, released the company of certain
parts of that $60,000, what amnount I do flot know.

Q. It was stili his, le was making a gift of it to the Company?

By the Hon. Mr. WVood:
Q. It was an annual eommission ?-A, Ycs.

By te Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.It was on the renewals t-A. Yes.
Q.It depended on the amoiint of renewals ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:
Q.He died in 1895 ?-A. Yes.

Q. llow many years afterwards was it paid l-A. I do not knowv.
Q. Was it paid any year after lie died ?-A. Yes.
Q. You do flot know liow manyi-A. 1 do flot know how many, because I left the

company in 1899. Up to the time I left, it was being paid.

Cro8.s-examined by 21r. Aylesworth, K.U., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Lif e Insur-
ance Company of New Yorkc.

Q. You left the Mutual iReserve ini 1899 l A. Yes.
Q. And since that time have flot been connected with that company at ail, as I

understand you?-A. No, sir.
Q. In any shape or form ?-A. No.
Q. You have been engaged in insurance business since then 1-A. Yes.
Q. And with the North American Life ?-A. Yes.
Q. And I suppose that daily business lias pretty welI occupied your time 1-A.

Pretty fairly, yes.
Q. llow mucli notice liad you before yesterday that you were going to be ques-

tioned about these matters that you gave evidence in regard to?-A. The first time, I
think, was about ten days or two weeks ago.

,Q. You have liad about ten days or two weeks to refresh your memory 1-A. IfI
desired to do so.

Q.And came here fromn New York for th 'e purpose of giving evidence 1-A. Yes.
Q. At your own expense or at anybody else's expense 1 A. Well, I expect my ex-

penses to bc pqid. Tliey have flot been paid, but I sliould think tliey would be.
Q. Were ýyou served witli subpoena?-A. I was not.
Q. You came of your own wish, voluntariiy t-A. I was requestled to corne, yes.
Q. Would you have any objection to saying by wliom 1-A. Mr. Wells gsked me

if I would corne on and give some testimony, I told liim I would ifI could.
Q. And arranged your business so as to admit of your attendance liere, comning aI

your own expense primarily, but expecting to be repaid 1-A. Yes.
Q. By Mr. Wells ?-A. The way it is donc in thie United States, I expeet the

court, wlioever it is, wilI defray my expenses.
Q. You expeet your expenses will be borne out of some fund 1-A. Yes.
Q. You were connected witli th 5 company for a period of about, sixteen years 1-

A, Yes.
Q. When you went tliere first, in 1883, thie company was about two years in ex-

istence ?-A. It was organized in 1881, I belileve.
Q. Aud Mr. Harper was then president 1-A. Yes.
Q. And had, as you always understood, taiçea a very active part in the organizati.on

ýDf the company, had lie flot ?-A. Not in its original organization, as I understand itý
s4ýEVErNq
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He became president in 1889, and I do flot think lie liad any connection with it until
then.

Q.And tlie company is purely a mutual company t-A. It was at that time.
Q.And up to the time you left i-A. Yes.
Q.It lias no sliareholders, in tlie ordinary sense of the word ?-A. It liad flot then.
QIts members consist simply of wliatever men are insured in it, the policy-

liolders t-A. Yes.
Q. A.nd it is they wlio elect tlie directors by tlieir votes, wlio man age the affairs of

the company ? A. Yes.
Q.And tliat lias always been its organization ?-A. While I was witli it, yes.
Q.And so far as you know, up to the present time g-A. One tliing I sliould like

to explain: tliey were elected by the members, eitlier in person or by proxy. Most of
the votes were given by proxy.

Q. It is like any otlier company wliere the members are scattered ?-A. Yes.
Q. And tliere was a very large number of members up to the time you left ?-

A. Yes.
A. About liow many *tliousands?-A. I do flot know.
Q. As many. as a linndred tliousand -A. No, I do flot tliink so. I do flot tliink

even at the largest they ever reaclied a liundred tliousand different members.
Q. I mean the different persons insured ?-A. No.
Q. IPerhaps 75,000 or 80,000 ?A., Yes, I suppose at one time.
Q. llaving an anuual meeting and eitlier attending personally or voting by proxy;

tliat is riglit ?-A. Tliey did flot ail give proxies.
Q. But any one wlio chose gave a proxy ?-A. Yes.
Q., Gr any one wlio chose attended personally.-A. Yes.
Q. Iliat was the organîzation and government of the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. Wlien you went there who was president ?-A. Harper.
Q. Mr.. J. D). Wells was flot tlien connected witli the company, was lie -A. I do

flot think so. I amrn ot certain but I thînk Mr. J. ID. WelIs's connection began in
1883 or 1884-1883, 1 tliink.

Q. Sliortly after you came there ?-A. lie may have been up liere and represented
t1ein in Canada liere. But I do flot tliink I met Mr. Wells in 1883 or 1884.

Q. About 1883 or 1884 lie frrst came into tlie employment of tlie association and
continued witli tliem until the very day you resigned ?-A. Yes.

Q. And what position was lie in ?-A. lHe was vice-president and cliairman of
the executive committee at that time.

Q.And had been for a number of years, liad lie not ?-A. 1 do flot iemember liow
long lie liad been cliairman of the executive committee, but lie liad been vice-president
for a number of years.

Q.The executive committee was a comxnittee of the directors ?-A., Yes.
Q.How many ?-A. Three.
Q.Tlree directors ?-A. Yes.

Q. And IMr. Wells as vice-president and as chairman of tliat committee, of course.
was a director ?-A. Hie was a director.

Q. And liad been for tliese great number of years, you cannot say bow many ?-
A. I do not remember liow many.

Q. Then would I bie correct in understanding tliat lie was next in autliority to
Mr. Harper until Mr. HFarper's death, and after Mr. llarper's deatli next in autliority
to MEr. Burnliam. ?A. Well, I sliould tbink under tlie constitution lie would liave
been, but for a time Mr. Wells was in Europe.

Q. lie was attending to the company's business tliere ?-A. Yes, attending to the
company's business there.

Q. Thie company's business txtended not only over the United States and Can-
ada, but also over Great Britain and on tlie continent of Europe-almost ail thie coun-
tries of Europe ?-A. A good many of tliem.
W11VIDvNSON
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Q. And Mr. WTells was for some time on the other side of the Atlantic on the com.-
pany's business ?-A. Yes.

Q. With the understanding I would be right in saying that he was second in
authority ?-A. Not ail the~ tirne. Mr. Wells was viu.e-president, if I remember cor-
rectly, and then part of the time iMr. Alfred Taylor was vice-president and part of
the time Mr. 0. iD. Baldwin, but when Mr. Wells became second in authority I could
flot tell from rnernory.

Q. When did IMr. Eldridge corne to the companyl ?A. H1e was connected with
the company in some capacity during Mr. llarpcr's lifetime. IIow long that connec-
tion lasted, I ueannot tell. I think it was actuarial work.

Q. ile was the actuary of the company during Mr. Hfarper's lifetime, and aftcr
Mr. Harper died Mr. Eldridge became one of the vice-presidents ?A. One of the vice-
presidents and actuary. You said during Mr. Harper's lifetime he was actuary; I
cannot say lie was. 11e was doing actuarial work but whether he held the position of
actuary at tbat tirne, I do flot know.

Q. That was bis relation to the company during iMr. Harper's lifetime?-A. Yes.
Q. And after Mr. Harper's death he became vice-president alonig with iMr. Wells

up to tbe time you left ?-A. Mr. Eldridge had left the company before MNr. Ilarper's
death. lHe wvas not in the office. Then at the first annual meeting, I tbink it was,
after IMr. llarper's death he was elected vice-president, an~d appointed actuary.

Q. And he continuedto be actuary. And Mr. Burnham, as president, and IMr.
Eldridge, as vice-president, have been the managing rnen of the company, since 1899,
since you and iMr. Wells left, so far as you know?-A. Well . so far as I know, they
have been even longer than that. Altbough there were three members of the execu-
tive committee, it was generally understood, notwithstanding the f act that *Mr. Wells
was chairman of tbe executive conimittee, that vice-president Eldridge and president
Burnbam really controlled the company. That was the impression.

Q. That was tbe impression you got towards the latter part of the time you were
there, I suppose?-A. It was more particularly after IMr. Moulton iD. Moss carne there,
in 1896 or 1897.

Q. Mr. IMoss first appeared on the scene connected with the association towards
the end of 1895, did he not ?-A.. I have not refreshcd any memoranduma I bad on that
subjeet for a year or more. I tbought it was 1896; it may have been 1895.

Q. I am told it was the very end of 1895, he first had any connection with the
company ?-A. It may have been.

Q. H1e was there at ail events throughout 1896 and 1897, and the first part of
1898 ?-A. *Yes, I thînk he left in July, 1898.

Q. 11e was there altogether possibly a little over two and one-haîf years, there-
abouts?-A. About that.

Q. llad you ever heard of him before he qame?-A. I neyer did.
Q. Had Mr. Wells, so far as you know ?-A. Before he came to the company ?
Q. Before he came to the company.-A. I do not know.
Q. You have heàrd since that he had a very bad record ?-A. 1 have.
Q. That he had been convicted and undergone punishment for some crirne in

Australia ?-A. I understood that iMr. Moss had been arrested and tried, or some-
thing, but I do not remember any conviction.

Q. Did yon not understand. as a matter of general knowledge in the company
after his dismissal, after it was found ont that he had the record I describe, that he
had been convicted and had undergone the punishment for some crime in Australia-
imprisonent at hard labour ?-A. No, I do not think I ever heard of that. I did
hear this, that at the time lie was brought over from Europe, or made a connection
with the Mutual IReserve, lie could not leave England, without a money settiernent
with some creditors.

STEVENSON
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>Q. Was not that alter lie was çnnected with.the cornpazly that lie was, lable to
be capiased ?-A. No, my rec'ollection is it was 1before lie be >came connected wi th the
eornpany.

Q. That is only arrest for debt; 1 ar n ft speaking of that; 1 arn asking if i<t
was flot arrest and imprisonent for crime in Australia, and that lie liad undergone
punish3nent which was the cause of lis dismissal by the cornpany when they found ît
out?-A. I neyer heard that.

Q. Hie was disrnissed, was lie flot -A. 1 think lie was.
Q. In the summer of 1898? He was £irst emnployed, I suppose, by Mr. Wells, was

he not ?-A. I do nlot know who first ernployed him.
Q. In 1895, or the beginniing of 1896, when Mr. Moss came there, who was at

the head of theagency department of the company i-A. 1 could flot tell you; I
really do flot remember.

Q. What was your department h-A. I was assistant secretary.
Q. You could flot tell me who was at the head of the agency department, in

control of ail their age~nts during 1896-1897 ?-A. iMr. Moss was the general manager
after lie carne there.

Q. Mr. iMoss was general manager first for the iMetropolitan district around New
York, and afterwards for the UJnited States; 1 arn asking who wab, ut the head of
the agency departrnent h-A. Before Mr. Moss camne?

Q. No, over Mr. Moss ?-A. I really could flot tell you that.
Q. The business of the company then was so large that it had to be subdivided

into departrnents h-A. It had different departrnents.
Q. Was not the business of the cornpany divided up into departrnents h-A. Yes.
Q. And was there flot a departrnent called the agency department h-A. Yes.
Q. Having charge of ail the agents -A. Yes.
Q. And was not iMr. Wells in charge of that departrnent ?-A. Mr. Wells was

head of the agency department of c'ourse, but T thought you meant-
Q. Hie was in Europe for how long ?-A. About eiglit or ten months.
Q. And Mr. Wells was the man who discovered Moulton D. Moss, was lie not ?-

A. Do you mean discovered bis questionable transactions.
Q. No, diseovered hirn for the companyh ?A. I cannot tell.
Q. You do not know who went into the contracts with Mr. iMioss h-A. I board

that Mr. Wells and Mr. Vrooman signed the contract, but who brouglit him to the
company, I do nlot know.

Q. After Mr. Harper died Mr. l3urnharn became president, and lie had the control
of this fund of about $20,000, or in that neighbourliood, xvhicli Mr. Harper liad left
to the company by bis will, had he not ?-A. After the passage of the resolution by
the board of directors lie was allowed-

Q. Turned it over to him ?-A. To -use it in bis judgment for the best interest of
the company, so far as 1 recohlect the resolution.

Q. Were there are complaints-internal complaints-in the company ?-A. On
that point h

Q. Yes h-A. I never knew a word of that until I liad left the company.
Q. After you left you beard of complaints ?-A. No, of the allowance to thé

president. I did flot know lie liad been drawing tliat money.
Q. Do you'mento say that up to the time you left in January, 18W9, you did

nlot know Mr. ]3urnham was harnlling, under a resolution of tlie directors, this one-
third;of Mr. Hlarper's commission ?--A. That is exaetly what 1 say. i

1-Q. Did you know there was "an investigation by a cormiîttee of tlie directors in
the summer of 1898 as to what had been done by IMr. Burnham with tliese moneys h
A. Yes. I heard of that investigation-in 1898?

Q. Yes ?-A. I do not remember tlie date, but I lieard of the-investigation.
Q. Before you left ?-A. I neyer lieard of the fund until after I had left-I mean

of the cornmittee having allowed IMt. Burnham to draw the fund until after I liad left.
S'TEVENSON
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Q. Did you not hear until after you had lef t that there were those complaints and

tliat there vas an investigation by the committee during the summer of 1898 ?-A. No'ý

not until after I had left.

Q. Could that have gone on without Mir. Wells knowing it ?-A. In the executive

committee two members of it formed a quorum and they could have done it. I was

flot a member of the executive.
Q. You were not a member )At any time ?-A. No.

Q. Mr. Wells had been ?-A. Hie had been for years.

Q. Did you hear at ail -before the annual meeting of 1899 that Mr. Wells would

like to be president instead of Mr. Burnham '?-A. 1 heard that li December.

Q. lI Pecember of 1898 ?-A. December, 1898.

Q. And that ho was endeavouring to get proxies or votes tu put him into that posi-

tion ?-A. You askedme if he desired to be president. I neyer heard him say go. 1

heard him say to the contrary, that he did not.

Q. You heard him say that he did not wish it 1-A. H1e said he thought General

James was the manl.
Q. That it ought to be somebody other thaniMir. lBurnham ?-A. Yes.

Q. And for how long before this annual meeting of 1899 was Mr. Wells taking

that position, that there ought to be a change ?-A. The first I lmew that lie desired

a change in the management was, I think, in September, 1898.

Q. And what was your attitude in that regard 1-A. As soon as I found out that

he held that view-in fact 1 held the view a long time-I took the same view lie did,

1 thought there ouglit to be a change.
Q. And you were willing to co-operate ?-A. Yes.

Q. You were a policy-holder yourself 1-A. Yes.

Q. Had you any proxies ?-A. No.
Q.You had simply your own vote anid position ?-A. Yes.

Q.And you thought Mfr. Wells was right in desirinig this change ?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you actually assist in attaining that end ?-A. I do not know that there

was active assistance, but 1 was in sympathy with the movement and I thouglit a

change was in the best inter-est of the policy-holders.
Q. Was it a part of the understanding that if there should be that change a better

and more important position should fail to you i-A. It was not any suoli promise or

agreement or anything of that kind.

Q. We understand these things are not put into wrîting ordinarîly 1-A. The idea

was if the management was changed, if Mr. ]3urnham was to resign or get out, tliat

1 would remain with the company. That was understood; there was no agreemcnt.

Q. And that your position would be inicreased in importance 1-A. I do not know

that the point was brought up-oh, yes, 1 tbink it was. I think one of the ideas was

that I was to be either the secretary, controller, or something of that kind. iMr.

e'urnham and I had spoken of that.
Q. What about Mr. Wells!-A. I neyer heard him express an idea of it.

Q. What was your own idea 1-A. *My own idea was that lie 'was to be as he was

I fore, head of tha agency department, and General James president of the company.

Q. Was iMr. Moss in this 1-A. Was Mr. Moss in what 1

Q. In this Linderstanding, to, cail it by a gentie name 1-A. Mr. Moss knew iloth-

~'gabout it that I know of.
Q.Was he a policy-holdlex? -A. Hie had been.

Q, He would be a voter too 1-A. Yes.

Q. You do not know whether lie was in tbis arrangement at ail 2-A. I know lie

was not.
Q. 'He had been discharged in July 1-A. 11e liad been discharged or hie con,

nection severed in, some way.
Q. lI July, 18981-A. I think it was.

Q. llad the change taken place as early as July, 18981-A. 1 neyer heard: of it,
STEVENSQ>N
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S4 EDWARD VIL, A. 1904Q. Then the annual meeting was held on the 25th January, 1899 ?-A. Yes.Q. And at that meeting the overwhelming majority of votes was in favour of iMr.] 3urnham, and the old directors, was it flot l-A. I was in the meeting a very shortwhile, and I suppose it was as unanimous as it ever was.Q. And IMr. Wells was dropped from the directorate aitogether ?-A. Hle was flot-that was done by the members; he was flot re-eleeted.Q. So lie was no0 longer on the board? About what hour in the day would thatmeeting be éver and that resuit known ?-A. I do flot know how many hours thie meet-ing was held. It was calcd, I suppose, about 11001.Q. And that would be ail over in an hour at the outsidel A. An hour or two.Q. Was this resignation that you put in here on paper at that time ?-A. It was.Q. When was it on paper ?-A. iMy first resignation was-Q. This one I arn speaking of?-A. This was before tbe day-before the annual
meeting.

Q. It is dated the day of the annual meeting ?-A. I was writing it at twelveo'clock.
Q. Twelve o'clock struck before you finishcd it ?-A. It was at niglit.Q. And it was prepa ring for an cvii day that migbt corne on the morrow ?-A. Ihad made up my mind to go.
Q. To surrender $75 a week for conscience sake e-A. That is exactiy what I did.Q. Because you feit that to stay longer and take that $75 wouid sacrifice yourmanhood ?-A. Not to take the $75 but to stay longer and remain in with my mouthclosed as to certain things.
Q. As to the wrong-doing?-A. Yes.Q. So you madc up your mmnd to sever your connection before this ?-A. Yes.Q. Was that resolution depending, at ail on the resuit of the annual meeting?-A. Yes, I had made up my mind if Mr. Burnham and the others continued I would go.Q. Your position, I suppose, dcpended on the will of the direetors? They coulddiseharge you ?-A. Certainly they could, on thirty days' notice.Q. Whatevcr your contract was ?-A. Yes.Q. You had this document prepared by your legai adviscr, Mr. Pendieton? A.Yes.
Q. And it was flot deiivercd until the day after the annual meeting ?-A. It wasdelivered the morning of the 26th of January.
Q. In ieaving the company at that time, did you co-operate with Mr. Wells in whatwent on with regard to the company's affairs afterwards ?-A. In some ways, yes.Q. Did you not in ail ways i-A. No.Q. Dhd you jin J im in maqking a statement of charges against the managementof the company before the Insurance Department of New York State on the l7th ofApril following ?-A. I forgct the date I joined with hirm i11 making some charges.Q. It was within three months of bis withdrawai ?-A. I tbought it was later thanApriL.
Q. It was later than April before it came on for hearing, but I arn told it was onthe l7th of April your memoriai was sent to the department ?-A. 1 do not know that,but I signed it.
Q. You and Mr. Wells ?-A. Yes.Q. In that memorial did you include ail the charges of wrong-doing, as you con-sidered, that you were acquainted with I-A. That was about four or five years ago. Ido not remember the charges. 1 have not read them for, I suppose, three years, and Ido not remember 110W what was included in them.Q. These things seem pretty weIl impressed on your memory; can you tell methis, was there a thing that you testified to yesterday that was- not included in thecharges in that memorial I-A. I do not remember whether there was anythingomitted or not.

STE~VENSON
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Q. Can you suggest anything you told the committee yesterday that was nlot in-
cluded in that memorial ?-A. I do nlot remember.

Q. You cannot remember any ?-A. No.
Q. That was investigated by the departinent at considerable length was it nlt?-

A. The charges?-
Q. Yes ?-A. It was claimed that it was and that it was flot. 1 do nlot know

whether it was or flot.
Q. Have you flot scen tho report of iMr. Vanderpoei of that investigation ?-A.

I saw a newspaper clippiiig of iii; I do not know whethier I have ever seeni the officiai
report.

Q. You know Mr. Vanderpoel's position do you I-A. Yes.
Q. lie is the chief examiner of the departreent ?-A. Yes.
Q. And yon are flot sure whether you ever saw his officiai report or flot?--A.

Very iikely I have seen it.
Q. It is dated the 2nd of April, 1900, it is made under oath and he states in it

that he with soine twelve assistants examined ail the books, papers and records of the
association, including the minute book and also contracts that were referred to in the
charges, to make a minute report on it to the superintendent; does that corne to
you as news at al?-A. No, I saw a newspaper account of it.

Q. And you know that his report entirely exonerated the association and its officers
of the charges which yen and iMr. Wells had made against themn?-A. I do flot know
that.

Q. Have you read his report ? lie says

'In such examination I investigated the said charges against the said association
and its management, so filed, in s0 far as tise hooks and records of the associationl
were concerned, and iii so doing found nothing which impaired the integrity or
honcsty either of Frederick A. Buruham, the president of said association or of ainy
one else associated with him in the management of the association' -A. .N W it

occurs to me the wording he has in there why I did not think it an exoneration. It
says 'ln so f ar as the books and records show'. They had a way of pLutting their
vouchers that ui-. not always-

Q. Who had a way of doing that? IMr. Stevenson ?-A. The company. Mr.
Stevenson had nothing to do with vouchers.

Q. Hie signed vouchers?-A: lic had a form of vouchers.
Q. You controiled your department did you flot t-A. Yes.
Q. And iMr. Wells controlied bis ?-A. Ye,

By the Chairman:

Q. You said something about the remark in s0 far as the books and records show?
A. I say in my judgment ne investigating committee could by reference te the hooks

alone find out what was desired te get from the books.

By M1r. Aylesworth, K.J., Coun.sel for the Mutual Beserve Companýy:

Q. iReturning to what I was asking you about, the books and the vouchers during
the sixteen years you had heen with the company-the books and the vouchers con-

nected with your department had been of your signature and on yeur responsibility?
-A. Yes.

Q. Sirnîlariy, durîng the equai or greater iength of time Mr. Wells had been at

the head of his department, the books and the vouchers connected with the depart-

ment had been on his responsibiiity ?-A. Supposed te be the case.
SQ. I suppose they were net falsely kept, se far as yen were concerned ?-A. I

suppose net.
Q. On that report heing made by Mr. Vanderpeel, in April, 1900, what was the

next thing Mr. Wells and yen did ?-A. I couid net tell yen that. >
SITEVBNSON
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>Q. J4id you then go to the Attorney General of New York State and make an

application to him under the statute law of New York that he should take proceed-
ings to remove Mr. Burnham l-A. Some such resolution was made, and 1 was a
party to it.

Q. Some such application ?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me wlien that application was set on footl How soon after Mr.

Vanderpoel's report ?-A. I cannot tell you that.
Q. It was within a few weeks, was it flot ?-A. I should think it would be nearer

to say within a few months.
Q. Some time within a few months, and that was an application signed by Mr.

Wells and yourself ?-A. Yes.
Q. And it repeated the same charges, did it flot i-A. So I believ'e. I do flot

know if they were exactly the same.
Q. And applied to the Attorney General asking hlm to intervene ?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was the Attorney General of New York State at that time ? Was it Mr.

liancock ?-A. I do nut think sO. Cail over the names of the different Attorneyâ
General and I will recolleet the name.

Q. It does flot signify. Dhd you know of a previous investigation a few months
before, or a previous application of the same nature made to Attorney General
liancock by one of the mnen wlio signed with IMr. Wells and you this inemorial to the
Attorney General that I have been alluding to ?-A. That was entirely separate and
distinct froma the one we sent.

Q. I believe it was.-A. Then I do flot remnember anything about it.
Q. It was by a man named fleming l-A. He did take some action; what it was

Ido not kfiow.
Q. What was the resuit of this application of yours to the Attorney General i-A.

-nere was no resuit that I know of.
Q. Nothing came of it?-A. I do flot know"of any.
Q. lie declined to act?-A. I think so.
Q. lie investigated independent of the insurance department l-A. I could flot

answer for that, because I do flot know what lie did.
Q. Did you not appear before him t-A. I did flot. I went, up there and it was

held bchind closed doors.
Q. You were not before hlm personally ?-A. No.
Q. Was Mr. Pendieton ?-A. No, Mr. Pendieton neyer appeared before hirm to

my knowledge. I do flot think lie did.
Q. Dhd the matter remain. quiet from tliat time, 1900, or the end of it, until

this present spring ?-A. There is very littie time there la not some suit brouglit
agalnst thema of somfe kind, s0 I cannot answer that.

Q. There lias been a perfect carnival of litigation against the company in the
United States, bas there flot ?-A. There lias been a good deal.

Q. lias any of it been fomented by IMr. Stevenson l-A. Not a particle of it.Q. You have flot been responsible for any of it r-A. For the instigation of it IQ. Yes ?-A. Excepting the application to, the Attorney General and the Insur-
ance Department.

Q. Since then you have attended to your own business and left the compamny's
business alone ?-A. I did flot instigate it; I have been called as a witness.

Q. Coming to the matters you testified about yesterday, there are just one or
two things I sliould like to bave explained. Mr. liarper was ayery vigorous ]ife in-
surance man himself, was lie nt I-A. I do not ktiow exactly bow you use the word
vigorous, lie was a forcible inan.

Q. You worked with him for twelve years or more 1-A. I was witi ýhiMn fron
,1883 to 1895.

Q. And you found him a very fore'ible mn. ?-A. tes.
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Q. ýA very energeie man ?-A. 1 so coinsidered him.
Q. And a very capable, excellent, if e insurance expert l-A. No. As n business

getter. There is a difference between an insurance expert and a man who is able to
organize and secure business. I regarded Mr. Hlarper as a good business getter but
flot a manwho understood life insurance as well as a great many of less prominence.

Q. I accept what you say with gratitude; hie was an excellent business getter l-
A. Yes,.

Q. And hie built up in the time of his connection with this association a trenien-
dons business?-A. Vcry large indeed.

Q. Starting of course £rom nothîng in 1881 or 1882 wbcen lie came?-A. It was
very qmall when he came in 1882.

Q. And it mounted up until the time of bis death in 1885 to about how many
millions ?-A. 1 think at the tirne of his denth it was in the neighbourhood of $800,-
000,000-between two and three hundred millions. It is a long time ago.

Q. And that was very largely due, was it not, to hîs ability as an organizer and
procurer of life insurance ?-A. Very largely.

Q. Have you ever seen this contract under which hie was receiving a cormission?
-A. The ýriginal?

Q. Yes i-A. No, I bave rend copies but neyer rend the original.
Q. It was made before lie was connected witb the company at all, was it not ?-

A. That is wbat was claimed. I cannot answer it.. It was claimed by some it was,
and by some it was not.

Q. It was claimed at ail events that before hie connected himself with the coin-
pany hie exacted this contract or lie stipulated tbat if hie came to the company lie
should bave a percentage of ail the business of the company the world over ?-A.
What the stipulations of his coming to the company were I cannot answer, because it
was before I went there.

Q. Thot was the terms of the contract?-A. I do not remember that.
Q. I want to get at how this $6so,000 came ?-A. The sense of it was lie was to

get 20 cents on every thousand dollars insurance.
Q. That would lie two cents on each hundred dollars insurance; and that had

begun of course when the Dusiness was very small and the amount of that two cents
commission was not large, but when it got to the hundreds of millions it was some-
Thing enormous?-A. Yes.

Q. And the contract was that that was a payment whieh was to continue as long
os thot business lasted?-A. That is roy recollection of it.

Q. It was nlot to stop with Mr,. Hlarper's death at all? A. Thot is my recollec-
tion of it.

Q. So that this large payment of $60,000 or thereabouts which it had come to be
in 1885, was simply the result of this percentage that Mr. Hlarper had contracted to
get froin 'the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. And thnt was possibly altogether out of the dues accouait ?-A. Yes.
Q. It had nothing whatever to do W'ith the mortiiary £und ?-A. I atways so

thought.
Q.I arn correct in whnt I sayi-A. Yes, to the best of my knowledge and belief.
Q. came from the payments called the dues h-A. Yes.

Q. How would that amount of two cents compare with the commissions that
were ordinariliy paid to general agents of the company h-A. 0f course that wns very
much less than wnas pnid to the agcnts securing the business, because this was on the
business of everybody tînt came in.

Q. <On the 'business every max. lie procured to be an agent or thnt lie organi7eýl
directly or indireçtly-thnt was 'the bargnin h-A. es.

Q.Then Mr. Irarper died, as, yon told us this morxixlg, in the summer of 1895,
and'by his wil he provided ihat oxne-third of that contract money should be releasèd
to the compaxy, or should go to the compaxy, provided Mr. iBurxham becamfe presidenlt
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of the company in bis place ?-A. Yes, and my recollection of it is five years old, but
my recollection is he was flot on]y to be elected, but re-elected for an additional time,
making it a five-years term; that is the way I understood it.

Q. After IMr. IHarper's death, during 1896, 1897, and 1898, during ail which time
you were there, this $20,000 or thereabouts was at the disposai of the company ?--.
When I first became aware of the terms of iMr. llarper's contract I do flot remember,
but I knew after bis death, some time af ter lis death, that there was a provision of
that kind, but where I obtained the knowledge I do flot kuow.

Q. Bld you know of a resolution passed by the directors of the company on the
subject lu IFebruary, 1890 ?-A. In regard to allowing Mr. Burnham to control the
fund ?

Q. Yes I A. I neyer heard a word of that resoîntion until I had lef t the Company
lu 1899.

Q. You did not know of it while you were with the company ?-No.
Q. iDo you know it was said that Mr., ilarper had, during bis lifetime, out of this

commission money, borne heavy expenses whlch mlgbt, witbout impropriety, bave been
borne by the company itself, for instance, bis own travelling expenses to Europe, and
things of that kind ?-A. No. I cannot recaîl anytiug of the kiud.

Q. Bld you understand that during Mr. llarper's life he used that commission
money simply for bis ow-n purpose 1-A. I neyer knew until after IMr. llarper's death
that he was getting it.

Q. After bis death you knew sooner or later of the resolution of the directors as
to the disposition of that fund ?-A. 0f that third interest ?

Q. 0f that third lnterest 1-A. I neyer kuew of that third interest until after I
had left the company lu 1899.

Q. And then you understood there had been a resolution of the directors lu Febru-
ary, 1896, that it be held as a contingent fuud for the purpose of meeting sncb items
c f expenditure as did not f ail under the ordiuary routine of the department's business ?
-A. I heard of that resolution.

Q. You say there was no audit of it, or that IMr. Burnham. was flot called upon
to have it audited 1-A. Tbe information lu regard to tbat is wbat I obtained after I
left there.

Q. Yon were speaking of it yesterday 1-A. Yes.
Q. Yoii sald that Mr. Burnbam was not under obligation to account for that fund ?

-A. No, according to the resolution whicb I read, it exempted him from making au
accont.

Q. But be did afterwards acconnt for it during tbe summer of 1898 1-A. No, I
neyer beard of it. If I dld, 1 do not recail it.

Q. I tbougbt you said a littie wbile ago that you beard, after you left the Com-
pany, that tbere bad been complaints, and Mr. Burnham bad presented bis accounts
and tbey were audited by the executive committee 1-A. I do not remember bavlng
said that.

Q. Will you tell me that I was mistaken in that impression I-A. Yes.
Q. It is news to yon I-A. Tbat he presented tbese vouchers I
Q. Yes I-A. I do not know that I ever beard of it.
Q. Will you say that you neyer beard it until I state it now 1-A. I cannot

auswer tbat-I do not remember.
Q. You know, I suppose, as a matter of ordinary knowledge of business affairs, of

lusurauc'e matters ln connection witb this compauy, tbat the payments bave been
altogether discontinued 1-A. What payments I

Q. 0f tbis $20,000 ?-A. I do not kuow what was doue after I left tbe company.
Q. Bld you not know tbere was a rasolution of the directors on the subject,

passed as long ago as August, 1898, discoutinuiug tbe fund and dlrecting that no
furtber payments be made ont of that fund 1-A. Yes, I beard of some sucb r.esolu-
tion, but tbe detals I neyer beard.
STEVENSON
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Q. And that the whole contingent fund was finally terrninated in October, 1899?~
-A. I do flot remember about thiat. It was after I lef t.

Q. You could flot speak of what occurred after you left 1-A. No.
Q. Mr. Harper had heen, whîle a very successful getter of business as you de-

scribed, flot a very sound insurance man in lis methods, I should judge 1-A. That is
a matter of opinion. I did flot regard him as an insurance expert.

Q. It is your opinion 1 arn asking; that is the fact in your viewl A. Yes, one
brandi of the business.

Q. And one feature of bis system of insurance is what you were referring to
yesterday as the ftfteen-year policy 1-A. That is the plan that was enforced while
lie was president of the company.

Q. That is the plan on tho strcngtli of which this huge business of the Comnpany
was largely built up 1-A. Yes, very largely on that.

Q. That was the plan in operation when you joined the company, in 1883 ?-A.
Yes.

Q. And continued to be the principal plan until when 1-A. I think they intro-
duced what they cali the ten-year plan in 1889 or 1890.

Q. And the five-year plan 1-A. About 1895 or 1896, to the best of My recollection.
Q. But prior to 1889, the whole of the business was on tic fifteen-year plan, and

these shorter ones were afterwards introduced at the dates mentioned.-A. To the best
of my recollection.

Q. Let me see if I understand what the system was. This ftfteen-year policy, as
you caîl it, is not at all analogous to the fifteen-year straight life insurance policy,
is it 1-A. No.

Q. Was this fifteen-year policy this, that premiums or assessments were'flxcd as
of the man's age at the time lie entered, witi the provision that the Company mîgit
increase them at the end of ecd five years in accordance witi their by-laws -A. Yes.

Q. The amount of premium the policy-holder was to pay was fixed as of the age
of the man at the date of bis entry, witi the proviso tiat the company rnight, accord-
ing to its constitution and by-laws, increase those assessments at the end of ecd five
years to the amount tiat the age wiici. the policy-iolder would tien reach would
warrant. Take atiousand-dollar policy and the age of the man twenty-fhve years 1-
A. The quickest way to get it is to read that clause which states that at the end of
ecd quinquennial period the rates may be adjusted to meet tie actual rnortality by
the association. l'hat may not be the actual wording of tie clause, but it is to that
effect. If a man entered at the age, of twenty-flve years, and at the end of five years
the mortality of the association made it necessary to increase the rate, it could be
done every five years.

Byi the Hon. M1r. Cox:

Q. What would become'of it at the end of f[fteen years 1-A. The reason it was
called a fifteen-year policy was that on the frfth anniversary a bond or bond statement
was issued representing the amount to the credit of tiat individual policy in the re-
serve fund standing at that time to the credit of the policy, and at thc end of ten
years, from the date of tic issue of the bond it could be used as cash to pay dues and
asscssments, s0 you see, it was flfteen years frorn thc date of the original issue of a
policy before the reserve fund could be used to ielp to pay the assessments.

Q. Did the premiums cease at the end of frfteen years, or did the policy-holder
go on paying ?-A. H1e continued to pay. but he could use that certificate until it was
uscd up and then lie bad to go paying cash again.

Q. That is wiy you cail it a flfteen-year policy ?--A. Because at the end of fif-
teen years you could begin to use the fund in resrve and eaoh bond matured at the
end of ten years. That was the fifteen-year system.

STEVENSON
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By Mr. Aylteswbrth, K.O., Counsel for the M4ut uat Reserve Company:
Q. During Mr. Harper's incumbency, did he ever increase lie- assessments -on

these fifteen-year policies ?ý-A. Yes, there were increasesý made befoe Mr. Hlarper
died.

Q. Did he flot always maintain the original assessment as of the date of entry ?

A. As of the date of the age of entry ?
Q. Yes ?-A. No, I think it was during his lifetime that the increase was-made.
Q. When ?-A. I could not tell you that; it is so long ago.-
Q. Arn I flot right in understandlng that during iMr. Ilarper's time he kept the

uniforma rate of assessment applicable to the date of entry in ,respect to ail those fif-
teen-year policies ?-A. No.

Q. I arn wrong in that ?-A. You are wrong in that.
Q. You think, he made increoses ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were these frfteen-year policies, in your judgment asý an insurance man, on a

sound actuarial basis ?-A. I cannot say that I do think they were.
Q. It was proper insurance to get these transferred to the five-year policies if

you could induce holders to take them. ?-A. No, I do flot thmnk so, and as evidence
of that fact I did not change rny poicy.

Q. You retained the fiftcen-year policy ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which was more advantageous te the policy-holder ?-A. I prefer it.
Q. And it would have been good insurance on the part of the cornpany to get al

its holders it could te change from the ten-year te the five-year plan ?-A. Yes, I think
it was good for the company, but flot for the policy-holder.

.BV the Hon. Mr. Domville :
Q. Who is the company ?-A. The eompaay is the members, of course-by the

organization.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., C'ounsel for the Mutual Reserve Company:
Q.From the atandpoint of sound insurance it was a proper thing te get ail the

policy-holders te change their policies that he ceuld i-A. I think it gave the manage-
ment more power, and the polîcy-holder less to get the five-year policy.

The CuHntMMç.-He has not explained the -nature of the five-year policy.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Companyj
Q. You might let us know that. What were the five-year policies and the ten-

year policies ?-A. The ten-year policy was termed the ten-year distribution deposit
policy and to my mmnd it neyer conveyed any idea of the nature of the policy beyoncl
the fact that at the end of ten years you began to use your interest in the reserve
fund, if there was any, inatead of -waiting fifteen years ; that was the ten-year dis-
tribution deposit plan.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q.Was there, any réserve funds, ?-A. I< do flot thînk so. ieut'the ten yearm

çlosed on these policies after 1 left the company.

Ry the Hon. Mfr. 'Woodý:
Q. oud thee ,e -a 7reser've f uncd if ýytu- increased the premiunis -A. The re-

serve fund could be increased by incireasing the preniiums. <
SQ. 1 should suppose thgt to beeontrary to the pi'inoiple of assessnent. li not

the incteasing of thé premifims governed; by the death claims tlat may ýoceur >during7
the fivA years ?-A. Unless there is semée confliet in the constitu~tion, andi by-4aws, 1
shoul« eey it was.
STEVENSON
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Q. I do flot understand how there could be a reserve fund and at the saine time
increase the premiums.

By the lIon. Mr. Réique:
QI do not understand the flve-year plan. Explain it ?-A. The five-ycar plant,

as distinct front the :fifteen and ten-year, allowed for somes option at the expiration
of five years instead of waiting tili the expiration of the ten or of the fifteen-years.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney :
Q. What were the options?-A. I think if I remember correctly the option was

a surrcndcr valuo if there was anything to the credit of the policy at the end of five
years, and another one was that if the policy had beeli in force five years and lapsed
and death occurred withîn six months aftor the lapse the poliey woffld he carried any-
how; and the third provision was that alt the end of ten years, if the man carried the
policy ten years, mind you this is a five-year policy, but affer it had been in force ten
years and lapsed and the niember sliould die within the six inonths it would be a
valid policy.

By the Hon. M1r. Cox:
Q. What were the rates ?A. The original rates were cheaper on-the fifteen-

year plan at the date of entry; that is for certain ages, but I think at sorte ages the
fifteen-year plan was as bigli if not higlier than the ten ; but as a rule the rates on
the fifteeu-year plan at the age of entry were a little cheaper.

Q. But they were al] full if e policies? The policy called for payment as long
as the man lives ? There were certain conditions on the policies ?-A. Yes, which they
would avail themselves, of.

Q. Tbey were not terni policies in the ordinary sense of old line companies, as
tbey use the term t-A. No.

By the lion. Mr. Béiqie:

Q. Were the rates and the flve-year plan higber than on the ten ?-A. Yes.

By M1r. Aylesworth, K.C., (Jounsel for the Mut'ual Reserve Company:
Q. llow did the rates on the frteen year at the date of entry compare with, the

rate in old line companies per thousand-your rates with the rates of the old line
companies t-A. Well the rates were readjusted fromt time to time on the flfteen year
class. I do flot mean they were registered-although they were registered on the old
business. iN ew business was gotten where the rate for the admission of members was
higher than ycars before on the samne linet

Q. In the early days of the company whten the business was growing to the
dimensions yon described were your rates haîf as mnch as the old Eue companies ?-
A. Scarcely haîf at the very first.

By th e Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q. You sayr that they changed straiglit line policies at fixed assessments to a five-
year policy, and yon state in your evidence that when the agent did that hie was al-
lowed some 85 per cent, or soute, considerable commission, upon old policies as new
business, deducting that commission front the gross amount that the company would
receive for the five years, would the company make money by it after ail ?-A. Pos-
sibiy it would at certain ages. I could flot answer that question without data.

Q. Wonld there be any balance in the transaction for the company for a flve-year
poliey, paying out the, commission t-A. I think there wonld. I think there would
then be more money in the eompany than if the change had not been made.

'STEVENSON4
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Q. For the five years t-A. Yes, in the flve-year period.

By, Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Company:

Q.One question about the reserve fund, since that has been mentioned. Each
policy-holder, 1 suppose, had to contribute something towards a reserve fund, had lie
flot g-A. That was the original plan of the company.

Q. About how much precentage, on his premiuxn ?-A. A net 25 per cent,
Q. 25 per cent of the whole, net, went into the reserve fund ?-A. That was the

original plan. Understand that was subsequently modified by a resolution.
Q. But that was llarper's original plan ?-A. Yes.
Q. After the company had beeu going on for some fifteen years more, and it came

to the end of 1896, or thereabouts, had there been any proposal up to that time to
transfer £rom the fifteen-year plan to the five ?-A. Prior to 1896?

Q. Yes g-A. To the best of my recollection the transfer business started in 1896.
Q. The transferring started about thien, and can you tell me who was the or-

iginator of the idea ? After iMrs. Harper's death who was the mian that really started
that idea of the transferring being a good thing ?-A. iMy impression is that it was
Mr. Moton D. Moss.

Q. You think it was Moss ?-A. Yes, mind that is not positive, that is my im-
pression.

Q. Ha had been about a year with the company l-A. You say ha came in in 1895.
I thought he came in about the flrst of 1896.

Q.And you understood that was Mr. Moss's idea ?-A. Yes.
Q.Do you know who proposad it in the executive ?-A. I do not. I was not a

mfmber of à,e t - ecutive committee.
Q. It was naturally a thing Moss would suggest to Mr. Wells. iMr. Wells was his

inunediate superior at that time, was lie not ?-A. Moss was in very close relationship
witli President Burnham at that tisse, and I suppose if lie had any suggestions to make
lie would make tham to Burnham, but I was flot a member of the executive com-
mittee and cannot say as to that.

Q. Were these transfers permitted without medical examination e-A. I think
in sanie cases they were.

Q. Wliat was the regulation on the subject ?-A. The ragulation was at first, I
thinli, that they required an examination.

Q.A new medical examination ?-A. Yes.
Q.And it would have been a slightly higlier, perhaps considerably higlier, pre-

nilum?-A. Yes.
Q. And would not the effect of tliat change be to relieve the association of these

bonds or bond statements that were outstanding in respect of each one of those fifteen-
year policies ?-A. It should have been, and I think it was.

Q. So that it was a very beneficial change to the association, looking at the
association as tlie opposite party to tlie contract from the policy-holders ?-A. Weil,
it was liard to say that it was beneficial to the association and treat the member as
flot a part of thie association.

Q. But there is a contract between the individual policy-holder and the general
body i-A. Yes.

Q. Under which the general body is to pay his dlaim when his policy falis in?~-
A. Yes.

Q. Looking at it £rom a standpoint that the man was to, pay or the people were to
pay, that, change was very benaficial to theni ?-A. I think in the majority of cases it
wés. It enabled the company ta get more money.

Q. Would it have been possible for the association, for the company, to have
prevented their policy-holders £romi making those transfers practically if the policy-
holder wanted to ?--A. Could the company have prevented himf
ýSTWf»NSO'N
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Q.Yes ?-A. I sliould think the company could.Q.Supposing a policy-holder was convinced hie would rather have the new policycould hie flot put in an application as of the age be then was, undergo his examinations,and take out bis new pohicy and let the old one lapse ?-A. Not always, because,aithougli there was an examination in a great many cases, and perhaps in most cases,there were transfers made which. showed the risk would flot be accepted and stampedbecause the application was approved for transfer only.Q. Take the case of a man who could pass a new medical examination, the com-pany would be powerless to prevent him taking out a new policy and letting bis old onelapse ?-A. Certainly.
Q. And the company would have ail the advantage to itself of new business bygetting its policy-holders trans-ferred ?-A. But that was flot new business.Q. But it would have ail the advantage of new business ?-A. Yes, by increasing

the income.
Q. You think it was bad insurance business to pay these commissions you havespoken of in respect of these transfers ?-A. I think, under the constitution, it waswrong.
Q. Not bad insurance ?-A. No.Q. Good insurance but wrong under the constitution ?-A. Yes.Q. And that is why you thouglit you would sacrifice your self-respect if you sub-mitted to it ?-A. Not in that one transaction alone but others.Q. Because you wanted to adhere to the constitution ?-A. I thouglit it was riglit.Q. Let me understand how much commission this was when there was a transfer ;that 65 per cent you speak of went to the local agent who got the policy-holder to makethe transfer ?-A. Yes.
Q. And it was 65 per cent of what ?-A. 0f the first year's premium on the newpolicy.
Q. Which would be about how much on a thousand dollars ?-A. It would dependaltogether on age.
Q. Take an average, take a man thirty-five or thirty, what is an average ?-A. Onthat plan a policy, I suppose, about $20.
Q. The first premium would be about $20 ?-A. Yes.Q. So that a local agent would get $13 on the transaction for a thousand dollartransfer ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then in addition to that there was an over-riding of 20 per cent that went toMr. Moss ?-A. Yes.
Q. Or four dollars more ?-A. Yes.
Q. And that was out of the first premium only ?-A. Yes.Q. After that no percentage to either agent or Mr. Moss ?-A. Yes, renewal com-mission.
Q. Which would le paid whetlier there was a trýnsfer or no transfer ?-A. Yes.Q. So that this transfer commission which you think was wrong to take out of themortuary account consisted of the 65 per cent and the 20 per cent on the first pre-mium ?-A. Yes, allowing the last bi-monthly caîl on the policies.Q. But there were not percentages on two ?-A. No, but there were 65 per centallowed the agent to secure the business and an over-riding commission of 20 per centand the agent who secured the transfer was allowed the amount of the last mortuarycaîl paid on the old policy.
Q. In addition to lis 65 per cent ?-A. If hie got the full premium from tlie man.Q. Let us understand what you are stating: Supposing a man was insured for$1,000 on the fifteen-year plan and he made up his mind to transfer and take, a five-yeaxpolicy instead, while lie was under the fifteen-year plan, how much would his preminjbe, supposing lie was a man of thirty-five ?-A. Well, it lias been so long since I liaveseen those old rates and they have changed so often that I cannot, tell.

STEVENSON
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QGive us a concrete case ?-A. I should think on the old plan it would be about
thiir-- ý n to flfteen dollars.

Ç, That would be for the year or for each two months of the year ?-A. It would
be tL< annual premium.

Q.And for two months lie would pay a littie over two dollars I-A. Yes.
Q.That would be lis payment before the transfer I-A. Yes.
Q.What would be bis payment after the transfer I-A. Well, if he peid twenty

dollars a tbousand-
Q. I meen the same amount of insuran.-? -A. It would be $20 a year, or three

dollars and something for t-wo months.
Q. If I understand, the agent would get 65 per cent of the new premium of three

dollars, and iMoss 20 per cent ?A. What is that t
Q. The local agent would get 65 per cent of the first year or first peyment I-A.

The first year on the trensfer business.
Q. On the transfer you get 65 per cent of the twenty dollars ?-A. Yes.
Q. And Moss 20 per cent?-A. Yes.
Q. And would either of them get anything in addition to that l A. After the

policy bad been credited, then the transfer agent would be ellowed the amount of the
lest mortuery eall paid on the policy.

Q. Is that the same agent ?-A. No, the local agent.
Q. The local agent would get the same of the two payments vayable on the lest

bi-monthly call A. Yes.
Q.The whole of that ?-A. Less the cost of collecting.
Q.Thet is the systemï A. Yes.
Q.That did not affect Canadien business et ail, did it ?-A. Whether there were

any transfers in Canada or not, I do not know.
Q. Do you know it didn't?-A. I did nlot know.
Q. iDon't you know that Mr. iMoss lied nothing to do with Canadien business l-

A. I know thet Mr. iMoss lied notbing to do with Canadien business.
Q. iMr. Moss's 20 per cent neyer cerne out of the Canadien policy ?A. No.
Q. Whether there were eny trensfers of Canadien policies wliich paid Canadien

local agents 65 per cent, you cennot sey ?-A. 1 cennot say, but I think trensfers were
made bere, aithougli Mr. Moas bad nothin1g to do with them.

Q. Do you know whether the cornpany kept its Canadien business distinct from
îts United States business ?-A. I think tbey did in the aetuery depertment.

Q. It would be proper insurence business to do so ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tbey kept tlieir Canadien income invested in Canedien benks-on deposit in

Canadien benks-and peid out Canadien deetli daimas by chieques on Canadien banks I
-A. I cennot answer tliet, beceuse I bad nothing to do with tbat.

Q. You told us yesterdey, if I understood you correctly, tliat you thouglit the
gross emount, the aggregete amount of transfers sncb as you describe, would be
twenty to twenty-five million ?-A. That is my impression, about thet amount.

Q. Did you ever meke any exemination or calculation up to tliet time I A. I kept
a kind of record e long wliile ago-I cannot sey liow long-and it is from my recollec-
tion of tbet tliat I put it at that amount.

Q. It lied ceased absolutely before you left I-A. It wes slupposed to liave ceased,
but I tliink the lest trensfer mey bave been made before I left.

Q. But, so fer as you know, it was a tliing probibited before you lef t -A. Yes,
quite frequently an agent would say: 'This transfer was in negotiation at that time!

Q. And many a local agent would say: "If you don't do this, this man will dro-p
bis policy and go to some other company V -A. Possibly.

Q. Comapetition was pretty keen in life insurence I-A. Yes, always lias been.'
Q. This, business of transferring wes practicelly et an end'before «you left in

January, 1899 I-A. Practically at an end, to tbe best of my knowledge and belief.
1Q. And your idea of the~ amount of it was over tWenty million, possibly twenty-

five million"i-. That is my recollection.
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Q. ilave you neyer been told that by actual compu*tation the amount is ell,-
701,000 ?-A. 1 have heard a statement of that kind was made by the cornpany.Q. It does flot corne to you at ail as a surprise ?-A. No, it does flot corne now as
a surprise but it came as a surprise then.

Q. And that statement was made under oath by Mr. Burnham and iMr. Eldridge
more than four years ago in answer to your charges before the Insurance Department
in New York. ?-A. I do flot kznow when it was Mnade but 1 know it was made.Q. And instead of being twenty-flve millions it was much less than haif of it.
N'ow, to illustrate the difference that change made to the company, give me an idea,
if yon ean, what the gross prernium on that trausferred isurance would be bcforo
the transfer-gross premiuins per annum ?-A. It is impossible for me to give you
that.

Q. Quite?-A. Quite.
Q. 1 arn told that, i11 that answer that I rnad, iMr. Burnharn and iMr. Eldridge

stated under oath the gross prerniurns before the transfer were $202,167.79. Did you
Pver hear that before ?-A. I do flot know that T can recaîl that.

Q. Can you give any idea what the gross premiums on the same insurance was
ifter the transfer ?-A. I cannot.

Q. I arn told they then stated under oath that it was $413,314.53 afterwards, or
an annual gain to the company by the transfer of over $215,000. Would it surprise
you at ail to think that was so?-A. Wefl, yes, it would surprise me to think it was
as much as that.

Q. You would flot think it would make that difference ?-A. No, just as I was
surprised when I heard it was under eleven millions when it was rny honest convic-
tion it was more.

Q. If it were twenty-five millions the gain to the company, instead of being two
hundred and flfteen thousand a year, would be considerably more ?-A. Yes.

Q. The reason why you resigned, amongst other things, was the objection to
taking this money ont of the mortuary f und ?-A. Therc were various objections.

Q. But the misuse of the mortuary furid, was an objection ?-A. Yes.
Q. By taking out the commission to the agent ?-A. Yes.
Q. Although it was productive of snch tremendous advantage to the company,

viewing it as a company?-A. From the standpoint they rnay have regarded it but
in rny judgrnent it did not do away with the wrongful use of the money that had gone
into the rnortuary fund.

Q. You thought it was a thing your rnanhood could not endure ?You say thatthcy had a systcrn of keeping policies on the books after the transfer for a while. For
how long would you say ?-A. Well, to the best of rny recollection there were no flxed
dates for the cancellation clerk to go through, but there were long intervals.

Q. How long ?-A. I suppose two or three tirnes a year, probably.
Q. Two or three tirnes a year it was the duty of some man to go through thie

books and note them up to date?-A. Yes.
Q. As to policies that had been transferred-is that it ?-A. Policies that had

lapsed.
Q. Old policies that had been transferred to the new ones ?-A. Yes.
Q. And your objection in that regard was that that was not; donc day by day ?-

A. Nat that it was flot done day by day-that was flot necessary.
Q. llow often would you have thought it was necessary ?-A. I think about once

a week.
Q. The clerk ouglit to have gone throughi two hundred millions of insurance ?-A.

No, flot on that.
Q. Wonld he flot have to go through the whole ?-A. No, not if he got the num-

bers of the policies.
Q. Single out each policy you mean ?-A. Yes.

STEVENSON



64 SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE POSITION OPF

4 EOWARD Vil., A. 1904
Q. Who was in charge of the cancellation department ?-A. That w'as always

done by some, one in the actuary's department; I think a man named'Champion.
Q. And your criticism in that regard was that that was flot done enough 1-A.

Yes.
Q. That would affect nobody, I suppose, but the Insurance Department, would

it I-A. How do you mean I
Q. Supposing, as a resuit of not cancelling, their volume of business on foot at

the time of any report to the department seemed larger than it really was by a few
thousand, would that affect anybody prejudicially I-A. It was misleading.

Q. llow I-A. The volume of business in force mucli larger.
Q. It seemed to give them a better advertising hold on the public than their com-

petitors I-A. It would have that effect, I suppose.
Q. It would flot mislead any policy-holder, I suppose ?-A. I think it would, if

it was said that the volume of business arnounted to, so much, and it was really less,
it would affect him.

Q. Would he care whether it was $220,000,000, or $221,0O0,00 -A. I think he
would.

Q. You think the extra million would make a difference I-A. Oýze million would
make a little di:fference, of course.

Q. If that was a fraud on anybody it was a fraud on the Insurance Department
to whom the reports were made I-A. It was an imposition on the Insurance Depart-
ment and a deception to the public.

Q. One would think that it would be the surest thing, if it were true, that Vand-
erpoel, the examiner of the department whule the whole thing was fresh, would con-
demn. llow would you reconcile such a course of business with his report that hç
found nothing marring the integrity of the man in charge I-A. It is hard to reconcile
that statement of his with the feets.

Q. liard to reconcile it with your evidence I-A. And the facts.
<Q. You are not in a position to say that there was a single dollar of insurance in

respect of which what you say was true within Canada I-A. I arn not prepared to
say positively that there was, but I believe the transfers were made in Canada.

Q. You think there must have been I-A. Yes.
Q. Then a word about these delinquent policies-that is policies that were in

arrear-how long did you let them run I-A. That was also under the direction of the
actuarial department.

Q. The same man you mentioned I-A. Yes, I think he was chief clerk at that
tîne.

Q. Was that just in the same course of business, that he would let those pile up
for two or three or four or five months before he would go through them I-A. No,
my recollection of that is that they were not cancelled until they were in arrears,
either five or six bi-monthly calis, but that is simply my recollection.

Q.You think tbey were allowed to run for twelve montbs I-A. Yes.Q.And were they during that time hiable to be reinstated I-A. It was possible
for them to be reinstated under conditions.

Q. Supposing you bail been manager, what would you have thought the proper
course in regard to such policies in respect of which the holder was behind I You
would flot cancel thern instantaneously, would you ?-A. My judgment would be that
they be not reported as business in force.

Q. What should be done with them I Put them aside in the suspense account I
They migbt be ini force the next day I-A. And after a policy had lapsed for eleven
months they might have made some report-I think the first report where tbey made
that correction, which they should have done ail along, was the report of the 1898 busi-
ness rendered in 18R99. I'hey made a foot-note explaining that certain numbers of
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policies were in suspense or on which. the cornpany was flot liable or sornething of that
kind,

Q. It is ail a inatter of degree? You would flot think it right to write off in the
report a pohicy that was a rnonth in arrear l-A. Well, that would seem a hardship,
but I should think under the requirernents it should hc donc if the days grace had
been allowed to pass.

Q. You think that as soon as the thirty days were up that should have been
struck off altogether, although the chances are that sucli a policy would be re-instated
-A. Yes, it would look to work a hardship.

Q. 1 understood you to say ini your testimony that this very course of procedure
was recognized as proper by the Insurance Departrnent of the state ?-A. Yes. There
is where I wanted to make a correction.

Q. What did you want to change ?-A. I wanted to cail attention to the foot-note
in the report to the commissioner representing the twenty millions of business being
really flot in force. I forget the wording, but it said it was in suspense or sornething
of that kind. That the prerniums were flot paid.

Q. In the report there was a foot-note pointing to this very state of things ?-
A. Yes, but that was not put in tili after rny severance of my confection with the
cornpany in January, 1899. This was in the 1898 report.

Q. And if that foot-note had appeared in the reports of the earlier years when you
were there, it would have rernoved ail objections on that score ?-A. It would have
rernoved the rnost serious part of it. You see there was nothing prior to that time to
caîl the attention of the Insurance iDepartrnent to the fact that there was that volumeý
of business.

Q. That brings it back to the same thing as these transfers; tbe complaint is that
it rnisled or tended to rnislead the deparfmnent, but the departrnent does not seern to have
feit that it was misled at ail wl-en it came to .n in- estigat'on. These charges were
a part of what you laid before the department, were they not ?-A. Sorne of the
charges.

Q. But these very ones with regard to the delinquent insurance and transfers not
being returned ?-A. I do not knGw whether tEe delinquent insurance-

Q. Was it not cne of your complaints that policies were kept on the books after
transfers or after lapsing ?-A. Very likely it was. I have not seen a copy of it for
sorne tirne. I know there were a nlumber of charges I made.

Q. If I understood you correýýtly you said that policies were issued on which the
revenue stamp was not placed while the revenue starnp was required. Is that the corn-
plaint, or wbat is it that you complain of that is wrong ?-A. That is one of the
features of the case, flot that the starnps were not put on but as evidence of the fact
in rny judgrnent that it was flot bona fide business. The requirernents of the law were
flot followed in the starnping of the policies. They were neyer signed by the officiais
and were neve~r sent out of the office, but one of the assistant secretaries told me that
they bcd been instructed after writing the policy to send them up to Dr. Bowden.

Q. Who was he ?-A, A medical director.
Q. You put in a memo. of haif a dozen or so bere wbich you took at the tirne and-

which, if I understood you correctly, were policies that were regular on their face
except that they bcd not the revenue stamps, but wbich you either suspected or kriew
were flot bona fide policies, were llctitious policies; arn I right in 'that ?-A. Well, it
was fietitious business, not fictitious policies. Applications had corne in of the busi-
ness.

Q. 0f living men ?-A. Yes, but there was no intention of delivering policies.
Q. Do you mean to say you were not going to insure the applicant ?-A. That the

-iplicarst did flot make application for a policy in good faith.
Q. Do you mean a man wonld pay bis prernium and not intend to take bis

policy ?-A. There is not one in a do7en that pays the prerniurn before hie gets the
policy.
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Q. As your idea was the man neyer intended to take out his policy at ail ?-

A That was my ides.
Q. What would be the object ?-A. It would be simply to swell the amount of the

business.
Q. Would the agent get any rnoney out of it ?-A. No.
Q. The man would make no payment, but* you would go through the form of

writing out a policy which was neyer intended to be effective ?-A. Yes, that is, it.
Q. Would you people in the head office know that was being doue ?-A. I sus-

pected that was being doue with that batch. of business.
Q. You suspected it individually ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did any of the other officers of the society suspect it ?-A. I do flot know.

Mr. Jones asked me about it.
Q. Who is he f-A. Assistant secretary.
Q. 11e asked you about some ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you took note of these because you thought the applicants neyer intended

to take out their policies ?-A. Yes.
Q. iDid you look to see if they had ?-A. I looked at the books shortly after the

close of December, 1898, to see if the policies had been entered in the policy register
or assessment register, possibly both, and I found they had been included and they
were not marked cancelled or anything and stood there apparently as good insurance.
I went to the same man, Champion I think it was, and asked hima if he had made bis
footing for the business for 1898.

Q. For the purpose of the return ?-A. For the purpose of making bis report to
the Insurance !Department. He said he had it in rougli form. I said then, 'What
would be the volume of it V' and he gave me that, and that included seven policies.
A short while after that, but before the 25th of January, I looked at the same docu-
ments again that I had referred to before, and these policies had been stamped as flot
taken, which means that they were neyer in force. Up to the time I left there they
were neyer stamped with the revenue stamp, and neyer signed, up to the time I left,
hy either Lewis Jones, the secretary who signed the policies, or the -other man.

Q. The afflxing the revenue stamp would be the Iast thing before the policy left
the office ?-A. Yes, if they were signed.

Q. And have you any ground for thinking that these were not policies which,
when they were written, were intended in good faith to be issued and the man refused
to take them ?-A. About that tîme-

Q. I am askîng if you had any grounds for suspicion ?-A. I amn giving reasons.
Q. You say you have ?A. Yes.
Q. Let us have thea ?-A. A man would put in an application for a large policy

and things would be asked as to bis application and su on, and it would be a good
way to find out about a man's position, to find out bis occupation and where he lives
and su on, and if you will refer to those policies they were large amounts, and I had
some reasons for thinking from the arnounts

Q. In each case you have some reason for suspicion ?-A. Yes, what the reasons
were I do not know.

Q.You cannot identify the reasons ?-A. No.
Q.Let me know something of the routine of business in issuing the policy. An

application would, come in from an agent to the agency department ?-A. Yes..
ultinately.

Q. Over which Mr. Wells presided ?-A. Yes.
Q. What would his department do with it ?-A. It would be recorded there in

the various books.
Q. Then to what department would it go ?-A. It would go to the medical de-

partrnent; dîfferent offices have~ different plans. My recollection -of the plan in vogue
at the time I left I am giving yuu. It would corne into the agent's department and
be properly recorded there, and then go to the medical department for review by thxe
STEVENSON
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medical director, and then if approved by the medical director and some other officer-
1 believe at that time it required another officer-and it would go then to the policy
department.

Q. Who had charge of that ?-A. R. L. Jones.
Q. Who was hie ?A. Assistant secretary.
Q. And that was your department and his ?-A. It had been mine up to about two

years before that, but prior to that time I simply got my reports fromn him.
Q. At the time these policies, whicli you regarded as suspicious, were written, a

it flot in your department to write those very policies ?-A. It was in the department.
Q. And on being written they would be stamped with the signature of the presi-

dent by a stamp ?A. Yes.
Q. The president himseff woiild not, with bis own pen, sign the policies ?-A.

No, I think a stamp was iied by a private secretary.
Q. If there was any writing of fictitious policies for the purpose of swelling the

volume of business, tell me whose interest it was that that should take place other than
the interest of your own departmnent and Wells's department ?-A. For two years prior
to my leaving the company the issue of the policies under R. L. Jones relieved me of
all personal respoasibilities in reference to them, except that I got from Jones a daily
report of the number of applications and the amount of insurance, recorded it in the
book and sent it up to the president's office every morning.

Q. I am asking you to tell me any department of that company's business whose
intcrcst was forwarded in any way by this allcgcd flctitious insurance other thon your
department and iMr. Wells' department ?-A. M~y department was not favoured at ahl.

Q. Was it in the interest of the agents to have a big volume of business ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was it in the interests of anybody else 'ý-A. The management of the company.
Q. The general company at large ?-A. Yes.
Q. And particularly the agents' department,?-A. Yes, I suppose it would be fair

to say that the agency department would be benefited more by a big volume of business
than any other.

Q. You told iMir. Coster yesterday that your opinion was there was nonie of them
in any Canadian case ?-A. INone of what

Q. None of that fictitious insurance ?-A. I do not; remember that I told hirn that.
I cannot recali it.

Q. What do you say now, apart altogether from what you may or may not have said
yesterday ? Do you think there was any case of that kind in connection with any Cana-
dian business ?-A. The question neyer occurred to me before, but I should hardly
think it was. I think most of it was dones by a few agents.

Q. Can you tell me, apart from whatever you may have said yesterday, whether
there were any cases of that sort, fictitious policies, as you consider, from any Cana-
dian agency ?-A. I cannot recaîl any.

Q. You say that you found that Moss hiad embezzled ?-A. I did not use that word.
Q. That hie had taken to lis own use premiums that ought to have gone into the

treasury of the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. When did you find that ont ?-A. I could not tell you that date ; I do not;

know. I think it was in 1897.
Q. After hie had been with the company a year or more ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you, as a faithful servant, promptly notifled your superior oficer ?-A. Yes.
Q. And he said to colleet it from him ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you made your best effort to colleot it in the interests of the company ?-

A. Yes.
Q. And found it quite impossible ?-A. Yes.
Q. It was money paid in good f aith by policy-holders ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you had to credit their policies with the payment I-A. Yes.
Q. And you did so ?-A. Yes.
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Q. You could do nothing but charge it to Moss ?-A. The only thing that I sawxay way clear to do then, and ail I see my way clear to do now, was to do as the presi-dent ordered, credit the policies and charge Moss with the amount.Q. It was the only thing you could do ?-A. Yes.
Q. If you had been president, you could flot have donc anything better ?-A. Un-kss I prosecuted iMocs.
Q. Hie wus a man wlio had been tlirougli that experience before ?-A. So I heard.Q. What lias become of him now ?-A. Hie lias gone to, Europe.Q. We are flot liable to se him here ?-A. I do flot know. Hie is liable to turnup at any time.

iMr. COSTE.-lie is in New York now.
By the lion. Mr. Beique:

Q. You stated that you had given evidence before iri connection witli the businessof the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. On wliat occasion was it ?-A. I eau flot give them. in the order that theygo. I remember I was a witness in a case in which. Mr. Wells figured first.Q. What was that suit of Wells' about ?-A. I do flot rememaber the first case. 1was a witness in the suit against i9atterson, or l>attcrson's suit against the Company,I forget which, I think it was a suit against him.Q. When the investigation was made by iMr. Vanderpoel ?-A. That was beforethe insurance department commissioner.
Q. You appeared before the insurance conuissioner ?-A. Yes.Q. And made your statemnent ?-A. Yes, verbally.Q. You were examined by tliem as to your kno-wledge to the facts ?-A. No, I wasflot examined formally by tlie inýsurance agent.Q. The statement was made in writing ?-A. Yes, filed witli tliem.Q. Were any witnesses examined before them. do you know ?-A. I do flot thirikthere were any examined on those charges.
Q. You made a careful statement in writing and you filed it before them ?-A.

Yes.
Q. Giving ail information that you thouglit pertinent to the investigation ?-A.Yes, 1 gave what I considered the best points.

By the Chairman:
Q. W as tliat statement on oath ?-A. To the insurance department ?Q. Yes ?-A. I think it was ; I do flot know, it has been a long time since'I haveseen a copy of it, 'but I think it was.

By the Hon. Mr. Beique:
Q. You said that in 1899 IMr. Wells wanted to displace the then president of thecompany at the election and replace him. by General James ?-A. Yes.Q. Was there any organization prepared in that connection ?-A. No ; no or-ganization at ail.
Q. I, suppose proxies were canvassed for ?-A. I neyer knew of one that was can.vassed for by Mr. Wells at that time or ýany tîme previous.Q. But no special preparations were made for the purpose ?-A. ]3eyond the in-terviews lie and I had from time to time.Q. IDid you take any part in trying to bring tlie change about ?-A. I did not.Itwas flot a tiine to do it.
Q. Why ?-A. It was near the annual meeting and I understood there were goingto be changes made at the annual meeting-thie very changes that I was in favour of.

By the lion. Mr. MoMullen:
Q. In connection with that embezzlement by MVr. iMoËs how long was thatbefore you left the company ?-A. WeII, as I said, to the best of my recollection it was1897 that it occurred, and I left tlie Company in January, 1899.
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Q. Mr. MeIss was in the employ of the company in 1897, when he made that mis-
appropriation or embezzlement ?-A. Ycs.

Q. Did he continue in the employ of the company ?-A. 11e did for some time
alter that.

Q. llow long ?-A. I think be either resigned or was dismised, I never knew
absolute]y which it was, in July, 1898.

Q. That would bie a year alter ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you say you made the president aware of the fact that a misappropriation

Lad taken place by one of the servants of the company ?-A. I did, but you use a term
I did not use. You say embezzled. I think it is only fatir to state that Mr. Moss had
no0 right to deposit that money i11 bis private bank or toe redit the policy-holders;' it
veas bis clerk, a man named Evans, kept a record and deposited it, and Mr. Meoss had
not two cents icft, and when I went to him and told him that these policies represent-
ing from fffteen. to twenty thousand in money had been treated in this way lie said:
' Credit the policies and charge my account.' That was after I had asked him. for th3
money. The president told me to go and get the money from him.Q. Was he aware it was deposited to bis account ?-A. I suppose so. Evans was
bis right hand man, and deposited the moneys for him, and I got track of it from
Evans.

Q Was there any routine through which the moneys that came into the hands of
the company for assessmeats passed ?-A. This was not assessment money.

Q. What was it ?-A. Premium money on the first policy.

By Mr. Aylesworth, Counsel :
Q. A large percentage of which would be basses on property ?-A. Yes. Give the

devil bis due, if you will pardon the term, a large part of that money was bis due ; that
is why I say you use too strong a term in saying embezzled.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen :
Q.Was ail the money which came in put to his credit ?-A. No, the soliciting

agent was entitled to 65 per cent; well, aine out of ten of the soliciting agents will take
out their 65 per cent wben they send in their money.

By the Hon. Mr. MciSweeney :
Q. This is the first premium ?-A. Yes, and it its safe to assume in nearly every

case that the agent had taken what lie was entitled to and the balance was what wentt-. Moss and the company. But wben the money came in, Mosss department received
it and credited it to Moss' account, and there was no entry on the bôoks at the time to
show what policy was intended to lie covered by that. When I saw the presideni and
lie told me to, follow the matter up and get the money from Moss, I bad to refer to tbis
memorandum book whicb Mr. Evans agreed to give me; in fact, lie saw it was eitlier
an error or something wrong, and did ail lie could to help mue trace tlie funda.Q. IMoss did ?-A. No, Evans, bis clerk; but tracing the money was not getting
it back, and the vouchers were drawn creating new policies and cliarging to iMoss's
account, and wlien I went and told tlie president that I had traced the matter and had
asked Moss for the money, that Moss liad told me just to charge it up to lis account,
then the president said-tie substance of it was-' the policies have got to be credited;
credit the policies and charge to Moss's account.' I think lie said Moss's account was
perfectly good for it.

By Mr. Aylesworth, (Jounsel:
Q.That was done ?-A. Yes.
Q.And lie had an open account with the company ?-A. Yes.
Q.Do you know liow it stood at the end of the year, whetlier tlie balance was in

bis favour or against him, ?-A. I do not know, but my impression is the company had
a balance against him.
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Q. You cannot Say about that ?-A. I arn quite sure the company had a balance

against him.
Q. You think when lie left lie owed the company ?-A. Yes

By the lion. Mr. Beique :
Q. ]Jid you make a statement before the Attorney General about the investigation

of the coinpany's affairs ? The Attorney General made an investigation of the comn-
pany's affairs ?-A. 11e neyer made any investigation.

Q. Hie was asked to ?-A. Hie was asked to take some action against iMr. Burnliam
-for the removal of Mr. Burnham.

Q. And lie neyer made any investigation at all ?-A. No.
Mir. AYLESWOTH.-There was a formai application made to bim by iMr. Wells andMir. Stevenson and an answer put in on behaîf of the company's management, and it

stood for consideration for some months, and then lie refused to act on the application.

By the lion. Mr. Beique:
Q. 1 want to know if you liad filed with the Attorney General any statement ?-A.Yes, there was a written statement containing certain charges, which was filed witli the

Attorney General.
Q. And amongst others, one prepared by you ?-A. Yes.

MEr. AYLESWORTH.-An oral argument by counsel.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Look at thîs document; is that a report which bas been alluded to in your cross-

examination ?-A. Yes. (Exh ibit 6.)

Mr. COSTE.-With reference to the question that was raised in the cross-examina-
tion, I would eall the attention of the committee to page 9, section 1 of this report,and page 10, section 5, which is the report of the examination of the affairs of the
Miutual Reserve, wbîcb lias been referred to. It bas been staied that the charges

referred to were investigated there. These sections read as follows
At a hearing beld before me at the Insurance I)epartment, the officers of theassociation and thieir counsel reviewed in detail the examiner's report for the purpose

of requesting certain modifications to it. I believe it eminently proper at this time to,discuss certain suggestions then made and to give my conclusions upon the saine.
The material points raised were as follows :

1. It was claimed that reference should have been made by tlie examiner to thefact that this examination was primarily at the request of tlie officers of tlie associa-
tion, and secondly, because of certain allegations made against its officers and its
management by certain diseharged officers and employees.

.The examination was contemplated by tlis department before tlie request wasmade by the officers of the association. The allegations referred to did flot cause the
,examination to be made. I had determined -upon samne prior to the fifing of any
charges.

Tlie examiner was commissioned to make an examination of the association's
affairs. 11e confined bis report to matters relating to its condition and did not gointo the matter of tlie charges referred to, but derived the information embraced in
bis report from the books and records of tlie association.

5. Objection is made to the comparison as between the insurance and membersliip
in force December 31, 1896, and the insurance and membership in force May 16, 1899.Tlie dlaim is made tliat the insurance in force and membership of December 31, 1896,
includes a large suspended membership, representing a large amount of insurance.
wliile the figures given as of May 16, 1899, were for membership and insurance
actually in force at that date.
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The' association's sworn annual statement to the Insurance Department for
December 31, 1896, gives the number of policies and amount of insurance in force at
the figures quoted in the examiner's report.

IMr. AYLESWORTH.-Tba't is flot a report, but a comment on a report.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood :
Q.What do 1 u-nderstand you was the amount of Mr. Moss's misappropriation of

funds, the gross amount ?-A. It was somewhere between $15,000 and $22,000. 1
think it was a littie less than $20,000; it wns over *1-5,000, and I think less than
$20,000.

Q. Did that include the twenty per cent lie was entitled to ?-A. Yes.
.'£ie 35 per cent of the premiums came into his hands ?-A. Yes.
Q.And lie was entitled to 20 per cent of that ?-A. Not 20 per cent of that, but

20 per cent of the hundred.
Q. This $15,000 to $22,000 represented the 35 per cent ?-A. It represented more

in some cases~, because some agents got less and it represented less tharn the 35 per
cent, and some agents at that time wcre retaining temporarily money they were
not entitled to hold.

Q.But it included bis 20 per cent ?A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeneyi

Q. It was really only a disputedl account ?-A. I do not think you could cali it
that.

Q. Misappropriation ?-A. I think it was a temporary misappropriation of funds.

The committee.adjourned tili 10 a.m. to-morrow.

OTTAWA, June 17, 1904.

GEORGE ID. ELDRIDGE, sworn; examined by iMr. Coster, counsel for the committee.

Q. You reside in New York ?-A. Yes.
Q. And what position do you bold in the Mutual Reserve t-A. Vice-president and

actuary.
Q. llow long have you been with the companyl-A. Since May 21, 1894.
Q. When did the late president, IMr. ilarper, die ?-A On July 2, 1895.
Q. Look at this document. Did you prepare that, or help prepare it ?-A. I helped

prepare it.
Q. Is it signed by you ?-A. It is.
Q. And also signed by Mr. Frederick A. Burnham, the president of the company ?

-A. Yes.,
Q.And by whorn else ?-A. Charles W. Camp, secretary.
Q.And when was that prepared, and when was it signed t-A. On or about the l6th

day of May.
Q. Last gm-A. Yes.
Q. And copies of that were sent by the company to the members of the Senate of

C anada ?-A. They werc sent to Ottawa for that purpose, and I presume they were go
delivered.

(Stateinent made to Senate by Mintual Reserve Life Association. (Exhibit 7.)
ELDRIDGE
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4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904Q.What other associations have been reinsured by the Mutual Reserve sinoe youhave been actuary or vice-president 1-A. The Provincial Provident Institution, of St.Thomas, Ont.
Q. In what year was that ?-A, In 1896, 1 think; and partially the risks of theNorth Western Life Assurance Company, of Chicago, Illinois.Q. ]low much business did you reinsure from the Provincial Provident ?-A.About twelve million dollars.
Q. And from the North Western Life 1-A. Well, the actual amount of businessthat went on to the books £rom the North Western Life was somewhere between twenty-five and thirty million.
Q. Was that ail paid for business 1-A. My impression is that twenty-live to thirtymillion dollars of the Northi Western was the business that actually made a paymentto the Mutual iReserve. I speak £rom memory as to those figures. As to the ProvincialProvident, the business that was counted as transferred £rom that was the businessthat actuaily paid wbat was known as the transferring assessment, the one in July,1896.
Q. And was that pIaced on the books of the Mutual Reserve 1-A. It became withthe payment of the transferring assessment, a portion of the business of the IMutualReserve, and counted as such.Q. At page 31 of this statement, made by the company to the Senate, I find thesewords, which I should like you to, explain:

'It is entirely proper for the present management, assailed as it is, in its person-ality, to point out that of the assessment business in Canada but $2,500,000, which islargely business reinsured from another company, has been placed upon its booksunder its management.'
What do you mean by that 1-A. I mean, that of the business in force at the pre-sent time, the $8,000,000, about $2,500,000 is business that is placed on the books underthe present management.
Q. And yet you tell me you got how much from the Provincial Provident 1-A.About twelve million.
Q. And you placed that on the books 1-A. Yes.Q. And yet you only placed $2,500,000 ?-A. I said that of the business now inforce about $2,500,000 was ail the business placed on the books by this management.Q. That of the assessment business in Canada, but $2,500,000, and which is largelybusiness reinsured fromn another company, has been placed upon its books under itsmanagement ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is your explanation I There is only two milîlion, five hundred thousandin force now ?-A. 0f the eight million now in force, $2,500,000 is the business placedunder the present management.
Q. So that ail the business you got fromn the Provincial Provident is gone t-A.Oh, not ail of it; a portion of it is in force still.Q. I will cail your attention to page Il of this statement submitted to the Senateby the company, section 5, wbich reads as follows:
It is absolutely faise, that the former president, Mr. E. B. Harper, held a con-tract which gave him, either temporarily or permanently, 20 per cent of the premiumsof the Company, or any other percentage of the premiums of the Company?' Is thatcorrect 1-A. It is.

Q. Have you got that contract I-A. I have flot.Q. Where is it 1-A. I presume it is in the possession of Mrs. Harper.Q. Have you ever seen it 1-A. I have.
Q. Have you a copy of it 1-A. I have not.Q. On the samne page, a few lines further, I find the statement: 'It is absolutelyunfrue that any portion of this compensation ever accrued to the present president ofthe company, or was ever drawn by him.' Ta that correct 1-A. It is.Q. Now, Mr. Eldridge, you remember the case of the people on the informationof you againat James T. Fatterson ?-A. I remember there was sucli a case.ELDRIDGE
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Q. You remember that you were examined under oath in that case ?-A. 1 pre-
suime I was ; I do flot recollect.

Q. Take the stenographer's minutes of the evidence, of what you swore to, and I

will cali your attention to certain pages of it. In the first place, would you kindly ex-
plain to the conimittee what is meant by compensation, in the paragraph referred to
here, page 11, at the bottom: 'That any portion of the compensation.'-A. 0f the

money that would have belonged to, Mr. Harper under the contract.
Q. Money which would have been payable; there was a suit brouglit for that

money by the Harper heirs, was there not ?-A. IMy recollection is that there was a

buit of sonie kind.
Q. You do not remember much about it ?-I did not appear in the suit at ail, and

it is only a matter of recollection.
Q. It was flot of sufficient importance to impress itself upon your memory ?-A. It

was -not a matter in which I eithcr testified, or wîth which I had any particular personal
connection, and 1 simply know that there was such a suit.

Q. You were a member of the executive committee, were you not, during the
time that the suit was brought ?-A. My impression is that I was not.

Q. When was the suit, do you remember ?-A. I do not recolleet the date of the
suit.

Q. Look at page 29 of the court stenographer's minutes, whichyou. now have ini

you hand, of your own evidence beginning with the question 'How about the cheques
of the contingent f und ? Do you see that ?-A. Yes.

Q. Is that the evidence that you gave ?Ta thiat a copy of the evidence which you
gave on that trial ?-A. 1 do not know.

Q. You do not know ?-A. No.
Q. Look at it for a moment; it purports te be a oertified copy of the stenographer's

minutes, certified by the sworn stenographer et the trial. You see it is that, do you
not ?-A. I see it purports to be such. At this distance of time, I cannot identify it,
whether it is or not.

Q. You would not like to Say you did not swear to what is stated there ?-A. 1
do not attempt to say that I did not swear to it. I simply say at this distance of time
I cannot identify whether this is the stenographer's minutes or not

Byi the Hon. Mr. (libson:

Q. How long since the trial ?-A. This waa in 1891.

By, Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Commit tee:

Q. Look at page 22; you will flnd the following questions put to you in what
purports to be a copy of your evidence there. 'llow about the cheques of the con-
tingent fund.' Is that question there ?And the answer, 'They were not drawn to
the estate ? '-A. Yes, I see it.

Q. You miglit read ftrm what purports to be your evidence and tell us whether
you. gave that evidence or not ? Read from the question 'How about the cheque of the
contingency funci V and tell us if you swear to that ?-A. The question is 'llow
about the cheques of the contingency fund V And the answer, 'They were not drawn
through the estate.' ' Who were they drawn to ? ' ' I do not recollect now.' ' Is it
not Mr. Eldridge that they were drawn te the president of the association, under the
resolution authorizing that contingent fund ? ' 'One of them was I know drawn to
bis order.' ' Was not ail of them drawn to bis order ? ' ' That I could not state now
positively.' ' You said you were perfectly familiar with those transactions. Have
~you looked them up ? ' 'I have been over these matters, but I do not recail whether
they were drawn to Mr. IBurnham's order or not.' 'You won't say they were not drawa
te his order ?1 No, sir.'

Q. Now, which statement is correct, the one which you make in the statement te
the Senate which is signed by yourself and the president, the one in your sworn state-
ment there, or the one on page Il ?-A. Both are correct.

ELDRIDGE
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Q. Then it is absolutely untrue that any portion of the compensation was ev'er

paid President Burnliam ?-A. No.

Mr. AYLESWORTH.-That is flot the language.

WITNESS.-I say it is absolutely untrue that it ever accrued to him.

Q. What do you mean by that ?-A. I mean, passed to him personally.
Q. What does that accrued to him mean ?-A. That is it.
Q. You paid it to him ?-A. It passed to him., but it is flot necessarily accrued.

By the Chairman :
Q. Wliat is the difference between the two words ?-A. Accrued would mean that

it passed to him for bis personal use and compensation, while it might pass to him for
a number of other purposes, undoubtedly did.

By Mr. (Coster, (7ounsel:
Q. You did flot intend to mislead the Senate when you say lie did flot get it, but

you say lie did flot spend it for bis own purposes ?-A. I meant it was flot spent by him
for lis own purposes.

Q. I could flot understand it that way. Is it flot a fact that a warrant was produced
at the trial referred to, and the amount paid to, Mr. Burnliam, $3,000, on the order of
F. Underhill, secretary of the executive committee, dated 31st March, 1896-do you
remember that ?-A. I do flot remember it.

Q. IDid you swear to it or did you flot ?-A. I presume there was. 1 have no doubt
that there was.

Q. Look at page il of the stenographcr's minutes, 'On iMarcli 3lst was $3,000
paid to M4rs. Harper ' -A. These are* referred to as the court stenograpber's minutes.
flic examination was before the magistrate. I did not think there was sucli an officer
there as a court stenographer.

Q. You can swear that you did flot swear to that if you lîke. You can take it
cîther way you like. If you say you did not make that statement, then I will drop it ?-
A. I was sîmply questioning the designation. I am flot questioning the correctness of it.Q. I simply want to find out whether you swore to, tliat or flot ?-A. What is the
question?

Q. Look at page 11, beginning 'On iMarcli 31st was $3,O00 paid to IMrs. Harper.'?
I arn speaking of this statement. 1Read wliat is there ?-A. The answer is, 'There was
not. ' 'Does there appear in the book from which you are reading, on page 167, an item
under that date of $3,O00 as liaving been paid te anybody on that date' ? Tliere was
an item of tliat date.' ' Complainant's counsel objects.'

Q. Would you read on please ?-A. 'The Court-He ouglit to say to wliom' I
asked whcther that sum appears as having been paid to anybody on that date. ' 'Com-
plainant's counsel objects; objection sustained; exception!' 'To whom was any sum
of money paid on Mardi 31st V ' 'Plaintiff's counsel objects unless it was paid to Mrs.
Harper. ' 'Tlie Court-Tlie books show wlio it was paid to. ' 'Defendant's Counsel-It
doca not show wliat it was paid for. It shows an item was paid under the account of
E. B. Harper. ' 'Tlie Court-Tic vouchiers were paid to Mrs. Harper, if you know, iMr.
Eldridge V ' Tliey were paid on account of tic estate of Mrs. Harper and contingent
£und of said association.'

Q. That is wiat you swore to ?-A. I do not know.
Q. Will you say you did flot swear to it ?-A. I will neitlier say that I did or dil

not. At this length of time, from the steiographie report, I cannot state.
Q. If you did swear to it, would it have been truc ?-A. It would.Q. ]Look at page 15 of tic stenograpier's minutes ?-A. Yes, I have it.Q'On November 4ti was $250 paid to Mrs. Harper '?-A. The answer is 'No.'

« Will you state to wliom. that amount was paid V' 'Plaintiff's counsel rnake some
ELIDQGr,
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objection.' ' I have no objection to his saying it was paid to Mrs. Harper. ' 'Objection
over-ruled.' Then his answer is, '$48,000 was paid to the contingent fund of the asso-
ciation, $3,250 to Walter S. Harper.'

Q. That is your answer1-. It appears £rom this it was.
Q. Did you swear to this ?-A. 1 do flot know whether I did or flot.
Q. Will you swear you did flot 1-A. I won't say I did or did net.

Q.If you did swear to it, would it have been true ?-A. It would.
Q.I cail your attention to page 18 of the same minutes. 'On December 9tli -do

you see it there ?-A. 'On Deceinher 9th, $5,00?
Q. What is your reply ?-A. 'No.' The reply is 'ne.'
Q. 'Will you state to whom that suma was paid V ' 'It was drawn to a contingent

fund of the association.' ' I askcd to whom it was paid. It was paid to that fund ?
'Yes.' Then turn to page 24 of the stenographer's minutes of your evidenoe. iRead
the question and answer at, the top of page 24 ?-A. '1 eaUl your attention to
November 4, 1896, the time of that date, and I cail your attention to two words "lMess "
and IlButts," opposite that payment supposed te be made on that date, and I ask yen
what is the meaning of that entry I

'Mr. ELRus.-To whom is that payment madel ? nless it was made to Mirs.
Harper I object te it.

'Objection over-ruled.
'A. It represents the fact that $8,000 of the contingent fund was drawn to the

order of iMr. Butts, the payrnaster of the association, and carried te the contingent
fund. The payrnent of $3,250 was drawn te the order cf Moton ID. Mess, who was the
agent of the association in making the payment te Walter S. Harper.'

Q. INow I eall your attention te page 25 cf the minutes, second question ?-A.
'.Yen have testified that one cheque cf the contingent fund at least was made' to

Mr. Frederick A. Burnham. Why was this, particular payment of the contingent fund
madle te MVr. Butts - A. I don't know of any special reason, excepting Mr. Butts is
the payinaskr of thei assaociation, and it passed through bis hands te the credit cf the3
association and the contingent £und, on the bocks cf the association, te re-imburse
payments that had been made on account cf the contingent fund.'

Q. Now turn te page 26, second question ?-A. i'Q. And how is your recollection
with regard te the payment macle on December 9, 1897, cf $5,000 which you have
testified was paid to the contingent fond ?'-A. By examining the accounts and satis-
fying myseif that it was paid to the contingent £und, and from the f act cf confirming
the knowledge that I had at the lime the payment was made, and I didn't after having
satisfied mysoif with rcgard te that, attempt to charge my mind with any cf the de-
tails, because I was simply looking for the payments macle te Mrs. Harper. Q. And
yen don't know te whorn that was paid ?-A. I caunot tell now te whom it was drawn.
I have testified that I know that one cf these cheques was drawn te the account cf iMr.
Burnham, but whicn one I don't know. Q. Would the warrants in ecd case show te
whorn the payments were macle ?-.A- They would.'

Q. Now I call your attention te, page 12 cf Exhibit 7, statement macle te thc
Senate by the'company. I arn reading from section 6, which is in italics ;-' It is
absolutely untrue, as charged, that the late president wiiled any proxies held by him
te the present president, or that any proxies given te the former president have ever
been voted by the present president cf the company.'-Is thnt correct ?-A. Yes.

Mr. COSTER.-I would ciTer a certifled copy cf thc will cf tic late, President
Harper, certified by the Surrogate Court as Exhibit No. 8. The will is as follows:

'IN THE NAME OF GoD, AMEN.

'I, EDWARD B. H.&RPER. at present residing at No. 28 West fifty-seventh street, in
the city cf New York, in the county and state, cf INew York, being cf sound and dis-
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posing mind, memory and understanding, and considering the uncertainty of this if e
do malte, publish and declare this to lie my last will and testament, in manner and
f orm following, that is f0, say;

lst. I direct that ail my testamentary and funeral expenses, and ail my just dehts
be paid out of my estate by .my executrix and executor hereinafter named as soon as
practicable after my decease.

2nd. I authorize and empower my executrix and executor liereinafter named to
expend a sum flot exceeding two tliousand dollars for a suitable monument or stone
to be erected over my romains and to set aside and invest the further sum of one
thousand dollars, the present interest upon which shall lie used in caring for the same
and my burial plot.

3rd. If is my desire that such insurance as may be upon my life at the time of =ny
decep.se, whether payable to my wife as beneliciary or to my estate, or otherwise, shall
forma part of fthc trust fund of one liundred thousand dollars for the benefit of My wife,lEmmna U. Harper, as in this clause of my will providcd. Therefore, upon condition
that such insurance moneys shall le so used, I liereby direct my said exeeiitrix and cx-
ccutor f0 pay over f0 fthe Central Trust Company, of the city of New York, as trustee
such additional sum from my estate as with said insurance inoneys shall amount to
the sum of one liundred thousand dollars, tlic fund thus created to lie held by said
Trust Comnpany as trustee, and from time to time invested in bonds sccured by first
mortgages on improved real estate in tlic city of iNew York, the interest upon which,
after paying the proper charges of said trustee, shaîl be paid over to my said wifc, as
rccîved, and at least as often as semi-annually during lier life. And I do further di-
rect that my said wife shail be at liberty to use such-part of the principal sum of said
fund of one hundred thousand dollars as my said executrix and executor shaîl deem
ndvisable, flot exceeding, however, any one ycar the sum of five tbousand dollars. And
upon the decease of my said wife, I direct said Trust Company to pay over the prin-
cipal of said sum of one hundred tliousand dollars, or thec unused portion thereof, to
sueli person or persons as she by lier last will and testament or instrument in the
nature thereof may direct.

4fh. After the aforesaid trust fund for flic benefit of my wife shaîl have been
creatcd, I do give and bequeath £rom the remainder of my estate flic sum of two thou-
sand dollars to my cousin Josephina Lippincott, formerly Josephine Palmer.

6fh. I also direct my said executrix and executor, from flic remainder of my estate
to distribute the sum of two tliousand dollars equally among snch children as shail have
prior to my deafli been named affer me, and wliose dlaims and proofs of identity shaîl,
within twelve months after my decease, be presented to my executrix and executor.

6th. I give and bequcafli £rom flic remainder of my estafe flic sum of five thou-
Rand dollars f0 flic frustees of the Masonic Hall and Asylum Fund, fo be by fhem used
towards flic erection of a hospital or industrial school, as said trustees may deem best.

7th. I give and bequeatli unto my beloved wif e, Emma U. Harper, aIl of my bouse-
hold furniture and furnishings, paintings, pictures, ornaments, jewellery, bric-a-brac,
wearing apparel, books, musical instruments, liorses, carniages, harness and appur-
tenances as her absolute property, she to give to my sister and to ecd of my brothers
wlio survive me sncb personal memento, from my effects as she in lier discretion may
deem proper.

8fli. Ail moncys which froma and affer my decease may become due and payable
from the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, under flic confract or agreement
made befween myscîf and said association prior to my assuming flic duties of president
fliereof, I do give and bequcafli as follows, viz.:

One-third thercof to sa id association, subject f0, flic condition. in favour of Frede-
rick A. Burnham, licreinafter mentioned. One-third thereof f0 my said wife, Emma
U. Harper. One-third thereof to my brofliers, Franklin H. Harper, George W. Hlarper
and Walter Scott Harper, aud my sîster, Annie Davis, wife of Harry Davis, share and
share alike, and to their beirs per stirpes and not per capita.
ELDRIDGE
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9th. Ail the rest, residue and remainder of my estate and property, of whatsoever
the same may consist, or wheresoever the same may be situated, I do give, devise and
bequeath as follows, viz.: One-bli thereof to my said wife, Emma U. HEarper, and one-
haif thereof, share and share alike, to niy sister and three brothers bereinhefore named.

lO1th. In case of the death of my said wife prior to my decease, I do then give and
bc queath to the trustees of the iMasonic Hall and Asylum, Fuud -the portraits in oil

-of My wife and myself, sud I do also in such case give and bequeath ail my estate and
property except the bequests and legacies hereinhefore made for my cousin Josephine
Iippincott, my namesakes trustees of the Masonie Hall and Asylum Fund and Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association, wlîich bequests and legacies 1 direct to stand as fol-
lows, viz.: One-fourth thereof to be divided equally between my brother-in-law Frank-
lin Tjnderhull and my sister-in-law Marion W. Amsdcn, and the remaining tbroc-
fourths there to be equally divided between my sister and three brothers hereinhefore
mentioned, ail of them. and their heirs per stirpes and uot per capita.

1lth. I have devoted my life to the upbuilding of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life
Association and it is my earnest desire that the association should continue to grow
and prosper. To this end I request my fellow directors in the association in the event
of my death to elect as My successor as president my friend Frederick A. Burnhamn,
who has been intimately associated with me during recent years in My work for the
association, and who therefore fully understands my plans and purposes for its per-
petuity and prosperity.

And I therefore assigu sud transfer to said Frederick A. Burnham ail proxies
which I hold from. members of said issociation, and hereby name, constitute snd ap-
point him as my substitute or attorney to use and vote said proxies in the same manner
that I myscîf could do at any meeting of said members or otherwise, if living and
personally present, and whereas I have hereinbefore bequeathed to said association
rne-third of the income payable under my contract or agreement with it; I do bereby
declare that sucb bequest is subject to this request with reference to the election of
said Frederick A. Burnham as president of said association being complied with for
the period of at least ffve years in case said Frederick A. Burnbam. is then living
and in good bealth; and if said reýuest be not complied with then and in that
event I do give and bequeath said one-third of the moneys payable under said contract
or agreement which would otherwise be payable the said association to said Frederick
A. Burnham for the period of five years.

l2th. I hereby nominate, constitute and appoint my said wife Emma TIT. Harper
and my brother George W. Harper, and in the case cf the deatb cf either cf them my
biother Franklin TT. Harper, to be executrix and éxecutors cf this my last will and
tFstament, bereby revoking ail former wills by me made.

In witness whereof I have bereunto set my baud and scal this 2nd day cf January,
ini the year one thousand eigbt hundred sud ninety-flve.

EDWARD B. HARPER [Seai.]

Subscribed by Edward B. Harper, the testator named in the foregoing will in the
presence cf eacb cf us, and at tbe time making such subscription the foregoing instru-
ment was declared by said testator to be lis last will and testament and each cf us
a I the request cf said testator and in bis presenoe aud in the presence cf each other
sigu our names as witnesses thereto at the end cf the wili.

JOHN W. WILLIAMS, residing at No. 232 E. 85 street, New York City.
ANNIE McOARTIIY, residing at No. 28 West 57 Street, New York City.

Form 6
County cf New York. ss.:

State cf New York,
I, James A. Donnelly, Clerk cf the Surrogates' Court cf said County, do hereby

ccrtify that I have compared tbe foregoing cpy cf the iast will aud testament cf Ed-
ELDRIDGE
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ward B. Harper, deceased, with the original record thereof now remaining in this
office, and have found the same to be a correct transcript therefrom and of the whole
of such original record.

In testirnony whereof I have~ hereunto set rny hand and afilxed the seal of the Sur-
rogates' Court of the County of New York, this 24th day of May, in the year of our
Lord one thousand fine hundred and four.

JAMES A. DONNELLY,
1Jlerk of the Surrogates' Court.

Q.I will read this section of the will:
'And I therefore assign and transfer to said Frederick A. Burnham, ail proxies

which I hold frorn members of said association, and hereby narne, constitute and appoint
him, as rny substitute or attorney to use and vote said proxies in the same manner that
I myseif could do at any meeting of said members or otherwise, if living and person-
ally present, and whereas I have hereintefore bequeathed to said association one-third
of the incorne payable under rny contract or agreemnent with it; I do hereby declare that
sueli bequest is subject to this request, with reference to the election of said Frederick
A. Burnham. as president of said association, being cornplied with for the period of at
least five years in case said Erederick A. Burnharn is then living and in good health;
and if said request be not complied with, then and ini that event I do give and bequeath
said one-third of the rnoneys payable under said contract or agreernent which would
otherwise be payable the said association to said Frederick A. Burnharn for the period
of five years.'

Would you kindly explain how you make those two staternents tally ?-A. Mr.
Harper did undoubtedly atternpt to assign his proxies to Mr. Burnharn.

Q. What did you mean when you said here, over your own signature in italics-' it
is absolutely untrue as charged that the late president willed any proxies held by hirn
to the present president ?-A. That be attempted to assign them to Mr. Burnharn,
that they were flot assignable, that they were flot anytbing fhat could be transferred
by will, and that they were flot so transferred.

By the Chairman :
Q. The staternent here is that it is absolutely untrue that the proxies were willed ?

-A. Well, if it cornes to that question, then I arn perfectly willing to admit that in
that interpretation of the word, Mr. Harper's will contained a direction to transfer
those proxies to Mr. Burnham, and with that strict interpretation, that staternent read
in that way would probably be technically incorrect.

By the lion. Mr. Landry :
Q.Could it be interpreted otherwise ?-A. Yes, it seerns to me.

Q. In what way ?-A. That the willing requires the transfer of something that is
capable of transfer, and nothing of the kind was given or transferred.

Q. That is discussing the legality of the transfer. That is putting in doubt the
legality of the transfer ?-A. I do flot know that 1 understand the question.

Q. That explanation puts in doubt the legality of the transfer ?-A. I arn willing
to rest it on that. that it is the legality of the transfer as f ar as that is concerned, and
the principal point that I was covering in that answer was the question of the voting,
which is absolutely and unquestionably true.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson :
Q. In other words, the disposition of the proxies by Mr. Harper was of no effect,

s0 far as the cornpany is concerned ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Landryj:.
Q.And it is in that way that lie made no will I-A. It is in that way I intend that

section to be understood. I arn perfectly frank in adrnitting that in the strict inter-
ELDRIDGE



THE MUTUAL RESE1WE FUND LIFE ASSIOCIATION 69

AIPE.pYLuIX No. 1

pretation of it, it does flot convey the exact meaning 1 intended, and I regret that it
seems to have confused the issue i any way, because the statement 1 would have made
would have been just as forcible and covered the ground the same, and I regret that
anything should have arisen from it.

By the lion. Mr. Gibson .
Q.What you mean is that the proxies willed by the late president could flot be

made use of at al l ?A. Could flot be made use of at ail

Jly Mr. Osier> (lounsel
Q. The statement is very definite; 110w you.say the meaning of that is that the will

was flot legai ?-A. The exact meaning would only be determined by reading it in cou-
nection with the charge that was made.

Q. Look at Exhibit No. 6 and tell me what that is ?-A. It is a document con-
taining from. pages 17-

Q. I arn asking you what the whole thing is :read the titie ?-A. The titie of
it is 'Report of the Superintendent and Examiner of the Insurance iDepartment, of
the lExamination of the Mutual Reserve ]?und ILife Association of New York City,
as of May 16, 1899.'

Q. This includes a report which was made by Mr. Vanderpoel, and also by Lewis
F. Payne, Supt. of Insurance. I suppose you have seen that before l-A. It includes
a report made by Mr. Vanderpoel, the chief examiner, and the comments on it by the
superintendent, iMr. Payne, and I have seen it before.

Q. I will cali your attention to page 9, section 1
'It was claimed that reference would have beeni made by the examiner to the fact

that this examination was primarily at the request of the officers of the association,
and secondly, because of certain allegations made against its officers and its manage-
ment by certain discharged officers and the employees. The examination was contera-
plated by this department before the request was made by the oflicers of the associa-
tion. The allegations referred to did not cause the examination ta he made. I had
determined upon same prior ta the filing of any charges. The examiner was com-
missioned to make an examination of the association's affairs. 11e confined bis report
to matters relating ta its condition, and did not go into the matter of the charges
referred to, but derived the information embraoed in his report from the books and
records of the association.'

Now, you say that there was an examination made into the charges, in the
face of that ?-A. Yes.

Q. You say there was in the face of that report of the superintendent ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, show me in Mr. Vanderpoel's report anything relating to the charges

-A. The 5tatement of the superintendent that there is nothing in the report as ta the
matter of the charges is absolutely correct. Mr. Vanderpoel did not make any state-
ment in this report as ta the charges.

Q. The superintendent, then, does not tell the truth when he stated that ha, did
not go into the charges ?-A. H1e does not state that lie did flot go into the charge.
H1e says-

Q. I do not understand the Englisli language if lie does not ?-A. Ha says thaf'
Mr. Vanderpoel dîd not go into the matter of the charges referred ta in bis report,
and that is ahsolutely correct.

Q. 'He conflned his report ta matters relating to its condition, and did not P-
into the matter of the charges referred ta, but derived the information embraced in
bis report, from the books and records of the association.' You say what that means
is, lie did go into the charges ?-A. That does not say whether lie went into the charges
or not. It says that lie did not go into the charges in bis report, and that is absolutely
correct. Hie does not refer ta the charges in bis report.

Q.That is what it means, you say ?-A. That is ail that that means.
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Q.And you think if there were charges of fraud, they would be written in full

on the books of the company ? Rad there been anything wrong, would you have put
if 0on the books ?-A. The matters that were charged were on the books of the Com-
pany, and were derived from the books of the company.

Q. Have -you a letter that was asked for in the notice to produce, a letter dated
June 25, 1898, fromn one Vrooman, who was the treasurer of the company, to Mr. F.
A. Burnham ?-A. I have not got the letter.

Q. 'Where is the letter ?-A. I do flot know.
Q. You did flot aftempf to produce it, at any rate. Look at this copy now shown

you, and tell me if it is a copy of that letter ?-A. 0f course I should flot be able to
idenfify a copy of a document as long as flua, whidli I have flot seen for six years.
(Filed as Exhibit 9.)

Q. The letter is as follows

June 25, 1898.Mr. F. A. BURNHAM, President,
Mutuai Reserve Fund Life Association.

My DEA&R MR. PRESIDENT,-Suppiementing my two communications of March 31,1898-the one referring to the contract of General Manager Moton D. Moss, and the
other to economy in cur expenditure-J deem if my furthet duty to ma9ke an addi-
tionai stafement in the direction of protecting the best interests of the Mutuai iRe-
serve.

In view of the fact that we have heen, during the past three or four months,
undergoing an officiai examination hy the New York Insurance Department, I feel
constrained to postpone the bringing to your officiai notice several important questions
pertaining f0 the well-being of this association that demand attention from the inside,
to the end thaf the vital interests of one and ail of the members may be fuily and
practically protected.

The report of the departmenf is now in our bands, and it shcuîd be followed by
intelligent and determîned effort to profit by its suggestions, and we should be warned
by îts danger signais.

Neither passion, prejudice, suspicion, criticism, for condemnation by word or
deed, on the part of any officer wiil remedy an error or institute a reform. Actual,open, manly, faithfui performance of unselfish dufy wili alone prof ect us from present,
or future fault or embarrassment. United action, upon mufuai consultation, must be
had, if we are to be favoured wifh permanent prosperity.

The report of the superintendent wili be of littie avail unless it is imînediately
and intelligently considered.

The report menfioned will be of slight service uniess if be carefully considered
in the broad spirit suggested.

Consideration should net be postponed. Permit me f0 cail your attention fo onefeature that is practically before us and the officers of fhe association must not iighf]y
consider it.

Page il of the report states, 'thaf we are credited with $528,022.04 of real estafe
at book value. (It is significant thaf the words 'Book Value' are indicated by
italies).

Page 13 of the report states, 'The company's books show thaf there was in force
Pecember 31, 1897, on account of hond stafements, $1,626,457.92?'

These t wc items aggregate $2,154,479.96.
Page 17 of fhe report, Exhibit 'F,' gives us a balance of 5.nvested and other

assefs, nef including morfuary and dues resources, over liabilifies, of $1,531,981.34.
We must face facts; and not deceive ourselves. Is it flot; wifhin the range of pos-

sibilities that one or more commissioners fromn other stafes might decide thaf our bond
stafements confain certain elements cf liabilities, and thaf a ruling might be madewhereby the investmenf in fhe Mufuai IReserve Building would be classed amcng
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assets as possessing no actuai cash value ? Should such action be taken, the above
figures would show a deficit of $622,498.62. We dlaim, however, by way of further
credit, that the assets should be increased by one mortuary cail. Allow this credit,
and I believe it ought to be aiiowed. we are stili sligbtly deficient on the right side.
because, as you know, a present cail will scarcely realize the net figures last mentioned.

As a prudent business man you will, therefore, quickly appreciate the possible
danger confronting us, in this single direction. In case a comniissioner should seek an
excuse to criticise the asset value we put upon the building, hie might dlaim that the
board of directors has not carried out its resolutions to set apart, at stated intervals,
certain stipulated suns as a sinking £und to uitimately reimburse the building account.
And in this connection, I cail your officiai attention to the excessive reut the Mutual
iReserve pays from its treasury for its prosont homo office quartcrs. If wc had un-
limited means at our command, the quarters might not be considered too extensive and
commodions, but with ont p#üscnt financiai condition we should regulate the space
we occupy and expense therefor, by our income and amount of business received.
Decrease in income and decrease in old and new business ouglit to be foilowed by
smaiier quarters and reduced rentai.

The Mutual IReserve now pays as rent for the present home office more than flfty
thousand dollars per annum, more than double the amount of rent paid for the home
office wheu located in the Potter building; and let us flot forget the fact that duriug
the iast years of our occupancy of that building we had a larger amount of insurance
in force, and were receiving a larger amount of annual new business than dnring the
year or two past.

Considering further the reduction of expenses in order to increase our assets, I
deem it my imperative duty in the interests of the members of the association, to cal
your officiai attention to another motter of pressing importance at the present timie.

I refer to ail and singular the transactions, facts and figures covering the vou-
chers, statements, accounts and contracts of General Manager Moton D. Moss, and re-
quest you to take immediate steps to correct what seems to be a number of errors, and
thereby save this association considerabie surns of money.

It is better for yon, as president, to correct any errors than some otber officiai,
either in or uut of the association, which would be followed by much criticism.

I make this request with the deepest sîncerity of purpose, and without any preju-
dice whatever iainst Mr. ALloss, and I want to empbatically state that so far as bas
ever corne to rny kuowledge iMr. Moss bas, by both word and act, accorded me courtesy
and compliment. My personal feelings are, therefore, entirely fovourable to hîm.

The present, however, is not to be- measured by personal feelings alone. I re-
preseut others as an officiai in this association, and amn, therefore, responsible to the
one hundred thonsand members, and so long as I remnain such officiai I shail conscien-
tiously exert my best endeavours to protect and strengthen the iinterests of each and
every mcmibcr of the association. Iu my judgmout the tinie is at baud wheu heroic
and aggressive action must be taken to disarmn criticism, discontinue endless aud ex-
pensive litigation, and dispense with other difficulties that stand in the path of our
progress. Such action would check the pre sent decrease of uew business, presenit de-
crease of income and preseut decrease of membership. It is a lamentable fact tbat
the new business for tbis year wili not probably exceed 60O per cent of the average of
a number of years past, although the largest, most liberal and most independeut ad-
vances, allowances and coutracts are freely accorded the department having tbis
branch of business in charge.

In view of the decreases mentioned, our expendîtures shouid correspoudingly de-
crease iii ail directions. A commendable beginning in this regard bas been made by
way of a reduction in our officiai salary list, wbich meets my bearty approval, as is
eviderioed by my letter of Marcb 31, 1898, hefore re-ferred to. This is but the initial
step in the riglit way. I hope you will continue the use of the pruniug knife of eco-
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nomy ail along the1ine without fear or favour, and thereby add to our ability to pay
death dlaims now past due.

In your annual address, January, 1897, you stated that death dlaims were paid
within thirty days after final approval. Tnfortunately that statement does flot hold>
good. 'You and I know, to our great embarrassment as well as to the great embar-
rassment of friends both in and out of the association, that the average payment
after due-time, for final approval, approaches nearer one hundred tban thirty days.
Hence, my dear Mr . President, to again make good your commendable statement above
mentioned, we must adopt more stringent measures to secure every availabie dollar
to pay death dlaims. We cannot do this with satisfaction to our members by simply
repeating the general statement 'to collect more money.' We must couple with that
statement the determined purpose 'to spend less money.' With this last suggestion
in mi, I agaîn caîl your attention to my letter of March 31, 1898, objecting to a
continuation of the contract of General Manager Moss, and as one of the reasons'for
objecting to a continuance, I hereby officially notify you that on the 15th day of Jan-
uary, 1898, 1 join Vice-president Eldridge anid yourself in signing a voucher to credit
theaccount of Mr. Moss, with the sum of $93,810.78. This voucher was signed by me
upon the information that the then existing contracts by and between Mr. Moss and
the iMutual IReserve had been and would be carried out in accordance with its termis
and conditions. To ascertain this fact, to the end that this association, yourself, and
myseîf, may be protected, I demand that an immediate investigation be had so as to
properly determine how much of the said sum of $93,810.78 bas been applied in liqui-
datiou of agents' debit balances under the said contract, and how much of said sum
of $93,810.78 has been practically retained by Mr. Moss.

I also cali your officiai attention to certain other vouchers covering commissions
claimed by Mr. iMoss to be due himi under lis 1897 contract, canoelled. in January,
1898.

Several days ago a voucher was brought me for signature ýwhich covered commis-
sions claimed by Mr. Moss for May, 1898, under the 1897 contract. Tbose commis-
sions amounted to $774-10. I decline to sign the voucher because I do not believe
that the commissions under the 1897 contract are continuing, in view of the later
contract, and matters connected with those contracts.

About February 1, 1898, a similar voucher was brought me, which covered the sum
of $3,009.24. I was advised tbat you had approved tbe statement of account upon
which this voucher was issued, and that you had decided the amount was properly
due iMr. Moas. Upon your decision I signed the voucher. I calicd your special
attention to it tbat you may immediately ascertain whether or flot your namne or
approval appears upon the account or voucher, as my namne was signed upon the
express statement that you bad approved the payment of accounts.

Simîlar vouchers have been executed and checks issued thereon as follows
February, 1898, $1,801.37 ; iMarch, $1,053.9,9 ; April, $733.98 ; May, $774.10, making
a total of cash paid iMr. Ross for the first five months of 1898, $7,421.66 for commis-
sion ciaimed on business written ini 1897 under bis contract, which was cancelled in
January, 1898, and which commissions have been paid into the association since
January 1, 1898.

Surely Mr. Moss ought; not to be allowed this credit of $7,421.66, inasmuch as al
future credits accruing under said cancelled contract sbould revert to the association,
because it is claimed that we assumed the agents' debit balances created under said
cancelled contract, and which amounted January 1, 1898, to more than $150,OO0, and
this large sum bas not been materially decreased, and probably neyer will be to any
-appreciable extent. IMr. Moss cannot legally or morally dlaim this double credit.

Confirming the foregoing construction I find, in bastily examining some of the
statements of account of IMr. Moss, one mnade as of February 1, 1896, and endorsed
thereon is a memoranduma in the handwriting of Mr. Franklin Underhili, as foiiows-
' Ail credits upon 1897 business revert to the association, and we assume the agents'
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aoeounts.' In view of IMr. Underhill's close relations with the management in finan-
cial matters, this memorandum was presumably made by your consent and authority.

With these new facts and additional information 1 herehy withdraw my approval
£rom each and every voucher hereinliefore mentioned and set forth, because of the
mistaken facts before me at the time of approving such vouchers.

The gravity of the situation demand that immediate action be taken in the pre-
mises to protect the officers and members of the Mutual lieserve.

I therefore officially cail your attention to the foregoing statements,' and ask youx
prompt action as president, in order that the association may be permanently
strengthened by a further reduction of expenditures, and that its good name may not
be tarnished by any contemplated repudiation of recorded promises.

Let us specially bend every effort to largeiy decrease mortuary expenses. so that
death dlaims may be more promptly paid, frequent increases of rates avoided, fewer
lia13iiities reported and provision made for a substantiai surplus to make good present
piedged promises for the future.

Let us do the needful to reduce home office rentai account by surrendering a
number of roms and leasing samne to outside parties, thereby securing a double in-
corne for the association. Let us dispense with unnecessary leases of officiais in locaii-
ties where we have little or no business. It is better to have no office than a vacant
office. It wili not decrease efficiency of work, but it wiii increase our paying power.

Let the contract of General Manager Moss be immediately canceiled, and I ven-
ture to suggest, in accordance with terms submitted in my letter of March 3lst, this
wili be eminently fair to Mr. Moss and just to the association. We would thereby
save an unwarranted generai over-riding commissions. Much of the business aliowed
him bas been secured by old and vaiued agents of the association who were neyer
appointed by Mr. IMoss, and lie lias neyer rendered tliem any special service, neyer
visits their agencies and no reason whatever exista for him to personaiiy profit by their
labours. Sucli profits belong to tlie oid agent and tlie association, in justice and
equity, and it is and lias been against tlie policy of the Mutual Reserve to allow gen-
e-ral over-riding commissions.

Let the accounts of Mr. Moss lie fuily stated by an expert accountant, to the end
that ail bis receipts and disbursements as general manager may be definiteiy and
properly determined, and final and correct balance struck to the debit and credit of the
generai manager. Surely lie cannot object to this plan. and surely it is the duty of
yourself as president to have full and correct legai knowiedge of so important an
aceount. The carrying out of this suggestion wili lie riglit and equitablck, and properiy
proteet the interests of ail parties concerned.

Let the accounts of agents receiving advances lie carefuliy verified and reguiarly
inspected for tlie purpose of preventing any considerabie indebtedness and undue and
u-eless advances. We sliould lie warned by the unfortunate experience liad witli many
agents appointed by tlie general manager, and who have lef t us after obtaining exces-
sive advances which wili remain as permanent indebtedness to our great ioss. Pro-
ducers sliould lie protected. Consumera shouid lie dismissed.

STlie rule in ail otlier departments should aiso apply in the agency departmnent, to
wit: No money to any person at any time or place by way of advance, or for any other
purpose, whatever, should lie paid out of the treasury of the association, except upon a
voucher signed by three officers, foliowed liy a cheque sigxied by three officers. There
has neyer been but one exception to tlie rule, and 1 insiat that thia exception immedi-
ately ceases.

The foregoing suggestions are respectfully submitted because tlie large amount of
nnpaid death dlaims and the decreasing revenue confronting us demand. consideration
and not -criticismn for presenting tliem. We must f airly and firmly dispose of these
and other questions vital to tlie preservation and success of the association.

The suggestions are made without prejudice or passion, with honest purpose, and
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1 arn ready and willing at any time or place to, discuss these and other questions forthe we]l-being of the association with the president, board of directors, or members.

I ask you, Mr. President, to carefully and dispassionately consider this communi-
cation, and take such immediate action that the 'rights and jnterests of one and al
of the members of this association may be properly protected.

Sincerely yours,

(Signed) J. W. VROOMAN,

Treasurer.

Q.Who is Mr. Vrooman ?-A. fie is a gentleman resident in New York, connected
with the Provident Savings Life Assurance Society.

Q. Was he ever in the employ of the company 1-A. H1e was.
Q. What position did lie have 1-A. H1e was one of the directors, and ie, was also

the treasurer -of the coïnpany.
Q. What is the man's record ?Does lie bear a good character or not ?-A. So far

as I know, yes.
Q. And at present, what do you say his position is ?-A. Hie is connected with theProvident Savings Life Assurance Society, but bis exact position there I do not know.I think lie is a member of the board of directors, and holds some office there, but what

it is exactly I do flot know.
Q. Was he dismîssed from the com~pany ?--A. No.
Q. H1e resigned, did lie ?-A. lie did.Q. When did Mr. Vrooman resignt-~A. I do not know the date of his resignation.

It was mot a great while after that letter, I think.
Q. Would it be soon after that ?-A. My impression is, yes, but I cannot giveyou anything more than that in regard te the date. It is flot in my mînd.Q. About that time, was it ?-A. That is my impression.Q. You said, I think, that you are a director and the actuary of the Mutual Reserve

Fund Life Association ?-A. Yes.
Q. Wlhen were you appoînted actuary ?-A. I do not remember when I was firstformally appointed actuary. iMy impression is, that it was in 1896; it may possibly

have been in 1895.
Q. Do you know an insurance journal called the Guardian?-A. I do.Q. Are you connected with it ?-A. Yes.
Q. As publisher ?-A. Yes.
Q. What systern of life insurance would you specially support as editor of theGuardian ?-A. It was estabuished to support the assessment system of life insu-rance.Q. llow long have you been advocating the assessment system ?-A. In either1881 or 1882-1 think it was in 1882-1 began the advocacy.Q. Were you a member of the National Convention of Mutual U-nderwriters ?e-A.

I was.
Q. What were the objects of that society or convention ?-A. The National Con-vention of Mutual Life Underwriters was an asssociation of the assesssment com-panies of the UJnited States and Canada for the purpose of mneeting in conventionannually, discussing questions connected with assessment life insurance, aiding insecuring proper legislation, and aiding in estab]ishing business upon scientiflc bases.Q. Are you a member of any actuarial society in the United States or elsewhere ?-

A. I arn not.
Q. llow many ycars wcre you secretary of the National Convention of IMutualUnderwriters 1-A. I should say probably six or seven. It may not have been as many

as that, but from five to seven years probably.
Q. What other office, if any, did you hold in that ?-A. I was at one time chairman

of the executive committee, one year I was president.
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Q.Were you connected, oflicially or otherwise, with any other life insurance Com-

pany prior to your connection with the Mutual IReserve ?-A. Yes, I was connected with

the National Life Maturity of Washington,. D.C., and with the Valley iMutual Life of

Stanton, Virginia, and I was treasurer for the purpose of closing up the estate of the

Columbia Mutual Lif e of Washington, D.C., which had reinsured its risks. I was also

a director and vice-president of the Ohio Valley Protective Association or Union.

Q. llad you anything to do with the Bay State?-A. lIn the last year of the Bay

States existence, I was employed as a consulting actuary, to tabulate their mortuary

experience, formulate rates and draw up forms of policies for them, and before the work

was well under way, the association was placed in the hands of a receiver, and my work

was "discontinued.
Q. You spoke of the Valley Life Association of Virginia; you were presiaent of

Uwere you ?-A. I was president of it.
H .Iow long were you connected with it ?-A. My impression is, three years.

Qlis it stili in existence ?-A. lit is not.
Q.Did it f ail ?-A. it reinsured its risks.

Q.Now take the National Life Maturity Association of Washington ; is that

company in existence ?-A. it is not.
Q. Did it feul ?-A. lIt went into the hands of a receiver my impression is, about

six years ago.
Q. Now, take the Ohio Valley IProtective Union, in what capacity were you em-

ployed in that one ?-A. 1 was a stockholder in it, and one of the board of directors

and vice-president.
Q. is that company in existence stili -A. No, the company reinsured. its risks

and closed. Up its business.
Q. You said you were connected with the Columbia Mutuel LiÂfe of Washington,

D.O.-in what capacity ?-A. The'Columbia Mutuel Life had insured its risks.

Q. What was yrnir connection with it ?-A. I arn explaining it.

Q. What office did you hold ?-A. Permit me to explain and 1 will tell you. The

Columbia IMutual Life Association had reinsured its risks. 1, as a stock-holder, was.

elected its treasurer, after the reinsurance for the purpose of closing its estate, and

did so.
Q. it is not in existence now ?-A. No.

Q. Were you connected with the Mvassachusetts National Liife ?-A. 1 was.

Q. How long were you with that ?-A. lIn September, I think it was, 1895, li

resigned from the Mutuel Reserve Fund for the purpose of organizing that Company.

I went to Westfield and organized the company, and in January, 1896, was esked to

return to the Mutual IReserve, my resignation neyer having been accepted up to that

time, and did so. it would cover a period of three or four months.

Q. liuring that time you say you lef t the Mutual iReserve, was your salary going

on ?-A. I tendered my resignation to the Mutual IReserve, and it was not accepted,

but lI gave the Mutuel IReserve two days a week, by an arrangement, and My salary

was placed proportionatcly to what I had been receiving for full weeks.*
Q. That is to say, you got two-sevenths, or two-sixths ?-A. Two-sixths.

Q. is that company that you organized, the Massachusetts National Life, in exist-

ence ?-A. it is ýnot.
Q. When you became actuary of the Mutual Reserve, dîd you make a careful

study of the mortality experience of the association ?-A. I have at various times

made a study of the mortality experience.
Q. With reference to the flfteen-year memocrs, were you of the opinion that they

were paying their full share of the amount required to meet death losses ?-A. When

lI became actuary ?
Q. Yes. When did you discover that they were or were not 2-A. lIn 1894. and

the early part of 1895, li made an investigation.
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Q. When did you fiast diseover that the ftfteen-year inembers were flot payingtheir full share of the amount required for the payment of death losses Î-A. In thelatter part of 1894 and the early part of 1895.Q. When did you recommend a reapportioilment of the raiks ?-A. In the eariy

part of 1895.
Q. Ia it not; true that that reapportionment of rates was made on the recominend-ation of the insurance department ?-A. It was. The insurance department didreconmmend the reapportionm:ent of rates.
Q. In the eariy part of 1895 ?-A. On an examination which covered the latterpart of 1894 and the early part of 1895. 1 think a report was made in April, 1895-

thaf is my impression.
Q. And at no time prior to'that did you recommend reapportjonment of rates

-A. Not in any formai way.
Q. But in your own mind î-A. Oh, yes. I had discussed the question with Mr.Harper before that at the time of my coming there, and told him that it was inevit-

able.
Q. And then as actuary you made the reapportiofiment in 1895 ?-A. As actuary1 computed-or flot as actuary. I was flot then in 1895, 1F think, the actuary of thecompany. I was one of the officers of the company, and what computation was neces-sary was made under my direction.
Q. Who was the actuary ?-A. I do not know that the company had a man thatwas officiai act'uary at that time.
Q. Were you flot the oniy actuary as a matter of fact i A. I probably was dis-charging the duties of actuary at that time, but I do not think that I had at that timebeen appointed actuary of the company.
Q. But you were performing the d.uties; the only actuary they had ?-A. I waadoing the supervision of that work.
Q. Was the reapportionment made by you sufficient; in your opinion to provide forthe payment of death losses i-A. It was sufficient in my opinion to provide for the thencarrent death rate of the association.
Q. In making the reapportionment in 1tý95, did you have before you a statementof the amount paid by members insured on the fifteen-year plan in 1888 and 1889?-

A. IMy impression is that I did.
Q. You would naturally have it, wouid you flot i-A. Yes.Q. How mucli less, if any, had the members insured on the fifteen-year plan paidin 1888 and 1889 than m'embers insured on the ten-year plan up to, the date of thereapportionment of rates in 1895 ?-A. I do flot understand your question.Q. llow munch iess, if any, had the members insured on the frfteen-year plan in1888 and 1889 paid than members insured on the ten-year plan up to the date of thereapportionrnent of rates in 1895? What 1 mean is, is it not a tact that the inembersinsured on the fifteen-year plan paid the same amount per thousapd the same age asthe men insured on the ten-year plan in 1890 ?-A. Do you mean had flot the membersinsured in 1888 and 1889 on the fifteen-year plan paid the same rates at the age ofentry as those insured on the ten-year plan had paid?
Q. Yes ?-A. Yes, the rates were the same.
Q. According to the age it was the same rate i-A. Yes.Q. Ia the present mortaiity of the IMutual IReserve Fund greater or lessthan thatindicated by the standard mortaiity tables i-A. In 1900 it was somewhat larger. In1901-2-3 it; has heen somewhat above the table.
Q. Was it 106 per cent in 1902, or was it not ?-A. I do not know. It was above

the table.
Q. There is the table. Tell me what it was in 1902? The qluestion is whetherthse mortaiity of the Mutuai lieserve was greater or less than the amount indicatedby the standard mortality tables i-A. This Wisconsin ta~ble places it at 104 and three

one-hundredths per cent-the standard table.
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Q. At any rate it is not 106 as you say l-A. It is 104 and three one-hundredths
per cent by this table.

Q. 'What is your opinion as to the rates charged by this cornpany. Do yousay the

rates were too low l-A. If the rates were treated as rates to secure insurance at level

payments they were absolutely inadequate. If they were treated as rates to secure

insurance at prerniurn increasing with age, theoretically they were sufficient; but, in

practice, the question would corne in of the effeet of these increasing rates in driving

out the risks, and thereby forcing a death rate greater than the table called for, and

in that event these rates miglit be inadequate as applied to attained age.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q.That happened, did it not I-A. It did. The members going out with tho în-

creasing rates was undoubtedly the cause of the death rates going up. It was inevit-
able that in such a case the better risks would go out, leaving the risk that remained
impaired as to quality, and thereby producing a heavier death rate, and that is what
really happened.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. In other words, you found in practice that the association had been operating

under a wrong system ?-A. Tbey had been operating on inadequate rates. And even

if the system theoretically might be correct, the rates have not beeen applied properly
to carry the systern out in a practical way.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood :

Q. These columns of figures show death lossse.s; in one column we have 'Expectant
death losses' ; upon what basis is that ?-A. That would be on the basis of the standard
rnortality tables there used, either the American or the actuaries'; it would be the

amount of death losses to be expected in the year in accordance with those tables, which
are the officiai tables of insurance.

Q. And the other column is the actual amount of death losses ?-A. Yes.
Q. And they exceeded that ?-A. Exceeded by sorne four per cent.

By Mr. Coster, Counseli

Q. Was it your duty to prepare the rates ?-A. It was rny duty to prepare the rates

after I became actuary, but in regard to the policies before that, that were in1 force
before that, there was a table which. was a part of the contract, and which had to be

used in dealing with those policies. I had nothing to do with that policy or with those

contracts perforrning thern, excepting to deal with them after I became connected with
the company.

Q. IDid you prepare this manual in 1896 ?A. I did.
Q. Look at page 13 ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was used by the agents ?-A. This was used by the agents.
Q. What year is that ?-A. 1898.
Q. On page 13, I think, you will flnd there appears the following staternent 'The

reserve of a legal reserve cornpany is the liability determinable against each policy of

insurance wbich the cornpany must be able to offset by invested assets under the penalty

of bankruptcy and a receivership. As so rnuch of the funds as equal this reserve are

sud must be held to provide for this liability, they are absolutely beyond the use of the

comparny for the purposes of its ordinary business as if they did not e.xist 'I A. Yes, sir.
Q. That is correct ?-A. That is correct.
Q. Would you explain what is meant by a lien on a policy ?-A. A lien on a policy

i.s the sane as a lien on anything else-an obligation against the policy or the property
or whatever it is.
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Q.Do these policies in the Mtutual Reserve have a cash value now i-A. Theassessment policies I
Q.Yes ?-A. No, they have no contract cash value.Q.The company would flot paiy any cash for them-no cash surrender value ?-A.They have no contract cash value. The company would exercise its best judgment incase of a policy being sûbmitted, ta it for purchase as to whether it was the best interestof the company to pay something to get it off its books or flot.Q. For instance, if a man were dying I suppose you would be wifling to give himsomething to avoid the policy, but you do flot make a habit of giving anything ?-A.No, the policies have no contract cash value.

Q. The company will flot give anything for that ?-A. No.Q. Under what circumstances would they give anything for them ?-A. If anindividual policy was presentcd to the company and the circumatances surrounding itwere such that the management of the company, in the exercise of its just discretion,regarded it in the interest of the masses of policy-holders to retire that policy by thepayment they would do so.
Q. Gîve me an example of where you would pay money for a policy I-A. If anindividual, whose health was seriously impaired and was liable to become a dlaim inail probability within a few years, wanted to dispose of bis policy to the company,and it could be retiréd for a comparatively small payment, the compauy would con-sider it as the best interests of ail.
Q. Then, if I understand you, it would only be when it was a policy which wasapt to become a dlaim on the company ?-A. No, I did not say it would only be that.You ask me to illustrate.
Q. Give me other cases 1-A. I cannot hunt up supposititious cases. I gave youone. I could not meet those cases until they were presented to me.Q. You cannot think of any other case ?-A. 1 cannot meet conditions until theyarise, and cannot say as a business matter whether I would advise a payment for apolicy until the matter came before me. When it came up I would pass upon it.Q. You say you cannot thînk of any other policy except one which is hiable to-A. I'did flot say that.
Q. Tell the committee some other policy for which you would pay surrender value-where it is a live man-young man I-A. I probably should flot purchase such apolicy.
Q. It would flot bave any cash surrender value would it I-A. No, air.Q. Explain how you would put a lien on one of those policies-one of those youwould flot buy; you must have some of those that are flot Hable ta be a dlaimt upon thecompany in a year or two I-A. I do flot know that I should put a lien on it.Q. Did you not put liens on policies I-A. There are liens on some of our policies.Q. What did they amou-nt, roughly speaking I-A. There are liens upon certainof our policies to the amount of about two million dollars, which are included in ourassets.
Q. Explain to me how you can take a policy which has nb cash surrender valueand by putting a lien on it rnake it an asset I-A. You cannoe take a policy that hasna surrender value, and by putting a lien on it make it an asset. I do not know ofany method by which you can do it.
Q. Do you consider liens as funds helonging to the company I-A, I considerliens that are included in aur assets in exactly the same liglit as the liens that aregiven by any insurance company, and under the laws of the state of New York Citythey are speciflcally allowed as assets, and under the practice of every life insurancecompany that I know of they are allowed as assets to the extent of the off-set of thereserve lîability that is charged on each individu aI policy.Q. IIow mucli did you say these liens amounted to 1-A. About two million dol-

lars.
Q. And that two million dollars you cali assets, do you I-A, 1 do.
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Q.Cash assets I-A. I eall them assets.
Q.Tell me how mucli you would give for the policies upon which these liens are

placed; how munch cash you would give for them. Would you give two million for
the whole outfit ?-A. 1 would give two million to retire them ail.

Q. Cash?--A. Cash, and the liens would be deducted from that two and a half
million. I would pay the liens and about haîf a million dollars to retire ail those
policies.

Q. The policies that you have the liens on ?-A. Yes.
Q. If you psy $500,000 to retire them, then you say that as soon as you put a lien

on these policies, which are worth five hundred thousand dollars, you increase their
value by two million dollars 1-A. Oh, no.

Q. How could you have two milîlion dollars' worth of assets when you put liens
on thema ?-A. Because those policies have a liability charged against the Company,
in the reserve, of over two million seven hundred and flfty thousand dollars, so that
if those policies ail cease to be in force and those liens cease to be assets, the liabili-
tics of the company would be dimiînished two millions seven hundred and fifty thou-
sand dollars' worth, while the assets would be diminished only about two million dol-
lars. M1r. Chairman, may I make one statement to the committee. This matter
relates to the general statement of this company. In 1902 the Insurance Department
of INew York, which is the supervising authority of this company, examined the con-
dition of the Mutual iReserve Fund Lif e Association, which afterwards became the
iMitual Reserve Life Assurance Company. It put its actuary with its actuarial force
into the office of the Mutual iReserve and was there for three months. It valued every
individual policy listing those policies one by one and by their proper designation and
charged against them their proper reserve, but listed the liens that the Company have
in their possession and listed them lien by lien, the number of policy, by number of
policy, and it paired every one of these with the reserve charged against that policy,
that excess was thrown out afterwards on a report of the examiner of the Company
under oath. The department of New York allowed those assets and charged the com-
pany with the liabilities, and it has continued to value the policiet and allow the
assets from that time to this. It is a matter that concerns the general conduct of the
company, and has nothing whatever to do with the business in the Dominion of
Canada.

lion. Mr. DOMVILLE.-That is for ns to say.

WITNESS.-I am simply making my statement. That is aill

lion. Mr. iDOMVILE.-You have no right to make such a statement to the com-
mittee.

The CHAIRMAN.-It is on record.

WITNESS.-I was not attempting in any way to say what the Senate should or
should flot do. I was simply making a statement of the facts in the case, and if you
will allow me to add beyond that, whenever the Insurance lDepartment of Canada
decides what is the best legislation for the assessment policy-holders in Canada, the
Mutual lieserve is prepared to assent thereto, snd conform to it. I do flot want to
be misunderstood as dictating terms as to what the Senate should do.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.I should like to ask you what is the amount to the credit of the reserve £und ?

-A. The reserve of the company is about four and a hall million.

By the Hon. Mr. Cox:
Q.Those two million of liens on the policies are on the regular life plan policies ?

-A. Regular life plan. EDIG
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Q.Noue of it on the assessmeut plan i-A. Noue whatever.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.Those four millions.are in the portion of the regular business, in the business
doue since 1899 ?-A. In the Uuited States under the legisiation by which we were
incorporated the department of New York makes no distiniion whatever between the
earlier business and the later business, but values it ail according to the ternis of the
contract and the valuation charges us with this reserve on our entire business.

B2, the Hon. Mr. Coz:-

Q.Are you. continuing to do business on the assessment plan on the other side I-
A. No, sir.

Q. Not doing it anywhere ?-A. No. But under the New York law the policies
written on the assessment plan are valued by the Insurance Departruent and the Tre-
serves charges against them.

Q. You are coutinuing those who want to continue, but not issuing auy new
policies on the assesement plan ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood: .
Q.The reserve fund amounts to four and a haif millions ?-A. Yes.
Q.Does the compauy hold that in cash assets ?-A. In cash and these liens are a

portion of the reserve.
Q. On the regular life system ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Cox:*
Q.That arose largely fromn converting assessment policies into whole life policies

-A. Yes, very largely.

>By Mr. Coster, Counsel

Q.You consider these liens are fuuds belonging to the company ?A. Yes.
Q.Ail you "have to do to increase your assets is to put a little lien on a policy

which has no cash value l-A. No.
Q. What do you mean I You increase your assets by two millions by putting liens.

on policies which have no cash value I-A. These policies have a cash value of $2,500,-
000.

Q. You would pay that for themn 2-A. We would pay $2,500,000 to retire those
policies.

Q. Cash ?-A. Cash, when the man had paid bis obligation the note of a policy-
holder procured by a reserve on his policy is admitted as an asset in every country ini
the world, and it is au asset of the compauy.

Q. Where the policy has a value ?-A. Every one of those policies bas a value, and
the value of each policy exceeds the amount of the lien on that policy, in every instance.

Q. 0f this four and a hall million reserve how much is made up of liens ?-A.
About two million dollars.

Q. Why could you not increase that to four millions and then you would have
$6,500,000 ?--A. It takes two to màke a bargain.

Q. They neyer made any advances-uever advanced a dollar ?

IMr. AvLaSWOuRTH-That i.s a miastatement, but not under oath.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel :
Q Did you evcr makc auy advance to these people I-A. We made an advance to.

these people in the sense that they had not paid this portion of the premium.

By the Hon. M1r. (Joz:
Q. And they changed to a level premium. ?-A. They changed to a level premium

flxed by their original age of entry, and gave a note for the reserve that would have.
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accumulated to the time of the change, instead of paying it in cash. llad they paid
in cash they could have turned riglit round and borrowed it back from us as a lban en
the policy, and instead of doing so they simply gave us a note instead of paying the
cash and borrowing it hack.

By, the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.It avoided a cross-entry î-A. Yes.

B~y Mr. Coster, Counsez
Q.It is book-keeping ?-A. No, not hook-keeping in tbe slightcst degree. ilere is

a man who insured ten years ago, at the age of forty, and he has paid under assessment
policies tiiuply the cost of carrying the risk as it has accriie<L H-e has accumulated no
re.serve whatever. His rate to-day for a policy of whole-life insurance would be, say,
$30. It was at his original age $24. The difference between those two premiums would
have been accumulated if the policy had been issued at the age of forty at a $24 pre-
nuum, as the reserve liability of that policy was $150; he wants to change now to the
whole-life policy, with a levtl and fixed premium determined by the age at the time that
Le came in, original age forty, he being now of the age of flfty, that premium would
not be sufficient to carry a $1,000 insurance upon the life of a man fifty years of age.
Unless we had the $150 as a reserve, that would be charged. Now, we say to him, 'You
can have the rate at age forty, which is $24, but in order to have that rate at age forty,
you must pay us $150, which is the reserve, and he says, 'I have not the $150,' and we
say, 'If you had originally taken that policy at age forty and paid us $24, we would
loan on the security of that policy $150; instead of your paying it in cash, wc will loan
you the $150,' and we take lis note for the $150, and the company is charged wîth a
liability of $150, and we have his note bearing interest at 5 per cent te offset that lia-
bility and his agreement to pay as long as lie is insured in the future $24 a year for
his insurance, which, is the same as he would have paid if lie had gone in at the age of
forty.

By the Chairman:
Q. Supposing he drops out of the Company and owes the company $150 ?-A.

Yes, and the company owes him $150. Because thiere is a cash surrender value of $150
on that policy. One cancels the other.

Q. If I owe you $150 and you owe me $150, we even up ?-A. Yes. But to make
our statement we have to put down that way and one offsets the other.

By Mr, Goster, Gounsel:

Q. Hlow would you collect this two million ?-A. We do not colleet it. We di
ilot, waut it.

Q. You caîl it cash that you have ?-A. I do not cail it cash. I caîl it one of the
invested assets of the company.

By the lon. Mtr. MeS'weeney:
- .The law provides for that ?-A. The law of the state of New York specifically

sets forth that it is an asset of the company. It is the best asset the company cau
have.

By M1r. Cost1er, Goun sel:

Q. You have promissory notes for the two million dollars ?-A. Yes, iii every
instance we have a promissory note bearing interest at five per cent.

Q. DId you ever put a lien ou any policy without the eonsent of the assured ?-
A. Upon a certain class of assessment policies under the by laws of the Company an
asstssment was levied for the, purpose of correcting the inadequate payments in the
early history of the company. Iu dealing with that class a notice was sent of these
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assessments which were large, and consent was given in that notice that the amount
could either be paid in cash or allowed to stand as a lien against the insurance under
the ternis of the by-law, which is specifically set forth in the by-law.

Q. Your answer to my question was yes. That would be shorter ?-A. NLý, you
asked if we did it with the consent of the policy-holders ?

Q. You could have answered it, yes or no ?-A. I should have answered it no.
Q.You say no?-A. If I amn to answer yes or no, I should sayno
Q.That you neyer put a lien on a policy without the consent of the policy-holder?

-A. That depends entirely upon how you interpret the consent of the policy-holders.
I have explained what is usually actually donc. I said if I were compelled to answer
yes or no, I should say no, but I do not think it is a question that can lie answered
yes or no witbout an explanation.

Q. llow does a man consent in this case where you give this long explanation ?-
In what way do you get bis consent ?A. In the first place lie consents by entering
into a contract which makes the by-laws of the association a part of bis contract. In
the second place lie assents when the notice is given him that lie nust either pay the
money or can allow it to stand by going on and paying bis other assessments and
allowing it to stand. I consider the two combined.

Q. Those are the only ways in which lie consents ?-A. 1 consider those two cm
bined as a consent.

Q0, Kindly answer my question and we will get along mucli quieker. Those are
the only two ways in whicb you say lie consents ?-A. That is the way in which I in-
terpret bis. consent.

Q. Those are tbe only ways g-A. Oh, there are «other ways.
Q. llow ?-A. Hie may consent by writing in and saying lie consents.
Q. But in cases wbere lie does not do that ?-A. I interpret the fact that flic

by-laws are a part of the contract and bis allowing this matter to stand as assent, and
that is the assent; that I refer to when I say we have the assent; of this man.

Q. I how many cases would you say you only do that ?-A. I do not *know bow
many there are.

Q. Would there be more than half of them ?-A. 0f what 2
Q. 0f the liens on tlie policy ?-A. Do you mean of these two millions?
Q. Yes ?-A. There is flot a dollar of these two millions in that.
Q. How mucli lien is there in addition te flie two million that you put on with-

ont the consent ?-A. I have not put any on without their consent.
Q. What do you speak of where they consented by being bound by the by-laws ?-

A. MIy impression is-thougli I arn only speaking in round numbers-that there is
about two million to two and a hall million

Q. Liens which are put on wbich are only assented to by reason of their being

bound 6y the by-laws ?-A. Yes, and receiving notice and continuing their regular
payment.

Q.There is two and a bal million and two million where they bave given prom.-

issory notes ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tbese other lien policies-do you put that in as an asset, too i-A. No, air.
Q. You do not caîl that two' and a hall million an asset ?-A. We do not.
Q. Because you did not get a note ?-A. Because there is no liability under those

policies to charge that against.
Q. But it is only where you charge them to straigit life that you put on this

lien ?-A. It is where we change tbem to straight life that we take this note and include
in flic assets to the extent of the reserve.

Q. And you say, then, that in no official report that these policies that you say

are put on without flhe note being given-I do not want you to say without tbeir con-

sen1, because you say they did consent-but in no official report do you put these in as
assets ?-A. The by-law liens, you mean

Q. Yes I-A. No, un no0 report.
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Q. And you neyer increase your assets by reason of liens more than two millions?
-A. To answer that question it is necessary for me to make a somewhat long explana-
tion. I will have to ask the patience of the committee. In 1900 we reinsured the
risks in part'of the North-Western Life Assurance Company of Chicago. Thait Comn-
pany had attempted as an assessment company to change to the level premium. plan
by this lien method of accumulating the reserve. They transferred to us the signed
liens which they bad at the time of the insurance and we carried into our liabilities
the reserve on those policies as of their face and their original date of issue, and to the
extent that they were offset liens, notes given by policy-holders, we ineluded them in
our assets as an offset to the lîability charged in the reserve. When the company was
in 1902 examined by the New York Insurance IDepartment for tho purpose of re-
incorporating, the question was taken up between the company and the department,
and the department decided that what we reinsured was the net amount of the insur-
ance as of the date when the contract went into effeet. That is, if the policy was
originally a thonsand dollars with a lien of $250 on it, we did not reinsure the thous-
sud dollars, interpreting the written contract, but that we reinsured $700 as of Sep-
tember 1, 1900, and from that date they computed our reserve liability, not on the
thousand dollars but on $700. With that decision of the department all the liens
of the North-Western Life, which had formerly included in our assets and returned
to the department as such, were dropped from our assets because there was no reserve
te offset them or no liability te cover them, and so I could not testify that we had
enough included in our report in liens excepting these two millions, beeause we did one
year to several of the departments include these North-Western liens and charged
ourselves with the reserve.

Q. What year was that ?-A. It would probably be two years. It would be at
the close of 1900, and then probably at the close of 1901, because we had to make our.
report te many of the departments at the close of 1901 before the New York depart-
ment had completed its examination of the company in 1902, so that, so far as we
have muade reports to other departruents before the New York department muade its
ruling and completed their examination, we would include those at the end of 1901,
but since then it has not been done.

Q. Did the department make You take theru out then ?-A. By the ruling of the
department they eeased to be assets; they ceased to repXesent anything. The insur-
ance that we had taken over by the amount of those liens-that is, if we had taken over
ten millions and there was two millions on it, the departruent treated it as eight mil-
lions reinsured, and as far as the departruent making us do it or not, it was the re-
quest of the company that it sbould be done, and on examination the New York de-
partruent coincided with our view, that that was what should be done.

Q.You did flot do it at their request ? They coincided with you ?-A. Yes.
Q.Whieh policy cost the most, the fifteen-year plan or the flve-year plan the same

age--thirty i-A. The rates on the five-year plan are the higher.
Q. llow- much l-A. I do flot carry the rates in my bead.
Q. What is the rate at age thirty in the five-year plan after the flrst year ?-A.

T1his book you show me gives the rate $14.52, if paid annually in advance.
Q.That is after the first year i-A. Yes.
Q.What are the expenses of getting that t-A. I do not understand the question.

There is a rate of $20.10 the flrst year on that policy.
Q. What provision is made there for expenses ?-A. Under that contract the en-

tire flrst year's preminum, excepting the death cost of carrrying the insurance, belongs
to the expenses.

Q. How mueh would that be -A. It would depend upon the death rate of the
company. At age thirty I should say it would lbe about $8, the tabuilar cost.

By the Hon. Mr. MIcSweeney:
Q.And subsequent yeaxs it is $14.52 ?--A. Yes.
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By Mr. Coster, tjounsel:
Q.Take the ftfteen-year plan, what is the rate for thatt?-A. 1 have flot the rate

for that.
1Q. You say the five-year plan is higher that the fifteen-costs more i-A. Take a

five-year table as a whole, it is higher than the fifteen.
Q. Does the company get more out of the five-year than the flfteen ? You know

what I inean ?-A. No.
Q. You see the rates as they are shown in the books may be a littie higlier on the

five-year, but after all does flot the flfteen-y2ear plan cost just about as mucli as the
five?-A. No.

Q. llow much does the company get out of it g-A. 1 ne-ver made a cakculation.
Q. You do flot know ?-A. No.
Q. You are the actuary of the company A. I do flot carry all the tâbles and

figures in my head, even if I arn actuary.
Q. Do the flfteen-year policies provide for any benefit other than payme.nt of

death losses?-A. A portion of theim provide that at the expiration of each five years
if there is any sbare unused it shall be apportioned in the form of a bond or bond is-
sue. The latter issue provides that at the expiration of fifteen years any portion of
the reserve or surplus belonging to the policy equitab]y may be used and applied
towards the payment of future dues and assessments, or may by a year's notice be
withdrawn in cash. A portion of the flfteenryear policy also provides that in event of
the policy having been in force five years the liability.to pay death dlaimi continues
for six months after the failure to pay an asscssment, and if it lias been iii force ten
years the liability to pay a deiath claimo continues for twelve monthe after the failure
to pay an assessment.

Q. ]Jid the policies on the flfteen-year plan provide for, the payment of disability
dlaims h-A. The carlîer five-year policy h

Q. The earlier fifteen-year policy h A. No, not the earlier fifteen year.
Q. ]Jid any of the fifteen-year policies h-No, tliere is no disability provision

iu the fifteen-year policy.
Q. Only in the five ?-A. Yes.
Q. None in the ten ?-A. No.
Q. And that is the reason you say that there is a higlier rate charged ?-A. No,

sir.
Q. Why do you charge a higher rate for the flve-year ? You say you do charge a

higher rate ?-A. Because the flve-year premium was calculated within the lirnits
allowed by assessment contracts to remain level througliout 11f e.

Q. Why does a policy-holder insured on thefive-year combination option plan
pay ]ess the flrst year than he does the second and subsequent years ?-A. 11e does not.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. lie pays less tbe second than the first ?-A. Yes, at the higlier ages, from

fifty-two up to sixty the payments are the samne.

By Mr. Cos ter, Counsel:

Q. At age 60, does a man pay less the first year than lie does the second and sub-
sequent years ?-A. On the gencral tables the payment is the saine the first and second
year at age of 60.

Q. But as a matter of fact, does lie at age of 60 pay less the first year than lie
does the second and subsequent years ?-A. It is possible that there is a table that was
in use a short time in which the payment the first year at the age of 60 was less tlian
the subsequent years. I arn not certain that that is the case, but it is possible it is,
that for two or three years the payraent was less tlic first year than the second year.

Q. Why was that ?-A. ]3ecause wlien the flve-year plan was flrst adopted the
method was continued in a modifled formn of the admission fee. For a number of
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years the company had charged as a first payment and admission f ee of $8 a thou-
sand, and then the subsequent payuients were reguiated by age. When we first adopted
the five-yeir plan we continued the lirst payment as $8 a thousand and had five
bi-rnonthly payments, and where as in the extreme ages of the table the bi-mon thly
payrnent was in excess of $8, of course the first payment was a trille less than the

bi-rnonthly payment, and that wouid malte the payment for these agea the first year a
trifle less than the payment in subsequent years, but that table was flot used any length
of time. It was very soon discontinued.

-Q. When did Mr. John E. Holiingsworth, the controller of the Mutual Reserve,
resign bis position ?-A. T do flot remernher.

Q. How long was bis saiary continued after his resignation was aucepted I-A. I
do flot know.

Q.You say you do not know ?-A. I say I do flot remember.
QI ask you if you know anything about it ?Did you know that it was con-

tiniiod ?-A. 1 did flot know that it was continued.
Q.You do flot remember for how long ?-A. I do not remember for how long.
Q.Was it continued for a year ?-A. I do flot think it wais. But I arn not going

to swear as to what time it was continued. I have no idea it was eontinued for a
yc r.

Q. Were you not a member of the executive committee ?-A. I do not think 1
was at the time Hlllingsworth resigned, but I amn not certain as to that. When Mir.

llingsworth resigned 1 thrnk it was in 1896. That is eight years ago, and I can-
flot rernember the dates, and these little items in connection with those matters at this
distance.

Q. Why was bis salary continued after lie resigned ?-A. It is the custom of the
Mu tuai Iteserve, and I think of ail other companies, when an officer retires from com-
pany to continue his salary for some time. We have I know in alrnost ail cases.

Q. What is the usual time ?-A. It depends somewhat on the length of time the

4yfficer has been with the company. I have known instances where we continued it
a mionth, and I have known where we continued it two rnonths.

Q. But do you remember over continuing it more than two months ?-A. I do
flot recail now any speeifle dates, but I arn telling you the specific practice of the
comapaty.

Q. Wiil you swear it was neyer, continued more than two months ?-A. 1l arn not
swearing as to that. I arn just giving the general practice of the company.

Q. You say you do not know whether it was ever continued more than two months?
-. I can give you nothing more delinite than I have.

Q. How long was Holiingsworth in the employ of the company ?-A. 1 could not
fix that without being able to fi the date of his resignation.

Q.Weil, about how long ?-A. I should think, about a year and a half.
Q.On account of his year and a hall services you continued bis salary after he

resigned ?-A. I say that it was the custom of the cornpany on the retirement of an
officer-

Q. On account of a year and half's service, you continued bis saiary af ter he re-
signed ?-A. I say it was the customn on the retirement of an officer to continue his
saiary for a certain time.

Q. What was bis salary ?-A. That I do not rernember. 1 do not think I was then
a member of the executive cornrittee at the tirne Hllingsworth was there. It was
within a short time after I came with the company. During part of the tirne I was
only with the conipany for one or two days a week, and rny of those matters of admin-
istration at that time I would not be as intîrnate with-

Q.Do you know what President Burnharn gets ?-A. I do not know wbat he got.
Q.How much ?-A. I respectfully deciine to state.

Mr. COosTR.-I will ask the Chairman's ruling on that.
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By the Ch.airman:

Q. Do You state the reason wby ?-A. It is a rule of the office and the executivecommnittee that those Inatters are confidentiai matters, and as sucli 1 do nlot feel atliberty to state it.
Q.Does that. apply to ail the officiais of the company ?-A. Yes.Q.Agents and everybody else t-A. No, sir.

Q. Ail the officiais ?-A- Yes.

By, Mr. CJoster, Counsel
Q.You decline to say how mucli President Burnham gets. How mucli do You get t-A. I respectfuily decline to answer.Q. Did John E. Hoilingsworth get $10,000 a year as controller ?-A. I do nlot know.Q. Dhd You pay him $5,000 saiary when lie left after a year and a half ?-A. I donlot know what Mr. llollingsworth. was paid.Q. Mr. John J. Acker was a director of the company, was lie not ?-A. Yes.Q. How mucli was lie paid t Was lie paid for attending meetings of the board ofdirectors t-A. I do not know.

Q. Was lie paid at ail t-A. As a director I preaume that lie received his director'sfées for attending meetings.
Q. How mucli is that t-A. Ten dollars a meeting.Q. lIow many meetings did You have?--A. Fîfty-two.
Q. One a week ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the directors each got $10 ?--A. No, the directois who are officers of thecompany do flot get directors' fees.Q.How many directors are there that do t-A. They varied at different tinies.Q.About how many t-A. I think there are four directors now who are not em-ployed by the company.
Q. Row many directors are there aitogether ?-A. Twelve.Q. And you say eight of them are officers t-A. Officers or empioyees of the coin-pany.
Q. I spoke to You some tiine ago witli reference to taking over the business of theProvincial Provident Institution at St. Thomas, Ontario. Rad you anything to dowith the negotiations necessary in connectiofr with that t-A. I did.Q. How long were you in Canada without returning to New York during the ne-gotiations t-A. I do flot remember.
Q. Were you there a year t-A. I was back and forth a number of times in connec-tien with it.

Q.How long did it take you.to conclude the negotiations t-A. I do flot know.Q.Were you one of the auditors of the Mutual Reserve iFund Life Associationwhen the Provincial Provident was taken over t-A. No, air.Q. Were never, one of the auditors of the iMutual Reserve t-A. My titie whenfirst I went to the iMutual iReserve was auditor.Q. But you were nlot auditor when you took over the Provincial Provident t-A.No, I had not the title of auditor in 1896.
-Q. Did you sign an audit every sixty days of the mortuary caîl audit t-A. I thinkfor a number of years as actuary I supervised the death dlaim payment-that is thefinal returns of them-and signed the audit with the treasurer of the Company; whe-ther it was done ini 1896 or not I do nlot know. I do not remember when that practicebegan.
Q. Were you ever paid anything in addition to your reguiar salary for makingthe audits of the iMitual iReserve t-A. No.

Q.You never were t-A. No.Q.It is not a fact that You were paid $250 for niaking any audit of the company f-No, sir, I neyer received any compensation except my salary from the Mutual
IReserve.
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Q. You testified as a witneas before iMagistrate Crane in the suit brought by the

Mutual Reserve Life Association against Patterson ?--A. I testifled on that occasion.

Q. Did you testify that $111,000 had been paid on commissions under the Harper

contract e-A. I do not remember.
Q. Part of whîch was paid to the widow of the late E. B. Harper, part to the con-

tingent £und, and part to the heirs of the late E. B. Harper; and also that part of it

was paid to Frederick A. Burnham, president of the Mutual Reserve Association?~-

A. 1 do not recali what my teatimony was on that occcaaîon.
Q.Was that done ?-A. I do not know whether those are the figures paid or not.

Q.And yet it is your duty to know ?-A. It is not my duty to remember ail the

facts that passed through my department.
Q. I suppose that would be too trifing an amount for yen. to ramember, $11,0O0.

If you did swear to that would it be true l-A. It would be true if I swore to it.

Q. As I have before shown, you testîied in that examination that $8,000 of the

contingency fund was drawn to the order of Mr. Butts, paymaster of the association.

Why was that drawn to bis order ?-A. I do not recail the circumstances of it at this

time.
Q. You do flot remember then, is that what you say l-A. I do not recail thc cir-

cumatances of the drawing of the ainount at this time.
Q. You do not know whether it was drawn to his favour. You would have to

authorize it i-A. iNot necessarily.
Q. Wbat were your duties in the executive committee l-A. I had a great many

duties.
Q.Anything to do with the payment of money i-A. I had.
Q.You had to sigu ?-A. Not always, no, sir.

Q. You say you do not remember of any sum being paid to Butts out of the con-

tingent fund l-A. I did not testify so. I said I did not recail the circumstances
attcnding the drawing of such a warrant.

Q. You tell me you do not know why that $8,OO0 was paid to Butta, if it was

paid I-A. I do not recollect how, and could nlot state now why it was. If I knew at

the time I knew the resens, but I could not recail it now.

Q. And also the facta that you testifled that the payment of three tbousand two

hundred and fifty dollars was drawn to the order of Moton B. Moss I-A. I know in

a general way that a voucher of somne amount was drawn in the purchase of the riglits

and interesta of the brothers and sisters of iMr. Harper, in one-third of lis contract,
and that a sum resembling that in amount was so drawn for payment.

Q.Moton B.'Moss l-A. Yes.
Q.What was that for I-A. It was to be paid, as I remember, to Walter Scott

Harper for the discharge of lis intereat in the commission, lie being one of the brothers

cf E. B. Harper and one of the heirs.
Q. A suit was broaglit against the company by the Harper heirs ?-A. I have

testified there were some proceedings at law.
Q. How mucli did you pay to, settie that suit ?-A. I do not know.

Q. And yet you are a inember of the executive committee and do not know ?-A.

1 do not attend personally to transactions of that company. That company lias an

income of several million a year and severa. million outgo.
Q. But this matter lias 'been spoken of to you several timea ?-A. No, air, it has

not.
Q. Were you flot examined about it in this very case ?-A. 1 have testified that

1 waa examined in this case, but that was several years, and I have not the details of

it in my mind, and could not pretend to carry detaila.
Q. You do not remember anything about the case againat iPatterson ?-A. I do

remember something about that case.
Q.You laid the information did yon not ?-A. I did.
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Q. Hw did you stop it ? HOW did you get over it afterwards ? What did youdo i How did you settle it ?-A. I do flot know the ternis of the settiement.Q. You do plot know how much money you paid to withdraw the information thatYeu laid ini the criminal suit ?-A. I do flot know the ternis of the settiement of that

case.
Q. How about the settiement of the civil suit that you brought against Mr. Pat-terson ? Do you know the terms of the settiement of that one ?-A. I do flot know.Q. You do flot know anything about it ?-A. No.Q. Do you know anything about your own suit that you brought for flfty thousand

dollars ?
The CHAmAMN.-Have these suits anything te do with the matters before usI
Mr. CosqE.-Yes.
A. This is a personal suit hie is questioning me in regard te.Q. It had nothing te do with the company ?-A. It arose probably because I wasan officer of the company, but it was a civil suit of liýoel of myself against Patterson.Q. What became of the suit ?-A. Well, it was a personal suit for civil libelagainst Patterson, and as a personal matter I decline to answer.

The Committee adjourned until Tuesday evening at 8 o'clock.

PART 3.

OTTAwA, TuESDÂY, Juhie 21, 1904.
The Coimnittee met at 8 p.m.

GEORGE ID. ErDrtIDE recalled and examination in chief continued

Mr. ELDRIDGE. Before the evidence proceeds I sbould like to make one correc-tion of my evidence last given. I was asked in referenoe to acting as auditor, andpayment for the services. It was a matter that occurred eight years ago, and I test-ified as fully as I could by remembrance at the tume. I have since refreshed my,memory. I flnd, in 1896, the executive comrnittee of the associatibn designated meto audit the death claims of the association paid, whioh involved tho-Proofs of dcathand everytbîng paid during the sixty days, and at the saine time added to my salarythe sum of fifteen thousand dollars a year. For sixteen mouths, that additionalsalary was paid in sums of $250, paid each two months. Subsequent to that it wasadded to my salary as a, weekly amount; and that I wish to be taken as testimonycorrecting the statement that was made at the last sitting.

By1 Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Oommittee
Q. What was your salary in addition to that ?-A. I decline to answer.Q. Look at that-is that the constitution and by-laws ?-A. That is thePonstitution and by-laws of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, as amendedat the annual meeting of the membiers, in 1901.Q. Is that the' by-laws -in force to-day ?-A. No. That is exact]y what Mr.

Cloran telegraphed me for.
Q. What is that ?-A. The by-laws adopted at the meeting of January 3, 1901.Q. Those are flot the by-laws in force to-day :have you a copy of the by-laws inforce to-day ?-A. I have at my room, and will be glad to furnish theni to-morrow.

ELDRIDG19



THE MUTUAL RELSERVFJ FUND LIPE ASSOCIATIOY~

APPENDIX No. 1

Q.,You say you decline to answer what any of the officers reeeived in salary ~
A. Yes.

Q. Are flot the members of the committee entitled ta reoeive that information ?
A. 1 amn instructed hy ouinsel that it is confideriial information whîch I arn not at
liberty to divulge, as far as each individuel is concerned.

Q. Do you decline ta give that information to the policy-holders of the company f
-A. I decline ta give a statement of the individual salaries received by the officers of
the company, under advice of counsel.

Q. How many employees of the company have been dismissed, or was it allegèd
have been disniissed, since you have been lu the ernploy of the company ?-A. It la
impossible for me to tell.

Q. Perhaps you can tell me some of them. Perhaps you can tell me a few ~
A. There are constant changes in the -offices and employees of the company, espe-
cially in the employees.

Q. Ail the Committee know that, but that is nlot an answer ta my question. You
know what I mean: ;I want you ta answer the question ?-A. What is the question?

Q. The question is to give me the names of sorte of the employees who have
been dismissed, vice-presidents, secretaries, or anything of that sort. I do not care
ta know whether you dismissed a typewriter, a messenger boy or anything of that
kind ?-A. J. iD. Wells, second vice-president of the company, was flot re-elected at
the meeting of 1899.

Q. Any one else ?-A. Mr. J. M. Stevenson was not re-elected at the meeting
of 1899.

Q. Have you ever said that they were dismissed ?-A. I have stated that they
were dropped from the employment of the eompany.

Q. Have you ever stated that they were dismissed ?-A. I do not know that 1
have ever used that word or not.

Q. Will you say whether you did or flot ?-A. 1 will flot say whether I did or not.
Q. Will you say whether you put it in the printcd statcment that you furnished

ta the Senate ?-A. T cannôt recaîl whether I used that word or nlot. I consider
when they were flot re-elected they were dismissed, but as for the use of the word, I do
flot know whether I used it or not.

Q. Is there anyhody else that you think of i-A. I do not think of any one else at
present.

Q. Have the company commenced suits againat either of these gentlemen since
they left the employ i-A. Not ta my knowledge.

Q. 'You do flot remember giving evidence in a suit ?-A. You asked me if the
company began suit against any of them. I cannot recali a suit that was begun by
the company, against either of those gentlemen.

Q. Yes ?-A. Not that I recaîl.
Q. Did you ever lay an infor mation against either of themn on behaif of the con-

pany ?-ýA. I do flot recaîl ever having laid an information against either Mr. Wells
or Mr. Stevenson on behaîf of the company.

Q. Do you remember ever laying criminal information against either of them for
libellons statements, or alleged libellous statements, againat the company I-A. Mr.
Wells or Mr. Stevenson?

Q. Either one of them I-A. I do flot recail that I did.
Q. Do you remember bringing one against Mr. Pattison I-A. I do.
Q. What ia Mr. Pattison's name i-A. 1 believe bis flrst naine is James.
Q. James T. Pattison I-A. That is the name.
Q. What did you do I-A. There was a criminal libel against him.
Q. You laid the informnation I-A. I swore to certain affidavits in the case. I cani-

not recail whether I laid the information or not, now.
Q. What became of it I-A. The suit was fina11y discontinued.
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Q. Was any money paid to Mr. Pattison to discontinue it l-A. I do flot know.Q.Will you swear that no money was paid to him ?-A. I say I do not know.Q.Will you swear that you do flot know ?-A. I do flot; know; that is the only

Bnswer I can give.
Q. Will you say that no money was taken lu r-A. I will flot say yes or no to it.
Q. IDid you ever hear that money was paid to him l-A. No.
Q. You neyer heard I-A. No.
Q. Did you bring a civil suit against Mir. Pattison yourself for siander or libel I-

A. That is a personal matter entirely, flot a matter connected with the company. I
decdue to answer with regard to personal matters flot; connected with the administra-
tion.

By the Chairman
Q.That is a matter of fact whether you brought an action or flot. If it is per-

sonal you have a right to allege privilege, but flot to refuse to answer when it is a ques-
tion of fact. It may flot have any bearing on this investigation ?-A. I did briug a
civil suit against him for libel.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for Committee:
Q. And it was for a statement in reference to this company ?-A. It was for

statements about inyself.
Q. Ini reference to this company ?-A. I do flot recail exactly what the trouble

was about those statements. I know they were broad and general.
Q. But it was in reference to this company ?-A. That I amrnfot prepared tci

swear.
Q. You do flot; remember ?-A. I do flot remember whether they covered matters

connected with this company or other matters.
Q. When was the suit brought I-A. I cannot testify without refreshing my

memory.
Q.Did you pay any money to get rid of it ?-A. I did flot.
Q.Did anybody for you or on your behaif, psy money I-A. Not that I know of.Q.Do you know of any other rnoney being paid to the company, after they com-

menced suits, for the privilege of discontinuing them, or anything else ?-A. I do
flot.

Q. Do you know of them paying money to the people whom they had sued ?-A.
No.

Mir. COSTR.-I submit those questions should be answered, particularly as to
the salaries paid, because if they absorbed ail the mortuary funds of the company,
I think it is of suffiient importance to be made known.

Q. Did you, in the year 1898, prepare a statement with reference to the expenseS
of management ?-A. In 1898-I thiuk it wss in 1898-I1 did prepare a document
in reference to that setting forth some advice with regard to expenses, and with regard
to the future conduct of the business, I think.

Q. In which you stated that the expenses of management might be reduced
$500,OOO annually ?-A. I stated that under certain conditions, and with certain re-
gard to new business, I thought ultimately the expenses of the company eould be
reduced.

Q. Have you a copy of that recommendation ?-A. I have not it with me.Q. That was submitted tý the eompany, was it flot ?-A. It- was submitted ta
the Board of Direetors.

Q. In that did you flot state that, in your opinion, the business would flot suifer
by a reduction of that amount ?-A. No.
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Q. In xnaking the recommendation did you not give it as your opinion that the

business of the company would nlot suifer by the reduction of expenses by the amount

of $500,000 annually ?-A. I reconunended that by a reduction of moueys expended

on new business, oertain reductions could be made in the matter of expenses. The

details of the recommendation at the present time I have nlot in rny mmnd.

Mr. OOSTR-We will suhbmit the report and it will speak for itself. Mr
Eldridge's mernory is not very good.

WiTNEss.-I arn asked to testify without refrashing my rnemory on inatters which

occurred six or eight years ago. I do not propose to swear positively in regard to

the details of those things without the opportunity of refreshing rny memory. I amn

perfectly willing to, give to this Committee information, but I amn not willing à.fter

six or eiglit years to testify to mare details without having refreshed my memory or

looked at the documents in question.

Q. You had a notice to produce, had you not ?-A. To produce that report.

Q. To produce certain documents and statemants ?-A. I had a notice to pro-

duce a number of documents.
Q. H{ave you produced any of thein ? I shoufd like you to state now which. on--

of those you produced ?-A. Thosa that can ha produced, 1 arn having prepared by

the clerks in the office at New York and arn perfectly willing to produce them.

Q. Have you any ready now I-A. I hava not, liera.
Q. None at ail ?-A. No.
Q. You are preparing letters and wills and different things and vouchers ?

-A. The vouchers I arn not preparing.
Q. I say you hava not any of them here. Thera were forty-eigbt differant documents

and statemants you wera askad to produce as adrnitted by your counsel I-A. I amn

prepared to take up any of thern and give-
Q. Have yau any of thern here ?-A. If thara are any of thern asked to ha pro-

duced, I can aither produce tham, or give my explanation why they are not produced.

Q. I want the documenta producad ?-A. They cannot ail he produced. If tho

counsel desires any one of those items, I arn prepared to produce it, or state why it

cannot be producad at this tîrne.
Q. Take the leasa of the building whicb you occupy in New York, for one ; have

you got that ?-A. I have not.
Q. Why not I-A. Becausa it is one of the assets or evidence of investrnent of

the company which I amn instructed by counsel I have no riglit to ramova fromn the

jurisdiction of the courts of New York; that if I did so, I would incur the penalty of

being rernovad frorn office for violation of trust.
Q. For producing the. lease of the building-that is what you are advised I-A.

lit is evidence of an investrnent, anid I arn instructed that I have no authority whatever

to reniove it frorn the jurisdiction of, the courts of New York.

The CHAmmÂN.I understand you could not remove thc original document, but

a certifled copy could ha easily produced.

WrNoEss.-The subpoena is te produce the original.

Q. It is not a subpoena but a notice to produce and the word 'original' is not in

the notice. If you produce a certifled copy it will ha received. La there any covenant

in that lease to pay for improvernents I-A. To pay for improvernents.
Q. When doas the tern expire I-A. The tern expires in 1934-that is my recol-

lection. Lt is a forty-year lease, and we occupied the building in 1894, and I think

it runs from the lst of May, 1894, for forty yaars.
Q. What is the rental ?-A. The rentai to the Weld estata is $60,00O a year. I

have at rny roms the certification of tha value of the property rnade by the Insurance
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Department of New York in 1902 when it made its examination, and I shall be very
glad to produce a certified copy of that document under the seal of the State of New
York.

Q. But you will not produce a copy of the lease h-A. This covers the eseential
features of it when the department valued the property, and if it will expedite mattere,
1 shail bo very glad to produce a copy.

By the Ilon. Mr. McMuZlen:

Q.Have you not a registration system in New York h-A. We have.
Q. nafot your lease registered h-A. No. It is ýnot a document which under the

law of the State of New York ie required to be registered.

B71 Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Since you have been in that building, how mucli have you spent on repaire or
improvernents h-A. 1 cannot tell that off-hand.

Q. Speaking roughly. You have put it in every statement you have sworn to h-
A. I have.

Q. But you forget what you swore to h-A. Mr. Chairman, I arn endeavouring
to testify before this Comxnittee as fully and freely as it is possible for me to do, but in
a matter of mere details that covers years and years, and in transactions amountîng to
millions of dollars a year, that have covered during that time an income of sixty
million dollars, I arn not able to testify to srnall details without having an opportunity,
to refresh my rnemory.

Q. Will you eay that you do not rernember within $100,000 of what you have
alleged in your sworn staternents you spent on that building h-A. I say the question
je simply ridiculous.

Q. Will you say that you do flot remember h-A. No, I will not. We hold a lease-
hold, and the building is leased for forty years on leased property, and it is admitted
by the State of New York, and valued by the State of New York, and has been valued
five times since we held it as an asset of our company, and the law of Canada requires
use to return to the Insurance Department of Canada, as records of our general assets,
our assets as required by the law of our State, and our State has valued that and
admitted it as an asset, and in 1902 value it for $U26,000, and I have a certified copy of
valuation here, and will- pressent it to the Committee, but it has been on ifie with the
Insurance Department of Canada for a year or more.

Q. Do you say it îs real estate h-A. I say that it ie leaeehold and is adinitted by
the Insurance Departreent of New York as real estate.

Q. How could it be admitted as real estate, if it is not real estate ?-A. I do not
know. I ar n ot the Insurance Department of the State of iNew York. I simply state
what.the counsel of the Insurance hiepartrnent says.

B~y the Hon. Mlr. MeMullen:
Q. iDoes it state that it la $526,000 of real estate subject to an annual rentai of

$60,000 a year ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is the size of the building?-A. The building, as 1 recollect it, has

a frontage of about seventy feet on Broadway and 130 or 140 feet on Douane Street,
a fourteen-story building, and the annual rentai of the offices is about $147,000 a year.

By, the Hon. Mr. MciSweeney :

Q.The oflices rent for $147,000 a year, and you pay to the estate $60,000 a year t
-A. Yes.

B7, Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commîttee:

Q.How much did you spend on the building, about ?-A. About $483,000.
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Q. You spent that mucli on the building yourself aftcr you leased it ?-A. The
building cost, as I recolleet, about one million dollars. The WeId estate put in the
balance, except about $483,000 that we spent on it, and the land also.

Q. The land belongs to the Weld estate ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you have a forty years' lease ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is there not in that lease an arrangement whereby the niatter can be

readjusted every twenty years ?-A. There is a readjustment at the end of twenty
years, in the lease.

Q. That practically makes it a lease for twenty years, does it not ?-A. I sbould
not; se interpret it.

Mr. COSTE.-I woul ask Mr. Eldridge to furniali a certifltbd copy of the~ luase.

The CHAiRAMN.-A cepy of the lease should be here.

Q. What rent do you charge the cecnpany for your offices there ?-A. $50,000 a
year.

Q. And what otlier tenants have they there ?-A. I de net remember.
Q. You say if yeu had anl oppertunity of refreshing yeur memery, you could say.

Ilere we asic in ouLr notice te prodtice for a fill stateinent of the rents. Yen conkI
'bring that ont cf the State cf New York, snrely that would flot be against the, law ?-

A. I cannet recollect who the tenants cf a feurteen-stery building are.
1Q. Yen were asked te bring a statement here ?-A. I was asked te bring a state-

ment cf every tenant that bad eccupied that building fer ten years, with the amount
that hie had paid for the rentail during that peried. It is net a document that can ha
get up at tweuty-feur heurs' netice with the regular precess ef business cf the cein-
pany, and I must submit te the Committee aise it sems te me it is putting the cein-
pany te a iuseless expeaditure te bring yen hiere a stateinent cf the tenants in- a four-
teen-story building fer a peried cf ten years and show the rentai they paid fer ter.
years. It weuld require the werk ef a clerk for a censiderable time te, do it. While
I am willing te bring the iniformnatien, as f£r as I can, it dees net seema te me just
that we sheuld be reqnired te put enr clerks te werk te prepare a statement cf that
character, especially when we preseat te yeu a certified copy cf the valuatien cf that
building, as made by independent appraisers cf the Insurance Department cf New
York, which is the superviser cf eur cempany in regard te such matters.

Q. The motive is te produce a statement of the rents, and that weuld net be
difficult-'The gross- incenŽe in detail each year, naincs ef tenants fremn date cf occu-
pation cf offices cf the building 309 Breadway and iDouane Street.' The greater part
cf the building is occnpied by the cempany itself ?-A. The greater part cf the build-
ing ie net occupied by the celnpany itself.

Q. The principal part cf the building ?-A. The principal part cf the building ils
net occnpied by the company.

Q. If $50,0O0 a year is charged tei the company itself for the offices they occupy,
as far as the tenants are concerned, it weuld net be a difficuit matter te f urniali a
statemdht i-A. I should be very glad te give you the ameu-nt cellected fremn outside
tenants and fromn the cempany each and every year.

Q. What dees it amount te i-A. It has varied in different years. East year,
speaking in round numbers, the rentai collected from. outaide tenants, ether than the
cempany, amounlted te about $92,000 or $93,000.

Q. Ninety-twe thousand 'dollars actually cellected l-A. Yes, actually cellected.
Q. The year before, how mucli did it amount tel-A. It was slightly less.
Q. llew mucli lesi-A. Two or three thousand dcllars-I should say-in round

numbers.
Q. The year before that i-A. It was slightly leas. It lias been increasing for

three or feur years.
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Q.What was the smallest you got i-A. I think the srnallest we got outside of

the company was eighty thousand dollars a year.
Q.Eighty thousand dollars was the smallest you actually collected ?-A. Yes.
Q.Eighty thousand dollars £rom outside tenants ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q.This last year was the highest you had I-A. Yes, ninety-two thousand dollars.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Gommittee:
Q.You say you spent out of the cornpany's funds, $483,000 ?-A. The building

cost, our portion of it, about $483,000.
Q. What fund did you take that out of I-A. It was taken out of the reserve, or

surplus reserve £und.
Q. The surplus reserve fund I-A. Yes.
Q. Noue of it out of the rnortuary fund--do you say that I-A. The reserve £und

of the cornpany is the excess of the mortuary assessments, after paying the death
loases, and it was £romn that £und, as I understand it.

Q. Well, it was taken out of the mortuary £und ?-A. It was taken out of the
reserve fund, whicli is the proceeds of the mortuary assessments after paying the mor-.
tuary losses in connection with them. I desire to say this entire expenditure was made
before I became an officer, or was in any way connected with the company. I found
it there.

Q. You are not on trial I-A. I arn not expecting to be on trial, but I arn stating
it froin facts which came to my knowledge as an officer of the company corning into
position afterwards.

Hon. Mr. LANDRY.-WIIich means that it is only by hearsay ?

Mr. CosTxa-He knows well enough. Hie has sworn to it every eear.

Hon. Mr. WATsoN.-I do flot understand that this witness is a criminal. Hie is
here to give information, and I protest against our counsel saying lie knows well enough.

Q. In the payment of death losses, is it your habit to deduct the liens on policies?
-A. If there are liens against the policy, the cancellation of the lien is part of the
payment of the death loss.

Q. You rernember an action for criminal libel that was brought; against Mr.
Franklin, editor of a paper called The Interview I-A. I remember sucli a crirninal
libel.

Q. Do you remember adrnitting in that case, or did you make any admission in
tfiat case, with reference to settling the dlaim of the late Dr. Bissell I-A. I do not
recall making any admission with regard to the settlement of that dlaim.

Q. Did you hear of that dlaim i--A. I have heard of the dlaim.
Q. Do you remember deducting the lien ?-A. I rernember the lien was deducted

in the first payment of that dlaim.
Q. Do you rernember lie brouglit a suit against the Comnpany, and you paid the

whole of it to himn -A. I rernember there was a suit brouglit against the Company,
and that there arose a question' as to the validity of the lien, in the fact that the death
occurred before the adoption of the amendment to the by-law, and formal issuing of
the lien, and under advice of counsel, the case was settled.

Q. That was after suit was brouglit against the company I-A. That was after
suit was brouglit by his widow agaînst the company.

Q. Let us reaturn one moment to the building. You said there was spent on the
building W48,000. Do you remember how mucli you paid for furniture in addition to
the $483,O00-A. No, I do not remember. The building was furnished when I camne
there. I do not know.
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Q. They do flot carry the furniture along at aill?-A. The furniture is flot in1 the
assets returned to the Governinent.

Q. Do you know the expense of the building per annum 1-A. I know, last year,
after paying the expenses of rentaI, &c., the net income of the building was between
twenty-two and twenty-three thousand dollars.

SQ. That is, the company is cliarged a rentai of $50,400 a year ?-A. Yes, that is
charging the coiapany with a rentai of $50,000.

Q. And the net rentai, you say, is between twenty-two and twenty-three thousanad
dollars ?-A, Yes.

Q. Is it or is it flot a fact, that under the constitution and by-laws of the com-
pany, when the paynicnt of a premiuma is stopped, when a man does riot pay his pre-
znium in thirty days, there is no dlaim against the company q all1-A. It is flot a
fact that under the by-laws that is the case.

Q. Wbat is the by-law ?-A. The by-law is, that in the event of non-payment, the
liability ceases, except as the contract may provide.

Q. In some cases, they have a surrender value 1 A. There are-some contracts that
have a surrender value.

Q. Even when a mean bas flot paid bis premium 1-A. Even when a man bas not
paid lis premiuin.

Q. Soine contracts ?-A. Yes, some contracts.
Q. You have flot a forse of tliat, have you 1 A. I have not, but I can easily get it.

1 think every policy we issue in Canada, the form of it is deposited with the Insurance
Department at Ottawa.

Q. And in those cases, the policies have a surrender value, even if a man does not;
pay his premium 1-A. In some cases, the policies have a surrender value, even wlien
the premium is not paid.

Q. And how long after he lias ceased to pay premiums can lie colleet that 1-A.
The generality of those policies provide that if, dnring thedays of grace, ha asks the
cash surrender value, he can receive it. If he does not, during the days of grace, then
the insurance is continued under the extended insuranace provision, until the surrender
value is used up in giving it to lise.

Q. Have the company paid tlie surrender values witliout suit being brought against
them? -A. They have, when there was occasion for these.1 Q. Have not a number of suits been brouglit against them 1-A. For surrender
values?

Q. Ycs ?-A. I neyer heard of them.
Q. Did you ever hear of a suit brought by George A. Bagley 1-A. I have heard of

a suit by George A. Bagley.
Q. Did the company pay lime -A. Tliat was not a suit for surrender value at ail.Q. Wliat was it for 1-A. It was a suit for the reeovery of premiums paid on

account of alleged violation of contract.
Q. Did you pay lise -A. There was an adjustinent and settiement miade with

hise.
Q. The Honourable Judge Dennis O'Brien ?-A. Yes, lie sued, too.
Q. Did you pay lim? -A. A settiement was made witl im. These are aIl New

York parties.
Q. Martin E. Oldricli -A. I do not remember tlie naine.
Q. Augustus Goodale ?-A. I do not remember the name.
Q. But anyway you remember some wliere you paid after suit had been brought

for the recovery of the premiums 1-A. I remember in some cases where suit was
brouglit for the recovery of the premiums and the cases were settled.

Q., Do you remember Joseph P. Vaughan, of Louisvjille, Ky. 1-A. I do not re-
inember the name.

Q. le bad a policy for $10,000 ?-A. I do flot remember the name.
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Q.Do you remember any suit being brought in Louisvillle, iIy. i-A. Oh, there
have been suits brought in iLouisville, Ky.

Q. In the year 1900 ?-A. I do flot remexaber that. With the reapportionment of
the premiums and changes required to be made, we have had suits in various parts
of the country for violation of contract, and for the recovery of premiums. We have
had sorne in Canada, and a number in the United States. There is no denial of it,-
and no0 attempt to deny it.

Q. Article 7, section 5 provides :-' A failure to pay the assessment within thirty
days from the first week-day of February, April, June, August, Octoher and IDecem-
ber, or within thirty days from the day of the date of such periods, as may be named
by the directors, shall forfeit his memhership in1 this association with ail riglits there-
under, and the certificate of membership shall be nuli and void,' and also, I see the
same thing is in thet~ne which you produced this evening-that is correct, is ilt not Î
-A. That is one of the provisions of the by-laws, 1 think.

Q. Then how did you pay on policies in which the premiums had not been paid?
-A. There are othier provisions in the by-laws, besides the one that has been named.

Q. Would you explain shortly to the committee how it is you paid on these lapse
policies, and what was your reason for paying ?-A. Because, we regarded it within
the discretion given to the management of the company as for the best interests of
the company to make such payments.

Q. And that is the only reason you can give, that it was a discretionary matter
with the directors ?-A. The directors are charged with administering the affairs of
the company for the best interests of the policy-holders, and with their reasonable
limits of discretion they have the riglit to make such payments and to transact busi-
ness.

Q. By the officiai reports through the Insurance iDepartment of the State of New
York for the years ending December, 1898, 1899, 1900, and 1901, which are of course-
really in evidence becaise they take judicial notice of them in their reports, I see
that you have paid $219,258 on 122 lapse policies :why was that paid ? That is in
the report ?-A. I should like to sec that in the report wheýe we paid so many lapsed
policies.

Q. ilere is one of these annual reports of the State of New York, for the year
1898. Look downa on the list there and you will find lapsed policies mentioned there,
and the amounts paid on them i-A. Those are dlaims on policies appearing on our
books as lapsed. Suit has been entered by the claimant after the death of the party
and these amounts have been paid at different times in retîrement of the dlaim.

Q. That is a sworn statement by the company ?-A. That is a sworn statement
by the company and those amounts were paîd undoubtedly.

Q. And they are entered there as lapsed policies ?-A. This is a sehedule re-
quired to be filed under the law of New York, and the requirements of the Insurance
Departuient, to show, why an.y claim whatever muade by a claimant, against the Comu-
pany and settled. for less than the face of the dlaim was so settled, giving the reasons
of the company for disputing the dlaim and not paying, it at its face. lIn the cases
named, the company claimed that the policies were lapsed. They stood s0 on our
books. The clai mants claimed that they had a dlaim for the full face of the policy,
and entered suit therefor. This alleges the company's reason for refusing to pay the
full face of the dlaim, and in these cases that reason is that the policy stood on the
books of the companay as lapsed. This embraces a number of other causes.

By the Hon. M1r. Béique:
Q.What is the nuinher i-A. I have not figured it Up.

By, the Hoen. Mr. Watson:
Q.Are those dlaims paid in fuT ?-A. No, they are not paid in full. It is an,

adjustment of the dlaim, for the policy was paid. Very frequently we make a pay--
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ment of the amount it would cost us to defend the dlaimn. If we can settie such a

claim for a sum flot greater or less than the amount it would cost us to defend, we
inake the payment to the claimant to end the contest.

By the Hon. Mr. JJ•cSweeney:

QIn other words you made the best settiement you coiild l-A. We made the

best settlement we could in the case of dlaims that we did not consider valid.

By the lion. Mr. Landry:

Q. Does that answer apply to all?-A. Yes, ià was a settiement made of dlaims,
the validity of which we disputed.

The first one here is 'Dan Doy. It is fourteon thousand dollars, $10,366.67 paid,
lapsed'. The next one is '$1,000, ID. Newkirk, $350, lapsed'. The amount alto-
gether, according to the annual statements in 1898, 1899, 1900 and 1901-according
to the four statements which we will have marked for identification. These are
certified documents.

WI'rNESS.-May I be permitted to state here, there are 102 claims in1 those four
years. The entire dlaims against the company in that time, amouuted to probably
over five thousand. Our dlaims are about twelvc to thirteen hundred dlaims a year.

By the Chairman:

Q. Do you mean dlaims taken by action at law?-A. No, our death dlaims amouint
to tweive to thirteen hundred a year.

Q. Out of that twelve or thirteen hundred there would be how many l-A. These
lapsed dlaims were among the twelve hundred a year. .

Q. Before that did you pay any lapsed policies ?-A. The company had always
where there had been claims on lapsed policies, the Companiy liad always settled thern
te, the best advantage, either fought them through the courts or settled them.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. What were the reasons urged by the claimoants against this dlaim that the
policy was lapscd l-A. There were various dlaims. There was, for instance, a recent
case that arose in the State of iMissouri. A suit was entered against the Company on
the dlaim that under t.ac IMissouri law there was fixed by that law a reserve on every
policy, and that under that reserve the policy would be carried for a certain length of
time after it lapsed, and that the law which was called the non-forfeiture applied to
these policies, and the flrst court-that is the UJnited States district court-did decide
that was the case, and it went to the Supreme Court, which reversed the decision.
There were also dlaims that hecause there was a reserve fund and emergency fund
the policy-holder was entitled to have bis assessment paid out of that if he did iiut

pay it himself. There would be a large variety of dlaims.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Show me some lapsed ones in th,ýt statement of 1896 ?-A. Well, Mr. Coster,
in regard to this matter I desire to say that while the iNew York Department required
a list of dlaims not paid in full up to and including 1895 or 1896, the company did
not comply with the requirement, and in this report there is not the statement of
dlaims that were settled or not paid in full. Subsequently to this the New York
'Insurance Department enforced that requirement rigidly and it appeared in ail of
our reports up to and including the first one made after we reincorporated. You will
find scattered ail through this list of death dlaims paid a number of death dlaims
paid, a number that are not paid at even amounts, and in the majority of cases these
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were dlaims that were settled, but there are no reasons given anywhere in this report
for the non-payment in full of any dlaim.

Q. That would be the same report that you would put in in Canada ?-A. That
would be the same report that we would put in in Canada, because it requires us to put
in the same report.

Q. That is the report of 1896 ?-A. Yes.

(Reports of 1896 and 1897 liled as exhibits.)

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. You say you complied with the requirements after 1896 i-A. The depart-

ment required the full compliance after 1896. 1896 was the flrst report 1 made of the
department that I superintended.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Uommittee:
Q. You are required by every state to fie a report ?-A. In each state that we

are doing business, yes.
Q. And they'furnished you blanks which. you filled in and swore to every year in

the differej4t states of the Union ?-A. Yes.
Q. And also Canada i-A. Yes.
Q. Were they always the same i-A. No, there were varying forms of, statements

required by different states and the same state sometimes made changes in the forni.Q. But the amount of insurance in force, and that sort of thîng would be the
same g-A. iNot always, no.

Q. Where would it be different ?-A. Because diflerent states required different
provisions in regard to the paym~ent; for instance, at the present time in the state of
New York we report the business paid for on our books on the 3lst December as the
business in force. The state of iMassachusetts requires us to report every policy that
îs issued during the year without regard to whether it is paid for or not as business
in force, and there are various requirements in that regard in the different states.Q. That is the report of 1895, is it not i-A. It seems to be the report of December
31, 1895.

Q. Take the total amount of insurance reported in force, page 3 of the report.
What is the amount at the enil of the year i-A. $308,659,371.

Q. Now at page 29-this is the annual report to the annual meeting, is it not-
look at that at page 29, the same year t-A. It is the address of Frederick A. Burn-
ham, President of the Mutual IReserve Fund Iife Association, at the fifteentli annual
meeting, January 22, 1896.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. And the other report is what date i-A. 3lst December, 1895. It is the report

made to the New York Insurance Department.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the fiommittee:
Q. At page 29, lie says, docs lie not :'That on December 31, 1895, we had inforce 105,878 policies, covering insurance to the amount of $308,659,371 g-A. Yes..Q. That agrees with the other one t-A. Yes.
Q. Being a gain of 9,811 policies and $15,293,265 insurance. Every dollar of this

was actually written and issued before January lst, 1896 i-A. Yes.Q. Was that true ?-A. So far as I know it is Mr. Burnham!s statement. I have
no reason to doubt it.

Q. Was there, fot a lot of insurance there which was not in force i-A. If you
mean thereby-

Q. And which bas neyer been paid since i-A. You mean not taken business?~
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Q. That was not in force at the time that statement was made and bas neyer been
ini force since.-A. If you mean the business that bad failed to pay an assessment
and was carried under the right of reinstatement, that is included. in that business.

Q.And how mucb did it amount to about ?-A. At that time?
Q.Yes ?-A. I cannot say. At the close of 1894 there was a littie over five thon-

sand policies.
Q. Wbat would be the amount ?-A. Probably that would amount to fifteen mil-

lion dollars.
Q. iNow, in that year was there flot fifty million of that which was flot in force ?

-A. That had failcd to pay an asseomment and was carried 1irnder that provision
Q. Yes.-A. No.
Q. It would flot be as much as that ?-A. No.
Q. Exactly the same thing occurred in 1896, dîd it not ?-A. Yés.
Q. In 1896-A. There was the same condition in regard to those policies in

1896 as in 1895, exactly.
Q. Ini 1896, in the address of Frederick A. Burnham, president- A. There was

included in the business as returned the policies that had failed to pay as assessment
and were carried under the riglit of re-instatement.

Q. Ini 1896, I see-you wili correct me if I amn wrong-is this dosurnent 1896?
-A. Yes.

Q. You say that thera were 118,449 policies in force at the close of the year and
that the amount of insurance was $325,000,000 and upwards ?-A. Yes.

Q. And in President Burnbam's address to the shareholders at the annual meet-
ing in the following year be makes the same statement to themn ?-A. 11e says there is
insurance outstanding to the amount of $325,000,000.

Q. The same as the other ?-A. Yes.
Q. An increase in policies 12.571 ?A. Yes.

Q.And of ?-A. $16,366,960 insurance outstanding.
Q.How much of that was flot in force ?-A. There was probably 6,000 policies

that wcre carried under the right of reinstatement.
Q. Which were flot in force ?-A. Which were carried under that right of rcin-

statement.
Q. *Which were flot in force ?-A. The insurance was outstanding in accordance

witb the rules of the New York Insurance Department.
Q. If they had died they coulf flot have collected ?-A. Some of them could and

some could flot.
Q. If they had sued on misrepresentation only ?-A. There were some of those

policies that carried the riglit of payment for six months anjd some of them carried
the rigbt of payment for a year, in the event of death after payment when they were
all included in the report in accordance with the rules of the New York Insurance
Department, fully understood by that department, and communicated to, me as tbe
rule of that department by the counsel of the department. I was simply observing the
rules of the department in putting those in the policies outstanding.

By the lion. Mr. Gibson:

Q. You looked upon them as flot being outlawed ?-A. As flot being outlawed.
There had been a decision of the New York Supreme Court declaring the right of
reinstatement as being a vested right. The court bad so far enforced that as to allow
that right if the insured had died, and in discussing that point with the iNew York
Insurance Department, when I came in to make the reports, I brought up the report
that had always prevailed with the company, and he instructed me that under tbat
decision he saw no reason to make the change, but that I should include, as I had
bitherto done, and under bis instructions I did include it. It neyer wa.s concealed.
You cau find in tbe Illinois report, i 1894, a statement of the exact amount.
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By M1r. CJoster, K.C., Ciounsel for the (Jommittee:

Q.When did you frrst state it in the iNew York report-the exact amount ?-
A. At the close of 1897.

Q.But xiever before that ?-A. No. As a separate item.
Q. And then did you put in the amount ?-A. No.
Q. Just put in the number of policies ?-A. Yes.
Q. Was that flot because the superintendent insisted upon it ?-A. No, sir, it was

not. It was done voluntarily by myseif, and after I had been to Albany particularly
and discussed the question and asked permission to do so.

Q. And they only gave you permission to do that?-A. They raised no objection
to My doing so.

Q. Take the 1897 report g-A. The saine condition prevailed there.
Q. At the end of 1897 I see the statement says-

Hon. Mr. BÙIQUE.-If the saine condition applies, that is sufficient. You can file

tflei for identification and refer to them.

Mr. COSTE.-I will get thern on the record.

Hon. Mr. IBIQUE.-I eall attention of the Committee to the advisability of flot
going into these matters. I think we are travelling extensively outside of the înquiry
entrusted to us.

Hon. Mr. LANDR.-It is a mere repetition for the other years.

IMr. COSTE.-Not quite. I think they will be the saine after 1897. I will put in
the 1897 statement and refer to the other.

Q. In 1897, according to this report-I can be corrected, if I arn wrong-the total
policies, 111,908; insurance in force, $301,567,101, and then at page 26 of President
Burnham's address, look at that mark markcd iii pencil :'The truth is. that with the
close of the year 1897 the association bad practically $10,000,000' read it.-A. 'Ten
million dollars more paid for business, more business wbich is actually paying its
assessments, wherewith to rmeet its obligations, than it ever had before.'

Q. And in that year 1897 how many million dollars of business were there which
were flot in force ?-A. There was 6,189 that were in the policies that have been named;
as regards other policies, where the assessmnents had céased to be paid, it probably
covered about $18,000,000 insuranace.

By the Hon. Mlr. Watson :
Q. You say, not in force ?-A. I do not say, not in force. I say, under the condi-

tion that they had failed to pay an assessment, but were simply carried on our books
as a vested right.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:

Q. As a liability company l-A. As a liability company to whatever extent there
was a liability.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel'for the Committee:
Q. And also a prospective asset, was it not l-A. I do not know in what way it was

a prospective asset.
Q. Could you put liens on those l-A. No, sir.
Q. Why flot on those, just as wèll as on another one ?-(No answer.)
Q. I 1898 the saine thing occurred, did it not l

By the Hlon. Mr. BéiqUe:
Q. There was the saine condition, without taking the figures v-A. The saine conl-

dition was observed in making a return, excepting that in the foot-notes I gave the nura-
ber of the policies and the insuranace that was covered thereby.
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By MIr. Coster, K.C., Counsci for the Comm ittee:

Q. In 1898 there was $269,000,000 represented as being in force ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:

Q. llow many policy-holders represented in that?-A. 102,379.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coun.sel for the Commit tee:

Q. And in 1899 yon rcprcsented 71,062 policy-bolders and $173,714,000 insurance?
-A. 1 represented 71,062 policy-holders, covering $173,714,682 of non-delinquent busi-

ness, but carried upon the samne basis as that with us, 85,571 policies, covering $212,-
773,786. I made the full division in that report as between [lie delinquent business.

Q. What was tbe delinquent business t-A. The deliuquent business on which
there was a iiabiiity during delinquency, 981 policies, $2,650,100.

Q. And the others ?-A. The others were those that had failed to pay and had
the right of reinstateinent within a year.

Q. Read what the report says?-A. 'Policies or certificates delinquent with the

right of reinstaternent IDecemiber 3lst, under an order on which association's liability
is suspended during delinquency, 13,529, covering $36,409,000.'

Q. What were the others ?-A. Policies or certificates delinquent with the right
of reinstatement iDecember 3lst under an order on which association's liability con-
tinued during deiinquency.

By the lIon. Mr. MeSweeney:

Q. That is the first year you made the distinction ?-A. Tbat is the first year I
made the distincition in the schedule, but at the end of 1897, and again at the end
of 1898 I made the statement in my report.

Q. -kow coiild they get reins tated t What would they have to do?-A. The by-
laws which are in contain it.

Q. State it shortiy.-A. If you pass me the by-law I will read it as the most dis-
tinct way in which I can state it. The by-law reads as follows: 'The executive shall
have power to reinstate a delinquent member at any time within a year for good cause
shown-articie 11, second paragraphi of section 6-and upon satisfactory evidence of
good heaith and upon payment of ail delinquent dues and assessments.'

Q. What would be necessary to be done? H e wouid have to be examined again

by a doctor? -A. Under the miles of the association, if the delinquency had not ex-
tended over thirty days we would receive the payment and give him a conditional»re-
ceipt-that is a receipt conditional upon his being in good heaith. If it had not
extended for ten days we wouid reinstate upon a satisfactory certificate of health; if
ninety days, weF, requîred a medical examination and the payment of delinquent dues

and assessments in ail cases, flot simply in the hast case.,
Q. IPerhaps without going into the report you would be able to explain this; I

have taken this out of the report; according to the iNew York report of the year 1900,
the total amount paid by members was $4,000,000 t-A. $4,836,897.88.

Q. That is the Connecticut report t-A. Yes.
Q. What is the ainount paid by members according to that report h-A. $14,12 6,-

841.93.
Q. Then this is the lMassachusetts report of the saine year :Total premiuma in-

corne given in the report the year ending December 3lst, 1900-
A. $5,881,365.68.
Q. Here is the Wisconsin report the same year ending December 3lst, 1900 t-A.

$5,883,868.56.
Q. Now take the report to the Insurance Department of the State, of New York-

what was that in 1900 t-A. $4,83 6,897.88.
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Q. That was the total income during 1900 ?-A. That was the total paid by mem-

bers, according to the New York report.
Q. What was the total income stated in the officiai report made to the Depart-

ment of Massachusetts for the year ending 3lst iDecember, 1900 ?-A. $14,302,480.66.Q.And Wisconsin, what was the total income I-A. $14,304,983.54.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.What icorne?-A. The income of the compauy.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q.The premium income ?-A. The premium and other income-the whole income.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. That would be the income of the company everywhere I-A. That would be

the income of the company in accordance with the requirements of that particular
blank.

Q. But everywhere; it would not only be in that state I-A. The income on the
whole business of the company.

Q. In Canada--A. It includes Canada.
Q. In each case it would be that ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is the difference hetween those ? Why is there so much difference ?-

A. It will be a 'very lengthy explanation.
Q. IPerhaps you can state shortly why it was ?-A. I cannot, Mr. Chairman.

This matter lias been brouglit up once on criminal libel, and I was on the stand for some
time and it took me some days to analyse the matter so as to present it in a clear
manner. I will explain it in the shortest possible way that I can. Iu 1900, as bas
been stated be-fore ini my te.stimony, the company reinsured partially the business of
the North Western Mutual Lif e Assurance Company of Chicago. lIt received £rom
that company aý certain amount of cash assets and it received certificates of liens or
loans which the company had taken in changing its business to a level premium busi-
ness, which. certificates of liens or boans represented the reserves at the time of the
exchange. These liens or boans were recognized by the State of-Illinois as a part ofthe assets of the lNorth Western, and we so received them. We reported to the State
of Massachusetts as a legal reserve company. We reported to the State of New York

and to the State of Connecticut as an assessmeut company; three diflereut blanks,
covering three diff1erent classes of business, regulated by three different statutes, were
sent us to be fllled out. We followed the requirements of those several blanks sofar as we possibly could. In the State of Connecticut, for instance, as f ar as
the blank was concerned and as far as our judgment went, we were compelled to
include the liens and the asseÎs received from the policy-holders of the North West-
ern Life as among subsequent years' assessments or premiums received from our policy-
holders, which made the amounts paid by members, as returned to the State of Con-
necticut, somaething over $14,000,000. Iu the State of Massachusetts there was au
item under- the income, and outside of the items that cover the premium ineome, which
reads: 'Ledgei, assets other than premiums received from other policies for assuraing
their risks.' Ulnder the requirements of that blank it is made necessary to carry these
liens, and so far as that individual item, which is 16 in the schedule of income, they
of course could not go into the item of premiums, and therefore the item of pre-
miums was reduced by that amount, while in Connecticut it was increased by thatamount. lu the State of Wisconsin it was also the requirement 'Ledger assets other
than premiums received from other companies for assuming their risks.' Anud that
was carried outside of premiums and into income in the sehedule. The same return
was made to the State of New York, but the New York Department ruled that under
the N&ew York law, which of course we have in our country, a separate law in every
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state. There is no federal legisiation as to insurance. Every state is a law unto
itself, and has its own law, which varies from everS, other state. The New York lI-
surance iDepartment ruled that under the New York law anything received as repre-
senting the reserve other than cash could nlot be included in the income or could not
ho included in assets because they had no authority to include under liabilities any
reserve against assessment policies. They, therefore, excluded that item entire]y of
these licns £rom the schedule of assets. They did the same in reference to the liens
then taken by us on policies that we had changed to a contract reserve basis because
they charged us with no liability. As it would flot appear in the assets, it must corne
out of the income, but under the instructions of the New York Insurance iDepartment
II made a return excluding it from incoxue, exoluding any items rela Ling thereto from
disbursements, and excluding any items relating thereto, from assets, anad appended
to my statement to the New York Insurance iDcpartment was also a statement of why
I did this, what the amounts were, and that it was donc under instructions of that
department, that item will account for the discrepancy in income between these dif-
ferent stateinents, excepting that in the two statements rendered on the assessment
biank we will find an item deposit received during 1900, assessments paid before due,
$234,480.46. These were assessments deposited. 'efore they were called, and under
the stipulated premium law and under the old line law they were count'ed as pre-
miums received on account of the year's current premnium, but under the assessment
law they were treated simply as deposits made, from which assessments were in the
future to be paid as called. They, therefore, appear in that statement as deposîts, and
thon subsequently as calîs in the premiums, the deposits flot being a portion of the
premiums under the blank, and under disbursements you wilI Eind correspondingly in

the assomsment blanks item to covor thiose premiums so paid, and transferred to assess-
ments from deposit, whîch will show an alteration and discrepancy in the outgo be-
tween these blanks and those on which we return the legal reserve and stipulated pre-
mium. business. The final analy.si of these different statemetits comen dowxn to the
same matter ultimately, with the exclusion of these particlar items that I have re-
ferred to, with the exception of an item amounting to about $2,000, which in the re-
port made to Massachusetts iDepartment at the end of 1899 was admitted as an asset
-it was some premium notes-bocause there was a reserve charged against those poli -
cies, and it was a permissible asset. In Wisconsin at the end of 1899 we have made
our returns as an assessment company, and that item could not be adniitted, but xvhen
wa came f0 make our return as a stipulated premium company the next year if be-
came a legitimate asset 'but if had to go into the inconme in order to get it ilito Our
assets, and therefore in that respect the Massachusetts and the Wisconsin statoments
diffor by just about $8,000.

Q. What is the groatost differenco? Some maillions i-A. The greatest difference
is some million.

Q. Take the report of the State of NÇew York of the total amount paid to mem-
bers for the year ending 31sf December, 1900 ?-A. $3,451,908.33.

Q. Take the report of the State of Connecticut <5f the total amount paid f0 policy-
holders for that year?-A. $4,696,563.77.

Q. So that in Connecticut you paid $1,9,44,655 more than you paid in the New
York report l-A. It consisted of those notes and liens which the New York iDeparfmaent
instructed us to oxelude, which were concelled. by reason of the lapse of policies, they
being in thoý assefs under the Connecticut blank. In order to romove them from the
assots with the lapsed policies, they had to bo cbarged under disbursements f0 makze
the balance, but not being included in the assets at aIl undor instruction of New York,
they do not appoar in the disbursemênf s.

Q. But that is paid the policy-holdcrs ?-A. Yes.
Q. llow can you say you paid $1,224,000 more to policy-holders when you did

not psy if I-A. Because there was that amount of lien notes that ceased to be in force
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by reason of the lapsed policies, and the blank as prepared by the department requires
us to put down any notes so terminated by lapses as dishursements 10 the policy-holders.

Q. And so before that those liens would go down in your statement -as cash 1-A.
Oh no.

Q. They were what you said were actual assets of the company. You said you
could put a lien on the policy for a thousand dollars and make it worth a thousand
dollars 1-A. I did flot state anything of the kind.

The Committee then adjourned until 10 a.m., to-morrow, 22nd .Junzx

OTTAWA, June 22, 1904.

The Committee resumed at 10 ar.

Mr. GEORGE ELoiooDE-Mr. Chairman, before proceeding with the evidence, I de-
sire to hand you copies of the by-laws of the Mutual I1e-erve as now in existence.
Last night when I turned tbem up there seemed 10 be a reflection that I had not com-
plied with what was requested-not on your part, but I desire 10 hand you the con-
tract received by me, asking speciflcally for this, and I also desire, before proceeding,
to caîl attention to the fact that the counsel last night asked me to produce a certain
report that I had iiot made to the board of directors in regord to expenses, stating
that 1 had been ordered to produce it here, and evidently laying the foundation for
producing a copy. I had flot my order with me at the time, and, even if I had, I
should have accepted his staternent as made in good f aith and true, because he had the
staternent before him. As a matter of fact, I had flot been ordered 10 produce that
report.

By Mr1. Coster, Counsel for the Committee

Q. Have you the report ?-A. I have flot.
Q. Would you take those reports to the Insurance Department of iNew York ; 1

have made up a little statement here which I would like 10 check from the report, and
sc whether il is correct, with reference 10 the building. Il is taken from those
reports. 1896 was the first one. In 1896 rent, $144,673.94, expenses, $131,662.58, leav-
ing a balance of $13,011.36. Is that correct ?-A. Ihose are the figures clitained
in this report. What the expenses covered I do not know.

Q. But is that correct by the report ?-A. Yes.
Q. Take the next one, 1897. You have rent, $147,303.28, axpenses, $136>697.51 ?

-A. Yes.
Q. Balance.- $10,605.77 ?-Aà. 'fhosa are the figures there contained.
Q. That is the sworn report 10 the Department of New York ?-A. Il does not

necassari]y show the net income of the building, because il may have been chargad 10
the sinking found or bo interest on the invested monies in the expanse.

Q. That is what you submittad ?-A. I will submit to the Committea a statement
of ail receipts and of aIl expenses detailed under the varions heads of each and avery
year, s0 as to show exactly the relation, and I have alraady talegraphed, subsequent
Ici the hearing last night, to New York for that ho be praparad.

Q. And did you gel that report of yours that you made, which. you said you did
flot gel notice 10 produce ? It was flot mantioned iii the notice to produce, but I
should like you 10 produce il ?-A. 1 should flot ha able bo idantify il without the
original. I arn willing Ici send for tha original.

Q. Now take 1898. ave you 1898 ?-A. Yes.
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Q. $147,706.82 rent, and expenses $139,463.86 ?-A. SubWet to the saine rernark.

Q. Balance $8,242.96 ?A. Subjeet to the sarne rernark.
Q. Tihat is the sworn statemeut you put in. Did you sigu that report ?-A. I do

flot know whether the expenses include the interest on the investmeut or not. I cannot
tell at this time.

Q. Who swore to the report there ?-A. iMr. Burnham swore to it.
Q. Who was the 1896 report sworu to by ?-A. The figures a.re uuquestiornably

correct, covering ail the items, but I do not know whether there was iucluded in that the

interest oui the investmcnt or not, and T ean only tell when I get tho detailed staternent
which I have telegraphed for, of what every expenditure was for. 1 have ordered them,
divided.

Q. Who swore to the 1896 report ?-A. Mr. 13û'riuam.
Q. Who swore to the 1897 report ?-A. Mr. Burnharn.
Q. And the 1898 report, Mr. Burnliar. Now take the 1899 report. WVho swore

to that ?-A. I did.
Q. That is swurn tu by yourself ?-A. I swore to it.
Q. The rent was $140,334.04 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Expenses, $127,038.18. And the balance, $13,295.86. Now, 1900, please?-

.A. Yes.
Q. $131,911.21 for rerit, and expenses $130,354.45, showiug a balance of $1,556.46?

-A. Stibject to the saine statement; yes.
Q. Who was that sworu to by ?-A. By myself.
Q. iNow, who swears to the 1901 statement?-A. 1\Myself.
Q. iRent $12S,767.72. Is that right?-A. Yes.
Q. Expenses $135,059.9î ?-A. Correct, suibjcct to the saine remark.
Q. Showing a différence of $6,292.259?-A. Subject to the saine staternt; cor-

rect.
Q. In 1902, who is that staternent sworul to by ?-A. By myseif.
Q. The 1902 staternent is in that one there. Tlie tbree ycars are therc ?-A. Yes.

Q. $139,246.70 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Expenists $125,317.4'l?-A. Yes.
Q. Sbowing a balance of $13,000? A. Yes.
Q. Iu 1903, rent $142,440.73, expenses $121,371.80, showing a balance iii favour

of the company of $22,000 ?-A. Yes, that is the staternent.
Q. All those statements of rent for eight years iticlude the $401,400 rent paid

for borne office by the lMutuai iReserve Company, $50,400 per year, is it riot ?-A. I arn

flot confident that during ail those eight years the $50,400 was cliarged.
Q. Look at the reports. It is stated iu there that this is ail taken frorn tbhi

reports. That is the fact and I oniy want to get it on the minutes. Two years,

$49,500, and the rest of the time $50,400 is what the reports show, amounting in al
to $401,400, arnount paid ?-A. The report does not show at the end of 1896, the

charge; at the end of 1897 il shows $49,500, and I presurne '96 was the sarne.

Q. And '98-$54,400 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Then that wouid make that correct. Then ou that you wouid say that $528.212

as shown by'that report as invested in the building, xvhen the lease expires that

$528.22 will be forfeited to the Weld Estate, wiii it not?-A. There is $483,000 in-

vested in that.
Q. Look in the 1896 report, the samne scbeduie I-A. This is the 1896 report.

That arnount stated there iuciuded furuiture afl(l 50 forth. The arnount îiivested in

the buildiug itself is $483,000.
Q. IRead that arnount there in the sworu staternent, the amount paid on con-

struction ?-A. Arnount paid on account of construction of 14-story bomne office

building at the northwest corner of Broadway and IDuane street, New York City,
$528,022. There wis subsequent]y an adjustrnent between thern.
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Q. That is the sworn statement that went ini ?-A. In 1896, but it is flot the sworn
statement at the saine tinte.

Q. It was flot true ?-A. It was triie, but there had flot been the adjustment
between the Weld Estate and the company at that time which subsequent]y took
place, and placed the building on the ba.sis it now stands ujýon the books of the
cornpany.

Q. IDid the Weld Estate return you some rnoney I-A. There was an adjustrnent
of the accounts which Ieft the amount of the cornpany's investmnent in the building
$476,653.50, which was subsequently increased by some additions to the amount at
whieh it stands to-day, $483,666.50.

Q. Did lie Weld Estate return the company any money?-A. I do not know
wbat the particulars of the adjustment were.

Q. If they did return you any money, would you kindly show it to nie iii your
reports where it is entered ?-A. It would not appear in our income.

Q. Do you mean to say $100,000 could be returned to you and not be shown ~
A, It would be exactly the saine as any other investment that might bc made and
disposed of. If we had sold a $100,000 worth of bonds, the proceeds of the bonds
would not appear in our income.

Q. Will you say they did return a dollar of the money ?-A. I do not swear yes or
no in regard to that, because I arn not coversant with the conditions of the adjustment;
but I know that the arnount invested in the building at the present time is $483,666.50.

Q. You remember that exactly to the cent, and yet you do flot rernembor- ?-A.
I have verified it a number of tirnes in swearing to the repart silce then. I did not
swear to the report in 1896.

Q. Who swore to the report in 1896 ?-A. Mr. Eurnharn.
Q. Who prepared it ?-A. Portions of it were prepared by myseif.
Q. Was it not all prepared hy you, or under your supervision ?-A. Portions of it

were prepared by myseif and portions of it were prepared by other officers of the coin-
pany.

Q. Ijîder your direction ?-A. Not afl of it, no.
Q. Were you not actuary of the company ?-A. I ws
Q. Was not the whole report prepared under your direction ?-A. The schcdue of

real estate-
SQ. Let me look at the report of 1896. Is your naine flot signcd to it 'George D.

Eldridge, actuary' ?-A. Yes, it is there. I signed it and certified to it.
Q. And over your signature are the words, 'I hereby certify that the above is cor-

rect' ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now you say it is flot correct ?-A. I did not say auything of the kind.
Q. Would you kindly look at the report of 1900. Total amount paid to niembers,

$3,451,908.33. Is that correct ?A. It is c'orrpec.
Q. Total dishursements, $5,077,247.84 ?-A. That is correct.
Q. Look at the Connecticut report the saine year ?-A. Mr. Chairman, last night,

in order not to appear in the attitude of attempting to conceal the fact of these dis-
crepancles between the various reports, I answered in reference to these four reports
and explained in brief the reasons of the discrepancy between them. I now ask a
ruling of the Committee on this point. The law of Canada takes cognizance of two
reports from this company, one of the Canadian business, made upon n blank furnished
by the Canadian Insurance Deparatment; one of the general business, to be made in the
form required by the Insurance Department of the law of the state where incorporated.
This company reports to forty different governments, including Great Britain and
governments across the water, and you miglit just as well take up the forty odd reports
made upon different blanks prepared by different departments, with authority to exact
whatever they required and to bave the report m ade in the formi that they required, as
any of these reports. 1 have explained in general these discrepancies between these
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w eports. I appeal to the Chairman whether it was necessary to go into ail these
ýatters beyond this general explanation.

Q. Who swore to the Connecticut report ?-A. I presume that I did.

By the Hon. Mr. Landr~y:
Q. Your contention is that these reports are nlot made on the same basis 1-A. No,

enot on the same basis or same requirements.
Mr. AYLESWORTH.-I submit these matters have no bearing whatever upon the pre-

sent inquiry.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. You are nlot in every state of the Union ?-A. No, we are flot ini every state.

Two states have declined to issue our license, California and Illinois. and in others we
have flot applied for admission; but we are in states representing two-thirds of the
population of the United States.

Mr. COSTE.-I submit it is not unreasonable to ask the witness to explain these
discrepancies.

The CHAIRMAN.-Under the circumstances, I think counsel is entitled to obtain
from the witness an explanation of that fact-how in one0 state it can ho aflirrnd under
oath that a certain amount is paid and that in another state a less amount is paid.

WIrxESS.-Counsel asked me -identically the same question last night, and I
answered it.

By the Hon. M1 r. McSweeney:

Q. That is about ail the answer you can give ?-A. The answer I have given is
that in New York we were specially instructed by the department that ail matters of
liens received from the INorth-western Life and also from our own policy-holders, wcre
to be excluded from our assets, and therefore, must bc excluded f£rom our income and
disbursements. In Connecticut those items were admitted as assets, and therefore
appeared in our income, and in our disbursements, and the difference rests in the fact
that New York admitted only the cash assets, and that Connecticut admitted the lien
assets, including those received-

By the Chairman :
Q. What bearing would that have on that item of payment to the members, three

million in one state and two million in another ?-A. We received from the North-
western, for instance, $8,000,000 liens.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee

Q. What is the amount ?-A. We received in round numbers from the Non hi-
western about $8,000,000 in liens, which went into our income. That is in the states
which admitted that as a portion of our assets.

Q. Would it not bc over $8,000,000 ?-A. It is about $8,000,000.
Q. It would be between $8,000,000 and $9,000,000 ?-A. About that ; of those

liens a certain number of the policies against which there were liens ceased
to be in force during the year 1900, and the liens on those policies were about
$12,000. That $12,000 having appeared in the income, the policies having ceased
to be in force, and the liens ceasing to be assets must be disposed of through
the disbursements of the company, and they appear as liens on policies ceased through
lapsation, and under department requirements those were listed as payments to policy-
holders, so that that $1,200,000 appears in the Connecticut report as a payment to policy-
holders, and consists in a great measure of the lapsed policies under liens which had
ceased to be in force in lieu thereof-' Policies including liens or premium notes
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voided by lapses, $1,279,525.8V. That appears in the Connecticut report and does ncqi
appear in New York.

Q. Deduet those amounts fromn the amount, and sec if you do nlot get a balance
of $5,195.73 still net taken ?-A. I know what that means.

Q. What does it mean ?-A. The amount of money expcndcd for furmiture.
Q. Llook at the New York report, item 13, and that is exactly the reason I merm

tioned that amount, $5,195.73 reported as paid for furniture ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was paid for furnîture in the building in New York ?-A. Yes, for th,.

building in New York and in our branch offices, furniture in different places.
Q. Now look at the samne item in the Connecticut report, item 14 ?-A. Yes, Uo

states noue.
Q. It states 'furniture noue' ?-A. Yes.
Q. llow do you. account for that ?-A. I account for it in this way, that iiN

counting the furniture, the fixtures were carried as an asset and were exclnded f rom ou
admitted assets, under the portion of the schedule in the blank furnished by Connect-Ià
cut, 'Deduct assets not admitted.' In New York, on the contrary, the blank does nlot cal
for furniture in the ledger assets, but calls for it to be excluded otherwise-not il«
cluded at ail in our assets, and therefore became an expenditure, while et the othew
point it was simply an investment.

Q. There is an item asking for furniture iii the New York reports ?-A. Yes.
Q. And also in the Conuecticut report ?-A. Yes.
Q. And in the Connecticut report you say there is noue ?-A. Yes.
Q. And in the New Yorki report you say there is $5,195 ?-A. As long as in tham

Connecticut report, the f arniture was carried as a ledger asset, it could not be in
cluded in disbursernents. In iNew York, by special provision of the blank, it was ex
cluded fromn iedger assets and therefore must be made a dishursement. The resut'
was as long as it appeared in Connecticut it wvas exclnded under the item of nog
admitted assets. In iNew York it did flot appear at ail in ledger assets.

Q. In the Massachusetts report you also sxvear that there are noue ?-A. Tho
New York report was the only one ini which tbat item appeared as a dishursement. Il
ahl the other reports it appeared as an investment or ledger asset. It was excludee-
under the assets not admitted.

Q. And in the Wisconsin report you say there is no furniture ?-A. The Neý,
York report was the only one in which that item appeared as a disbursement. In ail tht
other reports it appeared as a ledger asset of the company.

Q. In the New York report yon say you paid ont $5,195 for furniture, and iii
ail the other reports-I think you swore to them all ?A. 1 did.

Q. You swore you paid notbing for the furniture ?-A. I say that nothing weni
into the matter of disbursements for furniture, it went into the ledger assets, and thte
distinction was a distinction required by the department in the blank.

Q. By the sworn report to the New York departmnent-check me if I arn wrong,
bnt I am satisfled these are correct-the total paid to memibers is as follows :Nevw
'York, $3,451,908.33 ; Connecticut, $4,696,563.77 ; difference, $1,244,655.40.. Disburse-
ments-New York, $5,077,247.84; Connecticut, $6,316,707.55 ; difference, $1,239,459.71

Q. Those are the figures which yon have explained how they occurred ?-A. Yes.
Q. I think yon have already said that you were one of the parties who conductel

the negotiations or contraet under which the Provincial Provident Institution of St.
Thomas, Ont., was consolidated with the Mutual Reserve ?-A. Yes.

Q. Was the contraet reduced to writing ?-A. It was.
Q. Hlave you it ?-A. I have not. You wili find it printed in the officiai blue-boole

of the Canadian Insurance IDepartment of the year 1896 or 1897. A copy was filed.
Q. With the Provincial Provident ?-A. Yes.
Q. There was one made before that that is printed in the blue-book ?-A. No.
Q. Neyer but that one made ?-A. That was the contract. Allow me to explain

one matter. There was'a contract made with the Provincial Providentdirectors, my
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-- collection is of 'the l7th June, 1897, and when it came to be carried out, there were
--ertain provisions in it that the Provincial Provident could not carry out, and they

alled a meeting of their policy-holders as of the 9th February, 1897-I think that was

'*e date-at which they submitted the contract of June l7th, with the modifications
*alled for, and that was confirmed by the meeting of the policy-holders as of the 9th

'ebruary, and my impression is that both of theni are printed in the blue-book.
Q. Did the first agreement provide in any way, directly or indirectly, for payment

r remuneration to the trustees or to any of the officers of the Provincial ýProvident
nstitution ?-A. The flrst agreement did not.

Q. But any agreement ?-A. There was an agreement cntered into with three meu

epresenting the trustees, or who had been trustees of the Provincial Provident, that
nepon their carrying certain conditions contaiiîod in the flrst contract there should be
),aid to them certain remuneration for their services in transferring the business.

Q. Do you remember how lunch that was to be ?-A. I do not reniember. If they

paid the admission fees they werc to receive the admission fees on the business and
hey wcre to receive a certain percentage of the expense dues received thereafter.

eVbea they came to carry out that contract they tendcred trust funds of the Provincial
'Irovident to cover admission fees under thc contract. We refused to accept the trust

pKunds for any sucli purpose, and they were advised, as I understand, that they had no
iower to transfer the trust funds in that way. Thercupon they eallcd this meeting uf

,he policy-holders and submitted a modifiéation of the contract which provided for the

.rust funds to be turned over to the Mutual iReserve chargcd with the trust which rested
~ipon tbcm, as accumulated, and1 they were so turned over to the Mutual iReserve and

Wreceived by them.
Q., What was the amount that they were bound to pay these trustees, whoever they

Mwere ?-A. If they paid the admission fees on the business, which w,;s $8 a thousand,
Phey were to receive that.

Q. IIow much each would it amount to ?-A. I do not know. It '.as about $8 a
Othousand the admission fee would be.

Q. IIow many thousand dollars or tens of thousands of dollars would it amnount

to-$12,OO,OOO at $8 ?A. If the admission fees had beeen paid they would have
mamonnted iu round sum to about $100,000.

By the Hon. Mr. MeSweeney :

Q. For those three men ?-A. They were trustees, I presumne, for ail the directors
of the Provincial Provident.

By MIr. Coster, Couinsel for the Committee

Q. Is it or is it not a fact that thc counsel for the Mutual lieserve Fund Life

Association, iii Toronto or soînewhere else, bas stated that if that contract was carried
ont it would put the parties coucerned in the penitentiary, or words to that eifeet ?-I
do not know wbether he did or did not.

Q. You neyer heard of it ?-A. 1 neyer heard of lis stating tbat.
Q. That their own couasel adviscd tbern that if this agreement, as first made, a

carried out it would put all the parties in the penitentiary ?-A. No counsel cver did
adylse us anytbing of tbe sort.

Q. Or words to that effect ?-A. No. Colin MeiDougal, tbc counsel of the Pro-

vincial Provident, stated to the trusteees of the Provincial Provideut, that, if they under-
took to transfer those trust funds for the purpose of receiving them back as their com-
pensation, they would be fortunate if they did îlot land in the pcnitentiary.

Q. But he did not think there would be any harm in your paying the money ?-A.
We declined absolutely to receive it for any such purpose.

Q. But tbe first contract was made agreeing to pay it ?-A. No, it was not.
Q. Was there not a suit brought to recover it ?-A. There was, and the suit was

dismissed.
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Q.Why ?-Because it was an illegal contract ?-A. Recause they had no0 stand-
ing ini court. We had flot received the xaoney which they tendered us in the way that.
they tendered it to us, and we refused to receive it in that way. We received it as truste
funds, charged with the trust, and then they came and sued for that trust money to beq
paid to them as their compensation.

Q. If you had carried out your agreement and paid them, what fund would you
have taken it out of ?A. We neyer made the agreement to pay them that trust fund.

Q. What was the suit brouglit on ?Was it flot brouglit on the contract or on an
alleged contract ?-A. On an alleged contract.

Q. And they produced it in writing, did they not î- à. No, sir, they did not pro-
duce it.

Q. Was it not; in writing ?-A. My impression is they did not produce it.
Q. It was not in writing ?-A. It was. The contract with the trustees was in

writing.
Q. And by that first contract, agreeing to pay them a sum whàich would be equal

to about $100,000 ?-A. The first contract was a contract with the trustees to transfer
the risk, and a provision was therein contained that they shouldl pay to the company
certain money as admission fees and dues. They failed absolutely to make that pay-
ment to the company and the contract ceasled. They then had on their hands certain
moneys which were trust funds, and their license was suspended, and they came to
Ottawa, got a restoration of their license for the purpose of caliing a meeting of policy-
holders to secure the transfer of those trust funds to the Mutual Reserve, charged
with the trust under which they had been accumulated, and they held that meeting
by the vote of the policy-holdests, and instructed us te transfer them. and did so transfer
them. and clainied they had made the payment of the admission fees.

Q. Would you kindly look at that and tell me if that is flot a copy of the recom-
mendation submitted by you to the company ?-A. I cannot tell wbether it is or not.

Q. iRead it over ?-A. I cannot tell by. reading it over. It is a document I have
flot seen for a number of years. I was flot subpoenaed to produce it and I could Dot
tell by reading it over whether it is a copy 'or not.

Q. Have you produced any of the things you have been asked to, produce ?A.
I have flot been asked to produce anything here except one or two matters specifically.

Q. It evidcntly is flot an entîre document by any mnanner of means. Look at it
and sea ?-A. I can recollect that this is flot the entire document that 1 submitted
to the board of directors. I was not subpoenaed to produce that document and I have
flot seen it for five or six years, and I cannot tell you wliether these four pieces of
paper are a portion of that document or not. I have offered to have the document
brought from New York at the earliest possible moment, and it will be liere, but as
for testifying whether thes'e four pages, which are evidently not the entire document
and do flot contain the signature or the beading, are a portion of a certain document
I have not seen for years, I cannot testify. We have telegraphed to have it here.

Q. Would you say that those are not ail the recommendations you mnade ?-
A. I won't say anything with reference to that sheet of paper.

Q. Look over these leaflets and tell the Committee whether those were issued with
or by the authority of the company ?-A. In a general way I presume they were.

Q There are leaflets and so-called facf s concerning the Mutual Reserve issued by
the compauy to their policy-holders and agents (leallets flled as exhibits). I wish td
cail your attention to leaflet 10 A, ' invested assets Pecember 31, 1899, $3,461,230.22,'
that is correct, is it flot ?I v iii cali your attention to the fact that there is a differ-
ence of $732,059.29, and I ask you which one is correct ?-A. The report to the New
York department divides the assets between iedger assets or the mortuary or contin-
gent assets, and this is the sum, of the two.

Q. Did the mortuary department admit those mortuary cails to be made as an
asset ?-A. They admit it as an asset against unmatured mortuary liabilities. They
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require the case assets and the accrued liabilities to be set forth in one schedule. The

unatured mortuary liabilities-that is, dead losses reported but none due-to be set

forth in another schedule with the funds called to meet them as a deposit against it,

the sumn of the two would bc the assets of the- company, and the surplus would be

obtained by taking the combined liabilities and deducting them froin the combined

assets.
Q. And that différence of $73,,000 is made up by addrng on to the sworn report

the mortuary calis which 'were not due g-A. Which were due.

Q. Which were not due ?-A. Which were due, but which had the thirty days

of grace in which to make the pnyment.

Q. They were due g-A. They were due, but they had the thirty days' grace.

QNothing more l-A. No.%
Q.When is th e rnortuary cali issued by the company ?-A. It is issued on the

M1st day of Pecember.
Q. And this would be the 3lst iDecember i-A. This would ho the 31st December.

Q. So, therefore, they would be all duc?-A. I testifled they were ail due, but

they were witbin the days of grace not paid. Aside from that, however, they were

Q. They had thirty days' grace, had they flot 2 The cali was made on the lot

day of December. And they had thirty days' grace. Therefore, on the 31st day of

December they wcre ail due and overdue and unpaid. The day you made that report,

and ail those, policies would have lapsed if they had flot been paid?-A. No.

Q. Explain it ?-A. The regular mortuary call is made on the first week-day in

December, and as a rule is not expired until the first or second day of January.

Aside from that--
Q. Thirty days in December-the first week-day could not ho later than the

second of December t-A. No. it could not, and in that event the last day, of course,

would ho on the lst of January. Aside from that, beginning with the 1896 business

was not written to, f alI due upon the 1beginning of certain specified rnonths, but Cor-

responding with the date nt which the policy was issued, so that there was at al

times by this time policies that were f alling due every day, and that would be; in-

cluded in that amount also.
Q. Look at this paper produced ?-Are you the editor of that paper i-A. This

is a leaflet taken from the 'Guardian,' of which I arn editor.

Q. This is called the -Guardian,' George D. Eldridge, editor, issued Septembel

13, 1900, and at page 4, 1 find this is what appears in the report:-

'President Burnham is at the head of a company with 100,000 members, $225,-

000,000 insurance; $16,000,000 of interest; bearing resources and an annual income

of $8,000,000. There are not haif a dozen companies that can show this business.

The Mutual Reserve ranks amongst the first and it wiil ha the honest ambition of

Presîdent Burnham and his lieutenants to make it the best institution in ahl things

worthy of its rank.'
Q. Io that statement true t-A. It is so fair as I know, or was at that date.

Q. As a matter of f act, did the Mutuai iReserve Fund Life Association at any

period of its existence, have paid for insurance in force amounting to, $225,000,000?~

-A. It undoubtediy did.
Q. When was that l In 1900-because that is the date of this i-A. That does

not say paid for business.

Q. What did it mean ? What did you say it was intended for-that it was not

in force i-A. I mean to, say that that was issued, as a record of the association bY

which the Northwestern Life Insurance Company was consolidated with the Mutual

ILeserve. The consolidated assets and business of the company amounted to the sum

stated there. As to what would have been the resuit in the way of future maintenance

of the business it did not predict or did not say, but at that time with thei consolida-

tion of the two companies, those figures were correct. EDIG
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Q. How mucli w-as from the Northwestern ?A. There appeared on the bookis of

the company, as it stood at the time that the contract of re-insurance was made some-
thing like, face value, betweeen fifty and sixty million of business.

Q. But why did you say that it was about $20,000,000 yourself ?-A. I said it was
something over $20,000,000, that acceptedthe terms of the re-insurance and transferred
to us subsequentiy.

Q. So that then in this $225,000,000, this representation that you inake is insurance
in force and flot in force ?-A. It was the insurance in force in the IMitual iReserve
added to the insurance that appeared upon the books of the Northwestern at the time
of the consolidation of the two companies.

Q. Would you not say that that statement would be very deceiving to the public
to say that there was $225,000,1000 of insurance when you say you knew tbere was
nothing like that amount ?-A. I did not say that.

Q. Wby did you not say this $225,000,000 was not in force ?-A. Because that
would not be the fact.

Q. It was in force ?-A. That was the business on the books of the Northwestern,
as it was transferred to us.

Q. And paid for to them ?-A. Standing on their books in force.
Q. And paîd for to them ?-A. I do flot know. It stood there, whether ail of it

was paid for to them or whether a portion of it would be running i11 the thirty days'
grace, I do not know, but it was the business that appeared in force, and wbich. was
covered by the contract of re-insurance between the two companies as it appeared uponthe books at that date. If I arn not mistaken, it is explaîned in the other parts of the
document.

Q. You say then that there were 100,000 members, that that statement is correct,
do 7011 ?-A. I have not verifled the figures.

Q. Look at your insurance report, December 31, 1901, and sce what you swore to
there. You say there were 81,000 members ?-A. Yes.

Q. 81,076 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And yet in thîs paper you say there were 100,000 members. Whaich statement

is true? -A. That is of the early part Uf September, when this consolidation took place,
and wa.s the consolidation of the membership of the two companies. The report made
on the 31st day of December was as of the business at that date, after sifting out those
that failed to avail themselves of the contract of re-insurance, or that lapsed as a matter
of fact in the meantime.

Q. Phd you not, as a matter of fact, only get about $20,000,000 of insurance on
your books fromn that company ?-A. Counting it on the basis of the face of the insur-
ance, there was somewhere betweeen twenty and thirty millions that availed themselves
of the contract of re-insurance to pay future premiums, but we assumed as of the lst
day of September, 1900, ail business standing upon the books of the company as of thatdate, and carried the risks to the time that the next premium fell due, when tbey had
the riglit to renew or to discontinue as they saw fit.

Mr. AYLESWORTH.-I have flot objected, Mr. Chairman, but let me point out what
an 'extraordinary procedure this is. A witness is called and examined-in-chief-not
cross-examined at ail, or supposed te ho cross-examined-he is called as some one whc
can give information to this cominittee, and something is put in lis hands which hie bas
written, flot as ean officer of this company at al, but as the editor of some newspaper,
and hie is asked'as to whether that is true or not. What on eartb bas that to do with the
affairs of the company that I represent before this honourable body?~

lon. IMr. DomVILLE.-The company sent these papers to us and we received tbem.
Mr. OSTER.-And the editor himself is the vice-president of the company.
The CHAIRmA.-The objection would be well taken if these documents were notgent by the company to the policy-hoIdro., The coxnpany wonld flot ho responsible for
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any publication by one of its officers, but if the company forward that publication as
the condition of their affaira . then they become resýponsible for it. As long as these
documents have been used by the company to represent their views they must be
admissible.

Mr. CosTER.-We will undertake to prove they have beén sent out. I asked the
witness if they had been issued by the company, and lie said yes.

WITNESS.-I said in a general way I thouglit they were.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Comrnittee
Q.Take the sworn report of the, inqurance I)epnrtment of the State of New York

for 1900, page 7, schedule B ?-A. Yes.
Q. I see a statement there that at that time the Mutual iReserve Co. had 4,000shares of the National Life Insurance Co., the market value being given as $3092,000

and the amount in loans being $200,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is correct, is it not ?-A. That it held those shares as collateral for a loan

of $200,000.
Q. Look at the insurance report of 1901, New York Insurance report, Pecember

31, 1901, page 7, schedule B ?-A. Yes.
Q. la there anything there to show that the IMutual Reserve Life Association atthat date had the 4,000 shares of stock ?-A. They did flot, have that loan outstand-

ing at that date.
Q. What was the actual amount of the loan on these 4,000 shares of stock ?-A.$200,000. It was a security received by us from the Northwestern Mutual of Chicago

ini the re-insurance of the company's business.
Q. la there anything in that report of 1901 to show what became of the $200,000boan ?You say it was paid back ?-A. No more than of any other loan that would be

paid back or any other security disposed of.
Q. You can flnd nothing in the report of 1901 showing that- ?-A. There is noth-ing cafled for by these blanks to Show any changes that were made in investments, orwhere investments were paid in blank, does not caîl for anything of that kind. Itsimply calis for a sehedule at the end of the year for securities of the company ini which

moneys are invested.
Q. The money was returned ?-A. The loan was paid for.
Q. WThy does it not appear in the accounts ?-A. Why should it appear in theaccounts any more than any other ?
Q. Under what head does it corne Preniurn income-A. It does flot core

under any head in the income.
Q. Where it is shown b-A. It was already in the ledger assets of the company. Itdoes flot need to go into the income to continue in the ledger assets in1 a different form.If we sold a piece of real estate we should not put the proceeds of that sale in oui'income. It is merely a change of f orm of the investrnent.
Q. That is the only explanation you have to make ?-A. That is the only explana-tion that could possibly be made. This blank is not the balance sheet blank. It issÎmply a statement of income and disbursements, but it starts with the ledger assetsat the beginning of the year, and adds thereto the income, deducts therefrom thedisbursements, the balance being the ledger assets at the end of the year. Then itcails for a statement of what the ledger assets are invested in. That is the blank of

the New York Department.
Q. And the assets încreased. by that amount during the year, I suppose b-A.They did not. The $200,000 was in the assets at the beginning of the year in oneform, and in another forin at the end of a year also in the ledger assets.Q. la it irregular to take stock of another life insurance company b Do youknow that ?-A. Under the law of New York a life insurance company is forbidden
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to loan on or purchase the stock of another life insurance company, but there is a
provision that in a case of re-insurance. or in event of the cancellation of a debt, it je
permitted to take that security and count it into the securities for the time being.
It cannot hold it permanently under the law of New York.

Q. Look in that report of that year. I see $210,666.87 for cornmuting renewal
commissions. Is that right ?-No aliswer.

By Hon. Mr. Wilson :

QI think you stated the law of New York denied the company the right of pur-
chasing stock in another company ?-A. Yes.

Q. llow was it that they parchased the assets, the stock and interest of the P.P.I.
of Canada ?If the law of New York prohibited it. could they extend into a foreign
country, and purchase the company's stock there i-A. I did flot know the Provincial
Providcnce had any stock.

Q. You said stock and assets ?-A. No, I said the law of New York forbids us
to purchase or loan upon the stock of another insurance company.

By Hon. Mr. McSweeney .
Q.You bought it outright ?-A.. We simply took the business of that company.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. You then purchased the stock or business of the P.IP.I. contrary ta the law of

NÇew York ?-A. Not at ail. The law of New York forbids us purchasing the capital
stock or loaning on the capital stock of -any company: in point of f sot that law did
not exist in 1896. It has been enacted since; but it forbids us to purchase the capital
stock or loan on the capital stock of another insurance company. It did flot f orbid us
from purchasing the business in force in another company.

Q. Did you not, when that suit was entered against your company in New York
by Mr. Morgan-did you or did you flot plead the impossibility of the legal trans-
action of purch'asing this stock as one of the reasons why the suit should flot be pro-
oeeded with ?-A. We did not.

Q. I arn wrongly informed, if I have been inforrned that there was any stock of
the Provincial Provident ?-A. There was no stock of that company.

Q. You bouglit the assets I-A. The law of New York provides that an insurance
company shall not loan on the stock of another insurance cornpany, or to purchase
that stock. It does forbid us re-insuring the business of another company and taking
its assets in consideration of that re-insurance, but it does not allow us to buy the
capital stock of a stock corporation.

Q. Can you buy the iMitual operations ?-A. We can toke the business or we can
take the business of a stock company and receive consideration for that, but flot pur-
chase the shares of stock of sucli company.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. You can get possession ail the same ?-A. Yes.
Q. The resuit is the saine ?-A. No, I do not think the resuit je the same. What

the law of New York intends ie that a life insurance company shall fot loan its funds
or purchase the capital stock of another company whieh je intended to, run along as an
independent institution.

By Mr. CJoster, (Jounsel for the Ooinmittea

Q. Speaking of the purchase of the P.P.I., ail you know ie that you agree to pay
thera $100,000, or equal to that, and afterwards you found it would be illegal to carry
out your contract, and you did not give it to, them ?-A. No, that is not the situation.

Q. They did flot; get the money ?-A. They neyer paid us the money that wae the
foundation of the contract'or agreemjent.
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Q. They neyer got the money as a niatter of fact, did they ?-A. They neyer

carried out their agreement as to making -us the payment, and the payment was con-
ditioned on their first making payment to, the IMutual Reserve.

Q. They were to hand you $100,000, and you were to hand it right back to them 1

-A. If they paid us equal to the admission fees they were to receive consideration for

turning the business over to us, equal to the admission fees, and a percentage upon

future dues. When they came to tender us their payment, they tendered us trust funds

which were charged to the trust, and whichi we ieofused to receive because charged with
the trust.

Q. You got them ?-A. We got them charged with the trust for the new policy-

holders, flot however, to be paid to anybody as expense moneys. or anything else.

Q. So you found you were unable to carry ont your arrangement with them a

A. They were unable to carry out their arrangement with us.
Q. And you were unable to carry out your arrangement with them, too ?-A.

They were unable to carry ont their arrangement with us.
Q. They handed you over ail the assets they agreed to, ?-A. No, they did not

band us over ail.
Q. But they banded over to you the assets they represented themselves to have?

-A. On the order of their policy-holders, in a meeting called for that purpose, they were

instructed to turn over to us the trust funds of the institution charged with the trusts

under which they held them, and we were to receive them charged with that trust and

administer that trust for the benefit of the policy-holders.
Q. The only difference is, they were charged with a trust ?-A. There was a

material difference.
Q. But that was the only difference ?-A. No. We are administering that money

under a trust.
Q. They did carry ont their agreement to give it to yolu, subjeet to a trust l

A. They did not carry ont their agreement, and they asked, themselves, to have their

agreement modified, and secured froma the Dominion Government an extension of

t.heir license for the purpose of having it modifled.

By the Chairman :

Q. Do I understand that if these people had carried out their agreement, you

would have given thema some remuneration ?-A. If they had paid money as admission

fees without any trust on them, we should have paid the money to thema as the con-

sideration for doing so.
Q.Tley would get the benefit and not t.he policy-holdere I-A. Yee.

By. Mr. Coster, Oour&sel for the Committee

Q.With reference to that $211,666.637, what is that for ? You say from commuting

,renewal commissions I-A. It was for commuting renewals, agents' contracte, com-

missions that would fail due under them. We bought those renewals.
Q. You bought their contracts ?-A., We paid a lump sum instead of paying the

future renewa]s.
Q.How many agente do you think you paid that amount to I-A. I do not know.

Q.Abount how many ?-A. I do not know.
Q.About how many i-A. I do flot know.
Q.You were actuary of the company at the time, and made up the statements
Q.About how many agente did you pay that sumn of money to ?-A. I do not

know how many beneflted by it.
Q. There would have to be negotîations witli each one, because yau would have to

Ex the value of it, would you not ?-A. The various contracte would have to be bought
up, baeed on their value.
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Q. There would have to be negotiations on each one, because there would be no

fixed value in the contract-it waB the expectation of what lie would get ?-A. There
were certain rules about the purchase of renewal contracts.

Q.About liow many agents were there ?-A. I do not know.
Q.A dozen ?-A. I do flot know.
Q.Can you tell me the names of any of them ?-A. One of tlieu was named

Merrion.
Q. Wliat is lis first name ?-A. I forget lis name.
Q. What is his address ?-A. I think lie lives in IDetroit.
Q. About how mucli money did you pay him ?-A. I do flot remember now, but

the larger part of that was paid to i
Q. The larger part of that $210,000 was paid to him, was it ?-A. Yes.
Q. What is bis first name ?-A. I do not remember bis first name now.
Q. What was lie, an agent of the company, or what ?A. lie was a representative

of the Company v7ho represented the transfer of the Northwestern IMutual le
Assurance Conmpany to the Mutual Reserve-the re-insurance of that company.

Q. Wbat was bis name ?-A. I do not rememýber bis first name. I preeumc I
shall before 1 leave here, recali bis first name. 1 do flot recail it now.

Q. You say iMr. Merrion is of iDetroit, Midi. ?-A. I think lie is living in De-
troit. IMicli., now, but I ar nfot certain.

Q. Where was lie living then ?-A. In Chicago.
Q. What was be-a lawyer 1-A, lie was.
Q. How long had lie been agent of the company 1-A. I think lie was appointed

in May, 1900, that is mny impression. lie was the agent who secured the transfer
of this business to the Mutual Reserve, and it was under contract we gave him a
renewal intercst in that business, and we retired it by buying bis renewal interest

Q. So wliat you did was, you paid him $210,000 for bis services in securing the
transfer of that Nortliwestcrn Company ?-A. Iliat money was not ail paid to him,
but we entered into a contract with him for a renewal interest in business trans-
ferred to the Company, not the Northwestern, but a general contract and under it lie
secured this transfer, and lie had a renewal interest extending over severai years, and
the expenses of the premums-

Q. What you mean to say is, lie was employed by you to get thîs business 1-A.
Hie was employed by us under contract as an agent to secure the transfer of business
ta us, or secure business,

Q. And the greater part of that amount was paid to him 1-A. A very consider-
able portion of it was paid to him.

Q. liad that payment anything to do with those four thousand shares in the
National Life 1-A. No.

Q. xnere is absolutely no connection between those two transactions?-A. No,-
there is no connection at ail.

Q. Nothing at all?-A. We paid him the money.
Q. I know you paid him the moniey, but was there any connection between the

two transactions ?Did not tliat $200,000 get to him, eventually ?-A. Not $200,000,
but wliatever we paid to him got to him. It is on the statement here.

Q. That is -a different proposition; that is $211,000, but had not that $200,000 in
the National Life shares something to do with this 1-A. No.

Q. That money did not go to Merrion 1-A. There was a considerabie portion
of this $211,000 paid to Merrion, as I have testified. It was flot any particular suxu
of money to the company, it was any money, not more tliat money tlian any other.

Q. Did no portion of this $211,000 go to him 1-A. I do not say anything of the,
kind. Tlie money was taken from the funds of the company ýand paid to him. It
miglit just as weil bie tlie proceeds of that note as any other money. I do not know
any particular money that was taken to psy bim. Tlie money was paid him and 4t
was taken ont of the monies of the company.
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QLook at the report to the Insurance Department of New York, dated De-
cember 1, 1900, under the head of Lledger Assets. It appears, does it not, that there
was due from agents, $79,719.84 ?-A. Yes.

Q. And under the heading of Non-iedger Assets there appears 'agents $402,702.66'
~-that is right, is it ?-A. Yes, those are the figures.

Q. Those would he moneys advanced. to agents, would they ?-A. Yes.
Q. And these amounts together make $482,421.50 -A. Yes.
Q. In the sworn report made to the isurance 1>epartment of Wisconsin for that

sanie year, is the item 'Agents' Pebit Balance 8482,222.50' the saine as the two
items rclating to agents iin Lite report to the State of Newv York g-A. 1 have not
the Wisconsin report before me, but if they foot up the sanie they are the sanie.

Q. Look at page 2 of the statement banded to you-that is the sanie, is it net 1-
A. Yes, I presume practically the sanie.

Q. Now look in the report to the State of New York for December 31, 1901-
'Balances due from agents, $88,228.69'-is it not ?-A. Yes.

Q. And also look in that report at the items appearing under the head of non-
Iedger assets, and informi the Committee as to whether there is anythiag entered there
under that heading relating to agents' debit balances ?-A. The item is not entered
thère.

Q. Where is it i-A. It appears upon our ledgers, but is not entered in this
report.

Q. It is not in the report there i-A. No.
Q. Why is it flot in that report i-A. Because upon the New York Insurance

Department making an examination of the company, we based our report upon their
findings, and they did nlot carry that in as an asset.

Q. They would not allow it to you as an asset i-A. It was not claimed in the
other statement as an asset: it was excluded.

Q. Why was it put in one year and left out another year? It amounts to about
*40,000 ?-A. That was accumulated agents' balances running back almost to the
beginning of the company. and tney stili appear on our books as before, but are not
carried in this schedule.

Q. They are no good 1-A. I think they are of very littie value.
Q. They have no value ?-A. No value.
Q. But they were first ieft out in 1901 i-A. Yes, they were first left out in

1901.
Q.And that was by order of the departmnent ?-A. No.
Q.Wby did you snddenly take them, ont?-A. I do net know that there was any

particular reason. They had been carried for a number of years, and they did not
appear in our assets at ail, and they were finally omitted and only the live and cur-
rent accounts were carried into the ledger assets and have been carried since.

Q. How many policies about were there which provided for the payment of the
bonde in cash-roughly speaking ?-A. My impression is-of course none of those
policies were issued since I have been there. but my imprsession is it was with re
ference to policies issued since 1881. About 1,300 of those policies were issued.

Q. Would it not be Iess than 600 now g-A. Probaby there are not more than two
or three hundred. I do not know that there are even that many, but I arn only speak-
ing as a general impression. I am not attempting to testify accurately as to, the facts.

Q. No bond statements made any such provision and onlly a few of the bonds, did
they not, for the payment of cash ?-A. Comparatively few of the' londa and none of
the bond statements.

Q. And notwithstanding this fact, were not the bonds and bond statements indis-
criminate]y, cash and the proceeds thereof, paid as commissions to agents ?-A. No.

Q. You say that is not true ?-A. That is not truc,
Q. No portion of them. ?-A. N o.
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Q.You say then that that $394,000 list shown you £rom agents in IJecember, 1891,

less than there was in 1900, was practically written off ?-A. At the close of 1900, the
live accounts of advances to agents arnaunted ta $79,719.84. Aside from that, there
were accumulated amounts upon the books dating back to the beginùning of the com-
pany of $402,702.66. In the 1901 report the only account that is carried is of the live
accounts, representing $79,719.84 and the changes that may have occurred therein,
making it at the end of that year $88,228.69. The $402,702.66, which were moncys
expended in getting business and charged ta agents, was practically written off as an
expense of the company.

Q. Was any of that $394,000 and upwards paid into the treasury of the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association ?--A. I do not know whether any of it was or flot.

Q. If it was, it was very littie ?-A. It was very littie. It was accumulated
advances that dated back and accumulate on the books without being written off.

Q.Do they stand there naw ?-A. Yes.
Q.flw do they stand ?-A. They stand there as nothing except as accounts of

moneys that have been advances ta agents. They do flot; appear in aur assets.
Q. When does an advance to an agent cease ta be an asset I-A. It is never included

in the admitted assets of the company.
Q. What fund is it charged to whcn it is made ?-A. It is charged ta advances ta

agents and gocs into the schedulc of lcdger assets, but in making the statement of the
campany is deducted £rom the heading 'Non-adraitted Assets.'

Q. It is neyer admitted as assets ?-A. It is neyer admitted as assets.
Q. But the agents are supposed ta accaunt ta the company. When it cames back

how daca it corne ?-A. It is simply anc af the assets of the campany converted into cash.Q. But it is flot an asset 1-A. It is on the ledger as an asset, and as in the
statement made ta the public through the Insurance Department, it is never admitted
as an asset; it is always deducted as a nan-aclritted asset.

Q. In the flrst place, was there flot a sinking fund-some provision about making
a einking fund, for' what; was called real estate at the corner of Broadway and Duane
streets ?-A. There was an arnount carried ta the sinking fund and charged as one of
the expenses of the building for a time.

Q. Haw much did that amaunt ta I-A. I have flot the figures before me as ta the
aaunt.

Q. Look at page 98 and sec if that is flot there I Perhaps you could tell us £rom
memory what it is ; I think, as a matter of f act, it is $84,000 I-A. $84.403.19.

QIn what ycar I-A. 1898.
Q.See if you cannot find anather anc I-A. There is no such item.Q.Let us look at 1901 I-A. Yes, $52,260.09.
Q.What became of that I-A. It is among the assets of the company.Q.Wherc is it shown in your reports afterwards I-A. The separation is not made

After 1901 we ceascd ta repart upon the assessment blank ta the New York department
which called for those divisions and reported upon the legal reserve blank, which is au
entirely different blank, and doca not cail for it.

Q.And that sinking fund is there yet ?-A. We have the funds stili.Q.To the credit of that account I-A. With whatever changes may have occurred
in the meantime.

Q. fias it not increased I-A. I do flot know what changes have been made. At
the time of the change ta the aid line basis the New York departmcnt valued the lease-
hold at $526,000. We have adopted since then the practice of eharging off from the.
value of that building each year a sum that will reduce the leasehold expiration-at the.
expiration of thc leasehold wil wipe it out-so that we carry it in aur statement at
$490,000 instead of $526,000, at which the New York Insurance Departinent valued it
two years ago, a deduction being made on accaunt of the expired palicy-holders, and
being a substitute for aregular]y established sinking fund.
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Q.How mucli is the sinking fund you have there now, roughly speaking ?-A. I
have not examined it.

Q.Does it flot show in soine of the reports ?-A. No, it does flot.
Q.Here is a statement made frora those statements. You will see it is correct ?-

A. From those statemeuts made here in lump sums, I should be unable to go into these
figures of dishursements and the statements in the schedule 'C' and difference alleged.
As 1 stated, these figures cover ail our real estate, flot simply our building, and I arn
perfectly willing to obtain the facts and preseut them to the committee.

1Q. Will you admit that is a correct copy of the statement taken f romn the annual
report ?-A. No, I should admit nothing in regard to those figures.

Q. We will have to go over it.

Mr. AvLESWOaRT.-It May go in, I thiuk, on the statement of Mr. Coster that it is

practically correct.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee

Q.These are tables showing from the sworn reports year by year the disburse-
ments ou one page and the disbursements on another page in whieh there are very
large differences ?-A. I am perfectly willing to obtain the information in detail
which will enable me to go into it.

Q. This is a statement, the sworn reports of the Insurauce Departmnent of the
State of New York. In the year 1897 in one page of the report disbursemer'ts $137,-
5,54.87, and in schedule 'C' of the saine report $137,497, a difference of $56.92, and the
cost value of real estate, $535,528.14. What is that difference betweeu the two pages
of the report in the saine sworu report-how is it made up ?-A. I do flot know that
the two items are intended to cover the sarne matters, and I do flot know how the two
items are made up. I amn perfectly willing to obtaifi the making up of both the items
aud submit themn to the Committee ini detail, and untîl that is doue I canuot testify as
to whether the two items are iutended to tbe the samne.

Q. Iu 1898 there is a difference of $9,08 ?-A. IMy answer must be the sanie.
Q. In 1899 there is a difference of $27,284.40 ?-A. IMy answer must be the same.

I thirik I could explain it, but I ar nfot goiflg to ufldertake to explain it without haviflg
the details, anld 1 arn willing to brîng them to, the Committee.

Q.Afld iu 1900 there is a difference of $23,899 t-A. Yes.
Q.Saine auswer ?-A. Yes.
Q.nT 1901 there is a differefice of $52,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. In 1902 we have flot the report here, but in 1903 tbey are about the same:
that you do flot know how to explain t-A. I ar nuot attemptiug to explaju it with-
out the details aud seeiug the way the two items are made up.

Q. lu the 1897 report you state the cost of real e.state to be $535,528.14; iu 1898,
$563,318; ini 1899, $560,312; in 1900, $576,086; iu 1901, $679,910; iu 1902 the arnounts I
have nflot just before me. I rnay fil it in afterwards. In 1903, $682,848A04. Exhibit
il reads as follows
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REAL ESTATE AND InVETUENT EXPENSES.

TABLES showing expenses of Real Estate, including Taxes, as per statement nder the
heading of Dishursements, and as per Schedulee '0' in the sworn Reports to the
Insurance Department of the State of New York.

'Year. Dîsbursemnents. Sche dule C. Difference. Cci stae.o

1897 .... .......... ....-........ 137,554 87 $ 137,497 55 $ 56 92 $ 535,528 14
1898....................... ....... 141ù0 45 141,296 12 208 33 563,318 54
1899..... ..................... 101,736 64 129,021 04 27,284 40 560,312 44
1900 .... ................ ~ 108,669 32 132,569 li 23,899 79 576,086 31
1901........ .................... j 192,937 74 140,928 53 52,009 21 679,910 96
1902 ....................... .J ............ ...... ..............
1903 ... .... ..................... 125,703 74 12,0 0 .... 682,&8804

DISBURSEMENTS DURINO YEAR.

Yer.Taxes on Real Investment
Investment. Exee.

1897.............. ... ............. ........ ........... $ 19,091 04 2 ,304 00
1898 ......................... .... ... .... ...... -..... ..... 20,463 96 2,200 00
1899............................................ ......... ...2,516 16 1,450 00
1900 ............... .... ......... ............................. 3,204 71 1,200 0
1901........................ ................ .......... ........ 8,0357 1s 2,000< 00
1902 ............ .................. ........... .... ........ ............ -... ..........
1903.......................... .............. ................. 22,956 06 o00

Q.How did the -cost value of the real estate increase ?-A. Why there were con-
stant changes, we did flot own the same real estate -exactly, the same, items of real
estate ail the time; there were constant changes.

Q. You had real estate ail aver the world ;.-A. No, our real estate is confined
almost entirely ta New York, except some items in Chicago. The sehedule shows
how many items each year.

Q.But you neyer changed the value of any real estate ?-A. We probably, did
not change the book value. We may have changed the market value.

Q. But the cost value of the real e8tate i-A. The cost value of the real estate there
was as I have stated before. In reference to, the building there were certain adjust-
inents, of which I do not recaîl the details, which alter the valuation and book value
of those premises. Now in 1897 by the repart 1 see there is $19,091.04 taxes on real
estate and investment, and $2,304 investment expenses. In 1898 the taxes are $20,-
463.96 and $2,200 investment expenses. In 1889 the taxes are $2,516.16 and $1,450
investment expenses. In 1900, $3,204.71 and $1,200 investment expenses. In 1901,
$88,000 and $12,000 investment expenses, and 1902 is nat lllled in here. I will ses
that it is filled. in. And 1903, $22,956.06 and $900 investment expensefr
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Q. What makes the great difference between those documents? They are
the saine amount of real estate, but yet the taxes vary per annum from $2,000 up to
$88,000 ?-A. lIn 1899 and 1900 we disputed with the city of New York the valuation
of the property and the taxes levied upon us,. The taxes levied upon us were flot paid
on account of the dispute, but were carried into our liabilities as a liability of the
company. In 1901, suit having been entered for the purpose of adjusting the matter,
we were advised to tuake the payment of the three years, which we did, and began our
suit againat the city for the reeovery of the amount, which suit is now pending simply
before the referee as to the amount that shaîl be returned to us.

Q. So that you actually paid $88,000 taxes in 1901 Î A. Yes.
Q. That you have a voucher for, and $12,000 investmnent expenses ?-A. I was tq)

tifying as to the taxes, as to the niatter of investmnent expenses,
Q. They went up that year to $12,000 ?-A. As to that item, I cannot testifl
Q. What would the investment expenses be ?-A. I do net know.
Q. That $88,000 in 1901 was nothing but three years' taxes 1-A. That was threrâ

years' taxes.
Q. And nothing more ý--A. I presume, the interest on it.

Q.Nothing else besides the taxes and înterest ?-A. No.
Q.They charge you interest on the taxes ?--A. Yes.

The Oommittee then adjourned tili 10 a.m. to-morrow.

WiDNEsDày, June 23, 1904.

The Committee met at 10 a.m.

Direct examination of George D. Eldridge continued.

By Mr. Coster, K.U., Counsel for the Committees
Q. What are the expense dues on the flve-year distribution policy plan ? When

was that plan firet instituted ?-A. In 1896.
Q. And what were the expense dues at flrst î--$4.60 per thousand.
Q. The same at ail ages ?-A. Yes.
Q. And have they been changed since then ?-A. They have flot.
Q. They are the samne to-day ?-A. Mr. Chairman, before proceeding I should like

to have produced ýthe paper concerning which 1 was questioned yesterday, where there
was a showing of a su~dden increase in the investment expenses of from $1,200 te $12,-
000. I suspected at the time-I had not time ta examine it then, having ne papers
before me-that there was a mistake in that, and I think I cani demonstrate there is a
mistake in the figures as given.

Q. Exhibit il is the sheet that was made up ?-A. By tbis paper it was shown
that the investment expenses in 1900 were $1,200 and in 1901 they were $12,000, and I
was asked to explaîn the sudden increase. By reference to the certifled copy of the
report of December 31, 1901, schedule 3, being disbursements under the l6th division of
schedule 3, there is a printed statement, all other items in detail, namely, and then there
are lines here te introduce writing items. The flrst one here is investment, and the
figures are gîven, $12,000, in this certifled cepy. There are eîght items which are footed
$420,878.90. Now, if you wiil take the seven items, excluding the investment expenses,
which are laid down here item by item, and foot-them, you will find they amount te
$419,678.90, and if yeu add $1,200 to that, being the investment expenses of the pre-
ceding year, yeu will get the total that is carried into the schedule here of $420,878.90,
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80 that it is perfectly evident on the face of the return that it is a clerical error, pro-
bably in copying the report of the New York Insurance Department, of putting $12,000
down instead of $1,200.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:
QIt adds up that way V-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.0, Counsel for Committee:

Q.But it la $12,O0O in the report ?-A. Yes. I amrn ot imputing any wrong inten-
tion to any one. It is evidently a clerical error in copying in the New York department.

By the Hon. Mr. Beiqme

Q.I understand that some timé in 1898 the company invited the policy-holders to
pay what they called uniform rates instead of paying current costs as they accrued ?-
A. We had adopted level prerniurn rates i writing our business, and we offered to the
old policy-holders of the company to make an exchange if they desired.

Q. Was there a considerable number who reponded to that invitation ?-A. iMy
impression is that there were about 3,000 made the exchaiige.

Q. In Canada ?-A. No, there were comparatively few in Canada. I think that
the exohanges in Canada amounted to about three-quarters of a million dollars, probably
covering three or four hundred policies.

Q. Had the company any right to change the condition of a policy in that respect V
-A. With the assent or upon the request of the policy-holder, I think there is no doubt
that, the two agreeing, had a right to make the change.

Q. But suppose the uniform payments were insufficient to meet the, losses, where
would you have taken the money from to cover the difference ?-A. So f ar as the busi-
ness at that tirne in the United States was concerned, although the rate was the rate
charged by the old line companies, we were compelled under our charter to insert in
the policy a condition that in the event of the reserve becoming impaired, the policy-
holder was hiable to assessment to, make good that reserve. We had the right to pay,
if there was an excess of death losses, from the reserve fund, and if that failed, te,
assess the policy-holders to make good the impairment. That was necessary under the
New York law. In Canada, in 1898, we included the same condition, because we were
operating under the assessment law. We issued no policy in 1898, even in Canada or
in the United States, that did no't provide that in case the reserve became impaired the
policy-holder was hable to assessment to make it good.

Q. But I arn referring to the ciirculars which you issued to shareholders inviting
them to change the mode of payments, and te pay by uniform payments, instead of
paying as losses accrued, and it was held out to tbem, I believe, that their rates would
not; be increased if they accepted the latter plan ?-A. I misunderstood what you were
referring to. You are referring to, a circular that was issued where we offered to the
policy-hôlders who were paying increasing rates, the right te, take a -commuted rate
which should be uniform as far as the rate was conoerned, instead of the incressing
rate, but that was so shaped, both the rates and the agreement and the circular, that
whenever we were obliged to increase from the rate laid down against the attained age,
the policy-holder taking the commuted rate had also to pay an increased number of
assesaments on the original rate. That is, if there was a man who was paying an
increasing rate, which was suppose six assessments a year, was called upon te pay on-
lis increased liability, the policy-holder who took the commuted rate would have te
pay seven on the cornmuted policy. We had no right under the Canadian law te limit
the amount that could be oollected.

SQ. I find from a copy of correspondence exchanged between your company and
Mr,. John S. Hall-A. He is, I think, the only one in Canada who owns suh -a
changed policy.
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Q. I find on May 25, 1898, he wrote you, '1 do flot understand quite clearly, also
that if the chartered articles of association provide for asseasments, how these can
be commuted. An answer to this will oblige.' Then you answered on iMay 31, 'In
relation to the commuted rate, I have to say that no condition of the policy you now
hold is changed save that by reason of the application to future profits in the directing
of giving you as low a rate as possible, the contract application of surplus towards
bonds is waived, and in view of the iucreasing rate towards the cost is payable by
uniform rate.' This seemed to be holding out that your company had the power to fix
the rate definitely at a uniformn rate which could flot be increased ?-A. The rate
could flot be increased, but the number of assessments could be iiïcreased. Thore
is a very great difference in that regard, because a premium and a rater are two very
different things. The rate under alI our policies is fixed for each age, but the law
of Canada says that we shall levy as many of those assessments to pay our losses in
full ; so, whether the rate is a uniformi rate throughout life, or a rate fixed year by
year, by the actual age of the insured, the right must be retained to levy as many
assessments, and the law ofCanada compels us to as are necessary to pay the losses.

B.! tho Hon Mr. MeMullen:

Q. Thé- rate you mean is an annual rate-an annual sui-A. No, the rat--
fixes tht ratio of payments between members at different ages. That is, if there iî
$100,000 to be raised to pay death basses, that $100,000 is to be distributed amoug
the members of different ages according te these rates. Now, if there is $80,0OO ta

-be raised, that $80,000 is to be distributed according to rates. If there is $150,000 te
be raised, that $150,000 is to be distributed among the members of different ages
according to the rates applying to their several ages, but the law compels us to issue
a sufficient number of assessments to meet the losses.

Bzè the Hon. &hr. Beique:

Q.On referring to another letter written by Mr. HIall, on the 23rd of November,
1898, 1 flnd the following:

'Have the association power to commute, and where is the authority toý be found 1
Is there any law in the State of New York or any other state requiring assessment
companies to base their calls according to the age, &c., of the assured, and thus make
an increasing rate?~'

And you answer that letter on the 7th of December, 1898.
'Referring Lo your favour of the 23rd ultimo, asking if the association has

power to commute a rate, I beg to say that section 4, article 2, of the constitution
snd by-laws adopted by the mnembers, provideg that the corporate powers of the asso-
ciation shall be vested in the board of directors, who shaîl have power to adopt such
mIles and regulations as they deem. ueceasary, not inconsistent with this constitution
or by-laws, and to amend the samne and to fix the amount and rate of assessment fees
and dues. Section 8, article 11, of the constitution of by-laws also provides that the
board of directors shall have authority to fix and determine the amount of benefits
for which certificates of membership shaîl ha issued, rates of assessments, admisssion
fees, and annual dues. You wilI thus see that the authority of the association to fix
this commuted rate is ample.' In reply to the question whether any law of the State
of New York or any other state requires, assessment companies to base their rates
and cails on the age of the assured and thus make an increasing rate, I beg to say
the, laws of the several states leave it in the hands of the several corporations te fix
the method by which the cost of insurance is to be paid by the members ; with the
provision, however, that the amount to be required of the member shaîl not be limited
to a sum below the 'sum. necessary to enable the corporation to meet aIl these dlaims
et their maximum face value. iu point of fact almost all associations, as in the case
of the Mutual ReServe, offer contracts calling for the payment of the cost in differ-
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ent ways, and therefore the method of paying the cost is a matter of contract and nlotof law. As, however, the cost itself ig an increasing one, it is inevitable that theremust be an increase in the price or in the number of assessments called, unleesthrough an accumulated or uniform rate increased cost is met by uniformo payments.sufficient at the outset to provide an accumulation which in the latter years will takeearc of th~e cost in exces of direct payments made.'Q. That is the explanation te which you referred, I suppose, in your previous
answer ?-A. Yes.

Q. But policy-holders have been complaining that they were given to expect thatif they changed the plan and adopted uniforma rates there would be no further assess-ment made on them ?-A. I have had called to my attention at'the most three com-plaints that that provision was misunderstood. Mr. Hall is one. Mr. Hall, I think,is the only policy-holder in Canada who made that exchange and holds his policy, andI think there was but one other exchange in Canada made excepting Mr. Hall's.When I testified that there was several millions changed, I had not this in mmnd, s0I ahould want to correct my statement in that regard. There was nlot over $1,000,000changed, I think, on this basis. I know, as I say, but three complaints in regard tomisunderstanding, that have corne to my'attention.Q.Could you give us an idea of the difference between the rates on your assesa-ment plan and what they would have been under the legal reser've plan ?-A. Themembers that have been in the longest have paid upon the assessment plan somewherebetween sixty and sixty-six and two-thirds per cent of the premniums that they wouldhave paid upon non-participating level insurance issued at the same age.Q. But the other members-that would flot apply to other members I-A. Thereare some members probably that have paid down as low as I should suppose fifty percent-that; is the ten years distribution class of policy-holders who had practically aten years renewal of insurance. At some of the ages it wou]d reacli about fifty percent.
Q. Then it would vary between fifty and sixty-six per cent ?-A. I should saythat is a fair limit-not exact.
Q. In answer to a question which was put by me on the order paper of the Senateyou furnished returns which I should like te have filed as Exhibit 12. The flrst ques-lion is the total amount of income during the year ini Canada and in the UnitedStates aeparately for the whole period during which the association has been carryingon business in Canada, to wit, from 1885 to 1903 inclusive, and I ftnd that the differ-cnt amounts therein stated yearly sum up a total of $5,038,518 I-A. That is aboutthe footing. There was an error-
Q. At the bottom of that page yon have amounts of legal reserve fromo 1899 to1902 l-A. That is from the 1lth August, 1899. We began on the 1lth August.Q. Is that exclusive of the amounts appearing above ?-A. Yes, exclusive of theamounts as te Canada. 0f course it is not included in the United States at aIl.Q. This legal reserve applies to Canada only ?-A. Onhy te Canada.Q. Then on the next sheet you have an anawer to the following question -'Thetotal amount paid during the year to policy-holders in Canada and in the UnitedStates separately.' For the saIne period, the nineteen years, is it ?--A. Yes.Q. From 1885 to 1903, inclusive, you give a total of $3,060,02,9 ?-A. I presume

that is correct.
Q.As having been paid to policy-holders in Canada ?-A. Yes.Q.Are these amounts correct ?-A. There may be a variation of a dollar or twohere and there, but otherwise it is correct
Q.Substantially, it is correct ?-A. Substantially, it is correct.Q.Have these amounts been paid in cash to the policy-holders ?-A. Yes.Q.And the return to the first question is also correc~t ?-A. it is. I desire tomake one statement in regard te the income in Canada. That includes membershipfees paid under the old system, and medical examination fees. Under the earlier'
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systemn af the company when the policy was issued there was a membership fee paid.
The first payment was a membership fee whieh almost invariably, in my time in-
variably, went to the agent. In the department returns of Canada they required
those membership fees, so far as it was possible to compute them, to be returned as
income and be placed in the disburscments, and these statements of income in Canada
include thb ýe. in the early hJstory of the company also, the Company did flot pay
the, medical exfimination fee, bu, it was paid by the applicant ; but the Canadian
departi-nent -Pqttired a r-t;ri. ý an est:m,.teo aiiount paid by the applicant for
medical examination fees and required that cstimated amount to le earried into
îucome and into disbursements also, so that it appeared on both sides of the account.
While it was nlot money that passed through the hands of the cornpany, it was treated
by the Canadian department as income and out-go.

Q. Then, if the company was charged with those items, such as medical fces and
membership fees, the company must have been credited ?-A. Yes, the departmnent
required them. to appear on both aides of the account. It made no difference în the
balance.

Q. It would appear in the item of expenses ?-A. In the item of expeuses-the
item of income and expenses.

Q. 0f salaries, 1 suppose, to agents.?-A. Commissions to agoents and medical
fees paid.

Q. At the foot of the second returii you have also figures applying ýo the legai
reserve ?-A. Yes.

Q. llow did this legal reserve come to be paid ? It was amounts that wvere taken
ont of the legal reserve to pay death dlaims ?A. To pay death dlaims, surrender
values, &c.

Q. Let us take the next item :the total amount paid out during the year for
general or other expenses in Canada or in the Ujnited States separately ; giving
separately amount of salaries paid to officers and home office employees, again covering
the sanic pcriod, and which 1 find total the sum. of $999,865 in Canada ?-A. Applyiug
to the assessment busincss.

Q. These figures are correct ?-A. Yes.
Q. And they cover ail the general or other expenses of the company in Canada f

-A. Yes.
Q. For that period ?-A. Yes.
Q. It would include those membership fees ?-A. Yes, those membership fees and

medical examination.
.Q. 1 see at the foot of this return you have also several items applying to legal

reserve ?-A. Those are the- expenses in connection with the legal reserve business
during those years.

*Q. 'What kind of expenses were paid out of the legal reserve ?-A. It does not;
mean out of the legal reserve, but it means the business done on the legal reserve basis.
From August 11, 1899, ail business in Canada fromn that date is counted as legal reserve,
that is, it is suhject to the legal reserve law.

ý'Q. This i.s a returu giving the amounts paid during eacli of those years for gen-
eyal or other expenses ?-A. Yes.

Q. And what I shouid like to understand is how these amouuf s appear as having
been paid out of the legal reserve ?-A. That legal reserve does not mean the reserve
of the company, it means the business doue on the legal reserve basis.

Q. If I uuderstand correctly, it means that apart from. the $999,865 expenses
chargeable to the assessment business, there are further amounts of expenses which
W-ere chargeable to the legal reserve business ?-A. Yes.

ýý ,Q. Then, the next page gives the amount of salaries at the home office which are
Ineluded in the expeuses on the previous sheet ?-A. Yes.

Q.What proportion of those salaries of the home office was charged to the Cana-
ýdianbusiness ?-A. There was no specific proportion of themn charged to the Canadian
business.
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Q.Under what principle was it deait with ?-A. Lt was paid as general home

office expenses.
Q. You gave, in the third return the amount of general or other expenses in

Canada, and it is supposed to be the full amount, and therefore it must include the
proportion of homie office salaries chargeable te that Canadian business ?-A. Let me
explain. The third staternent contains aîmrply the expenditures made in Canada, and
does nlot include any portion of the general home office business, but simply rnoneys
that were spent ini Canada, with Canadian people ini conducting business here in
Canada.

Q. And you did not charge the Canadian business with any proportion ?-A. We
made no specîic charge agaînst any proportion in the office.

Q. 0f the salaries outside of Canada ?-A. No.
Q. I notice that in this return giving the salaries at the borne office, the salaries

of officers show a considerable increase frorn 1893, when it was $79,636.30, and in 1894
when it was $141,296.99. Could you give us any explanation as te the cause of that
sudden increase ?-A. I cannot. Lu 1893 1 was flot connected. with the Comnpany at
al]. I went there in 1894, and 1 niay say in explanation of this, that undoubtedly
the division between officers and ernployees which was required by the New York blank
was somewhat arbîtrarîly made. Sometirnes it was a question who were included in
offices, and there were tirnes whcn there were a good mnany that might be officers and
the positions not afterwards filled. In my opinion, a much juster basis of getting at
the question of officiai salaries would be to designate certain ones as officers, president,
vice-president, treasurer, secretary, assistant secretary, counsel, medical director-who-
ever were designated to take those offices year after year-and get the aggregate. Lt
would be a much juster basis.

Q. That is an assumption on your part ?-A. Yes, an assumption on rny part.
Q. And it does flot seern to be very substantial, because 1 caTi your attention to

the column of the salaries of employees, where the sarne thing applies. In 1893, the
amount was $80,549-40, whereas in 1894 it had risen to $199,647.1O, and in 1895 to
$225,619.40, and as a matter of fact it went on increasing for three or four? years ?-
A. As far as 1893 and 1894 are concerned, not being connected with the company in
1893, and only going there in 1894, 1 have not investigated that increase and shall be
unable to testify.

Q. But in a general way we would expect you would be able to account at least
for that very large increase froma what it was during the years previoos to 1895, when
you became connected with the cômpany-the difference between that year and sub-
sequent years ?-A. Weil, I arn free to admit that I neyer looked into the matter of
that increase-never had my attention calied to the large increase between 1893 and
1894. 1 am perfectly willing to submit to the Committee a statement.

By the Chairman:
Q. llow can you do that after you have declined to state the salaries of the

officers ?-A. I am only declining to state the individual salaries of the officers.
Q. How can the Committee verify it if you do not state the individual salariesf

How can the Committee accept the statement as a whole ?-A. I arn perfectly willing
to submait a statement.

B1, the Hon. Mr. Béiqua:
Q.We have the total income in Canada for that period of time represented as

being $5,038,518, and the 4mount paid to policy-holders in Canada $3,060,029, and the
amount paid for expenses in Canada. $999,865, making a total of $4,059,894 te be
deducted from the total amount of income, leaving a balance of $978,624. What be-
carne of this amount of Canadian rnoney llow was it applied apart £rorn the por-
tion of it which rnay be in the reserve ?-A. There is $244,000 representing moneys
invested for deposit in Canada on assesarnent account, the moneys in Canada at the
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end of 1903, and the balance is the contribution of the Canadian business to the gen-
eral expenses of the company and towards meeting any general death losses of the
company.

Q. That would leave a balance of $724,400 ?-A. Yes, of which about $624,000
would be premiurns of policy-holders and about $100,000 froým interest on investments.

Q. Does not that look rather a large amount diverted from the Canadian policy-
hét&ers ?-A. It amounts to about $2 to about every $1.000 of risk that bas bee-r
carried for an average terrm of one year.

Q. That would be a contribution to general expenses ?-A. General expenses o
the home office, and to any share in the general death loss if it was larger at any tinib
than the death loss of Clip, Canadiau department.

Q. We have only the difference between what was paid to the policy-holders and
for expenses in Canada, and the amount which was received from the Canadiatn busi-
ness, so that there would be that element that you mentioned ?-A. Certainly tho.
Canadan business, if the general death loss of the cornpany on its business was for
a tirne less than the .Janadian, would be entitled to contribute its proportion of thar
excess on the basis of the entire death loss. If subsequently the death loss in th,-
Canadian department became greater than it was in the general departmaent, the re-
versai of the case would be the fact. Now,' take for instance in the year 1901, as in-
dicating what has corne in connection with that Canadian business; of every $100
that was received from prerniurns on the Canadian assessment business we, paid $103
ini death losses. Take in the ]ast three years of every $100, we have paid over $77
in death losses. The time has got to corne very quickly when the death fosses wi'l
undoubtedly consume more than the prcmiurns received in Canada. When that tirne
cornes, if we could not increase the Canadian assessments above the general assess-
ments of the policy-holders, the general policy-holders would have to make good the
deficiency. While we make separate accounts as required by the departrnent, we
considtir the Cailadian busine~ss a part of the whole business of the company entitiel
to the protection of aIl the assets and ail the business of the company, and of course
to bear its burden with the other business.

1Q. iDuring later years, 1902 and 1903, had you many agents in Canada ?-A.
-We had not a great many agents in Canada. We were not pushing business vig-
orously.

Q. How many had you ?-A. 1 should. say, a haif a dozen probably.
Q. The expenses for 1902 are over $18,000, and that is exclusive of the legal

reserve business?-A. Yes, certainly.
Q. You were not doing an assessrnent business at that tirne iA. We were col-

]ecting prernrnms.
Q. And on what condition were you collecting premaiums? You had agents

for that; you had agents rnerely on commission, I suppose I-A. We maintain ail
office in iMontreal, one in Quebec, and one in Toronto,, and we have collectors in the
:Maritime Provinces.

Q. But those offices in iMontreal and the other cities you have mentioned were
for legal reserve business, I understand I-A. The agents were for the legal reserva
business, but the collectors there are mainly for the aassessment business.

Q. Were not the collectors, paid by commission I-A. Yes.
Q. For the assesament part of the business ?-A. Yes.
Q. What was the rate of the commission I-A. The commission varies from two

and one-half to five per cent for collection.

Byj the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q. What is the narne of the collection agent in Toronto I-A. Mr. Harvey.
Q. Have you an agent in Toronto ?a IsMIr. Harvey the only agent you have in

Toronto I-A. H1e is our only agent at the present time.
Q. Your central agent I-A. IMr. Harvey is our chie£ agent under the law.
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By lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. That rate of commission would hardly justify the payaient of tbe $18,000
for 1902 ?-A. 'ihere is two per cent taxes, yau must recollect.

B3, the lion. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. Through ail the provinces l-A. Practica]ly 110W.

B3, the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q.On the amount collected ?-A. Yes, on the amount collected. There is $268,-

000 collected in 1902, and the expense was practically $18,000; that is less than seven
per cent. There was $268,000 collected in assessment premiums in Canada, and the
expenses in Canada were $18,000. Now we pay two per cent for taxes, leaving ive
per cent for collections and ail other expenses that there miglit be in Canada on that
business.

By the lion. Mr. Domvilie:
Q. You paid no two per cent in New Brunswick I-A. I do not testify that wa

paid it in ail the provinces, but where we have the great bulk of aur business we du.
We bave comparatively little business in the Maritime Provinces. The great bulkof our premiums is in Ontario and Quebec, and the returns to, the department will
show that it is close ta twa per cent, but I arn willing, to make it safe, to say one and
three-quarters, or one and one-baif per cent; you bave then only a littie aver five per
cent as the expenses of collection.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. Let us take the faurth return-the, amount appearing at the credit of thereserve fund at the end of the year for the years mentioned. These amounts are

correct, I suppose t-A. Yes.
Q. They represent the reserve ta which you referred as being mainly covered by

lien I-A. INo, this is the surplus of tbe reserve fund of the assessaient business, and
this in essence represents cash or investment.

Q. But as far as cash is concerned, it is mainly co'vered by liens on policy ?-A.
Na, this does not represent liens an policy at ail

Q. This reserve applies exclusively ta the Canadian business ?-A. Oh, noa; this
is the surplus reserve fund of the association.

Q. Sa there cannot be any division made of these items between the Canadian
end the United States business ?-A. Excepting you take in the deposit matter on
the next page.

Q. Then the next page gives the total amount an depasit with the Canadian
Government at the end of the year, the cost, the par value, and the accepted value,
with separate amaunts applying ta the legal reserve ?-A. Yes, separate deposits for
the legal reserve.

Q. These amounts are correct ?-A. Yes.

B~y the lion. Mr. Landry:
Q. What is the percentage of the deposit in Canada ?-A. Ta the premiui*s

colllected in Canada ?
Q. What is the proportion of the deposit ta the premiunis ?-A. To the gras8

premiums, including expenses, it is about five per cent, that is an the assessment.
The deposit here, I would expîsin, is the deposit as far as the legal reserve is con-
cerned at the end of 1903. It daes flot inelude the $40,000 deposited since the lst
January, 1904.

1B3, the Hon. Mr. Beique:
Q. Then you have on the next page the total axnaunt ýof assets of the campany

at the end af the year, and what portion thereaf in Canada, distinguishing as far as
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possible in ail the above, between policies issued previous to, and subsequent to the
il th August, 1899, and between the business resulting from policies issued under the
assessment plan and level premium policies. You take the flrst column, assets other
than policy-holders' premiuin obligations. You take the first year $590,623 as assets
in Canada ?-A. The first column is the total assets of the compally.

Q. The Canadian business is in the third column ?-A. Yes, and that includes
both assessinent and legal reserve, and on the next page there is the division between
theassessment'and legal reserve.

Q. You take thgt third column 'where you find the amoiunt of assets other than
policy-holders' premium obligations in Canada, $50,000, and you have as income for
that year in tCanada $42,616 only -,how do you account for the dilTeretnce ?-A. Before
we received our license in Canada in 1885 we had to bring $50,000 from the Ulnited
States and deposit here with the iMinister before receiving a license.

Q. Then you take the item applying to 1903, $398,678 of assets in Canada :how
is this amount made up spart from the reserve, both legal and assessment, which
amounts to about $234,000 ; how is the diffterence made up ?-A. A portion of it was
money in the banks in Canada.

Q.low much ?-A. I do not remember.
Q.About how much ?-A. I do not recollect now. The synopsis of the depart-

ment gives the items. I thought I had it here, but I have not. I possibly may be able
to make it up.

Q. I flnd that the difference is $164,748 ?-A. The cost value of the deposit is
$286,821.

Q. I take the deposit in Canada $218,938- applicable to the assessment business-
1 take the accepted value ?-A. That accepted value has been revised by the Treasury
Board since the lst of January, so it did not appear as that on the let January.

Q. At ail events it would make only a small difference ?-A. I should say that
there is about $80,000 which are notes and certificates of lien or loan by the legal
reserve policy-holders wbieh is counted by the department under the law as part of
the reserve, onçi that there was somewhere about $40,000 to $50,000 oi deposits in
bank, but that may be larger than that. r

Q. Could you give us a memorandum accounting for it ?-A. I will refer to the
report after the meeting is over and give a memorandum. It is made up of cash
boans and premium obligations. That does not count deferred premiums, $84,576.63;
stocks, bonds and debentures, $260,381.53, cash on hand, in books or deposited with
the government, $51,780.30, interest and rent due aiid accrued, $1,939.61. I think
that will make $398,678. Then outstanding and deferred premiums, which you will
find on the last column, $44,480, mnake a total of $443,158.

By the lion. 31r. McSweeney :

Q.Did they make some change in the valuation ?-A. The department made
some change.

Q. iReducing it how much ?-A. It is about $10,000 that they bave reduced the
valuation.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Turn to the last page of those returns; the two first columns are the assess-
ment business in Canada ?-A. Yes.

Q. Wbat is the difTerence between the two first columns !-A. Take it on the last
page, the aggregate of the two colurans,' head one is the amount given in the third
column on the precýeding page, and the aggregate of the columns, head two, the
amount given in the last column on the preceding page.

Q.$44,480 ?-A. Yes.
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Q.Since 1899 the company bas carried on business in Canada only on the legal
reserve basis ?-A. Yes.

Q. Ail the rest under the Insurance Act, are fully protected by the deposits ?-A.
Yes, the deposit covers the reserve over and above the obligations of the policy-
holders.

Q. And itherefore, whatever may happen to the company, those risks could at al
tiines be ré-insured with the amount of the deposit ?-A. Ulndoubtedly.

Q. Now let us treat those policy-holders as, say class No. 1 of the policy-holders
of the company, and treat the other policy-holders, those remaining under the assess-
ment plan as po]icy-holders No. 2. The Bill which. is now before the Senate contains
provisionc to take care of those, policy-holders, which are by means of options which
would enable, them to transfer their policies from the assessment plan to the legal
reserve plan. What objection would you see to means being devised to take care of
the policy-holders whose polîcies have lapsed from the time the assessments became
prohibitive in their nature, and making a third class of them, charging their policies
with thé proper amount as representîng the value they received from the fact that
they were insured and imposing upon them the obligation of furnishing a medical cer-
tificate before the policy is revived ?-A. I see no objection to it at ail, none whatever.

Q. You think that a plan could be devised-

Hon. Mr. IAND.-I submit that our reference does not cover this.

Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE.-For three or four days we have been wandering entirely out-
side the scope of the investigation, and is not my question within the scope of the in-
vestigation. The reference is to inquire into the position of the company in Canada.
Does that not involve the position of the company towards policy-holders, whose poli-
cies have been allowed to lapse, because the assessments from the nature of the plan
on which the business has been carried on by the company bas become prohibitive.

Hon. Mr. IANDRY.-A proposition was made in the House to put the Bill which
is now before the Committee on Banking and Commerce before us, but it was not

done. We are here to investigate, not to find a means of coming to the aid of the

polîcy-holders. The Committee on Banking and Commerce will do that.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQUE.-T f ail to see any objection to placing on record the necessary
facts to, enable the Senate when it deals finally with the Bill, to, see whether the report
of the other committee fully covers the remedy whieh might be applied.

The CHMaMÀAN.-If the Banking and Commere Committee have no riglit to

secixre this information, then it would be the duty of this committee to furnish it.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Do you think a plan could be devised which would be, fair to the three different
classes of policy-holders to which 1 have referred ?-A. I see nd reason why it could
not be done. 1 should he very glad to see it done.

By the Jimo. M1r. Robertson:

Q. Do I understand by that that those policies which have lapsed where the
policy-holders have ceased to pay their premiums wouldl be revived ?-A. A plan, as I
understand the senator, by which. they can be given the opportunity of restoring their
policies in force upon a fair basîs to the other pohicy-holders of the company who have
maintained their payments and themselves.

By the Chairman :

Q. Would these policy-holders whose policies have lapsed, and which would be

revived under this plan, have any advantage froni remaîning in the company from
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over re-insurance in another company ?-A. XVhether a plan could be devised which
would givethem an advantage in that regard wouid be to a considerable extent a
mnatter of individual opinion, but 1 think an opportunity could be offered to thern that
wouid be of some advantage to them over the tatking of new insurance, 1 arn only
speaking in1 general terms and flot in any specific details, but I think something of
that kind could be donc.

By the Hon. Mr. Robertson:
Q. Thoso policy-ho1ders whose policies have lapsed and who wish to renew theriL

would have to undergo a medical examination, and if they could flot stand the exami-
nation of course they would he knocled out ?-A. On gencral principles, yes, but 1should be disposed in ail such cases to take the basis of sub-standard or impaired riskswhich of late years has become quite an extensive business, and a great deal of experi-
ence in connection with it has been gained, and in ail those cases, 1 should be disposed
to offer thern an opportunity to reinstate on as fair terms as could possibly be given asregards the other memhprs, under some sub-standard or impaired risk bais.Q. Even supposing the medical examination was flot satisfactory i-A. Even though
the medical examination was flot satisfactory.

Q. You would be disposed to treat with them. on the basis of what they- had paid informer years ?-A. I should be very glad indeed to treat with them on that basis.

By the Chairman.-
Q. That would be a matter of discretion for the company. Take a man of seventyyears who dropped his policy at the age of sixty-five and was sickly; you would flot takehim into the company ?-A. If the man was moribund I would not. We shouid have

to consider the interest of the mass of policy-bolders against the individual.

By the Hon. M1r. Robertson :
Q. Supposing a man had died, leaving a widow, who had nlot been able to keep upthe assessments ta the time of lis death, would she receive auy consideration oe-A. I

do not see how it would hc possible to give iL.

By the Hon. M1r. Landry :
Q. You accept those who abandon the assessment plan to-day to go into thc legal

reserve ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is not that doing injustice to, the mass of the policy-holders ?-A. In that weplace in the legal reserve basis-
Q. Mken that would share no more in the assessmcnt ?-A. You ask are we doing

injustice to the assesament policy-boldcrs.
Q. To the mass ?-A. If wc were trcating the Canadian policy-bolders as a class,they must ultimately pay their own death losses without the benefit of the general massof the company, but it is only the reserve policy-holdcrs in Canada who are îsolated bythc Canadian law. As far as the assessmcnt policy-holders in Canada are conccrned,they are part of the entire company. They have the protection of ail the assetswherever they are, and thcy will neyer be charged any more for their insurrance thanthe same polîcy-holdcrs would be charged in the United States for theirs.Q. But in ail cases the death calîsý would be incrcased by the amount rcprescutedby those people who have changed classes h-A. Those people who have chaugedclasses have not only withdrawn their payments but thcy have withdrawn their liabi-lity to death loss, and it.ia supposed that one advantage will compensate the other.

By thie Chairman:
Q. But you suppose the Young go into the legal rese'rve and leave the old in thcassessment plan ?-A. As far as the law stands to-day, whcre thcy make that change in
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Canada they cease to be as Canadian policy-holders, liable for, any indebtedness or
for the losses of the assessment risks, but as far as the business in the 1Jpited States

and f oreign countries is concerned, the f act that they are in the assessment branch or

in the legal reserve branch makes no differeiiue as, to the liability of ail members for
the payment of death losses.

Q. But does nlot the advantage lie with the young who are insured l A. I think
So.

Q. Then, if they go into the legal reserve and leave ail the old policy-holders

under the assessment plan ?-A. Stili going into the legal reserve they do flot escape
the obligation to pay for the assessasents.

Q. But it leaves the old people there?-A. It leaves the old people there, but it
does not burden them. with any higher assessments.

By the Hon. Mr. MeMullen.

Q. llow long is it since your legal reserve branch was established l-A. The first

business of the legal reserve branch was done in 1899 under the Canadian law. In

1900 we obtained legisiation in IMassachusetts.
Q. AUl those that are taIùen into the legal reserve brandi as new applicants for

insurance are subjected to a medical examination, are they nlot ?-A. No, they are
nlot.

Q. I mean where the parties apply for insurance in the first place ?-A. Oh, cer-
tainly.

Q. They are all subjeeted to the medical examination ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where those that have been ini your company since 1885, 1886, or 1887 on

the assessment plan are taken into the legal reserve, at the time of their sa being taken

in, are they subject to a medical examination ?A. No.
Q. llow do you reconcîle that ?-A. Those that have gone in within two years

are subjected to a medical exanmination. They go iii under a doctor's certificate that

they are proper subjeets for insurance. Those that have been in for fifteeen years

and may have contracted diseases arid are unable to pass medical examination are

taken in in the same way.
Q. It is simply because they have been subject to the assessment portion of your

business before-is that it -A. It is.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q. You say that they are not subject to medical examination ?-A. If a member

of the assessment class wishes to change to the legal reserve plan, we do' not subject
hima to a medical examination.

Q. That is to say, you takze him without knowing whether is life is good, bad

or indifferent ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Did not the company issue a circular to ail assessment policy-holders to make

them sign a guarantee as ta their iealth ?iDid not the policy-holders in Canada re-

ceive a printed shé-et telling them tbat if tiey wished ta renew under the new system

they could do so, but they must sign a guarantee that their health was as good as

before ?-A. I-judge that the senator refers ta the circulars sent out ta iapsed policy-

holders offering ta permit them ta reinstate their policies. We offered ta do it on a

-certifleate of healti from them.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. It is generally -done ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is in the case of Iapsed policies ?-A. In the case of lapsed of palicies.

By, the Hon. Mr. Watson:

Q. Yodl stated in answer to Mr. McMullen that you would transfer policy-holders

under the assessment plan without medical eamination. Is there any accumulated
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fund by which thc newly insured would seeure any benellts from the person who had
been taken in to rnake up for the difference in the death risk ?-A. There is only a
nominal amount. We do flot consider, as far as the comipany is concerned, exccptin.-
in just this little batch of business bere in Canada that therc is any assessment busi-
ness or legal reserve business, excepting as the terms of their contract for the collec-
tion of their costs. Ijnder the law we were re-incorporated in New York, and the
assessment policy-holders just as much members of the legal roerve Company as the
new one- are, and the assessment policy-holders are in exactly the same posi-
tion as regards new business now bcing admitted as policy-holders admittcd, in thxe
Canada Lifc flfty years ago arc ini regard to business admitted to-day. '1hat business
admitted to-day is obligated for the old business of the company, just as the business
admitted into the Canada Life to-day is obligated for the old business of the Canada
Ilife. It is one business, and when we corne to give legal reserve policies instead of
assessment policies, we are simpiy cbauging a man's contract by agreement, but not
increasing the obligation, because we continue the obligation to pay the death loss,
and he changes his policy.

Q. Are you not lessening bis obligation ?-A. I think not.

By the'Hon. M1r. Béique:

Q. It may be, the fact that you re-incorporated, as you have said in 1902, bad
the effeet of improving the position of those policy-holders under the assessment
plan ?-A. If by re-incorporating we lad shut those assessment policy-holders in a
class by themselves, we certainly should bave lessened their security and chances in
the future. We simply added rigîts that we lad not possessed before. We could to-
day, under the New York law, issue assessment policies.

Q. As I understand, under the United States law the policy-holders under the
assessment plan take part in all benefits whicb may be derived from aIl sources of
revenue of the company whether from the assessment plan or the legal reserve busi-
ness ?-A. They do.

Q. Therefore there is a continuation of business for ail classes of însured in
the states?-A. Ycs.

Q. But iii Canada it is different. There is a separation made as between the legal
reserve business and the assessment plan business and from the fact that you are not
carrying any more business on the assessment plan, it very much impairs the position
of the assessment policy-holders ?A. It would impair it in the strict interpretation
of the law, undoubtedly.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q. I was a.sking yon with regard to your agent in Toronto ; do you know Mr.

Thomas Merritt, of Toronto-Is he an agent of yours ?-A. I do not know the name.
Q. Where is your office in Toronto ?A. In tbe iFreehold Life building.
Q. ilere is Pi notice that I cut out of the paper :
' The Mutual Life Insurance Company of New York, assets over $400,000,000,

has openings for active agents in the followîng counties, Wellington, Grey, Bruce,
Haldimand, Norfolk, and Elgin. Apply to Thomas iMerritt, manager, 31 Bank of
Commerce building, Toronto.'

Q. Does that refer to your company?-A. No, that refers to the Mutual Life of
New York. Ours is the iMitual iReserve Life.

By the lIon. M1r. McSweeney:

Q. I see in an abstract of life insurance in Canada for 1903 the Mutual Reserve
Life has a net amount of insurance in force cf $9,342,520, and net amount of policies
becoming dlaims $-231,777, and $174,311 of dlaims including matured endouwments.
You bave unsettled dlaims to the amount of $86,650; do you not; thinkthat is a large
amount ?-A. There was a very heavy death loss in Canada the last sixty days of last
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year, leaving an unusual amaunt outstanding at the end of the year. The losses
have long before this been paid.

Q. At that very time, the Mutual Life of iNew York had only $21,574 of unsettled
claimis in Canada and they do a business of $29,410,186, more than three times as
ranch as you have, and you have four times as many unsettled claims g-A. The
compauy neyer bas claimed, and no assessment company can dlaim, that it is able to
pay the death losses with the promptness that a legal reserve Company cen. The legal
reserve company colleets its premiums in advance, and bas the money in hand with
which to meet its losses and can meet tbem in a prompt manner. While their
contracts caîl for sixty or ninety days, as a matter of advertising they often settle
their losses within twenty-four bours, and I have knowu tbema to, telegraph the money,
$100,000, for the purpose of advertising. An assesment company-the bulk of
business that was doue by this assessment compauy-requires essessmeuts to be made
for approved dlaims to be paid. And they cannot be made until a dlaim exists and
the proved dlaim is there. It is inevitable, under such a system, that there should be
a much longer time than under the advance payment system of premiums.

Q. In 1902, I see you bad ouly $51,686 of unsettled dlaims. I think you stated
a while ago that you paid out to policy holders in Canada $1.03 for, every dollar you
got in-is that the case g-A. In the yeer 1901, we paid $103 death losses for every
huudred dollars' premium received in Canada.

Q. How* is it for 1903?-A. Iu 1903, our death losses were comparatively light-
this is on the assessment plan, not including the legal reserve. I was testifying with
regard to the assessmeuts. In 1901, we collected in essessment premiums $271,870
in Canada, and we paid $279,935 in death losses on the essessmeut plan.

By the Hon. Mfr. Watson:
Q. Was that actually paid ?-A. Yes, actual payments. In 1902 the death losses

paid were light. We collected $268,192 and we paid $151,959.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. You had a good profit that year l A. Not uecessarily profit.
Q. You got more than you paid out ?-A. Yes, but we had other paymeuts to

make afterwards. In 1903, there was $200,334 collected and we paid $139,395, but,
as I stated, there was a very heavy death loss at the end of the year, so that there was
a very considerable increase that had to be taken care of out of that money, and was
taken care of, during the first part of 1904.

Q. In 1903 there was 71281 -. That includes the legal reserve as well as
the other, and immediately af ter the first of the year, we had to deposit $40,000 of
that wîth the Canadian Government.

Q. For the protection of the policy holders g-A. Yes.
Q. What were the assets of the Provincial Provident Aid A.ssociation of St.

Thomas at the time you took it over ?-A. There was turned over to 'us nomiuelly, as
I recollect, about $90,000.

Q. Nominally ?-A. Yes.
Q. Some of that was cash, I suppose ?A. Oh, yes. The securities were fairly

good, with the exception of $10,000 of the Canada Coal and ]lailway Company, I think
it is, which lias neyer been of any value to us, and some farm property that the
Provincial Provîdent had taken on foreclosure, on which there was some loss. There
probably was realized somewhere about $75,000.

Q. You did not get the cash reserve !-A. We got all their essets.
Q. Including the cash reserve i-A. Yes, some of the expense moneys they lied.

By th&e Hon. Mfr. MeMullen:
Q. How ranchi money have you deposited with the Dominion Goverumeut i-A.

We have deposited on assessment account securities that have cost $236,821; the
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Government, on a recent valuation, have valued those at $218,938, marking off on sonie
province of Quebec bonds, I tbink. We have for legal reserve wbat bas cost $25,962,
whîcb the government bas recently valued at $23,984, and then we have under a trust
deed approved by the government, $55,000.

Q. ljnder the Bill that you now have before parliament you purpose setting a.side
$150,000 of that towards making up the necessary reserve, in order to, enable you to
go on and do business. Wbat is the reason you appropriate only $150,000, and Dlot
the $228,000 ?-A. The Bill, properly speaking, is not my Bill.

Q. Tbat is the proposition in tho Bih ?-A. As for that division, I did not insert;
il. MY own opinion is, if I was asked on that point, tbat there should be no division
of any kind, but that that fuind should be beld there as a security to guarantee the
transfer of this business, and tbe integrity of tbe obligations, on tbe low basis on
which the premiurns are fixed by the Bill.

Q. There must certainly bave been some authority for it. 0f course, the less you
appropriate up to the sum that is now in tbe bands of the government, tbe more bas
to be the levy or assessment upon eacb policy to make up the necessary reserve ?-A.
Certainly.

Q. In that case, if the $228,000 appropriately belonga to tbe assessment business
you bave been doing in Canada, wben you cbange it it ougbt to be applicable towards
providing a reserve to enable you to go on, and by striking ouit $75,000 of it, you
simply add to the amount chargeable against the policies to enable you to go on, and
get your lîcense h-A. We have our license, and of course out of that fund any ac-
cumulated death losses not assessed for at the time the change is made, would neces-
sarily bave to be paid. I do not mean by that it will be witbdrawn from the govern-
ment, but provided for, and it will stili remain with tbe government as security.
You are asking me a malter of opinion. My own opinion is, that the security of that
fund for the guarantee of the future business, is of far more value to the policy-
holders than tbe sligbt participation tbey would get by an immediate division. and I
do not know of any company that divides its surplus up to the last cent and atianîpte
to do business.

Q. This is virtually money tbat must have been collected by tbe assesaments
£rom tbe policy-holders, and that you bave deposited witb the government of Canada
as a reserve ?-A. There is no requirement of holding a reserve under the Dominion
law; it is simply a deposit, but ail surplus must be accumulated from the payments
of the policy-bolders in any event.

Q. That surplus is accumulated by the policy-bolders h-A. Certainly.
Q. The question is, wby should it not be applied h-A. It is far better to allow it

ta remain witb the govern-ment as guarantea for payment of claims generally than
the sligbt advantage of about twenty dollars would be. Tbat is simply an opinion.
That is ail.

By the Hon. Mr. Wil-son:
Q. I tbink yon stated you had only a certain number of agents-six I believe--to

do tbe collection in the province of Ontario h-A. I was testifying as to any agents
we bad at work doing business, but not collections.

Q. You have agents for collection, outside of doing business h-A. We bave cal-
lection agents scattered ail tbroughi the Dominion.

Q. In taking over the P. P. I. Insurance, you had a certain amount of certifi-
cales from the P. P. I. ?-A. Yes.

Q. Aniounting to how mucih-A. About twelve million dollars.
Q. And which. you agreed, providing they fulfilled their contract with you, that

yen would alint to tbem $100,fl0-was tbat il h-A. No, we received the trust funds
of the P. P. 1. cbarged with a trust.

Q. Twelve million dollars h-A. We received about twelve millions of business.
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Q.For that business what did you agree to do ?-A. We agreed to carry it ini

consideration-
Q. That is flot rny question; what did you agree to, give them provided they

carried out their obligation 'te you i-A. We agreed to carry out the obligations
created by the policies.

Q. What did you give the board, or the directors, on business that they had
established and handed over to you and worked up to that point-what did you agree
te give thern -A. We entered into a contract which, as I stated, is printed in a blue-
book of the departrnent.

Q. But that is net an answer te rny question I-A. I arn answering it as clearly
as 1 possibly can.

Q. I should like te have it clearer, if yen possibly can. What did you agree to
give them previded they fulfilled their portion of the côntra-,t? That is a plain
questionI

Mr. AYLESWOR*TH, K.C.-That is interpreting the contract, which is a difficuit
thing te do.

Q. I arn wanting te knew if they agreed te de a certain thing, have they fulfllled
their centract ?-A. I understeod «the Decter's first question to relate te members of
the Provincial Provident, and now I understand that hïe is speaking of the Trustees.

Q. The Trustees, with a certain number of men united, forrned tbemselves into
an organizatien, and ultiinately becarne chartered under the Ontario Act and carried
on business. They were elected trustees doing business there, consisting, I think, of
four or five members. Their solicitor, the late, Colin iMcDougall-I think yen re-
member hirn -A. I knew hirn very welL

Q. The Doctor, Mr. MeLardy, and several others, went te New York and there
negotiated an agreemnent with yen, that they would do a certain thing, and yen would
give thern a certain arnount; now I want te know the arnount, that is all ?-A. I re-
gret that in answering the question I shaîl have te take exception te sorne of iDr.
Wilson's staternents.

Q. Well, make it clear-I arn perfectly willing I-A. The Provincial Provident
was net an institution made up of half-a-dozen members; it was a cornpany or mcm-
bership erganization made up of several thousand members, and the trustees were
simpîr the trustees by those members elected te hold their funds. The contract of
re-insurance xvas negotiated with the trustees, and they agreed in that contract te
pay for the business that was transferred te the iMitual iReserve the regular nern-
bership fees that the Mutual Reserve would require on new business and the expense
dues that they would require on new business.

Q. What about the other business? They handed over te you a certain arnount
of old business, and as far as your explanation that they were elected, I know that
they were elected, I know that they were appointed, I know that they were reap-
pointed as trustees, and issued their certificates te the members, and the members had a
riglit te vote. They were each and every year elected te that position I-A. Those
men were net the coinpany and did net ewn the cornpany.

Q. What did you agree te give them for the old business up te the tirne they
transferred te yôu 1-A. That is what 1 arn trying te state; they had about $12,O0O,000
business in force, and under the contract they agreed te, pay te the Mutual Ileserve
the rnerberahip fees on that $12,000,000 of business exactly the sarne as if it had been
new business, and also the expense dues sixty days after, exactly the same as if it had
been new business.

Q. lJid they do it I-A. They did net.
Q. Was it upon what they would do in the future that you agreed te give them.

a certain ameunt I-A. It was.
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Q. I)id you agree to givc them a certain amount of what they brought t0 you,

business up to that date ?-A. We agreed to give thema a certain amount based upon

their first xnaking those payrnents I have just named.
Q. But you tell me that you did flot agree that they should have any consideration

at all for the business that had been handed over f0 you after a certain number of

years of organization; irrespective of any future carrying out these men could not

agree to carry out this agreement with you I-A. They did agree to.

Q. As they were flot sure to be re-elected I-A. They did agree to if, I do not

know whether fhey could or not.
Q. You think if was a reasonable agreement I-A. IMy impression is that they

lied no right to enter into sucb an agreement.
Q. You entered into the contraet and agreed to pay them a certain amount and

did flot do if?-A. I agreed f0 pay a certain amount conditioned upon their doing

certain things. They said they woul do certain things. 1 do flot believe they could,
and they could flot do if.

Q. What could they net do ?-A. They could flot pay us the money fhey agreed

to pay.
Q.Were the death assessments not paid to you ?-A. Yes.
Q.lad you not an agent there carrying on the business? lad you not an office

there, carrying on the business afterwards I-A. We had.
Q. And you had the benefit of that office and the henefit of the furnifure and

everything?--A. We paid for it.
Q. They transferred those things to you, and what did you give them ?-A. The

business of the company was transferred to us. They do flot own the business of the

company.
Q. llad they not established the business of the eompany, and did you nof reeog-

fise a certain monetary price in the business they had worked up I-A. They owned

the business of the eompany no more than I own the business of the Mufual IReserve,

and I could flot seil one dollar of it and put a dollar iii my pocket for doing it,.

Q. If you and your eompany made an agreement wifh another company to trans-

fer ail you have in this, and ail the value there is in it, and you saîd: 'We will

transfer this for a consideration' you transfer the business and you expeef the other

company af fer the business is transferred up to a certain date to look after and see

that the payments are made; so it was with the P. P. I. when the transfer was made

to you, and now you tell me there was no value in the transfer. If there was no

value, you misled them, because you made them believe there was a tranisfer ?-A. I

was dealing with about nine of the sharpesf meni I ever met in Canada, and if I mis-

led them, I feel prouder of the situation than I ever did before.

lon. Mr. MCMULLEN.-It was diamond eut diamond, when you met them.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q.You thought you were meeting with very sharp men and made a sharp bargain

ultimafely, deceived those sharp men, and did not give them the value I-A. iNo sir,

I deny it absolutely.
Q. According f0 your stafemnent ?-A. No. You stafe thaf I deeeived those men.

I say that if I deeeived nine business men like those, I do not think if needs the

Parliament of Cana-da te proteet them. You just asked me a suppositious case that

if I as an officer of the Mutual iReserve agreed for another company fo take if, on a

considerafion paid f0 me, if I expect to receive that consideration, I wish to say that

the moment that consideration reaehed me, the State of York would foke a baud in

the matter, and take possession of that consideration, and very likely put me in the

State prison.
Q. IDid you fell nne of fthc sharpest men that you ever met in Canada that you

could not do this I Did you e7.plain to them. that if you did this you would be behind
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the bars, where you ought to be?-A. If they had carried out the agreement, which
they made, anti paid to us from any source other than trust funds of their member-
ship the amounts they agreed to pay, and which was a preliminary of their receiving
anything, we had a contract that was perfectly legal and we had a perfect right ta
carry it out, and we should have carried it out; but when it came to their fulfllling
what they had agreed to do, they tendered to us trust f unds bclonging to their mem-
bership and nlot to themselves, and we refused to receive them.

Q. And then you agreed to give them $100,0O0. To whom was that $100,000 ta
be paid?-A. Whatever the amount was-

Q. You said it was about $100,000 ?-A. I said it would probably approximate
$10,000. Dr. McLarty, I think Mfr. Morton and probably Mr. Baird, were the trustees
te whom that money was ta be paid.

Q.And what was the money and appropriation te be for ?-A. I do nlot know.

By the Hon. M1r. Watson:
Q. For the policy-holders ?-A. Oh, no0.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. HIe did flot care whether they knew it or not. HIe did flot agree to pay it 1-

A. As a matter of fact they undoubtedly intended to take it as a compensationi for
turning over to us the business membership of that company.

Q. And you were in the agreement with them, a partner with them. ?-A. I
agreed to do certain things if they did certain things, and I would agree ta do it
to-day, but that does not commit me to the. fact of receiving somebody else's money
when they tender it to me.

Q. I see you are flot going to give us an opinion with reference ta that. Did yau
go an and collect the dues as they became due?-A. i ey did.

Q. Carried on the regular business, taking the business entirely ont of their
hands, and managed it yu urseif ?-A. The members of the Provincial Provindence
became members of the Mutual iReserve Life Association and were treated as members
and have been treated as members from that day ta this.

Q. They agreed to transfer the business ta you, and yau were in future ta run
the business accarding ta the rules and regulataions of your society. They did
transfer it ta you ?-A. They came to us, and the business became part of aur
business.

Q.You took the business 1-A. Yes.
Q.What did yeu give them for it?-A. Give whom I

Q. The policy-holders, &c., for having warked up that business, because you would
pay an agent if you had an agent anywhere. Here yeu had handed over ta you
about $12,000,000 of business and yeu paid nothing for it-A. Whom should we pay
it te. We could not pay it ta the trustees.

Q. Wby? Afraid you would get behind the bars I-A. No, I was flot afraid in
the slightest degree of getting behind the bars.

Q. You carried on that business and had yaur own business 1-A. Yes.
Q. Who was your agent there ta look after the collections and look after the

business 1-A. I think :Mr. Miller was aur agent for a whule and IMr. Ooghill.Q. When Miller went ta Montreal, Coghill became in contrai of it, and after he
left wha next I-A. There is a young lady who was a clerk in the Provincial Provident.
Mfr. Coghill I think is still collecter.

Q. That wonld be Miss Noble 1-A. Yes.
Q. You are still transacting business there 1-A. Yes, still collecting assessments.Q. And you are increasing the death-calls upan the members-A. The death

assessments upon the members are increased with înereasing age.
Q. And are there as many remaining in now as what was transferred over ta yeu?

-A. Oh, nio.
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Q. ihen you say the fact is that you have taken it out of the former trustees,
taken it into your own hand,and you are squeezing those who have been insured and paid
in, year in and year out,and you are now, by putting heavy assessments upon them,
squeezing thein out, and virtually robhing those poor men I-A. I think that my best
answer to the Doctor would be to quote Mr. Justice Street in a decision recently
given in the case of a Provincial Provident policy-holder who brought suit against
the conipany becaused they had increased. his assessment, and in his decision lie said,
-From the evidence before this court there is no doubt that had the Provincial Prov-

ident remained as an indopondent organization and stîli remained in existence it
would have been obliged to do, in order to carry out its contract, uxactly what the
2kutual Rf1nerve Life Association C1ompany bas donc in carrying out these contracta.

'hat Las nothing to do with -%hat «we are at ?-A. It strikes me it is a good
answer.

Q. It does not quite satisfy meI Take the P.P.J. organization. You said you
lad about $12,000,000 of business 1-A. Thpre, is prohably about one-quarter of that
in force to-day.

Q. And how mue1 of the three-quarters have been on account of deaths 1 A.
Speaking in round numbers, I should suppose one-haif to three-quarters of a million.

Q. Would you lie good enough to tell me how many, as far as you can remember.
of thc deatîs that have occiirred or settlement made between your company and these
people that you have paîd the full amount ?-A. To every one that had a legitimate
dlaim.

Q. Legitimate dlaimi is a very broad terni. You are supposed to lie the one to
interpret what is and what is riot legitimate ?-A. Not hy any manner of means.

Q. I may say that I do not know one that you have paid in full. If you will
mention lis name it may bring it to recollection ?-A. It would be utterly impos-
sible for me, fromn memory, to say. I have no personal supervision of tIe list of
deatl dlaims so os f0 be aIle to remember tIe namnes of individual policy-holders.
1 con supply you witî a lot of tli at the office and will gladly do so, but f0 tesfify
to wbom lôsses have been paid or boneficiaries, it 'would be impossible to do so.

By .Mr. Coster, K.C., Uounsel for the Gommittee:

Q. There wvas notice to produce the evidence before fIe committee ?-A. There
wvas notice to produce before fIe committee records that would have faken eighteen,
montîs f0 copy if we had brouglit them. There was notice to produce before tIc comn-
mitfee tIe records showing the expendifure of over fifty million dollars.

Q. Particulors of the policies thatyou shaved would not fake so long 10 prepare
-A. I object to the word 'shaved.' I do not fhink it is a legitimate word. I was
ordered to produce a list of all policies in Canada in the last ten years that lad not
been paid at their face value. I got that order at 10 o'cloek on Monday morning, a
week ago, or half-past ten. and 1 gave tle order for that and ofler documents to lie
produced, and if will be produced and presented to flic committce with full details,
but if is flot a malter thaf can be got up in a few minutes. You have to go over al
the dlaims and take ouf the Canadian dlaims and go to fIe records and bring out the
vouchers and records in order f0 give the full information whicî the committee bas
asked for, and which will be produced.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Wil.son:

Q. You bold me you could not tell me flic namne of a policy-holder fIat you lad
paid in fuli. Just a minute before, you said you lad paid every legitimate dlaim
that laed. een presented.

Q. llow is it you could remember the legitimaf e claims that had been prcscntcd
and that you had paid, and you cannot remember a single individual's deaf h tînt bas
taken place ?-A. I submif that il is a very different thing to testify that the proper
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dlaims against the company have been properly paid, and to name individuals to
whom they have been paid.

Q. Have you any record of the legitimate dlaims that have been paid ?A. We
have records of every dlaim that has hoen paid, whether it has heen paid at the full
value or wbether it has been compromised, or whether it bas been reduced by age, the
records exist in the office fully and completely.

Q. Have you a record in the office of how many have allowed their insurance to
lapse on account of the increased assessment that they are unable to pay ?-A. No sir.
We could flot possibly know how thiey allowed their policies to lapse. We have the
record of ail busines.s that lias been in force from that company, and all that ceased
to Le in force ini each case.

Q. And you have also on record a large number of letters where they state that
that was contrary to the agreement entered inta with the trustees and when they were
insured ?-A. A complaint that the increase of assessment was flot in accordance with
the items of the contract ? We have a number.

Q. A large inumber ?-A. We have had such complaints. 1 do flot know if it
was a large numter. We have also the decision of Mr. Justice Street in such a case
that it was according to the contract.

Q. That part of it bas nothing to do with the question I asked, what iMr. Justice
Street saîd or did flot say ?-A. Weli, it is important to us.

Q. Because at the time that you took over that Provincial Providence you knew full
well the condition of it ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you knew when you agreed for the consideration to take it over,
that you became respansible, and Judgc Street's decision bias nothing to do
uwith it ?-A. I would say to the Committee that when we came into the
Dominion of Canada to do business we were compelled, by the law, to subjeet our-
selves to the jurisdiction of the courts of Canada and to abide by their decisions, and
it seerus to me that a decision of a court of Canada in regard to that matter is hind-
ing upon us, and we did agree to carry that insurance upon the hasis of a written
contract. Complaint was muade to the Insurance Department as well as to ourselves
that we were not carrying out that contract. and the Insurance flepartrucut of Can-
ada, on the sp-ecific point on wbichi the complaint was made, asked us for information.
and we furnished it as dcsired. auid flot hiaving Lad any decisian frorn that departmnent
to the contrary. we assume that thcyv considered we wvere carrying it ont qs agreed. but
beyond that it scems ta me-and I subinit it with respect to the com'ittce-tha<t
when w'e have the adjudication of the courts of Canada as to that contraet, whcther
we were carrying it out or nat, it is something more than a mere caver. It is a
determination and an adjudication of the question at issue.

By the Chairm an :
Q. Do you mean to say the courts of our country broke an agreement hetween you

and other people ?-A. No, the complaint was made that we had violated the contract,
and we were sued for damages on that account, and the case was heard before Mr. Jus-
tice Street, and decided in our favour.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. Justice Street's judgment ought not ta have very much weight in reference to

this mattter. llad the original trustees of the P. P. I. carried on the business, are
you in a position ta tell me to-day that they would Le just in a simihar position as
your Mutual IReserve is to-day ? Would they not have been, when this suit was
entered, or Lefore that-there might bave been provisions made by those trustees with
the policy-holders whereby they would ail have their claims paid and the assessments
increased iii the ratio that you increased them ? Their office expenses and the ex-
penses attached to the society there would not have been a hundredth part of the enorin-
ous expense of yours. The president wvould have received comparatively hitthe, and do
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ýou tbink that by quoting Mr. Justice Street, it is a fair argument to offer the Com-

rnittee ?I conteiid that it is not, and I think the committee xviii Sa consider l

No answer.

By the Hon. Mr. MlcSweeney:

Q. Bld you receive the $90,OO0 assets of the Provincial iProvident ?-A. We re-

ceived 4he $90,000, subject ta a trust. We could pay nothing. 1 feel that I ought to

be permitted to answcr the question of Dr. Wilson. lie bas asked mc if, in my opinion,

the Provincial Provident continued as an independeut institution-

By the lion. Mr. Wilson:

Q. No, I did not want your opinion upon that. I said that the jiudgc had no rigbt

to say what would have occurred.-A. Will the stenographer read the question? If it

is going on record, I should like to make au aaswer. I believe, if the institution had

continued independently, it would have been in the hands of a receiver to-day. I thiiik

that question should be stricken out, because it implies mnatters ini connection with the

transfer to the company. It is merely a matter of opinion that the expenses of the

Provincial Provident would not have been a hundredth part of what they would have

been to us.

By the Lion. Mr. Rob ertson:

Q. What is the amount of the business in Canada l-A. Two and a haif million.

Q. TIow mucli under the assessment plan ?-A. Practicaily ail assessment.

By the lion. Mr. Sulliv an:

Q. As yon are intimate with ail the aff airs of the Company, if it is not an imper-

tinent question, I should like to ask you about a certain matter. A gentleman said

yesterday that the system. under which you were carrying on insurance was a faliacîous

one, one which couid flot resuit in success ?-A. When I came to the Mutual iReserve,

I found certain conditions existing which, I beiieved, and still believe, must necessariiy

be changed and corrected if the company were going to continue, and from the time

I went there, that was largely my business, to shape a change so as to save the Com-

pany in spite of the faliacions and unsound mcthods on which the business had pre-

viousiy been done.
Q. When did you go there l-A. 1894.

Q. Then, you xvere ten years struggimg against the beast ?-A. No.

Q. Changes in methods and changes in premiums were made in 1896. I mean the

general policy of assessments. Insurance experts were examined yesterday, and they

gave their opinion that this assessment system was bad, and could not result in success.

Were you of that opinion ?-A. In my opinion, to-day, it is possible to carry on sound

and permanent insurance on the assessment plan. I firmly believe it.

Q. With the same means as used by the New York iMutual ?-A. Not with the con-

ditions as to premniums, payments and rates and so forth that existed in 1894.

Q. Why did you flot change it ?-A. I changed themi just as soon as I was able

after I came into the company. They were changed long ago. We had not done any

business upon that basis for eight years.

Q. Mr. MaclMurchy yesterday stated that they knew the business was on a wrong

ba.sis, and he expressed contrition for the wrong and hoped they wouid be pardoned for

past of!ences. If that was the general opinion of the company, they made no atteunpt

to make any change until the compiaint was made by the Hon. Mr. l)omvilie.-A. You

are entireiy mistaken. We have been at work at it for eight years.

Q. When did yon appiy for a change in the Insurance Act ?-A. I have not applied

for a change in the Insurance Act. Frum the time I have bee~n connected with the

company, I have beeen working to the end of making a change and have believed it

was necessary in order to preserve the company. I was in favour of the change that
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was made in the law in 1899, but I believe that there was inserted in that law a provi-sion which was detrirnental to the interests of the assessment policy-holders in Canada.I secured sirnilar changes in iMassachusetts and suhsequently in New York, and thatprovision was flot introduced in either of those States.

By the Chairman:
Q.What is that l-A. That is the provision isolating the policy-holders ; at thetime that we cornplied with that provision, I then suggested to the governent of Can-ada that I thought that change ouglit to be made. I have each year subsequently, asdelicately as I could, suggested that I thought it ought to be rnade.

By the lion. Mr. Sullivan:
Q. That is the change contemplated in the Act ?-A. The change contemplated inthe Act that has been introduced: that is, in general ternis. I do flot mean the details,because the details I ar n ot committed to. I arn sixnply saying that there is a wrongthat ought to be remedied, and I amr in the hands of the government.Q. Why did you not make the effort in the legisiature here ?-A. Because I had nomeans whatever of rnaking it.
Q. Any mnan can corne here for legisiation ?-A. I arn a foreigner.Q. Any one can corne here and ask for legislation. - Your cornpany then had nothingto do with the introduction of this legisiation in the Senate ?-A. They have asked anddesired each year since 1899-
Q. When and frorn whom ?-A. We discussed it with the Insurance DepartrnentWe have had it discussed with Mr. Fielding, and we have wanted that change rnade.Q. Every year frorn 1899 l-A. Yes, but there have been objections to having it

done.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. Whiat was your reserve fund composed ofI Deathi daims I-A. It is your cashinvestrnents and also the liens.
Q. To what amount does it compare with your liabilities ?-A. On the firatday of J anuary last, our assets were $506,0O0 in excess of our liabilities.Q. I arn speaking of the reserve fund ?-A. Our reserve fund is a portion of ourliabilities. We charged the reseive which is four and a haîf million, and we have tahave assets to offset that. We have assets to offset the reserve, assets equivalent tothe reserve, and assets to equal death losses and other outstanding dlaims, and wehave assets $506,00O besides, which is a surplus.Q. When you made a cali to the policy holders for death dlaims, did you have acertain amount for the creation of that fund ?-A. In the early history of the comn-pany there was added 33à per cent. That was the original plan, but in 1899 a re-solution was adopted by the policy-holders-and I arn frank to say that I think thatwas the beginning of the trouble, that instead of collecting the additional amount togo to, the reserve fund, that whatever should be collected for the death fund should bepaid for death loases, so that under that resolution the death fund, which had beenpiling up at the rate of 33à per cent of the death losses prior to that, hegan to'decreasein a diminishing ratio, so that instead of accurnulating the reserve, they used that moneywhich would have gone into that fund, to prevent increase of assessments.Q. Did your company not at that time issue circulars saying that the 33J per centto create the reserve fund was creating a fund the interest on which would go te di-minishing indebtedness ?-A. I have seen circulars of that character that were issuedlong before I becarne connected with the cornpany, and I have iûo doubt these wereissued.

Q. Do you think those circulars issued by the company hind the cornpany ?-A.Well that is a question that is a very fine legal question, and has been fought out in
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two or tbree cases and in the final case now before the Supreme Court of Canada,
awaiting decision. Those questions are involved in that case.

Q. You have in those circulars given a table of the dlaims for each age ?-A. 0f
the rate for age.

Q. Is it in your cognizauce that that table is no use at ail ?Have you asked
more than the table indicates ?-A. One of the issues in these cases has been whether
the table places at the original age of entry, or at attained age. That is the issue ini
the Anger's case.

.Q. WVhat is that ?-A. Wbether it applies to the rates at which the policy is
originally issued or at each age as advaîîeed. If applied to eacb age as, advanced, th-:
table is a different table than if it applied to the original age simply, If it applied
to the origial age sýimply, there is no question it would bc inadequate.

Q. Supposing I get insured in your company at forty-five years, there will be P.
figure representing what I must pay at forty-five 1 A. Yes.

Q. And a figure marking fifty-flve also -A. Yes.
Q. Do you mean to say the figure placed at forty-five wilI be permanent ?-A.

Under the policies, 1 do not think it would be permanent. It increased with agc.

By the Hon. 31r. Béique :
Q.That is the point at issue ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry.

Q.But in those tables, there was a maximuma I suppose, and a minimum ?-A.
Yes.

The committee adjourned untîl 10 a.m. to-morrow.

OTTAWA, June 24, 1904.

Select Coxnmittee appointed by the Senate to investigate the standing of the New
York Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York, resumed at 10 a.m.

Examination of George D. Eldridge continued.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q.Did you prepare that statement dividing your officers and your employees into

two classes I-A. I had flot prepared it, but I will have it prepared from the books of
the company and give a certified copy to the committee.

Q. I suppose we can find these statements in these reports that were made to, the
Insurance Departmnent in the States, the amount of expenses for the officers I-A. The
amount of expenses for the officers and office employees?

Q. They are stated under different headings I-A. Yes, and printed in tbe blue-
book of the Canpclian iDepartment in the saine way; the synopsis of our general re-
port is in each year.

Q. In the face of these documents what objection have you to answer tbe question
that was put to you, asking the salaries of the officers of the company I-A. We are
perfectly willing to answer as to the aggregate salaries of the officers of the company,
but the individual distribution of it we regard as a confidentiel matter, and also as a
matter tbat spread before the public, in a public document, to be circulated, is not
in the best intereats of the company. The examinera of the Insurance iDepartmcnt
of the United States, încluding New York, and also the examinera of the Insurance
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Department of Canada, have abselute access to that information. and bave taken it
froin tilne te time. 1Now, fer instance, in 1898, the New York Insurance Departmnent
examined tbe company, and I have here tbeir official report certifying that the state-
ment then made to the New York Insurance iDepartment as of IDecember 31, 1897,
was correct. This examiner's department saw tbese papers, saw the facts, but tliat is
a very different thing from printing it in a public document to be circulated every-
where. The aggregate information is given in every report. The distribution of the
meney to the individuals is a thing that I do flot know of having been given iii any
public report of any insurance company. Take any of your Canadian reports that
are given to the department, they are not separate in the items uearly as mucb as ours
are. It states commissions, salaries, other expenses of officers, and puts tbem into an
aggregate sum?

Q. We are not asking to discuss the merits of tbe question l-A. You asked me
tbe reason.

Q. Yes?-A. Now tben tbere is ne basis whatever for a comparisen of tbe in-
dividual salaries. There is bases of comparison of the aggregate salaries paid by
different cempanies. Again, wben you corne to put tbis information before tbc public
and before employees of our company, for instance-we bave several hundred cm-
ployees there-unquestionably eacb one thinks that bis special service is wortli a
cousiderable amount of meuey. The executive oficers of the company, tbe executive
committee and the directors mnust be the judge of the value of those services, and it
would cause bickerings and distrust among the officers, and if anyone came to fill
places. in our judgment, it would increase the difficulty of getting men at reasonabie
compensation.

By the Hon. Mr. McM'ullen:

Q. What is the amount te the credit of the policy-bolders aitogether in the bands
of your coin pany now? Yen have $228,OO0 in th'e bauds of the Dominion gox'orlnent
in the treasury. Wbat other moncys bave yen get te the credît of the Canadian policy-
holders? Have you any other moneys than wbat is bere ?-A. Net te tbe special
credit excepting xvhat is here in the Dominion of Canada as sbown by our iast report.

Q. That is ail yen have got ?-A. That is aIl we bave get.
Q. Yen say yen have nothing te tbe credit of the Canadian policy-belders only

tbe amount that is here in tbe bands of the goverument i-A. Notbing to tbeir special
credit.

Q. Have yen a returu under yonr hand that yen cau give us tbe amount that yeu
coilected in the way of assessments from the policy-holders in Canada each year since
yen were licensed, and tbe amount that yen paid of matnred policies, or in any ether
way l We want you te give us tbe amount in 1886. What did yen collect in assess-
ments that year ?-A. The gross assessments collected in that year were $59,557.

Q. How much did yen pay ?-A. That gross assessmeut includes assessment for
death loases sud aise assessments for mortuary expenses. The paymeuts te poiicy-
helders in that year were $37,800.

Q. But I want yen te notice, IMr. Eldridge, that I will prepare for the nineteen
years yen have doue business a returu of the receipts £rom poiicy-holders every year,
and 1 wiil briug it before the cemmittee t-A. It was submitted before the committee
yesterday.

Q. Who submitted it ?-A. Senator Béique. It was given te me te make the foot-
ings.

By the Hon. Mr. Landrv:

Q. To corne back te the question I was puttiug at the beginning, what is the
number of your officers i-A. At present there is a president, two vice-presidents, a
seeretary-treasurer.
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Q. A secretary and besides that a treasurer l-A. Yes. Two assistant secre-
taries, controller, a medical direetor, and, IE think, the counsel is a constitutional
officer too. Those are the ones that would be in the office.

Q. About ten I-A. Yes.
Q. And the employecs ?-A. iMy impression is that there are about two hundred.
Q. Would that be the average i-A. Prob.ably the average for a number of years.

I think when I went there the number was larger than it is at the present time. I
should say at that time, when I went there, it was about 225 to 250 ail told.

Q. Are those officers ail members of the board ?-A. There are twelve members of
the board.

Q. Other than officers I-A. No, the entire membership of the board of directors
is twelve.

Q. But ail members of the board are flot ail officers i-A. No, there are three or
four members of the Board at the present time that are not officers of the company-
there are five members of the board that are nlot officers, but one of the other members
is an employee of the company; he is in the legal department.

Q. There are five that are not officers ?-A. There are seven that are officers
there are four that are neither officers nor employees, and one that is an employee.

Q. Those that are not officers, the four that are neither officers nor empioyees,
receive fees for attendance I-A. Yes. I testified the other day that I thouglit it was
$10. JEt is $20 a meeting.

Q. Would those $20 be in the account as salaries given to officers i-A. No, they
would not be in the account.

Q.Distinct account ?-A. Yes.
Q.Where would that be entered ?-A. It wouid be entered in the general expenses

-offioe expenses.
Q.fow often do you meet ?-A. Once a week.

Q. That is the regular meeting I-A. Yes.
Q. Is there an extra meeting I-A. Oh, occasionally there is an extra meeting.
Q. But we may say on an average it is once a week?-A. That is the regular meet-

ing; occasional1y an extra meeting cornes up, just simoply to pass on some routine
matter, and the board is cailed together for a few moments, but the regular meetings
are once a week.

Q. When you say there is a meeting every week, I suppose there are committee
meetings also l-A. There are committee meetings also.

Q. Besides the board meetings ?-A. Yes.
Q. These meetings are attended by members of thc committee itscif -A. Ycs.
Q. But are they paid I-A. They are not paid for any committee meeetings.
Q. JEt is oniy the meetings of the IBoard ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q. Are the oficers of the company who are dîrectors paid for attending the meet-

ings of the company ?-A. They are net.
Q.Just the four that are not oflicers of the company?-A. Just the four that are

not officers of the company.

By thre Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. What is the salary of the president ?-A. I respectfully decline to answer.
Q. What is the saiary of the vice-president ?-A. I respectfully decline to, answer.
Q. There are two vice-presidents I-A. Yes.
Q. The sarne answer applies to both vice-presidents I-A. Yes.
Q. What is the saiary of the secretary I A. I respectfully decline to answer.
Q. What is the salary of the treasurer ?-A. I respectfully decline to answer.

Q.Is there any other officer I-A. The controller.
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Q.What is the-salary of the controller ?-A. I respectfully decline to answer.
Q.What is the salary of the medical director ?-A. 1, respectfully decline to

answer.
Q. Is the counsel a member of the association ?-A. I think he is a constitutional

officer under the present constitution.
Q. At ail events, if he is, what is lis salary i-A. I respectfully decline to answer.
Q. Is there any other officer i-A. There are two assistant secretaries that are con-

stitutional officers, I think.
Q. What are the salaries of each'of the two assistant secretarieý ?-A. I respect-

fully decline to answer.
Q. Do you know what those salaries are i-A. iFrom memory I could state some

oi them, and from memory I could not state exactly others.
Q. You could tell what is your owu ?-A. I could.
Q. But you decline ? A. I respectfully decline to, answer.

lion. IMr. LANDRY.-I move that the witness be compelled to answer the questions
which have been put to him.

Q. Why do you decline ?-A. Because I regard the information as coming to me
confidentially in my position as chairman of the executive committee. I regard it as
a matter of great detriment to the policy-holders of the company to have this informa-
tion spread upon the publie record to be printed and scattered broadcast. In addition
to that, under the law of the Dominion of Canada, to which we are subject, there is
an officer established who has the absolute power to visit our office and ascertain any
information that he may desire in connection with the company; and in1 addition to
that, I have to say that the Insurance Department of New York, in the State of New
York, under our jurisprudence, gives absolute credence and faith to every act of the
Insurance Department of Canada with reference to Canadian companies, and we are
entitled to the same credence and the same treatment in reference to the acts of Our'
own insurance department as the acta of the Canadian Department are givcn in refer-
ence to Canadian companies; and furthermore, that my declining to answer is by
advice of my counsel.

By the Chairman:

Q. ilave the policy-holders of your association a right to this information?
-A. The policy-holders of the association have asked the information at the annual
meetings, and it has been declined uniformly.

Q. I am instructed hy the committee to convey to you the commitee's comm~and
that you answer the questions as put by the lion. Senator Landry ?-A. I regret the
issue, but I am under advice of counsel and I respectfully decline to answer.

By Mr. MacMurchy, Counsel for the filutuat Reserve:

Q.The witness Stevenson gave an account of an interview which he had with
you, which is referred to at page 6, in which you were represented as haviug said to
the witness Stevenson 'I want you to withdraw that resignation and stay with the
company.' Did you make that statement ?-A. 1 did not ask him to remain with the
company. I would suggest, in reference to this, that 1 could cover this examination
Uy. making ai general statement in reference to that conversation :that Mr. Stevenson
did submit his resignation the morning after the board had failed to re-elect him;
that I sent for him, suspecting that lie had purposes adverse to the company, and I
desired to flnd out what bis position was with reference to the company. In the course
of the interview, 1 made him the offer that would have been given to any officer
retiring from the company, of continuing bis salary for a certain length of timeý I
also made the statement to him in the course of the discussion which lie bas chosen
to interpret as a statement, that I disapproved of many things that had been done.
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MAy interpretation of the words 1 used was that in connection with any business, where
there were a number of men associated together, that there must be aets that some of
them did nlot approve and some of them did approve, that no one could expect to,
carry out lis views throughout the administration of a company of that kind. H1e bas
interpreted the words to mean differently and so quotes them. That is the sum and
substance of the interview we had that morning, and it seems to me that as it does
flot hear in the slightest degree on the expenditure of any money, that is ail that is
necessary for the committee.

Q. There was one rexnark made, 'You can go away and stay one or two or three or
four or five or six months and your salary will be sent you right along.' Was there any
sucli offer made ?-A. No, there was no definite timo of any offcr mado. AB 1 said, no
officer has ever been sent away without expectation of paying him, and when iMr.
Stevenson was not; re-elected it was the expectation to pay him bis salary for a cer-
tain length of time, whieh was flot flxed.

Q. Did you offer to make a propositioni to him at iRichmond, Virginia or at
Washington ?

THE CHAIRMAN.-Mr. Eldridge asked to be permitted to make a general state-
ment and has covered it, he» says.

By Mr. MacMurchy : a
Q. Did Stevenson take part in the charges to the New York Insurance Depart-

ment in 1897 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Were the charges you have heard here substantially repeated ?-A, They are

substantially the same charges, altbougb there is some diflerence in detail.
Q. Were these charges the subjeet of any investigation by any sworn officer of

the Insurance iDepartment :if so, by whom. ?-A. Tbey were investigated by Isaac
Vanderpoci, chief examiner, Insurance ]Jepartment, New York, covering the period
April l7th to Aiugust 27th, 1899.

By the Clunrmun:
Q. You gave that evidence before, did you flot ?-A. Yes. The examinations in

1898 and 1899 are sworn to, hy IMr. Vanderpoel and contained in a report of the superin-
tendent, wbicb are separate reports.

By Mr. MacMurchy :
Q. Will you refer to Mr. Vanderpoel's a:ffidavit at page 108 and 109 of the answer

of the ýassociation, the blue-book which is already in evidence. I ask you to look at
this book, which purports to be the depositions of IMr. Vanderpoel and a certified copy
from the Clerk of the Supreme Court of New York, which is sworn on the 2nd April,
1900 ?-A. That is the aflidavit of Mr. Vanderpoel extracted from that document.
(Report fyled Exhibit 13.)

Q. iReferring to that affidavit taken in an action of the Mutual iReserve against
J. Tbompson IPatterson, already referred to before *this committee, will you refer to
the portion of that affidavit dealîng witb the charges whieh were investigated upon
the complaint of Mr. Stevenson and IMr. Wells, wbicb we have had discussed bere and
read. Will you read the statement of the witness Vanderpoel on that occasion
A. The statement reads as fo]lows :

N>EW YOIRK SJPIREME COURT.
TnF UTULý-RESERtvE FUND LIFEASOITN

T H E M U T U Â L A g ain st A 5 0 A I N

J. TniomsoN PATERSON.

?roceedings before Stephen 11. Keating, Esq., a referee duly appointed by order
of Mr. Justice ILawrence to take the deposition of Isaac Vanderpoel, held the 2nd day
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of April, 1900, at one-thirty p.m., at the office of the referee, No. 32 Nassau Street,
New York City.

The referee takes the oath and files the same, Isaac Vanderpoel, Esq., being ftrst
duly sworn by the referee, testifies as follows

EXAMINED BY MR. ELKUS:
I amn the Chief Examiner of the Insurance Department of the state of New

York, and have my office at No. Il Broadway, in the city of New York, which is the
office of the Insurance Departmnent of the state of New York, in the City of New
York. I arn attending here because 1 have been served with the order of iMr. Justice
Lawrence, dated Mardi 8lst, 1900, requiring me so to do. I have been connected with
the said Insurance ]Jepartment for the past 30 years.

In the year 1899 1 received instructions £rom the Insurance Department to examine
the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association. I began sucli examination about May 15,
1899, and continued the samne until about August 15, 1899. This examination was
conducted by me assisted by about twelve assistants. I examined or caused to be ex-
amined ail the books, papers and records of the association, including the minute
books of the board of directors, and also generally examined various contracts. After
such examination I made a written report to, the Superintendent of Insurance. I was
familiar at that time with the charges filed by James D. Wells and John M. Steven-
son with the Insurance Department against tN Mutual Reserve Fund Life Associa-
tion, and its officers. In such examination I investigated the said charges against the
said association and its management, so 'fi1ed, in so far as the books and records of the
association werc conccrned, and in so doing found nothing which. impaired the in-
tegrity or honesty either of Frederick A. Burnham, the President of said association,
or any one else associated with him in the management of the association at the time
of snch examination.

I found in my examination that the acts of the officers of the said association
were always within their powers and prerogatives as defined by the association's by-
laws or constitution, or as said acts may have been authorized by the directors of the
association as evidenced by the minutes of their proceedings.

At the time of such examination I was requested by Mr. Frederick A. Burnham,
the President of the said association, to make my examination of the said charges and
of the? said association thorough and complete, and to the best of my ability I made
a thorougli and complete examination thereof. I was afforded every facility by the
association and its officers to make such examination.

(Signed) ISAAC VAKDERPOEL.
Subscribed and sworn to before me5

this 2nd day of April 1900.
(Signed) STEPIIEN H1. KEATING,

NEW YOIRK STJPREME COURT.
THiE MUTUAL IRESEPVE FUND LIFE AsSOcIATIoN

Against
J. THOMSON IPATERSON.

I do hereby certify that by virtue of the order made by the Hon. Abraham R.
Lawrence, Justice of the, New York Supreme Court, county of New York, on the 3lst
day of March, 1900, I took the foregoing deposition of Isaac Vanderpoel, having first
taken the referee's oath.

Dated New York, April 2, 1900.
(Signed) STEPIIEN H1. KEATING,

Referee.
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Formh 9.
No. 828.

State of New York, iss
County of New York.j
I, THomAS I. HAMILTON, Clerk of the said county and Clerk of the Supreme Court of

said state for said county, do certify, that 1 have compared the preceding with the
original...............deposition..............
on file in my office, and that the samne is a correct. ........ transcript
thcrcfrom, and of the whole of sucli original.
Indorsed filed, May 8, 1900.
IN WITNESS wT-IEROF, I have hereunto subscribed my namne and affixied my officiai

seal, this lOth day of April, 1904.
THTOMAS L. HAMILTON,

Clerc.

Q.low long has Vanderpool been connected with the departmcnt and what is
bis position v-A. R1e is now chief examiner for the department and has been con-
nected for about 925 years; part of the time of recent years as first deputy super-
intendent and subsequently as chief examiner.

Q. Does lie examine into the affairs of all the insurance companies doing
business in the State of New York ?-A. Tiie New York Insurance Department makes
an examination of the companies in New York on an average once in every three to
five years, and IMr. Vanderpoel, so far as the time allows, conducts those examinations
of recent years.

Q. This examination I believe lie made specially ?-A. 11e did.
Q. Are you aware of that personally g-A. I amn.
Q. Djd lie go into those matters with you ?-A. Hie went into very many of thein

with me.,
Q. Were these charges mnade and were you heard before any other tribunal in New

York; if so, what, on these charges ?-A. Subsequently these charges were flled by J.
M. Stevenson and four other policey-holder-my imnpression is that it wan cnrly in April
1900, February 1900, with the Attorney General of the State of New York iii con-
nection with a petition for leave to proceed under the Statute for the removal of Mr.
Burnham. as president, on account of these derilictions of duty. These charges so
mnade to the Attorney General were served upon the association and its officers, to-
gether with the affidavits and other proofs admitted to the Attorney Genei-al and in
answer we gave our answer. The answer of the Association, aise the answer
of the various officers together without affidavits, the entire proof being in the
form of the affidavits and not by a personal hearing in that case, After the filing of
these answers and counter answers, the Attorney General heard argument upon the
matter, at which argument I was present, the counsel for the petitioners bcing ex-
governor B3lack of New York, and, for the cempany, Frank 11. Platt, and aftcr the
argument the Attorney General took the matter under- advice and made this flnding
in the matter. This finding is net certîied, but I personally have examined the
original flnding, compared it with this printed cepy, and arn prepared to swear that
that is a copy of the finding of the Attorney General.

By the Chairman:
Q. The fact of the matter is that these charges were made and brouglit before

the Attorney General's Department and not looked inte, or set aside g-A. They were
looked into and dismissed by the Attorney General.

By Mr'. Closter, K.C., Coûnsel for the Committee:
Q.That is only the opinion of one man, and probably paid to give it ?-A. The

Attorney General of New York? As a citizen of New York I do not think that it is
proper to make sucli a statement. ELDRIDQdI
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Q. The finding reads as follows (Exhibit 14.)

BEFORE THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

In the matter of
The application of James IR. Maclay and others, to the Attorney General, to bring

an action to remove Frederick A. Burnham as president of the Mutual Reserve
Fund Life Association.
This is an application under section 1781 of the Code of Civil procedure to bring

an action to remove Frederick A. Burham from the office of president of the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association, and is made by policy holders in the association.

The superintendent of insurance is charged with the supervision of associations
of this character, as well as other insurance companies of this State.

Article 4 of Insurance Law vests the power of visitation over Assessment Insur-
ance Corporations in the Insurance Department, and section 207 of that law defines
the powers and duties of the superintendent of insurance, as well as those of the
Attorney General, and is as follows:-

' All corporations, assocations and societies to which this article is applicable,
with their books, papers and vouchers, shall be subject to visitation and inspection by
the superintendent of insurance or such persons as he may designate. The superin-
tendent may address any inquiries to any such corporation, association, or society in
relation to its doings or condition, or any other matter connected with its transactions
relative to the business contemplated by this article. All officers of such corporation,
association or society shall promptly reply in writing to all such inquiries, under the
oath of its president or secretary or other officers, if required.

'When the superintendent, on investigation, shall be satisfied that any corpora-
tion, organized under the laws of this State, doing business in this State of the
character defined in this article is insolvent because of the matured death claims or
other obligations due and unpaid exceeding its assets and death or disablty assess-
ments or perodical calls made or in process of collection, or has exceeded its powers,
failed to comply with any provision of law, or is conducting business fraudulently,
lie shall report the facts to the Attorney General, who, if he shal be of the opinion
that the facts require such action, must thereupon apply to the Supreme Court, at a
special term thereof, within the judicial district in which the principal office of such
corporation, association or society within this State is located, for an order requiring
the officers of such association, corporation or society to show cause, at a reasonable
time and place within such district why such corporation, association or society
should not be restrained from continuing to transact business, with power to the court
to adjourn the hearing thereon from time to time, not exceeding sixty days in all.'

Pursuant to this power the superintendent of insurance, about August 22nd
1899, caused an examination to be made of the affairs of this association, and if he
had deemed any action necessary, as a result of that examination, against that cor-
poration or any of its officers, lie would have so reported to the Attorney-General.
He did not do so.

The affidavits and documents presented upon this hearing disclose a violent con-
ffict upon all the material questions before me. The examination made under the
superintendent of the insurance department is a much more satisfactory and conclu-
sive method of determining as to the condition of the company and the conduct of
its affairs, than a hearing of this character upon conflicting affidavits.

In view of the fact that the superintendent, after his examination, did not deem it
advisable to recommend legal proceedings against the association or its officers, as lie
was bound to do under the statutes if he had discovered any irregularity or corrup-
tion, I feel that his determination of these questions should be respected by me.

The commencement of an action of this nature to remove the president of this
association, and the extended litigation which wotld be sure to follow, even if the
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resuit should linally prove unfavourable to the petitioners, would be vcry disastrous
in its effect both upon the association and its policy-holders.

For the reasons indicated, 1 think that, the interests of ail conoerned require tha
denial of this application.

Application denied,

Dated, Albany, N.Y., Nov. 21, 1900.
(Sgd.) J. C. DAVIES,

Attorney-General.

By the Uhairman

Q. H1e makes the statement that his investigation is not conclusive--not as con-
clusive as the other examination l-A. In that other investigation I desire to add to
my previous testimony. In regard to the examination made by the New York in.sur-
ance department I have testified that iMr. Vanderpoel made the examination, and that
he took up with me some of the charges. 1 wish to add in addition to that, that in
July, 1899, whule the examination by the New York Life Insurance department was
still in progress, a copy cf the charges were given to the association and the officers,
and an answer requested from the insurance department, whîch answer was made
under date of July 26, 1899, on oath, by the president and the vice-president. Sub-
sequently thereto, the Insurance Department examîned the president under oath
personally. When the report was made, a copy of the report was served upon the-
officers of the association, and a hearing was frxed at Albany, New York, which was
attended by the officers of thc association and the counsel, and hearing had, and various
charges then made taken up and inquired into at that time, and prior to the flling
of the report of Mr. Vanderpoci ais a publie document.

Q. Subsequent to the filing of that report, as a public document, the insurance
superintendent submitted the report to the Attorney General, and the Attorney Gren-
eral, on the l3th day of December, 1899, made a finding in reference to said report.

Q. Yo>u stated that thc superintendent of the Tnsiirance IDepartment of iNew York
went into the charges with you ?A. The chief examiner.

Q. Did that investigation take place in the presence of the policy-holders xvho had
made the charges against the association ?-A. It did not.

Q. Then the investigation was all conducted between the insurance company
and the Insurance Department of New York without the presence of those who had
made the charges ?-A. How f ar the Insurance Department dealt with the policy-
holders 'I am flot informed.

Q. They were not present whcn he investigated the charges ?A. The superifi-
tendent of insurance stated at the time our hearing that he had the complainants
before him.

Q. That is flot the question ?A. At the time we were hefore him, the policy-
holders were not before him-at the same time.

By Mr. McMurchy, Counsel for the Company:

Q.1 understand that it is the habit of the New'York Insurance Department to
examine periodically ?-A. Yes.

Q. Without any charges ?-A. Yes, as a rule they examine nîl their companies
once in three to five years.

Q. Do they examine the Canadian companies ?-A. They do not.
Q. Why ?-A. The New York Insurance Department neyer goes outside of the

State of New York to examine companies, but always accepts the authorities of the
State or company where the company is incorporated as conclusive, and gives implicit
credence to it.

Q. Including Canada ?-A. Including Canada.
ELDRIDGID
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Q. A great deal was said about these transfers of policies frorn the fifteen-year

to the flve-year plan, and those transfers were treated as new business. The first
question I have to ask you is this * What was the plan the f ounder of the association
had with regard to assessments, when a manl entered the association as a policy-
holder, and how did that account for the change that had to be made ?-A. As prac-
tically carried out, the plan was to retain the rate of assessment as of the age when
the party entered the association.

Q. For instance,. suppose a man entered at the age of 25, he would be charged a
certain rate ?-A. A certain rate at age of entry.

Q. Five years later, another man of the same age enters at the s'ge of thirty.
We will say A. entered at 25 and remains five years in the association lihe continue,-
to pay as at the age of 25. B. of. the sarne age, enters at thirty :does B. pay the saine
as A. at age thirty, and if not, why not ?-A. Under the plan as practically carried
out up te 1895, A. would continue te pay as if lie remained at the age of 25, while B.
going in at the age of thirty, and both have the same age, would lie paying on the
rate of age thirty, so one would lie paying at the rate of 25, and the other at 30,
aithougli both were the saine age.

By the lion. Mr. Landry:
Q.That is the age of entry ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman :
Q. That is the universal practice ?-A. Yes.

By 31r. McMurchy, Counsel for the Company:
Q. You say that continued from 1881 te 1895 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Fourteen years ?-A. Yes.
Q. Therefore, if a man entered at 25, and remained there fourteen years. lie

would bie 39 in 1895 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And a man miglit corne in at the age of 39, and aithougli fourteen years older,

lie miglit lie paying an assessinent for that age, whule the who entered at 25 would be
paying the assessment for the age of entry ?-A. The man who vient in at 25, would
be, at the end of fourteen years, thirty-nine, and would lie paying on the basis of age
of 25, while the man who entered at the age of 39 would lie paying on the basis of
age 39.

Q. llow did that bear on this transfer from the frfteen-year te the five-year plan,
and what was the necessity ?-A. The result of that was, that the members who had
been admitted at the earlier ages, were flot paying the cost of the insurance, but were
payîng only a portion of it, whule later rnèmbers were compelled to make up the
deficiency, and in the matter of transfer which brouglit thein under a contract to pay,
rates at attained age, it largely increased the premium receipts of the company, frorn
the business so transferred.

Q. In other words, as I understand it, your object was to make every man of the
saine age, no matter wlien lie entered, pay at the saine rate-is tliat correct

Hon. Mr. WILSON.-Or, in other words, violate the eontract lie bad made at 25
years of age ?

Q. W/bat was the object of making the transfer ?-A. Tbe object of making tlie
transfer was that the business that had theretofore been written was on insufficient
rates, if the rates were counted as flxed as of age of entry, and there was tlie absolute
tiecessity existing of increasing those rates in order to collect tlie amount necessary
to pay deatli daims, and to apportion it properly among tlie rnembership, and under
the form of contract whicli avoided many of those errors -that liad crept into practice
in the earlier business, whicli form. of contract was tlie one whicli was being used for
new business of the company, it was deemed desirable to exchange the policies. so far
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as individuals consented to exchiange them, bringing themn to a better basis of con-
tract, and avoiding those early difficuities, and in doing so, of course, increased the
premium ilcorne of the company from the business.

Q. With the consent of niembers ?-A. Witli consent of eawb individual member.

By the Chairman:
Q. I can understand that the rate should be increased. to meet the death dlaims.

Now, one of the charges made by the policy-hoiders of the company is this, that their
ratess were flot increased solcly to meot death claims, but to moût extravagant expenses.
There is the sumn and substance of the situation-there is no use of hiding it. There
is the complaint of the policy-holders-that the premiums were increased, flot onily to
meet the death dlaims, but their complaint is, the expenditure of tbe Company was too
large, and, consequently, their rates had to be increased for both reasons. These are
the questions which have to be rnet.-(No answer.)

By Mr. McMurchy, Counsel for the Company:
Q. You can give the explanation you proposed to give, at a later stage l-A. This

is the first time, I would say in explanation, that any specific charge in this regard, as
before this committee, bas corne before me. I have been labouring under the dis-
advantage of having no formulated charge to answer or address my testimony to. On
the matter of such a charge as that, I shall be very glad to submit to tbe committee
what I regard as conclusive evidence, but it will take a little time to put it in formai.
shape, whicb, in my opinion, would be very much better than to attempt to go into an
explanation of it here, which would necessarily take a great deai of time ,while I
could submit it in figures mucli more succinctly. As far as the Canadian business is
concerned, I have figures that, I think, would explain.

By the Chairman:
Q. Senator Béique, last evening, brought to your attention this main fact, that

the poliey-bo]ders of Canada bhad paid into the treasury of the association over five
million dollars in assessments h-A. That covered everything.

Q. The Senator :then stated that policy-holders of Canada had obtained only
$3,060,000 out of that sum. Now, hae asked for an explanation of that. The expiana-
lion given was, that fine hundred thousand dollars and oâer were paid for the ex-
penses to the agents in Canada. Then the ilonourable Senator brought to your atten-
tion the facl that that did not explain the balance of $740,000, and I think your answer
was, that ouI of thal amount there was some $240,000 in the bauds of the Dominion
Governrnenl as a deposit. The ilonourable Senator did not draw his conclusions, but
there was no explanation for the balanace. Thal meant that the policy-holders of
Canada are paying more money 10 the cornpany to meet their death dlaims and the
expenses of the cornpany than thcy get in return-that is, according to the figures -
A. iNecessarily they must. They are a part of the membership of the cornpany, and
ail general expenses which. are incurred for the entry membership are charged as of
the home office, and they should contribute Iowards those general expenses which are
for the whole, cornpany, Iheir proportionale share, the sanie as any other policy-
holders. I had some figures here, which I arn sorry Mr. Béique is not here to see, but
no increase was made ini these premiums untii 1895. From 1885 10 1894, both inclu-
sive, the total income, including interest and everything in Canada, was $1,764,436.
'fhe payrnents to policy-holders xvere $941,811. That is, that during the tirne preceding
any increase of the entire income in Canada, wýhere,$100 was collected, in the entire
income, including interest, $53.38 was reîurned in poiicy dlaims bo the policy-holders.

Ye.Q. That is, for every hundred dollars a Canadian paid hae got back $ 53.38 h-A.

Q. That would cost him $46.62 for i'nsurance h-A. Now, taking the same figures
frQmi 1895 to ana4including 1903, 1895 being the first year in which the increase in
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rates was made, the income in Canada from ail sources, including interest, was $3,-
'268,082. There were paid in policy dlaims during the same time $2,118,218. That is,
for encli $100 income during that period, there was paid to policy-holders, $64.81.

Q. Making the net cost $35.19 ?-A. Yea. Now, if you count everything as used
in expenses, ail the collections in -Canada flot returned to policy-holders or deposited
with the government you have this resuit : from 1885 te 1894, botli inclusive, prior to
any increase in the rates, there was returned to policy-holders $941,811, and there was
used for expenses upon that basis-counting everything as expense-$715,049. For
$100 returned as policy dlaims, there was used $75.92. From 1895 to 1903, the period
during which these increased rates occurred, there was paid to policy-holders in
Canada, 8,821,and there were expenses calculated upon the same basis as during
the preceding term, that is, everything collected, less payments to policy-holders in
deposits, $1,013,362. That is, for each hundred dollars paid te policy-holders in
dlaims there was used for expenses $47.84, as against $75.92 in the preceding term.
Now, I submit that a basis of comparison can only be had by similar business of the
Canadian company, doing business in Canada at the opening of the time when the
Company came inte Canada, and centinuing through that term, collected during the
time.

By the Chairman:
Q. What companies are those i-A. Ail the Canadian companies grouped together.
Q. Mutual assessment companies l-A. No.
Q. Ail kinds ?-A. Yes.
Q. I do not know whether the comparison would be fair to the policy-holders ?-

A. We are stiil a mutual company. Many of the largest companies in the United
States on the old line basis are mutual companies. The Equitable is a capital stock
ýcompany. The iMutual ILife is a mutual company. The payments to policy-holders
were $49,253,435, and the expenses, $28,276,456, making for each hundred dollars paid
to policy-holders and *xpenses, $57.41, against $47. To cover 'the entire period and
average expense, I made the distinction up there, because it was said the increased. pre.
miums meant an increased expense, and I divided, and for the whole period the Mutual
IReserve was, for $100 paid to policy-holders, $56.48. If we exelude the Canada Life,
which was in a peculiar class by itself, because of its extreme size at the time, the pay.
ment te policy-holders was $28,243,962, and the expenses, $20,574,019, being, for each
$100 paid to policy-holders, expenses of $72.84.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson :
Why do you exelude the Canada Life ?-A. Well, it had a very large business,

which none of the other companies had at the time.
Q. Still some of the United States companies had ?-A. I was comparing the

Mutual iReserve, four years old, wîth the Canadian companies, se that the comparison
should be entirely fair.

Q. That is for the whole period ?-A. For the whole period. As I say, I amn
willing as regards the entire business of the company, to submit an exhibit as to
the expenses before the increases were made and after the increases were made.

By Mr. McMurchy, counsel for the Company:
As regards the Canadian business ?-A. No, the entire business te show there

was net the swallowing up in large expenses which the chairman says was one o.-
the charges against the cempany.

Q. Something was said with regard to the misunderstanding that arose between
Màlr. Stevenson and some others as te the terms on which that transfer was made
from the fiiteen-year plan to the five-year plan. In effect, I think, the allegatioiÇ was
that ther-e was an unfair dea]ing with the mortuary £und ?-A. Mr. Stevenson bas
testified that this business when transferred was treated as new business, and that a
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commission for new business was paid on the transfer, and that in -addition thereto
there was Paid the last mortuary call that had been paid by the policy-holers.

Q. That is the sixty-day cail ?-A. The sixty-day cali, so that the agent received,
if he was getting the sixty-five per cent and the mortuary cail. 1 have to say that that
statement by iMr. Stevenson is not correct, that the last mortuary cail was not paid
in addition to a commission for transferring the business.

By the Uhairman :
That is a part of the testimony that you object to; it ought to be the mortuary

cail alonc ?A. Hec states the mortuary call was paid in addition to thc commission
and it is correct.

Q. Is the balance correct, that these transfer were treated as new business ?-A.
They were treated as new business.

Q. And commission paid accordingly ?-A. Yes, duiring a certain period of time,
they were carried on as new business.

By Mr. McMurchy, counsel for t1it Company:
Q. Why was that done ?-A. Because it was believed by the management that it

was very greatly to the advantage of the mass of policy-holders, that as much of this
business as possible should be transferred upon the higlier rates, and upon a definite
contract, and thus avoid the diffieulties that were sure to corne about in the succeed-
ing increase of premiurns, and also provîde for the company at once an inereased
revenue from premiums, and the result of this transfer succinctly up to the end of
1899 was in round numbers-I have flot the exact figures here-the business trans-
ferred during ail the time, including fifteen year and ten year business bath-a cita-
tion was made from the report whieh only covered the fifteen year business and I
cover ail the transfers from the fifteen td the ten and the five-was a trifle under
fifteen million dollars. Mr. Stevenson testificd it was somewhere between twenty
and twenty-five millions, but by au'tually takîng the policies off, it was a trifie under
fifteen millions dollars.

Q. ])id you take tiiem off yourself ?-A. 1 had them taken off by clerks, and
verified it afterwards. I dia flot verify all the policies, but took every twentieth one
and verified it. I could not go over every policy personnally.

By the Hlon. Mr. Wilson:

Q.You are satisfled. there is a difference, you say ?-A. I am satisfied it was cor-
rect. To the close of 1899 the business that was s0 transferred had paid to the Com-
pany in premiums bctween nine hundred and nine hundred and one thousand dollars.
The cost of making the transfer was between two hundred and seventy-three and two
hundred and seventy-four thousand dollars, leaving the net premiums received upon
that business at $627,000. llad the business not been transferred thé premiums which
it would have paid would bave been $506,000, so that after paying the actual cost of
the transfers the business gave to the company $1921,000 more in that period than there
would have been if it had not been transferred.

Q. And that money was available for the payment of death dlaims I-A. It was
available for the payment of death dlaims.

Q. Is there any intention to keep transferred policies still on the books as in
force ?-A. Not only was there no intention so to do, but the orders were imperative
that no commission Could be paid upon the new policy until the old policy had been
surrendered and cancelled, and the assistant secretary, Mr. Stevenson, who was charged
with the preparation of the vouchers for the payinent of these commissions, was re-
quired to certify to that effeet in regard to every one of them. As regards this charge,
that thc transferred policies were continued upon the books, it was not contained ini
the charge to the Insurance iDepartment of New York made in 1899, and it was not;
contained in the charge made to the Attorney Oeneral in the beginning of 1900. The
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flrst time that it was beard of as regards these transfer policies-I amrn ot saying there
was flot a charge with respect to policies that were flot actually in force, being put on
the books, but I arn talking of this speciflo charge of two million dollars which Mr.
Stevenson testified to the other day, thefirst time it was brought to our attention was
in an affidavit made by Mr. Stevenson in connection with a motion of J. T. Patterson,
to have bis bail reduced under his suit for libel. In that affidavit, iMr. Stevenson
states the fact of policies having been retained, and says the amount was one million
dollars. In bis statement liere, hie says they are retained, and the amount is two
million dollars. IMr. Stevenson says in bis testimony here that early in January he
taîked with the Actuary's Department and found tliey had a record of two million
dollars more than bis record showed, and lie came to me and talked to me about it.
The faet of any sucli interview, I deny, but I want to state that the record of busi-
ness actually in force would flot be made up until just about the time of the annual
meeting. There' would be, in the meantime, however, a number of rougli figurings, be-
cause at the close of business we were all anxious to know what the results were, and
to get as near an approximation as we could, and various times there would be rough
flguring, but the final report which was sworn to would not be made until twenty-
four or forty-eight hours after meeting, and it was the day lie says lie wrote bis
resignation, and the day preceding the day lie tendered it, so that there was a differ-
ence between the rougli flguring, and hie would flot know there was a difference wbeb,
the report came to be made up and presented to the department.

Q. IMr. Stevenson may have seen rougli approximate figures, but not the sworn
return g-A. H1e left the office before the sworn return was made up in tbe office, and
that was flot until after the annual meeting.

Q. H1e lias claimed, in addition to that, tbat where tbere was a reduction £rom a
ten to five tbousand dollar poliey, that the cancelled ten thousand dollar policy war'
not deducted, but there was a report that tbere was fifteen tliousand dollars in fore(,
instead of five tliousand ?-A. That is part of bis two million dollars whicli I have
been testifying did flot exist.

Q. Hie says that you told him the volume cf business for 1898 was net very large,
and it was flot a very advantagecus time to make the change, and you cut that busi-
ness out l-A. That interview I neyer had.

Q. Tlien the question of delinquent policies, I think ycu have an explanation to
make about that, and in connection with that, I sliould like to direct your attention
to the addition made by the witness te bis statement. After lie was examined by the
committee, hie added a footnote ?-A. Wbien I came to the company the custom cf re-
turning te the department business on which the assessment had not been paid-one
or more assessments had not been paid up, two in a year lapsed-was in vogue. I dis-
cussed it with the officers cf tlie cempany, including Mr. ilarper, and lie had given me
the reason why this custom prevailed. Puring that year, 1894, and the early part cf
1895, there were two examinations cf the Mutual IReserve, and tliey were going on
concurrently. The New York Insurance Department wtas making an examination un-
der Mr. Appleten, the chîef clerk at that time, and the iDepartment cf Illinois, Ohio,
Texas, and South Dakota were making a joint examination. ]Juring this examina-
tien, I discussed the question cf the retention cf this in the reports, witb Judge
Spencer, the counsel cf the New York Insurance Department, and lie saw ne reason
to inst 'ruet for a change, but some reasons why it should be retained. That it was not
a matter concealed, I desire te qucte in my testimony a paragrapli from the report of
the four State Commissioners, Illinois, Ohio, Texas and South Dakota, which is
publisbed in the twenty-second annual report of the Insurance Superintendent cf the
State cf Illinois, 1895, ccvering the year r,ing December 31, 1894. lIn reporting as
te their examination these four superintendents say:

'The bocks cf the association sliowed the number cf members on November 13,
1894, te be 92,155. 0f this number 5,056 are in difaffit of the ciirrent or several pre-ý
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ceding assessmenLs on iDecember 24, 1894. UJpon the ruling of the Supreme Court of
the State of New York these delinquent members have a vested riglit in said contract
at any time, within the year on certain conditions.'

I quote that, to show that even at that time it was publicly known to officiais of
the Insurance iDepartment that that custom prevailed.

By the lion. Mir. Wilson:

Q. Would that apply to that Canadian business too ?-A. That would apply to
that Cunadian business too.

Q. You say it was the New York law ?-A. The Supreme Court of New York
liad passed upon the feature of ti;e contraet of a company that Lad a similar provision
in regard to the riglit of reinstatement. That rîglit of reinstatement applies to every
policy-holder of our company, whether in Canada or elsewhere, se the rule of having
a vested right, covered every policy-holder, whether in Canada or elsewhere.

By the Hon. Mr. Landrp:

Q. H1e lias twelve months ?-A. Yes.

By the lion. Mr. Wilson :

Q. llad Canadian policy-liolders availcd themselves of that rule ?-A. A great
many to reinstate.

Q. Generally -A. iNot generally. I do not mean to say that the majority of
them, or generally, reinstated, but a great ma-ny had reinstated, whose policies Lad
lapsed under the previons constitution.

Q. Could you briefly state what the provision was in Canada 2 A. It is the pro-
vision of the By law :

'The Executive Committee shall have power to reinstate a delînquent member at
any time wîthin oue year, for good cause shown, aud upon satisfactory evidence of
good health and upon payment of ail delinqueut dues and assessments.'

Q. The New York Supreme Court decidcd it was net left optional iWhat is the
case ?-A. It is a case against the Massachusetts Beneflt Life.

By M1r. Coester, K.C., (Jounsel for Clemmittee:

Q. I neyer heard of such a case ?-A. I have, and I will ascertain and give the
citation.

Q. Do yen mean to say that they have it as a matter of law, when the contract
was void ?-(No answer.)

By the lion. Mir. Wilson:

Q. It seems strange te me if they Lad that power, that y'ou made it knewn i
Canada, or were yeu acting under the Supreme Court cf New York ?-A. 1 will say
in reference te that, that every policy-holder whose policy lapsed, whether in Canada
or anywhere else, Lad a circular sent te him calling his attention te the fact that Lie
Lad lapsed, calling bis attention te the provisions of the by-law under wbîch le had
the riglit cf reinstatement, and that was doue within thirty days after the date of bis
lapse. TLeh, within fifteeu days after tbat, if Lie Lad net 'reinstated, a form of letter
called the president's letter, because it bore the signature cf the president, was sent te
the policy-holder, calling attention te the precediug circular and repeatiug Lis right te
reinstatement, and there were hundreds cf policies reinstated under that provision,
and millions cf insurance. Iu this case, the Massachusetts Benefit, which. I wilI give
Mr. Coster the citation of, even if I have te telegrapli te New York fer it, the man
Lad lapsed Lis policy and aiea. Befre the thirty days expired. the beneficiaries
brought evidence te the company of satisfactory reasens for bis lapsing.

QiHlow long Lad Lie lapsed ?-A. It was less than thirty days.
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By M1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the (Jommittee:
Q.That was before the thirty days had expired ?-A. It was within sixty days of

the due day.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

QIn less than thirty days he certainly was entitled to the death insurance.
Youx answer does not explain in any way the right of the Canadian policy-bolders to
be reinstated ?-A. That is covered by the by-laws which I have already read. It is
part of every contract.

Q. It gave no information to the people, or the insured i11 Canada, of the miles
whereby you were governed in New York, because there you were governed by the
decision of thec Supreme Court. Now, what I wanted to know was, did you inform the
policy-holders of Canada as to what course the Court of New York took so as to place
them in the same position as the policy-holders of New York l-A. We did flot inform an~y
of our policy-holders in reference to this decision of the Suprcme Court of New York,
but we did inform every one of our policy holders when lie lapsed that under the
constitution and by-laws he had the riglit of reinstatement on furnishing satisfactory
evidence of good health and paying the delinquent dues and assessments, and that
was done, not only once, but it was done evcry time that a man lapsed, and a second
notice was sent to him afterwards recafling bis attention to that fact.

Q.The course that you pursued in New York with the circular you sent out,
would it cover the course you pursued in reference to policy-holders in Canadat-
A. It was idcntically the same in New Yorki and Canada.

Q. Then it was certain conditions. New York compelled you to say this' man
may be returned under certain conditions; did you make it known that these men
could compel you to accept the renewal of their insurance under those conditions ?-
A. We did not make it known to any one as regards that decision of the Supreme
Court of New York. This provision of the by-laws was a part of every contract whe-
ther written in New York, England or Canada.

Q. Will you say whether the conditions were changed after the decision of the
Supreme Court of New York ?-A. The conditions were the same before and after
This was simply an interpretation by the courts of New York of what the meaning
of that clause which was in the contract and had always stood there, was, and as a
decision of our own State it bound the corporation everywhere.

Q. llow wan. this decision obtained ? Was any action entered to bring it before
the Supreme Court l-A. In this case that I refer to, the party was assessed by the
Massachusetts Benefit and lie had thirty days of grace after the date of the assessment
to pay. H1e failed to pay during that thirty days, so that the policy had lapsed.

Q. 11e was dead ?-A. Not during that thirty days. 11e was living at the expira-
tion of that thirty days, but during the next succeeding thirty days lie died, and
the beneficiaries came and tendered the money and claimed tlie riglit of reinstate-
ment, giving good. cause for the lapse, and the company refused to receive it. There-
upon the beneficiaries entered suit against the Massachusetts Benefit, claiming that they
had a vested riglit of reinstatement, having given evidence of the causes of the lapse
and good health, which. should have been satisfactory reasons, and although the words
were almost indenticai with these, the decision of the Supreme Court was that it was
not a matter within the discretion of the directors to say arbitrarily that it was or
was not satisfactory to them, but that if evidence was presented that should be satis-
factory, that was satisfactory under the by-laws, and under the vested riglit, the man
had the riglit to reinstatement, even thougli it was exercised by the beneficia-ries after
he died, and they reinstated the policy and gave judgement for the face of it.

Q. You-would in no way notify your insured in Canada of the riglits that they
miglit under the iaw or under the decision of the Supreme Court have, that if they
allowed their policies to lapse, and within a certain time gave you evidence that they
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Bhould be reinstated, you did not notify themn to that effect, so that they could corne
back and reinstate, or in other words, you allowed them to be frozen out t-A. We
notified every one of themn every time that they lapsed.

Q. I know you notified. thyenm, but you did not notify them that the Supreme
Court held that they had the right after a certain time, under certain conditions, to
be reinstated t-A. We did flot notify them that the Supreme Court so held, but we
notified them,,that they did have that right, and that was certainly more conclusive;
we notifying them, we could nlot plead afterwards that they had not the right ?

Q. Did you give them any different notice to what you had given prcviously ?-
A. No, we had always given them Chat iiotiee.

Q. You did flot give them the benefit of the decision of the Supreme Court i-A.
Wa gave them the benefit of the decisiqn of the Supreme Court.

Q. llow did you corne flot tx> change your notice ?-A. Because they always had
thc right, and this was simply an interpretation of a right they always had.

Q. According to the diecision of your Company, they did flot have a right, because
you contested the right, and refuséd to pay until the Supreme Court told you you
should pay ?-A. I beg your pardon: this was flot a case against our Company: it was
against the* Massachusetts Benefit Life.

lion. Mr. MÇMULLEN.-I must apologize to the company for submitting a state-
ment which was not correct. I took the wrong figures. I have the figures right now.

The WITNESS.-J desire to apologize for any heat I showed.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q. I have the figures £rom 1886 to 1902. Now this is the New York Mutual
IReserve Life. I have taken the figures frein the returns submitted to parliament
every year and certified to as being correct by the inspecter of insurance. I have
takeii thein off these books carefully. In 1886, you received fromn policy holders
$100,213 ? A. That includes interest.

Q. No, it does not include interest. The column that gives it in the blue-books
says 'Received from policy holders ". I have taken nothing whereby the Company
earned money by interest on 'deposits or anything else. This is the hare sum paid hy
the policy-holders to the company, and on the other hand, the hare sumn paid out to
policy-holders for any purpose ?-A. Yes, $37,000 paid out.

Q. You have that?-A. Yes, $37,000 paid ont.
Q. You received from poliey-holders $1 28,096 and you paid them $62,650 -A.

IlTnless I make objection, it is assumed I consent.
Q. In 1888 you received fromn policy-holders $142,972 and you paid to themn

$73,200. lIn 1889 you received from policy-holders $160,139 and you paid to them.
.$82,600. In 1890 you received fromn policy-holders $181,212 and you paid to theim
$105,597, and in 1891 you received from policy-holders $186,032 and you paid to them
$111,800. In 1892 you received frein policy-holders $216,811 and you paid to themn
$133,650. lIn 1893 you reeived fromn policy-holders $268,180, and you paid to them.
$160,905. In 1894 you received fromn policy-holders $313,526 and you paid to them
$160,595. lIn 1895 you received from. policy-holders $323,189 and you paid to themn
$163,793. In 1896 you received froin policy-holders $416,314 and you paid them.
$264,728. In 1897 you received froin policy-holders $517,628 and you paid themn $2,80-
239. In 1898 you received from policy-holders $455,567 and you paid theas $300,693.
In 1899 you received from policy-holders $416,354 and you paid them $304,120. lIn
1900 you received from policy-holders $438,329 and you paid them $230,450. lIn 1901
,yen received fromn policy-holders $355,879 and you paid them. $292,322. Did you send
in return for 1902 2-A. We did, yes.

Q. I cannot find them.-A. You will find it under the legal reserve. Before that
it had heen under the assessment, I think.
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Q. This statement commences i11 1886, and you answered me to-day that the only

assets you have got for the policy-holders in Canada of the New York Mutual iReserve
Life is simply the amount of money that is now in the IReceiver General's hands in
Canada, $228,000.-A. This return that you show for some years includes the legal
reserve business. We have a deposit separate for the legal reserve business, separate
from the assessment business since 1899.

Q. That is a clear statement of the amount of money that you have collected out
of policy-holders in Canada, and the amount of money that you have paid them for
sixteen years. Now, on your own oath to-day you state that there is nothing to the
credit of these people, unless what-is in the Dominion treasury, the $228,000. What
is the amount you have collected from policy-holders in these sixteen years in Canada?
$4,821,041 l You have paid to them $2,765,141, which leaves over two millions of money
that has been collected from those policy-holders, one dollar of which is not to the
fore, unless the $228,000 in the Dominion Government's hands. Is that correct ?-A.
I do not think your footings are correct.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney,:

Q.You received from the lMutual iReserve $l 9 4,858.10-payrnents to policy-holders
for the year 1903. That is right I-A. Yes.

Q.Excess of income over expenditure, $1218 -. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McM'ullens
Q. That will make this $491,000. That shows that there is an excess in that year

of over $71,000 ?-A. Covering the entire time that we have been in business in Can-
ada, and covering both the legal reserve and assessment business, we have collected-
thiat includes some years you have flot got there-$5,41Z,186, and we have paid to
policy-holders-this is both assessment and other policies-$3,246,061.

Q. That leaves clear about $3,000,000 1 A. $2,0000,000.-
Q. Taking your own figures, it would make it very much more I-A. I beg pardon,

I have misled myself. The figures that I gave you included the interest. Excluding
the interest, the amojint collected from policy-holders in Canada was $5,312,302.03.

Q. That would include the other two years I-A. That includes the whole nineteen
years we have been in business.

Q. That virtuaily leaves $2,000,000 that has been collected from policy-holders,
and now you state that all the money that was on hand is $228,000. What bas become
of the money I-A. It has been used for expenses within the Dominion of Canada-
$1,067,303.

Q. Covering wbat perîod ?-A. The whole nineteen years.
Q. What were these expenses ?-A. They were all reported to the Insurance

Department of Canada.
Q. What were t 'hey h-A. They covered the commissions to agents, collections,

taxes, and they covered the general conduct of the business in the Dominion of Canada,
the samne expenses that any insurance company incurs in transacting its business.

By the Chaiman:
Q. It does flot cover the amount required for the home management I-A. No, that

is the expenditure in the Dominion of Canada.
Q. Apart fromn what the home office takes from this portion of their business to

run it I-A. Yes.
Q. Are you in a position to give an approximate estimate of what it would cost

the policy-holders in Canada to run it fromn the office in INew York? I do not suppose
you would be in a position to say h-A. I am not now, but I think 1 could present to
you a very succinct statement at the next hearing.

Q. It would cost them something I-A. Oh, certainly.
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By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q.You said that the amount spent in Canada was how much l-A. $1,067,303.

By Mr. McMurchy, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Does that include taxes t-A. That includes taxes; that is for the nineteen

years.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. 1 see that the deposits in Canada of stocks, bonds and debentures of the ZEtna

Life was $4,'298,21 6; the Eqiiitable, $8,000,0004. These eompanies seem to have a large
amount on deposit.-A. They have done a very large business for a long number of
years, a business calling for a fixed reserve.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q. You give us the amount of expenses in Canada of running your-business dur-

ing those years, $1,067,803 l-A. Yes.
Q. It bas cost you annually to run your business in Canada $56,174 a year, on

an average-is that what it bas cost yau l-A. 1 have not the average figure, but 1
should say that was about the average.

Q. For managing the business in Canada i-A. Yes.
Q. That included legal expenses and everything ?-A. Yes, legal expenses and

taxes, includes the expenditures in Canada for the transaction of the business. When
I stated this morning that $9,28,000 was all, I supposed that the gentleman was re-
ferring simply to the assessment branch of the business. In point of fact, outside of
premiums deferred and uncollected, we had assets in Canada at the end of last year
of $398,678. 0f that amount the cost price of deposit with the government and the
deposits under aur trust deed, was $262,783. Since then we have deposited $40,O00
additional, bringing the costs of the deposits moneys expended in depasitsl up ta
$303,783, and there was in addition tu that about $136,000 in1 the banks and boans
against policies in Canada which would also corne out of this amount. Those are the
only sums held specifically and absolutely for the protection of Canadian palicy-
holders.

Q. In this latter statement you have increased the sum that you say is held for
the safety of policy-holders in Canada. This morning when I asked you the question,
how much was ta the credit of the policy-holders in Canada, and I mentioned the sum
that you had in the government's bands, $228,000, you said 'yes, practically that is
all.-A. Yes, I said sa.

Q. IIow is it you contradict that now i-A. I will explain. I say that I under-
stood the gentleman to be referring entirely ta the assessrnent business of the Com-
pany in Canada.

By the Chairman:
Q. Is there any other business in Canada besides the assessment business ?-A.

Yes, we have $80,0OO depasited for aur legal reserve business, and I was confirrned in
that by the fact that the Senator quoted as the amount that was on deposit for the
benefit of the policy-holders the exact sum that was on depasit at the end of the year
for policy-holders. Therefore, I understood, and was confirmed by that quotatian of
bis, that he confined his questions ta the assessment business.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q. I ask yau straight, you have now an Act before Parliament for the relief of

the policy-holders. That does nat include any except those on the assessment plan,
daes it g-A. No.

Q. Now in that Act you propose ta set aside, in order ta produce yaur reserve,
$150,000 of the $228,0O0 now in the iReceiver General's bauds. Yau propose setting
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that aside and you purpose loading the policy-holders with an additional su to make
up the reserve so that you can go on and do business g-A. That is not rny Act.

Q. You have read the Act?-A. Yes.
Q. Is that flot what the Act proposes 2-A. I do flot so understand it. no. Aside

frorn that, AIr. Chairman, I beg to say that I took squarely the position on behaif of
the company on the first hearing I had on this Bill that we were in the hands of the
Government, and the Insurance Department as to what terms they would give in the
Bill. We were prepared to assent thereto, so that we are flot edvocates of this Bill or
auy other.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. But you are fevourable to this Bill. You would proceed to act under it ?-A.
If thîs Bill were passed, I presume we would proceed to a-et under it.

Q. Then you endorse the B ili, and it meats with your approval h-A. It meets
rny approvel with limitation, and I believe it can be, and will be improved before it
cornes out of the Insurance iDepartment.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q.How will it effeet the Americen policy-holders h-A. There was a point I de-
sire to continue in rny answer when I was interrupted. These sums are hera speci-
flcally for the protection of the Canadian policy-holders. To these surns the Ameri-
can polîcy-holders could have no recourse under any consideretion, or under any con-
dition. On the other baud ail the funds held in the United States are for the benefit
of the policy-holders and the Canadian policy-bolders share in the protection of those
funds equally with the policy-holders in the Uuited States. There is the distinction
I wish to draw between the specifie funds deposited.

B1 1 the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. We should have the United States law to ascertain whether you would be held
under obligation, and cornpelied to pay the proportionate share to the Canadian policy-
holders, if it was required so to do. You see the company is responsible pro rata to
divide with the policy-bolders of Canada. Is there any law to that effect in New Yorkh
-A. The law recoguizes but one mernbership, and it charges us in our liabilities with
the present value of the policies in Canada, as well as everywhere else, end that is one
of the liabilities that the New York department charges against us, and values these
policies yearly to determihe wbat that is.

Q. That is true, but in case of any difficulty would you be cornpelled under the
law of New York to divide up equally or proportionately with the policy-holders of
Canada h-A. I could not cite you a decision, but it is so beyond question. I bave no
question that it is absolutely so, and I do 1know that our deposit with the Insurance
Pepartrnent of New York, contrary to the condition of the deposit bere, is for the
benefit of ail our policy-holders, ail the members of the company, and ail the policy-
holders, while this deposit bere is sirnply for the benefit of the Canadien policy-
holders.

By the Chairman:
Q. That meaus that a Canadien policy-holder has a double edventege h-A. Yes,

no question about it under the law.
Q. lie cen appeal to the funds in the bauds of tbe Government of Canada, and if

those funds are short, he cen go to the United States ?-A. Yes.
Q.Whilst au Ainenican cannot corne over here h-A. No.
Q.It is a peculiar arrangernent h-A. It is a peculier arrangernent in this regard.

In tha United States the sarne condition does not apply as regards a Canadian corn-
paxiy.
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Q. Is that law general in the United States, or is it a State law ?-A. We have no
iFederal law with reference to insurance, but it is the general law of the States.

By Mr. McMurchy, Counsel for the Mutuai Reserve:
Q.It is flot the law in the different states of the Union that a deposit must be

put up in that State for the benefit of the policy-holders in that State ?-A. No, the
one deposit with our home State covera ail the States. They receive it specillcally,
The law requires a minimum deposit of $100,000, but it requires us to hold assets for
the numbcr of policy-holder8 WC have.

By Mfr. CJiairînan .
Q. You do ilot ïieed specîIi lau for upecial StaLtes Lu cuver that ?-A. No.
Q. The New-York law is suficient ?-A. Yes.

By Mfr. Mc3lorchy, Counsel for the Mutiial Reserve
Q. Here the government hold the iuoney, whilst in New York they are satisfled

to let the compauy hold the money.-A. The department do flot require Canadian
conipanies to deposit money.

By the DIon. Mr. IWilson
Q. I dIo not sec why the company would consent to allow the funds deposited here

should be exclusively for Canadian policy-holders, and the insured in New York can-
flot get the benefit of the moneys in Canada when the Canadian policy-holders have
the benefit of the deposit in New York ?-A. I think I eau easily answer that. That
it was the only terms on which we could get into Canada and when I came into the
comipany I foulid that condition existing. I do flot know that 1 should assent to it
myself now, perhaps, after my experience.

By Mlr. ilicMurchy, Cou osel for the Matual Reserve
Q. T he Mutual Reserx e has to put up a reserve in Canada for each Canadian ?-

A. On the legal reserve plan.
Q. IIow much of that reserx e is given credit for in New York by the Insurance

Department in estîating the assets of the Company over their liabilities ?-A. Only
sueh portion as is eox ered by liability on Canadian policies. If we had $500,000
depositcd iii Canada and our liabilities on Canadian policies were $300,000, the $200,-
000 would be excluded from our assets to the New York Insurance IDepartment be-cause it is beyond their control and could not be touched for our general policy holders.

Q. 'fhey credit you in New York with the deposit in Canada to the extent that
that deposit is required to meet the policies in Canada ?-A. Exactly.

By the lon. Mi'r. MeMitUen:
Q. The lon. Senator IKerr stated the amount of money that was in the handa of

the iReceiver General as $228,000.-A. That was the valuation at that time.Q. And he admitted that it was the intention of the company to set asîde two-thirds of it, $1,50,000, towards creating the necessary reserve that you should hold in
order to enable you to do business. Then on the back of that, in order to make up the
balance of the reserve that you required to hold. You said that your insurance in
Canada might bceuct down probably to $4,000,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. I{ow mucli of a reserve would you require to hold on $4,000,000 ?-A. If the
policy-holders accepted the option under which the rate is flxed at attained age at the
moment of the change there would be no reserve.

Q. When ?-A. The moment the change was made; 'it would he a new policy.Q. Without any reserve at ail ?-A. Without any reserve at ail. When the firat
premium is paid, the net preniium on that ia the reserve at that moment, and as thereserve piled up it would have to he deposited with the Government.
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QI understand 110W that when the change takes place at that moment there is 11o

aserve at ail i -A. Yes, because it is a new contract.
Q. And every polîcy-hoider in Canada commences on a new basis with nothing to

bis credit ?-A. Nothing.
Q. iNot a dollar ?-A. As far as that policy is concerned.
Q. Do you mean ail the policies that are now outstanding, and ail the policies

that would be t aken, commence on a new footing ?-A. Any poiicy that accepts the
principle of the Bill and takes the insurance at attained age starts new. The Bill

gives two advantages. The rates are lower than any company wili give in Canada and

then again it extends the privilege to, every policy-bolder without regard to what bis

physical condition would be. It does not require him to have a medical examination.

Q. To return to that statement you say to us 110w that if ail those policy-holders,

when this Bill passes accept the conditions contained in this Bill they virtually com-

mence anew. They have nothing to their credit. The first payment they make is the

only reserve tbey have. As I stated a moment ago you have done business bere for

nineteen years and during that nineteen years you have collected from your policy-

bolders the amount you say ?-A. I have testîfied the figures. The figures are correct.
Q. And you have $9,,100,000 of money left ?-A. No, I have flot.
Q. Wbere bas it gone to ?-A. We spent $1,O0000f odd doing business in Canada.

Q. You bave Cl,000,000 left ?-A. And I testified that tbere was nearly $400,000 of
it in Canada.

Q. Where is it ?-A. A portion of it in deposit witb the Government and a

portion with the Toronto General Trust Corporation and a portion in the banks.
Q. Is that to the credit of the policy-holders ?-A. It is.
Q. Why do you flot give them credit for that nioney ? Wbat are you going to

do witb that ? You say the very moment the policy-holders comply witb the provi-

sions of this Bill tbey commence- anew, turn over a new leaf, and nothing to their credît,

and the first reserve is the first paynient on the policy. Now, you sec there is a large

amount, $400,000. Wbat becomes of that money ?-A. The money with the Toront6

General Trust Company beiongs to the legal reserve ýolicy-bolders to help to recover

their reserve as charged by the Government and required to be deposited in Canada.

Q. It does flot belong to the policy-bolders who are deait witb by this Bill at
ail h-A. No.

Q. It was flot collected out of them ?-A. It was collected from the legal reserve

policy-holders, but it is included-
Q. The policy-bolders that you profess bere to deal witb contributed none of

the money that is now in reserve unless the $228,000 in the Dominion Government's
hands ?-A. Tbey did flot.

Q. Then they have no right to credit for that money. Where bas the $2,100,000

gone to ? You say there bas heen $1 ,000,000 of it spent in one way and another.

There should be another $1,000,000 where is that ? You have shut out the deposit

in Canada except wbat is in the bands of the Dominion Government. You say the

assets in Toronto helong to a different class altogether. Wbere is the money that

you collected from assessinents on those policies ?-A. I have yesterday and I gave

again this morning testimony of ail the collections made frorn assessment business

independently and the expenditures and the balance over the expenditure. The

figures that were brought in include everythîiig paid to the company in the Dominion

of Canada both by the assessment, policy-bolders and the legal reserve policy-holders.
Q. No that is not correct. I have only got down to 1902. You have only been

in operation on tbe legal reserve system since 1901 or 1902. What year did you com-

mence that legal reserve ?-A. 1899.

By the Uhairman :
Q. You bave stated that from. ail policyholders, whether on the level premium. or

whatever it is, there bas been collected ,$5,000,000 odd. 0f that amount how much

bave you collected front policy-bolders on the level preminmn plan ?-A. $371,016.
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Q. That practically leaves the amount in round numbers $5,000,000. So the
business done on the level premiuma plan in the last five years only amounts to $300,-
000 odd?-A.- Yes.

Q. Does that million that was spent in Canada include the assessments and the
level premium policies ?-A. It includes both. The expenses in Canada for the assess-
ment policies for nineteen years-I arn talking about nineteen years and he is speak-
ing about sixteen-the expenditures were $999,865.

Q. Does that include the amount of expensea you have to undergo for the level
premium business? A. No, that is conllned to the nsqessment.

Q. You have collected $3M0,00O on the level premiuam plan:- what were the expenses
in Tegard to tbat?-A. $67,438.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. Expenses connected with what ?-A. Expenses attending the level premium
business.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood:

Q. There is a certain amount of this chargeable to the general expenses in the
office in iNew York ?-A. Yes.

Q. What were those figures ?-A. The balance between the moneys collected and
expended here would, of course, be the amount of moneys-the difference between the
moneys coflected here and the moneys expended here to policy-bolders and expenses and
deposits, would be in fact the money that had been contributed towards the general
funds of the company at the home office.

Q. And that was some $700,000 ?-A. In round numbers, $730,000; including
interest from the policy-holders, about $730,000.

Q. This whole amount collected from the policy-holders in Canada is disposed of
by the amount that was paid to agents, the amount deposited and the amount con-
tributed to the exepiises of the home office in New York ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. MeMufllen:

Q. The condition of the account at the present moment is virtually this: in 1886
you commenced the Mutual Life iReserve system in Canada l-A. 1885.

Q. In nineteen years you have collected on assessments ont of those people that
took policies with,.you something over $5,000,000. During that time you have paid
them back on matured policies under their covenants $3,000,000, or nearly $3,000,000t
-A. $3,060,000.

Q. That leaves a balanace of $2,100,000 A. I make it $1,972,502.
Q. $2,100,000 ?-A. That is flot correct, because that carnies into the legal reserve

business-
Q. Out of that you dlaim to have paid in Canada altogether for expenses, $1,-

067,000 -A. No, $9 99,000, confining it to assessment.
Q. That practicallS, leaves a million of money exactly to their credit ?-A. 972,635.
Q. Now, ont of that million, by your own evidence, there is flot a dollar to the

credit of these policy-holders, unless the $228,000 in the hands of the Dominion Gov-
ernment-the other is deposited on account of another branch of insurance altogether.
Here are these people who have doue insurance business with you for nineteen years,
and at the end of that time they have paid the Mutual iReserve one million to couduct
their business l-A. And if you can flnd a company that with $5,000,000 of premiums
collected has returned in that time $3,000,000 benefit to their policy-holders with a less
expenditure, I should be glad to, have you bring it forward and show it to me. I do
not know of one in Canada or the States.

Q. The difference is this: in stock companies the mouey that is collected has got
to appear in their account to the credit the company has had.-A. So we have got it.

Q. You say you have not got a dollaar ?-A. I do not.
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Q. The $228,000 i-A. I said that was the only money specifically deposited forthe Canadian policies without possibility of recourse bX anybody else, but the Cana-

dian policy-hiolders have the protection of every other dollar of the company's assets,
no matter where situated.

(The Committee then adjourned tili Tuesday, 28th June, at 10 a.m.)

PART 4.

OTTAWA, June 27, 1904.
The Select Committee of the Senate appointed to investigate the position in Can-ada of the Mutual iRtserve Fund Life Association of N ew York, met at 8 p.m.
-Mr. Aylesworth stated to the Commnittee that on a former sitting of the Com-moittee a statement was made by M4 r. Coster, counsel for the Committee, rellecting

on the conduct and action of an officiai of New York State.
-Mtr. Coster withdrew the statement.

It has been stated by the Hon. Senator ])eBoucherville that he did not see liowthis Committee could sit under the circumstances, in.view of the fact that at tbe lastsitting of the Committee the witness who is now about to be examined, iMr. Eldridge,vice-president of the Mutual iReserve Life Fund Association of New York, declinodto answer certain questions put to him by an honourable senator of this Committee:
this Committee reported the attitude of the witness to, the Senate, and that thisComrnittee asked the honourahie Senate to taire action in regard to the said attitude
of the said witness Eldridge in dedlining to answer the questions put to him ; andthat under the circumstances, this Commîttee cannot deal with or take evidence fror.-Pthe present witness, until the honourable Senate lias decided the.matter in the first
place; that these facts are known to, hum, Senator DeBoucherville, by what trans-spired in the Senate itself and thatin his opinion, the examination of the said wit-ness Eldridge cannot be continued, until the Senate lias decided in the matter; that
the Senate decided to postpone the further consideration of it,,tili Tuesday the 28thJune; that the Senate not having taken action in the matter, this Committee ouglit
nlot to, continue the sittinga.

After consideration, the Committee decided to proceed with the investigation.
WITNESS.-Before the examination is proceeded with, tbe counsel of the Coni-mittee asked me to cite the case to which I referred, as decided by the Supreme Courtof N'ew York, having a bearing upon the vested riglits of reinstatement. It is thecase of Dennis vs. the Massachusetts Benefit, 120 New York, page 496. May I be par-

miîtted to, say personally that there seenis to be a misapprehension as to what I offered
in the matter of salaries.

By the Chairman:
Q.Probably your attorney can bring it out.-A. No, it is net a matter that abe brouglit out, but if any member of the Committee objecta, I do not insist.Q. Go on with the statement.-A. There seems to be a misunderstanding as towhat I offered. We have before the Conunittee the record of the officiai. salaries paideach year, as returned to the New York Insurance lDepartment, which requires us tostate salaries as distinct from employees, but in different years there were differentdistributions of, offices. That matter was somewhat arbitrarily divided, as would
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necessarily be the case. What I did offer was to designate the officers by name year
by yeur, filling the different positions, aîid ail the compensation that thoseofficers
received, so that the (Jommittee would know what officers were cSvered. by the state-
ment of compensation in each year. and state the full compensation of those indi-
vidual officers, only iii the aggregate, instead of the individual. As it is now, they
know nothing in this list, as to who the ofllcers are whose salaries are represented by
so much money.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. We have the aggrcgate ?-A. Yes, but they might include different officers and
different years. I was willing to designate the exact oficers, the president or vice-
president, segretary or treasurer. As ià ib it may include thc paymaster or controller
or three assistant secretaries, while another year only two assistant secretaries, as the.
officers vary.

By the Chairman:
Q. T['at statement does flot meet the question put by the hon. Senator. He want-

ed to know what the president and vice-president, etc., received as salary. Those are
the questions which you declined to answer i-A. Yes.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counisel for the Mutual Be.serve

Q. In view of what is taking place or what bas been said, with reference to the
work of the Attorney General of New York State, I wish to ask you one or two brief
questions in reference to that. Yoii have testifind already, 1 see by the repçorts, that
the report upon the affairs of the company was made by 11r. Vanderpoei. the chief ex-
aminer of the New York Insurance Departmaent, at an exarnination that covered a
period of about three months. Will you tell me in the course of businessin the New
York Insurance Departmnent to whom such a report would go g-A. It would be sub-
mitted flrst to the Superintendent of Insurance under oath by the Chief Examiner.

Q. To the Superintendent of Insurance ?-A. Yes.
Q. What would lie do with it i-A. Hle would serve a copy of it upon the company,

and appoint a day for a hearing, before hîmself, at the Insurance Department.
Q.Did lie do that in the case of this report of Mr. Vanderpoel of 1899 î-A. fie

dîd.
Q. What was the next step in the inatter i-A. We appeared by counsel before the

Superintendent of Insurance, and were heard upon the report.
Q. The company appeared by counsel, did they ?-A. Yes.
Q. What next happened, or what happened upon that hearing, in fnrtherance of

this investigation i-A. Varions matters covered by the charges were discussed by
counsel in that investigation, and after the close of the hcaring the sworn report of
the Chief Examiner was filed.

Q. Did that full *report that; you speak of refer at ail to the firiancial position, as
to the solvency or otherwise, the actuarial position of the association i-A. It referred
to the solvency of the institution as regards its assets and liahilities. It had ne refer-
ence to the actuarial condition.

Q. But it referred to the solvency ?-A. Yes.
Q. IIad any question of the solvency of the institution appeared from the report

ehat had been served upon you ?-A. The report that was served on us showed the
institution to be solvent, with a surplus of assets over liabilities.

Q. At that hearing before the examiner you were represented by counsel. Was
there any other counsel present ?-A. The counsel of the Superintendent of Insur-
ance was present.

Q. The counsel of the department ?-A. Yes.
Q. After that hearing had concluded, wI'at happened next in the matter -~-

A. There was served upon us a copy of a statement made by the Assistant Actuary,
who.h~ad also made an investigation.
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Q. H-ad that statement been delivered to you, previously at ail ?-A. Not until
after the first hearing.

Q. You were then given a copy of a report by the Assistant Actuary of the
department ?-A. We were.

Q. Which you had flot had previously ?-A. We were.
Q. Wbat then ?-A. A date was named for a hearing upon that report, and we

appeared before the Superintendent of Insurance for a hearing upon that report.
Q. The second appearance ?-A. Yes.
Q. *What is the next proceeding in course of business ?-A. The Superintendent

of Insurance flled a public document, such report as lie approved, whicli was that of
the Chief Examiner, Mr. Vanderpoel.

Q. Did he take that course in this case ?-A. H1e did, and the company did by
certain remarks, comments and criticisms of bis own upon the report.

Q. Extracts £rom which bave been read before the Cemmittee by the counsel for
the Committee ?-A. Tbey have.

Q. What course did he take with regar~d to the Actuaries' report 1-A. H1e did
not file it as a public document.

Q. They neyer went upon record as a public document ?-A. No.
Q. With reference to the credit which is officially attached, under the laws of

your State, to the report and to the comments of the superintendent, let me know the
relations in which these officers stand to each other ?-A. The Superintendent of
Insurance is the officiai who is appointed for a specific termn of years, and under him
are the examiners, deputies and se forth. The Chief Superintendent of Insurance was
lion. Louis F. Payn, who oecipied the position for three years. The Chief Examiner
was Isaac Vanderpoel, who has been connected witli the eompany for twenty-five
years-

Q. Wîth the company ?-A. With the department.
Q. lias he any connection at ail with your association ?-A. None whatever.
Q. Or with any insurance association ?A. Oh, noue whatever.
Q. I asked you what the relation of these officiais w-as, under the laws of your

State, with regard to the officiai recognition which w-as given to the work of the one
and the cemments of the other 1-A. Under section 39 of the Insurance clause, the
sworn report of the examiner filed after the hearing lias been given te the company,
hecomes presumptive evidence in any action or proceeding under the name of the
people against the corporation, its offic>ers or agents, as to the facts stated therein.

Q. Does that apply to a report such rs Vanderpoel made in this case ?-A. Sucli
as Vanderpoel made in this case, that applies to it.

Q. What is the effect of such remarks on it, as in this instance were made by
Payn 1-A. It has ne standing in law whatever.

Q. That was the end of the charges w-hidi were investigated hy the department,
wvas it ?-A. No, sir. The report of Mr. Vanderpoel, and the cemments of the Super-
Intendent of Insurance were transmitted b y him to the Attorney General cf New
York, whe examined them and nmade an officiai report upon them.

Q. Was that prier to the application te the Attorney General on the part of some
dissatisfied shareholders, te which reference was made ?-A. It w-as.

Q. Was it the same Attorney Generai w-ho acted in one instance that acted in the
oth.er ?-A. The same Attorney General, yes.

Q. After he had taken bis action upon thc report of the department, the policy-
holders laid charges which were, te that extent, a repetition 1-A. Yes, that is the case.

Q. And those w-ere the eues be dismissed ?-A. .Yes, his report te tbe super-
intendent on the l3th IDecember, 1899.

Q.Is this a copy of it -A. Yes.
Q.That is J. C. iDavies, Attorney General ?-A. 'Yes.

Report fiied (Exhibit 15), reads as foilows:
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(Exhibit No. 15.)
STATE oF NEW YoRK,

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE,
ALBANY, December 13, 1899.

The Hon. Louis F. PAYN,
Superintendent of Insurance,

Albany, N.Y.

DEAR SIR,-I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your communication
of the 18th day of September last, and also a copy of the 'Report of the Superin-
tendent and Examiner of the Insurance Department on the Examination of the
Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York City,' inclosed thorewith.

The fact that your report is not addressed to the Attorney General, and that it
contains no special recommendations by you as Superintendent of Insurance to the
Attorney General, taken in connection with the opening paragraphs of the report itself,
wherein you state that, 'Under the authority vested by law in the Superintendent of
Insurance to make public the result of an examination of an insurance company
transacting business in this State, whenever in his opinion such publication is to be
desired, I herewith publish the report of the Examiner of this Department, upon his
investigation of the condition and affairs of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Associa-
tion of New York.' . . . 'I believe there are matters connected with the ad-
ministration of its affairs that form proper subjects for criticism by the Superintend-
ent of Insurance, and that these criticisms should likewise be made public. I am,
therefore, of the opinion that it is my duty in this connection to state the following:-
"leads me to the conclusion that your report was not made so much for the purpose
of calling the attention of the Attorney General to the result of your examination,
pursuant to the provisions of the statute, as to give to the public generally, and the
policy-holders of the company in particular, the benefit of the information therein
contained."

I have, however, assumed that your transmittal of a copy of your printed report
to me, contemporaneously with its being given to the public, was to call the attention
of the Attorney General generally to the result of your examination, in order that, if
he should find that in the 'criticisins' made by your department there are suficient
facts stated to warrant any action on the part of the Attorney General, he might be
enabled to take such steps and institute such proceedings as he miglit deem were best
calculated to conserve and protect the public interests involved. With that idea and
purpose in view, I have given the report of yourself and your examiner most careful
examination and consideration, and the result of which leads me to the conclusion
that there are no facts stated in your report which call upon or would warrant the
Attorney General in bringing any action against the corporation in question.

Section 207 of the Insurance Law of the State of New York defines the powers
and duties of the Superintendent of Insurance regarding his visitation and inspection
of insurance companies, as well as those of the Attorney General, and is as follows:-

'207. All corporations, associations and societies to which this article is appli-
cable, with their books, papers and vouchers, shall be subject to visitation and inspec-
tion by the Superintendent of Insurance or such persons as he may designate. The
superintendent may address any inquiries to any such corporation, association or
society in relation to its doings or condition, or any other matters connected with its
transactions relative ta the business contemplated by this article. All officers of such
corporation, association or society shall promptly reply in writing to all such inquiries,
under the oath of its president or secretary, or other officers, if required.

' When the superintendent, on investigation, shall be satisfied that any corpora-
tion organized under the laws of this State, doing business in this State, of the char-
acter defined in this article, is insolvent, because of matured death claims, or other
obligations, due and unpaid, exceeding its.assets, and death or disability assessments
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or periodical cails rmade or in process of collection, or lias exceeded its powers, failed
to comply with any provision of law, or is conducting business fraudulently, lie shall
report the facts to tlie Attorney General, wlio, if lie shall be of thie opinion that the
facts require such action, must thereupon apply to the Supreme Court at a special
terru thereof, within the judicial district in wliich the principal office of sucli corpora-
tion, association or society within this State, is located, for an order reguiring tlie
officers of sucli corporation, association or society to show cause, et a reasonable tinie
and place within sucli district, why sucli corporation, association or society should
flot be restrained from, continuing to transact business, witli power to the court to,
adjourn the liearing thereon from time to timel flot exceeding sixty days in ail.'

In the examination of your report, I have, therefore, to ascertain if the facts
therein alleged warrant me in arriving at the conclusion that the corporation is:

1. Insolvent.

2. Has exceeded its powers.

3. Failed to euniply with any provision of law.

4. Is couducting its business fraudulently.

Il wili be observed that tlie basis of any action to be brouglit against an insur-
ance corporation by the Attorney General is the report of the Superintendent of In-
surance. The facts upon which. action is brouglit can be brouglit to the attention of
the Attorney General througli no other source than that oi the Superintendent of
Insurance.

The first, and to my mmnd the most important, subdivision of this section you
answer in favour of the company on page 15 of your report, wherein you state: 'Under
the date of May 31, in giving to the policy-holders of the association tlie result of the
examination of its condition and affairs, then just completed, in the closing paragraph
of rny report I stated: " The resuit of the examination shows that the association is
solvent." A study of the accompanying report of the Chief Examiner compels me
now to make the same statement.'

The result otf youir examination demonstrating the solvency of tlie corporation,
makes the 4Iuestion of determining whetber or not the corporation bas offended against
any of the other provisions of the statute a most important and delicate one. I can
conceive of no graver injury that could be done by the Attorney General to the mern-
bers of a solvent corporation than that which. would resuit froma an action brought by
the.Attorney General against sucli corporation, unless it was perfectly rnanifest that
the public interests involved could be protected in no otlier manner.

Assuming as I do that your criticisms are well merited, yet, I arn compelled tg
recognize the fact that notwitbstanding the business methods pursued by the officecs
of this corporation. it has been decided by yourself and the examiner that il is solvent.
whicli is, after all, thýe qu.estion in which the policy-holders of the company are most
interested; and even though I fully agree that there is just cause for your criticismss
on the former policy of the officers, I arn convinced that your report fails to state
sufficient facts upon wbich an action could be predicated by the Attorney General
against the corporation under the provisions of tbe statute.

It is true, as stated in your report. that 'the Superintendent of Insurance cannot
lie held responsible for the conduct of corporations of this class unless adequate and
sufficient powers to *protect the interests of their policy-holders are definitely given
hima in the law.' It is equally true that the Attorney General is powerless to institute
or maintain an action against such a corporation unless the facts iîn the report of the
Superintendent of Insurance warrant such action.

Yonrs very truly,
J. C. BAVIES,

Attorney General.
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And that report which I have just filed was the end of the investigation before
the department, if I understood you correctly t-A. It was.

Q. Ihen the charges that were repeated by the same men in the capacity of policy-
holders, at the time you describe, were investigated by the Attorney Genieral. and dis-
missed ?-A. Yes.

Q. One or two questions with reference to the allegation that undue commissions
were paid upon the transfer of' policies regarding themi as new business-

B~y the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. To keep the connection, I should like to ask, how did Vanderpoei, the examiner,

corne to make the investigation i-A. There is no doubt that the Insurance Superin-
tendent who had made the examination the previous year, intended also to make the
examination in 1899. We had requested the department to make such an examination,
and almost at the saine time, iMr. Wells and IMr. Stevenson had filed their charges with
the department irrespective of the fact that these charges had been filed. There is ii,
doubt that the superintendent intended to examine the company. The superintendeiit
lias the authority to examine at any time, and does examine once in three to five years.

Q. The fact that 1 wanted to make sure, was that charges had been made by Mr.
Wells and IMr. Stevenson against the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. When filed with the department ?-A. Yes.
Q. Before the exaniination was made ?-A. Just before the time the examination

began, but before the examination itself was made.
Q. When the company was called upon to examine the report as made by Mr.

Vanderpoel, were they flot given an opportunity of being heard on the report in con-
nection with the charges that they had made l-A. You inean Mr. Wells and IMr.
Stevenson ?

Q. Yes, the parties who had made the charges l-A. Not at the turne of the hear-
ing after the close of the report.

B11 the Chairman:
Q.Were they invited to, be heard at any time I wanted to make sure, as a matter

of fact, whether, when the company was invited to be heard on the report nmade by Mr.
Vanderpoel, whetlier these parties who liad made these charges were invited to be heard
also, as counsel or otlierwise i-A. They were flot present at that time. It was a statu-
tory hearing, exactly prescribed by law, as to who should be present.

Q. Would you refer to, your law in that connection ?-A. Section 39 of the In-
surance Law of the State of New York reads as follows:

' Every such examiner shall make a full and true report of every examination
made by him, verified by his oath, which report, so verified, shall be presumptive evi-
dence in any action or proceeding in the same of the people against the corporation. its
officers or agents, and the facts stated therein. The superintendent shall grant a hear-
ing to the corporation, examined hefore :filing any such report, and may withhold any
such report from public inspection for such time as he may deem proper and may, if
he deems it in the interests of the publie to do so, publish any such report, or the re-
suit of any such examination, as contained therein, in one or more newspapers of the
state."

1Q. Ihat provision of the law does not prevent the examiner or superintendent
£rom calling the people who made charges at the investigation l-A. No, this is at the
tinal closing of the report.

Q. So that the answer to Senator Beique would he that the Insurance Departinent
sent no invitation to the gentlemen who made the charges against the cornpany to be
present at the investigation ?-A. Present at the hearing-as far as the investigation
is concerned, and the course of action they took at that turne, and not in forin, except
as far as they deal with the officers of the company themselves.
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Q.At the hearing i-A. No, what they deait with at the time of the investiga-
tion.

Bz, M1r. Aylsworth, Counsel for the Matual Reserve
Q.These charges are dated l7th April, 1899. The examination began, he says.,

about the 15th May, 1899, and continued until about the 15th August 1899, and wasw
conducted by hurnself, assisted by about twelve assistants. Ihen he made his, report.
which is filed ?-A. And the hearing is on the report.

Q. One or two questions about these commissions paid upon transfers treated
as new business :You have already spoken about the matter from the standpoint op
the policy-holders, that the flfteen-year policies, as you cail them, sbould be replacedb
by the five or ten-year policies. I asked Mr. Stevenson the other day, if it were not
Mr. llarper's course of business, so long as be was president of the company, a1ways.
to base bis assessment on the original age of entry. Mr. Stevenson's answer, as I,
remember it, was that Harper generally did so, but flot uniformly. Can you statem
what the course of business was ?-A. Ail assessments were based on original age of
entry -up to August 1, 1895. Harper died on JuIy 2, 1895.

Q. After bis deatb they were always so based ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have explained the disadvantage of that system to the other policy-

bolders of the association, as indeed iMr. Stevenson also did, but *with reference tom
'the treating of those transfers as new business, let me know wbat reason for that.
existed in the nature of the situation, with regard to the liolders of these fifteen-year
policies ? What I mean, was there any way you could, as executive of the association,
prevent tbat sort of thing being actuaily new business if the holder of a fteen-yeai*
policy chose to say he would drop it, and take instead a five-year policy ?-A. 0f'
course, a policy-holder, simply because lie held the policy on another plan, was not
liarred from the right of making an application. passing an examination, and takinge
insurance upon the flve-year plan, and, as a matter of fact, in the early attempts at
transfers, when we paid less commissions on new business, we found that that was
donc to a very considerable extent, that the policy-bolder would make an application
for ncev insurance, as îf ha intended to carry both policies, and then when he got his
new policy he dropped the old policy, which resulted exactiy in what bappened whcn
we paid commission upon the business as new business.

Q. If a man applied for a new live-year policy, would the fact that he was at the-
time of bis application the holder of a llfteen-year policy, affect at ail your treating
the application for the fivc-y-,ear policy as new business ?A. iNot as it wvas accepted,
no. It might bear on the question of whether we would grant him the additional
insurance as fromt a moral stý-ndpoint, but if it was granted, it would ha trcated as
new business.

Q. Supposing as between you and your agents you had declined to treat the
applications for five-year policies xvhere the applicant alrcady had a fifteeu-year policy,
as new business, what would the result have been from a business standpoint ?-
A. It wo-uld ba open for the agent to take the applicant to some other conpany, s0
that we would lose the insurance, in case ha was able to pass the examination, and
that happened in many cases.

Q. Any flfteen-year applicant would ba taken by the agent ta some other company
if ha could pass the examination, if you did not give bim commission ?-A. Yes, and
we would be left with the depleted risk-the bad risk.

Q. You added that where the conditions of the five-year policy would ha ton
great in the moral risk, you declined ?-A. Yes, we always, in taking the additional
risk on the life, had ta consider the insurance that is in force in relation ta the total
amount of risk we would ha carrying.

Q. lTow long was that systema of transfers and paying agents' commission on
transfers, as on new business, ini vogue 1-A. Well, about a year and a haif. That is
the first transfers, were begun in the sunimer of 1896, and we finally terminated at
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-the end of 1897, and during ail that time we were flot paying the commission in full,
omi I think during none of the tirne were we paying the commissions as new business,

-where an old policy had been in force less than five years.
Q. And out of what £und did any payrnents of commission on first premiums on

the occasion of such transfers, corne -A. Lt carne out of the first ycar's prerniums,
swn the new premiums, just the same as it did on the new business.

Q. Did it affect the rnortuary fund ?-A. Lt did not affect the rnortuary fund
for new business.

Q. At the end of it ail, about the end of 1897, you had as the gross amount of the
transfers, I think you said, sornething less than fifteen. million i-A. $14,S70,000 odd
wei transferred during thoso two years.

Q. Was tbere any transfer at that time, from your funds, to any other account
in respect of those transfers ?-A. At the end of 1896, we transferred from the Gen-
eral Fund to tbe iReserve Fund, wbich was the fond that was sacred to the payment
of policy-holders at the end of 1896, $15,500 :in 1897, $47,300; in 1898, $5 1,500, and
tbe calculation of those sums was based upon the possible interference with the mor-
tuary fund tbrough the transfer of this insurance.

Q. To protect it against any possible loss ?-A. Yes, ngainst any possible loss.
Q. And you say as a result, it was flot in fact depleted or affected by the trans-

fers ?-A. No.
Q. Then, upon such transfers treating them as new business, it bas been testified

that you were paying your agents there 65 per cent, and that there was an overriding
commission of 20 par cent. Did that overriding commission affect at ail Canadian
policies ?-A. Lt did not. Lt was confined to policies in the United States.

Q. t bcd nothing to do wîth Canadian policies ?-A. No.
Q.The 65 per cent would affect Canadian transfers ?-A. Well, it would tu the

extent that any agent in Canada had 65 per cent as regular commission. I presume,
as a fact that agents operating in Canada did have that 65 per cent.

Q. And that would affect Canadian business ?-A. Yes.
Q. Can youi give me any idea of the proportion of this amoiint of transfers thit

were Canadian l-A. I cannot, but I know a very smaîl amount was transferred in
Canada.

Q. (Jan you give me the aggregate amount of commissions paid ?-A. Lt would be
a very small amount, because there was a very small amount of business transferred.

Q. -Mr. Moss got this 20 per cent on United States business, and had he any dis-
bursements to pay out of it ?-A. HIe had to pay the expenses of the agents, over and
aboya $20,000 a year-the expenses outside of commissions.

Q. There ivas a form of voucher in connection with those transfers, which Mr.
Stevenson produced in lis deposition-it is Exhibit No. 5-before the Committee.
Would you take communication of that document, and explain the memorandum which
is at the foot of that voucher? You recognize the document, L suppose, as the former
voucher you used in connection withthose payments, do you ?-A. Lt is a form of
order which Mr. Stevenson, as assistant secretary, having charge of that part of the
accounts, was required to give to the auditor of nccounts before the credit could be
given.

Q. There is appended to. it a shorter footnote. Was that a part of the document ?
-A. Lt is n part of the requirements.

Q. And did it appear on the actuel vouchers thet were used ?-A. Lt did ; every
year that was used.

Q. We have that language repeated in the examinetion of Mr. Stevenson, and it
states that under'the termas allowed, the amiount of the last call pnid on the old policy
has been acccepted as a part of the premnium on the new policy. Explain what th...t
means ?-A. Wlien the transfer was made, if the insured, for instance, paid for a haif
year-was to pay premium for a haîf year, and the lust call which would carry the iii-
surance for sixty days had been two dollars, and the haîf yeer was twenty dollars, lie
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would be allowed the two dollars as a credit on the twenty dollars ; that is under tha
payment of the two dollar we would be compelled to carry that insurance for sixty
days. H1e was required, in taking that insurance, to surrender the old insurance so
that he would flot receive anythinig for that sixty days unless he was given credit for
that call on the premiumn on the new policy. H1e hiad paid it for insurance and the
credit was transferred frorn the policy that was surrendered to the policy that was in
force at the time of the surrender.

Q. That was unearned premium which was credited to him as against the new
policy ?-A. Yes.

Q. 'Said amount belongs to the agents, who, in their statements, had aceDunteci
for the entire premium. on the new policv without liaving credit thereon for the amount
of the said last call.'--A. If the premium was $20, they had received $18, and they
would be required to account the same as if they had received the $20, and having so
accounted they would be entitled to the $2, whieh had been credited the agent which
he had flot paid, but which they had accounted for. It had been paid to the agent
and they received hnek t he one payment.

Q. iDoes this statement mean that that $2, as you are taking it in a concrete in-
stance, belongs to the agents but only to such agents as have in their settiernent
accounted for the entire premium ?-A. Only such as bave accounted in their entire
statement for the entire prcmium.

Q. The sentence is divided after tbe word 'agents' by a comnma, is that righit
A. Yes.

Q. Is that the correct reprint ?-A. I tbink it is. Before that could be doue, it
was required, by a ride of the association, that tbis ccrtificate tbat he accounted for
the entire premium should be made, and also that this certificate should be made tbat
the new policy was iii so as to end the company's liability on account of the old
policy, and it could not be given unless the certificate had been given.

Q. Was it the fact tbat that last cali was given to the agent in addition to their
regular commission as on new business ?-A. No, it was part of their sixty-five per
cent.

Q. Stevenson said, in his examlination. that after preparing a draft of that
voucher the agent before Burnham, you aiso being present, used in1 bis original draft
the word 'bonus,' to wbich word iPresident Buruham took exception. You remember
the incident ?-A. I reniember there was such an interview over the draft that Mý.
Stevenson had prepared in which lie used the word bonus, and that tbe use of it was
interdicted.

Q. Why ?-A. Bccause if it was 'bonus' it would be in addition to the commis-
sion, and would bc paying the sixty-flve per cent of the mortuary call.

Q. You say instcad of that being the fact, the opposite was the f act ?-A. Yes,
that is why Mr. Buruhanin objected to the former voucher prepared by Stevenson flrst.

Q. lHe did not allow that forni to be used and did flot allow that thing to be done?
-A. No.

Q. I want to eall your attention to a note which Mr. Stevenson appended to bis
testimony before signing it ?A. 1 may Say in explanation of my tcstimony further
that the use of the word 'bonus' in payment to agents is soinetimes defined as com-
mission. It is a gif t. A word constantly used in life insurance.

Q. On page seventeen of the twentieth report of the evidence before this Coni-
mîttee, under date sixteentb June, I flnd a note over the signature of Mr. Stevenson,
which was an objeetion lie made after the conclusion of bis oral examination. Would
you rend that note ?-A. I have rend it.

Q. What have you to say with re-gard to the accuracy or inaccuracy of that
statement ?-A. The note reads: 'As soon as the Insurance Pepartment of New York
lnid it brought to their notice that delinquent policies were represented by the coni-
pany as being in force, they added new Eines in the blank supplied to, the company,
upon which the company were required, under oath, to set forth first policies non-ý
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delinquent December 31st; second, policies delinquent on which the association's
liability continued during delinquency; third, policies delinquent on which associa-
tion's Iiability was suspended during delinquency; see sworn report of the company
to the Insurance Department in iNew York, December 31, 1899, page 3.

Q. With reference to that statement perhaps you will repeat in a word a piece
of tcstimony which. I see you gave on iFriday in answer to Mr. MiMiurcby, with refer-
ence to the investigation of the Department of Illinois, Texas, and sorne other state,
of 1894 and 1895 ?-A. As I testified, this matter of the delinquent policies was up
in 1894 and 1895 and the officiai report of the four States' exanilmition shows Chîat Lhey
took it up and that they knew just how many policies were delinquent at that time,
and stnte also the cause why those delinquent policies were included.

Q. There is a reference in that note which was put in evidence as early as 1894 to
what was the practice of New York State?-A. The statement is there.

Q. Are you in a position f0 say whether or no that is correct ?-A. That is cor-
rect.

Q. It was then the prictice of the lInsurane IDepartment of New York State f0
require you to include delinquent policies as early as 1894 and 1895 l-A. I do not
mean that they emphetieally required us to include thcm, but when I came there in
1894 I found thiat these delinquent policies were incluided and alweys had been in-
cluded in the reports of the department. I came there in May, and in September the
INew York iDepartmenf began an examination of the company, and during thef exami-
nation for information as f0 hoxv I shoiild make the report of 1894, I consulted Judge
Spencer, who was the coifnsel of the department and discussed. the question with him as

f0 how I should deal with delînquent policies. He referred to the righit of reitîstate-
ment aud saw no reason why the custoin to inelude those policies should be changed,
and advised me to continue to meke he report in the same way that t hey had heen pre-
viously madle.

Q. Thaf was as early as when l-A. That was in the early part of 1894 or early
in 1895, when I lied under consideration the making of fthe report December 31sf.

Q. Whet course did you pursue with reference f0 your reports of your native

state ?-A. We continue f0 include those policies as in force in ail of our reports,
but in the reports at the close of 1897 I volunfarily, affer asking permission of the
New York Insurance iDeparfmenf, appended a note sfating the number of policies
delinquent included in the report.

Q. Have you the document before you ?-A. If is here et flhc end of 1897.
Q. I should like f0 sec whaf information that note uonveys f0 the dcparfment l -

A. In the schedule if self there was a line 'total policies or certificates in force Pecem-
ber 31, end of year.' I starred that itemn and et the bottom of the sehedule put the note
' of this number 6,189 were delinquent and unexpired, riglit of reinsfatement under
section 6,. article 11, of the constitution or by-]a-w.'

Q. Giving the number of policies but ne thfe antount of insurance ?-A. It did
not give the amnount of insurance.

Q. Thet foofnofe is inserted in the report of 1897 g-A. Yes.
Q. What bas been your habit wîth regard f0 if sinee ?-A. It was put in the

succeeding reports.
Q. In 1898 does if appear t-A. In 1898 if appeared, and, 1899 with ftie Consent

of the department I changed the sehedule of policies reported. The blank which the
department furnished at the close of 1899 was identically the same blank thaf they had
furnished et other times, and had flot any reference whatever f0 delinquent policies
where fthc liability continued or was suspended, but I atteched my own sehedule and

50 i this certified copy, certified by the New York Deparfment you wiIl flnd their
blank contains no sucli provision as Mr. Stevenson testifies f0, but the information
which he says was requîred by flic department is furnishcd by e sehedule prepared by
ourselves and attached thereto, .which schedule was consented fo by the iNew York
Insurance Department.
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Q. And you say it was of your own motion that was done ?-A. Yes, and no
blank was ever furnished by the New York Insuirance Departmnent to the comipany
requiring the item that Mr. Stevenson spoke of.

Q. From that time have you in your reports to your home department included
delinquent policies ?-A. We made this distinction, including the delinquent, but
giving the division of delinquent and non-delinquent, until we were re-incorporated,
as an old line conipany in 1902; then we adopted the plan of including our business,
as far as New York was concerned, only business actually paid for as of the 31st day
of iDecember. That is, the books close with the close of business on the 3lst of De-
cember, and wbatever policies stand on our books at the close of that date as absolutely
paid for are included. in our report te New York, and none other. That is permitted
by New York to old uine companies and in every state where it is permitted te report
in that manner. Massachusetts and one or two other states require that we shall fot
only report the paid for but also those that are delinquent and not actually cancelled
off the books, aùnd in those states we have to make a report on that form, so that the
schedule would difler between the different states.

Q. What portion ini gross, in aggregate, of your insurance in force would consist
of policies that were in arrear, delinquent policies ?-A. Well, it depended on the
lapses of the year. 0f course, when you came to the year 1898 especially in which
they raised the assessment to full attained age the proportion of lapses was much
larger thon it had previously been and of course there would be a larger proportion
of the policies delinquent that year.

Q. Take 1898, if it is the worse one, or one where there tre the most delinquents,
what is your aggregate insurance as reported in force, and how much of that in dollars
and cents would be the outside, of delinquent 2i-A. At the end of IDecember, 1898,
there was the insurance paid for and the delinquent was $269,000,000, and of that
$63,000,000 was delinquent.

Q. That was an unusually large proportion 1-A. That is the largest proportion
in any year, I think.

Q. llow much of that $269,000,000 of insurance in force, including delinquents,
ever did become lapsed or policies that were absolutely deliùiquent finally delinquent
-A. That would be a question impossible to answer.

Q. You could not put an outside figure upon it 1-A. No, it would be simply guess
work.

Q. Now, with regard to including policies that are in arrear as live business, what
was your situation with regard to the frfteen-year policy that had been in force for a
while 1-A.Well, there was a provision in certain of the fifteen-year policies that if
they had been in force five years or more, the liabilities for death loss continued six
months after the failure to pay assessments. If they had been in force ten years it
remained for a year. That embraces the policies in this schedule of 1899 as delinquent
with the liability of the association continuing.

Q. You have made a separate class of them in that schedule which you have pre-
pared ?-A. Yes.

Q. But of the delinquent policies those that were in that shape you were abso-
lutely liable upon for six or twelve months as the case might ha ?-A. Yes.

Q. That was true of the :fifteen-year policies-te what extent ?-A. I think there
was about haif. I should say about haif of the frfteen-year policies contained that
provision.

Q. What about the ten-year 1-A. Well, on examination of the ten years policies,
I flnd that was not included in the ten years policies. My impression had been that
in the earlier of the ten years policies that was included, but it was not.

Q. That was a provision of about one-hiaif of the fifteen years policies that be-
came delinouent ?-A. Yes.

Q. Stevenson says the including of the delinquent policies in the report as live
policies was subject of conversation between you and him and you wo'uld not agree to
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it being discontinued, seeing that it had been used some years past. Wbat do you
say ?-A. I do flot think lis testimony covers th eiqeplce. I hnki

covers a column that we did not mark off, cancelled policies and transferred policies
and reduced policies. I think that is -what; his testimony refers to.

.Q. Did you and hie have such a conversation with regard to sucli policies ?-A.
We did not. I neyer heard of that.thing until a year or more after he had lef t the
company.

Q. H1e snys you told him it was an inopportune time to make any change in your
habit ini that regard ?-A. He is entirely mi.staken a-, to that. The matter was not;
-up for discussion between us, and I did flot know of any dlaim that anything of that
kind was donc until sometime in 1900, and the best proof that hie is mistaken is the
fact that the charge was not made to the Insurance Departmcnt.

Q. That was when lie was in the line of making charges. Then you have a re-
port there of the chief examiner in Mvay, 1898, on that subjeet, I think. Let me se
that ?-A. There was an examination made in 1898, May 16, 1898, in whîch. lie made
a report vcrifying our rcport of December 31, 1897.

Q. And what is his statement with regard to that subject. Whose report is this?
-A. Isaac Vanderpool, chief examiner.

Q. Just read if you please the cxtract from the report on this question of delin-
quent policies ?-A. It does not refer to delinquent policies specially; it refers to the
whole of lte report at the end of 1897.

Q. In the IDecember previous to that report cf his, what had your return to the
departmnent in regard to the delinquent been ?-A. It included the delinquent policies
and called attention to the fact that they werc included.

Q. What did hie say in bis report ?-A. This is dated New York, May 16, 1898,
to the ilonourable Louis F. Payn, Superintendent of Insurance, Albany, New York,
and reads as follows:

' Sia,-As per your appointment No. 1,104 I beg to report that I have completed
the examination of the Mutual iReserve records of the Mutual IReserve Lif c Associa-
tion of New York. The examination gives the condition of the association on De-
cember 3lst last. This date was taken for the reason that there could ba no material
chgnge in lthe association's total figures as hetween the close of the ycar 1897 and tht>
Brd of Mardi last, at which. date the examination was commenced. I have deemcd il
unnecessary to repeat here the various items going to make up tic association's annual
statement cf December 31, 1897, as these figures are now on file in ail the States in
which, the association does business and have been or will bie published by these States
in their annual reports. The examination shows that the company's last annual
statement was substantially correct. The variations in certain cf the figures as lie-
tween those contained in the report and those shown by the examination are se tri-
vual as nt to warrant a reference to tlwese difference~s in this report. The assets and
liabulities are set forth in Exhibit F.'

By the Hon. M1r. Béique:-
Q. Tiare were two examinations made ?-A. Yes. Ona made in 1898 and one

in 1899.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.G., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. Then the next subjeot Stevenson speaks of, or lie speaks cf it in the samne con-

nection is, what hae calîs wrong-doing on the part of the association and it is in thase,
words :-' Then another way that they includad. business that was in force was in the
matter of reductions. Say a man hcld a ten thousand dollar policy carried some yaars,,
aud for reasons cf bis cwn wanted to reduce it to five thousand dollars, the uew policy
was numbared and put thirough the books, and footed up with bbc volume cf business
but the cancelled ten thousaud dollar policy was not deducted at that time: couise-
quenbly, althcugh the man cnly really carried five bbcusand dollars, for bbc time
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being it wa.s reported as fifteen thousand dollars.' Then lie speaks next of something
else that we have already goxie into, his own resignation, and then lie says 'Where a
ireduction had been made, they had carried both policies as business in force, I cailed
Eldridge's attention to that error, so that it could be corrected, but lis reply was sueli
as confirxned my intention about that turne to get out of the company, to resign. Hia
answer was that*that; business liad been carried before in the annuel statement, and
that the volume of business for 1898 was not very large, and it was a very advanta-
geous turne te maire that change, and eut that busineas out.' And tlien he adds 'I
began to be afraid of losing my self-respect and manhood if I stayed there any
longer' i-A. That is the matter to whicli I referred as saying tliat Mr. Stevenson
states that lie called attention to it. No sucli conversation took place, and I neyer
knew until 1900 that lie even made the dlaim that that was carried. iMr. Stevenson
has testified in tliis saine testimony tliat ail matters of transfers and reductions and
change of beneficiaries and se forth, came tlirougli him, lis department, and it was,
his orders that new policies as reductiens sheuld not be issued except upon the can-
oeilation of tlie old, and in fact, I do noV see how, as a practical matter, it could pos.
slbly have been done. We must have an application or a surrendered policy for the
i.ssuance of a new policy, and he was required upon the issuance of a new policy to
certify to the cancellation and the exchange for the old policy, and how it was withiin
even the range of possibiity or practicability that sucli a thing can be, done, is beyond
my comprehension.

Byj the Cha~irman:
Q.That is a very essential point: as a matter of fact, Stevenson swears that when

a policy-holder reduced lis poliey froin $10,000 to $5,000, the two policies were carried
on the books of the eompany as being in force. The question is one of fact. le
that true, or is it not true ?-A. It is not true.

By Mr. Aylesworth, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
QI read froin page 5 of Stevenson's evidence. Stevenson also spoke of wliat

he cafled fictitions policies, policies that were neyer intended to be rmal, as lie says,
whicli were signed but noV stamped witli the revenue stainp, and were ordered to
be sent Vo soins particular departinent. Dr. Bowden-who was lie -A. Hie was the
Medical Director.

Q. Would there be in the routine of your office business, any significance in
sending policies Vo lis departinent I-A. Ail policies were sent Vo his departinent
after being issued, in occasional instances, as for instance, where a very large arnount
of insurance was being carried, there was te, be a special investigation before Vhe deli-
yery of the policy.

Q. In the ordinary course of business, would ail policies go to him ?-A. Oh no.
In the ordinary course of business, the policy would net go Vo him. IV would be
only in exceptional cases.

Q. In certain exceptienal cases, they would be sent te him ?-A. In certain ex-
ceptional cases, they miglit be.

Q. Did yeu ever knew of any pelicies being applied fer, and actually written
ont, which yen at any turne bad reasen Vo believe wsre not intended te be, genuine ?-
A. These particular policies, concerning whidh he testifies, it is net epen Vo question
that they were issued as he states, and by hum sent te Mr. Bowden, and entered upon
*Mr. Stevenson's beoks as issued policies, and that Vhey did noV leave Vhe office.

Q. And did net, as yen have reasen Vo believe, represent genuine insurance 1-
A.. Tliey did net represent genuine insurance, for they neyer 1sft VtVe office.

,Q. Stevenson handed a list in here, whidh lie said was a sample of sueh work.
Let me know Vhe extent of it, and if it ever came Vo your knowledge. ?A. The flrst
I ever knew anything about these policies, was when the Assistant Actuary ef that
department, in the examination of 1899, called for tlie list of them, and had the charge
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that those policies haid been se issued, and entered into an investigation of that charge;
that called my attention to the matter.

Q. Was that the first you ever heard of it i-A. That is the first I ever heard
of it

Q. About what month in 1899 r-A. Well, it was subsequent to April, 1899,
because the examinations began in 1899. 1 investigated the facts, and in the hearing
before the Insurance Superintendent presented to him the entire facts in connection
with the case, as far as I could develop thema fromi the examination.

Q. I should like to know those £acte, please, £rom the beginniug ?-A. There is
the exact statement as it was laid before the Insurance Commissioner of New York.

Q. What is this doeument ?-A. It is an extract £rom my statement to the In-
surance Commissioner at the hearing, and covers that entire charge as made to the
New York Insurance Department and investigated.

Q. You have been through this statement, and you know the contents of it ?-
A. I know the contents of it.

Q. Are those statements therein contained, true ?-A. Yes.
Q. And is that your answer te my question ?-A. Yes.
Q. This document, which will be marked for identification, reads as follows:

STATEMENT made to the New York Insurance Departinent in reference to charges
made by J. D. Wells and J. Mv. Stevenson that certain fictitious policies had been
inc-luded in the return to the departmnent as of December 31, 1898.
In the matter of the eight policies included among the 'not taken' which the

examiner states had nlot been signed, and to which no revenue stamps had been at-
tached, at the time of their cancellation, sudh a circumstance, while greatiy to be
deplored, is one that migît easily occur in any office where the officiai iii charge of
the work of issuing the policies, and specialiy the officiai in charge of the Agency De-
partment and the officiali n charge of the issuance of policies, should unite to permit
or procure sueh an act. It would be manifestly impossible that such action should
be immediately discovered, if an attempt was madc to conceal it, since the signature
of the president to policies is flot written and cannot with a large business be written
by himself, but is stamped under the direction of the officiai in charge of the iPolicy
Department. Again, the issuance of policies is reported by such officiai to the depart-
ment that makes Up the figures of issued and outstanding policies. Such official, by
entering such policies upon his regular register, when hie knew their fictitious charac-
ter, weuld defy detection until somo spcciai mattcr calied to the act the attention of
the superior officers, or an investigation of this character revealed it.

The small number of the policies thus included i11 the report, being but eiglt eut
of an issue of nearly 12,800, shows that it could not have occurred with the purpose
cf swelling either the amount of busCîness written or in force, and indicates con-
clusiveiy that it must have been for other cause. A slight investigation reduces the
policies in question te six in nlumber, covering $170,000 of insurance, for it appears,
upon examining the record, that policy No. 340067 on the life of F. W. Dunham,
$2,000, which was an increase over insurance already heid, wvas canceiled by reason
cf the failure cf the Medical Department te obtain a second examination, such ex-.
amination being deemed nccssary by the medical director on information received
by him subsequent te approval; and polîcy No. 347073, H. W. Walker, $1,000, was
cancelled by renson of information rcceived subsequent te acceptance, the risk proving
te lie undesirable, although on the facts known at time of acceptance it was probably
accepted. These two cases are, therefore, cases that might occur at any time, and are
utterly without significance.

As regards the other six cases, they ail occurred in one agency, and suspicion was
aroused that not genuine business was being placed through this agency by the number
cf applications for a large amount received in the ciosing week of the year. Imme-
diately upon this suspicion arising, Vice-iPresident Eldridge wired as follows:

EL!URIDGmD
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December 28, 1898.
H. E. WHITE,

Manager, 126 Tremont St.,
Boston, Mass.

Only bona tide business desired. Caunot receive any other. Have written.

(Signed) GEORGE D. ELDRIDGE.

This telegram. was followed on the same day by a letter stating why the telegram

had been sent, and reiterating the desire of the management to have only houa fide

business submitted. The balance of this story is contaiued in the annexd affidavit of

H. E. White, marked 'Exhibit Q' the agent in question, to which is attached a copy

of the letter of December 28, written him by \Tice-President Eldridge. It shows that

the authority for writing this business proceeded directly from the theu head of the

Agency Departmeut, iMr. J. D. Wells, as the possibility of its nion-detection was due

to the acts of Mr. J. M. Stevenson, the theu head of the Policy Department.
The small amount of this business, and the fact that it heurs no appreciable

magnitude, either to the business writteu during the year or to the business reported

in force ut its close, seemn to present conclusive evidence that the purpose ini view in

havîug this business writteu was not the pudding- of the staternent, but a motive

eutîrely different from that. That the men who were awure of this course of pro-

cedure and directly responsible for its occurrence were the two men who could unite

to conceal, for the time beiug, this course of action, and are the meu who, silice dis-

charged from the employ of the association, have reported the facis of this business

against the management, would seem to indicate very clearly the purpose in view in

placing this business upon the books of the association and iii perinitting an irregu-

larity which is contrary to the whole principle thut bas actuated the management in

the matter of business submitted and written.
Iu the closiug sentence of the paragraph uow under consideration, reference is

made to the Ten Year Distribution Deposit polîcy issued on December 31 for $50,000,

which also was 'not taken.' This application came froma California, was by an agent

who had frequently written policies for a large amount, and presented uothing un-

usual in charucter; but, on the contrary, it was accompunied by the medical examina-

tion fee, giving colour to the supposition that the business was genuine in character.

Frous ivestigation since made, the management does not doubt that the application

was genuine, and that it xvas the purpose of the applicant to take the ilnsurauce, but

circumstances subsequeutly arose which caused the policy to be returned as 'not

taken.'
In summing up, it must be insisted that instances of this kind are unavoidable

in a business of the magnitude done by this association; that every evidence is pre-

sented of the purpose of the management to countenance only bona fide business, and

that the results of this purpose are clearly apparent in the decrease of the ratio of

not taken' business, notwithstanding the peculiar conditions which would naturally

tend to increase sncb ratio, and further, by the fact already cited, that the 'not

taken' business of iDecember was proportionately less than that of the entire year 1898.

Appended is the affidavit of Mr. Homer White. Where is Rockland Oounty ?-A.

New York.
Q. Then Eldridge's letter to, White, December 28th, 1898, and the affidavit of

White dated lat January, 1899. At the timeyou sent that telegram and wrote that

letter, what was the arnount of your knowledge or the state of your mind as to thee

applications ?-A. Simply the knowledge that these large applications had been sent

in from Boston.
Q. 1a Mr. White's affidavit, 6o far as he testifles te, any^ matters within your

knowledge, true ?-A. So far as it testified te any matter within my knowledge, it is

true. 1 know- the affidavit was aubmaitted to the Insurauce Departinent.
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By the Chairman;
Q. Was iMr. Wells given an opportunity to cross-examine White on this affida-

vit ?-A. No.

By Mr. Aylesworth, Counsel for the Mulual Reserve:

Q.The affdavit was filed, and you know nothing more about it ?-A. Yes.
Q. -I was asking you what information you had about the matter at the time you

wrote the letter and sent the application ?-A. Simply the fact that these large appli-
cations came in, and had excifed attention.

Q. The unusual amount excited your attention 1-A. Ycs.
Q. Can you say whether at the fime you felegraphed and wrof e, you were sus-

picious of somethîng wrong ?-A. It struck me as unusual, and I know that a great
deal of if-if is doue in many insurance companies.

Q. Did you ever kuow of any instance of it, in your association, except on this
occasion 1 A. No speciflo instance, no.

Q. Did you ever know of any instance of it, except tbe eight policies that are

referred f0 inl your own statement and the one froin California that you believe was

bona fide? Now you think the applicant afferwards changed his mmnd about faking it I
-A. I nover found any others, no.

Q. The aggregate amount is about what figure 1-A. The aggregafe amount of

the six policies was $170. The aggregate amount altogether was a littie over $200,000.
Q. And what was the gross volume of your houa fide business at the end of

1898 ?-A. About $200,000,000.
Q. Would an addition of $200,000 on a volume of $200,000,000 be of any signi-

ficance xvhatevor, so far as the compauy is concerued ?A. None whatever.
Q. To what extent, if f0 any extent, was there anything fictiflous or delusive in

the report mode to the Canadian Department which covered this period ?-A. Well, of

course, none of theso policies were issued ini Canada, and noue of these occurred in

Canada. We were required, as far as our general business is concorned, fa file with
the C,,niai Insurance iDeparfmient, a copy of hie, report made to the, New York
Department.

Q. When Stevenson was deposing as f0 these so-called fictitiouis policies, hoe was

asked whethier or not there had been untrue or misleading reports made fo the Dopart-

ment lu Canada. Are you able f0 speak on that subjeet ?A. I know the reports f0

the Dominion of Canada were correct. 0f course, as far os the delinquant policies
were concred-

Q. I arn speaking wvith refereuce to the s0 called fictitious policies ?-A. None
of the so-called fictitious policies appeared iu the report te Canada, so for as Cana-
dian. business was concerued, but there was fmcd with the Canaýdian iDepartment an
exact trauscript of the report to fhe New York Department.

Q. Aud that would bo ailected fo fhe extent of $9_00,000 or thereabouts by ficti-
fious policies ?-A. Yes,

Q. That was truc of 189S, and do I understaud yon correctly that so for os you

know. if was nof fruc of any subsequent year ?-A. No, if was uot, so for as I kuow.
Q. Fither before or after ?A. No, and I wilI say the octuary of the New York

Insurance Deparfmenf made a thorough examination in regard to the risks on fthe

policies, aud I also did, because if fell f0 my lot f0 preseut the matter to the Insu-
rance Siuperinfeudent at the hearing, and 1 prepared myseif to prescut if in full,
and did so preseuf it.

Q. Then prior to that investigation of the spring of 1899, the report of 1898
was of course flled ?-A. Yes.

Q. lad you gone info that report with iny care ?-A. I had gone into if with
tihe ordinary care I did with fhe reports to the Insurance Pepartmeut of business, and,
so far as if was possible fo do, I verified the figures, but wifh the mass of detail fhere
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is in such a report, it would be impossible for anyone to take them up and verify every
figure that is contained in them, especially when you have ta make so many reporte
and Within so short a time as we have to make it at the close of the year.

Q. Had you exercised any special attention in that respect, upon the report of
the year 1898 ?-A. Nothing more than the ordinary precautions ta see that it was
correct.

Q.This matter of these particular policies-how far had it gone, up ta the time
of making the report of 1898? Had it gone Leyond writing the letter and tale-
gram 1-A. It had flot. The policies had been written, as I understand, and sent ta
Dr. Bowden's departinent, and rena.ined in his office.

Q. Did you ever give instructions to dispose of his policies in that way ?-A. 1
nover did.

Q. Did anyone superior in authority ta Wells or Stevenson, as far as you
know ?-A. Not that I know.

Q. When did you Lurt hear of it e--A. In connection with the charges made ta
the Insurance Department in New York.

By the Chairman :
Q. IIow is it, after these padded policies were sent in1 ta the department, and

you wired your agent ta send on only bona fide business 1-A. I saw the application
and I put it as a matter of caution ta bim, not ta put in any irregular business.

By Mr. Aylesworih, Counsel for thse Mut ual Reserve
Q.You had that degree af suspicion about it ?-A. Yes.

The Committee adjourned tili 10 a.m. ta-morrow.

OTTAWA, TUESDAY, June 28, 1904.

The Committee met at 10 a.m.

Mr. GEORGE D. ELDRIDGE.-Mr. iBéique asked mne the other day, when examining
me with regard ta the salaries paid, if I could explain the sudden increase in salaries,
bath of oficers and employees, between 1893and 1894, and at the time I could not do
so. In 1893, the salaries of afficers amounted ta $79,636; in 1894, ta $141,297; salaries
of employees in 189 13, $88,542, and in 1894, $199,647.

Examined by the Han. Mr. Béique :
Q.And the next year 1-A. The next year there was an increase af about $25,000

in tie salaries of emoployees. That is easily explainable, but the great discrepancy was
between 1893 aud 1894. As I went there iu 1894, 1 had ta look into the matter, and
ta make the departmental reports here, and I have also had the matter canflrmed
from New York. You will find under the report af diabursements in the General
Report an item af commissions paid ta banka and collectors for callectîng assessments
-yau will find, in 1893, that was $216,326.02. When yau turn ta 1894, you will llnd
that item was $59,152.86.

Q. For collecting about the same arnount ?-A. For coliecting about the same
amount, and considerably more in 1894 than in 1893. That confirmed me in the
opinion that in 1893, the salaries paid at the home office for those engaged in the
Mortuary Department-far 1893 and the preceding years, the salaries paid for this in
the iMortuary Department, that is sending out assessments and collectug accaunts,
&c.,-had been charged ta collections instead af ta salaries, and that in 1894 a change
was made. Under collections, they simply charged the collections as commissions
ELDRIDGE



THE MUTIJAL RESERVE FUND LIFE AS'SOCIATION

APPENDIX No. 1

paid to banks, while thp other salaries and home offices were charged as salaries to
officers, and have been from that tirnie on. 1 made an exhîbit setting down the salaries
of officers and ernployees, and'the arnounts paid for collections, and then totalled the"e
three items and I found that they amounted, in 1893, to $384,504.62, and in 1894, te
$400,096.95, an increase in those three items of $15,500.

Q. What three items ?-A. Oflicers, employees, and collections.

By the Hon. M1r. McMiu«len :

Q. That did flot refer solely to the Canadian business ?-A. No, that was i the
whole volume of business.

Q. Why did you make the change ?A. In 1893, 1 was not in the business; in
1894 was the first. 1 wired to the home office to find if mny interpretation was correct,
and I received an ariswer that it was correct. In 1894, the then Executive Committee
gave orders to have a change made, and the salaries paid under that head.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson,

Q. We could get at it better, if you could name the officers who served in 1893,
with the amount of their salaries, if you do not want to give Éhem indîvidually, and
in 1894, the number of officers and the amount of their salaries ?-A. I have sent foi'
that, and I arn in hopes that it will corne by mail to-day.

Q. We would theil be able to draw from that why the increase, in officers' salaries
had been so great between 1893 and 1894. Then if we had at the sarne tirnie, the out-
side service there was then, the number of ernployees and the arnount of the salaries.-
ý*.. That I have sent for and I arn in hopes it will be in the mail to-day at nooh. If
they could get the clerical work through, it will be.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. In referring to the exhibit which, you say you prepared, we have for officer,
employees and collections in 1893 the total of $384,50i4 ?-A. Yes.

Q. And in 1894 the increase is rather small, -up to $400,096 ?-A. Yes.
Q. I do not sec that this aécounts for the discrepancy to which your attention

was called ?-A. These werc the salaries cbarged to the dues account. The salaries
that were charged to the rnortuary account were after 1893 carrîed in and made an
aggregate of the salaries charged to the dues account, but, prior to that, they were
rarried into collections, and not in salaries.

By the Chairman :

Q. What do you mean by cliarging salaries to one account, and dues to another?1
-A. The constitution requires that the cost of eollecting assessments shaîl be Paid
from the rnoneys of the assessaments. Those are what we caîl the rnortuary salaries;
mortuary expenses, and the business salaries, are paid £rom the dues account.

Q. It rnîght account for the increase under the head of employees, but I f ail to
sec that it would account for the increase of salaries paid to officers ?-A. Sorne of
the officers were charged to mortuary account, and some to dues. Those actively
engaged in getting business aLove those coufined exclusively to collections of assess-
ments, &c., were cbarged to the rnortuary account.

By the Hon. M1r. McMullen:

Q. In questioniug you on IFriday rnorning, witb regard to the gross amount of
receipts and expenditures for the New York Mutual iReserve in nineteen years, you
gave us the figures first that the arnount of collection by assessrnents was about
$5,100,000 h-A. The amount of payments by policy-holders.

Q. Is that correct ?-A. TIhe entire collections on assessments amounted to $5,-
032,518, but that included intere-t.
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Q. You said the amount which you paid back to policy-holders on matured
policies ainourited to how much ?-A. It amounted to $3,060,029. This is ail on
assessment account. It does flot take in the legal reserve at ail.

Q. Tliat left $1,972,489. You stated that out, of that you had paid $1,067,303 for
expenses in Canada-A. The assessment expenses in Canada were $999,865.

Q. What portion of that is left? Is there any ?-A. There was in Canada, at
the end of the year, assesmient assets to the amount-of $244,078.

Q. That was in the Goveriment's hands i-A. $228,000 of it was in the Govern-
ment's hands.

Q. And where was the balance t-A. In the bank.
Q. Now, you say there was $972,634 of à balance left after making the deductions

you have already referred to, and out of that there was $244,000, you say ,in Canada,
of which $228,0O0 was in the hands of the Dominion Government ?-A. That was the
valuation made at that time.

Q. And the balance was in the bank ?-A. In the batik.
Q. What bas become of the balance that was in the bank?-A. I presume it bas

been used in payment of death losses. We pay ail our death losses here in Canada.
Q. Youi paid death 1e ini Canada to the autnt of $1,060,029. What date isý

that account up to ?-A. Up to December 31. It did not include death losses after
that date. The death losses were falling due right along, and any money in bank
would be used for payment of them, after the first of January.

Q. Now, that would leave $728,624. The gross amount of expenses dute the New
York end of the Canadian business for the nineteen years was $728,546?-A. That
was the contribution fromn the înterest and the payments of policy-holders to the
New York office towards the general expenses and towards the geiseral fond and
towards any contribution to general death dlaims, or anything of that kind. That w'as
the contribution to the business.

Q. This is a little differcnt from the statemcnt you made on Friday. You will
£ind the differcince when you read ovezr the stateinent.

Mr. AyrFsWOIITr.-I have beeti reading it, and I can sec no (lifference.

WVITNEýiss. On Friday, in thc examînation, the Senator lool< sirnply as receipts
the money that had been paid by policy-holders. 11e states so in his examination of
me; it ignored interest. lu this item there is included interest, whieh is $94,280.

By the lIon. MIr. Wood:
Q. Will you tell us what percentage that was of the total expenses of the Homne

Office in New York?-A. The expenses iii the United States during that period
amounted to $19,554,099.

Q. Can you give the proportion of the amount of busiine-,ý donc in Canada and
in the United States?~ What I was getting at wvas whether tlie Canadian, business
paid ratably and according to the volume of business?-A. I niay say, iMr. (liairman,
that I prepared last night, knowing how difficult it is to discuss figures iii this way,
a statement showing the entîre business of the conipany, its receipts, pniyments to
policy-holders, dishursements, and thse ratio, tcking the Canadian business and show-
ing identîcaily the saine thîng, so as to have it ini a succinct form, so as to present the
figures, and that will probably be here about twelve o'clock to-day. There wiil be
plenty of typewritten copies of it, so we can have the total figures riglit before us in
the aggregate, where they can be got at much better thanl in a desultory discussion
of it.

By the Hon. Mr. McMoillen:
Q. In the interest of your company, it wouid be weil to give Lis the exact amount

paid for policies and the exact amounit used for office expenses in New York. On
Friday, you will notice, when you.examined your statement, there was a very great
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discrepancy between the two. 0f course, it is apt to raise doubt as to, the accuracy of
the statements. I will flot challenge them. Possibly you may be correct to-day, but
they certainly differ very seriously, and it will be better to be accurate. The question
1 wanted to get is this: It appears'there is an average expenditure iu the office in
New York for Canadian business. 'Ihat appears to be the office expeases. *Now, you
told us the other day you paid $60,0O0 a year rent?-A. We pay $50,400.

Q. What proportion of that rent is charged to the Canadian end of the busi-
iicss ?--A. None of it. That is, thero is no distribution of the expenses of the Com-
pany specifically as between the Canadian business and the general business.

Q. You keep ail the other items of the Canadian business separate ?-A. We
leep expeuses iu Canada separate.

Q. If you keep the expenses in Canada separately, it is a very singular thing
yotn do not charge Canada with a percentage of the rent ?-A. We charge Canada
with the renta in Canada, but we cannot charge thema specifically with any percentage
of the home office expenses.

Q. llow is the $38,000 a year used ? You charge nou1e for relit. WTbat salaries
have you charged to cover that $38,000 ?-A. That $38,O00 is the contribution of the
Canadian business towards the general expenditure of the company outside of Can-
ada, those of the General Office, but we have not specifically charged to Canada any
percentage or portion of that business any more than we would the business of any
speciflo state. We do not keep the accounts separately as with auy state or with
auy country, excepting as far as the expenditures iu that country, are concerned, and
the balance of the contributions subject to the general funds of the company towards
the general expenses, and the meeting of the general expenditures, and towards the
accumulation for the general protection of ail the business of the company.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson :
Q. llow much of that would you say applied to the salaries of officers i11 New

York ini the Mutual lResere--the Curiadiaîî portion of the payment ?-A. I1f you
were goîng to make a complication of that kind, it would be the proportiou of thaï
contribution whielh the salaries of the officers bear to the goncral expenses of the
company the same ratio that the salaries of the officers bear to the general expenses
of the compauy.

Q. You hali tbat fund towards the paymeut of the officers of the IMutual IRe-
serve, have you ?-A. We regard that fund as belonging to, the company for its gen-
eral purposes.

Q. That is not an auswer to my question : iDid you or did you not use a portion
of that money to defray the expenses of the officers of the IMitual IReserve ? Please
answer yes or no ?-A. I do not thiuk it is a question that can be answered exactly
yes or no.

Q. Yes, you can tell me if you use a portion of it. I ar n ot asking what amaount;
I arn merely asking do you use a portion of that mouey to defray the expenses of the
salaries of the Mutual Reserve in New York. Yes or no will do me?-A. I do not
think it is a question wbich can ba aaswered plainly yes or no.

11ou. MNr. WILsoN.-Well, you need not answer it.

By the Choirman:
Q. The statement was given to Senator IMeMullen that the company had re-

turned to the policy-holders of Canada, $3,060,000 out of $5,032,000 collected. Now,,
that sum of tbree millions returned to the policy-holders, does it represent the full
amount of the policies held by the policy-holders ?-A. Where the dlaims were
proper dlaims, yes.

Q. A policy is either proper or it is not ?-A. Tbat la true, as an abstract propo-
sition, but as a mlatter of fact, in dealing with insurance business there are Inany
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payments made, and rnany dlaims adjusted under which there îs no actuai legal
dlaim. for the amount.

Q. Wouid you bie i a position to give the real arnount of policies lield by those
people who receive thern and the difference between the ainount they received-the
difference, between the face arnount of the policy and the arnount they received ?-A. I
arn having prepared, and expect every mail to receive, a staternent, policy by poiicy
of ail that have not been paid in fuil That will give the face of those policies, the
arnount that bas been paid, and show the deduction, and then with the other item-

lion. Mr. WILSON.-We would flot want the details. The total amount of the
face value of the policies and the total amount paid at the death of the policy-
holders.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Uottnsel for Committee:
Q. That is on file here and in evidence, is it not ?-A. That does flot relate to

the Canadian business. It relates to the whole business of the company. This is
what I was asked to bring, a list of all death daimis in Canada settl ed or comprornised
at less than the face value from January 1895 up to the present tirne. That is what
I amf having prepared and will produice. I arn expecting it every rnail,

The CnÂ&imMA.That is the ail-important point in the investigation. The face
value of the whole of the policies was $5,032,000, and in many cases the policy-holders
complain that when it cornes to a settiernent, the cornpany scale down a certain
amount. Tbat must ble explained.

By the Hon. Mr. Beique
Q. You stated on Friday that you paid for collections of assessments, what per-

centage -A. Generally two and a haif per cent. However, in Canada, it bas been
very generally five per cent, because of the scattered character of the business.

Q. What would be the average in Canada ?-A. I shou]d suppose that the aver-
age would probably bie less than two per cent, because, of course, there is none of
that which is paid on the Home Office.

Q. Can you give us the exact fig-ures 1-A. I can give them from the reports
since 1894.

Q. For the nineteen years, can you give us the total amounts paid which would
not be paid as commission, and wouid not be included in the expeuse account?-A.
The commissions paid in Canada are included in the $999,OOO.

Q. Then the $728,546, the difference between the amount received in Canada,
and paid out in Canada, would represent about 17ý per cent of the total amount of
expenditure for the nineteen ycars paid to officers and employees I-A. Tbere are
many other expenses besides that. There would be the renit of the home office, there
would be postage, printing, &c. We have to send out six notices a year'on ail this
business t0 every poiy-riulder.

By the Ilon. Mr. McMullen:
Q. You say there is the relit of the borne office: wbat do you refer to? The rent

of the offices in New York 1-A. Yes.
Q. You must charge some percentage of that?-A. We bave not charged any

percentage. We have taken the receipts fromn Canada in excess of the expenditures
and dcposits made here, as beionging to the general funds of tbe company, exactiy as
the receipts frorn any state belong to it, snd have not kept an account of the general
expenses, as charged specially to Canada, or specially to New York, or Massachusetts,
or any other state.

Q. Are you prepared to say to the committee, that that $38,344 a year. was paid
for officiais in the offices without counting any portion u t ail for rent 2-A. It was
used for ail the general expenses of the company, the samne as any other expense
funds towards the general expenses of the cornpany. Some of it wouid go for renit,
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however, thougli not specifically be appropriated for rent, and any excess of it over
its fair proportion of expense would remain in the general funds of the company
which belong as a security to the policy-holders.

Q. You have told us that the total assessments in the nineteen years in Canada
arnount to $5,034,OOO ?-A. That is assessments and interest.

Q. Did you collect any special amount fromn contributors to cover expenses, be-
sides the assessments? Was there a threc per cent or five per cent to cover collec-
tions 1-A. There are annual dues on, every policy. '£ien we levy an assessment
with which to cover mortuary expenses and mortuary dlaims.

Q. Does this sumn that you have given us cover the asscssmcnts and the annual
dues, both 1-A. Yes.

Q. It oovers everything 1-A. Everything.
Q. Everything you get from the policy-holders 1-A. Everything we get from,

the policy-holders and ninety-four thousand dollars odd interest.
Q. You have, I suppose, a large printing expenditure at your head office: what

proportion of it, if any, is charged to the Canadian end of your business, that is
represtinted by this expenditure of $38,344-is there any speeially 1-A. There is no
special charge made as against Canada, for any of those general expenses. It f ails.
in with the receipts of ail other countries and states.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. How do you arrive at the policy by which you taxed the Canadian policy-
bolders, in comparison with the United States policy-holders for your general ex-
penses? 1low do you raise the fund of say $38,0O0 out of Canada, to defray the ex-
penses in New York? What ratio do you make the collection on? 1What principle
guides you 1 Is it in proportion to the nuinber of policy-holders or the amount re-
ceived?-A. The dues are fixed by contract at so much per thousand. The mortuary
expenses are a percentage of the total assessments levied.

Q. That is bardly an answer that I could grasp very readily. I wanted to know
upon what principle you apportioned $38,000 as the ordinary expenses to bie charged
up against the policy-holders (if Canada, and what is charged up against the policy-
holders of New York and other states. I want to know upon what principle you
itirive at the amount of $38,O00 for Canada ?-A. This amount is not a sumn which
is spiecifica1ly charged for expenses on the Canadian business. There are the receipts
iroia iLe Canadian business, there are death losses and expenses paid in Canada, and
tLc h ,,lance is $634,0OO of assessment and $94,000 of interest, which simply averages
$38,O00 a year. It does not necessarily follow that ail that money lias been used for
expenses.

Q. By that answer you convey to me that you have no principle whereby you
apportion the di~fferent expenses between Canada and the United States in connec-
tion with your company 1-A. Not with the general business.

Q. It is simply a lump sumn arrived at in a haphazard sort of way : you are
taking out of Canada a certain amount, and a certain amount from the United States,
just to suit the convenience of your company ?-A. iNot in the slightest degrea.

By the lion. Mr. MoMullen :

Q.You said to us that the gross collection from ail the policy-holders in Canada
in nineteen years was $5,033,OOO and you say to us that the gross amount paid back
to these policy-holders is $3,060,029. That means, virtually, that you have collecte 'd
five millions and paid back three millions; that is virtually sixty cents on the dollar,
is it not ?-A. That is sixty cents on the dollar, virtually.

Q. It took the other forty cents on the dollar to handle the business between the
expenses in Canada, and the expenses in New Yorki-A. There is $244,000 to corne
out of that.
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Q. There is $228,000 in the hands of the Dominion Government ?-A. Yes.
Q. Giving you credit for $244,000, with the exception of that it has taken forty

cents out of every dollar that bas been paid in by policy-holders to cover the expenses
for nineteen years l-A.' It has taken 34J cents practically. The balance would ho
$1,728 in round numbers, and on five millions, that would be 34J cents.

Q. Sîxty-five cents, then, bas been returned to policy-holders, and it bas taken 35
cents on every dollar paid for the expenses of tbe company ?-A. Yes, and there is
not another company that lias Leen organized the same time and doing the same
'business, that bas done as well.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson

Q. That bas nothing to do witb it ?-A. 1 tbink it bas, for there is a standard
of expenses doing this business, and we cannot arrive at the question wbether this
company bas been extravagant or not, witbout a basis of comparison.

By the lIon. Mr. McMullen :

Q. You said on Friday, that there was $'228,000 ?-A. I said there was $228,000
with tbe Government-$344.000 includiug deposits in the bank.

By the Chairman :

Q. You could draw that money deposited in the bank at any time ?-A. We bave
to pay our deatb losses.

Q.Tbe $228,000 is exactly wbat is in tbe bands of tbe Governrnent ?-A. Yes.
Q. Wbat is in the bank, you could draw by choque to-morrow ?-A. Exactly, and

we could bring in money from tbe IUited States to-morrow to pay deatb losses, as
We bave done.

By the Hon. M1r. McMu lien:

Q. Ibat was on tbc flrst of January lait ?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you give us a detaiied statement of what portion is ini bank ?-A. No, I

cannot gîve youL that. It changes ex ery day.
Q. Can you tell us what bank ht N ini ?A. I cannot tell you now, but you can

flnd in the Insurance Departuient a staternent of every dollar in the bank, made under
cath.

Q. Tbat îs on the lst of .Tanuary ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you cannot say wbat portion of it is there now ?-A. There is a1 constant

change, constant depositing of receipts and paying expenditures. We receive the
money in Canada, (leposit iu the bank iii Canada, and beave it bore until it is used.

By Mr. Aylesworth., K.C.. Cowisel for the Company:

Q. Have you prepared a statement froni the offical returus of the number of
otber insurance companies doiug business ini Canala, making a coiuparisou of tbe
amounts received by tbcmn froni the polie-y boldors,. through a like period of years, the
amount expended, and the amount renlaiiing unexpended or to go for expenses -
A. I bave made a comparison of the thrce coinpanies that wore organized just about
the time the Mutual Reserve came into Canada, sbowing the premiums received, pay-
ments to policy-bolders, and tbeir returns of expenses, but bave excluded from
expenses, their dividends on capital stock, because our company lbas no capital stock.

Q. How many of sucli companics bave you tabulated in this respect ?-A. Tbree.
1 bave prepared and designated tbe tbree companies, one, two and tbree.

Q. Not giving the names t-A. Not giving tbe names. I can give tbe names,
but I do not tbink the names sbould go on record. Those are tbe tbree companies
that were organized in Canada, just about the time we commenced to do ý)uiness in
Cpenqda.
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By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. But it would flot cost as much to do assessment business as old line business
-A. I do not know that it sliould not. We do the saine general business--do it by
agents.

By the Chaîrman:

Q. Can you add to this statement this fact: Do these companies pay the full
face of their prerniuius ut, death 1-A. The full face of their policies?

Q. Yes 1-A. The saine as the IMutual Reserve does, exactly.
Q. Are you in a position to give that evidence? If not, the statement would be

absolutely useless. We want to know if these companies pay the full face of their
policies at death 1-A. The Mutual Reserve pay the full face of their policies at
death, evcry valid dlaim.

lion. IMr. DoMvILLE.-There are 5udgments against the company for non-jayment
of dlaims.

WITNEss.-There are judgments in the United States £rom which we bave ap-
pealed, and whieh are being contested in the higher courts of jurisdiction, but as for
any final judgment, there does flot exist such a judgrnent. If sucb a judgment existed,
the Insurance Department of New York would be obliged to cancel our license, and
put us in the hands of a receiver. I have flot the slightest objection to giving the
names of those companies. The only reason I did not give thern was, that I know
figures so compiled are sometîmes unfairly used in business. I arn quite prepared
to give the names to the Chairman.

By Mr. Ayle.sworth, Counsel for the Company:

Q Referring to this mpmorandium that youi have prepared, sheet No. 1, have you
in mind the company represented by that appellation 1-A. I have.

Q. Where did these figures corne from that appear in sheet No. il-A. They are
taken from the blue-books of the Insurance Department of Canada.

Q. For the years set down here ?-A. They were.
Q. From 1899 to 1903, inclusive ?-A. Yes.
Q. Are those figures correctly taken from the blue-books 1-A. They are.
Q. Are the saine answers true with regard to sheets No. 2 and No. 31-A. Yes,

except with a trifling variation of the years covered.
Q. Number 2 refers to the period from 1886 to 1900 1-A. Yes.
Q. And as the foot-note says, in 1901 it was consolidated with another companyt

-A. Yes.
Q. And No. 3, represents the years from 1887 to 1903, inclusive-A. Yes.
Q. Then, you have in mind the three companies that are represented here as Nos.

1, 2 and 3?-A. Yes; they are Canadian companies.
Q. And you are quite willing to state, to the Comrnittee, not to go upon the offi-

rial records so as to be published to the world, the naines of these three companies
respectively 1-A. Yes.

Q. And each one of those figures represents what, ini insurance phraseology, is
the legal reserve 1-A. Yes.

Q. As distinguished from the assessment-A. Yes.

(Filed as Exhibit No. 16.)
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EXHIBIT NO, 16.

No. 1.

LEGAL RESERVE.

1889..... ... .................... .. .. ................
1890.........................................
1891 ...............................................
1892. ........................................
1893................. ............... .......... .......
1894. ........ ...... .. .. .. ....... . ... ....... ....
1895. ................. ...........................
1896......... ...................... ......... ..........
1897......... ... .............. ...............
1898...........--- .................. ........ ...........
1899................. ....... ..............
1900 ...... ....................... .......................
1901......... ............ .. ... ...... ...... .
1902 ..................... ...............
1903.................... .. ---- -

Premiums
Received.

5,354
14,656
22,780
30,191
38,296
44,596
53,395
65,565
70,863
78,041

100,014
109,881
120,995
142,559
149,259

1,046,445

Payment of
Policyholders.

.............

1,000
5,298
2,000
3,534
4,936

14,463
12,695
14,209
15,656
19,367
33,323
35,814
26,475

188,770

Expenses.

$
5,431

10,169
11,536
14,582
15,462
17,278
18,790
23,064
22,062
24,765
34,687
36,850
40,029
44,346
44,442

363,493

Not including dividends to stockholders.

EXHIBIT NO. 16.

No. 2.

LEGAL RESERVE.

Premiums Payents Expenses.Received. Polleyholders. Epee8

s $
1886................... ..... .... . ..... 9,493 ..... ........ 14,413
1887.......... .................. ... ..... .... . . 36,044 1,000 20,628
1888.................... ... ...... .................. 52,221 18,000 29,410
1889................................................... 64,891 14,385 28,498
1890................................ ........ . 77,790 10,507 35,163
1891................ ...... . .. ................. .88,914 20,180 42,206
1892................ .. .............. ............. 108,221 37,892 42,615
1893.. -........................................... 116,494 26,609 48,236
1694....................... .............. ..... . 129,199 34,388 52.494
1895........... .......................... ....... 142,448 42,496 56,353
1896..... ......................................... .... 151,319 27,342 61,775
1897.. ...... .................................. 174,877 55,851 71,214
1898......... . ......................... . ...... 187,318 52,237 71,817
1899..... ..... .......................... . ....... 215,756 54,163 88,850
1900..... ... ... .......... .. .... ,....... ..... 261,325 68,793 100,045

1,816,310 463,842 763,718

* In 1901 consolidated with another company.
t Not including dividends to shareholders.
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EXHIBIT 16.

No. 3.

LEGÂL REBERVE.

18,Q7.. ý............... ................ .............
1888 ........... .................... ...........
1889........................ .... ... ........
1890) ... ...... ..... ... ............ ................
1891...... ....... .... ....................... ...
1892 ............................ ... ..... ........
1893 .............. ................. ...............
1894.......................... ...... ......... ...
1895 ... ................ ........ ... ............ ....
1896 .............. .. ..... ................ .......
1897 ........... .... ............... -................
1898...... .. ................. ........... ..........
1899 .............. .............................
1900 .... ..... ....... ... .................. .........
1901 . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
1902 . . . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . .
1903.. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Preiurtns
Received.

27,185
117,752
143,956

184,106
212,242
249,087
267,411
324,449
355,149
384,049
440,494
510,561
579,522
921,9%1

1,054,816
1,219,436

7,141,702

Payents Expenses.

7,000 20,438
9,650 87,251

60,465 89,158
46,214 70,603
37,869 77,477
M5,012 79,497
47,821 95,955
50,069 109,440
50,465 1301,778
77,808 136,825

160,087 139,906
116,730 1 153,723
132,178 144,931
127,665 201,321
234,892 272, 163
316,557 300,270
366,533 353,770

1,896,965 ; 2,463,526

Not ineluding dividends to stockho1dern.

By the Hon. Mr. Mcé'weeney:

Q.Are those Mutual or stock companies ?-A. Stock.
Q.Ail three stock companies ?-A. Ail three stock companies. Thero 18 not

ineludcd in the gentral expenses, any divid1endw to iatnek-holders.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Company:

Q. Are there any assessment companies doing business in Canada that you know
of ?-A. There are some operating on the fraternal plan, but the nearest that cornes
to it, is the Independent Order of Foresters, a iMutual Company on the assomsment
plan.

By the Hon. Mr. McBweeney.:

Q. Would tbey be on a par with the C.IM.B.A. and the Independent Order of
Foresters l-A. The Independent Order of Foresters does a general business, as i
understand. The Catholic Mutual Benefit As-sociation, and I believe aIl those frater-
nal organizations, do their business through lodges.

Mr. AVLESWORTH.-I wisli to state as briefly as possible, something of the views
in virtue of which I took the responsibility of giving to the witness, in my capacity
as adviser of the association in this matter, the advice to take the course which he did
take before the <Jonmittee. I premise by saying nothing was further from my
thouglit, and notbing I amn fully persuaded, was further from the intention of Mr.
Eldridge, than to exhibit in the least degree, disrespect or contumacy towards this
honourable body or the Senate that appoints it, but an inquiry of the amount wbich
each or any individual officer receives by way of salary, seems, to my mind, some-
thing that is not in any way necessary to the purposes for which this Committee was
according to the mandate of the Senate, investigating the affairs of this association.
1 have flot before me the exact terms of the resolution appointing this Committee,
but I understand the wording to be that the Comniittee was to investigate into the
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position of the Mutual Ileserve Fund Lif e Association of New York in Canada, and
assuming that to be the function of the Committee, to investigate the position of
that association in Canada, 1 respectfully submait to the Committee that the purpose
of the investigation is fully and completely answered by that which the witness bas,
under the advice we have given him, offered to do. We are perfectly willing, on be-
haif of the association, that a statement should be presented to the Committee, a
statement under oath, snd which is at once capable of verification by the regular offi-
cers of the department, if any verîfication of it other than the oath of the witness is
desired, and which. shou]d show the amount in aggregate paid to the six leading offi-
cers of the association, the six officers holding, s0 to speak, constitutional offices-
that is to say, officers required by the constitution of the association. We thought
that such information would answer fully ail the purposes for which the Committee
was appointed in investigating into the position of the association in Canada. There
could ba no reason for seeking to individualize the amounts paid to each particular
officer, excepting some reason foreign to the purpose, of this particular investigation.
Kow, there are very many reasonis. from the standpoint of an association or of an
incorporated company, which weigh very strongly against the makîag and publishing
of the exact amount or the particular arnount paid to an individual oficer, at the
head of the association, or any other officer. A number of those have been sumniariz-
ed by _Mr. Eidridge ini a brief statemcnt he made, and ail those notes, I understand,
are returned to the House for the information of mcînbers. If the wvhole proceedings
leading up to the qu -estion which Mr. Eldridge declined to answer, are not to ho ha-
fore the bIouse under the reference that bas heen made to the Committee I would
respectfully ask that thcy should be, and I suhmit that they ought to be; because it
would not convey any fair representation of the attitude of the witness in this regard,
that there sbould simply ho hefore the Ilouse the set questions which were formally
asked and in regard to which the formai decliaing to answer was made. But assum-
ing the whole proceedings are hefore the I{ouse, or will be there capable of heing re-
±erred to, I ask to hiaie noted as a part of whnt, I arn now saying, the reasons given
hy the witness ini the interest of the association, why the individual amounts ooght
not to be given, and I arn stating reasons which impel me to think that the statement
in aggregate, such as I have descrihed, would answer every purpose for invcstigating
the association. I merely want to add this: it is a matter certainly within my own
experience, a motter in regard to which I think the business experience of honourable
gentlemen about this board will hear me out, that such information is very frequently
withheld at annual meetings of stock companies, from inquiring shareholders, men
who are directly interested pecuniarily in the success of the institution or company
in which they have shares, and it is considered generally speaking, by banks, by
monied institutions, trust companies, insurance companies, and companies of that
nature, that it is not in the interests of the company, as a company, that information
of that sort sbould ho made public. I feel exactly in that position with regard to
this question. We are, as I have said, taking this position in t.he exercise of the hest
judgment we are capable of, considering the truc interest of the association in advising
against the making public of the individual amounts paid to office bearers of the as-
sociation. I ask honourable gentlemen to remember simply this, that wben I say
association, I speak literally of the hody of policy-bolders-the association is thE
general body of policy-holders. It is their interests that the Parliament of this count-
ry is desirous, as we conceive, to proteet, and viewing their interests from the stand-
point that we have, and în the light that we are able to bring to bear upon it, it seems
to us that it would be decidedly detrimental te the interests of the body of policy-
holders, that this information should bc given publicity to, while we are perfectly
content and submit that it ought to be aIl that is requisite for the purposes of this
inquiry, to give this information in the shape which I have pointed out. IMy object
in making this statement is to get the facts hefore the flouse on behaîf of the asso-
ciation. supposing it to be the only means of getting it before the House.
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lion. Mr. DIOMVLLE.-T think I understand Mr. Aylesworth to say-and if I did
flot; understand him correctly, I should like him to correct me--that banking and in-
surance companies do flot give at their meetings of shareholders, the amounts of
salaries paid to their offelials?

Mr,. AYLE'SWORTII, K.C.-I say that frequently sucer information is withheld.
Hon. Mr. DOMVILLE.-I uxideratood Mr. Eldridge to say that if e insurance, coin-

panies did not.

Mr. AYLESWORTHI, K.C.-I say frequently banking and insurance and other coin-panies of that character, withliold such information from even their own stock-
holders.

Hlon. Mr. DomviLBa.I understood Mr. Eldridge te Bay that life insurance coin-
paxiies neyer did it.

M1r. ELIa~Ixi.-I say it is frequently withheld-as a ruh'e it is withheld.
By, the lion. Mr. Dornville :

QHave you ever heard of the New York life doing sol-A. I may have
-heard it.

Q. Have you heard that ini 1892, the individual salaries of the oficers were mnadepublic ?-A. 1 am nfot disputing it at aIL. I say as a ride it is flot done.Q. Do you know that the New York Life, ini 1892 made public through the ex-aminer of the Insurance Department of New York the salaries of the officers of the
companyI-,A. Is that report herel

By the Hon. Mr. MeS'weeneu:
Q.I think you atated a few minutes ago, in answer to Mr. iMcMullen, that youhad nothing te do with the Bull before Parliament-Bii ' H '.--A. I did not intend

te imply that I lied nothing te do with it.
Q.You said that the compaxly had flot applied for it ?-A. Ithaid flot.Q.Here is the Insurance Review, a weekly journal published in. Ihiladelphia,

which contains the following :
'We see in a circuler addressed to the Canadian memibers of the Mutuel ReserveFund Life Association of New York in Canada that Mr. Eldridge says its adoption

would be a benefît to those members.'
Is that truc ?
A. I think it is. I think the prineiple involved in the Bill1 would be of benelitte the members, but it does net follow that I would say the Company would flot carryout its contracts in the way they stand. I say we are nat before Parliement applyingfor this legisiation, but we do think that the Bill1 introduced, the generel principles

therein embodied, would be for the benefit of the generel members.Q. You sent a circular te that efleet I--A. We did. It was for the purpose ofbringing the Bill before the members, with a view te having an expression of Opinion
£rom them.

Hon. Mir. BÉIQUE moved
' Thet in view of the statement mnade by the witness, Mr. Eldridge, and the legalofficer of the company that they are wiiling te give for each year the total amountpaid ont to the officiels Of the Company, this Committee is of the opinion that thatinformation would suit the requirement of the present investigation, and that a fur-ther report be made te the Senate tr) the above effect.'
Hon. Mr. WooD.-The only way that we can arrive at any satisfectory Conclu-sion as to whether the salaries that were paid were reasonable would be by a compari-son of these salaries with the salaries of a ainiler class of officials doing a similai<
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élus of business. That would necessarily lead ta an inquiry into the salaries paid by
prominent insurance campanies lu the eity of New York. For my own part I have
no idea what the amount of those salaries le.

Mr. iMoSwEsaizr-Pretty good, saine of tliem.

Hon. Mr. WooD-I have no doubt they are It appears to me we arrive, for the
purposes of this investigation, at a satisactory conclusion if we compare salaries ini
aggregate with the salaries of the same clas of officiais ini other insurance companies,
and giving the aggregate salaries paid ta a similar class of officiais, furnishes a method
of comparison by which we can arrive at a satisfactory conclusion as ta whether
salaries are on the whole exorbitant or not. I do not sec what f nither we can get by
ascertaîning the salries paid ta indîvidual officiais. My honourable friend, Mr. Me-
Mullen, stated that this company was lu a différent position frein other companies,
because it was insolvent, or, at ail ovents, was nlot satisfactorily, carrying out its con-
tracta with its policy-holders, but after ail that doca not affect the question. Wlth
the information that has been furnished, to-day, it does net seemn desirable that the
resolution which was passed 1a"t week ehould be pressed. At ail events the Senate
sliould be in possession of the knowledge that t.his resolution which has been proposed
f airly covers the ground.

Hon. Mr. DEBOUCHEVILE.-The report of the Cornmittee snbmitted to the Senate
last week lias to be considered by the Senate. Now, if the honourable gentleman will
strike out this part of his resolution I think it would be impro'ved :'The Oomùmite
is of opinion that Lhe information would satisfy the requirements of the present
investigation.' It is nlot for us ta tell the Senate that that is our opinion. We are
here ta investigate; we are flot here ta advise the Senate.

Hon. iMr. BÉiQu.-Suppose the witness this rnarning should give an answer ta
the Committee ?

Hlon. Mr. iDEBOUCHERVILLE.-We would have ta report it.

Hon. Mr. Bùxqua.i-I amn calling attention ta the f act that the motion is ridiculous.
The question is as to whether the information which lias been off ered is satis-
lactary ta the Committee. If it la net satisfactory, my motion should be voted down.
If it is satisfactary ta the Committee, the fact shonld be, reported ta the Senate, be-
cause it is an essential and important fact which shanld be befare the Senate. The
answer af the witness is not a mere refusai; it la a qualifled refusai. lie says I arn
riot willing ta answer thc question as put, but I arn willing ta answer it in another,
faim.

The OHnAI4.N-AIId that faim the Ooxnrittee would not accept.

Han. Mr. BÉiquE.--We are told that, but the fact la nat befare the Hanse, and it
should be stated ta the Hanse. The full statement of the witness should have been
brauglit befare the Hanse, so that the Hanse miglit deal with the matter withi ail the
faets before thein.

The CHAJmmAN.-SucIi was nat the opinion of the Comnxittee.

Han. Mr. DomVILLL-My honaurable friend perhaps hardly recognizes the fact
that that very same information, and in the very same shape, was offered ta the Oorn-
mittee st week and declined.

Hlon. Mr. BÉiQuE.-But I say it is not before the Hanse, and it should be befare
the Hanse.

TEE& CruauNe-The Comniittee was net cf that opinion.

HEon. Mr. BiiquE.-A inatter of sucli importance shonld net have been taken up
when there was a very small attendance of members of the Committee and especially
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when they have spent a couple of deys examining* the witness. ihere are present 110W
Senators Watson and Wood who say they were flot present when the last report vas
adopted.

THE CHÂxnMAN.-Senator Wood was here.
Hon. Mr. WOOD.-I came in juat at the close.
Hom. Mr. DomvniLLx-At the last meeting this form of offering the information

was declined. The Committee put certain questions in writing so that there iniglit
be no mistake on the part of the witness in understanding what was wanted from him.
We reported the fact to the Blouse and none of us know what the decision of the
Blouse is likely to be. Now, we moot to-day and say that we sce the error of Our way,
and admit that we ought flot to have done wbat we did do.

Hon. Mr. WÂTsoN.-That is riglit.
Hon. iMr. DOMYILE.-We are asked to stultify ourselves. We will have to, state

that last wcek this same information was offered and refused, and that we have since
then changed oui minds, and we must make an apology to the Blouse as a Committee.
1 would suggest as an amendinent to meet the condition of affairs, that this Com-
xnittee had a proposition before theni at a previous meeting by Mr. Eldridge, which was
not; satisfactory. Certain questions were put to bum which he declined to answer, and
it was reported to the Senate. This Committee now regrets baving asked him any
questions on the subject, and it is stated, in the Committee that the policy-holderg
should not know bow their moneys are expended, and requesting the Senate to excuse
the Comniittee.

Hon. IMr. WATSON.-The honourable gentlemen proposes a resolution here which
is nonsensical, which is moved as a matter of joke, and he asks that that be reported
to the Husc with the evidence.

Hon. Mr. DOMVILLE.-Jt is no joke.
Hon. iMr. WATSON. -Does the honourable gentleman iean this Committee tu

report tuaL the wltncss should neyer be asked a question ?The honourable gentleman
lias said repeatedly in the Blouse and bere, that one of the important questions was to
fnd how muai xnoney vas spent ini salaries. He asked to have this Committee ap-
pointed and now he moves that this witness should not be asked a question by any-
body.

THEn CHAmmANw.-For the benefit of inembers of the Oomnilttee who were absent
during the discussion of this question last Friday, allow me to read a portion of the
report which has escaped their attention. (Report to Senate read). So ail the mat-
ters suggested by the Hon. Mr. Béique and the Hon. Mr. Watson were. fully discussed
in this Comniittee before the honourable Senator xnoved bis motion.

Hon. Mr. WATSON.-But tbe Senate, wbo, are asked to, pronounce on this matter
this afternoon, are not in possession of the information.

THE CHAIRMN.-But this is before the Senate.

Hon. Mr. WATsoNý.The report oLf the Comxnittee is not printed yet.
THE CHAIRMANý.AI that Mr. Béique lias called attention to is given in full on

the minutes.

Hom. Mr.- WATSON.-The amendmnent of Mi. Béique, if subniitted to, tbe House
this afternoon, wiil furnisb ail the information.

Mr. AYLESWORTH, K.C.-Let me point out that in wbat you bave just read there
Is no reference wbatever to oui offer to give this information.
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THE CHMIRMN.-There is no0 reference to that, but the witness gives the reasons

why hie declines to answer.

Hon. Mr. DEBOUCHERVILLE.-I ask tlrnt the words which I cited be struck out of
the amendment.,

THE CHÂIRmN.-The suggestion of the honourable Senator would certainly re-

lieve the Committee of the charge of stultifying itself. Ail this discussion is going

on1 in the absence of the honourable Senator (Hon. Mr. ILandry) who is responsible

for the report being made.

Hon. Mr. BùiquE.-Perhaps rny honourable friend, Mr. DeBoucherville, will

accept this:

That a further report be made to Senate that the witness, Mr. Eldridge, bias

volunteered to give for each year the~ arnount in the aggregate paid to the officiais of

the cornpany.'

THE CHAIRMN.-This rnethod of proceeding wiil certainly lead to difficulties.

Hon. Mr. WATSON.-This is not reversing the former decision of the Cornrittee;
it is giving certain information which. was not included. in the former report. Mr.

Béique moves that we report that the witness is prepared to give the salaries en bloc.

Then it will be for the House to decide whether they are satisfied with the informa-

tion, or whether they wiil insist that the witness shall give the salaries in detail. The

bouse ought surely tu be in possession of ail the information on which they are

asked to pronounce. The bouse ought to have the two propositions before them, so

thiat they may decide whether to accept the aggregate salaries, which the witness
volunteers to give, or to demand the individual salaries. It wiil be for the Sýenate to,

decide what should be done, when ail the facts are before them.

THE CHmANAŽ.This matter cannot corne properiy before the Senate. The
Senate bas simply to discusz the question whether the witness shaHl answer the ques'

tions as put. Uf the Senate is not prepared to endors@ the action of the Comrnittee,

some honourable Senator can move an amendrnent that the witness be asked for the
information en bloc. That is the duty of the Senate, not of this Committee.

Hon. Mr. WÂTsoN.--But if the Senate has no information that the witness wil

give the aggregate amount of 'the salaries, a rnajority may vote to compel him to fur-

nish details. With the report that is before the Senate now, a Senator wili have ne0

option ; lie will have to say whether the witness shall answer the question or not ; but

il you <cnvey to the Senate the alternative propositions, every Senator will be in a

position to decide wliether lie shall accept one or the other. To decide on this mnatter

without the information that the witness is prepared to give the figures en bloc is not

fair to the Senate.

Hon. iMr. DEBOtJcHfavILLE.-I suppose you want the Senate to be perfectly

informIed ?

Hon. IMr. WÂTSON.-YeS.

Hon. Mr. DEBOU0HERvILLE.-They would not be perfectly informed, if it were in

the aggregate. We miglit add: 'But not individuaily.'

Ron. Mr. W.&TsoN.-I amn speaking now about the information this Committee

ouglit to give the Senate. I arn not anticipating what the Senate's decision shal b .e.

Hon. IMr. DEBOoHEIlavILLE.-I want this to be put in the report, so that the

Senate rnay see at once that the offer of the witness is, not to answer those questions

that were put to hirn, but to give an answer en bloc.
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Tnm CHArmmàN-We have simply to report leto he Senate that the witness
is prepared to give us half an answer, instead of the full answer which the Committee
wants.

lion. IMr. WILSON.-The Huse is seized of certain facts in connection with this.
'The Chairman reported to the bouse that the witness positively refused to answer
the question put to him, and I do nlot see aniy uecessity for duplicating the report.

lion. Mr. 'WÂTsoN.-The Chairman told us that the witness volunteered the other
day to givo the samc information ho oflors to give to-day, but that has nlot been re-
ported to the blouse.

THE CHAIMMÇ.4-It is on the minutes.

lion. Mr. BAiQu.-I inove that a further report be made to the Senate, that the
witness, Eldridge, bas volunteered to give for each year the amount in the aggregate,
but flot in detail, paid to the offlials of the company, as asked for by the Committee.

The motion was carried unanimously.

The committee adjourned until 8.15 p.m.

EVENING SESSION.

Cross-examination of Mr. George ID. Eldridge continued.

SBy, Mr. .4ylesworth, K.C., Co'unsel for the Comapan'y
Q. T1here is a mattee I should like to ask you a question or two about, in view of

something which hias been saîd since yesterday. low frequently has an exarnination
of the financial position of your association been made by the department of New
York state or by the department i Canada ?-A. The department of New York ex-
nmined the company in the f ail of 1884, and the spring of 1895, again in the spring
of 1898, again i the spring and summer of 1899, and again in 1902. That covers the
exajninations since I have been there. They also made an examination in 1885. 'That
was before I was there.

Q. 1 arn speaking specially of the examination to determine your position as to
solvency. 18 your answer given with that understanding of the question t-A. Yes.

Q. Has there at any time been any similar inquiiry Aor exarnination on the part of
the insurance dtepartment of this country ?-A. No examination by any one from this
department. I furnished this departinent with the certifled copies of examinations
made by the INew York Insurance Department, by request.

Q. And what, if anything, bas followed from the department of this country in
that regard ?-A. Nothing except a request for furnishing the certifled copies which
1l have donc.

Q. lias there been any further examination into your affairs at the hands of our
department ?-A. The department of this country has at different times addressed us
questions in reference to matters. Thcy asked us for instance for a certifled copy of
the valuation of our real estate as made by the New York Insurance IDepartment, and
they have addressed us questions with regard to assessments levied on our Canadian
members, also with regard to our liens, &c. Such questions have been addressed t0 us
at dîfferent times.

__Q. But there has been no organized examination by the department here ?-A.
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Q. Have you at any time prepared statistics with reference to litigation, dlaims

that were inade and litigated by your company ?-A. No.
Q. That is a Inatter of record I suppose with you, and statements couid be pre-

pared i-A. It is a matter of record and statements could be prepared, but no speciai
Btatements.

Q. Are you able to say, from your knowledge of the business of the association,
without exaxaining specially for the purpose how the percentage of dlaimis that have
been ini litigation in your association compare with the like dlaims of other companies
with a similar amount of business i-A. Without examining it cioseiy, I know that atý
one time statistics of that kind were published by the company, prepared, I think, by
iMr. Patterson, when lie was connected with the company, showing ini less ratio than
that of moat companies, but xny opinion is the ratio was a trifle larger, as wouid
naturaiiy be the case with a company engaged in places where the premiums were
small. Any business of that kind naturaliy seeks the smalier premiums, but nothing
materially larger.

Q. fias that feature of your company's business been at any time the subject of
inquiry by the departmnent of your state i-A. At each of the examinations whieh was
made, it was inquired into, and the papers connected with the litigated dlaims, and
claims settied at less than their face, were produced for the examiners to be examined
by them, and were examined by them.

Q. Each of those examinuations you have spoken of by the departmnent of New
York state ?-A. Yes.

Q. On such examinations wouid an officer of that department make any inquiry
except as to dlaimis arising in New York state itself ?-A. Oh, yes, his examination
extended to the entire business of the company wherever transacted.

Q. Including the Canadian business i-A. Incins¶ing the business ini Canada and
England.

Q. Iuciuding dlaims iitigated in Canada ?-A. Yes, the entire business of the coin-
pany-

Q. What was the iast of those examinations by the New York Department ?-A.
One in 1898, one in 1899, one in 1902,. 1 think the one that deait specificaiiy wîth
it was the one in 1898.

Q. I have here the printed copy of the report of 1898; do you recognize it ?-A.
Yes, it las been referred to here in this examiù'ation before. I think there is a copy
of it here. Yesterday I testified to the one of 1898.

Q. This report bears date the l6th May, 1898, by this saine gentleman whose naine
we have heard, iMr. Isaac Vanderpoel as chief examiner for the department, making
his return to the Hon. Louis F. Payne, Superintendent of Insurance. I find him say-
ing on page Il of this report:

'In verifying the annual statement to December 31 iast, the sixty-two death dlaims
compromised or scaied down during 1897 were investigated, and I beg to report thut
in my opinion the refusai on the part of the association to pay these dlaims in full was
amply warranted by reaosns of the fact that where the policy was not ciearly lapsed at
the time the death occurred there were misrepresentations in the applicationi in re-
spect to heaith sufficientiy misleading to affect the basis of the contract.'

Q. Are you in a position to say anything as to the accuracy or verifying or,the
reverse of the accuracy of that statement ?-A. That is the statement of the chîef
examiner, made after examining the papers and ail the papers connected with those
ciaims were piaced in his hands for examination and verification of the facts.

Q. fie says there were sixty-two dlaims during 1897 compromised or scaied down;
what does that expression 'scaied down' mean ?-A. iReduced.

Q. Why the word scaied ? What is the signification of that word ? Are they
reduced by any proportion ?-A. No, just simpiy reduced.

Q. I thougît perhaps it meant something simiiar to the provision in our Ontario
insurance law, that if a man's age was incorrectiy stated lie wouid be entitied to the
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amount the premiums he had paid actually would have purchased had his age been
correctly statcd ?-A. There is no sucli provision as that.

Q. So it means that the dlaims were compromised or reduced before payment
--ýA. Yes.

,Q. Are you in a position to say whether the statement that there were sixty-two
dlaims contested in 1897 is accurate ?-A. No, I arn not.

Q. But that would, you say, include the whole of the business of the company
ail over the world ?-A. His examinatîon covers every portion of our business, whether
ini Canadad, Europe or anywbere else.

Q. I find the last paragraph of Mr. ranes observations on that report printed
in the saine pamphlet dated May 81, 1898, iu these word8:

'The resuit of the examination shows that the association is soivent, and pays in
full every death dlaim that is a proper charge upon the mortuary funds contributed
by the members, and that in every case of seutlement or compromise, the character of
the dlaims bas been such as to make it a duty of the management to protect the mem-
bers against an unjust demand.'

By the Hon. Mr. 'Wilson:

QI want to know the means by wbich Mr. Vanderpoel wouid be able to state
that it was owing to misrepresentation as to the condition of the health of the in-
sured that these dlaims were scaled down or not paid in fl -. The evidence
accompsnying the papers in each case was laid before him. for bis investigation-the
entire papers an d everytbing connected with the case were put before him to deter-
mine tbe facts.

Q. But those papers were, and tbose who had been assessed bad been reported
to the company and reported by the physician of that company before MÎr. Vander-
poei examined the books, bad they not t-A. Oh, certainly, Lhey were mien that had
been examined by the examiners of the company.

Q. And then Mr. Vanderpoel ignored the examinations of the various medical
examiners in different parts of tbe United States, Canada and foreign countries,
according to your cvidcnccî -A. In the papers that were plaoed before Mr. Vander-
poei were' inciuded the applications, the medicai examination and ail testimony ini
regard to the cases that had been gathered and related to the case-examination as
well as other papers.

By the Ch.airman:

Q.But IMr. Vanderpoei bad no opportunity to examine personaily'into the merits
of the cases 1-A. The people were dead.

Q. Hie accepted the papers placed before him by the company t-A. H1e accepted
the testimony that was placed before him.

Q. By the oompany ?-A. On whicb the company bad acted.
Q. H1e simply endorsed the lindings of the coxnpany 1-A. H1e examined the

papers himself. All the papers were placed before him, and he examined tbem, and
reached bis own conclusion in regard to the matter.

1 Q. Is that doue to-day 1-A. Wben an examination is made-always, in every
case.

Q. So that practically his examination amounts to nothing ; it is an endorsatièn
of tbe papera laid before bim by the company ?-A. On the contrary, I think it
amounts to a great deai.

Q. In what respect ?-A. It is a pronouncement of the officiai autbority that is
cbarged with tbe supervision of the company as to the reguiarity of its conduct, the
reguiarity of its action in regard to contested cases.

Q. Mr. Vanderpoei does not decide on the merits of any case put before hlm ?-
A. On the contrary, he bas decided and certifled tbat tbey were correct.
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Q.According to the documents laid before him by the company ?-A. What else
could lie deeide upon ?

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:

Q.As a matter of fact, every insurance company does the saine thing ?-A. Yes.

Byj the Hon. Mr. Wilson :

Q.What meaus had lie at his disposai outside of the reports of the company and
'their books of ascertaiuing ?-A. Hie had the testimouy of the physicians and hie had
ail the papers, including the proofs submitted by the claimants themselves, and every-
~thing that a person could possibly have to pass upon, sucli a question.

Q. The certificates of physicians had been handed in upon which the policies had
been issued, had they not ?-A. Yes.

Q.And the company aeoepted tbemn ?-A. Yes.
Q.And then Mr. Vandrepoel reports that they ouglit not to have accepted them?

-A. Mr. Vanderpoel takes the testimony that was submitted to determine the
validity of the claim, examines it himGelf as an expert who lias bcd twpnty-6ivp yenars'
experience in doing that very work for the insurance companies of New York. Hie
bas been examiner for twenty-:flve years and passes on the question of validity.

Q. And you accept Mr. 'Vanderpoel's statement in preference to the statement of
your own ollicers throughout the country l-A.- Not by any manner of means.

-Q. The report on which an individusi was insured would be before hlm ?-A. H1e
would have ail the documents before hlm.

Q. Is hie the examiner of your company e-A. The doctor that examined hlm, do
you mean?

Q. Mr. Vanderpoel v-A. Ile is the authority charged by the law of New York
witli the supervision of our business and the determination of wliether we are con-
ducting it properly-Mr not.

Q. H1e is not the medical examiner ?-A. 11e is not the medical examiner, but in
ftbose examinations bie lias medical officers witli him, as well as actuarial officers as
to the certificates from cvcry branci rolating to tie business.

By th&e (Jhairman:

Q.As far. as I eau see, what the lionourable Senator wants la this: There is a
disputed dlaim. You may take ail the documents in your possession before the chief
examiner to find out whether you liad a riglit to scale that policy dowu or to refuse
payment I-A. Yes.

Q. llas the claimant ahl the proof before tlie chief examiner at tlie same time I-
A. Every bit of it. Hie is an arbiter bctwccu tlie company and tho claimant.

THE CHAiitmAN.-And we are bound to abide by lis decision.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood:

Q.This report was made in 1898 I-A. Yes.
Q.Of tlie state of tlie compauy lu 1897 ?-A. Yes.
Q.low does the chief examiner lu New York arrive at the amount that is re-

quired to enable you to meet the policies that are outstauding I A. That is doue by
the assistant actuary or the actuary of the departmnent, under the direction of the
examiner. 0f course, the examiner lias the general charge, but the pohicies of the
company are listed by the clerks of the Jusurance Department, listed one by one from
our books, entered as to amount, age of issue, date of issue, character of policy, and
then our cheques hy our books; aud tIen the Actuary's Departmeut takes tliose iists
as prepared, and makes the valuation at the Insurance Department at AlbaDy> iÇew
York.
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Q. The oid-iine business that you wouid have running wouid be determineci in
the sanie way as it is here, I suppose ?-A. In the samne way as it is here.

Q. You would have a certain amount of reserve, which, if I understand It right,
represents the reinsurance value of the policy at the time l-A. Yes.

Q. That is so far as that class of insurance is concerned?-A. Yes.
Q. ]low wouid you arrive at the'amount the company should have to represent

the amount of assessment insurance ?-A. Under the law of New York, the assess-
nment business, where the right for additional assessments is retained, and there is no
guarantee of any cash values, is to be vaiued as yearly renewabie insuranre; that
is, the reserve charged againet it is one-haif of the net premiutn at attained age at
the time of making a valuation. If the table of rates cails for a premium for a year
for $2.5 on $1,000, thec rcserve charged against that poiicy at any time is $12.50.

Q.You have to have a reserve equal to one-half year's premium ?-A. Yes.
Q.Was that principle flxed by statute, or was it a matter of contract l-A. lIt is

fixed by statute. 1 think it is section 52 of the insurance law of the State of N~ew
York.

Q. So that this chief examiner's report is based upon the condition of your busi-
ness, valued according to the statute ia-w of the State of New York ?-A. It is.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Wilson:
Q.There was one question I wanted to make a littie clearer: Who furnishes

Vanderpoel with the papers on which hie forma bis opinion as to the condition in
which the insured was at the time of the insurance l-A. Those are the papers lie
flled in the office of the company.

Q. Then, it is the members or the officers of the IMutuai Reserve who furnish the
papers on which lie forms bis opinion, is it l-A. It is juat exactly as ail the others.

Q. Are they the ones who furnish the papers? lIt is easy for you to say they
are or they arc not l-A. 11e takes possession of the-

Q. Are they or are they flot, if you please ? Nothing unreasonable about that
question l-A. INor is there anything unreasonable, it seems to me, in my being per-
mitted to answer a queption like that in the way that I would ans-wer it naturally.

Q. You know whether they are the ones furnishing the papers or flot l-A. IMr.
ý'anderpoe1 takes possession of the office of the company, and the papers are in lis
possession. If lie means, do the officers go and hand over the papers personally? 1
say no. If you mean, does lie go there and take possession of the papers there? 1
say yes.

Q. Then, you admit that the papers are the papers furnished by the office ?-A,
They are the records and files of the office of the company.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:

Q.You have a regular form. of application for your însurance?-A. Yes.
Q.And you have medical agents ahl over the country ?-A. We have.

Q. And they examine your applicants ?-A. Yes.
Q. ilave you another medical officer at headquarters e-A. We have a staff ol

inedical officers.
Q. Do they sometimes refuse applications that have been sent in by the officers

outside ?-A. They refuse about one in eight.
Q. So that the applications are ied aiong with the papers ?-A. Yes.
Q. And they remain until the date of the insurance ?-A. Yes. lIt is section 52

of the insurance iaws of New York to which I referred a few moments ago. I wiià
flot quite sure of the number of the section at the time.

By Mr. Aylesworth, C'ounsel for the Mutuai Reserve:

Q.I want to ask you, with xvhom, in the conduet of your association's busineS,
resta the decision in any individual case of whether the claim shail be paid without
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contestation, or whetlier its payrnent shall be resisted?-A. A dlaini presezited is
passed upon by the dlaims department. The papers are sent to the legal department
for attestation as te their sufficiency. They are then brought before a committee of
the board and executive committee as the dlaims comxnittee, and from that committea
reported to the executive committee, who passes finafly upon the approval for payment
or for contestation.

Q.The ultimnate decision rests then, in last resort, with the executive committe.
of the association ?-A. Yes.

Q. And that is a body consisting of how many men ?-A. Three men.
Q. Are you a member of it at the present ?-A. I amn.
Q. For how long have you been continuously a member of the executive ?-A. I

think I was elected first in 1898.
Q. And have been continuousiy ever since ?-. Yes.
Q. Will you tell me, in that time, lias any case arisen in which you have resisted

a elaim. in which you did not honestiy behieve you had good grounds for resisting ?-
A. No.

Q. Have you a legai adviser i-A. We bave.
Q. Do you consuit him upon the question of whether or no a dlaim that is made

shouid be resisted ?-A. We do.
Q. Invariably, or only after deciding. What is the rule ?-A. Oh, in the great

majority of course there is no occasion te consuit the counsel, but, in ail cases in which
any doubt arises at ail, or any question, the counsel is consulted prior to presentation
to the executive committee, and in almost ail of the cases where a contest arises, or
liability of contest, I personally consuit the counsel before passing on the question.

Q. Have you been guided by legal advice in your course as te paying or resisting
dlaims that have been made upon you about which there seaims a question ?-A., We
have neyer resisted a case because our legal adviser advised us to do so; we have paid
many cases where the legal advice was that we had good grounds for defence.

Q. I suppose you have not calculated, but perhaps you can tell me without calcul-
ation, something of the resuits of litigation. Have you been invariably successfui or
invariably unsuccessful or how ?-A. Oh, we have had the saine resuits that most
everybody lias in courts. Sometimea we succeed and sometimes we do not. I think,
as a rule--I know, as a rule, that we succeed in a larger proportion of cases than the
majority of companies. It happens that that was brouglit to my attention.

Q. Has there been any instance in which a judgment once recovered and beoome
final by the time for appealing iapsing, or by the appeal being disposed of, your Com-
pany have not paid ?-A. There is not.

Q. ilas there been any obligation on your company during your connection with it
that lias, not been paid at its maturity or upon its being established as the resuit of
litiga Lion when it is contestcd?,-A. There lias flot.

ByJ the Hon, Mr. 'Wilson»:
Q. You have settled ahl the judgments against you h-A. No, we have some judg-

ments outstanding against us which are pending in appeal and awaiting the decision
of the final courts, but any that have been decided by final courts or not on appeal, have
been settled.

Q. You make it a rule to appeal as many as you can eonvenientiy h-A. We make
it a rule to defend the riglits of the policy-holders, wbo are the proprietors of the asso-
ciation.

Q. You make it a rulé to appeal as rnany as you can h-A. No, sir.
Q. Irrespective of the riglits of the policy-holders h-A. No, sir,

By the Hon. Mr. Wood:
Q. With regard to the question of solvency, that report which you spoke of a hittie

while ago, was made in 1896, and, as I understand your statement now, you say that
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the company is stili solvent. Do you mean that it is stili solvent on the same basis as
1898 v-A. The report was then upon the basis of an assessment company. The latest
examination by the New York Insurance Department was upon the basis of a legal
reserve company, end was then certifled as soivent on that basis.

Q. When was that ?-A. April 17, 1902.
Q. Is that the statement that is in this printed document t-A. I think so. There

is a certified copy of it. It can be filed.
Q. lias a copy of it been filed ?-A. I do not know whether a copy of that bas been

filed. It appears on pages 40 and 41 of the statement submitted to the Senate.
Q. That report covers the entire business i thue UJnited Stateq nnd in Canada I-A.

UnitLed States, Canada and Europe..
Q. Does that certify to the solvency of the company on that date I-A. Yes.

By Mr. Aylesworth, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. The excess of assets over liabilities is put down at $466,885.48 1-A. Yes. Hie

charges in the liability the reirisurance of ail policies as the liability, and the $466,000
is a surplus over and above the amouint.

Q. Tbat shows the proportion of losses resisted to losses approved and paid ?-
A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood:

Q. This inakes no difference between the assessment insurance and legal reserve
-A. Under our statute, the assessment and legal reserve insurance are ail treated
as the business of one corapany.

Q. But the reinsurance value is hased upon one principle-that is the old regu-
lar business-and the assessment business is based on another principle ?-A. It is
based on exactly the same principle that renewal term insurance would be based on
in an old line colnpany. It is valued exactly as a similar policy would be valued if
written by an old line company.

Q. 1 understand you the value of assessment insurance is one of premium which
would be required to meet tbat year's losses ?A. Yes, and that would be the value
of a renewable term insuirance. Tbis amendmcnt bad to bu maide to the law to enable
the department to charge us with it.

Q. You are charged with one-haîf the premiurn ?-A. Yes.
Q. But the business that was done on the other basis, the net present value, was

first obtained on tbe basis of the reinsurance value of that business in any good
company ?-A. Yes, just the saine as any other company in New York.

By Mr. Aylesworth, Counsel for the Miitual Reserve:

Q. In tbat connection, I should like to ask you one question. In this report of
1901, Mr. Vanderpoel reports a total of death basses $1,125,949, and the portion of
that death loss rcsisted $85,771.81. How does that proportion of $8,000 out of
$1,125,949 eompare with your cxpcricnce since you have been c9nnected with the
company of the extent to which. there lias been resistance of death loss dlaims ?-A.
I neyer made n comparison.

Q. Could you say at al! whether that is a large or sinail or fair average ?-A. 1
should say it was about a fair average.

Q. IDid your company in tbe states pay tbe cost of those investigations ?-A.
Our company paid them.

Q. What did it cost you ?-A. I think the last investigation cost us $5,700.
My impression is it was about that.

Q. Tbe two investigations cost you $11.000 ?-A. The one prior to that cost a
littie more. I think the two cost about $13,000, that is my impression.

Q. 0f course, that was a tax on tbe funds of the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. I want to get down to practical business before five minutes. I do nlot sup-

pose you know the namaes of ail the policy-bolders, but wvould you be aware of the fact
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-tiat there was a gentleman named H1. J. Gibson, of Elmira, Canada, a policy-holder
in your company ?-A. I should flot.

Q. I have in my hand a letter addressed by H1. J. Gibson, policy-holder ?-A.
That is undoubtedly the case that 1 refer to. You asked nme if I remember the name,
and, with the reading of the letter, it is undoubtedly the case of Gibson against the
Mutual iReserve, decided by Mr. Justice Street, which I referred to the other day.
The policy was a policy flot on the life of Mr. Gibsen, but on the 11fe of Mr. Wm. M.
Walker, wliich he had bought and 'vas carrying, Mr. Walker having been in 1888,
when he was insured fifty :fve years of age, and there is the judgment of Mr. Justice
Street in the case.

Mr. AYLESWOaRTI.-If the letter is filed the judgment should be filed.

H-on. Mr. WÀTSON.-I move that. the letter of Mr. Gibson and the judgment of
:Mr. Justice i*et1 lie filed.

WITNESS.-Mr. JTustice Street decided that there was not any contract fer that
SUM.

THE CIIAIRMAN.-We are net here te try any particular case. bu~t te find eut how
the policy-holders are assessed and fer what purpese.

Hion. Mr. BPQuE.-We are geing to deal with matters of this kind. We have
-witnesses te examine, and I do not think we should receive letters wbich may be
written by suiters. It seems te me neither the letter uer the judgment "should be
here at aIl. The cempany is proved te be selvent, and we have evidence that aIl the
judgments that have been rendered against the cempany, and it is the right of the
company te appeal frem the judgments if they think 4hey have a goed case-have
heen paid, and it is fer the claimants te force their dlaims if they censider them geod.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:

Q.las the case net been settled in court ?-A.- Yes.

The CHAIRMN.-This letter cannot very well go in as evidence.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Ceuinsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. Mr. Stevenson testified about a gentleman with the eompany, Moton D. Mess,

or David Mess, and I have understeod from yen he was a general agent in charge of
the Ujnited States business. Would yen tell me when he came te the cempany and
when he left, as nearly as yen ean ?-A. I think he came te the eempany in the faîl
of 1895, and during 1896 was muanager of the metrepolitan dopartment, the latter part
of 1896, being assigned te some werk with the general agency department. Ini the
early part of 1898, a centraet was made wîth him. as manager of the ageney depart-
ment for the United States, and bis cennection with the eompany terminated in July,
1898.

Q. lie was with yen then durîng the years 1896 and 1897 and until July,
1898 ?-A. Yes.

Q. It was stated here by Mr. Stevenson that during the year 1897 Mr. Mess was
indebted, te put it in the mildest ferm, te yeur cempany some $15,000, and he was told
by the president te charge it up te him. Can yen tell me what the fact is in that
regard ?-A. During the early part of 1896, after he becanie manager for the ageney
department, bis acceunts as manager of the metropelitan department--some confusion
was found in bis accounts, which I think, in the judgment of the peopl@ that looked
into them, ýrather arose £rom the mistakes'ef. the clerk who had charge oif that part
of bis business than otherwise, by which. some of the premiums which in part, belonged
to him and in part belongeil te the association, had been carried te bis accounit, and
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the auditors and controller of the company were put to work straightening out the
matter, and such portion of the premiums as belonged to the company were charged to
MiJ iMoss's account, the premiums being credited to the policies to which they be-
longed. As far as I.was able to examine-I have been to the home office but once
since this testimony was given, to refresh my memory, the amount charged was some-
what between $4,000 and $5,000.

Q. Mr! Stevenson rather put it, if I understood his evidence i chief correctly,
as embezzlement on the part of Moss. In cross examination I thought le rather
receded from that position, at ail events objected to that word. It was treated at all
events as a debt, you tell me ?-A. It was treated as a debt. Tle had an open account
with the company, a Iedger account, and the charges were made against him as against
commissions that were coming due to him. under lis u.ontract, and in cvory case where
the matter came up he rendered every assistance to the, company in straightening it
out, and I neyer heard it referred to in any way in the homie office as being a defalca-
tion or embezzlement or anything of the kind, but rather a confusion growing out of
the inexperience or mistakes of a elerk.

Q. 11e was entitled to the overriding commission of 20 per cent ?A. No he was
not, on that business. But that was business of the metropolitan department, arising
in 1896, when he lad a written contract as manager.

Q. You had a wrîtten contract with hima ?-A. Yes.

By .Mr. Coster, Coun sel for the Commit tee:

Q. Would you produce these contracts ?-A. I cannot produce tbe contracts of
1896. 1 can. produce the contracts of 1897 under which he became general mana-
ger. The contract of 1896 1 think I have. The contract of 1898 is printed in the
volume here that we have.

Q. There were three contracts, were there not ?-A. There were two general man-
ager's contracts, and the one of 1896. 1 have flot the contract of 1896, but I arn
willing to telegrapli for it and get it.

Bj, Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Coun8el for tme Mutua! Reserve
Q. And 1898 is to be found as Exhibit 3 on page 54 of the printed book I have

already referred to, being the answer of the association to the insurance department
of the State of New York, July, 1899 i-A. Yes

Q.Under those contracts, you say that lie was entitled to a certain portion of
those premaiums whicli had been received by the company, had flot been credited at
that time to the various policy-holders, but lad been placed to tho credit of lis account
-A. Yes.

Q. On this irregularity being discovered, the policy-holders were credited with
this amount which had been paid i-A. Yes.

Q. And then you proceededt to apportion the amaount that had been received, giving
to Moss lis correct share of the amount ?-A. Yes.

Q. That made him, a debtor to the company in respect of those premiums, of
about $4,000 or $5,000 l-A. About *4,000 or $5,000.

Q. What condition had it corne to be in by the following January when this third.
contract was made witl him g-A. He stili owed a balance on that account.

Q. Was tliat balance ever turned into a balance in lis favour ?-A. There was a
mutual discharge of obligations under varions contracts when lie terminated his con-
nection with the company ini July, 1898, and the balances under the various contracta
appearcd as charges or credits to him, and the company revcrted to the annual com-
missions that were payable to him under the general contract.

Q. Are you able to say whetler, as the result of lis services and payments for sueli
services he was entitled to accordiug to lis contriiet, lie wiped ont this balance that
Mr. Stevenson referred to l-A. At the time of the termînation of the mutuel dis-
charge there remaîned a balance due by him, to the company, but there was aIso a,
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renewal commission due to him, under his contract, which was to accrue in the future,
of which the company, by this discharge, became absolved and, ultimately, the com-
missions which accrued under that contract, and would have been payable to him, but
for his discharge, fully dîscliarged ail his obligations and left a-balance to the credit
of the company of something between $40,000 and $50,000.

BV the Hon. Mr. Gibson:
Q.nl other words lie worked out this debt to the company i-A. By bis renewal

commissions.

By, the Hon. M(r. Béique:
Q. Do you say it left a credit ?-A. A balance in favolir of the Company between

forty and fifty thousand dollars.
Q. That he owed the company ?-A. That all of bis indebtednesg to the company,

at the time of this discharge of obligations, was wiped out by the commissions that
afterwards accrued, and the balance lef t ini favour of the Company, over and above
obliterating the obligation, of forty or fdty thousand dollarn.

Byr the Chairman :
Q. Was lie entitled to it ?-A. fie would have been entitled to it if the mutual

discliarge had not taken place, but the mutual discliarge taking place, it reverted to
the compauy.

By M1r. Aylesworth, K.C., Cottnsel for the MutLai Reserve:
Q. You said a balance in favour of the company--do you mean. he owed, the com-

pany fity tliousand dollars ?-A. No, I mean the indebtedness which stood against
him at the time the contracts were discliarged and a mutual exeliange made, was met
by commissions afterwards accruing under the contract, which would have gone to
him if'this discharge bad not taken place, so that the Compsany was reimbursed to that
amount, and there also accrued on the contraet commissions to the. amouxit of between
forty and flty thousand dollars, of which the. Company got the. benefit.

BV the Hon. Mfr. Béique:
Q.How did ho coine to give up his interest and riglit ?-A. Because hie would

rather wipe it out and end up the matter at that time than wait for the. accruing com-missions. 0f course the commissions aecrued several years afterwards that followed
the. nutual discliarge.

Q. The commission continued as long as that business remained alive ?-A. Con-
tinued for live years.

Q. And would be payable on each renewal i-A. Yes.
Q. H1e left the company's service in 1898, and lias he been witli the coxnpany since

at ail ï-A. H1e bas flot.

By the Chairmîan:
Q.Will h. have a rigbt to recover against the company now if lie wants to take

action I-A. No. Eacli party absolve aIl dlaim against each otlier on mutual considera-
tion.

By Mr. Coster, Coun8el for the Committee:
Q.Did you bring a copy of Stevenson's account I-A. If it will b. made up it will

come.

By Mfr. Aylesworth, K.C., Caunsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Tlien Stevenson testified that a vouchier liad been prepared i January, 1898-

I do not tliink lie stated by wliom, it was signed-but something that *as within his
ELDIUDGIE
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knowledge, a voucher crediting Moss with $93,810.78. Do you remember the transac-
tion ? Can you explain it to us ?-A. Under iMr. Moss's contract of 1897, he was en-
titled to an over-riding commission on the*inited States business of 20 per cent, andi
there was charged to him the moneys, and at the end of the year the over-riding com-
mission was calculated upon the basis of it, and a book-keeper's voucher was drawn
crediting lis account with an over-riding commission which he was entitled to under
his contracL of 1898, and that ainounted to some $93,000.

Q. Was it ever anything other than what you described as a book-keeper's vou-,
cher i-A. No. Up to that time there had s tood agaitist hlm on the books the amlounits
that had been paid to him as a charge, and with the closing of the books at the end of
the year the~ proper credit hed to be given, and that credit was gîven to him.

Q. Was there any payment of any such specific sumn as $93,000 made to hlm in
respect of that voucher ?-A. No. It was simply in effect a certification that the
amount of lis over-riding commission during the year amounted to $93,000, and that
lie was entitled to credit on the books for that sum. as agaÎnst moneys which. stood
charged to hini, and which had heen drawn diiring the year.

By the (Jhairman:

Q. What moneys would lie draw during the year that would be charged to him 1-
A. TJnder his contraet there was $3,500 placed to lis credit each week, advanced to liai,
by agents, and that stood against him until lie had produced vouchers showing ad-
vances to agents, when lie was credited with the amounts of the vouchers, and thoc
agents were charged from time to time, during the year, who drew moneys on account
of lis commissions that lie was earning, and that would be charged to him. It was on
account of the commissions that were accrued.

Q. The $3,500 a week taken out of the funds to pay agents--did the agents re-
imburse him. le lad the privilege of taking -ý3,500 a week for moneys to be paid to
the agents in advance of their commission. Did the agents reimburse him in these
amounts v-A. The advances wero chargcd to the agents, and the, agents reimbursed
the company through their cmisos

Q. Practically it was taking ont $3,500 this week to be returned the following
week Y-A. Not the following week-in the course of time.

BV the Hon. Mr. Gibson:

Q.hIis $3,500 was paid for commissions on account of the work done l-A. Yes.

By the Ohairman:

Q. Outside of lis 20 per cent I-A. les. It represented the 65 per centt4hat went
to agents. The agents got 20 per cent. H1e lad an over-riding commission of 20 per
cent, and the $3,500 a week was advanced to agents on account of commissions to be
earned, and the company received the benefit of that.

Q. These advances were to be reimbursed by these agents ont of the 65 per centY-
£Yes.

Q. If the company gave him $3,500 to advance to agents, and the agent two or
three weeks afterwards, reimbursed that amnounit, that amount is back into the Com-
pany ?-A. Yes.

By, the Hon. Mr. 'Woodl:

Q.Did that apply to Canadian companies ?-A. To business in the United
States.

Q. To convert; in business ?-A. To new business. It did not apply to any of the
transfer business where the old polidles were under five years of age.

Q. To the fifteen-year policy ?-A. Yes. EDIG
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By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserveï

QI want to take you briefly over the matter to discuss so mucli of llarper's
position wîth the company. When did Harper corne to the company, do you under-
stand ?-A. In September. 1881.

Q. When was that company organized ?-A. iFebruary, 1881.
Q. Had it done any business to amount to anything, before Harper joined them?

-A. Not to any large amount. In 1881 my impression is it issued about 1,500 or
1,600 policies altogether.

Q. Before Harper came ?-A. No, the whole year.-
Q. From the time lie came, in September, 1881, up to the date of bis death, was

he continuously at the head of affairs in the company ?-A. Hoe was.
Q. There was a contract entered into between him and the company before lie

joined it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Which you said was with the Harper's heirs, or snmehocly Raid ?-A, The

original contract was with Mr. Harper, made by the officers of the company.

Bpy Mr. C'cýster, Counsel for the Committee

Q. Is there any way of getting a copy of that document'? I believe there was
litigation over it and a suit brought ?A. It was adjudicated.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for tibe Mutual Reserve
Q. Under that arrangement, did hie get any percentage of the preiîums ?-A.

No, no percentage of the premiums.
Q. He got, you told us I think, so mucli on each thousand of insurance ?-A. So

mucli on each thousand of insurance.
SQ. A flxed sum on eacli thousand of insurance which was to be paid how often

-A. He got twenty cents on oach thousand of insurance in each year.
Q. To last how long ?-A. To last as long as the business continued in force.
Q. To last as long as that business might continue ?-A. Yes.
Q. Without reference to his life ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tliat was a ceontraci, made in 1881 ?-A. Yes.
Q. Before you had anything to do with the company ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson :
Q. As to the particular business secured at that particular time ? -A. It was the

business written during the time he was a president of the company.

By Mr. Aylesworth, X.C., Gounsel for the Mu tuaZ Reserve:

Q. F[or ail that fourteen or sixteen years of business, he was at the time of bis
death entitled to he paid 20 cents per thousand eaci year, as long as that business con-
tinued ?-A. Yes.

Q. Is there anybody now connected with the company wlio was connected with it
at the time that contract was made ?-A- I think Mr. Butts, the present paymaster of
the company was the secretary of the company at the time the contract was made.

Q. Is there anybody else i-A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Wben you carn to the company you found that contract ini existence, you

say ?-A. Yes.
Q. Tell me, from your knowledge of the company's affairs, how much was the

fnost, the largest figure that that contract ever produced to, Mr. Hlarper in any one
year ?-A. Well, at the time of bis death, the amount that would be payable under
the contract would be in the neighbourhood of $60,000.

Q. Per annum. ?-A. Per annum.
Q. That would be what the contract would call for, £rom your knowledge of the

company's business, what was the largest amount ever paid to, Harper in respect to
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that contract in any way ?-A. I cannot tell you tbe exact amount, but somewhere be-
tween forty and fifty thousand dollars, I understand.

Q.Would forty-five thousand dollars cover it ?-A. Yes.
Q.It neyer exceeded $45~,000 ?-A. Not as far as as I arn informed.

Q. What became of the remainder of it ?-A. lie, at the end of each ycar, released
any rernainder to, the company ini consideration of thoir fulfilling the contract in
future years.

Q. That lie did year by year while lie lived ?-A. Yes.
Q. What about lis salary at that; time, wlien he was getting this commission 1

A. There was provided by the contract, in addition to the twenty per cent, a salary
of $200 a month to be paid from the dues as- any surpluscs arose over and above the
expenses of the company; but at least within any time that I was acquainted with the
facts, he nover drew for salary and commission an amount equal to the amount that
would be produced by the commissions under the contract, but in earlier years I pre-
sume lie did, but it was comparatively small.

By the Hon Mr. 'Wilson :

Q. ilave you any idea how muci lie had received by commissions and $200 a
month ?-A. No, I neyer have made any calculation of it. lie died within a littie
over a year after I came to the compa-ny.

Q. Would bis commissions be equal to his salary, $200 a month ?-A. Yes, bis
commissions at the least were equal to about $60,000 a year, and my impression is he
was drawing between forty and forty-fivc thousand dollars a year at the time of bis
deatb.

Q. That would be salary and ail, and releasing the company as you say 1A
Yes.

Hon. Mr. BLIQUE.-lJid IMr. Stevenson say that lie had $25,000 a year besides ?

Mr. AYLESWORTII, X.C.-Ycs, that is what I want to correct.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood :

Q. Did lie never get that amount ?e-A. The last years, as far as those years came
under my observation, lie did not draw an amouut equal to the commissions on the
contract-what I mean by drawing, including any salaries paid him.

Q. Was this $25,000 salary named in the contract 1-A. No, the $25,000 salary
was simply a payment as they went along on accouflt of tlie commissions. Tbey
werc accruing under the contract, and tlicn the general supplement aftcrwards.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:

Q. It went on the books as salary ?-A. Yes, it went on the books as salary, but
it was part of the commission, and then a settlement at the cnd of the year.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. It was part of the commissions ?-A. Yes.
Q. You gave him $25,000 and then you guaranteed the extra ?-A. No, lic wIiB

on thec pay-roll for $25,000l that lie drew wetkly with other olliccrs, and then towards
the end of the year calculations wcre made on aceount, of the commission contracts,
and lie drew some additional amount that brouglit it up to, about $40,000 a year, and
discliarged the company of tlie balance.

By the Hou. Xi. Watson :

Q.le would be cliargcd with $25,000 and credited with tlie commissions ?-A.
Yes.

Lý ELDRIDGE
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By the Hon. Mr. Wood:

Q. What do you mean by having that $200 a month ?-A. The original contract

'called for 20 cents on a thousand of insurance.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :

Q. You'used the expression '20 per cent' ?-A. I meant 20 cents on the thou-
sand dollars, and two hundred a month salary to be paid out of the dues.

B3. the Chairman :

Q. Why was the salary not paid, and 20 cents on each thousand ?-A. 1 presume
in the early part of the history it was done, but towards the latter part, when the
commissions got large, lie simply drew altogether somewhere between $40,000 and
$45,000.

Q. Then, to your knowledge, whatever experience lie had of the company, while
you were there and he there, the original contract of $200 a month was set aside, and
hie drew lis commissions ?-A. 11e drew bis commissions.

Mr. AYLESWVORTH, K.C.-Not set aside, but he got his commission.

B3/ the Ohaidman :

Q. But in your time, lie was on the pay-roll, with a salary ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson :

Q. When the company was first started, was nlot this $200 a month a sort of
guarantee or pledge that lie would at least have that ?-A. I presume that was the
need of it being placed in the book, because wben lie went in there the entire assets
af the company xvas about $6,000, and the~ entire business force would not produce
more than $3,000 oa the commissions, if it would have produced that-in fact, the
company was just starting.

Q. But lie neyer drew any commissions afterwards, except the 20 cents a thou-
sand ?-A. No.

Q. And the twenty-five tbousand was paid on account of bis commissions, and
the balance due him was paid at the end of the year ?-A. Yes.

Q. But lie did not get $45,000 commissions and $25,000 besides ?A. No.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the JJutual Beserve:

Q. Wonld your knowledge of the affaixs of the company at that time enable you
to say wliat use lie made of this large amount, wliether or no lie made any dishurse-
ments out of it for the company's benefit ?-A. Oh, every one that knew Harper knew
that lie spent money with thre freedom. of water almost, and that if lie wanted to make
an expenditnme for the interest of the company, for two or tliree thousand, lie made
it out of bis pooket if lie liad it. 11e was a man that neyer counted money as belong-
ing to him, for bis own special purposes-his heart was bound up in the Mutual
Reserve. 11e gave bis life to it.

Q. 11e spent large sums in tlie interest of the company ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was a contract that you found yourself saddled.witli when you joined

the Company ?-A. Yes.
Q. And Harper left a few montlis after you went into the company ?-A. H1e

Ieft a little over a year. 11e was sick the last six months.
Q. Then before referring to the disposition lie made of that very disadvantageoits

contract, as it liad turned out, let me know ont of wliat fund those large payments
to him came ? Did they corne out of the mortuary fund et aIl ?-A. No, theq were
made out of thie annual dues of the company.
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Q. Did they toucli the mortuary fund ?-A. No.Q.Was the mortuary £und in any way affected by it ?-A. No.
Q. is will bas been put in evidence here. Before referring to the disposition

of property that be made in it, I want to direct your attention for one minute to the
statement that iMr. Coster asked you in regard to it, appearing on page 12 of the
memorandum whieh you have signed, that was laid before the members of the Senate.
In that paragraph you say, 'It is absolutely untrue, as cbarged, that the late presi-
ýdent willed any proxies beld by him. to the present president, or that any proxiea
given to the former president had ever been voted to the present president of the com-
pany.' Will you let me know what is the reference ini the words 'as charged' ?A.
They are specially stated on page 164 of the 'ilansard' of Parliament, April 25,
1904, whiere it says, 'Whcn iMr. Harper died, lie ltefL the proxies to Mr. flurnham,
~and ho uses those proxies, and nobody can get possession of that institution.'

Q. That is the charge you were combating t-A. Yes.
Q. That the proxies were used se that nobody could get possession of the institu-

tion i-A. Yes.
Q. Is it the fact, that any prexies which. were in Harper's name or possession at

the time of bis death were ever used after his death, under any disposition of thom,
attemptod to be made by bis will y-A. No, tbey wero neyer used.

Q. Yeu used tho expression in this paragraph I bave just read to yen: 'It is abso-
lutely untrue that tbe late president willed any prexies held by him to the present
president.' Have you anything te say as to the meaning you intended to convey by
the word 'will' ?-A. Simply that I was cevering that charge, and used it in the way
ef transfor by will. I regret the ambiguity, and must leave the expression with the
Committee.

Q. 'fbere was a dealing witb them by the will, or an attompt to deal with them,
and you say tbey wero net in fact transferred. Had yoii any intention in ma,king a
statoment to misleadý anybody ?-A. No. I simply intended to deny the fact, that
tbrough tbe proxies left by his will, Mr. Burnbam. was made president of the company,
and retained control. That waq the purpose I had ini my mind.

Q. On iMr. llarper's diesti, bis will disposed of hie boneficial interests ini thiis iuuîî-
tract, giving one-third of the proceeds of the contract to bis widow, one-third to other
members of bis family, and ono-third to the company, upon condition that Burnbam
became bis successor v-A. Yes.

Q.What about the one-third to bis widow a-A. It bas been paid as it accrued from
that time up to the present time.

Q. What doos it amount te new?-A. It amounts to about $300 a month now.
Q. She is stili gotting in the neigbbourhood of $3,500 or $3,600 a year out of it?--

A. Yos.
Q. Is it increasing, or romaining stationary, or wbat i-A. It is decreasing as the

business docroasos.
Q. And will ultimatoly expire with the business t-A. Yes.
Q. Thon the third that went to members of the family; wbat did yen do about i t

-A. There was ultimately a settiement witb them, and their interest was bought by
tho eompany, and cancolled.

Q. You bought thom all?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q. Iow much was paid to comnmute ?-A. My impression is, about $30,000. 1

think 1 can give you the figures to-morrow.
Q. Are yen able to say in the liglit of subsequent oxporience whether it was an

advantageous settlement te the association ?-A. It was an advantagoous settiement.
Q. Then the other one-third was bequeathed by hîm te the company yen say ?-A.

Yes.
Q. On this condition, which was cempliod with by MIr. Burnham being oleted his

successor v-A. Yes.
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Q. What was done with it, when the company became entitled to it under his willt
-A. It simply remained there.

Q. It was a debt owing by the firm to itself ?-A. Yes.
Q. And was it deait with at ail by the board?-A. The board established a contin-

gent fund.
Q. In respect of it ?-A. A fund to be drawn from the funds which were placed at

their disposai.
Q. Have you a copy of the resolution showing the action of the board with regard

to it l-A. This is a copy of it.
Q. The resolution of the board, iFebruary 19, 1896, Exhibit 18, reads as follows:

(Exhibit 18.)
February 19, 1896.

The regular adjourned meeting of the board of directors of the iMutual IReserve,
Fund Life Association was lield pursuant to notice and adjournmont on Wednesday,
February 19, 1896.

iPresent.-Directors: Frederick A. Burnham, president; Octaviuis iD. Baldwin,
James W. Bowden, Horace H. Brockway, George Burnham, jr., George iD. Eldridge,
George W. Harpeii, William H. Hume, James ID. Wells, George H. Wooster, John W.
Vrooman.

IPresident Burnham in the chair; Charles W. Camp, secretary.
iPresident Burnham retired from the room, and Vice-president Baldwin assumed

the chair.

On motion of iDirector William H. Hume, seconded hy Direetors Wooster anat
Bowden, the following preambles and resolution were unanimously adopted:

Whereas,--In and by the last will and testament, the late Edward B. Harper gave
and bequeathed to this association one-third of the income (payable from, the dues ac-
count as 'it shall accrue) belonging to hlm and his legal representatives or assigna
under the contract made with him by the association prior to his accepting the presi-
dency, through which contraet lis great services were secured to this institution; and

Whereas,-1a the administration of the affaira of an institution of the, magnitude
of the IMutual IReserve Fund Life Association, and in the care and advancement of its
interests, there necessarily are imposed upon the president many items of expenditure
which would be unjust to require hima to meet personally, the proper provisions for
which cail for the establishment of a fund from which the same may be met; and

Whereas-It is within the k-nowledge of members of the board that sucli items,
of expenditure wbich have fallen upon the preseut president of the agFociation silice
his election to his office, have exceeded the moneys actually drawn by him. as a salary,
thus inequitably depriving Mani of compensation for his devotion of time and service
to the institution, and

Whereas,-By the generous act of our late president there is placed at the disposal
of this board an item of annuai revenue 'which otherwise would have been paid out
as it accrues under the terns of said contract, which gif t was designed by the donor
to bo used in advancing the interests of the association, which hie ever held so dear
therefore

1 Be it rcsolved, That the moneys derived from said gift, both those already accrued
and those which shall hereafter accrue, be, and the sanie are hereby constituted, and
directed te be paid into, a separate and special £und or accounit, te ha held and used
as a contingent £und, and* that said fund be, and is herehy plaeed under the control
and at the disposai of the president of the associtaion, to ha paid over to hlm from.
time to time as he may require upon lus order and receipt therefor, for the purpose of
meeting those items of expenditure, both already made and those which in bis dis-
cretion it shall seem, advisable and proper te maike hereafter, which do not fall under
the ordinary routine or departments of the business of the as:sociation, but which are,
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nevertheless, desirable and necessary to be made in the advancement of the interests
-and good of the institution, its business and its membership.
(Seal.) I hereby certify that the above is a true and correct transcript of preambles

and resolution unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors of the
iMitual iReserve Fund Life Association, at the regular adjourned meet-
ing held on Wednesday, February 19, 1896.

CHARLES W. CAMP,
,Secretary.

By the lion. Mr'. McSweene~y
Q. What was the largest amount given to hima ?-A. I should say probably

*15,000 a year.
Q. Not as mucli as twenty ?-A. I do flot thinli it.
Q. That would be a tliird of sixty ?-A. There was always business that was not

paid for, and it was only as the business was actually paid for that the commissions
were given.

By M1r. CJoster, Counsel for the Commîttee
Q. 11e did not get the commissions on the delinquent business ?-A. iNo, only when

the dues were aetually paid.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:
Q. Dhd the eompany consider the payment to Mr. Burnham of sixty thousand

,dollars an excessive sum ?A. No, I do flot think sixty thousand dollars, on the scale
of salaries paid in New York, is an excessive salary to be paid a president.

Q. What is the salary of the president of the iNew York Lîfe ?-A. I do not
,know. There are rumours about it, but I understand it is about $100,000. Ris is
the Jeast of the three big ones.

By Mr. A3llesworth, K.C.. Counsel for the Mutual Re.serve
Q. Are you able to say whether Mr. Burnham, since ha became prcsidcnt, bas

ýdrAwn any portion of that contingent fund for bis own personal bjeuefi ?-A. I know
that ha lias expended whatever ha lias drawn from that contingent'fnnd for the purposes
of the association.

Q. That is something within your own knowledge, as a matter of acquaintance
'witli the business of the institution ?-A. Yes.

Q. That ha has e.xpended all that ha bas taken from. that £und ?-A. Yes.
Q. And not takeu out for bis own benefit ?-A. No.
Q. You remember the occasion of that resolution I have just read being con-

isidered by the board ?-A. Yes.
Q. The minutes record the presence of Mr. Wells among the others. Do you

rememhpi' what attitude ha took in the board on the subject at the time ?-A. I know
there was no adverse vote to the resolution.

Q. Was there any discussion of it ?-A. I have a general impression that there
was a discussion of the matter, but as for recalling the particulars of it, I could not,
at this distance.

Q. Under that resolution bas Mir. Burnhamn ever taken anything except bis,
salary, wbich is not, of course, touched by it, from the funds of the institution l
A. For bis own personal use, no.

Q. That resolution was passed in February, 1896, the bequest having coma te
the association in the previous J uly ?-A. A year from the previous July.

Q. 1895 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And this was in February, 1896 ?-A. Yes.
Q. I'Iow long did that fund continue, as provided hy that resolution ? What is

the next occurrence in regard te it ?-A. The next occurrence was the presentatioli
of a report by the president, on August 3, 1898, to the board.

ELDRIDGUI



214 ELECT COMMITTEE ON TifE PO>SITION 0P

4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904

Q. That is dated August 3, 1898, the regular board meeting, and reads as
follows-

(Exhilit No. 19.)
August 3, 1898.

T1he regular adjourned meeting of the board of directors of the IMutual iReservýi
Fund Life Association was held, pursuant to notice and adjournment, on Wednes-
day, August 3, 1898.

Present.-Directors :Frederîck A. Burnham, president ; Octavius D. Baldwin,
Hllhiry Bell, George Burnham, jr., George D. Eldridge, George W. ilarper, William
Il. f-ume, James D). Wells. President Frederick A. Burnham in the chair; Charles
W. Camp, secretary.

The president presented a report and statement of and concerning the contin-
gent fund, which was created and placed at lis disposai by resolution of the board
of directors, dated February 19, 1896, and the expenditures made thereunder, and
upon hie request, and on motion of Vice-president and Director Eldridge, secondled
by Vice-presîdent and Director Wells, the matter of said cojitingent fund and the
account of the expenditures therefrom, made by and under the direction of the pre-
sident pursuant to the authority of the resolution of this board dated February 19,
1896, was referred to the committee on finance and audit for examination and audit,
and with instructions to report thereupon. to this board.

,(Seal.) I hereby certify that the above is a true and correct transcript of the
minutes of the board of directors of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life
Association, at the regular adjourned meeting, held on Wedaesday,
August 3, 1898.

CHARlLES W. CAMP,
,Secreary.

How came that report to bie made by the president ?-A. It was voluntary by the
president.

Q. 11e had been then eighteen months in control of this fund, and hie voluntarily
presented this report of what hie had done with it ?-A. Yes.

Q.And it was referred to this board of audit ?-A. Yes.
Q.What was the board of auditl Was it a section of the directorate l-A. Comn-

xnittee of finance and audit.
Q. Were the individuals who composed it members of the board of directorate?

-A. They were.
Q. How many of them were there ?-A. There were three, but only two took part

in the audit.
Q. Two members of that board audited these accounts ?-A. Yes.
Q. And what was the result of their examination ? IDid they report ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Wilson:
Q. The members of the board did audit ail their own accounts ?-A. They did,

and audited ail the president's accounts in connection with the fund.

B!, Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Com.m.ibtee:

Q.Who were the others ?-A. 0. D. Baldwin and myseif.

By Mr. Aylsworth, Counsel for the Mutual Rosorvc :

Q. Was there anybody else on the board of directors connected with the associa-
tion to audit ?-A. We could have taken one of the clerks, I suppose.

Q. Exhibit 20 reada as follows
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(Exhibit INo. 20.)
August 10, 1898.

The regular adjourned meeting of the board of diirectors of the Mutul Reserve
Fund Life Association was held pursuant to notice and adjourument on Wednesday,
August 10, 1898.

Fresent.-Directors: Frederick A. Burnham, president ; Octavius D. Baldwin,
Hillary Bell, George Burrihamn, jr., George T). Eldridge, George W. Harper, William
H. Hume, Elmer A. Miler, W. T. B. Milliken, James D. Wells.

IPresident Frederick A. Burnham in the chair; Charles W. Camp, secretary.

1resident Burnham resigned the chair to Vice-president James D. Wells, and re-
tired from the board room.

Vice-president Wells in the chair.
Director 0. D. -Baldwin, of the Committee on Finance and Audit, read the fol-

lowing report and resolutions:
August 10, 1898.

To the Board of Directors:

Gentlemen,-At the meeting of this board, held August 3, 1898, the president pre-
sented a report and statement of and concerning the contingent £und, which was cre-
ated and placed at bis disposai by resolution of the board, dated February '19, 1896,
and of ail expenditures made therefrom, and at bis request the matter of said contin-
gent fund and account of the expenditures therefrom as reported by the president
was referred to the Committee on Finance and Audit for examination and audit, snd
with instructions to report thereupon to this board.

The Committee on Finance and Audit ha 've performed the duty devolved upon
them as above, and now beg to report as f ollows.

The president bas presented an account showing in detail the expenditure of the
sums of money drawn from said contingent fund. and sucb account bas been examined
and audited by this committee. The committee find that said account is ïu ail respects
correct, and that the amount withdrawn from said contingent fund 'bas been applied
aud e-xpeiided in the interests of Lhe association in the manner and for the purposes
provided by said resolution of February 19, 1896.

Your committee recommend that said expenditures from said contingent fund be
in ail respects approved, confirmed and adopted by this board. Inasmucli as the fund
available'to the association under the Iast will and testament of Edward B. Harper,

deceased, and frorn and ont of which said contingent fund was established, is dimin-
ishing tbrough lapse of time and in view of the necessity for the existence of a edutin-
gent fund to be availabie to the president for use for the purposes contemplated by
said resolution of February 19, 1896, your committee recommend that no further pay-
ments ,be made from the fund established by that resolution, but that in lieu thereof,
a fixed amount be regularly paid to the president, to be available for contingent pur-
poses, aud ta be paid, used and applied in his discretion, withontjaccountabîlity therc-
for,..

Your committee recommend the adoption of the following resolutions:

Resolved,--That ai] payments heretofore made to the president from the contin-
gent fund established by the resolution of this board, dated February 19, 1896, sud
the expenditure and disposition thereof be and are hereby in ahl respects approved,
confirmed aud adopted.

IResolved-That no further'payments be made from said contingent fund; sud in
lieu thereof the Executive Committee be and is hereby instructed to place upon the
pay-roli of the association the surn of two hundred dollars weekly, -to be drawn and
receipted for by the president, in addition to thie salary froni tinip to time fixed sud
established jand paid to him, which weekly sum of two hundred dollars shall consti-
tute a contingent fund to ho used aud expended by him without accounting therefor,
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and in bis sole discretion, and to that end that the same as well a's the amount hoers-
tofore drawn, be regarded as an addition to bis compensation.

(Sgd.) O. D. BAILDWIN,
(Sgd.) GEORGE D. ELDRIIDGE,

Committee on Finance and Audit.
On motion, dlily seeonded, the report was received and the resolutions uflani-

mously adopted.

(Seal.) 1 hereby certify that the above is a true and correct transcript of the minutes
of the board of directors'of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association
at the regular adjourned meeting held on Wcdnesday, August 10, 1898.

(Sgd.) 'Ch-ARLES W. CAMP,
Secretary.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson
Q. Could you tell me the names of the members who were upon this audit ?-A.

O. ID. Baldwin and myseif.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. Then the board, by that resolution, put an end to tbe use of this one-third of

20 cents a thousand as contingcnt funds ?A. Ycs.
Q. Establisbed instead $200 a week ?-A. Yes.
Q. 1mw long did that continue ?-A. Well, there bas neyer been any action since

in connection with tbe matter. It bas been regarded as a part of tbe present com-
pensation. and stands tbere as a part of bis salary, and in tbe answer I sball make to
tbe company, as salaries, it will be included as a part of the amount paid bim as
compensation as it is in tbe report to tbe Insurance lDepartment.

By the lion. Mr. Wilson :
Q. You say tbat is a part of bis salary. Could you give us tbe balance of bis,

salary ?-A. I believe that bas already been fougbt out.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney :
Q. ls that not in tbe $80,000 ?-A. Paid to offleers

Q.Yes ?-A. It is in that.

B11 Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Gounsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q.And it is a, payment intended to be for the purposes of the company instead

of the man's own individual benefit ?-A. Yes.
Q. lias be at any time since 1898 exbibited to other members of tbe board any

account or statement sbowing tbe disposition te made of tbis money ?-A. No, te
bas not, in a formai way.

Q. Tben tbis contingent fund tbat, tad been established by tbe resolution of
February, 1896, and wtich is dealt with by the resolution of August, 1898, continued
as sucb tili wben ?-A. It was discontinued in August, 1898.

Q. Tbat was the end of it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Since tbat time this $10,000, or $200 a week bas been substituted ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is there any information you can give us from your memory of six years ago,

as to tbe nature of tbe disbursements that tbis examination or audit sbowed bad been
made by President IBurnham of tbe moneys that bad gone to bim from this contin-
gent fund ?-A. Ob, tbere were expenses of tbe nature tbat are made for every cor-
poration to advance its interests. I remember distinct]y that out of it was paid the
expenses of bis trip to Europe wben be went there in 1896 to look after the bus~iness
of the company, be drew notbing from tbe company, but paid it from tbis contingent
£und.
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Q. You remember that being one of tliem. Was that a substantial. amount ?-
A. Yes. iMy impression is lie was in Europe about four montlis.

Q. Sfarting the business of the company on the continent ?A. No, the business
liad been establishcd long before that on the continent.

Q. A stafement lias been made-I cannot identify it now exactly-but a state-
ment that your company had been refused a licepse to do business in soe states of
the union. I arn referring to Maryland and Nebraska, which I have beard mentioned
as states in which you had becîs refused a license. Wliat is tlie fact as to that ?-A.
In reference to Maryland, a complaint wvas made to the Insurance Department and
a letter was written to the company Miich by some mysi-erio-us process got into 'print,
whicli the Insurance Commissioner said, these matters bcing through, lie should nlot
renew the license when if expired.

Q. Wliat was the date ?-A. iMy impression is that if was the latter part of 1901.
Q. That is in flic State of Maryland ?-A. Ycs, but thiere are fhe company's

licenses in IMaryland continuously from 1897 to 1903 without interruption, fihe simple
fact being that upon thie presentaf ion of the facfs of tlie case, the license was con-
t inued. As regards Nebraska, there was an attorney who had two s'uits against the
ýcompaniy wlio filed a protest againsf flic renewal cf our license for the current year,
unless we settled the suifs wifhout flghting fliem in court, and flic actual issuance of
-the license was held up until the deparfmenf licard ftle attorney, and flien the license
whicli lid already been preparcd, but whicli was held up by flic departmcnf, waa
issued.

Q. Tliat was flic license, February 1, 1904 ?--A. Yes.
Q. Tlien what are flic facf s ? Whaf states ara fliere in whicli you are nof doing

business, or in whieli you have been rcfuscd licenses ?-A. Tlie Staf e of IMinnesota
witlidrew our license some ye.ars ago. and fliere, wfq ai iatter of onîidujrablc ncws-
paper notoriety at flic tirne. The Stafe of California lias rcfuscd to aeeepf the cerfi-
ficates of tlie New York Insurance Department of the examinaf ion, claiming flie
right ta send a force of clerks frorn California te examine us, and w'e liad refused to
allow if f0 lie donc, and bave mandamus proceedings iînder way te require flie Com-
missioner of California to issue our license, as wc lielieve we have a riglit to demand.

Q. You have inandamus procecdings in court ?-A. Yes.
Q. You mean in Minnesot a ?-A. No, I do net mean fo fesfify by fliat fliat those

are the only states we are not doing business in, but fliose are flic states I bave
referred to as liaving refused. 'f]ere are a number of stafes we have flot applied for.
?Minnesota and Maryland are flic only stafes fliat have refused. But fliere are New
Hlampshire and Vermont fliat we did flot apply f o.

Ry Mr. Cosber, Counsel for the Uomrnittee
Q. Neyer did business fliere ?-A. We did business in New Hlampshire and Ver-

mont, but we went ouf of there six ycars age.
Q. Any oflier stafes ?-A. Not in Connecticut.
Q. When did you go ouf of that ?-A. We liad flot renewed our policy since we

were incorporated.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. Wliy did you refuse te allow the California clerks to examine your books ?

A. Because New York liad examined us at a cost of $5,000, and for tlie Californian
Deparf ment te send ifs force te New York te make an examinat ion that would amount
to nofhing and would cost, witli the great distance te corne, sorne $8,000 or $10,000,
and we did not believe we were justified in incurring sucli an expense upon the policy-
holders for anoflier exarninaf ion irnrediafely following flic examination of our depart-
ment.

Q. Dhd yen notify them tliat thley miglit examine into your records provided tliey
paid the expenses of flic examination tliemselves v-A. No, I do not think we did. They
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have a perfect right to corne to our office. Any state in which we do business-the
superintendent has a riglit to corne into our office with a force of clerks, and make un
examination of our records.

By the Chairman:

Q. Have they a right to charge up the expense against the eompany ?-A. Yes;
but we have a right to refuse to allow hirn to charge the expense, but if he cornes witb
the consent of the company, he has a right to charge it-up fo the cornpany.

.By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. You refused ?-A. Refuscd to allow him to corne and make the examination at

our expense.

By Mr'. Aylesworth, Counsel for the Mu tuai Reserve:
Q.You thouglit you would try a mandamus i-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr'. Wilson :
Q. Yuu bave businesâ flc?- A. Yos.
Q. llow is it fhey will not give you a certificaýte?-A. Our states domnot withhold

,the right f0 collect on the old business simply because we have no authority f0 do new
business. The license we get from the states simply authorizes us fo do new busines8,
but does not affect old business.

Be the Chairman:

Q. You are entifled to wind up your business ?-A. No, we carry it on, but we
cannot take any new business without a license.

By the Hon Mr. Gibson:
Q. Did you require a license under the mutual arrangement I-A. Yes.

Be Mr'. Aylesworth,éCounsel for the Mutual Beserve:
Q. Tihe only other point I want to ask any question about, is a lcttcr whicb, hon-

ourable gentlemen may remember, was read wifhout comment by iMr. Coster, from MVr.
Vrooman, who had lately, before writing the letter, beau freasurer of the company,
dafed June 25, 1898. That letter was read at length, and appears printed in the min-
utes at length, page 51 of the proceedings of the committea. You remember that
letter I-A. I do.

Q. If was recoived by Mr. Burnham, I suppose, about the time(. wben if was written.
If is addressed to the president I-A. My impression is it was reeived about that time.

Q. 'What was donewith if by him? Did he bring if to the notice of the board?1-
A. It was brought fo the notice of the directors.

Q. And what course did fliey take about if ?-A. They appointed a comniittee to
taj•e up fthc question, and go int o fthe euggestions, criticisrns and comment s made by
Mr. Vroornan.

Q. Do you know whatfthat committea did about if I-A. The committee beld sev-
eral meetings, and Vrooman atfended one, and subsequently declined to attend any
further, and fthe ramrittee wenf on wifh fthe investigation of the;mrafters covered by
the letter in question. I assume fthc letter put on thec record is the correct lettei, and
the report was submitted, which constifutcd Exhibif No. 10 of this book.

Q. And if appears on page 87 I-A. 87 f0 106, inclusive. -
Q. As that letter lias been printed, and this is the investigation of ifs charges and

the answer to if, I have fo ask that fthc report be printed also. If appears on page 87
and flie following pages of this pamphlet. This is the re'port of the committee f0 the
company on fhe charges in that leffer. This is a report of a commitfce, consisting of
Baldwin, Hume and flrockway?--A. Yes.
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Q. Tbey were a special committee appointed to specially investigate Vrooman'*s
allegations i-A. Yes.

Q. And Vrooman appeared in support of that at one meeting, and appeared noý
further ?-A. No.

Q. That covers from page 87 to 106, inclusive i-A. Yes.
By the Chairman:

Q. Do I understand that the charges made in Vrooman's letter were directed
against the management of the company and the administration of the company? A.
They were criticisms of some of the set- of the management and sonie of the invest-
ments.

Q. And it was three of the board of directors who investigated and made a report
of those criticisms i-A. Lt was.

Q. Exhibit 21 reads as foflows:

To the Board of Pirectors of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association
Gentlemen,-Your committee to whicb was referred the several letters of tbe late

treasurer, Hon. John W. Vrooman, eonsisting of a letter bearing date Mardi 2lst,
1898, addressed to iPresident F. A. Burnha,,m and Vice-president G. O. Eldridge, meni-
bers of the executive committee, of a letter of the saine date, addressed to F. A. Burn-
ham, Esq., President, begs leave to report that it bas had several meetings, and has
considered, with the care and thorougbness which the importance of the subjeet
demanded, the several communications above referred to. In pursuance of tbis duty,
it requested the presence, before the committee, of the late treasurer, Hon. John W.
Vrooman, which request seemed justified by the relations which iMr. Vrooman sustains
and lias sustained towards the Association, and also by the relation and attitude which
he assumcd in these communications, and stili furtlier by the closing statement of bis
letter of June 25tli, in wbich occurs the following :

' The suggestions were made without prejudice or passion, witb bonest plirpose,
and I arn ready and willing, at any time or place, to discuss these and other questions
for tbe well-being of tic association wîti the psidenît, board of directors or mombcrq.'

iMir Vrtunn atendd t metin atwhici bis presence was requested, but ad-
vanced the fact of an engagement for that afternoon as preventing his then. taking the
matters under consideration up witi the committee. At bis request, an adjourned
meeting of the cornmittee was flxed for Monday, July 18, at 2 p.m., at whidh he proui-
ised to be present. When, bowever, the date named. occurred, tiare was presented to
the committee a communication in writing from IMr. Vrooman, in whicli, wbile profess-
ing the kindest feelings towards the association and its ofllcers, lie virtually declined
to appear before tic committee and, in place of such appearance asked tbat bis former
communications be answered in writing and tiat tiere also be indicated in writing
i'any furtlier explanation of my suggestions' wic the commîttee chose to make.
As tbe purpose of this bearing was to investigate the facts alleged in former communica
tions, and as it was manifestly impossible that answer should be made thereto pending
such investigation, it could but seem to yeux committee tiat tbe conmmunication re-
ferred to was practically a refusai to meet its members or to aid in the investigation
wîti wbich the committee is cbarged.

Under tbese circumstances, we bave gone as fully into tbe matter as it bas been
possible to, do, eleeting rather to consider thie communications in their relation to any
possible advantage that tlieir suggestions miglit lie to tlie management than in the
manner in wbici they would have been justified in considering tbem under the circum-
stances, viz., as without force and witiout support in the absence of proof and the
declination of tlieir autlior to enter into the discussion and consideration which lie Lý
ostentatiously seemed in bis communication to IPresident Burnliam to court.

We bave taken Up the matter of thie contract made witb General Manager Moss
in January, 1897, under whicli the business of tbat year was transacted. We fred that
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this contract was executed by the executive committee chosen by the board of directors
and charged under the constitution or by-laws with 'the power to make contracts with
general agents and others for the furtherance of the business of the association,' and
upon which committee it rests, under the regulations of the board, to 'exercise a
general supervision over the business of the association.' The conditions of this
contract are plain and the provisions made herein for compensation for the services of
general manager are clearly laid down, and under these provisions the general manager
discharged his duties during the entire year of 1897. Under these circumstances, it
certainly was not within the power of the association, having accepted the services
of the general manager rendered under the contract, to question his claim for com-
pensation simply because it seems to exceed an amount which might have been antici-
pated in advance as accruing under the contract. At the close of the year, the general
manager was credited with the compensation provided for in the contract, calculated
in strict accordance with the terms thereof. To the voucher directing this credit is
attached the name of Mr. Vroomnan, and it certainly would have been presumptious
in any member of this committee or of the board of directors to assume that such
signature was given otherwise than on the full understanding of the situation and in
the intelligent discharge of his duties as an officer charged with the full measure of
responsibility for the acts so performed by him.

Mr. Vrooman alleges that his signature was given to this voucher 'upon the
information and with the understanding that the then existing contract by and
between Mr. Moss and the Mutual Reserve had been and would be carried out in accord-
ance with its terms and conditions.' There is not one particle of evidence advanced
that the then existing contract bas not been so carried out, but on the contrary, your
committee finds that this credit was approved and made in direct accordance with
the terms of the contract and in the proper discharge thereof. This compensation
having accrued to the general manager, it might certainly be within the range of
proper inquiry by the executive officers of the association charged with the conduct
of its affairs, to inquire wbether the continuation of the contract was tc the advan-
tage of the association or not, but it certainly is not within the province of any
officer to demand or expect an accounting of the uses to which the compensation
accruing to the general manager may have been applied, any more than to demand
an accounting of the manner in which any officer of the association applies his salary
or the compensation accruing to him.

Upon the question of the advantage or disadvantage of the future continuance
of the contract of 1897, all necessity of inquiry, if it existed, was removed by the
fact that such contract had been cancelled at the request of the general manager him-
self, who stated that, because of the items of expense ordinarily borne by the associa-
tion, which he was comipelled to assume and meet under the terms of said contract, he
ihad found it unprofitable to himself, and not such as he was willing to continue under.
In order to retain his services under these conditions, the existing contract was made
-with the general manager, and the contract of 1897 cancelled. The existing contract
bears the signatures of the executive committee, of which Mr. Vrooman was at the
time chairman, and it seems to your committee that it was an exceptionally advan-
tageous contract for the association, and one that secures the supervision and man-
agement of its business in the agency field at as low a cost as is practiced with effi-
ciency. The contract bears evidence of the care with which it is framed in the interest
of the association, and espcially in the matter of the retention of one-half of the com-
mission accruing to the general manager, to the end of protecting the association
against losses through advance to agents.

In the matter of the suggestion made, that this contract be cancelled, and that
there be substituted for the compensation provided in the contract a salary to be paid
to the general manager in compensation for his services, the question of the desir-
ability or want of desirability of such change is one of opinion, which opinion must
be lamrLely based upon experienue in the management of business of this character.
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It is evident that at the time of the execution of the contract, Mr. Vrooman did not
entertain the opinion that the payment of a salary was preferable to the commission
method, and, whatever change of opinion he may have undergone subsequently must,
as to its wisdom, be judged not alone by the opinion of his associates and those versed
in the management of agency business, but as well, by his own opinion in January,
as evidenced by his approval of the contract then made.

It is a generally known fact that the usual method of compensation for new busi-
ness written in life insurance companies is by a commission, making the compensation
dependent upon the success in securing business, and this method is approved and
supportedby the general practices of all companies. As to the question raised by
Mr. Vrooman that, to a considerable extent, the business now being secured comes
from agents not of the present general manager's appointment, it is a fact that it is
not simply by the original appointment of agents, but by their constant supervision
and incitement to work that continuous results are obtained. When the general man-
ager was appointed he was placed in charge of the entire agency force in the United
States, and the appointment of the new agents was only a part of the duty assigned to
him. An equally important portion of his duty, and one demanding the exercise of
his talent and experience and the consumption of his time, was the supervision of the
work of former agents, the supplying of them with material to further their work, the
correspondence with them and the general supervision of and attention to business
done by them. In addition to this, however, the changing of the method of doing
business from that of the admission fee to that of a regular premium, on which the
association receives its regular percentage even from the first payment, was a special
duty assigned to.the general manager and one of great importance and of vital interest
to the future of the association. From its organization the method of a membership
fee, which accrued entirely to the agent, has been in vogue. Later, there had been
introduced the expense fee, which by process of development had also become a por-
tion of the compensation of the general agent. Under this method, it resulted that a
very large amount of business, involving a very considerable expense in the way of
death losses, was carried on the books without any compensation being received by the
association and without any possibility of knowledge under an average period of from
five to six months as to whether the business was genuine or would ever yield the
association anything in revenue. This business had proved exceedingly costly, not
only because of the maintenance of an agency force, much of whose efforts were unpro-
ductive in a revenue-creating way, but also because it opened the door to the placing
on the books of impaired risks for speculative purposes, among which the death rate
was heavy, but the association received actually no payments whatever thereon.
Experience had demonstrated the necessity of a change in this method, and one of the
special and most pressing duties that fell upon the general manager under his con-
tract of 1897 was the éducation of the then force of agents to the change and main-
tenance of the volume of business while such a radical change was bcing made in the
method of dealing with the agent and the public. That this duty was by no means
a light one is evidenced by the assurances that came from the agency department when
the suggestion of change was made by the president that it would not be possible
to attain the end desired without a practical destruction of the business-producing
ability of the agency force. The service rendered was a most important one, and the
maintenance of the volume of business under the changed and changing conditions,
as evidenced by the record of 1897, shows that it was well rendered, and that it was
a service which well earned a special and not inconsiderable compensation.

ln the matter of the vouchers referred to in the letter of June 25, addressed to F.
A. Burnham, Esq., president, covering commissions accruing upon first year pay-
ments on business written in 1897, which payments did not fall due and were not made
until 1898, an examination of the two contracts shows clearly that such.commission
clearly belongs to the general manager under his existing contracts, and the facts
alearly point to suchcommissions as an entirely legitimate portion of his compensa-
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tion for the present year. Had his contract remained in force as it existed on Decem-
ber 31, 1897, the general manager would have been entitled to a commission of twenty
per cent upon these payments as they were made. In the cancellation of the contract
of 1897, large credits, therefore, accrued to the association from the commissions so
surrendered, supplementing the other credits se accruing, as noted in Mr. Underhill'a
note to which.Mr. Vrooman made reference. These other credits are those belonging to
the agents on deferred premiums on business written in 1897, which commissions, as
received, accrued to the association as against advances made tq those agents. The
credits represented by these vouchers represent, therefore, five per cent upon premiums
on account of the first year of insurance paid during 1898, and as such, are commis-
sions to which the general manager is clearly entitled under the plain wording of the
terms of the contract executed by the executive committee while Mr. Vrooman was
still the chairman, which contract was subsequently confirmed by the unanimous vote
of this board of directors.

The suggestion of the cancellation of the contract with the general manager is
one that fails to take account of the fact that to every contract there are two parties,
and that fair dealing demands that, when one party thereto is performing the duties
incumbent upon him under the contract, there should not be arbitrary forfeiture en-
forced by the other party to the contract. The time to have considered the desirability
of this contract to the association was prior to its execution, and there is every evi-
dence before your committee that such consideration was given to it; that it was
executed as in the interest of the association, and that the judgment expressed in its
execution and in its subsequent ratification by the board of directors was sound, and
such as considered the advantage and best interests of the association and its member-
ship.

The form of statement in reference to the payments of moneys provided for under
the contract with the general manager for the purpose for advances te agents, is cal-
culated te convey a wrong impression. To the ordinary reader it would seem to im-
ply that an exception had been made in the drawing of this money to the rule, which
requires the signature of three officers te the warrant and of three officers to the check.
The fact is that evory advance placed to the credit of the general manager as provided
in the contract, was by a warrant signed by three officers, and a check so signed, in
accordance with the invariable rule of the association. For a time the money placed
to the credit for advances was disbursed by the general manager, but in every instance,
before an additional credit was made, the vouchers for the former disbursements were
verified and the account checked up. In January last, however, at a meeting of the
executive committee, it was unanimously decided that it was best to make the ad-
vances by checks direct from the association to the agents receiving the same, the then
chairman of the executive committee, Hon. John W. Vrooman, was charged with the
carrying out of this order. Later, he reported that in his opinion it was not feasible
te make the change, and the former method which, if any, is criticised by him, was
continued until subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Vrooman as chairman, when, by
special order of the president, the former order of the executive c.ommittee, with the
execution of which Mr. Vrooman has been charged, was carried into effect.

In the matter of the suggestion concerning the rental charged to the association
for the occupancy of a portion of its building, no allegation is made that an undue
amount of room is occupied for the proper carrying on of the business, and certainly
no one conversant with the question of rentals will assume that the rent charged is
disproportionate to the amount of space occupied. It is to be noted in this connection
that such charge is offset by a receipt, making it a matter of the proper keeping of ac-
counts and the proper exhibit of income, the investments and expenses of conducting
the business. The course adopted by this association, viz., that of charging in its ex-
pense account rental for the portion of its building which it occupies, is that followed,
with one exception, by every life insurance company in the city of New York which
occupies its own building, and of the rentals so charged, that charged by the Mutual
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Reserve is less in proportion to the amount of its business outstanding than in the
case of any life insurance company in this city, with a single exception.

It would have been a inatter of satisfaction to your committee had iMr. Vrooman
consented to, meet with the committce, and to put into other than the general forma in
which it appears in his communications, the suggestion in regard to the reduction of
expenses. The question of reduction of expenses as relating to economy, must depend
in a great measure upon the question whether the expense attending the transaction of
business by this association is in excess of that shown by its competitors. A knowl-
edge of the conditions surrounding the business of life insurance and the transac-
tion of the same, especially with refererce to the securing of new business, is an abso-
lute prerequisite of a recommendation in this direction. IHad the late treasurer inves-
tigaed the question as Vo the cost of doing business, as shbwn by Lhe corapetitors of
the iMutual IReserve, for which investigation the officiai reports of the, New York
Insurance IJepartinent afford abundant material, lie would have found that, even in
1897, with the contract with the general manager in force, the wisdom of whicli lie
now questions, the entire expense per each $1,000 of business outstanding scarcely
exceeded in this association the amount expended for agency expenses alone by the
average old line company. Rie would have found, also, that confining the comparison
of these companies whicli are universally admitted to be more economical in the trans-
action of their business, the cost per $1,000 of business outstanding stands for 1897 in
the relation of $5.75 in the Mutual Reserve and $7.80 in the competing old line com-
pany. This, the most f avourable exhibit that can be made ns relates to competitors,
would if the comparison were made with the entire list of companies, show as against
the $5.75 of the Mutual Reserve, a close approximation to, $10.00 per thousand dollars,
excluding from the calculation the industrial companies with their extraordinary ex-
penses. 1V is to be noted in fairness Vo this comparison thaL Lhe by.4temi upon which
the great bulk of the Mutual iReserve's business of 1896 was conduceted, namely, that
of tlie bi-monthly premiums and collections, entails a more than average expense in
the matter of clerical hire, printing and office expenses, as well as a greater demand
for proportionately greater accommodations for tlie clerical force, and it is £air in this
conncction, in considcring thc importance of the changes involved the less frequent
payment of premiums and a consequent proportionate reduction in the in,3idental ex-
penses of collection.

Your comimittee feel compelled, noV alone Vo condemn the tone of the comnmurnca-
tien referred to it, as addressed from an officer of tlie association to its president, but.
also to discountenance and condemn the idea which seems Vo permeate this comnmuni-
cation, that an officer of the association may, after he lias in the disu.harge of has duty
attached lis name to a warrant or contract, absolve himself from responsibility there-
for, by simply notifying tlie executive tliat lie desires to withdraw lis name and Vo, be
held no longer responsible for lis act. It is assumed that any one capable of holding the
position of an officer of tlie Mutual Reserve is possessed of business judginent and experi-
ence sufficient Vo impress upon him. tlie responsibility and obligations that are implied in
the discliarge of lis duty. Every such officer not only lias the riglit, but it is lis duty
to investigate and satisfy himself in regard Vo officiai acts whicli lie is called upon Vo
perform, and the fact of lis signature either to a vouclier, contract or other document
implies and must be held Vo imply that lie lias investigated the matter and convinced
himself of the proper character of the act, not because anotlier officer lias joined with
him, but because of independent investigation. The regulations requiring the signa-
tures of three officers do not imply that one signature will be given because of the
existence of other signatures, or that one signature will be withlield because of Vhe non-
existence of another given signature, but that tlie act of ecdl officer is the act of bis
independent judgment, to the benefit of which the association is entitled. flaving
once given sucli endorsenient Vo Vhe act, the responsibility attaches te the officer for
the act, and there cari be no relief froma that responsibility, and especially no relief
on the plea of Vhe act ha'ving been done in dependence upon thc judgmcnt of another,
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or from want of knowledge of facts, of which the officer could and should have informed
himself prior to the giving of his signature.

The committee also feels that it is within its province to discountenance what
seems to be apparent in these two communications, and that it is a disposition, after
matters of administrative policy have been determined upon by officers or boards in
which authority is vested, to set up an independent judgment opposed thereto, to in-
dulge in irresponsible criticism, and thus to cause want of harmony of action and co-
operation of effort. Pending the decision of any administrative course, it is every
officer's right to give to the board or officer having the decision of the matter his best
judgment, whether the said judgment be favourable or opposed thereto, and to do less
than this is to fail either of the full measure of obligation or duty. But when the
course of action has decided on, it becomes the act of the association and of the power
in which authority is vested, and as such demands the loyal support of every officer in
the discharge of executive or other duties, or, in event of his inability to give this,
his retirement from the position he holds.

As many of the questions raised by Mr. Vrooman required consideration of the
relative expenses involved in the transaction of life insurance business, the committee
called upon the actuary of the association, Mr. Geo. D. Eldridge, for figures bearing
thereon, which would form the basis of an intelligent judgment upon this portion of
the communications referred to the committee. As these matters are of equal import-
ance to the board, the reply of the actuary is hereto appended.

Respectfully submitted.
O. D. BALDWIN.
WM. HUME.
H. H. BROCKWAY.

July 22, 1898.

(Exhibit No. 21.)

To Messrs. O. D. Baldwin, W. H. Hume and H. H. Brockway, Committee.

Gentlemen,-In compliance with your request, and along the lines of inquiry ad-
dressed to me at a meeting of your committee, I submit the following as bearing upon
the question of the expenses of this association, with particular reference to the several
letters of Hon. John W. Vrooman, late treasurer of the association.

Expenses and their Reduction.
In both the letter of March 31 and that of June 25, great stress is laid upon the

general declaration of the necessity of reduced expenses. I find nowhere, however,
any evidence that an effort has been made to ascertain whether the expenses attending
the transaction of our business are actually excessive or not, but, on the contrary, I
do find the declaration that 'we cannot secure increased income and decreased expendi-
ture by comparison,' the evident purpose being to imply that the measure of economy
is an arbitrary reduction of expenses, without regard to the question of efficiency and
equally without regard to the question of the relative cost of transacting our business
as compared with similar business of competing institutions. I respectfully submit
that in such proposition there is nothing practical, nothing that can be made use of
for the benefit of the membership. It is pure and simple criticism, unsupported by
facts, and valueless unless measured and sustained by facts.

It is manifest that in life insurance business, as in all other branches of business,
efficiency and the best results demand proper provision of proper expenses. To cripple
a business with inadequate provision for meeting expenses is the most wasteful extra-
vagance. This association is competing with the great life insurance companies for
business; it must secure business in the same manner as do those companies; it must
be able to command as high a grade of agency material; its affairs demand, and its
members have a right to insist upon, as competent official service as other ranking
companies enjoy. If we are to have these we must be prepared to pay the cost of them
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in the open market. The fact that this is the iMutual Reserve will no more enable us
to buy first class services at under price than it will enable us to secure printing, books,.
supplies, postage, express service, &c., at less than cost.

There exists no other business where there is more abundant public material for
the determînation of the question of the expense cost involved in its conduct than the
business of life insurance. The officiai reports of the companies, as published by the
state depaîrtments, place abnost every detail before the man who is anxious to inforin
himse]f whether the expenditures of this association are unusual or ini excesa of that
which is marked as cbaracteristic of the business; whule the reports of our own associa-
tion, made in past~ years, will enable him to decide whcther the general tendency of
administration is in the direction of or away from true economy. One can but feel
that it ig the duty of an officor, before indulging in criticismns of the manner in which
affairs are conducted, to avail himself of these sources of information, and I can but
regret that there is in these letters not the slightest evidence that these sources of in-
formation had been used, or even a knowledge of their existence and importance.

While one might well dismiss this portion of the matter with this statement of the
unsustained character of the criticism, I have felt that it is of sufficient importance
ta us ail to attempt to place facts on record, and have, therefore, had the material for
oomparative judgment compiled fromn the sources named, and submit them in the fol-
lowing synopsis-ail the figures presented being from the various statements of the
ecompanies to the state insurance departments.

Com.parative Expenses, of 1893-4 and 1896-7.

The death of the late President Harper occnrred at a time which marks mnary
changes in the conditions surrounding the association. New questions have arisen,
which have to be met and disposed of, and new difficulties in the procuring of business
have had to be encountered. With thesa camc ncw avenues of expenditure, At being
necessary to pay ont very considerable snms in directions where small expenditures
were before required. It seems to be a generally adimitted fact that under President
Harper the business was conducted with marked economy, and in the letters under cou-
sideration the plain references ta increasing expenses, the need of greater economy,
clearly imply unfavourable criticism of the present management in relation ta the
past, with both of which the writer of these letters was connected in an executive
office. For the reasons stated above, it would not be surprising if a comparison showed
somewhat unfavourably for the present administration-as in fact must be the case
if the new items of expense were to be met without a reduction elsewhere, which was
rendered the more difficuit becanse of the admitted economy of the administration
under President Harper. To determine the question, I have had comparison made
between the expenditures of 1893 and 1894, thie last two complete years of President
Harper's life, and those of 1896 and 1897, the two complete years of the administration
of President Burnham. The year of 1895 is oniitted, as it was one of divided admin-
istration.

Relation of Business.

1893-1894. 1896-1897. 1Increase. Per cent.

Mean insurance in force...................527,502,000 630,185,OOo 102,683,000 91.47Amiount collected f rom mnembers.. ..... ............. 9,117211 11,388,133 2,270,917 24.91Amount paid to meînbers.......................600722 8,151,928 2,121,206 35:17Expeuse3, gross ................................. 2858,491 3,396,571 538,080 18,82
Expenses, excluding taxes and amnouats paid bamiks

for collectîng. ... «...... ....... ............ 2,701,863 3,180,483 478,620 17-71,
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It will be seen from the above that while the increase in business carried lias been
19*47 per cent, the increase in amounts collected from. members 24*91, and the increase
made in payments ta members 35* 17, the increase in expenses has been but 18*82. If

from expenses is excluded taxes and licenses--which have by reason of special legisia-
tion inaterially increased-and the sums actually retained by banks and other collect-

ors before remittance ta, home office, the increase in expenses is but 17'71 per cent.

If the expenses are measured by the amount per each $1,000 of insurance carried,
it is found that in 1893-4 they were $5.42, and in 1896-7, $5.39. If they are measured

by the percentage of the amounts paid by members, they are in 1893-4, 31'35 per cent,
and in 1896-7, 29*83 per cent. The net expenses are, respectively, $5.12 and $5.05 per
$1,000 or 30*01 and 26*29 per cent.%

It is thus clearly manifest that instead of there being any increase in the relative

expenses of transacting the business, there bas been a decrease, and this notwith-

standing the conditions which bave called for unusual and extraordinary expenditures
during the last two years. The demand for great reduction in expense is, therefore,

a dernand for even a further reduction from the expenses sbown under the strict.
economy maintained under President Harper, and the criticism of present expenses
is stîli more empbaticall'y a criticism of the expenses incurred in 1893 and 1894.

Expense Income and Expenses.

The expenses of the association are pr ovided for froni revenues derived from

several sources. In addition ta the membersbip fees formerly collected, there are the
annuel dues for business expenses and the provision under section 1, article X. of

the constitution or by-lawb, LiL thc e.xpcnson of tho mortiiqry dprtme-nt shall ho
paid from 'moneys received from mortuary cails.' This provision is as imperative

as are the other requirements of the fundamental law of the association, and it is

supplemented by the provision that the 'net earnings' shaîl be carried to the reserve
fund, as lias been donc both in 1896 and 1897.

The following comparîson shows to what extent expenses have ýexceeded the

revenue, exclusive of tbe gross assessments and interest at the rate of 4 per cent per

annum on the full reserve fund-invested and uninvested

- -1893-4. 1895-6.

Gross assessients .... ....... .............. .................. 6,865,365 8,547,548
Special deposits ................... .............. ............... 272 3268
Four per cent of reserve.... ........ ........ ................ ... .... 28,5 2758

Assessments and interest receipts.......................... ...... .... 7,204,854 8,857,342
Gross receipts .............................................. 9,442,5,55 11,939,787

Balance ........ .... .... .............. ............... ........... 2,237,701 3,082,445
Gross expenses............................2,858,492 3,396,572

Excess expenses .... ............... ..... ... ............. ............ 620,791 314,127
Percentage of assets and interest receipts ..... .............................. 862 3*55

In i893-4, the commissions actually deducted. by banks and other collectors and

the taxes and licenses levied by public authority., amounted ta $156,628, -leaving the

net payments from assessm.ents at $464,163; while in 1896-7, these charges amounted
ta $21,088, leaving the net amount at $98,039.

In view of the critîcism which is directeri. in. the letters named against the cost

of doing new business,, the fact referred ta above, that the peculiar taske which have

f allen ta the present. management have neeessitate.d many extraordinary expenditures,
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îs important, especially taken in connection with the above showing of reduction in
relative expense. It f<llows, nece8sarily, that the creation of new and unexpected
items of expenses is hardly compatible witb increased economy and that the latter
could be attained only by special rigid economy in the ordinary matters of outgo.
IPremising this, the following exhibit of certain items of expenditure becomes of
interest

1893- 1. 1896-7. Inerease. Per cent.

Paid officers and office exnployees ............ ...... 669,749 719,673 49,924 7,45
Percentage of expenses. ................... ...... 23431 21-19

Il payînents by members...............7»35 6'32
Agency expenses .. ý...................1,175,826 1,304,696 128,870 10'96

Percentage of expenses.. ... .................. 4113ý 38'14
Il payments by inembers ................. 12'90 11'46

Printing and adv'ertising ............ ........ ...... 208,464 177,6471 -30,81-. *14.78
Percentage of expenses ................... ....... 29 53

paymnents hy mnembers ............. 229[ 1561

Decrease.

These percentages derive their full signification wben taken in connection with
the fact of an increase of 19*47 per cent in the mean insurance in force; of 24*91 per
cent in the payments by members; and of 35*17 per cent in claims paid.

Co.st of Business by Old Lins, CIonipanie..

No man who would formn a fair judgsnent on a question of this kind can ignore
comparisons. The question, what bas it cost and what does it cost old line companies
to do their business, and how does that cost compare with that of the Mutual Reserve,
is most important, because of cost of other companies established witbin reasonable
limits the market price of tbe services that we must command if we are to continue
to do business, and clearly indicates the reasonable measure of economy-as judged by
actual expenses and possible reduction therein-that can be demanded in the interests
of our members.

The Spectator-an old line journal-bas recently publisbed a table showing the
amount of money per each $1,000 at risk the leading old line companies used for
expenses in each of the last twenty years. This is the fairest basis of comparison,.sinoe
the $1,000 at risk is the unit of service, while premiums vary within the widest limits.
0f tbirty-three companies named, only eight showed in 1893-4, a less expenditure than
,88.13 per $1.000. whicb is 50 per cent in excess of the amount ($5.42) used by tbe
Mutual Reserve in the saine years. These companies, with the amount used in 1893-4
and in 1896-7, are as follows

1893-4. 1896-7. Increase. Decrease.

.Atna Life ... ......... ...................... 77, 76 . ......77 05
Connecticut Mutual.. ....... .. .................... 6 85 7 50 06
Mutual Benefit. .... .......... .................. 6 85 6 95 O 10
New England Mutual ....... ............ ........... 6 40 7 70 1 30
North-western ............................ 7 65 7 35 O 30
Provident ELfe and Trust.................6 70 7 15 0 45
Provident Savings .... ................... ..... 6 85 8 95 2 10
Travellers ............................. 8 10 7 Où..... ........... 1 OS
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It la significant that in this list appears, the naine of neither the Miutual 11f e, the
Equitable if e nor the New York Life. The relative showing of these companies, was
as follow's

Naine. 189&-4 1896-7 Thcrease. Decrease.

Mutual Life ................ ..... 19 05 il110....... ............ 95
Equitable Life ........................... ...... 80 8 90 2~!
New York Life........ .......... ..... ........ 109 9 .2O

It la also significant that every company which in 1893-4 showed an expense rate

of less than $7 (or $1.58 in excess of the iMutual iReserve in the saine years) shows
an increase in 1896-7, leaving but one of the entire list below $7 ln 1896-7.

In 1896-7 there, were but seven companies which showed an expense rate below
$8.09, whieh la oue hundred and fifty per cent of that of the Mutual Reserve iu the saine
years. These are as follows

Naine. 1893-4 1896-7 Tnerease. Decreaî3e.

Aitua Life .............................. 7 70 7 65 O OS... 00
Connecticut Mutual .......... .. .................... b 7 50 O 65
Mutual Benef* ... ..... »............ ............. 6 85 6 95 O 10
New England .. ý............ ......... ......... 6 40 7 70 1 30
Northwestern.. ........ ....... ..................... 7 05 7, 31 O 30
Provident Life and Trust........................6 70 7 15 O 45
Travellers ....................................... 8 10 7 OS. .... 1 OS

The thlrty-three, cornpanies ln the aggregate showed, an expeuse rate of $9.70 in
1893-4 or 179 per cent of that of the Mutual Reserve, and of $9.50 lu 1896-7 or 176
per cent of that of the Mutual Reserve in the same years.

If lu place of coiuparing the expenses of the Mutual Reserve with those of the

entire mass of old line companies, we select those of the latter cîas that are peculiarly
distinguished for ecouomy, as showu by the above, liat we have an expense rate of $7.10

in 1893-4, as against the Mutual lReserve's $5.42, and one of $7.20 ln 1896-7, as against
the Mutual ]leserve's $5.39 ( an excess in the fiast two yeara of $1.68, and in the second
two years of $1.81.

The conclusion of this inatter la that the most economical of the old hune companies

have flot found it practical to maîntain their expenses at less than about $7 per
$1,000 of mean riaka, snd that when teniporarily they have succeeded ln reachlng a

lowerfigure, it ias, been followed by a reaction, which has re-established the average.

From $9 to $10 la the prevailing average of the companlea, with which we are brought
in contact.

As the clear implication of the criticism under consideration la undue extrava-

gance lu our agency business, I have thouglit it well te compare this, item lu the year

1897 alone--in which, the contract especially crlticised was lu force--with that of the

more economical aud more representative old lime companies, as follows:

ELDRIDGE~
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1897 Pr$,0 e eto e eto
Naine. Agency ex- Fe r $1,0 Ferentes of Fe cet

penses. rik remnns.

Mutual Reserve ....... ............ ..... ........ 726,771 2 32 40 37 12 54
.Atna Life.... .... ... ... ...... ................... 57,963 4 43 49 30 12 17
Conn. Mutual.......... ......... .197, 57 2 53 33 23 6 28

Trvler........ ................... 313,020 2 78 38 55 12 71
Equitable Life ............ __ 5,508,535 5 87 64 53 14 29
Mutual Benefit. ..................... 886,145 3 52 49 53 7 49
Mutual Life......................... .... .. 6,478,004 6 45 63 94 15 18
New England ......................... 399,799 3 91 48 31 il 33
New York Life .. ..... ... ......... ............. ý2M~,77Û 6 23 62 93 16 03
Northwestern ............... ... ................. 1,694,998 3 59 48 50 il 21
Penn. Mutuel. ............ ............. 769,530 4 77 50 78 12 57
Frov. Life & Trust ....... ....................... 415,797 3 57 48 86 8 86
L.L. Old Line Cos........................... .... $22,807,52 7 $H6 38
Mutual Reserve..................................2 32 40 37 12 54

One great significance of this exhibit is that it includes ail the companies which
are recognized as especially economical, that it exclude' ail companies that do au
industrial business, and that it embraces, the largest companies, and those that are
most progressive, and, as weIl, such compfiuies as the Connecticut Mutual which bas
old business, on which the agency expenses is small, far in excess of its newer business
on which the greater portion of sucli is incurred.

l'he DLemand for lieduced Expenses.

The communication under consideration inys particular stress upon two neces-
sities wbieh the writer asserts confronts the association, of which one is 'that expen-
diture should be considerably decreased'. It is certainly reasonable to assume that
wben an officer, or a former officer, of the association declares positively that such a
necessity as the above-named exists, he will have founded such assertion upon facts
in his possession, and nlot upon a mere impression. It is for this reason the careful
analysis of comparative cost of business, set forth above, bas been made, for, whatever
declarations may be set forth as to the practicability of a certain device, the test of
the practicabilîty must rest in a knowledge of the conditions surrounding the busi-
ness and the coxupetition in which those conditions involve the association. The
present management of the association, under iPresident Burnham, bas given the
most marked evidence of its purpose to secure actual and practical economy, and with
this determination every niember of the committee and, we believe, of the boar.i' of
directors, is in fullest harmony. and, if the declaration of the writer of the communi-
cation, that lis ideas are not ini harmony with the management, is based upon an
intelligent conception of the problems which confront the management, then it must
be that theoretical and not practical criticismi is tbe purpose in view in the communi-
cation under consideration. This would seem to be borne out by the indisputable.
facts set forth above, sbowing expense cost of tbe business done by this association,
as compared with that donc by the leading'companies of the country and those witb
which tbe association is brought into competition. The report of Insurance Com-
maissioners bears abundant evidence that they have earnestly deprecated thq increased
cost of new business, as shown by the yearly reports of the old line companies. If
tIe record of this association sbowed that such increase in cost bad occurred in its
transactions, it migbt well be tbat a portion of sudh criticism would attach to th,
management, thougli even then tbe consideration would bie entitled to weight, tha t
if the 'association purposed to transact an equal grade of business, it could not hope
to do so under conditions that showed a general increase in the cost of doing business
witbout being in a position to meet such competition,, but the figures as given above

ELDRIDGE
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show conclusively that the management of this association lias lield rigidly to its
record of close economy, with the practical resuit that it lias met ail of its expenses
witli an outlay on ecd $1,000 at risk no greater than the single item of agency ex-
penses as shown by the reports of the most econolnical of the o1d line companies of
the country.

ltespectfully submitted,
GEOR~GE D. ELDRUIDGE,

July 921, 1898. Actuary.

The foregoing report was prepared and ag reed to by ail the members of tlie com-
mittee prior to July 23, 1898, and was, in fact, thon signed by two of the three mem-
bers of the committee, but owing to the absence of the third member from the city,
we have lield the report awaiting his return to sign the same. This lias beei dlone.

The committee, iowever, dcem it proper to state that on the date last above-
mentioned, to wit, July 2,3, 1898, an agreement was made between the association and
IMr. Moton D). Moss terminating ail contracts existing between the association sud
him, aud mutually releasing him and the association from any liability each to the
other. This agreement was rcad in full to and unanimously ratilied and confirmed
by the board of directors at its regular meeting, held on the 27th day of July, 1898,
whicli woulil tierefore seemo to flnaily dispose of ail questions raised by iMr. Vrooman
with respect to the contracts between the association and Mr. iMoss for payments
thereunder.

H-. H1. BROCKWAY.
0. D. flALDWIN.
WM. H. HUME.-

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. Yon stated that Mr. Vrooman declined to appear i-A. H1e came'into the com-
xnittee anid excused himself on that day from appcaring, and tien, subsequently, wrote
deçlîning to appear.

Q. It says he declîned to appear ?-A. les.
Q. He came once ?A. Yes. Hie came once and said be'could not remain tliat

day. Then we appointed another day, and when the other day came lie sent a note
declining to appear.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Referring again to Exhibit 12, you gave in tliis exhibit tbe income botb in
Canada and tlie United States separately ?-A. Yes.

Q. Besides that there was the income £rom otier parts of the world ?-A. From
Europe, yes.

Q. Could you give us an idea of the amount i-A. I tliiuk I can submait it to you
year by year. I tliink I have a copy of it.

Q. I sliould lle to have the total amount for the nineteen years ?-A. Yes, 1
can give you that to-morrow.

Q. You gave in this statement the amount at the credit of tic reserve fund at
tlie end of the year ini Canada ?-A. Yes.

Q. Could yon give the amount of the credit in the United States ?-A. Thisîs
the wiole of tlie reser.ve fund in tlie Company. It is a consolidated fund.

Q. What I should like to, find out is this; it i8 the amount a person takes con-
tributed to tlie general expenses of tlie coxnpany by the Canadian business, the $720,-
000 odd tliat liave been mentioned as compared with the contributions made by holders
of policies in the United States and liolders of policies ini Europe. Could you furnisli
us witli tiose figures ?-A. Yes. Let me correct. 1 did not intend to testify that
necessariiy ail tliat money'bad been used for expenses. It was a contribution of the.
Canadian business towards the general expenses of the company, and miglit have gone
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towards the proportion of death losses as well as towards expenses, the membership
being a part of the general membership of the company. I will give yon the per-
centages s0 that you can cover ail that.

Q.. (ould you give us the amount of the assessments which wore paid by the policy-
holders under the assessment plan undor the fifteen year, ten year and five year poli-
cies Y-A. Yes.

Q. You mean for illustrative ages Y-A. Yes.
Q. For different ages throughout Y-A. Yes.
Q. And give opposite, the amount which they would have had te pay on the regular

lino policies Y-A. You mean the wholo life policies ?
Q. 1e.A wilI bave it made up. I should nlot make the figures myseif, but 1

will get the clerks to work and make them Up.
Q. Take merely samples?-A. Yes.
Q. Which will give the averago Y A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. WATSON.-I move that Messrs. Cannon and Cameron ho surnmoned
before this committee to give evidence on the matter investigated by this committoe
in reference to the statement alloged to have beon made by Mr. Wells.

Hon. Mr. BIEIQUE.-I arn in sympathy with the domand, but I do not think it
would ho quite rogular.

By Mr. CosteT, Counsel for the Committee:

Q. I want to ask a question with roforence to tho salaries of the two officors. In
the annual reports made to the dopartment of insuranco in INew York, under the hoad
of salaries to offcers, does tboe amuouiit thorein stated ettel year incelude ail compensa-
tion to officers? -A. It includos ail compensation to officers included under the
head of ojfijers.

Q. And thon with referonce to employees, does the amnit which appears every
year include ail compensation to them?-A. Probably the portion of the clorks who
arc omployod in tho actuarial departmcnt appear in the actuarial services.

Q. But that would ho ail. There would be nothing olse exoept the actuarial ex-
penses Y-A. The counsel's compensation would appoar under legal oxpenses.

Q. Thero is a blank just after each one of the statements of salaries to officers and
omployoos: 'Other compensation if any'-that is loft blank. What yon mean by that,
is that thoro was no othor compensation Y-A. What I understand by tho blank is that
it is for the including of any compensation, whother an oflicer gets a porcentago, or
anything of that kind.

-Q. Or additional focs for some other work?-A. I understand that blank cails for
the compensation in case an officer recoivos commission or anything of that kind, to
have it detailed there, and there is no officer of the association that has any commis-
sions.

Q. But the language is plain: 'Other compensation if any.' lIt is left blank. lIn
leaving it blank do yon mean to say that there is no other compensationoî.-A. There
are none of the officers who receive any compensation over and above their salaries, or
in the way of commissions or anythîng of that kind from the company, and, therefore,
that clause is left blank.

The committee adjourned until 10 a.m. to-morrow.

ELDRIDGE
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Wednesday, June 29, 1904.
The committee met at 10 a.m.

MIr. GEo. D. ELDRm)G.-I wish to make three short statements. I find that iny
testimony stands that there were four directors in the employ of the company who
were receiving fees, and I find there were five, so I desire to correct that, and for in-»
formation 1 filed a copy of the list of directors.

By the Hon. Mir. Wilson:
Q. iDirectors with salaries, too l A. I file a list of the directors of the company,

giving the names and designatirig those that are in the ernploy of the company. My
testimony in1 regard to the contingent fund would seem to imply that the entire com-
missions of the third that would have accrued under the contract; were paid to Mr.
Burnham througb the contingent fund. The gross amount that was paid through the
contingent fund that was terminated the 9th August, 1898, was $16,000.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Uounsel for the Company:
Q. Do you mean from the heginning of it, from, 1890l-A. From 1896 to August

10, 1898, the gross amount was $16,000.

B1 the Chairman:
Q. There is only $16,000 in the three years?-A. The resolution was adopted in

1896, and was terminated the lOth of August, and the amount drawn under the resolu-
tion charged to this commission that would have accrued to iMr. Harper was $l16,00.

Q. That was the amount drawn i-A. The amoumt was larger than that, $53,000,
but the!amount drawn was $16,000. Then in testifying last night as to the powers of
1nsurance eouinilssioiners to examine the company ât their will, I was testifyiulg geuev-
alIy, and it occurred to me last night that the testimony as it stood might not show
clearly our dlaim in California. What we dlaim in California is that under the statu-
tory law of that state, so long as the superintendent. of New York accepts the actions
of the California department, the California department is bound to accept the actions
of the superintendent of New York.

IMr. COSTER, K.C.-Before going on with the examination of iMr. Wells, I want to
eall the committee's attention to the case which was referred to by Mr. Eldridge the
other day-a case of Dennis against the Massachusetts Benefit Association, 120, New
York reports, 496. iMr. Eldridge was under the impression that the court held ini this
case that the Mut ual Reserve Company under such a contract as they make with their
policy-holders might be compelled. to reinstate the policy-holder, and that that was an
additional excuse for leaving delinquent business on the books as in force to the end
of the current year. The head note of the case sets forth an entirely different propo-
sition. It says that the policy contained a provision that in the event of the insured
not paying the premium within the thirty days allowed, that should be taken as suffici-
eut evidence that the party had decided to terminate his connection with the associa-
tion, which connection shall thereupon terminate, and the party's contract with the
association shall lapse and be void, but for valid reasons to the officers of the associa-
tion, such as failure to receive notice of an assessment, he may be reinstated by pay-
ing the assessment arrearages.

IMr. AYLEswoRTH.-If my learned friend is arguing this I have an equal'right to
take up what time I wish in arguing the case.

IMr. COSTER.-This case was before the premium became due-
ÈLDILIDGI



TEE MUTUÂL RESERYE FUND LIFE ASSOCITION

APPENDIX No. 1

Hon. iMr. BÉiQuE.-There is an objection made to your arguing this case. I tliink
the point is well taken.

The CHÂIRMAN.-The counsel can direct the attention of the committee to the
case. Mr. Eldridge handed in the authority, and as far as I can see, the interpreta-
tion given to that judgment is not the interpretation given by the counsel. We will
discuss the case later on.

Mlr. dosTER.-This man had an attack of apoplexy before the monoy came due,
and thnt was held to hc sufficient excuse for not paying the assessment. It had noth-
ing to do with the Mutual Reserve.

JAMES DOUCLAS WELLS, of the City of New York, called and examined by Mr.
Coster, iK.C., Counsel for the Committee.

Q. You were connected with the Miitial Reserve Fund Life Association, which is
now being investigated ?-A. I was.

Q. What were your first relations with them. ?A. iMy first relations with the
company were some business I did for them either in the latter part of 1883 or 1884-
that is the first.

Q. State shortly what it was ?-A. I did some business for thema in New York.
Q.What did you do?-A. Subsequent to that, I returned_ to Canada.
Q.What year was that in ?-A. It must have been the fore part of 1885.

Q. It was 1883 and 1884 you were in New York, and then you came to Canada-
f or the company ?-A, I came to Canada for the company.

Q. In 1885 ?-A. Ycs.
Q. What did yuu uome here for ?-A. I rame here under a commission contract

for business to be secured iii Canada-came here to work in Canada under a commis-
sion contract, to secure business.

Q. What did you do 1-A. About that time, the subjeet came up in parliament as
to an amcndment of ibe Insurance Act, and prior to the ameudment of that Act, the
company had no license in Canada, but I proceeded to do business until a license was
secured under the amended Act. That contract was a straiglit commission contract,
without any allowances for expenses of any kind, rents or anything eisc. I even had
my own literature, applications and literature, printed at My own expense.

Q. A statement bas been made that you alleged you paid out sums of moncy for
the company here in Canada, for starting their business-what have you io Say about
that ?-A. I paid out a large amount of money of my own in establishing the agency
in the Dominion of Canada, quite a large sum, in other words put it 'good round
sums.'

Q. About how much money did you expend that way, and how was it expended '

-A. It was expended in travelling, putting down agencies, and advances to agents,
and general expenses of establishing the company in Canada.

Q. And by your arrangement you were to pay this yourself ?-A. By my arrange-
ment I was to pay this, that is simply because the company were averse to coming
to Canada at ail at any time.

Q. You neyer made any dlaim on the company for a return of any of this money ?
-A. I neyer did.

Q. Was there any of that money expended in procuring legisiation ?-A. Not one
five cents.

Q. Did you ever say that any of it was expended that way ?-A. I neyer did.
Q. To any person ?-A. To any person.

Mr. AvLEswoRTH.-I shall be prepared to contradict that statement.

IMr. COSTE.-I am pntting in the evidence to give thema that opportunity.
VVELLS
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Q.About what sum of money do you say you expended in establishing the coin-
pany in Canada ?-A. At least tex' or fifteen thousand dollars, before I began to-
recoup myseif.

Q.Before you began to get it back ?-A. Yes.
Q.That was in appointing agents and establishing agents ?-A. Yes.
Q.A statement was mnade hero by the last witnese, Mr. Eldridge, with reference

to instructions alleged to have been given by you to one White, in Boston. You heard
that, did you ?-A. I did.

Q. What have you to say about that ?-A. Mr. White, who was a Boston agent,
and a protege, I may say, of iMr. Eldridge, a particular friend of bis, at least, lie always
claimed to be, came to me-

Q. When ?-A. In' 1898, after my return fromn England, towards the close of the
yoar 1898. He came to me and said that hie was very mucli behind in' bis business in'
Boston, that lie wanted to make a better showing than his account would show, and
suggested to me that hie should send in' what insurance men called 'padded business,'
some business that was not genuine, so as to make a better showing of the Boston
agoncy. I replied to him and said, 'Mr. White, that is something I neyer tolerated,
nover would allow, and I arn on record in regard to that matter.' A Chicago agent
did send in' a lot of padded business on which lie made a dlaim on the company for
services ix' getting this amount of business. 'iMy letter upon that subject,' I said, Lis
with the company to-day, and it was remarked upox' by the Superintendent of Insur-
ance who made the last examination, giving me credit for the stand I took with regard
to padded business, and I said, 'so far as I am concerned, Mr. White, I cannot en-
courage anything of that kind. ' 'Well,' lie said, 'T bad a talli witli Mr. Eldridge on
that subject and lie is ix' favour of it.' I said, 'AIl riglit, if IMr. Eldridge is ix' favour
of that, lie must take the responsibility,' and that is ahl that occurred between Mr.
White and myseif on the subject.

Q. You know of certain Charges having been made in' the Sonate of Canada
against the Mutuel Reserve?

The CiAÂntmAxiç-Wouild it not bc woll to complete the investigation on that point.
There are documents filed here ix' regard to that matter, affidavits and a statement
made by Mr. Eldridge ix' writing. Would it not be well to cross-examine the- witness,
and finish that subjeet ?

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:

Q. That; is all the conversation yon had with Mr. White on that subject ?-A.
That is all on thiat subjeet.

Q. Did you write te him, asking him to send padded business ?-A. Neyer.
Q. Or telegrapli him ?-A. No.
Q. Or communicate with hlm in' any way ?-A. Not in' any way encouraging

hini or asking him. I have had letters £romi Mr. White freqnently on business, but
I neyer encouraged him. te send padded business.

Q. You know of the charges which were preferred against the iMutual Reserve in'
the Sonate ?-A. I do.

Q. Before these charges were made in' the Senate, did you, either directly or
indirectly, instigate or suggest, that those charges should be made ?-A. I did not.

Q. Did you furniali any of the ihaterial in' the way of letters, that were used in'
the Senate ?-A. I dîd not.

Q. Thare was a letter yrritten by you to, President Burnham in' 1898 which waB
quoted £romi in the Sonate. Did you furnish any one, or cause to be furx'isied. dîrectly
or indirectl;y, the copy, printed or otherwise, of the letter which was rea.d in' the Sonate I
-A. I dîd not.

Q. Do yon know from wh'om the on. Senator who read that to the Senate, got
the information ?-A. I do not.
WVMLLS
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Q. iHad you anything to do, either direetly or indirectiy, with bringing theso
charges ?-A. I had not.

Q. When did you first hear of this investigation ?-A. I heard it through. the
Senate procecdings, and also a letter I think from Senator Domville after the charges
had been brought. T think he sent me the Senate proceedings of that time--that; is
in regard to what had taken place.

Q. You were sent a notice requesting you to appear as a witness in1 these prooeed-
ings, were you flot ?-A. I was.

Q. You are familiar with the charges you made against the managemnit of the
Mutuai iReserve iii 1899, to the Insurance flepartment of the State of New York,
and referred to on page 12, section 8, exhibit No. 7, the statement qnhmittcd to the
Senate by the company ?-A. I arn.

Q. By whom were those charges therein referred to, against the IMitual IReserve,
sworn to ?-A. Sworn to by myseif and Mfr. Stevenson.

Q. ThaL is the witness that bas benn alrcady examined liere ?-A. Yes.
Q. At whose requcet were those charges made ?-A. At the request of the Super-

intendent of Insurance.
Q. 0f New York ?-A. 0f New York, Mfr. Payne. I miglit say that prior to

the charges being flled, I had an interview with the Superintendent of TIsurance at
Albany in regard to the charges which I brought before him, and he then requested
me to put them in the forma of an affidavit, and file them officialiy.

Q. Take article 3, section 2, of the constitution and by-laws of this coinpany,
which provides :

'Section 2. The directors shall eleet three of their number, who shahl constitute
an execlitive ceommittee, who shall appoint such mediual exarniners as they deem neces-
sary, audit death élainu,, and shall determine ail salaries and q~ess nd shail have
the power to m-ake conLracts with general agents and othcrs for the furtherance of
tie business of the a3sociation, tid ror thé- henefit of its mcmbcn3. And ulidur the
regli ins nf thQ board thcy ahali almü exeîie a geiieral supervision ov er the busi-
ness of the association?'

You say that you went to New York in that year ?-A. In 1885.
Q. I mean to say, after being in Canada, when did you go back to New York?

A. in 1890.
Q. And what position, if any, were you then elected to i11 the company ?-A. I

went to New York on business with the company, and while there the first intimation
I had was that 1 was elected third vice-president of the compaily, in 1890. *I then
returned to Canada, wound up rny affairs in connection with the general agency of
the company for Canada, and returned to New York, I think, in June, 1890. I was
elected as a vice-president, and subsequent to that, afler the retirement of a Mfr. N.
W. Bioss, who had charge of the agency departinent, I was put in charge of the
agency department ail over the Ujnited States and Canada.

Q. And had you anything to do with the executive committee ?-A. That was
suhsequently. Suhsequcntly I was made a director of the company, and suhsequently
to that, I think upon the resignation of the second vice-president, the Hon. 1fr. E. H..
]lemmund, I succeeded him as second vice-president, and was made chairman of the
executive committee. That is the best of my recollection.

Q. I have already called your attention to article 3, section 2, of the constit~ution,
and would ask: you if you know of any violations of the terrms of that ?-A. I do.

Q. Can you state some instances of the kind ?-A. Yes. There is one very
glaring instance, in my estimation, the payment in England to Mfr. 1foton D. Moss
of $7,260, £1,500, a draft made upon the compnny which was not referred to me-no
communication with me about it. directly or indirectly. That money was paid to
Mfr. Moss in England. lie was then an agent of the compa»y under his first metro-
politan contract, working in the State of New York, which Mfr. Moss had. That

WELL2
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amount of money was paid to him in Englapd by Mr. Burnham's authority, who at
that time was in England with Mr. Moss.

Q.What year was that ?-A. That was in 1896.
Q.Look at Exhibit No. 22, now' shown you; is that a copy of the draft upon

which it was paid ?-A. It is.

(Exhibit No. 22.)
Ex. B (1).

$7,260. $7,260
O 4.84 J. S. M. O. K. F. U.

(Signed) Secy. Ex. Com.
Merchants' Bank Exchange for £1,500-London 26th September, 1896. On

B6472 demand pay this First of Exchange, second flot paid to
of Canada myseif-or order, the sum of one thousand five hundred

New York. pounds sterling.
The Clydesdale Bank, Paid Oct. 6, '96 Paid

Limited, Mer. Bank of Oct. 9th,
City ILondon. Canada. 1896.

Value received which place to account of M. D. Moss, payable at the current rate
of Exchange for Bank. Demand drafts on London, England.
To the Mutual Reservel (Signed) MOTON D. MOSS.

Fund ILife Association ý, Charge account M. D. Moss,
805 BroadwayNew Yorkj as advance.

Endorsemients:
MOTON D. MOSS, (Signed).
F. 'A. BUIiNUAM, (Signed).

Pay to the order of Merchants Bank of Canada.

(Signed), GEO. TIIORNE.
Please pay cheque to our order for the Meehgntr, Bank of Canada.

(Signed) J. D. HTARRIS,
Agent.

Q.And also look at a copy of the voucher authorizing the payment of the money
hy the company-is this the voucher

(Exhibit No. 22.)
Ex. B. (2).

No. 62110. NEW YoRK, October 9, 1896.
The Cashier of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, N.Y., will draw check

to The Merchants Bank of Canada, £1,500-Seventy two hundred and sixty dollars
($7,260), and charge the same to account of

MOTON D. MOSS,
Special account.

Oheck N o. 48445.
To take up draft of Mr. Moss, dated London 9/26/96-

Approved by F. UJnderhifl, Secretary, Executive Committee.
By order of the Executive Commüittee.

O. D. BALDWIN,
J. W. BOWDEN,
J. W. VIROOMAN.

Received by-(Sgd.) Amsden-10/9/96.
Examined October 9, 1896-(Sgd.) J. S. Hloffeeker.
Margin:-

Sheet No. ,Dues Department.
WIDLLS
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A. Ihat is the voucher taking up the draft, by order of the executive committee.
Q. You knew nothing of this i-A. I knew nothing of this.

Hon. Mir. BEiQuE -a the fact disputed ?

M~T. AYLESWORTH.-NO; it lias been ventilated over and over again.

Q. You were then chairman of the executive cominittee, were you i-A. Yes.
Q. Were yon notified in anay way as to this draft or payment at that time t-A. 1

was flot.
Q. When did you first learn about this payment in London to IMr. Mosa g-A. 1

Iearned about the payment of that after I returned from England in 1898.
Q. Did you make any protest about it i-A. I do flot know that I made any violent

protest about it but I objected to it principally on account of Mr. Moss at that time
being largely indebted to, the association. He had got a large sum under is mnetro-
politan contract.

Q. IDid Mr. Moss repây the amount of this loan, or whatever you cali it i-A. Mir.
Moss claimed that he repaid the amount to Mr. Burnham personally, but it neyer was
paid to the compaay by Mr. IMoss or IMr. Buxnham.

Q. llow was it disposed of on the books of the company i-A. A credit was given
to Mr. Moss for exactly the amount, $7,260; a credit was given hlm for services ren
dered, outside and apart from the metropolitan agency.

Q. Look at Exhibit No. 23 now produced. Is that a copy of the voucher authoriz-
ing that; amount to be credited to his account ?

(Exhibit .No. 23.)
Exhibit B. (3.)

IN o. 5125. NEW YoRx, December 2,8, 1896.
The book-ketjper of the Mutual Reserve Fund LiSe Association will credit

Moton D). Moss, special account, Seventy two hundred and sixty dollars ($7.260), and
charge the same to accoiunt oï,&.-ency Expenses for spP<inl 9pTrviceî in ÂgQn0y Dopart-
ment outside and apart from Metropolitan Department last haif of year 1896.

By order of the Executive Committee.
Signed F. A. BUiRNIIAM,

J. W. VROOMAN,
G. D. ELDRIDGE.

O.K. Examined
î,S-'igned) Dec. 28/96

F'. U. (,Sig-ned) J. S. Hloffecker.
Margin:

D)ues Department.

A. It is.
Q. Who was this Moton D. Mosa ?-A. Mr. Moss was a gentleman who came over

from England in, I think, 1895--the latter part of 1895, 1 ar n ot quite certain-Mr.
Buruhaîn claimed, at least he told me-

.Q. That la the president, Mr. Burnham ?-A. Yes, P5resident>Burnham-that he
had met Mr. iMoss hn London on a former visit to England, when he was over there
with Mr. Harper, they had met Mr. Moss at that time. Wheu lie arrived in New 'York
ne came immediately to see Mr. t$uruham. Mr. Burnham, sent down for me. My office
was onae or two flats below the head office. I went to his office, and lie introduced me to
.Mr. .Moss, he remarking that Mir. Moss was the greatest producer in the world of busi-
ness, and probably the best insurance man there was in the business. Hie said: 'INow,
Mir. WeJis, .1 want you to take IMr. iMoss down to your office, and make a contract with
hlm for business in the state of New York. We must not let Mr. Moss away from us-
fIe is here now, and we must have a contract with him, and keep hlm. in the service of
the company.'

WELLS
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Q.Prior to Mr. Burnhssn introducing hlm to you, had you ever met hlm, or had
you heard anything of his history ?-A. I had neyer met him, or knew anything about
him whatever.

Q.Do you know how long IMr. Burnham had known hlm at that time ?-A. No.
I simply had lis word that he had met him in London.

Q.You made a contract with him ?-A. I did.
Q.Have you a copy of that contract ?-A. 1 have flot.

Q. Do you remember the terms of it ?-A. 1 think I can.
Q. Will you have a copy of it produced ?-A. It has been sent for. I think I

wrote to, my office about it.
Q. Give the terms of it shortly?-A. It iras 'a contract giving hlm a 75 per cent

commission, and the ordinary renewal commissions paid other agents, and I think a
salary of $100 a week.

Q. When was that contract terminated ?-A., That contract was terminated when
contract No. 2 in 1897 iras executed.

Q. When contract No. 2 was executed, irlat iras the state of IMr. iMoss's account
with the compary ?-A As 1 gid before, this account-I learned after.wards-he
iras indebted under this contract to the extent of between twenty-nine and thi*rty
thousand dollars.

Q. Then you say a new entract iras made irith hlm ?-A. A new contract iras
made irith hlm in January, 1897-January 7th.

Q. iLook at Exhibit No. 24 noir produced-is that a copy of the second contract
that was madle with him I

STATE 0F NEW YORK,
INSURANcE DEPARTMENT,

ALBANY, June 28, 1904.

1, FRANCIS HENDRIÇR, Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York, do
hereby certify that I have compared the annexed copy of contract betireen the Mutual
Reserve Fu-ad hule A88wuiatiou vf Newr York, and Moton D. Moss, dated Jamigvy 7,
1897, together with contract dated January 22, 1898, betweeti saule parties, and Te-
ferred te ln report on examination of condition- of affairs of sald association, made by
Chief Examiner Vanderpoci, dated August 22, 1899, irith the copies on file in this
department, and that the same are correct transeript therefrom and of the whole of
said copies.

(Seal.) In witness whlereof, I have hereunto, set my hand and seal and affixed My
officiai seal, at the City of Albany, the day and year flrst above irritten.

(Signed) FRANCIS HENDRIORS,
Superintendent of Insurance.

NEW Yomx, January 7, 1897.
Mr. MOToN D. Moss,

Mutual Reserve Building,
New York City.

DEA& SiaE,-You are hereby appointed general manager cf this association te take
charge of its agency business in the United Sfates, and te procure and effect applica-
tions for inurance that will be satisfactory, to, the association. In aceordance, how-
ever, irith the settled mie and practice of the association, it must be. uriderstods that
neý portion of said territory of tIc United States 18 assigned excluisively te yois.

Yotl ave te devote your entive time and best energies tu th& service of the associa-
tion, andi teý efficiently occupy and work said territorr. in cordànee witfr the r~ule%,
regulations and instructions of the association. You are, ilot te engage in: Myi, othien
business or in any speculative or stock transactions.
wqLLx



THE MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION

APPENDIX No. 1

The compensation to be allowed you shall be as follows, viz.
Upon the five year combination option plan eighty-five (85) per cent of the first

year's premium, and renewals upon the second and subsequent year's premiums at the
annual rate of one dollar and fifty cents ($1.50) per* thorisand of insurance.

Upon the ten years' distribution deposit plan fifty (50) per cent of the first year's
premium and renewals upon the second and subsequent year's premiums at the annual
rate of seventy-five cents ($0.75) per thousand of insurance.

These renewals commissions are to be paid only during the terni of your service
with thc association under this arrangement, but in case of the termînation thereof,
provided you remain loyal to the association and do not write business for any other
insurance company or association, or in any way connect yourself witli any such
company or association, said renewal commissions sball be paid to you for a period of
five years after such termination.

No compensation or commission shaîl, however, be payable to you unless the
premium or payment upon or from wbich the samn( is to, be allowed lias been received
in cash by the association.

The association will advance to you the sum of thirty-five hundred dollars per
week for advances to agents, such sum to be deposited in bank weekIy to your credit
as general manager, subjeot to your check, such amount to be charged te your ac-
count and to be accounted for in detail wîth proper vouchers whenever requested by,
the association.

The association will provide you with suitable office accommodations at its home
office, and such clerical and other assistance as may be necessary, at an expense,
however, not exceeding $200 per week.

The a"iociation will also pay the rent of snch hranch offices as may be found
necessary for the transaction of its business, not exceeding, however, in the aggre-
gate, the sum of twenty thousand dollars per arinum.

Ail other expenses shail be borne and paid by you.
lIn addition to tlâo commissionzrpin d eninne.rRted4, yoiir sa Iary of one hun-

dred dollars per week upon the puy-roll shaîl bc continued.
This arrangement shail take effect as of January lst, 1897, and shaîl continue for

the period of two years, if satisfactory to the association, but the association shaîl
have the riglit ta terminate the sanie at any time during said period at its option.

This appointment, or any of the benefits te accrue thereunder, shail not be assigned
or transferred, either in whole or in part, without the written consent of the associa-
tion.

Ahi previous contracta or agreements are hereby terinated, but notwithstanding
snob termination the commissions or bonuses on business secured under the sanie shal
be allowed you, subjeot ta, the ternis and conditions of this arrangement and of said
terminated contracta or agreements.

Yours Very truly,

(Signed) J. D WELLS,
GEORGE W. HARPER,
GEO. D. ELDRIDGE,

Executive (Jommittee.

I hereby accept the foregoing appointmeut, subject ta ail the terms and conditions
contained therein, by ail of which I agree ta lie bound.

Dated New York, Janu.ary 7th, 1897.
(Signed), MOTON D. MO8S.

WT.LLS
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This agreement, made and entered into this twenty-second day of January, in the
year one thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight, by and between the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association, a corporation duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New York, and having its principal place of
business in the City of New York, of the first part, and Moton D. Moss, of
said city, of the second part, witnesseth as follows:-

First, That the contract or agreement heretofore existing between the parties
hereto dated January 7th, 1897, and consisting of an appointment in writing by the
executive committee of said association of said party of the second part as general
manager of the association to take charge of its agency business in the United States,
and the acceptance of such appointment subject to the terms and conditions thereof
by said party of the second part, be and the same hereby is cancelled and terminated
as of January lst, 1893, and each of the said parties thereto released from each and all
the obligations thereof.

Second, That the said party of the second part is hereby appointed general manager
of the said association to take charge of its agency business in the United States, and
elsewhere as directed, and to procure and effect applications for insurance that will
be satisfactory to the association, upon the express understanding and agreement,
however, that no portion of said territory is assigned exclusively to said party of the
second part.

Third, That the said party of the seco-- part agrees to devote his entire time and
best energies to the service of said association, and to efficiently occupy and work
said territory in accordance with the rules, regulations and instructions of said
association. That he also covenants during the continuance of this agreement not
to engage in any other business, or in any speculative or stock transactions.

Fourth, That the compensation to be allowed said party of the second part shall
be an over-riding commission of ten (10) per cent of the first year's premium received
from and after the commencement of this contract upon business secured in the United
States under either the five year combination option plan or the ten years' distribution
deposit plan, with renewals upon the second and subsequent years premiums upon said
business at the annual rate of une dollar and tifty cents ($1.50) per thousand of insur-
ance, on the five year combination option plan, and seventy-five cents (75 cents) per
thousand of insurance on the ten years' distribution deposit plan, such renewals, how-
ever, to be subject to the deduction of the amount of commissions or other compen-
sation paid or payable to other agents upon said business.

That of the aforesaid over-riding commission of ten (10) per cent upon the first
year's premiums, the said party of the second part shall be paid five (5) per cent, or
one-half thereof monthly, in accordance with monthly statements to be rendered to
said party of the second part, and approved by each of the parties hereto, and that the
remaining half of said over-riding commission of ten (10) per cent shall be held by
the said association as security for advances made to agents under this contract, and
be allowed and paid to the said party of the second part only to the extent that such
advances are secured and covered by the deferred commissions and renewals of agents
to whom advances may have been made, based upon a three years' purchase.

Fifth, That said renewal commissions are to be paid only during the term of ser-
vice of said party of the second part with the association under this contract, but in
case of the termination thereof, upon the condition that he remains loyal to the asso-
--iation and does not write business for any other insurance company or association in
America, or in any way connect himself with any such company or association, said
renewal commissions shall be paid for a period of five years after such termination.
No compensation or commission shall, however, be payable to the said party of the
second part, unless the premium or payment upon or from which the same is to be al-
lowed bas been received in cash by the association.

Sixth, That the compensation which said party of second part may pay to agents
or managers shall not exceed the following, that is to say:
WELLS
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On the five year combination option plan sixty-five (65) per cent of the first year's
premium, and renewals upon the second and subsequent years' premiums at the an-
nual rate of one dollar and fifty cents ($1.50) per thousand of insurance.

UJpon the tan years' distribution plan forty (40) per cent of the first year's pre-
mium, and renewals upon the second and subsequent years' premiums, at the annua]
rate of seventy-five cents ($0.75) per thousand of insurance; renewal commissions un-
der cither plan to be paid only during the term of service of the agent with the asso-
ciation under lis contract.

Seventh, That the association will advance to the said party of the second part
a sum flot exceeding twenty-fivo hundred dollars ($2,500) per week for advarnces to
agents, said sum to ba daposited in bank weekly to lis credit as general manager, sub-
ject to bis chuque as such said amount to be charged to his account and to be accounted
for in detail witb proper vouchers whenaver requested by the association, and said
advances to be approved from time to time by the agency or executîve committee of
the association.

Eighth, That the association will provide the said party of the second part with
suitable office accommodations at its home office, and sncb clerical and other assistance
as may be necessary, and will pay the usual necessary expenses incident to the trans-
action of the business, for printing, stationery, advertising, &c., and that it will also
pay the rent of sncb brancb offices as may be found necessary for the transaction of
its business.

Nintb, That this agreement shall take effect as of January lst, 1898, and shaîl con-
tinue for a period of two (2) years from said date, but saià association shall have
the right to tarminata the same at any time during said period, at its option, and the
said party of the second part shaîl have the rigbt to likewisa terminate the same at
any time after the expiration of one- yen.r from said date.

Tenth, That this agreement, or any of the Ioitefits to accrue thereunder, shall not
be assigned, or traunferred either in wbole or in part wit.hout the written consent of
said association.

Eleventh, ilhat ail previous contracts or agreements bctween the parties bereto are
bereby terminated, but notwitbstanding such termînation the commissions or bonuses
on business secured under the same shaîl be allowed to the said party of the second
part subject to the terms and conditions of this agreement and of said terminativo
contracts or agreements, except the commissions, bonuses, or other compensation under
said agreement or appointment of January 7th, 1897, of and from whicb commissions,
bonuses or other compensation under sucb last mentioned contract the said party of
the second part hereby releasas and discbarges said association, the said association in
turn assuming all liability to agents for commissions, bonuses, or otber compensation
accruad or to accrue under contracts now on file with said association.

In witness wheraof, the said party of the first part bas caused these presents to bc
signed by its executive committee, and the said party of the second part bas here-
unto subscribed bis name at tbe City of New York, this 22nd day of January, 1898.

In duplicate.
(Signed) JOHN W. VIIOOMAN,

F. A. 3UIRNIIAM,
GEORGE D. ELDRIDGE,

Execut'ive Uommittee.

MOT ON D. MOSS.

Read in full to and ratified aad confirmed by tbe board of diractors, this 27tb
day of April, 1898.

CHAIRLES W. CAMP,

Secrelary.
VTELLS
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A. Yes, that is a correct copy.
Q. Under wbat circumstances was this contract of January 7, 1897, made i-A.

Mir. Burnham sent for me-

Hon. Mir. B•IQUE.-J5 it claimed that tbey are improvident contracts ?

Mr. COSTER, K.C.-No, not ail the time. It is contended that the contract, after
it was executed, was changed without the knowledge or consent of the executive.

Q. Now, this contract of January, 1897, was drawn by Mr. Burnham, was it ?-
A. Mr. Burnham sent for me, and I went to his office, and for the first time, hie in-
forxned me that he liad made different arrangements with Mr. IMoss, made a new con-
tract with bim, taking in or placing under bis contrai the entire United States. Hie
then produced a copy of the contract drawn up in duplicate, which ho handed me,
after explaining tbe general provisions of it, and wanted me to look over it, and see
what I tbought of it. This I did, read it over once or twice, and then I said to bim:
' Well, iMr. Burnham, this is a very unusual, extraordinary contract, but with a man
of :Mr. lMoss's ability and great business-getting powers'-at that time I supposed Mr.
Mloss was ail rigbt, I knew nothing about l~is personal matters --' I do not see any-
tbing objectionable to tbe contract, and I arn willing ta execute tbe contract.' That
was after considerable talk.

Q. You signed the contract, as a matter of f act?-A. I did.
Q. You say it was not the contract tbat you objected ta ? What did you object

ta ?-A. I neyer objected to tbe terms of the contract. I state that emphatically,
because a good deal of a handie is made of it. I take my own share of responsibility
for signing tbat contract, the terms of wbich I have never repudiated or criticised,
but what I did criticise was the violation of the terms of thiat contract.

By the Chairman:

Q. By whom q-A. Tbe violation of the terms of tbat contract under the orders
of the president.

By the Hon. M1r. Béique:

Q. Does it apply to the first contract, too i-A. Nio, tbe first contract was can-
celled.

Q.. Did you take your sbare of responsibility for that first.contract as well ?-A.
The first contract I made myseif.

By the Hon. M1r. McSweeney:

Q. *Wbat were tbe terms of that second contract l-A. IMr. Moss was appointed
general manager of the entire association doing business in the United States. 11e
was ta devote his time, ta tbe work. The compensation, giving the diflerent plans of
insurance, was 85 per cent of tbe first year's premiums and renewals, upon tbe second
and subsequent years' prerniums, at tbe rate of one dollar and a baif per thousand
Însurance. Upon tbe ten-year distribution plan, there, was only 50 per cent of the
first year's premium allowed him, and the renewals at the rate of 75 cents on eacb
renewal, instead of the dollar and a hall upon the five-ycar plan. Tbese renewals
were paid only during the terra of bis services witb tbe association, and, under this
arrangement, in case of the termination thereof, provided ho remained loyal ta the
association and did not write business for any other company or in any other wav~
connect himself with sucli company or associationj such renewals were ta be paid to
him for five years after the termination of this contract. No compensation or com-
mission, however, ta be paid him, and here is what I wisb ta empliasize--' no com-
pensation or commission shall, however, be paid to you, unless tbe premium or pay-
ments upon or from which the same is ta be allowed, lias been received in cash by
the association.' Tbat was one of the important provisions of the contract. The
WFMLLIS
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next important one was: 'The association will advance to you the sum of $3,500 per
week for advances to agents, such sum to ha deposited ini bank weekly to yeux credit
as general manager, subject to your cheque, such amount to be charged to your ac-
count, and to be accounted for in detail, with proper vouchers, whenever requested by
the association.'

Q. That is the way the contract was when you signed it l-A. That was the
original contract.

Q. Is there anything else you want to eall attention to ?-A. Yes, there was a
salary of $100 a week to enable him to live upon in the meantime, as he was a very
poor man when he came there and had not a dollar in the world-this hundrcd dollars
a week was given him in addition to the commission allowed to him in the contract.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. You approved of th-is contract ?-A. I signed it.
Q. Yotu npproved of it ?-A. OCrtainly I did; I sigued it. I was one of the par-

ties who cxecuted the contract.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Who called your attention first to the violation of the terms of this contract?
-A. When I retuxned from England a short time afterwards-

Q. When was that i-A. In 1896, about the first of May, or somewhere there. I
do not remember the date exactly.

Q. Who was it v-A. The first intimation I had of violations of the contract, my
attention was directed to it by the treasurer, the lion. iMr. Vrooman.

Q. The Hon. John W. Vrooman I-A. Yes.
Q. And anybody else I-A. And the auditor, iMr. J. S. Hoffeeker.
Q. Would you kindly explain to the comrnitfee the terms of the contract with rc-

ference to the acivances of $3,500 per wcck: what was requîred of Mr. Moss, and what
should he have donc I-A. This amnnt of $3,500. a wook was advanced t» Mr. iMoss
against the commissions earned by himself and the agents throughout the UJnited
States. Tho amoufft was to be charged him, as against those commissions, *and when
the premiums 'were paid upon the policies issued, he was to get credit for eighty-flve
per cent upon the entire premium.

Q. Hie would pay sixty-five per cent to his agents I-A. Or whatever he agreed.
In some cases, he may have paid less, qnd in some more, though I doubt it, and the
difference that would accrue tc, him on the average probably would be about twenty
per cent, an over-riding commission that he would make on what he paid bis agents
and the commissions called for by the contract.

Q. Then he was to get vouchers from those agents ?-A. Hie was to produce
vouchers for the advances ta bis agents for this $3,500 per week.

Q. Now what did he do as a matter of fact I-A. Instead of bis producing vouch-
ers, as required by the contracts, he made up a monthly statement of the different
agents to whoiii he made advances, and brouglit them into the auditor or whoever had
charge of the books, and those statements were placed to bis credit actually, thus
taking out of the advances which. were made him against the entire commissions al-
lowed by the contract-it was placing to bis credit all the advances he had made to
the agents, which was contrary to the spirit and terms of the contract, and- which.
virtually made bim a present of $3,500 a week, besides bis over-riding commission.
That was the resuit of it.

By the Ohairman:
<Q. How long did thatlast I-A. It lasted for an entire year-until I got back.
Q. This was during yrnir absence I-A. There was another eontract made which

I will come to.
WELLS
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By Mr. Costeor, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Supposing Mr. Moss had presented the actual vouchers, would it have been

riglit to place to lias credit the ainount of those vouchers ?-A. Certaignly flot. The
requirement of the contract that lie sbould produce vouchers was simply a check on
him in the distribution of this $3,500 a week, which was to remain charged to bis ac-
count-simply as a check in the distribution.

Q. It was to have been paid in actual cash ?-A. Certainly, on business done by
the agents. The $3,500 was a charge against tbe wbole 85 per cent.

Q. What was the amount in 1897 represented in the statements from Mr. Moss
as baving been advanced by him. to bis agents and witli whicb, yon say, be was im-
properly credited l-A. About $158,000, if I remember riglit.

'Q. What amount did Mr. Moss actually owe the company at the end of iDecember,
1897, under this contract ?-A. I should say there was at least-it would be pretty bard
to tell exactly the whole amount because there was a dispute about certain items, but
I should say, admitting their contention of a credit of $93,000, whicb I think will be
explained before we get tlirougli, but independent of that $93,000, 1 think IMr. iMoss
owed under that contract altogether somewbere in the neighbourbood of two hundred
and forty or f£fty tbousand dollars.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Wlben l-A. At tbe termination of that contract at the end of December, 1897.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney :
Q.Fie owed that to thie company ?-A. 11e owed tbat to the company.

By the Hon. M1r. Béique :
Q. That is the termination of the second contract l-A. Yes. Aside from the

proper credits of the amounts advanced by Mr. Moss to lis agents, there were other
large sums of money paid him and cliarged to bis account.

By M1r. CJoster, K.C., Jo unsel for the Jo mmittee:

Q. On discovering this wbat did you do ?-A. On discovering -tbis I went to e
Mwr. Burnham to remonstrate with IMr. Burnbam and lay before bita wbat I bad dis-
covered. After talking the matter over witli Mr. Burnbam and pointing ont tbe irre-
gular way in wlich tbe books were kept, be opened up lis desk and produced a con-
#act, first contending tbat it was quite regular and quite proper that IMr. iMoss sbould
be credited with all the moneys lie liad paid out to lis agents. That was tbe contçýn-
tion between us for a little time. We liad some bot words about it, and tlien lie pulled
out of bis desk wliat purported to be the original true copy of the contract, pointing
to a clause in tbat contract, this clause:

'The association will advance to you tlie sum of $3,500 per week for advances to
agents, such sum to be deposited in the bank weekly to your credit as general manager,
subject to your clieque, sucb amount to be charged and to be accounted for in detail
witli proper vouchiers wbenever requested by tlie association.'

Q. That is the way it was I-A. That was tbe original.
Q. And wben lie produced it to yon I-A. Wlien lie produced the contract in con-

tention of this argument tbat it was proper book-keeping, and it was quite proper to
credit bim with these amounts which Mr. IMoss bad paid to bis agents, the contract
tbat be presented to me lied after tbe words 'Sudh amount to be cbarged to your ac-
count,' the following words were eliminated:

'And to be accounted for in detail with proper vouchiers wlienever requested by
the association.' Those words were eliminated and tlie following words were substi-
tuted: 'And remain so cbarged until 'ý-mark the words-'- satisfactorily accounted for!
Those were the words substituted for, 'and to be accounted for in detail ývith pruper
vouchiers whenever requested by the association.'
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By the Chairman:

Q. Was the contract, that hie produced signed by yourself i-A. Oh, yes.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., Counset for the Committee:
Q. In order to make that change, were the words underlined or scratched out, or.

how was it done ?-A. No, the manner in which it was done, and whîch is adinitted
by iMr. lMoss to mue, and generally a statement made to his attorney-

Mr. Ayî,EswoRT.-I objectto that.

-A. (continuied) You see the contract was drawn up oni three typewritten shoots,
nlot the ordinary printed forru used by the company, but on three sheets. The middle
sheet of the contract was abstracted and the whole sheet written over again and sub-
stituted.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. Is that to your knowledge ?-A. It could flot be any other way. That is the
only way that alteration could occur, by taking out the middle sheet and writing it
over again, which was the case with that contract which be showed me.

Q. The contract which he showed you bore your signature i-A. Oh, certainly,
in three shoets.

Bz, Mr. Coster, K.C., Coun.sel for the Commit tee

Q. Did you express your astonishment that such a clause should be in that con-
tract ?-A. I did, and I said after reading it through-the contract which he showed
me-I said: 'Good heavens, Mr. Burnham, we neyer signed a contract of this kind.'

Q. What did ho reply?-A. Hie went on contending 'iMr. Wells, yes, that is the
contract we ail signed; perhaps it was a mistake, but that is the contract unquestion-
ably that we ail signed and there we are obliged to give Mr. Moss credit for the
amounts ho paid out'.

By the lion. M11r. Béique:

Q. llad you kept the copy of the contract that you had signed ?-A. iMyself i
Q. Yes i-A. No, certainly not.
Q. Then it was frora memory that you could make that point l-A. Yes, that

point I was familiar with, I never would have signed the contract as Mr. Burnliam,
read it. My business was making contracts. I had made Borne four thousand of them
and I knew my business better than to sign a contract lke that. No man in bis senses
would-that is as he represented it.

BV the Chairman:

Q. The allegation you make is that the copy shown you by IMr. Burnham was not
the original ?-A. The copy that he showed me. There rere two copies, one made for
IMr. Moss and the other for theoffice-in duplicate. I will explain presently that Mr.
iMoss's copy Mr. Burnham got back from, IMr. IMoss and ho had IMr. Moss's contract and
the office contract, onie of which he altered as I arn just relating.

Q. Did he flot alter both contracts ?-A. No. 11e had Mr. Moss's copy of the con-
tract delivered to him.

Q. Hle had both in his possession i-A. Precisely, he liad both in bis hands.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :

Q. Let me understaiid; you say that the contract was executed in duplicate i-A.
Yes.

Q. And one copy was delivered over to, Mr. IMoss i-A. To IMr. lMoss.
Q. And the other remained in the possession of the president i-A. Precisely.
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Q. And when you had that interview with the president he showed you the dupli-
cate which lie had kept l-A. One copy of the contract, because they were both pre-
cisely alike. lie showed me one altered.

Q.You dlaim, that the one lie showed you had been altered I-A. Yes.
Q.To the extent you have mentioned I-A. Precisely.
Q.Did you at the time refer to Mr. Moss I-A. I did later.
Q.low long after t-A. Sorne time afterwards I had a talk witli Mr. Mass. I will

tell you the circumstances if you like.
Q. How long after ?-A. It was some time after I had left the association that I

met Mir. IMoss.
Q. But f rom that time until the time you left the association you neyer referrecl

to Mri. Moss's copy of the agreement l-A. Not at ail, 1 neyer saw him. I was flot on
terms witli iMr. IMoss at the time, but I knew perfectly well there had been an altera-
tion of the contract, which I shall confirm, in my opinion, later, substantially.

Q. You think the change to which you called attention changed the meaning of
the contract ?-A . Oh, certainly. It is so admitted by lawyers and everybody else wlio
have looked at it.

By Mvir. CJoster, K.O., Counsel for th# (Jommittee
Q. Perhaps you lad better explain to the" Comniittee wliat you say is the difference

in the effect of them.?-A. Take the contract as originally executed, the amount of
$3,500 per week was to be charged to lis account and remain charged, but it was to be
accouuted for. It was the duty of the company, under the contract, to say to Mr. Moss
'What have you done with that $3,500 ? Have you distributed that properly V' Mr.
MIoss was to produce the vouchers from the men to whom he had advanced this money,
showing what ha had done with the $3,500 a week, which was to be charged to lis ac-
counts. Now with the elimination of the words 'and remain so charged until satisfac-
torily accounted for,' the word 'until' decidedly says it is to remain cliarged until a
certain time, until it is accounted for, tIen it is to ha taken out. In the altered form
it was to remain charged un Lii an avent happened, that event was 'satisfactorily ac-
counted for.'

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Where was this copy of the contract that you produce taken from h-A. That

was, I think, produced upon a trail first, and a copy made from that. This particular
oua 1 received. They were placed ail before General Tracy, and after the case was
got througli with, ahl the papers in lis biands were handed over to me.

Q. Was this copy which you produce made from Mr. Moss's copy or that of the
president i-A. That of the president. This is a copy of the president's copy, the
original contract.

Q. Then how is it, as you dlaim, the clause read 'and remain sa charged until
satisfactorily accounted for' that these words are not; found liera I-A. You do not
suppose that iMr. Burnham. ever furnishsd the superintendent with the altared con-
tract. lie produced the original. H1e liac two contracts, and lie produced the ori-
ginal to the superintendent. When 1 called the attention of the superintendent to
the altered clause, Mr. Burnham was aware of it, and le gave the saperintendent the
true copy. Hie did not give him the altered copy, the one le sliowed me on my return
£rom England, but lie produced to the superintendent the .original copy, whieh the

îsuperintendent brouglit to me and we examined it carefully as to the change. I tell
you 1 was a little staggered that tlie change was not thare, and it was not until I
learned that Mlose's contract had been given up to him that there was a solution of the
whole thing.

Q. I want to give an opportunity ta remove a difficulty that thera is iu my mind;
I understood you to say that there were two copies of that contract I-A. It was in
duplicate.
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Q. Two original copies i-A. Nat two original; there was the original and a
duplicate.

Q. The contract was executed in duplicate i-A. Yes.
Q. And you said one copy remained with Mr. Mass and the-other with the pre-

aident ?-A. For a time.
Q. And you dlaimi that that of the president was aitered when you saw it i-A.

The one lie showed me.
Q. H1e had oniy' one ?-A. The other had been returned by Mr. iMoss. Mr. Moss's

copy lie had got back, s0 hie had two.
Q. Then this copy which you filéd, instcad of bcing mado from that of the pre-

aident was made frein that of Mr. Moss, that is wliat I understand you ta say t-A. I
do not know which one.

By the Chairman:

Q.You say this was made from a copy that was produceçi in court i-A. Mr.
Burnham gave the Superintendent of Insurance one of the copies; 'tliat is the true
copy. Now the Superintendent of Insurance, upon being cailed upon ta give certified
copies of the contract which iMr. Burnham gave him furnished that. That is how
this originated, whicli the iawyer had in his possession in making out e petition.

Hon. Mr. BÙIQUE.-With a view ta shortening the issue on this point, may I ask
if it is admitted that the contract as executed read as iwý the copy which lias been
produced to-day? I see that the copy produced yesterday is the saine?

Mr. AYLESWOT-It is claimed that there neyer was a change of any descrip-

tion.

WITNqEss.-Wlien lie was found out lie subsLiLuLed the true contrttct.

By Mr. Coster, K.G., Caunsel for Committee:

Q. Were you ever examined before the Department of Insurance of New York
an these charges ?-A. Never.

Q. Wlien Mr. Mass came there ta New York. You say lie liad nat any money ?-
A. H1e liad not. H1e was quite poor.

Q. After hie got this contract, did lie show evidence that bie liad means at lis
disposai ?-A. I should say sa. Vanderbilt was not in it, or anybody else in New
York so far as I know.

Q. State sliortly some of the evidences of it?-A. Mr. Mass gave evidence of the
greatest luxury that a man oî- Vanderbîlt's wealth couid only do in his manner of
living and display. Take for instance bis livery. Rle lad at least fine horses, ta
my knowledge, and lie lad an opera omnibus.

By the Hon. M21r. Domville:

Q. Wliat is an opera omnibus i-A. For going ta the opera. 11e liad one of tliem.
11e had sleiglis and magnificent ro.bes and iivery and took swcll apartments at a very
expensive liotel, Hotel Majestic of iNew York, and ail the evidences of a nouveau riche
lie displayed in a most extravagant way.

By the Han. M21r. Béique:

Q. Wliat amount did hie derive fromn lis cantract as it should have heen inter-
preted; wliat amount was lie likeiy ta derive ?-A. That is if the contract had beeu
carried out?

Q.Yes ?-A. le sliould have made a very fair profit, but not a great deal.
Q.About liow mucli -A. If the provisions of the contract lad been carefuiiy

carried out, it is liard ta say wlat lie sliould have made under the circumstances, lie-
cause the business did not continue.
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Q. During 1897, how mucli did he make from bis contract ?-A. From the con.

tract, if properly carried out, I do flot think lie would have made anything at ail. 1
think it would have been pretty evenly balanced the way lie was doing it. 11e was
giving the agente8 money and allowing them. to keep ail the commissions
and lie could flot have made inucli money out of them. They flot oniy got the ad-
vafitages, bufthey retained the commissions as well.

By the Hon. Mr. MeSweeney:
Q. Your contract would have been a good contract for him ?-A. Yes, a very

good contract, if carried out; and if IMr. Moss had made his agents corne to time and
returned the commissions in cash against which lie had made advances. Mr. Moss-
had a ver7 good and very fair contract, but they kept the commissions and advances
both.

By Mr. Uoster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. When you say they kept the commissions, is that another violation you speak

of-that the agents, retained ail the comomissions ?-A. Yes, in some cases they did.
In some cases they kept 65 per cent and returned 35 per cent to the company; but in
the mnajority of cases they retained the whole 65 per cent and thc advances made by
~Mr. IMoss to giem. What they should have done was to return the whole premium,
liaving received advances from. Mr. iMoss in excess of those premiums they were ire-
ceiving atothe time,,so ail those commissions should have corne back to the oompany
and that would have recouped them for those large advances to IMr. Moss.

Q. And that would have been properly credited to Mir. Moss against tbese ad-
vances ?-A. Certainly.

Q. What you mean by this contract, as I understand, was Mir. Moss was bound
to give vouchers for distributing to the agents in the first place to show that lie was
not keeping it himself, andi then that was to remain charged to him until the agents
paid it back in cash ?-A. Certainly.

Q. But as a matter of fact,' under this contract, the way they worked it they
ellowed it to remain chaxgedl to him only until lie gave the vouchers, and then they
wrote it off ?-A. Yes.

Q. 5o they gave him credit without getting any money?-A. Yes, in many cases.
In other cases the agent not only retained bis commission, but the entire premiums
and when they sent in accounts iMr. Moss was credited with 20 per cent, bis «over
riding commission upon the premium, without-ihe company getting a cent and then
retaining everything.

Q. What would that make the cost of the business?-A. In cases of that kind it
would make the business 100 per cent and the twenty per cent.

Q. And the advances in addition ?-A. And the advances in addition, that is in
cases wbere the agent retained the whole of the flrst premîum.

Q. You say Mir. Moss owed tIc company how mucli altogether ?-A. I should say
that Mir. lMoss, on determination of that contract, owed the company at least two
liundred and forty or two hundred and fifty thousand dollars, if tIe account lied been
properly made up.

Q. When was this contract cancellcd do you know ?-A. This contract was enu-
celled early in 1898.

Q. Jannary 1898 ?-A. Yes, Januery 1898.
Q. Did yon sign this new contreet ?-A. I did not. That was made whule I wes

in Englend.
Q. What were you doing in England ?-A. I wes there on business of tIe com-

,peny.
Q. For how long ?-A. I was there I sliould say about ten months. I left New

York in 1897, early in June orJuly and I did flot get back until 1898, in May.j think.
Q. Have you reed that contract ?-A. I have read it. I read it at the home

office I have not lied it in my possession lately.
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Q. lIn what respects did it differ £rom the previous one i-A. lit differed in a few
respects. lIn the flrst place the advances were reduced to $2,500 a week instead of
$3,500 a week.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

QI see the $3,500 per week was reduced to $2,500 -A. Yes, and there are
other important changes in it.

Q. it rend in the same way 'Advances to agents'?-A. Exactly. There is an
amount retained of his commission by the association which was not in the other.
e The compensation to be allowed said party of the second part shall be an overriding
comission of ten per cent of the first year's premium received from and after the
commencement of this contract, upon business secured in the United States under' the
different plans. ilere is the point I wish to get at-- 'That of the aforesaid over
riding commission of ten per cent iipon the llrst year's premiumn the said party of the
second part shaîl be paid five per cent, or one haîf thereof monthly, in accordance
with monthly statements to be rendered to said party of the second part, and approved
by eaeh of thle parties hereto, and that the remaining part of said overriding com-
mission of ten per cent shall be held by the said association as sedurity for advances
made to agents under this contract, and be allowed and paid to the party of the se-
cond part only to the extent that such advances are secured and covered by the de-
ferred commissions and renewals of agents to whom advances may have been made,
based upon a three years purchase.' I contend there is proof of what the intention
was in the former contract as to advances being charged directly to bis account and
remain charged, because there they make provision for getting back a portion of
those advanccs, one haîf of ton por cent or five per cent to be applied to lasses of
agents Lo whoum ho would make advances.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. ihey made him guarantee advanc.es -A. Yes, out. of the commission.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q. What moncys were those advances made out of?~ Were they assessments on
policies ?-A. They were made out cf the general funds. They must have corne ont
of the dues account of the funds of the company. lI would not say they were taken
out of the mortuary moneys. They were taken no doubt out of the du~es aucount.
The dues account is an account if there was any excess over expenses they could be
applied to payment of death losses, but that neyer occurred in the history of the Com-
pany, as far as my knowledge goes, but that wa.s the provision made, lI think, in the
constitution and hylaws that'any excess of the dues moncy should go to the mortuary
account.

By lion. Mr. Beique:

Q. Had you anything to do with the makiný of the third contract i-A. lI was in
England at the time.

By Mr. CJoster, K.O., Counsel for the (Jommittee:

Q.Re got $1i.50 per thousand on renewals v-A. Yes.
Q. Was the contract carried out ?-A. lit was not. There was a very important

violation of that contract.
Q. lIn what respect l-A. lInstead of conflning the advances to $92,500 a week, as

provided in the contract, the advances under the old contract were continued of $3,500
a week, until about my return, or just about before 1 came home. They paid $3,500
altogether that was abrogated and $2,500 should have been paid.
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B~y the lion. Mr. Watson:
Q. What is the differenoe between the dates of the contract l-A. More than a

year's difference, and it was kept up I think for several weeks after the execution of
the contract-

Q. That is contract No. 3 i-A. Yes, contract No. 3.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q.I think the letter of John W. Vrooman has already been put ini evidence I-A.

Yes.
Q. These are some of the irregularities that Mr. Burnham's attention is called to

in that letter I-A. Yes.
Q. IDid any others than Mr. Vrooman and yourself eall his attention to irregulari-

ties ?A. Yes, the auditor, Mr. Hoffecker, sent him the following letter :(Filed as ex-
hibit No. 24.)

APRIL 22, 1898.
F. A. BuLINHAm, Esq.,

President.

IDEAR SiRi,-I cannot conscientiously make the adjustments called for by the eu-
closed. orders, while the accounts involved are in their present condition.

If sudh protest should terminate my connection with this association, this letter
will serve as my resignation.

I have always endeavoured to follow your early instructions to me. to act without
fear or favour; and in this instance, feel that I arn but strictly adbering to my duty.

Yours very truly,
J. S. HOFFECKER,

Auiditor of Accounts.

Q. Is the letter now produed in Mr. Hoffecer's haudwriting anid a copy of a
lotter hc sent to Mr. Buiriidiant ?-A. Yes, that is upon a particular matter which I will
explain.

By the Hon M1r. Beique:
Q. Have you any means of tracing what the enclosed orders were ? A. Yes.

The orders there that ho refors to wero a matter of commission claimod by an agent by
the name of Halsey. Under the metropolitan contract, the first contract, it seems iMr.
iMoss was paid the entiro commissions including and due Mr. Eialsoy on business that
Mr. Halsey lad secured. This commission he did not allow Mr. Halsey aud did not
repay him. iMr. llalsey handed over the entire cash to Mr. Moss, which iMr. Moss re-
tained, paying the company, I suppose, the twenty-flve per cent or whatever the dif-
ference was betwoen the conditions allowed under lis contract and one hundred per
cent. Advances were mnado to Mr. llalsey amounting to about $8,000; advances and
balances due him $8,000-

By, the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. By Mr. Mosa I-A. No, but by the company. At that time, under the flrst con-

tract, Mr. Halsey claimed there were three thousand dollars commissions on business
whicl le should have credit for, thus reducing lis account from $8,000 to $5,000. Ac-
counts were brougît to Mr. Hoffecker to 'O.K.' for this $3,000 and charge the ainount
to IMr. Moss's account. This the auditor rofused to do. H1e said, 1 we paid already the
commissions upon this business to Mr. Moss; therefore, I obj oct to paying it over again
or crediting Mr. Halsey with commissions, which will be equal to paying the coMmms-
sions twice.' The matter was referred to the president. I think we lave an affidavi-b.
fromt IMr. lloffecker relating the whole of the circumstances. The matter was roferred
to the president who took the ground that IMr. lMoss's account ouglit to le good for it.
IMr. iloffeeker took the ground that he did not think it was, and that le should not
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audit those accounts in that way. That is what lie refers to. Subsequently I saw the
account inyseif. The amount was credited to bis account, and at that time ha had bis
account showing a balance of $5,000, while the books showed $8,000. They did flot
pass the credit on the books, aithougli, in his acount, they did give him credit for the
$8,000, irrespective of Mr. Hoffecker's protest.

By Mr. Cos ter, K.C., Counsel for the Commit tee.:
Q. At page 10, section 2, of the statemant submittad ta the Senate by the com-

pany, it reads Fis follows:
'In the matter of the letter of one Hoffecker, formerly a clark and one of the audi-

tors of the~ company, it is suiaient to say that he was dïscharged from the employ of
the company for an attempt to extort the very large increasa in salary by threats
againat the management, and in this discliarge Mr. J. B. Wells participated.'

What have you to say about that ?-A. That is entirely incorrect.
Q. 1 eall yaur attention to these documnents-teli me what they arp.-A. This

first one is a copy of a latter written to me by J. S. iHoffecker, as chairman of the ex-
ecutive committee.

Q. Inclosing a copy of bis resîgnation sent that day to the president l-A. Yes.

(Filed as Exhibit No. 25.)

MUTUAL IRESERVE BUILDING,

J. D WELs, Eq.,305, 307, 309, BROADWAY, NEW YORK, July 9, 1898.

Obairman Executive Committee.

T)EAR Sin,-I herewith inclose a copy of my resignation which I hava this day
sent ta President F. A. Burnham.

Yours very truly,

J. S. IIOFFECKER,

MUTUAL RESERVE BUILDING,
305, 307, 309 BROADWAY, NEW YORK, JUly 9, 1898.

F. A. BURNHAm, Esq.,
President.

DEAR SIm,-I hereby tender my resignation, ta take effect at once.
Our ideas of common honesty and integrity of management which pledge us ta

the members of this association, are so radically different, that, possassed as I arn of
the personal and positive knowledge of so many questionable transactions which have
been approvad by you, I cannot and will nat be further connected with this associa-
tion under yaur management.

Yours truly,

ý(Signed) J. S. IIOFFECKER,
Auditor of Accounts.

Q. Would you kindly explain ta the members of the Committee what yau did
when you raceived this latter of Mr. Hoffecker's, resigning i-A. IMr. Burnham re-
ceived that letter and callad the executive committea together. There ware present
Mr. Eldridge, Mr. Burnbam, myself, and I think-I arn nat quite certain, but I think
-one othar member, Mr. Harper, a brother'of the late president. I think lie was
present. The committea were convened, and lie read this letter of Mr. lloffecker's
and was very much exasperated, and, of course, danounced bim in every way he could
for writing a latter of that kind, and instea4 of accepting bis resignation, lie pro-
posed then and there it should go on the books that lie should be dismissed. 'f at
accaunts for his dismissal, instead of accepting bis rasignation as Mr. Iloffeeker
designed. That day, lie lef t wben lie sent the latter. iMr. Burnham convened the
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executive committee, and, after reading the letter, he then proposed that he should
be dismissed after his resignation.

By the Chairman:
Q. You were one of the directors at that time q-A. Yes, I was chairman of the

executive committee.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Was there a minute nmade of the meeting l-A. I cannot say. We seldoni have
any one taking minutes of an executive meeting. 'What was donc afterwards, I do flot
know, but I do not think any minutes were taken down, but that was the resolution
put and carried.

By the Chair-man:
Q. You put the motion yourseif ?A. Yes, 1 was in the chair. At the same time

I remarked before it WS put that I was sorry, we were losing a very valuable man,
and I thouglit it was a mistake bis leaving the association.

Q. Did you over bcar of Mr'. ilufleeker having made a demand for a large increase
in bis salary, as stated in this ?-A. 1 ' never did.

Q. Or any increase ?-A. Not at ail; I neyer heard of it, and I would have heard
of it, if he had.

Q. You do not believe lic ever made such a demand?-A. Hc may possibly have
made a demand of iMr. Burnham personally.

By the Uhairman:
Q. Would you have been in a position to, know if lie had made a demand l-A.

Unquestionably, as chairman of the committee, it should have corne before me.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the -Committee:
Q. You say there was a resolution passed after receiving bis resignation, dismis-

sing Mr. Hoffecker l-A. Yes.
Q. Were inducements ever offered to Mr. ilofferker to corne back?-A. There

werC.
Q. After bis liaving been dismissed?-A. After bis liaving been dismissed.
Q. Wliat do you know about that ?-A. I know Mvr. Hoffecker was sent for, I

think, by the attorney, IMr. George Burnham, brother of the president, and an appoint-
ment made to meet him, which I think was donc at some meeting, and an arrange-
ment for IMr. lloffccker to corne to the office and have an interview with the presi-
dent, which lie did. At that meeting betwecn the president and him-

iMr. AYLEswoaTH.-Were you present l
WIrNESS.-I was flot present, but lis letter explains that certain inducement-
iMir. AYLESWORTH1 objeets.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Do you know the letter now shown you, filed as Exhibit No. 26, to, be a copy

of a letter sent by IMr. Ho ifecker to IPresident Burnharn at that time i-A. I do.
Q. It is in bis own handwriting, is it not i-A. Yes, it is in hi3 own handwriting.

The lettor is as follows.-
<Exhibit No. 26.) NEw YoRK, August 3, 1898.
F. A. BURNHÂm, Esq.,

President of iMutual IReserve Fund ]Life Association,
New York.

DEAR Sîa,-Referring to our interview of yesterday at which time you offered me
certain inducements to overlook the patt and rcturn to the association, I beg to gay I
must, after consideration, decline the same.

Yours truly,
(Sgd.) J. S. ROFFEOKER.

WELIS
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By the Chairman:
Q. IDid Mir. Burnham, the president at that time, ever consuit with you in re-

gard to having lloffecker return to the company ?-A. Yes I was going on to explain
that and I was stopped.

By M. Coster, Counsel foyr the Committee:
Q.You can explain conversations between you and the president about the mat-

ter ?-A. I had different conversations with the president in regard to Mr. lloffeckercoming back and it was a great mistake, in the condition of the company, to allow hirnto go and, probably, owing to those conversations that lie had with the president, andbe also had conversations, as I arn in-formed, with IMr. Vroornan, but 1 cannot posi-tively swear to that. Anyway it resulted in iMr. iloffecker being sent for, and also Ihad known of Mr. Burnham receiving that letter and know personally of the interview
having taken place, because Hoffecker came to the office and I saw him go into thepreeident's quarters at the time appointed to meet thé- prp,çidient and I also know Mr.
Burnham received that letter afterwards by bis admission to me that lie did.

By the Chairman:
Q. You were anxious to bave lloffecker return to the company ?-A. Certainly.Q. As a faithful servant ?-A. Yes.

By M1r. Coster, Counsel for the (Jommittee:
Q. You said before, 1 think, that you thouglit lie was a very valuable man i-A.

Certainly he was.
Q. Did you shut your eyes then to these irregularities then, and what did youdo? Why did you get out, too I-A. I did not get out. I proposed to go out. I hadan interview with IMr. Lawrence, the special counsel of the company, and related to

him-

By the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. When I-A. Oh a long-let me see, when that first interview with Lawrence

took place-oh yes, it was aîter Vrooman resigned, and after General James resigned.
After their resignation I met Mr. Lawrence-

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. What date I-A. That was in 1898, the summer of 1898. 1 cannot tell you

the exact date.
Q. How long after it I-A. It was very shortly after the resignation of Mr. Vroo-

man or General James. I do not remember the exact date, but it was in the suminer
Of 1898.

Q. That what I-A. That I had an interview with Mr. Lawrence upon the diffi-culties, and said to him that I had made up my mind to resign, and lie begged of menot to resigu. H1e said, 'No, Mr. Wells, you and Mr. Burnham must hold on, or you
maust hold on and help Mr. Buruhain bring matters about.'

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:
Q. Bring what matters about ?-A. That is bring the condition of the company

to a better standing than it was at the time-he pressed me to do that.

By Mr. Coster, G'ounsel for the Cornmittee:
Q. And therefore you stayed on 1-A. Not on that account.
Q. But in spite of these irregularities you did stay on 1-A. Unquestionably I

did stay on.
Q. What excuse have you for that I-A. I had several interviews with Mr. Burn'-

ham upon what was going on, and the reason I did stay on was because Mr. Burn-
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ham agreed to resign at the next meeting. That was the actual reason why I re-
mained.

Q. And you thouglit you would get rid of the other members of the management
and get good mn in1 their places ?-A. Yes.

Q. You thought you were strong enough to do that l-A. Yes, with lis co-opera-
tion; that is, his resigning.

Q. You say lie had agreed to resign ?-A. H1e did.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. Was the suggestion made by you or him, that is the suggestion that lie should

resign I A. I suggested it.

By Mr. Coster, Gounsel for the Committee:

Q. Then you say you had a conversation with Mir. Burnham with reference to
these irregularities referred to. by Mir. I-loffeeker I-A. Oh yes, several of them.

Q. Was it flot part of your duty as a member, and chairman of the executive
board to, pass on the voucliers for the expenditure of moneys in connection with the ex-
penditure of ail moneys in connection with the business of the association I-A. As
one of the executive committee it would be my duty. It would not be necessary that 1
should pass upon every one because there mniglit ba a dozen.

Q. Two would be enougli -A. It requires three members of the executive ; I
thinli there was a financial board or committee meeting that probably could pass in tha
absence of the executive committee.

Q. You were in the habit of signing vouchers, were you?-A. Yes, in the ganeral
run of business, vouchers would corne to me.

Q. I only want to draw your attention to the matter of vouchers. Do you know of
any directions being given that vouchers could not be presented to you ?-A. I do.
Suddenly, for a time, I received no vouchers for my sanction. They stopped. No
vouchers were sent to me at ail for several days although I was in the habit every day
Up to that time of signing and approving of oortnin vouchers.

By the Hon. Mr. Beique:

Q. When was that I A. That was in July of 1898, after my return. As chair-
man of the ezecutive committee I had to sign vouchers. They suddenly stopped and
it lookad very extraordinary to me, and iMr. Hoffecker, the auditor, came to me and he
said, 'Mr. Wells, I have received orders not to send any vouchers to either you or Mr.
Vrooman for your signatures.'

Q. That is the Hon. J. W. Vroman, the treasurer I-A. Yes. 'Indeed,' I said.
'Who did you gat those from V' He said, 'MYlr. Underbili came down to my office and
gave the orders as coming from the president that no more vouchers were to be sent
either to you or Vrocoman.'

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:

Q. Was that after you suggested to the president that lie should resign l-A. No.

Q. That was in July, before you suggested it I-A. Yes.

Dy Mr. Cioster, K.O., Coun sel for the CJommittee:

Q. Did you write the preside nt a lettar at that time I-A. Yes.
Q. About this matter I-A. I dîd.
Q. Is that a copy of the letter I-A. This latter, I think, is a subsequent latter.

This is the l5th July. I wrote that letter about this time. There is another letter re-
ferring these vouchers whichis a later letter.

Q. 1 want to get one in at a time. This latter was recaived by Mir. Burnham, do

you know I-A. I sent it by one of the call-boys in attendance there right into lis
room. This letter is to F. A- Burnhiam, signed J. B. Wells, vice-presidant, dated July
l5th, 1898, and reads as follows:



THE MUTUAL ZE>SERJE FUND LIFE Â>%8OCIÂTION 255

APPENDIX No. 1

'(Exhibit No. 27.)

F. A.BURNAm, sq.,NEW YORK, JUly 15, 1898.

iPresident Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association,
New York, IN.Y.

DEAR SiR,-You have been president of the MlutuaI Reserve for about tliree years.
W/len you took command, you found it strong, rich and prosperous. You found it
firmly establisbed in the confidence of the public. You found its business steadily ini-
creasing, and by gigantic strides. You found its rccord of administration pureu, lioiest
and irreproachable. You found its staff of executive officers and agents not only well
instructed in their wurk and duties, but full of zeal and enthusiasm.

You found yourself at the head of- one of the best equipped corporations in
America, and you were furnished with powers, which, if wisely and prudently exer-
cised, might have accomplishcd almost anything.

The contrast between the conditions of the association then and now is startling;
but, under the circumstances, it is useless at present to go into details. The principal
object of this letter is to put myseif on record as to several imporfant matters, and
particularly as to the management of the agency department, since you placed it under
the control of Mr. Moss. It goes without saying that the success of the insurance coin-
pany depends on its agents. They are the heart and soul, the blood and life of the in-
stitution It was my anxious duty, during the time I had charge of the agency de-
partment, to select the best men, and when I recaîl tbe namês I feel proud of them.
They_ were carefully chosen. Nearly ail the chiefs were *experîenced business men;
they were not only earnest and intelligent, but as a rule they occupied good social
positions, and in a practical way, guaranteed the respectability of the association.We were not, duiring my tiime, very inucli embtrrasscd with the difficuit question of
advances (n agents. We discouraged the practice as much as possible, and not a single
dollar was so advanced witliout submitting the~ application to the agency committee,
or without carefully discussing the special cire ui-, tances of each case; and in each
sucli case a vouchcr was rcquircd, signed by three ofilcers, and the checks jas aed tliereoi
were also signed by three officers of the association. Iu fact, when I handed over the
agency department to my successor, Mr. Moss, it was in a healthy and satîsfactory Con-
dition as to the personnel of the agents, the state of their accounts and the new busi-
ness they were daily sending into the head office.

For the three years prior to Mr. Moss assumîng charge of the agency department,
the.new business'actually written was as follows:

1894........................$66,408,886
Th95.................................69,738,790

1896.........................73,086,330
W/hile for the year 1897, during Mr. Moss' administration, the business, notwith-

standing the fact that extraordinary facilities for securing bnsiness was granted him,
amounted only to $56,234,728, a large propoition of which, being a transfer from the
frftecn-year plan to the five-year plan; and from the statement of lapses both on old
and new business, presented recently to the board of directors, showing a decrease of
revenue amounting to about $100,000 annually ou dues account alone, together wîth
the fact that the new business of the present year is rapidly falling off, there eau be
but one opinion, that the management of the agency departmnent under Mr. Moss has
been most disastrous to the association. W/heu I concnrred in the coutract which you
made witli IMr. lMoss early in 1897, I had misgivings and apprehiensions, but you were
promised by Mr. Moss one hundred millions of new business'for the first year, and you
were so sanguine of his success, that I deemed it useless to oppose it, moreover, the
contract contained the usual provisions for cancellation at any time, and I considered
this a reasonable safeguard.

W/heu I first saw the contract, it was in your hands and ready for signature.
The provisions of this contract were substantially as follows :-Mr. IMoss' salary was

WELLS
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fixed at $100 per week ($5,200 per annum), hie was allowed a commission of 85 per
cent on the flrst year's premiums received on business extending over the whole of the
United States, and for the purpose of making advances to agents, lie was to be paid
$3,500 per week ($182,000 per annum), which payments were to be charged to him on
the books, and lie deducted from the commissions earned by the agents and himself.
The maximum commissions allowed to bis agents being 65 per cent, tbis affording t0
Mr,. Moss himself an overriding commission, or margin, of 20 per cent at least. It
is obvious that the working out of this agreement from week to week required careful
watching. Vouchers should have been furnished and explanations should have been
made as to the character of the agents, and the circumstances under wbich each
advance was made, considering that you were presumedly and officially responsible
for this contract; considering its wide scope and the large amount of money it in-
volved, and considering your own extensive powers as president, I lea4e it to your
own business sense whether it was not your duty to have demanded sucli vouchers
and explanations, and to have exercised a constant and careful supervision over Mr.
Moss and bis methods.

You did the very opposite of tbis: you practically' relieved Mr .Moss of the per-
sonal liability imposed upon bim by the contract in respect of the weekly advances;
you demanded no vouchers, you exercised not supervision; you instructed the officers
in charge of bis account to credit him with whatever lie reported as having been paid
to the agents out of the weekly advances; you sanctioned the retention by the agents
of their own commissions, and, under your instructions, iMr. Moss was paid 2,0 per
cent upon the total premiums of the United States business of 1897. One voucher,
dated January 15, 1898, was signed by you, crediting iMr. iMoss wich $93,810. Other
similar vouchers were signed by you shortly afterwards, coveri'ng $7,421, for com-
missions claimed by iMr. iMoss to be due to him under that contract, and after it had
been cancelled.

At the time these payments were made to Mr. iMoss, lie was, under the provisions
of the contract referred to, personally chargeable with $158,000 in respect to the
wookly advonoce to him. Tt makw; no differoncio that nnder youlr instrunotions this
debt was shifted froni bis sholilders to the shoulders of the agents.

Enrly in 1898, the contract of 1897 was cancelled and a new one made, but not
on quite so large a scale. The weekly payments'to iMr. iMoss were reduced to $2,500ý
per week-equal to $130,000 per annum-but bie is permitted by it to make advances
to the agents without himself incurring any liability to the association in respect 10
tbem. In addition to the payments made to IMr. iMoss under both contracts, the asso-
ciation bas paid, under bis instructions, and upon agency account, several thousand
dollars to other persons, officially known as inspectors, for salaries and disbursements.

iMany of these worthy gentlemen, baving most îndiscreetly been furnished with
lists of our members, are now in tbe employ of old-line companies. But even worse
than the financial loss is the discontent and the demoralization of the force. IMr.
Moss bas bad the miafortune to make bimself universally disliked. There is no longer
any cordiality between tbe agents and the association, and the fine esprit de corps
wbich formerly characterized the force, and which Mr. Harper so keenly appreciated,.
no longer exista.

Wheu Mr. Moss took charge of the Agency Department, hit held the position of
inetropolitan agent. Hie was comparatively a new man, and we knew very little
about him, except lie was a man of extraordinary energy. 11e was in embarrassed
circumstances at the time, and you remember that the association advanced him
funds, not only for bis maintenance, but for the purpose of compromising bis debts in
ILondon. We afterwards learned that hie had left ILondon under a cloud, but almost
simultaneously with the signing of the first contract, or very shortly afterwards, lie
began the usual extravagant display of a nouveau riche, and hie kept up dais display
until now with a briliancy wbich increases daily, and wbich is, unfortunately, com-
xnented upon by the public, and to the great injury to the association,.
WELLS
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A great many of the metropolitan policy-bolders are solid and practical business
men, for the most part in an inquisitive humour just now, and tbey have an awkward
'habit of putting two and two together. The recent increase ini the assessments bas,
ini my judgment, been the culmnination of mistakes and extravagances.

The transfer of wbat is called the flfteen-year plan to the flve-year plan was one
of these mistakes. The direct effect of it was to, deplete the mortuary £und to the
extent of one year's assessment on the amount transferred, saying nothing of the dis-
turbance to our policy-holders caused by the questionable metbods of many of the
canvissers to wbom the transfer business was deiegated, and which. resultcd' in a
large amount of lapses auiong the best lives of the flfteen-year class.

And when we consider the enormous sum paid to Mr. iMoss for advances to the
agents, the rnost of which is lost money, the legal expenses which have been incurred
in consequence of the reapportionment, the conversion of more than 25,000 friends
into bitter enemies, and the actual deficit which. already appears in the last three
calis, '95, '96 and '97, as compared with the preceding cails, we lcarn what readjust-
ment really means.

I firmly believe that by a wise and economical management the Mutu-al iReserve
can still be made one of the strongest insurance companies in Ainerica. A convulsion
in the affaira of the New York TÂfe a few years ago, which. was also an agency matter
to a large extent, and a rise against extravagance, saved that fine old company £rom
ruin, and under the present distinguislhed president and manager it bas become
stronger than ever. Is this not an object lesson to the policy-bolders of the Mutual
iReserve ?

I cannot close this letter without giving you my views, shortly,, as to what ought
to be done:

1. Cancel the Moss contract.
2. Appoint a liiance committee with power to supervise and control aIl expendi-

tures of money.
3. Employ an independent accountant of high standing to investigate and report

the accounts between Mr. Mosa and the association.
4. Appoint a committee to inquire and report as to the best metbod of reducing

the expenses.
5. Carefully consider the possibilities, legal and otherwise, of decreasing the

assessment rates of the frfteen-year members.
In making the last suggestion, I have regard to the opinion of the State Superin-

tendent in bis recent report: 'The reserve accumulations belong principa4~ to the
five and ten-year classes.'

I said farewell to Mr. Harper a few days before lie died, and wben be was upon
bis death-hed. lis mind was full of the old subject and, I thouglit, full of appre-
bensions, and, elasping my hand, lie said: 'Promise me, my old friend, that you will
stick to the ship.' ,

I have done so, and shail continue to do so, no matter what it costs. I can neyer
forget the precepts and the principles and memory of E. B. Harper. I know wbat be
would do to-day, if lie were here, and so do you. Old friends are better than new.
Cave canem.'

Yours very truly,
J. D. WELLS,

2nd Vice-P resident.
By the Chairman:

Q. Was tbat before you resigned ?-A. Oh yes, early in July.
Q. How long did you remain in the company after sending that letter l-A.

'Until January 25.
Q.That was six montha l-A. Yes.

WELL3
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By Mr. Cos ter, GCunsel for the Committee:

Q. So there was a meeting of the executive held 80011 after you sent this letter

to Mr Burnham l-A. There was, either the same day or at that time. I remember
Mr. Burnham calling the executive together.

Q. What was done 'aîter that meeting l-A. I think it was Mr. Eldridge got up

and spoke of my long connection with the company, my services to the company and

what a faithful servant I had been, I had been a faithful officer, and lie said he had

a motion to make which was to the effeet that $50 a week shouid lie added to my
salary.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q.That was after your remonstrance l-A. Certainly.

By the Hom. Mr. MeSweeney:

Q.What salary were you getting at that time?-A. I was getting $200 a week

and Mr. Eldridge got up after this speech eulogizing myself-I look upon ît now-as
taffy and did then-

By the Chairman:

Q. What was lis proposition l-A. lus proposition simply was that fifty dollars

a week should lie added to my saiary.

By Mr.: Coster, Counsel for the Committee:

Q Did you refuse that oifer l-A. Yes.
Q.Was the refusai in writing -A. Yes.
QIs that a copy of it ?-A. Yes. The president aiso got up at the same time,

and seconded the motion.
Q. Exhibit 28 reads as follows:

iNEw YoRK, Juiy 18, 1898.

J.A. ]JURNITAMý, Esq., 1'resident.

MY DEAR MR. BUIINHAm-While appreciating the action of the execuLive com-

mittee in increasing my remurjeration by fifty dollars per week, I cannot, in view of

the present financial condition of the association consistently accept of this increase.

Thie duty of the management is now plain. *Every expenditure should lie carefuily

considered and when practicable cut down with a view of creating as large a surplus

as possible frour dues income, and adding the same to our mortuary funds for the

paymnent of death losses. You will therefore, if instructions have been given the pay-

master to add fifty dollars per week to my saiary, have the same countermanded as I

cannot, under any circumstances, receive it. As I desire in my officiai capacity as

chairman of the executive conunittee, to inspeet and verify ecd week the pay rolis,

kindly instruct Mr. Butts, or whoever is in charge of them, to submit thema to me,

as lie informs me his instructions are not to aiiow anyone to sec them without your

orders.
Yours respectfuliy,

(Sgd.) J. D. WELLS,
Chairman Executive Committee.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. Were you getting commissions at that time, outside of the salary l-A. No,

none whatever.
Q. Straiglit salary I-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for th2e Committee:

Q.You had been getting $15,000 a; year I-A. Yes, before the salaries were all

reduccd.
WELIS
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Q. You reduced it down to $1O,000 a year I-A. Yes.
Q. When was it reduced I-A. Oh, sometime early in the summer. I forget the

exact date.
Q. Alter you wrote this letter ?-A. Oh no, before.

By the Uhairman:
Q. Thlere was a general reduction in salaries l-A. Yes.

By M1r. Coster, Counset for the Committee:
Q. One-third ail rouind I-A. That is in regard to certain officers, the execLutive

offioors, one-third of their salaries was cut off. That is what Vrooman refers to in
his letter, that he'quite agreed with.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Who suggested that reduction I-A. I. first suggested the reduction to Mr.

Burnham. alter the report he brought down to the Rouse, that we were $100.000 be-
hind in our dues accourit, and this was one of the things that I suggested Tu hima
that he should do, make a reduction ail round, in the salaries of the officers of the
association.

Q. You say there was a meeting of the executive committee, when this fifty dol-
lars was suggested to be added to your salary ?-A. Yes.

Q. Was your letter, which has just been read, before the cornmittee I-A. It hiad
been sent in to iMr. Burnham. It did flot corne before the executive committee. It
went to him.

Q. You do not know whether the members of the executive committee knew of
it I-A. Hie must have known.

Q. But the other members?-A. No, I do not think they did.
Q. It had just been sent in I-A. Yes, u day or two before this..

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Cornmittee:
Q. Alter you wrotc this letLer to, Mr. Burnham, was this increase offered to you

again, or what happened t-A. It was. The paymaster, in goîng his rounds, paying,
instead of bringing me the regular two hundred, brought me two huiidred and fifty.

Q. What did he say I-A. 11e remarked: 'I brou ght you a surprisc, IMr. Wells,
I brought you a pleasant surprise.' I said, 'What is it t' Hie said, 'An addition to
your salary.' I said, 'Mr. Butts, I cannot accept that,' and I took out fifty dollars,
and handed it back to him, and I said to him, 'Take it back to the président.' 11e
said it was on his pay-rolI, he could flot wcll do that. I said, 'You can do what y7ou
like with it. 1 wiil flot accept it.' And he finally left me, takîng -back the extra fifty
dollars.

Q. Was -ýhe question of reducing expenses discussed by the board of directors I-
A. It was.

Q. What led up- to the discussion before the board, do you remember I-A. Mr.
Burnham brought down a statement, showing that we were-

Q. IRecommnendations, do you mean I-A. All the recommnendations were brought
in by Mr. Eldridge-is that what you refer to I

Q. Go riglit on shortly I-A. iMir. Burnham explained to the board that there was
a falling off in the dues, the receipts of the year, and it was something they wanted
the board to take into considération, what was best to be donc. Hie proposed that the
matter should beleft to iMr. Eldridge to hring dowri a statement as to what reductions
in expenses could be made, and what savings could be suggested by him for their con-
sideration. Those suggestions Mr. Eldridge subsequently did make-brought down
recommendations.

Q. iRecommendations were hrought down by IMr. Eldirdge?-A. Yes.
Q. Is that a copy of the recommendations brought down by him I-A. Thjs is the

copy.
WELIS
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By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Ils there any date on it l-A. I do not think there is any date on it. Lt was

hianded to the directors.

Mr. ELDRLGE.-I brouglit dowu the recommendations on August 19, 1898.

WrrN&ss.-That 18 the time Mr. Eldridge brought in his recommendations.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:
Q. And this was handed to you at the meeting I-A. Copy of that was handed to

each one of the directors.

By the Lion. Mr. Béique:
Q.You say you returned lifty dollars that was brought to you I-A. Yes, I handed

it back to the paymaster.
Q. And the next week I-A. The next week my regular two hundred dollars was

paid.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:
Q. They neyer offered it you again I-A. No, once was enough.

Mr. COSTrER.-The recommendations dated August 19, 1898, reads as follows:

(Exhibit No. 29.)
August 19, 1898.

RECOMMENDATIONS.

It is mnanifest that to the end of maintaining equilibrium between income and

expenditure, there should be a reduction approaching $500,000 annually from. the

scale of expenses and advinices of the first six months of the current year. As the

united expenses and advances of that period were practically $1,000,000, this means

that the expenses and advances should be adjusted to a scale of not over $1,500,000
for the year. Allewing fur possible roduction innew business resulting fromn such a

course, there should, if possible, be even a reduction of 10 per eont on tis sum, britng-

ing the total sum to, say, $1,350,000. As the reduction in salaries already made did

flot affect the llrst six months of the year, such reduction woùld, apply in part to that

proposed. An expenditure of $1,500,000 means $28,850 per week. One of $1,350,000
,means $26,000.

The expenditures of the past six months by weeks have been as follows:

Expenditures by Week.

1. Agents' comnmissions.................$12,220
2. Advances.. .. .. .................... 4,900
3. Collectors' commissions. ............... 1,170

4. Salaries, dues....................4,410
5. Salaries, mortuary............ ........ .. 3,470
6. Examination fees....................800
7. IRent (other than ground rent).............1,820
8. Taxes........................1,170
9. Printing and advertising...............1,910

10. Legal........................500
il. Travelling......................430
12. Postage.......................800
13. Agency.......................500
14. General......................2,020
15. Investigation, &c...................2,100
16. hlviscellaneous.....................280

W1ELLS $38,5w0
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The accomplialiment of the end desired is not compatible with the push for new
business that has characterized the management of the institution in the past. I arn
satisfied, therefore, that our course of action in the future must be ini the conservation
of the business now on our books, the preservation and enhancement of our income,
and the writing of such new business as is written upon a readjusted scale of pre-
miums that will build up a business which can respond to, the dcmands of valuation
and reservation, such as is now to be pla«ed upon us, probably withun a twelvemonth.

Taking up the items in the order above:
1. Agents' commissions will respond to the business written, and a reduction in

amount which is not due to reduction ini pereentage will be fol'.owed by reduction in
income from new business and saving, cannot, therefore, be calculated on here.

2. 1 would recommend that advances be strictly limited'to a sumi not exceeding
$1,000 per week, and that such advanees be eharged to expense at their net amount for
the year in the report of condition at end of year.

3. I would recommend that ail collectors he placed on a 2lper cent basis, reducing
them from 5 per cent wberc that prevails.

4.-5. There has already been a reduction in this item of about $1,800 per week. I
would recommend the canvassing of evcry employec of the association and the rigid
retirement of every one not needed. Wherc large salaries are paid to men performing
services that can be performed by meni who earn smaller salaries, it should be donc.
There should be possible a further reduction of say $500 per week ini these items.

[Marked ini blue pencîl on this exhibit are
6. Will rcspond to amount of business. ý the following words: Remît with each ap-

I.plication, unedical f ce.
7. Every officer outside the home office should be taken up and reductions made.

At the home office there should be consolidation and reduction of room. occupied. 'Wbile
this is an expenditure that will responél less promnptly than others, it should be possible
to rcduce say $800 per week.

8. Taxesi are beyond coutrol of management.
9. (In blue pencil:) Printing and advertisung, while held within much dloser

amounts than in former ycars, sbould be carefully taken in hand, with a vicw of saving
say $500 weekly.

14. (In Nlue pencil: Finance and Audit.) The general expenses arc mucli larger
than in the preccding period and the increase has been in part due to reapportionmcent.
Their character should be investigated and tbey should be capable of reduction to an
amount of at lcast $500.

15. (In blue pencil: Death Claims.) The record of business written in the last year
from the standpoint of death loss is such as to cast grave doubt of the effieiency of our
supervision of applications, so far as it may have effeet ini protecting us against losses.
The expenditures of this department should be put under dloser supervision and sbould
be reduced to the point where they yield a return for the money expcnded. I do not
think it unjustifiable to consider it possible to make a reduction of $500 here.

lIn a general way a change of policy ini the matter of plishing for new business
would work reductions in expenditures which are not apparent on the face. 'The re-
versai of policy ini this matter may be mortifyung, but the experiditure which bas been
made in the past year at least has not yicldcd justifiable returns, and I arn certain
the management could flot justify itself if it contunued it. lIn any event, it bas not the
money. I would be willing to assent to a complete discontinuance of advances and to
take the consequences.

It seems to me further that these things sbould be done:
I. Couvert assets into cash and reduce the dcath dlaims to an amount not exceed-

ing two caîls.
2. (Marked in blue pencil: Actuary.) Put out at once readjusted table of rates for

the five-year plan (annual, semi-annual and quarterly) and new plans on higlier rates,
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with provision fixing the reserve thereon by contract, to tbe end of doing such business
as is done on a basis of broader revenue.

3. (Marked in blue pencil: Refer to iMulligan.) If if can legally be donc, extend
the credit from bond statements to cover five years, instead of giving inc'omplete relief
from assessment payments until face of statement is exhausted. We may possibly jus-
tify ourselves in meeting these statomonts from surplus of current assessinents, but I
doiubt if we can justify the use of moneys needed to meet death claims in paying o~fl
these statements. An application of say $20,O00 to meeting bond statements during the
first six months of this year would have given us some $63,000 or $70,O00 more for death
cdaims.

The CHIAIRMAN-That is not signed ?

Mr. ELnamoaF.-It was signed by me.

By Mr. Coster, Coun sel for the Committee:

Q. Were these recommrendations made in IMr.'Eldridge7s report adopted by the
board of directors and carried out ?-A, They were referred to different committees.

Q. And tliey were carried out i-A. No, I won't say they were carricd out.
Q. Well, they were adopted anyway l-A. They were adopfed. I do flot think

they were carried out.
Q. Was there any material reduction in the expenses of management after that?

-A. In some items there was-not out of that, I do not thinli fbey were, but take the
yearly report, it shows a reduction in some items. Take officers' salaries, I think the
annual report shows a reduction in that. In commissions f0 agents, there was a large,
reduction. That showed the largesf reducfion, because the amount of business was.
very mucli reduced. Therefore the principal reduction in expenses came from that
source.

Q. And were fthe salaries of the presidenf and vice-president and Mr. Eldridge
reducod ?-A. I arn incliried very much f0 doubt thaf their salaries were reduced. I
oannot say that they wero. Thé,y sliould have been, bccaiieo we got togt-tber, Mvr,
Burnham and 1-not af thaf fume, but previous to that tiaie--and redu',d tlie balaries.
There were no furfher reductions in salaries alter iMr. Eldridge preseated this.

Q. Were there any salaries paid that you know of, other than were on the pay-
rolls-any amounts paid to the officers, other flian appeared on the pay-roll l-A. There
was an amount paid tu one of the directors whose name appeared on the pay-roll
which liad no busiaess to be there. Ine of the directors' names appeared upon the
pay-roll.

Q. Who was thaf l Stafe if as shorfly as you can.-A. That was Mr. ilorace
Brockway, f0 the extent of $300 a week. His naine appeared on the roll.

Q. What was thaf for t-A. If was claimed by Mr. Burnhamn, when his attention
was broughf fo if, that that $300 a week was paid f0 Mr. Brockway, one of the directors,
for his services to the association.

Q. Wha t was Brockway's business ?-A. Hie was propriefor of fhe Ashland flouse.
NAw York city.

Q. Wliat was the $300 paid for l-A. It was for money borrowed by Mr. Burnhain,
which he admitted he did get fromn lim.

Q. flow mudli money was paid to hirn -A. Hie said lie borrowed from Mr. Brock-
way about $6,000, and his naine was put upon the pay-roll, without consultation wifli
the executive commitfee or anybody else that I know of, and Mr. Brockway was re-
couped for hie money in that way.

B11 th-e lion. Mr. McS'weeney:

Q. How long did he remain on fhe pay-roll, getting fIat $300, a week ?.-A. 1
suppose untî]l the money was returned, I neyer saw fhe pay-rolls.
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Q.That you remember ?-A. Yes.
Q.What were thiey ?-A. George Edwin Josephi.

Q. What amount ?-A. $4,600.
Q. Wb4o else ?-A. And payments to a man of the name of Peter Zouker, a lawyer.
Q. What would they amount to ?-A. The amount paid to Peter Zouker, one

,charge on the books of $1,500, and there is another charge of $5,000 for legal expenses.
QIn addition ?-A. Yes.
Q.Who were these men? Agents appointed by iMr. Mosa 1-A. The $1,500 was

a payment made by Mir. lMoss direct to Peter Zoukier, and reported in one of bis state-
mants to the company, and the other to Josephi, composed of different amounts paid
to Mr. Joseph also.

Q.Who were they ?-A. They were lawycrs in New York.
Q.And did they send any business into the company at al1-A. Neyer.

Q. And these amouints werc cbarged ais advances made to agents ?-A. They
werp cieedited to Mr. MIoss as ndvances made to agents.

Q. Were thero any others ?-A. There were no0 others that I remember just Do0w.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson :
Q.The $5,000 was legal expenses ?-A. The $5,0O was charged to legal expenses

and was paid Zou1ker.

By M1r. Coster, Counsel for the (Jommittee
Q.That is not advainces to agents 1-A. No.

Q. With reference to that £1,500 draft, which was paid for IMoton D). Moss'
account, did you ever ask any explanation from the president of what that was made
for ?-A. I did.

Q. What did lie tell you ?-A. Hie told me it was for services by Mr. iMoss out-
side the iMetropolitan Tkepartment. I askoed hiîm what the servics were, and, alter
thinking a few moments, lie replied that Mr. IMoss had introduced him to a very pro-
minent insurance man in Etigland by the name of Oraîg that he expected to gct for
~the company, and that is the onlly explanation he could give me of that money.

By the Hon. M4r. Domville :
Q.low mucli was that ? Dollars or pounds ?-A. £1,500, a draft drawn on the

company by Mr. iMoss or Mr. IBurnham whiie in England.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q.In that eontract, No. 3, made with iMr. iMoss, you spoke about deferred pro-

miums. -Explain what was meant by that ?-A. A deferred premium was eitber a
quarterly or a semi-annual premium on a policy. The premium is $100 or $150, and
if it is semi-annually lie pays $75, and the balance of the six-months' premium. would
be called a deferred premium, and quarterly premiums would be deferred premiums
of parties who had not paid, but would pay quarterly.

Q. Under that contract there is a special provision with reference to deferred
premiums. Explain as sbortly as you can what you have to say about it ?-A. Special
provision in regard to commissions on ail business done under the 1897 contract,
which were cancelled-he had no0 daim for them. whatever.

Q. What happened ?-A. They were commissions, certain premiurns that were
faliing due as deferred premiums in 1898, under the business secured iii 1897-com-
missions upon those premiums.

Q.You say lie was not entitled to them 1-A. lie was not entitled to themn.
Q.How mucli wouid they amount to 1-A. I think about $7,000 altogether.
Q.What do you know about transferring of business, from tbe fifteen and ten-

year plans to tbe five-year plan 1-A. I know a good deal about it.
Q. As.sbortly as you can 1-A. The flrst arrangement decided upon by the execu-

tive committee was to psy one-haif of the increase of premiums; that is to say, if the
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premiumn upon the old policy, the fifteen-year policy, was a hundred dollars,and under
the five-year plan it was a hundred and fifty, one-haif of fIfty, or half of the increase,
would hie paid to the agent securing the business

Q. What did Mr. Moss get ?-A. iMr. iMoss got the whole of bis cormmission. That
was changed afterwards, I believe, but there are no minutes, or no executive ]neeting
while I was there that cbanged it.

Q. Then the change was counted as new business?-A. Yes, ail the transferred
business made under Mr. Moss's contract,

Q. Ini what way did this affect the mortuary fund? Yon heard Mr. Stevenson's
evidence, did you l A. Yes. UIpon the entire first year's premium upon the new policy, -
it ahl went into wbat is called the expense fund. There was nothing contributed to
the mortuary fund. That was a loss, of course, to the frfteen year mortuary fund, as
well as the transfer to the agent of the hast caîl uponi the old premium paid by the old
members, se that, actually, upon that business there would be fourteen înonths.

Q. Now, Mr. Eldridge in bis evidence, states that tbat was a mistake that iMr.
Stevens~on made. Now I waiit te know wliat you have te say about it?-A. I bave seen
accounts, those that came into my possession, one or two, where these mortuary prem-
îums were credited to the agents.

Q. Look at these and see if these are wbat your are referring to h-A. Yes, this
is a list of them.

Q. This is a statement showing the payment of the hast mortuary eaul to the agent?
-A. Upon this account; it is made up in January, 1898.

Q. Whose acceunt is it h-A. The acceunt of iMoton ID. Moss.
Q. With wbom ?-A. With the Mutual IReserve Fund ILife Association.
Q. Give the entry tbat you allude to h A. The entry tbat I allude to is 'Credit

by cash, fali 1894, $66.1V. Then anotber on the 13th, $19.40, and on the 3lst, 'Com-
missions account herewith, $433.47 on policies which were issued in the previons
yenrs'

Q.. Neyer mind those details? 9A. And op tbe bottom, is the rough memorandumn
I b9vP Tepfprrpd to ini Mýr, Yrç)Qman's letter. (Document marked for identification.)

Q. You Say cliuse were the.ha8t mortuary calo whioh woro referred te tbiere ,éA.
That is a little supposition.

By the lion. Mr. Beique:
Q. You are speaking from memory. Do you swear they are mortuary calIs ?-A.

To the best of my belief. It is put down there hy eall so-and-so, giving the numbet.
Whether it is a fictitieus account I cannot say, but the aceount speaks for itself.

By Mr. CJoster, K.C., (Jounsel for the (Jommittee:
Q. Who is Mr. Underhill ?-A. lie was IMr. Burnham's confidential secretary, F.

U. Underbill. I4ere is a letter of bis in pencil to Mr. Burnham, Mr. F. A. Burnham,
president, in which hie speaks of a deduetion that should bie made, and Mr. Burnham
writes in bis own handwriting on the hottom 'Make the deduction, April 30, 1897,
F. A. B.' That rdeduction is in regard to the renewals. It is simply that tbey should
deduct from the renewal commissions, which would go to the agent securing the trans-
fer, that they should deduet any commissions due any of the old agents wbo had
secured the business, and who had issued a contract on the old business, and therefore
anything that was due the old agent should bie made fromn the new agent's commission.

By the lion. Mr. Watson:
Q. That was done h-A. I presume se, and this letter says the agent making the

transfer should bave the hast mortuary call.

By Mr. CYoster, K.C., (Jounsel fo-r the Committee:
Q. Ilere is a copy of a letter fromn Mr. Stevenson, under date the 29th October..

1897, signed Moton ID. Moss, general manager, and reads as follows:
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NEw YORK, October 29, 1897.

Mr. J. M. STEVENsoN, Asst. Secretary,
Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association,

New York City.
DEAR Si,-Kindly credit Spiess & O'Connor's account with the last cali on the

following policies, and let us know if it is correct:
New No. 32900, No. 61652, I. Littman...........$2 37

11 33027, No. 60323, J. Goetz.............2 25
ec 330411, No. 30356, W. M. Stillwell. ......... 99
it 330593, No. 1188, A. C. Morehouse........130 00

and draw voucher to debit their account with $200.05.

We have received from thema a note to cover thîs last amount when paid, it is to
be placed to their persoual uredit. The report attaclicd shows the amount due te the
association fo ho $628.91.

We have received checks for..............$292 25
Credit on old policies..................136 61
Balance due......................200 05

Total...................$628 91
Yours very truly,

(Signed) MOTON D. MOSS,
General Manager.

(The original of this letter was shown President Burnham at his request. See
his O.K. on order for voucher transferring $33~6.60 to Chase National Bank, 11, '1, 97,
Book 113, page 586.)

A. It is-a reuewal of the commissions on the old policies which accrued te Che
agents securing those policies. They had a commission accruiug to them on those
policies which coutinued during their lifetime. 11e says, 'Any reuewal commissions
due to the old agent accomplishing this transfer shoiild be deducted from the reuewal
commission upon the transfer of the policy.'

By the 6hairman :
Q.Se the last part was ail riglit and the lirst part ail wroug ?-A. Yrs, perfectly

right,' but it is the first part which shows the understanding of president and UTnder-
hli, that in making the tran5fer from ene plan te the other it lias te be credited with
the mortuary cail.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Gommittee
Q. What is this ?-A. This is an order upon Stevenson te credit the iast mertu-

ary caîl on those policies.
Q. I think you said you remonstrated with Mr. Burnham about retaining Mr.

Mess in the service of the association, and was he dismissed ?-A. lie was net dis-
missed, but he resigned.

Q. When he resigned, was there any meney te bis credit as general manager-
anything in the bank, 1 men ?-A. Yes.

Q. llow much ?-A. In the Chase National Banki, te Moton ID. Moss's account,
as general- manager, there was- a sum of over $6,000-$6,150 in the credit of bis
account in that bank.

Q. Did the question of this come up before the meeting of the executive commit-
tee ?-A. It dîd before the meeting of the executive committee, and of whicb Mr. Eld-
ridge was president.

Q. Were you there ?-A. I was there.
WELLS



SELECJT (JOMMITTEE ON THE POSITION 0P

4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904

By, the lion. M3r. Béique:
Q. When ?-A. That was in July, just a short time before Mr. Mos-
Q. What year ?-A. July, 1898.
Q. Do you know if the company lost by the account ?-A. Yes, tbey did, a very

large amount.
Q. About bow mucli ?-A. I cannot say exactly.
Q. About ?-A. I should say on that account of Mr. Moss's-of course you have

to take what came in-I cannot tell what policies are in force now to-day.
Q. But I asked you wbetber you were in a position to swear that the company

made a loss with that account I-A. Unquestionably under the contracts, there was a
large loas with Mr. iMoss' account.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. You say there was a large balance against him ?-A. Oh, yes, there was a

large balance against hlma under the contracts.
Q. When lie was dismissed ?-A. Wel], wvhen he severed bis connection with

the company.
Q. About how much ?-A. I stated to-day that bis accounts sbowed a balance of

between two and three bundred thousand dollars. -laif of bis business next year, as
showri by the Superintendent of Insurance, tbirty million dollars of business were
taken over-

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. Neyer mlild timat. With reference to this amount that was dcposited to his

credit as general manager of the company in the Chase National Bank ?-A. Yes.
Q. What became of if ?-A. Six tbousand dollars of if was cbecked out a day

or two, or a few days before this meeting of the execuitive. I first called Mr. Burn-
bam's attention te this amount in the bank, and I said tbat that amount sheuld ho
transferred back to the company. Mr. Moss bad left, and it belonged to the cem-
pannv',g fl1pr' Tt Proc roporited theu Lýj lil aL,,uun as uMeielral lilitt1Loge.

Q. llow do you know if was there ?-A. 1l bad bis bank book, which I banded te
the iDeputy Superintendent of Insurance.

Q. Go on ?-A. Mr. Burnbam, at this meeting, stated tbat there was only $150
odd remaining in the account, and he thought it was not werth while paying any
attention to, and we bad botter let if go to Mr. Moss, and, subsequently, when I had
met Mr. Moas sometime afterwards, I asked bim. about this-that is, about the time
I got bis bank book, and be explained if and said that Mr. Burnam-

Mr. AYLESWORTH objecta that IMr. Moss's statement is not evidence. Ibat is, after
he had left the company.

By the~ Chairman:
Q. Is flhere anybody else wbo could tell what became of the six thousand dollars

except Mr. Mess ?-A. Yes, it certainly disappeared frein tbe funds in the bank.

By the Hon. M1r. McSweeney:
Q. If was in Mr. Moss' own name ?-A. Yes, as general manager.
Q. And you asked hlm, as vice-president of the company, what became of the

money ?-A. No, net as vice-president cf the company, but I asked him wbat became
of the money, and lie explained tbat Mr. Burnham-

IMr. AYLESWORTH-Tbis is the conversation affer these gentlemen bad left the
company.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee
Q. llad yen left the company ?-A. Yês. It was the f ime tbe Superintendent

was making tbe investigation of the affairs cf the company.
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By the Chairman:
Q. What time was this ?-A. That was in August, a short time after the com-

pany started in on the examination-
Q. That would be in1 1899 ?-A. Yes.

i3y Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. At any rate, the bank bock showed the six thousand dollars had been drawn
out by him ?-A. Certaily.

Q. And the company did flot get that ?-A. The company did flot get that, as
far as I know. 1 cannot say.

Q. When did President. Harper die ?-A. I th [nk he died early in July, 1895.
Q. llow long after bis death was Mr. Burnham elected president ?-A. Within

an hour or twc.

BV the Chairman:

Q. An houir or twc cf what ?-A. Within an hour or twc of iMr. Harper's death.

By the Hon. Mr. Mc.Mullen :

Q. Was there a meeting called before Mr. Harper died ?A. A meeting was

called immediately upon his death. Immediately upon his death, Mr. Burnham called

the directors of the company who were there, and le was elected president by the
directors.

Q. Were ycu present ?-À. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commit tee

Q. How did ycu know the time after iMr. llarper's death ?-A. I knew it by a

telephone message that came to Mr. iBurnhama while I was there. We were waiting

there, and iMr. Burnham came dcwn from Harper's residence, where le lived at the

time, and wc wcrc just waiting the news cf bis dleath, and the news canme while I was

in the room witl him, of his death, and immediately the directors were summoned,
and ha was elected prpsident.

Q. The directors had the power te elect the president, under te constitution and

by-laws ?-A. Yes.
Q. That would lie te serve until the next annual meeting cf the ccmpany l-A.

Yes, precisely.
.Q. You heard something about proxies. Who lad control cf those proxies ?-A.

?residerrt Burnlam.
Q. After he was elected ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Hcow did he get those proxies ?-A. Notices with the proxy were sent out to

ail the policy -holders, to f111 out and sign for them, and return to the secretary cf the

company.
Q. The president was elected every annual meeting ?-A. Every annual meeting.

Q. Who elected the president at the annual meting ?-A. At the anrual meeting

the directors meet and elect a president and ail the oflicers.
Q. But the directors are elected at the annual meeting ?-A. Yes.

Q. Se, therefore, laving control cf the proxies, lie was able to eleet what directors

lie chose; is that it ?-A. Yes.
Q. You said, I think, this morning that you spent some time in England, was

it ?-A. Yes.
Q. On the business cf the association ?-A. Yes.
Q. When did you leave, and about hew long were you absent ?-A. I left in 1897,

ini either June. or July, I dIo net just now rember, and returned the last of April,

or about the first of May-about the last cf April, I think I get in probably the last

cf April. cr it might have been the flrst day or two in Mtay cf 1898.
Q. On your return, did you have a conversation with Mr. iBurnham in regard to

an examination of the affairs cf the company lIat had been recently made by the

Insurance Department lui the State cf New York i-A. 1 did.WEL
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Q.Can you recaîl the substance of the conversation ?-A. I was in his office,
and when the subjeet of the examination was completed a short time before--it was ini
1898-and iMr. Burnliam. said to, me-explained the delay in getting the report of the
exarniners of the Superintendent of Insuranc. He~ said that iPayn, the Superin-
tendent of Insurance, before lie would issue his report, demanded a liundred thousand
dollars, and thet if that one hundred thousand wes paid, that we could write our
own report. I expressed my astonishinent et the demand. I said, 'This is blackmail,
and if I were you, Mr. I'resident,'-the words 1 used containod a littie profanity-
I told hima I would tell the superintendent te go to, a warmu place.

By the ffon. Mr. Béique :
Q. Wlien was that ?-A. A short time after my return from, England.

Q.Wlat month and what year ?-A. It wes about May, 1898.

By Mr. Coster, KXJ., Counsel for the Committee

Q.Wlht else happened ?-A. After some conversation about it, I left the room,
and in a few days again I was in his office, and lie referred to the report. H1e said,
'Mr. Wells, I have got the manuscript copy of the report whicli I have here, but I liad
to pay before getting it, forty thousand dollars,' and lie handed it to me to read. After
reading it, I said to him, 'Well, iMr. Burnham, I certainly would flot give forty cents
for it, let alone forty thousand dollars, and I do flot think a report of IMr. Payn's is
worth mucli anyway,' and we had some further talk. 'Well,' lie said, 'I had to do it,
and I borrowed. certain amounts, a certain amount froma iMr. Wooster.'

Q. llow mucli did you say lie borrowed from Wooster ?-A. I do not remember
the amount, but lie mentioned liaving te, borrow from, Wooster, and Brockway and
Moss.

Q. 11e did flot state the emount ?-A. Hie borrowed as much as lie could, and lie
lied to make up the balance, which amounted to about fifteen tliousand dollars. which
lie lied to take out of lis own private £unds to make up the forty tliousand dollars,
but lie took out bis bank book and seid witli a very pitiful face, 'IMr. Wells, it took
every dollart ttit 1ifltive gcot ot my evallable lunds to mak-o up thi's Mfteen thousand
dollars, and it lias left me exceedingly short of funds.' We talked about that for a
moment and I cannot remember exactly every word, but we haod some conversation
about it.

Q. Stete shortly what occurred ?-A. And before I left I said to him, 'Mr. Burn-
hem, I receiveil from the company e day or two ago, ahl my expenses while abroad,
myseif and Mrs. Wells, which you know about, and whidli was paid to me. Now,
I do nlot require to use those funds for some time yet, and if you are liard up as you
sey you are, you can have that amount.'

By the Chairman :
Q. Wliat wvas the amount ?-A. $5,570, whidh the company had paid me a few

days before.

By Mr. CJoster, K.C., Counsel for the (Jommittee
Q. You lent hirm that money ?-A. Yes.

Q.low did yon pey it ?-A. In bills.
Q Did you give him e cheque ?-A. No.

Q. Why did you not give hima a cheque ?-A. Because ho eskcd me te pay it to
hirm in bis.

Q. Did you get thet money hack ?-A. After suing him, and a year or two at
litigation-I sued him for that amount and lie peid the whole amount with costs.

Q. llow long afterwerds ?-A. I do flot remember the exac~t date.
Q. A yeer or e montli -A. It was about e year afterwards, or a year andl a hall.

If I bail my benk book here I could show it to you.
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Q. In what court did you take action to recover -A. In the Supreme Court, 1
suppose it is called, in New York city. It is in the record here. Isued him, and lie
put in a defence, and it was delayed along from time to time.

Q. H1e paid it back with costs ?-A. Precisely.

By the Hion. Mr. Beique:
Q. What defence did lie malie?-A. The defence hie put in first was, tbat bie xievcr

received a dollar fromn ie--that was the defence.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. Wbat was the next defence ?-A. I suppose there was only the onie defence.
Q. You said 'the first defence.'-A. I said that was bis defence.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. llad you any writing ?-A. No.
Q. It was your oath against his t A. Yes.

By Mr. Co.ster, K C., Counsel for the Commiltee:
Q. The case was nover tried?-A. No. H1e did flot allow it to go to trial, le paid

it, but there were pleadings in it. I had to make an affidavit, and lie made an affidavit.
H1e made an affidavit on certain pleadings.

Q. We will not go into that unless the Committee wisbes. How many officers of
the company resigned from the company abouit this time, and wbat were their naines?
-A. In 1898 there was General Thomas L. James, first vice-president, lie resigned
and Mr. Vrooman, and Mr. Stevenson, and Hoffecker.

Q. Vrooman, the treasurer, Stevenson, assistant secretary, and Iloffecker, the
auditor,-they were the ones ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. M1r lclMullen:
Q. What werp thebp, re of fliose ton ?-A. (louerai James got a smail salary '>X

Lhrue or four [houbanid, itot a large salary, becau3c lic wils tbcrc vcry littlc of hi3 timc;
lie just attended board meetings.

B~y the lIon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. 11e got paid for that i-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commit tee:
Q. Three or four thousand dollars a year?-A. Yes, tbat is ail. Mr. Vrooman's

salary, if I remeinher right, was, I think, wlien lie retired, $150 a week, to the best of
my recollection. I cannot lie positive about that.

Q. You were chairman of the executîve, and ougbt to know t-A. I cannot at this
date. 1 knew at that time what it was, but I cannot say positively now.

Q. What did lloffecker, the auditor, get i-A. I think his salary was either $35 or
$50 a week, flot a large salary. I think so, if not larger,, as near> as I remember.

By the Choirm an:
Q. Wbat did the president get?-A. The president, when lie was elected president,

got $500 a week.
Q. That was bis salary?-A. Yes.
Q. iDid lie get any other funds t-A. Well, there was tliat contingent fund at bis

disposal, which was afterwards convertedl into bis sa]ary in addition to bis former
salary of $10,000 a year.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. Would lie lie paid for attendance at tbe board meetings also t-A. Oh. no, none

,of the regular employees received anything for a board meeting-no salaries paid to
the regular officers.

WELLS
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Q. Were the board allowed anything at their meetings?-A. OnIy the outside
directors.

Q.How much were they allowed ?-A. Twenty dollars, I think it was.
Q.On page 12, section 7, of the statement made by the compiàny to the Senate, 1

find the following: 'In the matter of the letter from Hon. B. Tracy, attention is sirn-
ply called to the fact that this is an attorney's letter, giving an opinion based upoin
certain statements made to him. by his client, which in any event would stand or fait,
upon the truth of those statements. In this letter, however, is to bce notcd the extremo
caution exercised by General Tracy, as indicated in the first paragraph, where lie uses
the expression, 'Upon the facts submitted by yOdi to me,' and in the third paragraph
where lie says, 'If it shall appear that this money lias been drawn by the president and
appropriated to his own private use;' in the fourth paragrapli where lie says 'If it
shail appear as you state, that Moss rendered no services, and that no vouchers were
ever presented for such services;' and in the last paragrapli where lie says, 'Upon the~
fact stated by you.' There is no doubt that upon the purported facts stated by this
client to lis attorney, any attorney would have given the samne opinion as was given
by General Tracy. The weakness of this, however, is that the facts as stated to the
attorney were untrue, and the best proof that General Tracy so discovered is the fact
that hie withdrew from the case, and refused longer to serve the parties!' Have you
the statement of the case to Tracy and the letter. I want to show tlie statement made
to Tracy. Those facts are correct g-A. Yes.

Q. This is the statement whidh is alluded to by the coînpany l Who was General
Tracy t-A. He was a very prominent lawyer in New York, formerly Secretary of ther
Navy, at Washington, in the cabinet.

Q. He was also counsel for the government in that Venezuela matter ?-A. Yes.
Q. One is a letter written to him. and tlie otlier is a statement by him t I will put

in the whoXe proceedings-

Mr. AYLESWORTH-It is a statement made hy HolTecker. and nobody else.

Hon. Mr. BkiQuE.-I do not think this sliould go in.

By Mir. Cjoster, K.O., Jo unsel for the Clommittee
Q Look at t.his document--what is that t-A. It is a petition drawn up in General

Tracy's office.
Q. What for ?-A. To present to the Attorney General.
Q. What was it for ?-A. A petition to the Attorney General, prepared by

General Tracy, for tlie removal of President IBurnliam and Vice-1'resident Eldridge.
Q. One is a statement of case to General Tracy, and the opinion of General

Tracy, and tlie petition to the Attorney General, prepared by General Tracy, for
removal of President Burnham n sd Vice-iPresident Eldridge t-A. Yes.

Bu the tJhairmaii:
Q. Whom was the petition from t Who were the petitioners t-A. No names.

Two of the petîtions were drawn up and proceedings were stopped, as I said before,
under the promise of IPresident Burnham to resign at the next annual meeting, and
ail proceedings ceased, so that the petition was not presented, and did not go beyond
the line of being drawn Up.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q.Who was General Tracy acting for when lie presented the petition t-A. Her

wss acting for Hoffeeker, who specially retained him on behaîf of certain policy-
holders.

Bu the Chairman:
Q.About the fifteen tliousand dollars being paid by the company to, have tliis.

thing dropped-is that a fact ?-A. Yes.
WELLS
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By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Gommittee
Q. The company paid $15,000 to whom ?-A. To iMr. 1o~ffecker's representative,

Mr. Mcflonald, of Philadeiphia.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique
QTo your knowledge ?-A. To my knowledge. I have fromn the Superintend-

ent of Insurance figures whieh they supplied me with, and dates of payment of this
$15,000.

By Mr. Coster, K.G., Counsel for the Gommittee
Q.Which would appear in the books of the company i-A. Which would appear

in the company's books.
Q. Can you give us the dates of those payments and the amounts as received from

the Insurance IDepartment ?-A. I can.
Q. Give us it ?-A. This is a memorandum whieh Mr. ilunter supplied me with

-whom Mr. Eldridge knows very well.
Q. Give us the names ?-A. On January 25, 1899, was paid $5,000 to John

McDonald. On IMarch 15, $5,000; on May 15, $5,000, making $15,000.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson :
Q. On account of what ?-A. Paid to John IMcDonald, of Philadeiphia, who was

Mr. Iloffecker's reprsentative to receive the money.
Q. For what purpose was that $15,000 paid ?-A. It was. agreed upon that Mr.

Burnham or the company should pay ail the costs of this prosecution, for which Mr.
Hoffecker put in a bill for $15,000, claimed that, and that amount was paid upon ail
proceedings between them being dropped.

Q. Who got the benefit of this amount, do you know ?-A. IMr. Hoffecker and
some other law.yers.

Q. General Tracy i-A. G enerai Tracy was paid. 0f couiue, ail the coots incurrodtby General Tracy and some other lawyers were paid.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson :
Q.Did the clients flot get any portion of the money ?-A. I do not kno'w what

the clients got. I did not get any.
Q. Did the lawyer simply take the money and drop the case ?-A. The lawyer

took the moncy on the agreement that hie was to resign.
Q. And dropped the case ?-A. The whole proceedings dropped, and the papers

were handed over by General Tracy to Hoffecker.
H.1e got out of the deal by paying lis own money or the company's, money ?

A. It is charged in the company's books.
Q. And the other condition was that hie was to resign at the next annual meet-

ing ?-A. Yes.
Q.These wcre the conditions ?-A. There were other conditions.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood :
Q. Were the proceedings for money or what ?-A. No, lfo the dismissal of the

president and iMr. Eldîidge--petition to the Attorney General.

By the Hon. Mr. MciSweeney :
Q. IDid they both promise to resign or only Mr. Burnham ?-A. Only Mr. Burn-

ham.
By the Hon. Mr. Watson:

Q.Did hie resign ?-A. H1e did not.

WELla
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By Mr. CJoster, K.l., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. llow do you know lie promised to resign ?-A. Because I took this letter froni

Hoffeeker, and he agreed to resign in my presence.

Q. A statement was made liere that General Tracy witlidrew from the case, and

refused longer to serve the parties; that is in the statement submaitted to the Senate

by thie company. Wliat do you say I-A. I say it is untrue.

Q. What did happen '!-A. The proceedings dropped, and there was no more about

it, so far as General Tracy and his firm were concerned. Some time after that,

General Tracy went to England on the Venezuela arbitration, and on his retu'n the

Brm dissolved.
Q. And you say that General Tracy neyer withdrew from the case, but that it

was settled I-A. Preciffely.
Q. By the payment of this $15,000, and upon President Bu-rnliam wlndertaking

to resign? -A. ?recisely, and there is a copy of a letter froin Mr. Tracy's firm

Q. Rave you got the letter £rom Mr. Tracy's firm ini which. they say they did

not resign I-A. Yes, I saw the original letter, and asked hini for a copy. ilere is a

copy of lioffecker's letter to Tracy.
Q. I see these are copies of letters. How do you know these are true copies of

the letter I-A. I saw thxe original and asked lioffecker to send me a copy.

Q. You saw the original, and those are copies of the letters ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:

Q. What does Tracy state in lis letter I-A. 'We have made no stateênt of

the character referred Vo in your letter. It will please us if yuu will be good enough

Vo tell us the name of your informant.-TRkoy, BOWDEN & PLATT.'

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson :

Q. That is simply a detail of a statement that they lad refused Vo act ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, Kil., C7ounsel for the Committe :

QWhnt yrrn1 noi ic, lonv~ingj tho 1ottoiir out of the qunction, Yeu gay Vhiit it id ROIt

true that lie withdrew from the case, and refused to act longer ?-A. 1V is noV.

Q. What reason have you for saying that ?-A. The reason for saying that, be-

cause the case was dropped and the company paid ahl the costs to the extent of ftfteen

thousand dollars, and the wlole case was dropped, and that ended the case.

Q. Did you not see a letter written by General Tracy ?-A. I saw letters written

by Tracy, Bowdeu and PlatV, Vo, Mr. liofecker, practically denying the statement. I

was vice-president of the comnpany up Vo January 25, and one of the payxnents was

made tIen-

By the Chairmani

Q.Wlen Vhs petitioxi was got up and supposed. Vo be presented Vo Vhe Insurance

Department, to bave Mr. Burnham disraissed, in what year did it Vake place ?--,. LI

1898.
By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee

Q. Who was proposed as successor to President Burnham. ?-A. General Thomas

,. James, Vhe former vice-president, was the name suggested Vo Mr. Burnham and dis-

cusséd by ail that were interested in the removal of Vh present management as the

sucoessor to Mr. Burnham.
Q. Was lie asked Vo act ?-A. Rie was.
Q. Did he agree Vo act ?-A. Hie was in England aV Vhe ime, and VIe çable-0

gras-
Q. le declined Vo act ; is that a f act ?-A. lie did noV decine-e wanted Vo

leave it open until lie returned, but if an immedîate answer was necessary, le coula

not give an immediate answer and said no. le said he would return in a certain

time.
WBI2L
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Q. You say Burnharn agreed to resign. Did lie resign ?-A. He did flot.Q. What occurred about the time of the next annual meeting ?-A. On the day
before the affluai meeting lie sent for me.

By, the (ihairman,:
Q. Who ?-A. J>resident IBurnham, and referred to the difficuities that lie lied

lied in tlie lest year, and that to-morrow was the regular annual meeting, and that as
lie had referred to tlie fact that heelied proxies, and could eleet sucli directors as lie
chose, but lie said, 'Mr. Wells, T would like to bave frorn you a letter, I do not care
how you say it or express it, that you are satisfied witli my management.' I replied
and said, 'iMr. Burnliam, I am on record as being dissatisfied witli your management.
You agrced to resign, and liave remained up to the present tirne, and I certainly will
flot stultify myseif by giving you sucli a letter.' Well, lie discussed tlie matter over
for sorne time, and I said, 'No, Mir. Burnbam, I positively refuse to give you sucli a
latter, and it means if you are not going to càrry out your agreement, here is my resig-
nation,' and started to write it, and lie said, 'No, no, don't write iL. I wisli you to
tliink over it. Go borne, and tliink over it, and to-morrow tell me liow you feel about
it. ' 'Well,' I said 'tiere is no use. I certainly will flot give you a letter of tliat
kind,' and lie said, 'Go home, anyway, aud we will have a talk about it,' and tlie neit
day, an hour or two before the annual meeting, lie sent for me agein. I went to, lis
office, and lie said, 'IMr. Wells, bave you got tliat letter, or written tliat letter that I
was auggesting yesterdayî' I said, 'Mr. Burnliam, I have not, and do flot intend to
write any such letter,' and we got into some pretty warm words. I tlien again
started to write my resignation, and lie said, 'Oli, don't do tliat. We will send for
Mr. Lawrence, the special counsel for the company.' Ha sent for Mr. Lawrence, and
lie came in, and lie stepped into an adjoining room n d left me and Mr. Lawrence to-
gctlicr, tuid Lawrence pleaded witli me for nearly'an hour to give bim that lotter, that
ît would make everything harmonious, and that my election would take place if Inly gnva- bim siinhf a latter as was siiggested, I miglit write it in My own way. 1
declined to do it most positively. After declining to do it, and, lie was satisfied
there was no use in furtber talking about it, lie then said. 'Mr. Wells, will you go
away and take a trip. If you will, we will continue your salary for as long a period asyou desire, and psy it eacli week into some bank that you. may nominate. We want to
recognize your services, and ail that, and we would like to have you take a trip and
remain. awsy for such a period as you desire,' and I declined it, and said, I do not;want any money from this compsny that I do flot earn, and I do no~t propose
to, put myself on the salary list of this or any other company unless L arn en-
titled to it,' and after a long talle about it lie called Mr. Burnham bscïk and, said,
'This is the most incorrigible man I aver met. I cannot do anything' iith him.'
'Well,' said iMr. Burnbam, 'I mnust have the confidence of my directorate,'. atnd I said,,'Mr. Burnbam, you cannot hava mine. <nod morning.' That is ahl that psssed be-
tween us, and I want immendiately and wrote out my resignation.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the CommUttee
Q. Look at that paper. Is tliat a copy of the resignation you put in, and wlian

did you put it in ?-A. I gave it within a hour, whila lie was calling the annual meet-
ing together.

Q.Before the annual meeting ?-A. Before tlie annual meeting was over.Q.And it was delivered to him ?-A. Yes.
Q. Before thie annual meeting ?-A. Before the annuel meeting.

Q.It resd as foilows :
NEW YORK, Janusry 25, 1899.

F. A. Burnliam, Esq., President.
Dear Sir,-Please accept my resignation as manager of sgency department. 1

shail be glad to liand over niy desk and papers balonging to the association at your
pleasure. In resigning my connection with th)e association, I beg to say that I shahl

1-181 WNLLS
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always be happy to learn of its success and progress. In fact, after fifteen years in

the service, 1 would flot be human were I to express myseif otherwise.
Yours very truly,

J. D. WELLS.

You said something about the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of iNew

York requesting you. to furnish him. with a sworn statement of the irregularities, or

alleged irregularities whicli caused you to resigu. Dikl yoiu present sucb a sworn state-

ment ?-A. I did.
Q. By whom was it sworn to?-A. Mr. Stevenson and myseif.
Q. John iM. Stevenson ?-A. John M. Stevenson.
Q. fIe was the assistant secretary -A. Yes.
Q. Who had aise resign(,d ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you present such a sworn statement i-A. Yes.
Q. That sworn statemnt, I think, is being produced hefore the Oommittee. Have

you a copy of' it here t-A. No. I have flot.
Q. Is it printed in one of the Insurance reports ?-A. 1 think not. I have neyer

seen it. 1 think it never was printed. It may be printed in Mr. Eldridge's report to

the department, but I have neyer seen it in any superintendent's report.

Mr. COSTER, K.O.-Was that sworn statement printed anywhere, Mr. Eldridge?

IMr. ELDIDGE.-It was not-not that I know of.

Q. Where is the statement ?

iMr. WELLs.-It is in Albany.

Q. Better wire for it, or for the certifLed copy of it i-A. Yes.

Q. Did the Insurance Department go into this, statement ?Did they examine you

as to it ?-A. They neyer examined me, no.
(T1 id theyV pyqiminQ tvm 'n- 'N
Q.Were you ever asked to be examined on it ?-A. Nevr

Q. Have you ever before this been examined on these charges i-A. Neyer.

ntQ. Do you know of Stevenson being examined on the charges ?-A. 1 know he has
ntbeen-

Q. The officiai report of the insurance department referred to these charges-what

year was that ?-A. That was in 1899-Mr. Payne's report, you mnean.
Q. I should. likc te rcad one or two extracts from that. That was the report. It

was xnarked Exhibit 6, I think, here. It was the report of the superintendent and ex-

aminer of the Insurance Department on the examination of the Mutual IReserve Fund

Life Association of New York city as of May 16, 1899. Have you rend this report?-

A. I have.
Q. Look at page 7 of that report. IReference is made by the superintendent te ho

contingent fund as follows:

1 In the exaininer's data, presented, with bis report, thougli fot referred to in the

report itself, I find the record of a transaction, the propriety of which I question. It

consists in placing a so-called contingent fund at the disposai of the president of the

association, to be used by him in bis sole discretion for the purpose of meeting certain

expenses incident to the association's affairs. While the 'directors of the association

have power to regulate the compensation of its officers, agents and employees, I.ques-,

tion the regularity or propriety of 'the boards action in piaciug in the bands of the

president a £und to be used by hima without an accounting by him in detail of the liur-

poses for which the moneys were employed. If used for any purpose, these funds form

items of disbursements, the receipt for which should appear among the appropriate

vouc-hers, representing payments made in the association's behaif. Such receipts, the

exaxnination shows, werenot among the association's record.'
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That was one of the charges that was, made, was it flot l-A. It was, if I remember
riglit.

Q. It has been stated that the accounts of Mr. Burnham were audited, and the
superintendeut says here that there were no receipts. Could you explain to the Com-
mittee how they could audit the account, if there were no receipts ?-A. It would be
impossible, I fanc'y, to audit the account if there were no0 receipts. iMr. Buruham might
possibly have presented an account, but there were certainly no0 receipis the superin-
tendent of insurance could get at. I neyer saw a receipt.

Q. There was an amount of $360,000 refeired to by the examiner. Would you filid
that and give the page?-A. $3 60,915.07.

Q. What was that amount principally made up of ?-A. Agents' balances, I tbitik,
principally made up-

SQ. The indebteduess to Moss and lis agents for advances, was it not l-A. iPre-
cisely.

Q. There is also an amount mcntione.d in that report of $244,954.07 of agents'
debit balances-pages 18, 19 and 20? A. Those were the unpaid balances, as I "e-
inember it. They accrued after 1897.

Q. $247,954.07 ?-A. Principally under Mose's contract.
Q. That was agents' debit balances, was it not?-A. Yes.
Q. On page 20 of that report, $93,810.78 ; that is alluded to there ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is that the item of which you have'already spoken, whicb you have said was

improperly credited to IMr. Moss ?-A. That was the same item.
Q. I eall your attention to the foot of page 20, wbich reads as follows:
'The insurance'effected in 1897 was in the main written upon what is known as

the five-year combination option policy. The business then procured amounted to
$30,700,000. On May 16 last but $16,800.000 remained.'

1 want to ask you as to whetber tbis h3 die transfer buhn~to which yoa and Vr.
Stevenson have testified I A. A very large proportion, if not tbe grea ter proportion
ul that, was actual tranoer busines-

Q. IDoes the superintendent give there tho con of that buiýinegs ?-A. Yes, he does.
Q. See if you eau see it there ?-A. Yes. Page 21. It reads as follows :The

commission cost of this business on initial year's premiums from the time these poli-
dies were flrst written in 1896, to May 16, 1899, is as follows

Initial year receipts, 'Five Year Combination' poli-
eies. ..... .. ...... ... .. .. ........... $1,n15,870 19

Initial year commissions, 'Five Year Cobnain
policies....................1,056,861 74

Initial year, balance of receipts .. .... .... $659,508 45
0f whieh there are agents' debit balance of .... .... 321,472 44
Initial year net receipts on 'Five Year' new business $33,036 01

I cail yonr attention to a seemingly vital point, estabi 'ished, I think, as the out-
corne of the association's strenuous attempt to secure new business in 1897. The *sums
invested in this direction were considerable. No effort appears to have been spared
in furnishing its agency department with every available means by which to accom-
plish results, as is evidenced by the liberality of its contracts with the general man-
ager, yet, notwithstanding this, the business in force felI off from January 1,1,897, to
the close of the present examination, to, the following extent:

The association's swovn statement to the Insurance Department for the year end-
ing December 31, 1896, showed it to have 118,449 policies in force, covering $325,026,-
061 of insurance. From the examînation just closed it is ascertained, as stated, that
its policies in force number 76,592, or a falling off of 41,857 since the beginning of
1897, with an accoxnpanying loss of $130,970,090 of insurance since then, being a de-
crease of 35 per cent in nu »mber of policies, and 40 per cent in amount of insurance in
force.

'W F J
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This depletion of membership and of insurance in force has transpired, notwith-
standing the f act that every aid has been extended by the association to its inembers
with a view of encouraging the continuance of their premiumn or assessment pay-
ments.

Q.Do you know of any effort having been mnade to indu ce the superintendent, of
insurance to modify this report ?-A. I do.

Q. Who mnade it ?-A. Mr. Burnham, Mr. Eldridge, I think-I won't be positive,
but I think lie was one of the deputation, Mr. Lawrence, Frank Lawrence, Mr. James
-lot General James, but Mr. James of James & Elkins, and soma name I forget,
lawyers, and I think iMr. ]Lottery.

B~y the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. l General James ex-postmaster ?-A. Oh, no.

By the Chairman :
Q.What did they do ?-A. They went to Alhany-I may say that before the

report of the superintendent of insurance was published, the riglit extended to every
company where an examination was made, to appear and heai, the report read, and
make any objections they see fit. They visited Albany, I think.

By Mr. Aylesworth, K.O., Counfsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. You were not preserit ?-A. I was in Albany at the time, and saw the crowd
there.

By the Chairman:
Q. That deputation was in connection with the business of the company ?-A.

Yes.
Q. And you were one of the officers ?-A. No. 1 was in Albany at the time.

1By the Hon. M1r. McMullen:

Q. Whait did tbey do in Albany ? A. Thry viiLd the supeiltefldeft of insur-
aflee sud discussed the report which fie had ready, and proposed some modifications of
that report which were argued.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. In your presence ?-A. No. H1e refers to it *in bis report. Not in my pres-

ence.

By the Hon. Mr. WVatson:

Q. What knowledge have you ?-A. I have the superintendent's report.
Q. But what knowledge have you that they went there ?-A. I saw them.
Q. TM<1 you go with themn ?-A. No.

BV Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Coramittee:
Q. It is referred to in the superintendent's report ?-A. Yes, those individuala

went there for that purpose.

Hon. iMr. WATsoN=-le does not know.

Q. llad you any litigation arising out of the charges with the Mutual Reserve
-A. I had.

Q. What was it ?-A. ihey had me arrested for civil libel, and I put up bonds,
and they tried very liard to put me, in jail one niglit, but did flot succeed, having
served me at a late hour with a process. I put up bonds, and retained ex-Governor
Black, who put up a defenee in my case, and the litigation went on from -month to
montli, and I should say almost froin year to year-probably a couple of years that
litigation was in progress.
WELL.8
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By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. 'Who arrested you ?-A. They did.
Q. Who ?-A. At the instance of Mr. Buruhain.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson :
Q. What date was that ?-A. That was in 1899, I think in September. It was a

day called 'Dewey day.'

By Mr. Coster, K.G., Counsel for the Committee
Q.Was it criminal libel ?-A. No, civil libel, in which you are liable to arrest

for libel.
.Q. What became of the suit ?-A. The suit was withdrawn at the sarne time, or

shortly after they settled that suit of mine for the $5,000. They paid ail rny costs ini
that case, ail the costs inçurred, and abandoned the proceedings.

By the Chairman:
Q. Abandoned thc libcl suit ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. And the company paid ail the costs ?-A. Yes.
Q. So you had none to pay ?-A. Noue, not a dollar.
Q. You had nothing to pay I-A. No.

Uross-examined by Mr. Aylesworth, K.C., Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

QI understand that the contract with Mloss, which was in fact signed by you,
met with your entire approval ?-A. Lt did.

Q. That is the second contract with hirn of 1897 I-A. Yes.
Q. Did you sign the first one with him I-A. I did.
Q. And that you also have no criticism to offer in regard toI A. No.
Q. Each of those you consider contracts proper in the true interests of the asso-

ciation to have been entered into with him I-A. I did, or I would flot have signed the»i.
Q. And they were approved by the whole board I-A. No, by the executive.
Q. Then the contract of 1898 you hgd nothing at all to do with i-A. No.
Q. This contract of 1897 was signed on the 7th January, I under8tood you to say ?

-A. I thiuk that is it.
Q. Two copies of it signed I-A. In duplicate.
Q. Each one signed before a witness, 1 suppose I-A. I think there was a witness;

I amrn ot quite certain about that.
Q. Signed by yourself and somebody else representing the company i-A. I think

IMr. Eldridge and one other. The coutract speaka for itself.
Q. Three gentlemen representing the company, and by Mr. Moss I-A. Yes.
Q. That is right I-A. Yes.
Q. What became of the two documents I-A. One was retained by Mr. Burnham

aud the other given to IMr. IMoss.
Q. Carried away I-A. Yes.
Q. Did you ever fromn that day forward again see the copy liant Mr. Moss carried

away I-A. No.
Q. Neyer saw that from that day to this I-A. No-I won't say that, because I saw

a copy of it.
Q. I arn speaking of the original I-A. No, I neyer saw the original.
Q. From that day forward did you ever again see the other original; the one that

Mr. Burnham kept, until after you returned f roni England i-A. I did not.
Q. You saw it then in Mr. Burnbam!s possession. He drew it from his desk i-A.

Yes.
Q. Just you and he in the room i-A. Yes.
Q. Did he open it out I-A. Hie took it out of his desk.
Q. Did he open out the document i-A. I think he did.
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Q.Do you know ?-A. I cannot remember whether I opened it or hie opened it. It
was certainly opened-yes hie opened it, because lie pointed to the clause.

Q. On the second of the three leaves it consisted of ?-A. Yes.
Q. And thie samne statement, I suppose, about the clause, at the time lie pointed to

it i-A. Yes.
Q. Saying it recited what they had been doing ?-A. Yes.
Q. How were you standing at the time, with reference to him ?-A. I cannot say

the point exactly. I do nlot know wliethcr I was standing or sitting down. I do nlot
remember.

Q. 11e was sitting at his desk ?-A. I think so.
Q. Hie opened h 5s desk and drew out this document ?-A. H1e did not open it. It

was opened.
Q. fie drew out the document and showed it to you ?- 'A. Yes.
Q. Phd you read it looking over lis shoulder, or did lie liand it to you?--A. 11e

handed it to me to read.
Q. And you took it into your liands and ifead it ?-A. Yes.

Q.And handed it back ?-A. Yes.
Q.laving it in your possession a minute or two?-A. Yes, more than that. I had

it some time. I went to the window and lield it up-
Q. Just on that occasion ?-A. On that occ asion.
Q. llaving it in your possession on that day for a minute?-A. A good deal more

than a minute.
Q. Five or ten minutes?-A. Yes, fully.
Q. Whule you were talking to Burnham ?-A. Yes.
Q. And handing it back to him aftcr the interview ?-A. Certainly.
Q. Did you take any copy at the time ?-A. I did not.
Q. You carried in your memory simply what you th-en read?-A. I. did.
Q. And you lad nothing at the time to assist you in remembering the language of

the document as signed by you, sixteen months before, except your memory i-A.
Nothing except my memory. I knew wliat it was.

Q. And it is froin that, is it, that you state that in the interval lie liad substituted
that intermediate sheet ?-A. It is.

Q. Did you ever see tliat document again ?-A. I did.
Q. Wlen next t-A. I saw the original document-not tliat document. I saw the

original. one in the lands of the superintendent of insurance wliile lie was making thie
examination.

Q. 'Wlen would that ho ?-A. 1 tliink in August lie commenced lis examinatiou,
if 1 remember rigît.

Q. Ini wlat year?-A. Tn 1899. The examination was made in 1899.
Q. After you lad left the company?-A. After I liad lefI tlie company.
Q. This occurrence witl Mr. Burnham was early in May, 1898 ?-A. Yes-no, I ain

a littie too fast. It was not earle in May, 1898. It was sliortly after T had called to
xny attention the irregularities-probably a montl or two after my return £rom Eng-
land.

Q. You said this morning it was on returning from England ?-A. Well, T liad onlv
been home a montl or two.

Q. It would be in the month of May?-A. Probably in the montli of June. T cn
not define it.

Q. From. tbat time forward, May or June, 1898, did you ever see that document
again until August, 1899 i-A. I did not.

Q. Then you saw it in MIr. Appleton's possession, and it was tliî in the eonditior
in which it was when you signed it ?-A. In the original condition.

. I the condition it was in wlien you signed it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And that substituted leaf had been replaced by tlie one put back agin ?-A. T

won't Say that.
WELLS
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Q. It was ail right i-A. It was the one 1 had signed.
Q. It was the front page and last page always?-A. Excuse me, the contract thiat

hie gave to Mr. Appleton was the genuine unaltered contract.
Q. But the one hie showed you in May was the genuie last page, because it luad

your signature?~.-A. Yes.
Q. And genuine first page i-A. Yes.
Q. It was only the intermediate page that was curious ?-A. Yes.
Q. So that in the interval between May, 1898, and August, 1899, sonie one had

taken away the qpiiriouis second page, and restored the genuine one ?-A. No, I won't
say that.

Q. What do you say ?-A. I say lie bad returned Mr. Moss's contract. Hie had
both contracts. Moss retnrncd his contract and hie bad the two contracts in lis
possession, one of which was kept in its original state, and -the other was altered.

Q. What authiority have you for saying that Moss returned bis contract ?-A.
1 have Moss's staternent to his lawyer. when bie brought the suit against Burnham-
ail the proceedings in that case.

Q. When you saw this in May, and recognized tbat the middle page was a spurions
one, and yon made sorne ejaculations, Burnharn said there was not a word of founda-
tion for it at once ?-A. No.

Q. 11e insisted it was the contract ?-A. I did not say to him that it was a
spurious contract.

Q. You did not ?-A. No.
Q. You knew it ?-A. I said, 'Good heavens, Burnham, we neyer signed a con-

tract of this kind.'
Q. And you knew it was a forgery ?A. I did not have proof it was a forged

contract, but I feit certain and knew that it was a forged contract.
Q. Yon knew just about as mucli about it thon as to-day ?-A. No.
Q. llad jnst as mucli proof then as to-day ?-A. No.
Q. Yal, hia the pror>f of yoiur own, rnernory?-A. * erhaps some other prool.
Q. Yon had the proof of your own mcmory ?-A. Ycs.
Q. Confident of it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And dîd not say one word to, Burnham ?-A. Not just at that time. I &id

to other officers.
Q. When did you ever mention to Burnham that it was a spurious contract ~

A. I cannot tell you exactly, but in one of the subsequent interviews.
Q. That is very general ?-A. 1 cannot tell.
Q. Did yon ever mention it to iBurnham ?A. I think I did.
Q. You are not very sure ?-A. I arn almost positive, and I arn almost positivo

I did in one of my letters. I tbink aone of the letters refers to it.
Q. It would be a pretty serions business to alter a contract ?A. 1 think it is

referred to in rny affidavit that I put-
Q. You are not sure you ever mentioned it to Burnham or not, or are you ?-A. I

feel pretty confident I did.
Q. But conld not give me any particulars of how you did ?-A. No, I think in

one of rny letters I did, and I feel pretty confident I did, in conversation.
Q. It was a pretty important feature in your mind ?-A. Yes.
Q. It meant, you say, giving to MIoss $3,500 a week, as a present practically ?-

A. Practicaily that was tbe resuit of it.
Q. Did you ever consider how much that would corne to in a year ?-A. Yes.

Q.How mnch ?-A. $182,0O0.
Q. lad lie been getting the $3,500 a week before you saw this contract, after you

signed it ?-A. Rad he been getting $3,500 a week ?
Q. Yes ?-A. Not to my knowiedge.
Q. You were his immediate superintendent ?-A. I was prior to that time, wlben

he practically took my place, tbe day that was signed.
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Q. You were the head of ail the agents ?-A. Yes, the head of the agency depart-
ment.

Q. IMoss was one of the agents i-A. Under his metropolitan contract, lie was
manager.

Q. And hie was directly under your superintendence ?-A. At that time.
Q. Hie was in that position after you made the contract in January ?-A. Not

at ail. 11e was president and everything else, ruled Burnham. and every one else.
Q. hat is an easy thing to say -AiEverybody knows it.
Q.He was under your contrai as superintendent of agents. You were the head

of ail the agents in 1897 ?-A. No, after hie signed that contract, lie assumed comn-
piete charge of the agency department.

Q.And complete control of you ?-A. No, decidedly not.
Q. And from January, 1897, when that cantract was signed, until July, 1897,

when yau went ta England, you knew what Moss was doing ?-A. I did nat.
Q. Why not?-A. Because I liad flot; the opportunity, was, not oonsulted. about

it, except as to the business that came in in a general way.
Q. You knew he was getting $3,500 a week ?-A. Yes.
Q. You were chairman of the executive ?-A. The first one or two months, the

accounts were made out correctiy, snd the charges just as the contract defined. Those
two months the contracts were proper and rîglit, after the contract was signed.

Q.You were cliairman of the executive during the six months of 1897 ?-A. Yes.
Q.And you knew Mass was getting $3,500 a week ?-A. I was away a good por-

tion of the time.
Q. You knew hie was getting it ?-A. Yes, I signed the contract.

Q.And his contract entitled him ta it ?-A. Yes.
Q.Andwhen it was given ta him it was intended ta be distributed by hima to

agents, was it flot ?-A. Yes, that is what it was given ta himi for.
Q. It was eompany's money, given ta him ta be by him distributed ta di:fferent

agents in dîfferent suins, in advance payments, in respect of what thiey shauld after-
wflrds eni bv t1iipin iri bus-iness ?-A, AMi ear.-ed to some, one,

Q. That is what it was for ?-A. Yes.
Q. Sa that every week, wben hoe would get $-3500, lie would lie cliarged with that

in the books ?-A. Yes.
Q. Debited with it ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was the proper thing to do ?-A. Ye6.
Q. Then wlien hie would give say seven or eiglithlundred. dollars, take any figures

you please, when lie wauld give eight hundred dollars ta agent Smith, wlat do yau
say ought ta bc donc about it ?-A. Hie would give $800?

Q. Yes ?-A. Simply the campany's duty wauld lie ta see that hoeliad given it,
and ta se e that lie produced vouchers for the amaunt given.

.Q. Supposing lie gave his own cheque to Smithi, and brouglit it in with Smitlis
endorsement ?-A. lHe wouid want ta know who Smith was.

Q.Suppasing hie is an agent ?-A. The cantract called for a voucher.
QIs that nat a voucher ?-A. No.
Q.What is it ? A receipt ?-A. Yes.
Q.Then Smith gives him a receipt ?-A. Yes.
Q.And lie produces a reeeipt ta the company ?-A. Yes.
Q.Wliat entry do you make in the books of the company r-A. ]Jan't make any,

have no right ta.
Q. Wliat about Smitli's account ? Hie lias an account with the campany, lias

lie not ?-A. Not with the company. The company keep an accaunt, and they give
Mr. Moss a statement every moutli, of the balance.

Q.Yau know tlie way they kept the books'?-A. Yes, in'a way.
Q.Did tliey not have an account witli oaci one of their agents ?-,A. They sbauld
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flot have, but they did i this case keep an account, and assume the agents' balances.
There were two accounts kept.

Q. Take any agent, I say Smith, just for a naine, they would have an account
with Smith, would they not, in their books ?-A. Probably kept a record.

Q. And when Mr. IMoss brouglit in iMr. Smith's receipt, or hîs own cheque endorsed
by Mr. Smith for $800, did the company flot charge that amount to Mr. Smithi !-A.
I do flot think they should. They did it, but I do flot think they should. That is
what I complain of.

Q. And as Smith would earn that $800 by sending ini ncw business, they would
credit him with the amouint of commissions he earned, would they flot ?-A. They
probably would.

Q. So as to show the condition of Smith's account ?-A. Yes. To keep a record
of it.

Q. It is your idea that they ought to have left Mass charged with that $3,500
a wcek, and not credited him with what he did with the money ?-A. Unquestionably.

Q. Sa that bis account ought to have shown him in debt to the company $182,000
every year ?-A. Yes, giving credit for the commissions, the twenty per cent over-
riding commissions were supposed to wipe out this $182,000. And another thing,
the accounts that he advanced to the agents, the. agents should have remitted, not
retaining their commissions, should have remitted the whole amount of the premium,
and on that Mr. Moss would be credited with 85 per cent instead of 920.

Q. The money was given ta iMr. Moss for a special purpose ?-A. Yes.
Q. To distribute ta this, that, and the other agent ?-A. Yes.
Q. And when he got $3,500 of the company's money, it was properly charged to

him ?-A. Precisely.
Q. And you say it was not well ta credit him with that money when it was remitted

by the agents ?-A. No.
Q. HTe should not get oredit for this money he paid ta this man and the other man t

-A. No, the contract does flot provide for that.
Q. B3ut yau say he ought ta have bis account charged with $182,000 per annum,

and that tg accumulatc without any credit for the môney paid on the other side ?-A.
No.

Q. What should be credited against it I-A. I say comaing against that should ho
85 per cent of the business that came in, and whatever the agents retained of those
commissions should be debited ta that account. If the agent returned 65 per cent,
then the 65 per cent was charged in that account and ta his credit, would be prohably
85 per cent, giving him an over-riding commission of 20 per cent.

Q. That is the system of baak-keeping that obtained during the first seven months
of 1897 whule you were there I-A. It was for a time; I do not say bow long.

Q. When you came back and investigated, you found out it continued during yoIr
absence just the same I-A. I did.

Q. And the same course was pursued by the company under the contract as you
signed it in January, 1897, and under thc contract as altered by the president I-A. I
do not vinderstand you.

Q. Exactly the same course was pursuedl by the company under the contract undor
its proper genuine condition, and under what you cail its spuriaus condition I-A. No,
because during the first two or three months it was properly done.

Q. Explain to me what the difference in the system pursued by the company was I
-A. The difference, in the first place, the commissions retained by the agent were
charged in the account, Mr. Moss's account, the $3,500 a week, and brought ta bis
credit was the 85 per cent, which gave him an over-riding commission of 20 per
cent.

Q. The change that you say you recognize-let me know what that was? If 1
understand you correctly, it was written as you signed it ini this way: 'Suci an amount
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to be charged to your account, and to be accounted for in detail with proper vouchers,
whenever requested by the apsociation' ?-A. That was, I think, the original.

Q. That is the way we have it here. Then if I understand you arighit, you tell us,
speaking from your memory, you saw it 16 months afterwards in iMr. Burnham's pos-
session-it read, a dlean copy-' Snch amount to be charged to your account, and re-
main so charged until satisfactorily accounted for' ?-A. That is precisely what 1
said.

Q. Yon think there is a difference between these two phrases?-A. I do, a decided
difference.a

Q. It -was proper to charge it to his account?-A. Yes.
Q. And proper it should remain so charged ?-A. Yes.
Q. Is it flot proper to be so charged until 'satisfactorily accounted. for' ?-A-,

That inakes ail the difference, that it remains until a certain thing happens, and then
by furnishing vouchers it is wiped out of the account.

Q. Scratched out with a pen?-A. Credit is given him for the amounts he had paid
out, and in the other case, it was to remain charged, and the amounts that he paid out
to lis agents or advanced to his agents-the contract did flot provîde tbat they shonld
be credited to him. There is no 'until' in the flrst sentence there, and the amounts
under the altered contract, when he presented those vouchers that were satisfactory Lo
thec company, the word 'until' recognîzes the fact that the amounts should go to bis
crédit.

The Committee adjourned until 10 a.m. to-morrow.

OTTAwA, THURLSDAY, June 30, 1904.
The Committee met at 10 a.m.

Hon. Mix WILSON.-There was a matter that we dîd flot have sufficiently explained
to -us, that is, how the $182,O00 transaction was managcd. Why were the funds plmi-i,t
11n his hands? How was lie to account for them, and what disposition or vouchers did
lie show as to the use of it?

The CHAIRMAN.-To what do you refer?

lon. Mr. WILSON.-The amount that was paid f0 iMir. Moss. I should like a littie
further explanation with reference to it.

The CHAIgMAN.-Before procecding with the cross-examination of Vr. Wells 1
would cail upon the counsel for the Comrnittee to gratify the wishes of the hon. mcmn-
bers of the Committce in regard to that matter.

lon. Mr. WILSON,-.-I should like to have Mr. Wells explain to the Committce more
fully and satisfactorily the manner in which that money was appropriafed and used.

Exarnination. of A. D. Wells resurned.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Coun sel for the Conmrnttee:
Q.Under the second contract, IMr. Moss was to get $182,000 a year?-A. H1e was to

get $3,500 a week.
Q. That arnounts f0 $182,000 a year?-A. Yes.
Q. Thaf was to be loaned by him f0 bis sub-agents-is thaf right?-A. It was.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson..
Q.Am I fo understand thaf if was to be loaned ?-A. Loaned.
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Loaned by Mr. iMios to bis sub-agents, and IMr. IMoss was always responsible

for every dollar of it to the company 1-A. H1e was.
Q. And was not entitled to receive one cent for himself until the whole of it was

paid back 1-A. Precisely, that is the interpretation.
Q. That is the effect of the contract which you signed 1-A. It was.

Hlon. iMr. BiiquE.-Tbat is a niatter of interpretation.

lion. Mr. WILSON~.-As a matter of fact, what 1 want to get at is whether the
money was loaned or used by iMr. Mess, and the manner in which it was used, flot
the interpretation of the contract.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. During your connection with the company, yen have made a great number

of coîitracts have you flot ?-A. I have.
Q. On ail occasions this money for advanoes was paid to the agent, and was Dot

the agent called upen to account for and pay back the whole of it ?-A. lHe was.
Q. And what did iMr. Moss do ? hd lie pay it back ?-A. lie did not pay it

back.
Q. Not enly did lie not pay it back, but did not lie receive further ameunts frein

the company ?-A. lie di 'd.
Q. In the ordinary course of events, following out the usual practice of the com-

pany with ail agents, explain exactly what would be done, or rather tell nme if I state
it accurately. Correct me if I amn wrong. The $3,500 a week would be charged te
Mr. Moss's account ?-A. Yes.

Q. Hie would be ebligcd to render vouchers te the company signed by the agents te
wliom le made the advances-is that riglit ?-A. lie would.

Q. And the rrleney woiîld stili remain charged te bis acceunt, and moneys that
came in for prerniums, bis share of the commission, would be credited te him on
acceunt of these nîoneys that he got ?-A. Precisely.

Q. That would 'be the correct way of doing it ?-A. That wouid be the correct

way of doing it.
Q. And the only correct way of doing it ?--A. And the only correct way ef doing

it.
Q. Therefere, yen say that Mr. Mess was net entitled te use for bis own purpeses

a oent of that money ?-A. 11e was not.
Q. And that lie was net entitled te be credited 'with ene cent of that meney upon

preducing vouchers for the loan ?-A. H1e was net.
Q. But, as a matter ef fact, lie did net produce veuchers; lie simpiy put iu bis

ewn statement that he had paid it eut te agents, and neyer paid it back ?-A. That is,
correct.

Q. Is net that, shert]y, an accurate statement ef it ?-A. Yes.

Bp the Chairman :
Q.To sum up the whele thing, the cempauy put te bis credit $182,000 a year;1-

A. During the year-$3,500 a week-that was put te bis credit.
Q. That mouey was returuable te the compauy ?-A. Payable in commissions or

money.
Q. As a matter of fact, was that doue by IMr. Mess ?-A. It was net.

By the Hon. Mr. McMufilen:

Q. Iu the first place, yen say $3,500 was advanced weely te Mr. Mess fer the
purpese ef aidiug the agents ?-A. is agents.

Q. To de business ?-A. Loaning it.
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Q.When lie produced a 'voucher that lie liad loaned Jones $800, as a resuit of tliat

voucher that $800 should be credited to hlm and cliarged to Jones ?-A. No. The
object of producing that voucher -,vas a check that lie had distributed that, or advanced
tliat amount.

Q. Even admitting that Jones is the agent of Moss-Jones was Moss's agent ?
A. Yes.

Q. ile hired ail these agents l-A. Certainly lie made the contracts witli tliose
diflerent men. They were bis agents on the same principle as any mnan employs
agents. They were responsible to the manager.

Q. Tlien, wlien the fees came in from time to time, the proportion tliat would hecoming to the agent, the 65 per cent, would be credited to the amount that hiad beenadvanced to that agent ?-A. No, the 85 per cent would be credited to Mr. Me4ss, wliowas entitled to the wliole amount, to wliom these moneys had been loaned or advanced,wliicli ever way you take it, were charged. They were cliarged to hlm and the 85 per
cent was to be placed to lis credit when the premiums were returned from tlie agents.Q.Tley were bis agents, not tlie company's ?-A. 0f course.

By the lion. Mr. Béiqte :
Q.I fail to see in that contract any reference to 65 per cent ?-A. No, I say 85

per cent.
Q. I think you liave spoken in that connection of a commission of 65 per cent 1

-A. Yes.
Q. It was to go to the agents as being the average commission which would bepaid to the agents by Mr. Moss ?-A. Yes, that would be the average commissionwlidl Mr. Moss would allow these agents. Some of them less than 65 per cent.Q. And the balance, 20 per cent, which you cali the over-riding commission ?-

A. Yes.
Q. But I fail -to see any distinction of that kind in1 tlie contract ?-A. Oh, no,

tliere is not.
Q. Tlie only tliing tliat I find in tlie contract is that he wnq to liavo 85 pçr cernt

of ht~u ?-A. prcci8ely.
Q. And it is stnted on wliat business lie was to get that 85 per cent commission ?

-A. Precisely.
Q. As to the agents, there is no reference at ail ?-A. Not at ail.Q. In the contract the commission is not to be paid to the agents ?-A. Decidedly

not.
Q. I find in the clause referring to the $.3,500 per week, 'The association willadvance to You (Moss) the suni of $3,500 a week for advances to agents' ?-A. Yes.Q. 'Sucli sum to he deposited in bank weekly to your credit as general manager,subject to your cheque, sudh amount to be dharged. to your account and to be accounted

for in detail with proper vouchiers whenever requested by tlie association'?-A. That
was it exactly.

Q. Then it is advances to hlm for a special purpose ?-A. Yes.Q. To be advanced by hlm to the agents ?-A. To the agents.Q. To the agents of thie association ?-A. No. Hie assumed the contract for tlieentire United States, and the responsibility of those agents, and hired bis own agents,
wlio were responsihle to hlm and lie responsibie to those agents.

By the tJhairman :
Q.So thie agents would not liave any recourse against tlie company, but against

Mr. Moss ?-A. That 18 a inatter of law.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson :
Q.He couid make the best arrangement lie could witli tlie agents ?-A. Yes;

whicli lie did.
WUELLe
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BV the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.As a matter of fact, under this contract, he was to pay the commission to tho
agents, whether the agents were to be considered lis or the agents of the company-
the.commission payable to the agents was to corne out of the 85 per cent which lie was
getting ?-A. Precisely.

Q. And the balance was to bie his over-riding commission ?-A. Wliatever the
difference was between the contract lie made witli lis agents and 85 per cent, iMr. iMoss
would get tlie difference of it by bis contract.

Q. Hie was to be cliarged with the $3,500 per week, and wlien lie accounted, what
do you understand by the words, ' Sucli amount to be charged to your account, and
to be accounted for in detail witli proper voucliers whenever requested by the associ-
ation.' Wlio was to account for that ?It was lie ?-A. It was Mrt. Moss. He was
to account.

Q.He was to account for the $3,500 a week ?-A. Yes.
QIn what manner was he to account ?-A. H1e was to render tlie company a

statement as to wliat lie did with the $3,500, so tliey would keep a clieck.
Q.Wliether he paid the full amount to thc agents or not ?-A. Yes.
Q.Suppose that of the $3,500, lie showcd that lie liad paid only $3,000, then lie

would bave to account for tlie $500 ?-A. It would be cliarged in bis account.
Q. Remain dliarged to hîs account ?- Ilemain cbarged to Iiis account.
Q. If lie accounted for tlie $3,000, tliat would not be charged to bis account ?-A.

Certainly, it would be ail cbarged to bis account, because otherwise, you were making
hlm a present of tliose loans.

Q. The conipany lias to take into consideration tlie amount, tliat is payable by way
of commissions to bis agents ?-A. Certainly.

Q. Or to the agents of the company; but tbe amount that lie lias accounted for as
having paid out to agents will be cliarged to tlie commission of the agent as eovering
part of the 65 pet cent payable to tbe agent ?-A. Tliat is true in one sense.

Q. I do not tliink tliere will lie any difficulty about tliat. As I undcrstand it, the
two accounts, Mrt. Musb'% atxoutt and the accounts of the agents appear in the books,
and the agent, possibly IMr. lioss was responsible, and very likely was responsible, for
the accounts of the agents and tlie wliole amount of tlie commission wbicb was pay-
able by tlie company was tbe 85 per cent ?-A. The wliole compensation.

Q. To cover tlie agents ?-A. Everytbing.

Hon. Mr. ]3ýiQu.-I do not suppose anything to tbe contrary wiil lie contended
from the other side. I do not suppose it will lie contended that the company was to
lie cbarged more tban tlie 85 per cent . Do you contend, Mir. Eldridge, tbat tbe com-
pany was to lie cbarged more tlian $b per cert?

Mrt. ELDRIDGE.-NOt for commissions.

Hon. Mrt. 139IQUE.-I understood that you stated tlie 85 per cent was to cover Mir.

Moss's commission and the commission to bis agents ?

Mir. ELDRIDE.-YeS.

Hon. Mir. BùiQu.-It is a mere matter of book-keeping, and tbe question is in a

nutsheil as to wlietlier tbe company lias been macle to, pay tbat 85 per cent ?

Hon. Mrt. McMULLEN.-Tlie point is this, if the contention of li. Wells is cor-
rect, tliat Mir. lios bired bis own agents ail through the United States and paid tbem.
Mrt. liosa sbould bave kept, and I liave no doulit lie did keep, an account witli eacli
agent. The company gives him $3,500 a week, and lie advances se mucli out of that to
the agents. When the agents send in business, there will lie 65 per cent for their com-
mission wbicli will lie credited against the advanoes made, It goes to the company's
funds, and M:r. lioss receives credit for it against the money advanced to, him. In
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that way Mr. Moss would charge to every one of the sub-agents the amount of money
that he had advanced thern, and would say to them, 'Now, when you send in business
you send it to me; I credit you with 65 per cent; 20 per cent cornes to me, and 65 per
ent goes te you; I will credit that ainount t> you against the advances I arn making
you and that money will be turned over to the company, and I will get credit on the
gross sum advanced to me.'

lion.,Mr. BùiQu.-I think the whole question is this; Mr. Wells dlaims that the
company was made to pay a great deal more than the 85 per cent commission-in fact,
paid the 65 per cent, or part of the 65 per cent twice, and Mr. Eldridge dlaims that
it is not se. The question is whether the company was made to pay more than 85
per cent as covering the commission to iMr. Moss to the agents.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :
Q I understand that you have already stated that the cempany was made te pay

a great deal more than 85 per cent $100,000 more than was represented by the 85 per
cent commission mentioned. in the contract with Mr. Moss ?-A. I do.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Gounsel for the Consmittep
Q. In other words, te put the matter shortly, Mr. Moss's acceunt should have

been charged xvith $182,000 in the year, and he was only entitled te a credit of 85 per
cent of ail the cash premiums that he setit in ?A. Yes.

Q. Is net that the whole tbing ?-A. Yes.
Q. That shiould bave been his whole account ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the balance would be money due him by the company ?-A. Yes.

Cross-examined by Mr. Fring le, Counsel for the Company:
Q. To clear up seme questions by Senator MiMiullen, I should like te know frein

the initiatien ef this centract with Mr. Mess in 1897, who kept the agent's acceunits 1
Was i ý Mr. Mess or the company ?-A. The company kept check on the diflerent
agents, and IMr. Mess's duty was te keep their accounts as well.

Q. The acceunto appoar@d in 'the tnmpagny's bocks ?A. Every agent's account
does-evpry agent that dees business foi' the company.

Q. Se that when this $3,500 a week was distributed te agents, Mr. Meoss was cred-
ited with the amounts and the agents who received them were debited with the
ameunts l-A. That is what I complain of; they should net have been credited te Mr.
Mess.

Q. That was from the initiation of this contract l-A. Yes.
Q. What was your position in that company, at that timel-A. At that time I wtis

one of the vice-presidents, and I was manager of the agency departmcnt, and chairman
of the executive committee.

Q. And yeu had an intimate knowledge of this matter ?-A. I had; I signed the
contract.

Q. Was yeur pretest registered in respect of the method of charging those agents'
accounts ?-A. Just as soon as I found it eut.

Q. When did you find it ont e-A. I feund it eut on my return from, Europe.
Q. llow long had yen been in America during the currency of this contract?---A.

It began in Jannary and I was there until July.
Q. And during five or six months you discovered nothi-ng I-A. No, because tho

first accounts were rendered right.
Q. And the agent's accounts were net kept by the company I-A. Certainly they

were; but at first Mr. Mess rendered the accounts as I contend they. should have beein
made out, charging him with the amount of nloney he received, and crediting him with
his commi>gsion of 85 per cent.

Q. How long a period of tirne would that run over i-A. It depends on when they
made them up. I cannot recail when they made them up.
WELS
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Q. I, want you to recail some of the facts for us l-A. That contract was mnade iii
January. When that contract was made the agency department was taken practically
and totally out of my bauds. When that first account was rendered I Carnot tell; I do
flot remember.

Q. The agency department was taken out of your hands ? A. Certailily.
Q. And you no longer managed it ?-A. I no longer had control of Mr. iMoss's de-

partinent at ail.
Q. Will you do a littie sum iu arithmetic for me ?-A. I arn a very bad arithmeti-

lan.
Q. My idea is to try and Bind out how mucli cash premiunîs would have to be paid

in order that Mr. Moss miglit have carned this $182,000 whicli you e1qim he was giveji
by the company, say at an annual premium of $20 per thousand l-A. iMr. Eldridge is
the actuary, aud lie car. make it Up.

Q. I want to get it from you ?-A. Take $100,000,000, at $20 per thousaud, that
would give $200,000, thougli Mr. Burnhaîn contended that iMr. MoO3 xould do over
$100,000,000.

Q. Then it would take $100,000,000 insurance in order that iMr. Moss miglit make
$1 out of bis contract other than bis weekly salaryl-A. No, it would talze less thari
$10o,000,o00.

Hon. IMr. BÉiQu.-Except extraordinary cireunistances are shown, we ought to
take it for granted that it was a fair contract for ail parties concerned.

By Mr. Pring le, Counsel for the Company:

Q. In respect of thîs transfer ou the flfteen-year aud teu-year business to the fiveý
year plan, did you cousider that to be an advantageous arrangement for tbe company
or not ?-A. If carried out properly, I did.

Q. What would you suggest as a proper method? Did you make auy suggestions?
-A. For carrying it out ?

Q. Yes ?-A. No, not as to the actuarial part of it, or getting up the rates or tables.
I made no suggestions; that was all left to our actuary. Tables were produced and a,
plan produced sud adopted.

Q. Wlien did tliey first commence to transfer that business ?-A. Not to a very,
great exteut until Mr. IMoss's coutract, but I thiuk some transfers were done in the year
previously, if I remember riglit. I arn not certain of that. The hulk of it was doue
under Mr. Moss's contract.'

Q. I sbould like you to look at a copy of a letter now shown you-was tbat written
by you?-A. 1 khôow 1 wrute a kltLoî, but aliether thia im an enaot oopy of àt or rot T
caunot say. I wrote a letter upon that subjeet, but I do flot kuow if tbis is a true copy.

iMr. COSTR.-We waut tbe original of this letter.

The CHAIRMAN.-It is tlie opinion of tbe Comrnittee that the original of tliis letter,
sliould be produced.

IMr. PRINGLE.-I will produce sud file the original before two o'clock to-day.

By Mr. Pring le, Counsel for the Company:

Q. Is tliis a passage f rom the letter which I now produce, dated July 29, 1896, and
addressed. by you as second vice-president, to, Mr. F. A. Burnharn, president of the'
-Ieompany:

' Moss is very mucli disturbed just uow witb the decision from the legal depart-
meut. in reference to, the transfer of the old business to tlie new flve-year cornbiual
tion option plan. Mauy, if not ahl, of tlie transfers lie lias made lie lias been writiug

1-19
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~upon new applications, and new examinations, and has given bis agents to, understand

ýthat instead of charging the firet payment of $8 per thousand the amount paid by the

:applicants on the last call should be applied in lieu of the first payment of $8 per thou-

sand, and handed over to, hini by the association. Your brother lias written you fully

on this subject, and I quite understand that there is mucli force in the points raised

by him, and that we miglit ho, subject to criticismn in the future for doing this, but the

immense profit and advantage to the association in the future by transferrinag these

policy-liolders to the flve-year plan, and in most cases getting the entire year's premium

in advance at their present or attained age, should offset the objections to, returning to

Mr. Moss, fromn the mortuary fund, the amounts paid by these applications upon the

last caîl. In the few cases to which my attention was called, it mal•es a difference after

the first year of several hundrcd dollars in favour of the association, besides getting

rid of some of the old bonds, amounting to quite a sum. of money. iMoss, in somne way,

was encouraged to treat the business in this way, and so arranged with lis agents, and

the objection coming up just now bas rather disconcerted him, and lie states, that

lie lias already given notice to the parties transferred. that the programme cannot be

carried ont. If the matter cannot be done in the manner lie proposed, I think it would

bo better to take from. some other fund tlie amount of these mortuary cails paid in, and

hand it over to Moss, so that lie can pay bis agents the transfers, and allow the amount

whici lias gone into the mortuary fund to remnain as it now stands. As, however, your

brother bas written you fully on the subj oct, we wîll, of course, be guided by your deci-

sion in the xnatter.'-A. I sent that letter. It is quite reasonable. It is a matter left

entirely to the president.
Q. So that you saw distinct advantages in the transfer of this business to the

flve-year plan ?-A. I did, if properly carried out.
Q. And the company, as a matter of fact, did reap large advantages l-A. I do not

think they did fromn the way it was carried out.
Q. As a matter of fact, was there flot an enhanced income to the company by

reason of this transfer of some $200,000 ?-A. Not in a way, a very small amount of

ePnbanee<Id iincome fromn the wsy it wag carriod out. That is, take the~ atutual amounlt

that came into the company, and if you deduct from. that ail the amounts advanced

to the agents, and then turu the balance into the expense fund, I do not think the resuit

of tbat was an advantage to the company. Then, whcn you consider the lapses on top

of tliat business-
Q. Did you ever make up the results of these transfers ?-A. It was not my busi-

ness to make them. Up.
Q. As a matter of fact you neyer did make up the results ?-A. I did Dot myseif,

perso-nally. The insurance department did up to a certain time.

Q. So that we may take it that what you have just stated is your judgment only?

-A. Just for what it is worth. You must remember that was in 1896, not under the

1897 contract.
Q. When did President Harper die l-A. Hie died, if I remember right, in July,

1895.
Q. And there, scems to have been some indecent hurry iu electing another presi-

dent ?-A. I do not say indecent. I gave the facts, caîl it indecent or ofherwise as

you please.
Q. Was it not a desirable thing to have a president elected forthwith ?-A. Within

a reasonable time, certainly. There was nothing suffering for an hour or two, or a

day. In other words, there was no necessity for electîng a president within an hour.

By, the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:

Q.You did not object ?-A. *No, it was a matter of opinion.

By M1r. Z'ringle, (Jounsel for the Company :

Q.Did you not take part in this speedy election ?-A. (Jertainly, I was one of

the directors.
W5RLLS



THE MUTUAL RESERVEPFIJND LIFE AS~SOCIAtTION

APPENDIX No. 1

Q. It was not, then, a matter that should have been commented upon in your
testimony ?-A. I was asked about it. I did flot somment upon it, whatever.

Q. I understand there was a criticism on this side Ï-A. No
Q. President Burnham was elected, as is usual, by the votes of the diretoWrs ?-

A. Hie was.
Q. At the next annual general meeting iPresident 1luinham was again elected

president ?-A. Hie was at the annual meeting.
Q. And elected a director I-A. Elected by the directors after the annual meeting.
Q. lie was elected a directoi at the annual meetng I-A. I suppose so. I tliink

probably that was the case- I do flot remember whether he was or was not, but I take
it for granteil that he was.

Q. At that annual general meeting, what proxies were used to elect President Buril-
ham I-A. I remember President Burnham, was standing with Mr. Lawrence, the special
counsel, and I remember Mr. Burnham coming forward and hesitating whether he
would vote the proxies or not, and he asked Mr. Lawrenee- the question whethcr he
would vote the proxies. -Mr. Lawrence replied, 'Yes, you had hetter vote them,' and
they were voted, how many of them. I do not remember.

Q. What proxies were those I A. I cannot remember-proxies of policy-holders.
Q. Were they the proxies which have been referred to as being left to iMr. Burn-

hem by President Harper î-A. I would not swear to that.
Q. Do you know as a matter of fact that they were not I-A. I do flot know. My

impression is-mind you simply my impression-that there were some of the proxies
voted that were left by Mr. Harper to iMr. Burnliam, but I cannot assuredly Say that
sucli was the fact.

Q. IDo you know as a matter of faet, that new proxies were sent up I-A. I do flot.

Bu the lIon. Mr. Béique:
Q.Was there a strong vote against the incoming directors I A. -No, flot against

the directors. It was carried, I think., alinost linanil¶ously by the meeting. There
neyer is Any trouble.

Q. The proxy votes would not affect it I-A. But stili they oount. When, the
vote was unanimous they voted the proxies besides.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for thLe Committee:
Q. It did not do any harm I-A. No, it did flot do any harm or any good. It

was only showing the large vote.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Company:
Q. On your return from England, which I believe was made inl 1898, or there-

abouts, you had an interview with President Burnham, when he showe-d you what you
speak of as a spurious contract I-A. Not at that time.

Q. About when was that I-A. I do flot know, -it must have been in J uly or
August. I am flot quite certain whîch, but it was a considerable time after my return.
It might have bccn in June, I cannot remember the month, but it was subsequent to
my first interview wîth Mr. Burnham.

Q. You also had a discussion, you say, with IMr. Burnham, when you inquired
as te, the delay in getting Inspector Payne's report issued. When would that inter-
view have taken place ?-A. That was in the fore part of May, after my return very
shortly.

Q. And you stated that you were told that $40,000 was paid for a rtianuscript
report ?-A. I was.

Q. To whom was that paid ?-A. That is a question for someone else. Hie said
lie had to pay $40,000 for that report to iMr. Payne. I do flot know whether lie paid
it or flot. lie said he had to pay $40,000 to Mr. Payne for that report.
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Jo unsel for the Jo mmittee:

Q.Did lie say lie had paid it to, Mr. IPayne ?-A. Yes, that is my recollection.
It miglit possibly be that lie paid it to, the Insurance Depa.rtment, lie said, but I amn
under the impression lie said lie paid it to :Mr. IPayne.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Company :

Q. Who made that report ?-A. It came from the department; 1 do nlot remem-
ber who signed it. IProbably MI\r. Vanderpoel signed it, but it came froni the depart-
ment.

Q. Upon being told that by President Burnham, did you speak to any of the
company's officers ?-A. About tliat?

Q. Yes ?-A. Yes, I did.
Q. Whicli of tlie oficers did you speak to ?-A. I spoke to iMr. Vrooman, talked

with liim. about it. I talked with General James about it, toid him ail tlie cirdum-
stances.

Q. They were at tliat time officers of the company ?-A. Tliey were. General
James was vice-president, Mr. Vrooman was treasurer, Mr. I-offecker was auditor.

Q. Was the matter deait witli in tlie executive ?-A. Not at ail.
Q. Just private conversations you had witli tliese people ?-A. Certainly. It

never was brought up before tlie executive.
Q. Neither of these gentlemen is with the company now ?-A. No, tliey resigned

afterwards.
Q. It was after the discovery of this bribery, or confession of it tliat witliout a

scrap of paper to show it, you gave the briber $5,575 in bis ?-A. 1 did, but flot for
that purpose, because it was a loan. I statedl ini my evidence tliat he said lie lad paid
$40,000, and it was to help him out of a li lie was in flnancialiy.

Q. You subsequently sued liim for it ?-A. I did.
Q. And the mnatter was settled out of court ?-A. Yes, and ail tlie costs were paid

by him.a
Q. J. S. I1offevkiwr wi% tlic soijoitor for youirseif and bis brotlier, Mr. Hloffecker.,

an officer of the company ?-A. No, lie was not my solicitor at ail. J. Hl. fluffecker,
a brother of tlie auditor, brought the proceedings himself on behlf of tlie policy-
holders, I suppose, but I did flot engage liim, and lie was not my solicitor.

B1, Mr. CJoster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. You were flot one of thie poiicy-holders lie was acting for ?-A. No.

B2/ Mr. Pringle, (Jounsel for the Company,

Q. I understood you. to say last niglit that you were in consultation with General
Tracy ?-A. I was. I was brouglit tliere by Mr. Hoffeeker to General Tracy.

Q. Wliat was the interview between yon. and General Tracy ?A. lie inquired
into the circumstances of the alleged irregularities and fraud, and everything in tliat
connection.

Q. What did you tell him ?-A. I gave liim wliat information I liad about it.
Q. A.nd subsequently this matter, you say, was settied by thie payment of $15,000?

-A. I did not say it ini that way. It was settled, withdrawn, furtlier proceedings.
stopped, and thie company paid $15,0O0 tliereafter, or about the same time.

Q. Did you not in your officiai position agree to tliis settiement and sign tlie
necessary papers in respect of it ?-A. No.

Q.You were not present when the settiement was agreed upon I-A. I was not.
Q.When you gave General Tracy these details of corruption were you flot an

officer of this company ?-A. I was.
S.Q. Pid you tell the wcýecutive eoimiîttee that yen were on one hafld tellhng thinge

to General Tracy ?-A. I told Mr. ]3urnliar wliat was going on and my interviews.
with General Tracy aud what was being done.
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Q. You did not however, inform the executive, your brother officers, it was only
* individually l-A. Everybody knew about it and talked about it.

Q. You were nlot present when the settiement was inade l-A. I was flot.
Q. You neyer brought the matter before the board in your officiai capacity ?-

A. No.
Q. 1l notice you speak of Mr. iMcDonald as being Mr. lloffecker's representative?

-A. Yes.
Q. How do you know that I-A. I know it from Mr. McDonald and Mr. Hoffecker

being at my house-know it £rom that fact that they were together and iMr. lloffccker
and iMr. MciDonaid disviissing the aff airs of the association, and Mr. McDonald going
with Mr. Hoffecker, and Mr. Hoffecker toid me of it himself, and I saw him with
Mr. Iloffecker. lie came and calied upon me.

Q. When was it that Mr. MciDonaid and Mr. Hoffecker were present at your
house ?-A. It was, some time after the settiement.

Q. IIow lonîg afterwards ?-A. I côuld flot say exactly, some time in the summer
of 1899.

Q. That was the first time yeu learned that Mr. MIcDonald n'as Mr. floflecker's
representative 1-A. That was the first time I understood that Mr. McDonald was
Mr. lloffecker's representative. I did flot know anything about hima or who he n'as.

Q. You knen' nothing then of this settiement of either officiai or subsequently
learned of it f rom other members of the board 1-A. I did not until I got the details
from the Superintendent's department.

Q. This $15,O00 n'as legal fees and paid as 'sucli ?-A. I suppose they were;
I do net know.

Q. You neyer got any of it ?-A. I neyer got any of it. I may say this : I knew
of a. settlement, that a settlement n'as mn-dewhen the petition was dropped, buit T did
Înt kuon' thc details of tliat settiement. 1 kn en a settiement'had been effected be-
cause the petitien was dropped.

By lIo. Mr. Béîque

Q. Wlien was the settiement ?-A. The agreement for settiement dropping the
petition n'as in 1898, some time in iNovember or iDecember.

Q. When had the proceedings been prepared ?-A. Prior to that time.
Q. lion long prior ?-A. Net long. We had a number of interviews with General

Tracy and, lis partner, iMr. Boardman, and they also appeared at the office consulting
about it n'ith Mr. Burnham. Mr. Boardman n'as there I do flot know how many times,
but a couple or three times, and it n'as discussed then with iMr. Burnham and Mr.
Boardman. Mr. Tracy never came to the office, but Mr. Boardman, his partuer, came
to the office and discussed the proceedings with the president and myseif. I n'as called
in.

Q. You had instigated the proceedings because you n'anted iMr. Burnham te be
removed 1-A. Decidediy. I did flot instigate the proceedings, but I was favourable te
them.

Q. You helped ?-A. I hielped.
Q. You gave information ?-A. Certain]y I did.

By M1r. Pringle, Counsel for the CJompany:

Q. When President Burnham n'as te resign, who had been decided. upon as hie
successor ?-A. There were two or three names proposed. General James n'as, the
party I and others n'ere in favour of. After discussing n'hether, he would accept him
or not, he decided that name wouid be satisfactory to him.

1Q. Who cise discussed the successor to Mr. Burnham n'ith you ?-A. There n'as of
course Mr. lioffecker, Generai Tracy and I discussed it with him, and I discussed it
aise, with different officers of the association.
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Q.Which ones ?-A. I cannot particularize which ones.
Q. But it was a general movement in the office that Mr- Burnham's successor

should be discussed, and arranged for ?-A. I will flot say that it was a general move-
-ment. I say different oliicers knew that this effort was being made and it was talked
about amongst each other.

Q. Was any naine suggested as vice-president ?-A. No, there was flot I think at
that time--Ol, yes.

Q. The name of J. Douglas Wells was not ?-A. Yes, the name of James D. Wells
was mentioned to Mr. Burnham, and in Mr. Hoffecker's letter to iMr. Burnham, I think
hie mentioned my name.

Q. Will you give me the naines of the gentlemen you diseussed with the officer tG*
succeed. Mr. Burnham. I want those naines in detail ?-A. 1 cannot give you particu-
lar names. I talked the matter over with Mr. Vrooman even after hie leS t, because this
matter as to who should be president came up after Mr. Vrooman's resignation.
General James was cabled to about it by General Tracy.

Q. Did you go outside of the office in your canvass ?-A. In my canvass for what?
Q. In canvassing the matter of a successor to Mr. Burnham, who, you say, had

promised to resign ?-A. Oh, no.
Q. Then you had no policy-holders to support the James and Wells nominee ?-A.

Why, it was not brouglit before any of the policy-holders as to who the successor woul-d
be.

Q. It was purely a matter of arrrangement between, as I can make it out, yourself
and General James and officers of the company and IMr. Vrooman, who had resigned.
-A. -There was no arrangement. lus namne was proposed as a gentleman that would
do a great deal towards resuscitating the company. A man of General James' name
would do a great deal, and lis name was simp]y discussed.

Q. When did you los. your confidence in President Burnham ?-A. I cannot tell
you the exact date. It was some time after I returned from England.

1Q. Hlow long had yoiu been associated with Mr. Burnlham prior to, that time -A.
Hoc was tho oourv4l of the, comvaiiy and connected with the company when I went to
New York as an officer of the company. That was in 1890.

Q. So you had been with him a number of years before you lost confidence in him?
-A. Why, certainly I neyer had any occasion in my interviews with him or anything
else. I had unlimited confidence in him until the time I came back and when I found
out these things I thought it my duty to take action.

Q. When did your terni oS office as vice-president expire ?-A. Wel], it would ex-
pire, I suppose, at the lannual meeting. The different officers are ail elected by the
board of directors after the annual meeting.

Q. Hlow long had you been elected for, when you were elected vice-president ?-A.
I cannot tell you whether it was one or two years. I cannot now define exactly the
time that the officers are elected for.

Q. You will not deny then that it was four years you were vice-president ?-A. I
will not deny it.

Q. As a matter of fact it was four years ?-A. Probably it was four years as
director. 'You asked the question how long I was elected vice-president.

By, M1r. Coster, K.C., (Jounsel for the (Jommittee:
Q. Is not a vice-president elected every year ?-A. Yes, but not the directors. A

certain number go 'but every ycar.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. I should lilie to know why you first suggested signing a petition for 'the re.

moval of Mir. Burnham ?-A. The petition will explain itself. I did not draw it up.
Q. I am not speaking of the petition itself. The petition was the work of several

parties, but I am asking you personally what reason you yourself had for suggesting
WELI.8
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his removal at the time ?-A. I cannot tell the first reason, there were so rnany of
tbem. iProbably the first reason was-

Q. You cannot remember ?-A. 1 cannot remember the reason I first signed.
Q. What rea.sons can you recali ?-A. I related the circumstances of this altered

contract; that was one particular. It is possible that was the flrst. Then I related
the circumstances of these large amounts beîng detained by MNr. Moss-credits to Mr.
Moss, the wrongful credits of these amounts that he had advanced his agents. That
was another. I do not know how many others-several of them-I have referred ta
them.

Q. These are the main ones ?-A. Yes. There would bc others, and also paying
Mr. Moss deferred commissions upon business secured under his 1897 contract, which
were annulled and reverted to the company under bis 1898 contract-paying him -the
commissions on deferred premiums.

Q.And I suppose paying $7,00O ?-A. That English draft, yes.

By the Hon. gr. McSu'eeney:

Q. You do not know whether Moss got ail of that $240,000 that Mr. IMoss owed
the cornpany at the tirne lie left. Did any one else get a share ?-A. I know nothing
about that. I know if the accouift had been properly made up lie would have owed the
company about that.

Q. Owed $240,000 ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:
Q. You gave evidence last niglit on that point, payment of deferred commissions

to Moss ?-A. That was one of the reasons 1 placed before General Tracy.

By Mr. Prinç,Ie, Co,,fis.' for the Company:

Q. You have a distinct recollection perhaps of the contract ?-A. Which contractI
Q. Under whichi this $7,O00 was paid I-A. Well, I ar nfot as familiar with that

as I arn with thc other, but we had better get the contract. I have a certified copy froin
the department and that wiii explain for itself. I produce certified cuiitraeLs of copiles
Nos. 2 and 3.

By the Hon. Mr. Wood:

Q. When was that $40,000 paid for that report ?-A. Mr. Burnham said he had
paid it, but I do not know at what date. It was in May it must have been, between the
lst and 7th of May.

Q. Was that before you signed that petition I-A. Ye's, long before. I do flot re-
member whether it was in the petition or flot, but I certainiy explained ail the cir-
cumstances connected with that interview and the payment of the $40,000, to General
Tracy.

Q. Was it one of the reasons you assigned in your petition ?-A. I think so. I arn
not positive. Whether lie put it in or flot I cannot rernember.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Company:

Q. Was it one of the charges that you laid and swore to in1 your information to
the Insurance iDepartment ?-A. I made an affidavit of ail the tireuinstances at the Te-
quest of Mr. ilunter, the iDeputy Superintendent of Insurance, who asked me to makze
the affidavit in New York, and in that affidavit I related ail the circumstances of that
interview and of Mr. Burnhama's staternent regarding the payment of that $40,000, and
that was fiied with Mr. Ilunter, the Deputy Superintendent of Insurance in New York.

By the Uhairman:
Q. What became of that document ?-A. I do flot know. I ieft it with him. It

is probably on the records there.
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Mvlr- PRINGLE.-I sbould like to have that document produced.

WrrNESS.-I asked for it, and Mr. ilunter said it had been sent with ail the papers
,to Albany, but lie remembered it distinctly and said lie liad sent it there.

By Mr. Coster, K.C.,ýCounse1 for the Committee:

Q. Have you a copy ?-A. No.

Mr. PRINGLE.-In the absence of the document this part of the evidence should be
struck out. This is an officiai document and a certified copy, of it could be produced.

By Mr. Pring le-, Counsel for the Company:

Q. I understand that document is at Albany and can be procured ?-A. I do not
know wliether it is at Albany or not or in Mr. Burnliam's possession. I have very
grave suspicion wbere it is.

Q. There was a subsequent petition put in before the Attorney General l-A.
There was.ï

Q. Who were connected with that ?-A. I cannot tell you ail the names. I know
Mir. Stevenson's name was on. I think there were altogether five policy-holders bad
signed that petition. I forget the names exactly. It speaks for itself. It is a matter
of record.

Q. You referred to an interview with President Burnham, wbere, when you said
you were about to resign, lie asked you to take a trip and that your salary would con-
ýtinue l-A. I did not. I said Mir. Frank Lawrence, bis counsel.

Q. In Mr. Burnham's office and in bis presence l-A. No, 'Mr. Burnham stepped
into the adjoining room. and sent for Mr. Lawrence with a view to prevailing on me to
give him that letter that 1 was satisfied witb bis management.

Q. So it was to Mfr. Lawrence you said, II will not take your trip, I wiIl resigil,
and I do flot want any money I have neyer earned '?-A. That was not ail the con-
versatjioi wç bad. 1 declined b is oller. I said no. I would not accept bis olffr.

Q. I took your exact wurds last night, and youi saId, 'I do> iuo t aut riy monoy T
neyer earned '.-A. I do not think I made that statement. If I did let it stand, but
practically I said so to 1fr. Lawrence, I know I expressed myseif very strongly abouit
it to Mr. Lawrence.

.Q. That was in January 1-A. The 25tb January, 1899, the day of tbe annual
meeting.

Q. And wben did you present your memorandum asking for some tbousands of
dollars fromn tbis company I A. My memorandum does flot ask for tbousands of dol-
lars. I presented a memorandum to 1fr. Lawrence at bis request. Hie wanted to know
about tbe amounts I bad expended in behaif of the company. Hie asked me for it,
and I gave it to him at bis request.

Q. And you asked for a year's salary I-A. I did not. I did not' asic for any
amount, but lie proposed to place me upon the salary list and extend my salary as
long as I desired. That was bis proposition.

Q. You are acquainted with the practice of investigation by the Insurance De-
partment of New YorÉk State in matters-tbat come before tbem I-A. In a general
way I amn. It is flot a matter I ever was associated witb then in making examinations.
,J cannot give details, but I know in a general way bow they proceed.

Q. Wbcn charges sucli as you and Mfr. Stevenson laid before themn are made, it
'is the customn to bave tbe statements of eitber party upon affidavit, is it not 1-A. I do
not tbink it was the custom; I have neyer beard anything of tbe kind before. At
the superintendent's request, I put into the formn of an affidavit my statements, my
charges.

Q. And tbe company did tbe samne tbing I-A. I bear now tbey did. I neyer
heard of or saw tbis book before.
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Q. But, as a matter of fact, was it flot the practice of the department to examine
into matters of the kind on affidavit i-A. I do flot know.

Q. But you do nlot know that it is not v-A. I do nlot.
Q. How often did you take this matter up with IMr. Payne after you put in that

statement ?-A. I saw him quite a number of times before he went to Paris. I saw
him before the examination. was commenced, and also after the examination was con,
menced at the deputy superintendent's office in New York. 11e introduccd me to the
deputy superintendent before he left for Paris, and he said to him, 'I want Mr. Wells
to have access to this office and any information lie requires, 1 want you to givo it to
him '.

Q. You have said that none of the charges made were examined into ?-A. I did
flot say that. I say Mr. Payne in lis report says that the charges were flot exgrnined
into.

SQ. IDid flot Mr. Payne have this Moss contract? Have you not sworn tliat Mr.
Payne lied a oopy of that Mos~s eontract ?-A. Certain ly, he got that from the com-
pany and siowed. it to me--at least lie did not, but lis assistant. Mr. Appleton, did.
I saw it in lis hands.

Q. I take it, you judge, because no0 comments were made on this, that no examina-
tion was made i-A. No, I supposed it would be examined into. I took his report,
which speaks for itself in regard to that subject.

Q. You are flot then, alluding to the fact that because you were Dlot personally
nand orally exalnined, that these charges were flot gone into i-A. 1 ar nflt complain-
ing of the report. I think the report substantiates my charge fully.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. Wliat report ?-A. The superinteiident's.
Q. Was it to Mr. Payne thaL the $10,000 was paid t-A. That is what Mr. Burn-

ham said to me. I did not say that I believed he had got it.
Q. Isb h stili tho SuperintendiiL of Ilnsurance ?-A. No, Mr, flendrieks is now.
Q. You say Chat you did not state that you believed he got it?-A. I have very

grave doubts about that now. I do flot think he did get it, from. subsequeat inter-
views witli Mr. Payne about it and more knowledge of Mr. Burnliam's character ; I
d1o not believe that Mr. Payne got the whole of that, or any part of it. Some of it
Imay have gone to some of his subs, but I do flot think the amount of it went to Mr.
Payne direct. That is my impression.

By the Chairnman:
Q. You are speakiag £rom the character of the man q-A. Certainly.

-By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Wlien you swore to that charge whicli you made, in which this wC 3 one of the
allegations, Mr. Payne was stili the superintendent, was he flot ?-A. Yes, tliat is an
entirely separate affidavit, referring to nothing else but that interview with iMr. Burn-
ham, and that charge iii reference to the payment of money.

Q. 11e was interested in making that clear? It was a very serions charge against
him t-A. Certainly, and lis deputy, MNr. ilunter, asked me to put it in the form of
an affidavit.

Q. And do you know what inquiry was made on that t-A. I do nlot.

By Mr. Pringle, Uounsel for the Company:
Q. I see you were sent a notice to appear before this Committee; can I see tînt

notice?-A. I have it at tbe hotel. I will bring it.
Q. When did you get that ?-A. I thiîik, about the 3rd.
Q. An officiai notice from the clerk?-A. Yes, it was about the 3rd of the month,

if I remember the date, but I will produce the notice, if you want it.
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Q.And that was the first news you had of this investigation J-A. Oh, no0.
Q. What was the first news you had of it J-A. The first news was reading in

the Insurance press and also the Senate proeeedîugs, which I received.
Q. From whom did you receive those J-A. I think Senator Domville sent me

some of them., and I also had read about it, btefore I got the Sonate proceedings, in
the Insurance press of New York. Most of the papers made reference to these pro-
ceedings.

Q. Were you here a year ago during the session J-A. I wss.
Q. Was there anything pending at that time in reference to this J-A. If I re-

xnember riglit, Senator iDomville moved for papers, but I was not present in the Senate
at the time. It was simply for information, if I remember right, reading it in the
papers.

Q. Take up that iMoss draft; will you let me know what iMr. iMoss's trip to England
was taken for at that time ?-A. I cannot tell what went on between him and Mr.
Burnham. My idea first in having Mr. Moss go over there. wss to help iMr. Thorne,
who was a particular f riend of bis, and who was made manager of the London depart-
ment tlirough Mr. Moss. iMy idea wss that Mr. Moss being such a thorough worker, it
would be a good idea for him to go over to London and conneet himself with Mr,
Thorne for a time so as to get the business organized, and resuits from the business.
M'Ar. Thorne'had been there some time, and very littie had been done.

Q. Then sny statement to the effect that in the memorandum filed by you and
called Exhibit B, that would be filed with the Department of Insurancè, state of New
York, to this effect, is incorrect:

'iMr. Moss's trip to England was entirely upon his own special business and had no
oonnection with the association in any particular '.-A. That is correct, because Mn.
Moss was not there over a couple of weeks, I think, in England, altogether, and what
was donc was altogethen in regard to his own personal matt3rs. He did not take hold
of the business or the agent. My object in his going thene was to benefit the business,
to instruet Mr. Thorne, but that was not the nesuit of bis trip.

Q. 'XNtwithstanding the fact that the president knew Che~ fact that Mr. IMoss a
going to England on bis own personal business, the company pAld Che expeurse of iMr.
Mose's trip to È~urope and return 'J-A. As I understand, +h0 company did that. I
did not leann tliat until long afterwards.

Q. The president knew J-A. iMr. iMoss said he would not go-I was urging him t(>
go-until the president cabled him to come.

Q. Cabled iMr. Moss to go to England on bis own personal business J A. No, that
was not mentioned in the cable.

Q. But whst was the ides, that lie was to go on bis own pensonal business J-A.
No, I do not know what the arrangement was between Mr. Burnbam and IMr. Moss,
but the nesuit was he went only for his own pensonal businesg.

Q. But you say bore that the president knew that lie was goig 011 bis own personal
business J-A. Centainly, and I will tell you how I know tbat. Mr. Bunnham, after
lie reaclied ILondon, there was s matter which came up in regard to iMr. iMoss's affairs.
Some parties that were pressing iMr. Moss for money and were tbreatening action
against hirs, Mr. Burnhama had that i11 hand, the settiement of it, sud he did cable Mr-
Moss, knowing those facts, to go over to England. I do not think lie mentioned in bis
cable but te come, but lie knew of those fscts because lie was iuterested in getting tliem
disposed of before Mn. Moss came over.

Q. But lie did not go to England on tbe company's business J-A. It wss my in-
tention tliat lie sliould go, but evidently tlie nesuit of bis going, or whst lie did go for,
was different from my intention.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.You were in England at the time J-A. No. IL did not go to England. This
was in 1896.
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Q. Anyway, it was on your suggestion that Mr. iMoss was asked to go to England ?
-A. I do flot know that it was on my suggestion, but I urged that he should go.

Q.You expected that it would be lu the îuterest of the company ?-A. Certainly.
Q.And ycrnr expectations were not realized ?-A. iNot realized.

Q. But instead of doing what you expected he would do, you understood that he
spent his time on bis own business ?-A. Whieh he did.

Q. You were in Eugland at the time ?-A. No.
Q. What means had you of knowing ?-A. There was no resuit of bis work. H1e

was flot there long enougli to benefit tbe association.
Q. How long was ho ?-A. 1 shouhi say about two weeks, autually iu London at

the London office. It would take à week or ten days to go over, and a week to corne
back.

Q. I suppose if good resuits had been derived from bis trip you would flot have )b-
jected to the payment of the $7,0O0 ?-A. It would depend upon what the services were
Worth.

Q. When he was asked to go, was there any agreement made with him as to the
-amount ?-A. Noue whatever.

Q. It was a inatter to be settled afterwards ?-A. To be settle-d afterwards, I sup-
pose.

SQ. And you tbought that £rom the resuit that $7,000 exceeded what he wasen
titled to ?-A. I know it was.

By the Hon. Mr. MeSweeney:

Q. Is there any business being done lu England uow. ?-Yes, but not the resuit
of Mr. Mms going there. We had- an office there before Mr. Moss wept. What busi-
ness is being doue there now, 1 do nut know.

By IlLe lion. Mr. Wilson:
Q. Iu reference to the $7,000, you considered that was an exorbitant amount to

paY a man~ Who waS over there, not upon the company's business ?-A. Even if he a
on the company's business, it would have been an exorbitant amount to pay hlm, even
if bis whole time had been devoted to the company's business.

Q. And you thînk it was an unreasonable thing to make sucli a demand for going
there after being authorized by the compauy to go ?-A. I think so. Hle did not make
that demand for himself, but returned it to Mr. Burnham. I neyer saw anything from
Mr. Moss for the London business; it neyer came before me.

Q. Have you any idea why Mr. Burnham gave hlm that amount. Have you auy
knowledge why he did so ?-A. Except Mr. iMioss takiug sncb a prominent interest in
the New York business that he probably thouglit it better riot to have the stigma on
hlm which would be apt to injure hima afterwards.

By the (Ihairman:
Q. That is, to pay the dlaims on Mr. Moss whule lie was in England ?-A. Yes,

some old matters that came up.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. That virtually would have nothing to do with the transactions in New York;
the amount tbey paid him while iu London would not affect the New York business?
-A. No, but it would affect hlm persoually, as manager of the New York business.
Anythiug that -affected bis standing, naturally, lie taking sncb a prominent part,
would be an injury to the association.

Q. Then, ylou want this Committee to understand that it was a personal matter
of Mr. Burnham's to give this amount of the company's fuuds so as to ingratiate hlm-
self and the company witb the manager of the New York business ?-A. No, I do not
put it lu that way.
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By the Chairma&:

Q. As I understand it, Mr. Moss went over to London at the demand of Mr.
Burnham. WTben Mr. Moss got there, creditors of Mr. Moss pressed him for payment.
Mr. Moss flot having the mon ey, IMr. Burnham advanced the $7,000 to, him i-A. Yes.

Q. When âid you become acquainted witb Mr. Moss for th,ý first time l-A. MIr.
Burnham introduced me to him the latter part of 1895 or 1896--wben he first joined
the association.

By the Hon. 31r. Wilson:

Q. am anfot quite satisfied as to why the $7,000 had been paid by Mr. Burnham
to Mr. Moss for services supposed to be rendered while Mr. Moss was in London I-A.
]It was paid to Mr. Moss to enable him to settie up this difficulty in wbich he was
while in London. _It was paid to hlm to assist him, in order to pay up some matter
of debt or whatever it was-I have neyer leaTned the exact particulars, but that was
the objeet for which the money was paid at that time to Mr. Moss, to enable hirn to
compromise whatever this trouble was.

Q. There were no debts incurred while lie was over the last time-there were n
heavy debts, anything like $7,000 ?-A. No, this was some old matter of his before lie
joined the association.

By the Hon. Mr. McM'ullen:
Q. Is Mr. Moss related to any members of the association I A. I think flot.
Q. Did he corne to Mr. ]3urnbam rnerely as a strangerI Had lie letters of in-

troduction I-A. Mr. Burnharn, as I understood and he told nme, had mct hlm in Lon-
don, when lie, Mr. Burnham, and Mr. ilarper were ovper there on a prior visit, and
while there, they met Mr. Moss-at least that is what I was informed by Mr. Burn-
harn-whetber it is true or not, 1 cannot say, but that is what Mr. Burnbam. told me
when introducing him to me, and what a magnificent man lie was.

Dyj Mr~. Pringlo, Uounsel for the Conpanyj

Q. You knew notbing of Mr. Moss during his career in England ?-A. No.
Q. You do flot know that lie was an agent of the IMutual iReserve a year before

lie carne to New York?-A. No. I learned subsequently that lie did get some busi-
ness, but I do not think lie was a manager or agent of the company. 11e may bave
had a commission contract, as bundreds of men do wbo bring in business to the corn-
pany. Tbey get a certain commission. H1e did some business that way under the
manager at London.

Q. When ?-A. That I have learned since. I did not know it at the tume.
Q. So it is admitted that lie was in the employ of the cornpany prior to bis com-

ïng to New York?-A. I say it is possible. I do not know the details of it. It is
sometbing that neyer came under my observation, because I neyer knew hlm or who
lie was. Before I- went to London I had nothing to do with the cmploying department.
It did not come under my jurisdiction.

Q. iReferring to this letter of July 29, 1896, to F. A. Burnham, and signed J. iD.
Wells, I should like to read some references in respect to Mr. iM oss's trip to England:

'I wrote you fully, giving my ideas with reference to iMoss going to London.
0f course, Moss was willing to go, but he did flot like the manner in whieh he was
requested to go, so I cabled you to cable hlmi direct, that it was your tesire that he
should proceed to London witbout delay. Thorne, no doubt, is doing everything in
his power to, establish the agency, but you and I understand very well that lie is new
and uuacquainted with our plans and system, as well as thie true standing of the asso-
ciation. I think, mucli as I have hesitated about IMoss leaving here, that no tume
sbould be lost in getting hlm. to England. I gave him my reasons fully as to the im-
portance of having the London agency meet with prompt and immediate success, but
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of course leave the matter entirely in your hands. Moss is meeting with every success
here. is business for the month of July will exceed $800,000, and it seems a great
pity to allow anything to occur that will interfere with the success of the metropoli-
tan agency, but I appreciate so> thoroughly the importance of having him in London
now, instead of later, that 1 do flot hesitate to advise you to have him go to London
without further ceremony or delay; but this he will only do upon your direct request.
You know he is a very sensitive fellow in some respects, and does flot want the idca
entertained that he is at ail unfit to go.'

I take it from th-it, you were clearly under the impression that Mr. Moss was
going fo bondon on the company's business--A. I certainly was under that impression.

Q. And you also say that the president knew that Mr. Moss was going to Europe
on his own personal. business l-A. That 1 found out subsequently. At that time I
knew nothing about his troubles there.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Wcre nut tber5 extradition proceedings, or something -A. I was informed
subsequently by Mr. George Burnham, counsel for the company-my impression was
that he would do the London business good, but I have since ascertained there was
private correspondence between Mr. Burnhamn and IMr. Moss.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. You believed at the time he was doing good work in New York i-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. And that entitled him to $7,OOO ?-A. iNo, bis salary was going on and 1l was
attending to bis work in bis absence, and the business instead of decreasing, was in-
croasing.

By Mr. Fringlo, Couelsel fo' thbe Comnpany

Q. In reference to certain dlaims of Mr. Halsey, as I understand it, Mr. Halsey
had two contracts 'with the Mutual, Reserve ?-A. I do not understand that-that is
not at that time-that he had a contract working under Mr. Moss. H1e ha& flot two
contracts. I neyer made a contract with hirm at that time.

Q. What would a contract -pnder Mr. Moss be termed l Would it be a metropoli-
tan contract ?-A. Mr. Moss at that time was general manager of the Metropolitan
Department and the contract under which Mr. Halsey was working was subject to that.
11e was simply an agent of Mr. Moss.

Q. You do not know auything then with respect to the contract at Baltimore,
Maryland i-A. I do not remember. That may have been a subsequent contract, 1
forget. 11e probably was sent there after iMr. Moss made the new contract. I re-
member hearing of his being there, but I neyer saw a contract Mr. Moss made with
him as to going to Baltimore or anywhere else.

Q. You testified that Mr. llalsey hadl been advanced $8,000 by the Company, and
that Mr. Halsey owes the compauy $3,000, or something to that -effect; tell me what you
kiiow of that to your own knowledge I-A. Ail I know is that Mr. Halsey claimed
credit for commissions that he earned while working under Mr. Moss in the inetro-
politan district, or where Mr. Moss sent-him.

Q. How rauch did that amount to I-A. If I remember rightly, $3,000. Those
commissions had been paid to Mr. Moss. That is ail Mr. Moss was entitled f0 Under
his contract, and he failed to settie with Mr. Halsey.

Q. Do you know this of your own knowledge?-A. I uo, because I saw the
accounts.

Q. Now, in respect of this $8,000 you were.dealing with and the $3,000, you saw
both those accounts in detail, two absolutely ?-A. There were not two accounts, there
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was only one account, showing bis indebtedness $8,000, and'he was given credit for
$3,000, reducing that indebtedness to $5,000. That is what I testified to.

Q. So that the statement that there were really in effect two contracts, 0one at
Baltimore under which Mr. llasley owed $8,000 to the company, and this metro-
politan eontract under which the company owed hlm $3,000, you could net contradict
of your own knowledge ?-A. I think the $8,000 was the entire balance that Mr; Halsey
owed, as I understand it, and whether that accumulated under one contract or the
other, or whether there are two, I cannot remember-I do nlot know.

Q. Yeu could nlot give us the evidence I arn anxious to get, namely, that there
were two contracts q-A. That I do nlot know.

Q. Was it in respect of this llalsey contract that Mrn Hoflecker had hîs trouble
withi the company ?-A. No, that was one of the things that he cornplained of, and
that caused his first letter to be written the president. Hie refers to irregularities in
that letter.

Q. Have you any knowledge as to what occurred after that matter was taken up
by the president ? A. What do you mean?

Q. What did Mr. Eiofecker do ?-A. Mr. Iloffecker resigned the day his letter
was put iii. Hie resigned that day and left, and that letter was brought before the
executive committee by iMr. Burnham, at which Mr. Eldridge and somebody else and
myself were present.

Q. Whadt was done with that resignation ?-A. I do nlot know what became of it.
It is there ini the hands of the company no0 donbt.

Q. llow was it deait with by the executive ?-A. They simply passed a resolution,
if I remember rightly, after reading that and discussing Mr. Hoffecker, dismissing
him instead of accepting his resignation.

Q. Do you know why that radical measure was adopted?-A. Owing to his strong
letter, nothing else. Mir. Burnham was very Much exasperated on receiving that letter,
and expressed his anger, and it was owing entirely to the contents of that letter that
the dismissal was made--if it was made, I think it was-was brought about by that
rSEolution in tlip execlitive CQmmittee.

Q. You were present and concurred in the dismissal?-A. Ujertàlnly.
Q. You were not surprised at iMr. Burnham's anger, I suppose ?-A. I think any-

one would be, angry on getting a letter of that kind.
Q. Was there no demand for an increase of salary ?-A. None whatever.
Q. You have a very distinct recollection of ail that occurred at that meeting?-

A. As distinctly as a man can remember anything that occurred several years ago.
Q. But you still feel sure that you could contradict any statement that an in-

crease in salary had been demanded ?-A. I neyer knew of any increase--never heard
of it.

Q. Not an increase, a dexnand for an increase ?-A. A demand for an increase.
None ever came before me personally. I know 1 tried with Mr. Burnham for
other employees. I remember speaking to the president himself, and I think
IMr. lloffecker was one of them, that their salary was not sufficient to re-
munerate them for the services they were rendering the company. Those matters
would sometimes corne up before me, and I would talk to the presidnt about it, and
in some cases the increases were given, and in other cases they were not, and it is pos-
sible that IMr. lloffecker's name came up during one of those conversations, but there
was not what you cail de'mand.

Q. You are thoronghly acquainted witli the by-laws of the association ?-A. N o.
I cannot say that I arn thoroughly acquainted with them witliout looking at them. I
used to know more about tbem than I do. I could. not cite them or give you the con-
tents of the by-law or constitution.

Q. In speaking to iMr. Eldridge you made the statement that he was on more than
one pay-roll ?-A. Certainly, he admitted that the other day.
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Q. That was quite riglit ?-A. Yes, no objection to bis salary being divided, pro-
viding it was flot too large a salary.

Q. As a matter of fact was it flot necessary that lie should be on two pay-rolls ~
A. Not for an amount over and above the $10,000 or $200 a weezk whieh I always under-
,stood was bis salary, and wbicb I was given to understand by the president was i s
,salary, the two amounts miglit have been divided and put upon different pay-rolls.

Q. What were the two pay-rolls Mr. Eldridge was on ?-A. Well the pay-roll, as
Mr. Eldridge testified to-

Q. You testifled to one on dues, and one on mortuary ?-A. Yes, I think*that a
it, if I remeuiber right. 1 amn not quite certain, but I think there wvas a pay-roîl in
which some certain things were charged to mortuary, the certain parts that were on
the mortuary business alone, they probably were charged to mortuary, and thosc on the
general business of the comapny were charged to dues.

By the ifon. Mr. Béique :
Q.When did Mr. Eldridge enter the* company's service ?-A. I think in 1894.

Q. Wbat did you understand to be bis salary at the time ?-A. At that tirne 1 did
not know what it was. It neyer came to me at aIl, but I always understood it was
about $100 a week. It miglit bave been more, and it might bave been less, but that is
what I understood it.

Q. At wbat time did you understand bis salary to be $250 a week ? A. That was
the time after iMr. Burnbam came into tbe presidency, after lie became president, and
lie and I came together after Mr. llarper's deatb, and Mr. Burnbam and I discuss2d
the salaries, and arranged the salaries after that time-I think in 1895, or the first of
1896.

Q. And Mr. Eldridge's salary was understood to be $250 a week ?-A. Eitber $200
or $250, I am. noV positive whivlh.

Q. As arranged by yourself and tbe president ?-A. Yes.
Q.And you wcre not made aware that his salary wab increased ?-A. Ne.
Q.Was it discussed at that time ?-A. Yes, wben we were going over the Iist de-

creasing the salaries, that one salary wbicb I speak of, the $200 or $250 a week, was
diseussed along with the other officers.

Q. IDid you ever inquire from the books of the company, at what rate be was paid ?
-A. I do not know that I can answer tbat, but I tbink so, yes. Let me see bow I got on
to that. I cannot tell at the moment how I got it. Yes, now I remember. I was -in-
formed by tbe treasurer as to the exact amount lie was getting.

Q.Wben ?-A. Mr. Vrooman.
Q.After the dismissal ?-A. No, after my return from England.

Q. Wlien was it ?-A. 1898.
Q. Wbat part of 1898 ?-A. June or July, I cannot rernber. 1 was informed

by Mr. Vrooman as to wbat remuneration Mr. Eldridge was getting.
Q. Wbat was it ?-A. If I remember riglit, about $17,500.
Q. A yearl ?A. Yes.
Q. You did not a-certain it from tbe books of tbe company ?-A. No, I did not

go to the books, because tbe salaries of the officers would not be in detail in tbe books.
The books would show the wbole amount paid for salaries, but it would not show ;n
detail the different officers to wbom it was paid.

Q.The pay-list is not a part of the books ?-A. No, tbey are made out on sheets.
Q.Tbey are kept ?-A. Yes, in tbe bands of tbe paymaster.

Q. And it formns part of the books of the company ?-A. No, not at all. Tbey are
not counted books.

By the Hon. M1r. Domville:
Q.Iow is it cbarged up in the ledger ?-A. Tbe total amount is charged up.

Q. Supposing thle total salaries were $300,000, bow would tbey put that $300,000
As a block sum ?-A. Yes.
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Q. Not in detail ?-A. No. The detail would be ini the pay-rolls.
Q. You say the pay-rolls form no0 part of the books of the company ?-A. Certainly

not.

By Mr. Pringie, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. As a matter of fact, are the pay-rolls not bound volumes ?-A. No, they are
flot bound volumes at all. They may have them 110w bound volumes, or may have
bound these, but when they were used week by week, they were made out on separate
sheets.*

Q. And they are no pert of the records of the company ?-A. I do flot say that.
Q. What do you mean by saying they are no part of the books of the company

-A. The books are one thing and the sheets are another thing. The books are the book-
keeping of ail the transactions entered every day pro and con, and debît and credit.
the regular books of the company, kept by the clerks, separate and distinct from the
pay-rolls.

Q. The loose-leaf ledger would flot be a book, in your estimation?-A. It just
depends what it was for ; but here was an account, these pay-rolls were made up each
week by the paymaster, and the money paid over to hîm, and then he distributed that
money around among the different officers and employees.

Q. llow would you get at Tour ledger totals without referring to these other
books?-A. You could get that in the cash account: that cash would state the amount
therein, either for mortuaries or for dues.

Q. We are dealing with salaries?-A. That would include it. The amount drawn
each week would be entered up in the cash in bulk, but flot in detail.

Q. How could you get in detail the salaries ?-A. You could get it from the psy-
rolls.

By the Chairman:
Q. Were you ever present when the Insurance Department of New York exam-

ined into the affairs of the company? Were you ever present at an examination made
by ally 6ôherg of the Thaurance iDepartmenit of New Yor~k Into the affairs of the eota-
pany ?-A. No. I was connected with the company when the examination was
going on.

Q. Do you know if these pay-rolls were ever examined by the Insurance Depart-
nient ?-A. I do flot. I was told they were. They probably were, but I do flot know
from my own knowledge.

By Mr. Pria gis, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. I notice you speak of iMr. Eldridge receiving $250 additional to his salary,

six times per year ?-A. Ye..
Q. Do you know when that payment started, and when it ended ?-A. I do not.

1 know that payments were made hîm before the bi-monthly audit which was made,
and I understood Mr. Eldridge received $250 for that audit; but when it actually
commenced, I neyer knew, and when it ended, I neyer knew.

Q. You do flot know how mucli was paîd under that at all?-A. I do flot know
the total amouut at ail. IMr. Eldridge the other day did flot recolleet.

Q. You testified that it was being paid at the time that Mir. Eldridge drew
tl7,5o00?-A. I did flot testify that. I testifled that it was paid him when he was,
drawing his regular salary, whateverthat was. So it was.

Q, I have liere that you testified?-A Well, as a matter of fact, it was paid hini
at the time lie was drawing his regular salary.

Q. What was his regular salary-the total ?-A. The total, as I understood it,
was-I cannot tell you the exact amount, but it was somewhere between seventeen
and eighteen. thousand dollars.

Q. Was it flot fIfteen thousand dollars ?-A. No, I said on one pay-roll it was
$7,200; 1 forget whether it was $200 or $250.
WELLS



6 TE MUTUÂL RFLSJRVE FUND LIPE ASOCIATION 305

APPENDIX No. 1

Q. You said $200 on dues, and $100 on mortuary l-A. No, I did nlot say $100
on mortuary. I said about $150.

Bv M1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the (Jommiltee:
Q. And then you say $1,500 in addition for auditing ?-A. That is what :Mr..

Eldridge explained the other day, that he got that in addition to lis regular com-
pensation. That amount neyer came to mny knowledge iintil a day or two before I
Ieft New York this time, about that amount paid him for an audit. The party came
to me that sent some vouchers, nnd asked me if I knew about it, na former controllcr,
of the company, D. R1. iMiChcsney.

By the Hio-n. Mr. Béiq'ae:
Q. Do I understand that, according to the practice followed by the company, the

salaries of the officials were not fixed by the board or the executive commnittee i-A.
No, they were fixed practically by Mr. Burnhamn, but olffcially by Mr. Burnhum and
one or two of the executive committee; that is the proper course for salaries.

Q. Was there anytbing in the by-laws of the association about that?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Point that out to me in the by-laws ?-A. Section 2, article 3: 'The directors

shall elect three of their number, who shall constitute an executive, who shall appoint
such medical. examiners as they deem necessary, audit death dlaims, and shall deter-
mine ail salaries and expenses, and shall have the power to make contracta with gen-
eral agents and others for the furtherance of the business of the association and for
the benefit of the members.'

By the Nlon. Mr. Béique:
Q.And that committee, in your time, take it f rom 1895 to January, 1800, was

cornposed of the prpýsident, yourself, and who was the thuxd one ?-A. I think, if I amn
not inistaken, iMr. Eldridge was one of them, and I think Vrooman was, but I cannot
remember exactly. There were three of thern altogether. The president, f think, at
that time was, ex-officio, a member of that committee, if I remember aright.

Q. Then, it was the business of yourself and the two other members to fix the
salary ?-A. It was, certain]y.

Q. They were frxed, I suppose, by the company ?-A. Not always. Tbey were
frxed often by the president without reference to the committee.

Q.You submitted to tbat practice. Did you remonstrate or noV ?-A. I do not
think I remonstrated, ne0.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Cornmittee:
Q. Art. 4, section 1, says: 'that the president is a member of the executive com-

mittee' ?-A. Yes, ex-offlcio.

B~y Mr. rringle, (Jounsel for the M'utual Reserýve:
Q. At the tixne yeu went to England, you knew what Mr. Eldridge's; salary was?

-A. I do not think I did. I am flot quite clear. It is possible I may have known,
but I do not remember whether I knew exactly or not, at the time I went to England.Q. So that you could nlot tell whether or flot his salary had been increased during
your absence, when yon came back, and found it amounted to $17,500. You would
not know whether it was an increase or not ?-A. When Mr. flurnham and I fIrst
settled what lis salary was, I knew what that was, and that was noV ehanged after
my return from England, that salary was reduced along with the others, so that I must
have known.
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By, the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. The question is as to whether you knew or flot as to whether bis salary was

-increased during your absence i-A. It rnight have been increased during my absence.

Q. You do flot know i-A. I do flot know whether it was done then or before 1

went away, because we fixed those salaries soon after Mr. Burnharn was made pre-

-aident.

By the Chairman:

Q.You fixed that salary at a certain figure i-A. Yes.
Q.Say $10,000 a year i-A. Yes.

Q. You say it is flow up to $17,500 ?-A. Yes.
ýQ. Were you consulted in regard to that increasè i-A. No.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Muttual Reserve:

Q.How can you say it was not, when you were in England when the increase

vwas made i-A. That was in 1897, snd part of 1898, but you are asking when I went
4eo England.

Q. No ?-A. You are asking whether it was increased whèn I was absent, or not.

Q. Yes i-A. I cannot say.

By the Chairman:

Q. You were neyer consulted i-A. No.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mu tual Rese'rve:

Q.low could you be consulted when you were in England? (No answer.)

lion. Mr. BÙIQUE.-I think we have had enough of that.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. As a mntter of fact, you will flot deny that you were not on the executive coin-

-mittoo whQu hiç snIary was rgised?-A. I wou't deny. His salary may have been

raised when I was a member of the executive. I do not remember when it was râtâed.
It was without my knowledge.

Q. Were yori a memnber of the executive when you were in England ?-A. I think
flot. I think I placed my resignation before I went away, in the hands of Mr. Burn-

aIm, to be used if necesssry, but I arn not certain.
Q. So that if the increase was made when you were in England, you would flot

le consulted in any way ?-A. No. b

Q. And you were flot a meinher of the executive conmmittee at the time i-A.

Whether tliey acted on that I do not know.' I think they nominatied Mr. Vrooman in

iny stead, wben 1 went to England, if my recollection serves me right. I won't say it
vas Mr. Vroornan, but that is my impression.

Byr the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. I should like you to tell us what criticisme you have te offer of the report of

Mr. Payne as Superintendent of Insurance in iMay, 1898 i-A. I do flot know as I

have any criticisms. I have seen the report. I neyer made any criticismn of this.

By Mr. Gosier, K.O., Counsol for the Comniite :

Q. Have you gone over it t-A. Yes, in a general way I read it.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Yen thought it was fair enough i-A. Well, I thought it was a report-I did

not take ranch interest in it. I saw the report, but I did flot criticise it.

Q. Would you think that this report shows any indication of it having been iii-

iffueneed i-A. No, not particularly. It was a fair, good report, as to the standing of
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the company, and speaks well of it, and does flot criticise the company at ahl. It is
a very nice report.

Q. I would ask you the same question in regard to the examiner's report, and Mr,.
Vanderpoel's ?-A. Yes.

Q. Hlave you anything to say against that report of the examiner i-A. No, I
think it is ail right, as f ar as I can remember. I do flot remember the details of what
was said. I cannot say 110w.

Q. But it neyer occurred to you there was anything special to, objeet to, in1 either
of those reports t-A. No.

Re-examned by, Mr. Coster, Counsel for the (iommit tee:
Q. Witli reference to that changed contract, what you allege was a change in the

contract, you say when Burnham first showed it to you, you said, 'Good heavens,
Burnham, surely we did flot execute âuch a contract,' or words to that effeet I-A.
Well, it was flot possible-

Q. Well, that is what you swear to I-A. Yes.
Q. At that time you said nothing more to, Burnham about the change I-A. No,

flot at that turne.
Q. I un-derstood you to say, in answer to somebody's question, that you neyer told

Burnham. Did you. intend to say you neyer told him about this change I-A. Why, no.
1 talked about this change, about the tinie when I told him criminal proceedings were
about to be tahen against him for it.

Q. I understood you to say, and I think you are on record as saying, that you
neyer told Burnham I-A. I do not remember.

Q. You said you threatened Burnham I-A. 'Yes, I told Burnham criminal pro-
eceedings would be taken against him.

By the Chairman:
Q. What was his answer I-A. At the time that Tracy, Boardman and iPlatt were

consulted-

Hon. Mr. BÉiquE,.-Never mind arguing the question.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. In answer to Mr. Aylesworth's questions last niglit, I understood you to say that

ýyou had neyer seen the Moss copy of the contract. Now, if that is the case, as t-
contract unchanged, was put in evidence before the departinent, and Burnham showed
you a changed copy, how can you say you did not see both copies, when there were
only two copies ?-A. I saw two copies. I saw one in the hands of the department,
and one in the hands of Mr. Burnham. I think I answered it in that way.

Q. As a matter of fact, you believed Burnham, had them both ?-A. Decidedly.
Q. He must have had them. both ?-A. Yes, because Appleton told me he had the

true contract, because he got it from Burnham.
Q.Now, was that contract on fie with the papers of the office ?-A. It was not.

Q. Wliere was it kept 2-A. Always kept by Mr. Burnham in his private desk. a
circunstance which did not apply to ail other contracts.

Q. And this one was there ?-A. Yes.
Q. IDid I not understand you in your evidence here yesterday, that you demanded

to, see the psy-rolis by letter to the president, and that letter was put in evidence I-A.
It was.

Q. Was that demand of yours complied with ?-A. Neyer.
Q. And did they or did they not refuse to let you see the pay-roll ?-A. They did

refuse.
Q. What was the naine of the paymaster ?-A. W. A. Butts.
Q. Did you go to Butts and demand to see thein ?-A. Yes.
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Q.What did lie say ?-A. Rie said the president gave orders flot to show them to
anybody without bis express order.

Q. You wrote to Burnham after that ?-A. Yes. I said, 'Mr. Butts informs me

so-and-so.'
Q. But stili you were flot allowed to see them ?-A. No.
Q. And did not see them ?-A. No.
Q. By the constitution and by-laws, the executive committee have the right of

fixing the salaries ?-A. They have.
Q. Was the rule flot more honoured in the breacli than in the observance ? If

you do not know what the salaries were, how could you fix it ?-A. I think it was, to a
very great extent.

Q. Why did you not attend to your duties and see about them, when that was one

of the duties you were paid for performing ?-A. Probably I should bave asserted My

riglits more vigorously, but if I had, probably my head would have gone o:ff, and it
would have been a serious matter.

Q. And, as a matter of fact, President Burnham controlled the whole board of

directors ?-A. Yes.
Q. Hie elected thema at will ?-A. Yes.
Q. And they elected him ?-A. Yes.
Q. And lie controlled the whole thing ?-A. Yeq.

Q.And did as lie pleased ?-A. Yes.
Q.And you were powerless ?-A. Yes.

By Mi'. Pringle, Cou nsel for the Miutual Re.serve:

Q. And stili Burnham undertook to resign ?-A. H1e did when we cornered him.

Q. Will you give me the date when you were refused permission to see the pay-

roll ?-A. I cannot remember now. If you will refer to my letter, it will speak for it-

self.
Q. Can you not remember the date of it ?-A. I think it was somewhere between

thje 15t4~ and l8th of July.

MiA. ELDRTOGE.-It was the lSth July. I remember that date now.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q.When was your frrst interview with :Mr. Tracy ?-A. I cannot teli you the ex-

act date, but I think it was in August, September and October, or running up to

October and November. I think probably the. first interview miglit have been in

August, but I arn not positive as to that.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:

Q. What year ?-A. 1898.

By M1r. Pringle, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q.Those were then comparatively concurrent events, the refusai to permit you to

see the pay-rolls ?-A. No, that occnrred some time before.
Q. When you discovered what in your mind convicted Mr. Burnham of forgery,

did you ask for any acknowledgment of the indebtedness to you or any scrap of paper

or writing, that perhaps a prudent man would ask, having discovered lis debtor a for-

ger ?-A. No, I did not.

Hon. iMr. BEIQUE.-As f ar as I amn concerned, I draw Mr. Eldridge's attention to

this: that I expect we will have the full information as to the condition of Mir. Moss's

account, and specially as te whether the statement made by Mr. Wells, that lie was

paid $100,000 or $200,000, which lie was not entitled te, in other words, that the com-

pany paid more than the 85 per cent commission. Then, for my part, I will expect that

we will also be informed as te wliether the company paid somes fifteen thousand dollars

to stop the suit, which was threatened against tlie president, for bis removal.
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NOTE.-Exhibit No. 17 was put in and marked, but the reporter has no0 reference
in lis notes at what point it was filed.

STATE oF NEw YoaK,
INSURÂNcE PEPARTMENT,

ALN3ŽY, February 15, 1904.
I, FRÂNOis HENDRICKS, Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York,

do hereby certify that I have compared the annexed copy of Report of Examination
of the MutLual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York, as of Pecombcr 31, 1001,
dated April 16, 1902, witli the original on file in this department, and that the same

ia correct transcript therefrom, and of the wliole of said original.
In witness whereof 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my officiai seal, at

the City of Albany, the day and the year first above written.
[Seal.] FRANCIS HENDRIORS,

iSuperintendent of Insu rance.

INsuRÂŽNOE DEPARTMENT,
Hon. FRANi~cs HENDRIORS, ALBANY, N.Y., April 16, 1902.

Superintendent of Insurance,
Albany, N.Y.

IDEAR Si,-I submiît herewith report on examination of the Mutual Reserve Fund
Life Association of New York, ordered to be made by your commission of appoint-
ment No. 1519. The date to which the examination was made wac December 31, 1901.

By the AcL of May 10, 1901, chapter 722 of the laws of that year, the policies and
-certificates issued by the association prior to acceptîng the provisions of said chapter,ý
are direcod by it to he valued in Llhe mlanner prescribed therein.

In the case of certain of its policies, the association bas obtained consents from
the insured to create liens against such policies, the liens representing the reserve
values that could have been accumulated, had these policies been that which thcy are
now considered to be, from the date of the issue of the original policy which is subject
to the lien mentioned.

These liens are held by the association to be of the nature of loans made to policy-
holders, and bear intereRt at the rate of 5 per cent per annum. Should one of thlese
policies become a dlaim, the lien, together with the arrears of interest thereon, if any,
is deducted £rom thse amount of insurance specified in the policy.
1In la e $4,057,135 of reserve liahility charged in the present examination, the
policies subjeet to the~ liens referred to have been valued for the to~tal insurance stated
therein as of date of and age at issue of original policies or certificates, without refer-
,ence to the liens thereon. An entry of $2,020,048.02, being the &mount of said liens,
appears in ' assets ' as an offset to the reserve charge directed te, be madc by the Act
of 1901.

The outstanding dlaims âre charged at $1,125,949.10. This represents thse princi-
pal sums or maximum amounts of insurance stipulated to be paid in thse policies or
certificates under which the dlaims have arisen, after deducting any indebtedness
attaching to said policies, including reserve liens placcd upon same. The consent of
the insured had been obtained authorizing thse creation of these liens, except in forty-
seven cases, amounting to $338,340 of insurance, on which $78,040.63 cf liens had
been placed without such consent in writing, but by an amendment te thse association's
by-laws, upon the strength of which the liens on these forty-scven policies had been

ecreated.
The condition cf the association on December 31, 1901, was as follows

WELLS
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ASSETS.

Real estate, book value. . . . .. . . . ...... ... ... $ 679,910 96
Mortgage loans on real estate, lst liens. . . .... .... 534,150 00
Government, municipal and other bonds .... .... .... 435,533 61
Cash deposited in banks...............812,608 35
Cash in hands of bonded collectors. .......... 148,678 40
Cash in office. .................... 908 87
Premiums in course of transmission. ......... 140,527 45
Bibis receivable....................2,772 29
Interest 0on mortgages due snd accrued. ......... 5,763 46
Interest on bonds...................3,232 17
Interest on other assets. ............... 1,273 50
Interest due and accrued on premium notes and liens 111,889 70
Renta due......................4,727 07
Market value of real estate over book value........78,560 46
Deferred premiums on which full year's reserve is

charged in liability................811,592 57
Liens allowed not exceeding statutory reserve charged

as a liability against each policy respectively.. . 2,020,048 02

$5,792,176 88
Less depreciation in bonds. .............. 1,776 OS

Total assets..............$5,790,400 83

MAIÂBILTIES.

Net present value of all outstanding policies in force
December 31, 1901, as per certilicate of New York
Insurance Department.. .. . .. .. .. . . . .... $4,057,1.36 00

Death basses due and unpaid........ 28,U60t '14
Death losses approved. ......... 210,168 95
Death losses unadjusted..........476,726 45
Death losses reported, no proofs.......325,121 15
Death bosses resisted............85,871 81

1,125,949 10
Disability dlaims. .................. 2,100 00
.Annuity dlaims....................1,200 00
Unpaid dividends (including those contingent on pay-

ment of outstariding and deferred premiums) -- 38,925 5e
Salaries, rents, expemses, tax-bilis, bonuses, commis-

sions, medical and begal fees, &c...........71,292 62
Premiunis paid in advance...............19,511 25
Liability on lapsed policies on which the association's

liability bas not; yet terminated...........4,095 00
Agents' credit balances.................3,306 84

Total liabilities..............5,323,515 35
Excies of assets (including policy liens) over lia-

bilities.....................466,885,48

Aggregate...............$5,790,400 83

Respectfully submitted,
ISAAC VANDERPOEL,

Chie f Examiner.WE2LLS
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(Exhibit No. 1'7.)
NOTE.-Exhibit No. 17 was put in and marked, but the reporter bas no reference

in bis notes at what point it was ffled.
STATE 0F NEw YoRKi,

INSURANCE DEPÂRTMENT,
ALBANY, February 15, 1904.

I, FRANCIs HENDRicKs, Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York,
do hereby eertify that I have compared the annexed copy of Report of Examination
of the Mutual lieserve Fund Life Association of New York, as of December 31, 1901,
dated April 16, 1902, with the original on file in this department, and that the same
1.5 a correct transcript therefrom, and of the whole of said original.

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and afixed my officiai seal, at
thse City of Albany, thse day and the year first above written.

[Seat.]FRANCIS HENDRTORS,
iSuperintendent of Inssirancc.

INSURANCE DEPARTMENT,
Hon. FBANcis HENDaîcKS, ALBANY, N.Y., April 16, 1902.

Superintendent of Insurance,
Albany, N.Y.

DEAR Si,-I submit hercwith report on examination of the Mutual iReserve iFund
Life Association of New York, ordered to ba made by ynur <'ommission of appoint-
ment No. 1519. Thse date to which the examination was made waQ PDecember 31, 1901.

By the Act of May 10, 1901, chapter 722 of the laws of that year, thse policies alud
ýcertificates issued by the association prior tu accepting the provisions of said chapter,-
are directed by it to be valued in the Inanuer prescrîbed therein.

In the case of <'ert9in nf its polieies, the association lias obtained consents from
the insured to create liens against such policies, the liens representing the reserve
values that could have been accumulated, had these policies been that which they are
now considered to be, froin the date of the issue of the original policy which is subjeet
to the lien mentioned.

These liens are held by thse association to be of the nature of boans made to policy-
holders, and bear intercst at the rate of 5 per cent per annum. Should one of these
policies become a dlaim, the lien, together with the arrears of interest thiereon, if any,
is deducted from thse amount of insurance specified in the policy.
1 In fse $4,057,135 of reserve liability charged in the present examination, thse
policies subject to the liens referred to have heen valiied for the total insurance stated
therein as of date of and age at issue of original policies or certificates, without refer-
,ence to the liens thereon. An entry of $2,020,048.02, being the -.Mount of said liens,
appears in ' assets' as an offset to the reserve charge directed t, be made by the Act
of 1901.

Thse outstanding dlaims îre charged at $1,125,949.10. This represents the princi-
pal sums or maximum amounts of insurance stipulated to be paîd in the policies or
cert4ificates under which the dlaims have arisen, after deducting any indebtedness
attaching to said policies, including reserve liens placed upon same. The consent of
the insured had been obtained authorizing the creation of these liens, except in forty-
seven cases, amounting to $338,340 of insurance, on which $78,040.63 of liens had
been placed without sucli consent in writing, but by an amendment te thse association's
by-laws, upon bbc strengtb of which thse liens on these forty-seven policies had been
ecreated.

The condition of the association on December 31, 1901, was as follows
WELLS
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ASSETS.

Real estate, book value. . . . .. ... .. .. ... .. .. $ 679,910 96
Mortgage boans on real estate, lst liens. ........ 534,150 00
Government, municipal and other bonds.........435,533 61
Cash deposited in banks...............812,608 35
Cash in bands of bonded coflectors. .......... 148,678 40
Cash in office.....................908 87
Premiums in course of transmission. ......... 140,527 45
Bills receivable....................2,772 29
Interest on mortgages due and accrued .... .... ..... 5,763 46
Interest on bonds...................3,232, 17
Interest on other assets. ............... 1,273 50
Interest due and accrued on premium, notes and liens 111,889 70
Rents due......................4,727 07
Market value of real estate over book value........78,560 46
Deferred premiums on which fulîl year's reserve is

charged in liability................811,592 57
Liens ailowed not exceeding statutory reserve charged

as a liability against each policy respectively.. . 2,020,048 02

$5,792,176 88
less depreciation in bonds. .............. 1,776 os

Total assets..............$5,790,400 83

LIABILITIES.

Net present valune of ail outstanding policies in force
December 31, 1901, as per certificate of New York
Insurance Department. .. .........

IDeath losses due and unpaid........ 28,060 74
Death losses approved .... .... ........ 210,168 95
Death losses unadjusted..........476,726 45
Death losses reported, no proofs.......325,121 15
Death losses resisted............85,871 81

Pisability dlaims. ....... ........
Annuity dlaims.................
Unpaid dividends (including those contingent on pay-

ment of outstanding and deferred premiums)...
Salaries, rents, expenses, tax-blls, bonuses, commis-

sions, medical and legal fees, &c. .. .....
Premiums paid in advance. .. .........
ILiability on lapsed policies on which the association's

liability lias not yet terminated. .. .....
Agents' credit balances..............

$4,057,135 00

1,125,949
2,100
1,200

38,92,5 54

71,292 62
19,511 25

4,095 00
3,306 84

Total liabilities. . ........... $,2, 35
Excess of assets (including policy liens) over lia-

bilities.....................466,885 ý48

.Aggregate...............$5,790,400 83

Respectfully submitted,
ISAAC VANDERPOEL,

Chie f Examiner.WELI.8
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STATE 0F NEW YORK, S.S.
Oounty of Albany. 5
ISAAC VANDERPOEL, being duly sworn, deposes and says the forgoing report, sub-

scribed by him, is true, to the best of lis knowledge and belief.

ISAAC VANDERPOEL-
Subscribed and sworn to before me,ý

this l6th day of April, 1902. j

THomAs F. BEuAm,
Notary Public, Albany Co.

The Committee then adjourned tili July l2th, at 10 a.m.

PART 5.

OTTÀwÂ, July 12, 1904.

The Committee appoïnted to inquire into the position in Canada of the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association of New York, resumed at 10 a.m.

Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve, made application to the Com-
inittoo for permission ta reopen the eross-êxamiiiation of Mr. Wells.

J. D. WELLS recalled.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee
Q. I wish you ta identify this letter, Exhibit INo. 9. See if you know what that

is t-A. That is a copy of a letter written June 25, 1898, by the Hon. J. W. Vroo--
man, treasurer of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, to Mr. F. A. Burnhani,
president.

Q. You know that ta be a copy of the letter ?-A. I do.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Please look at these two cablegrains marked for identification, and tell me,

whether these are copies of cablegrams sent by you ta Mr. Burnham, the prt3sidert,,
as they purport ta be i-A. I do not remember the sending of these cablegrams.

By the Chaîrmarê:
Q. What is the date of them. ?-A. 1896.

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Committee:
Q. July 22, 1896, one of them appears to be ?-A. Yes, I think this is July. It

looks like July 20, 1896.

By the (ihairman:
Q. Wliere was that sent from ?-A. I think it is froin New York ta Paris.
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By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. You do flot reinember sending them ?-A. No, 1 do flot rememiber the sending

,of them.

By Mr. cleoffrion, Counsel for the Jiutual Reserve:

Q. You do flot remember il l-A. No.
Q. Do you deny having sent them I-A. I do not.
Q. This cablegram reads -
'To Burnham, Paris, sent by Wells: iRealizing importance success London, think

party should immediately proceed to, cable instructions.'
And the second cablegram reads-
'Party thinks-
Q. These documents have been referred to, and I should like to put them in.

Please look at these four letters whiich purport 10 bear your signature, one Juiy 20,
1896, addressed to Mir. Burnham, one July 31, 1896, addressed to Mr. Burnhain, and
one of July 6, 1896, addressed to iMr. Burnham, and one of September 8, 1896,
addressed to Mr. Burnham ?-A. Yes, these bear my signature.

Q. I wish simply 10 identify them. They bear youx signature I-A. Yes. They
ahi bear my signature.

(Four letters marked for identification).

Q. Please look at two letters purporting to be written by IMr. Burnham to you on
June 20, and on July 6, 1896, and please tell me whether those letters are not written
by Mr. Burnliam ? They are corresponding with those other letters. Tell us whether
those letters were not written to you by iMr. Burnham and received by you ?-A. I
cannot remember them.

B~y M1r. Coster, Gounsel for the Comm'ittee:

Q.Perhaps you have the original letter i-A. Possibly I have. I cannoL remember
whether those are actually the original letters. I acknowledge one of July 6, but I
certainly cannot remember the purport.

Q. Look over them and see if you had notice of ail ,the facts containcd in them l-
A. I had considerable correspondenoe with IMr. Burnham.

By M1r. Geoffrion, (Jounse! for the Mutual Reserve

Q. Have you any doubt those are the letters ?-A. I do flot know, but I have no
objection to them. going in as letters having been received by me at ail. I have a
number of letters £rom Mr. Burnham.

Q. You stated that you knew the writing of Mr. lloffecker i A. Yes.
Q. Please look at Ibis letter dated New York, May 13, 1898, signed by Mr.

Hloffecker, and addressed 10 you, and tell us whether this is a letter of lis wrîtten 10
7ou ?-A. That is the handwriting of iMr. Hoffccker, the auditor-yes, I recognize bis
handwriting.

Q. That letter was sent to you, no doubt ?-A. Addressed to me on May 15, 1898.
I do not know whether I received this letter, or not. I recognize the handwriting.

Q: You admit having received il ?-A. 1 do not know whether I received il or
not, on my return from Europe.

Q. You would not say you did not receive it, of course ?-A. I do not say I did
iiot receive il.

Q. lLook at Ibis letter sent by the same lloffcker, May 20, 1898, addressed to
you, with a note in your handwriting, and initialled by you, 'llanded to me by Mr.
lloflecker about haif an hour ago' and tell us whether that letter is in the hand-
writing of Mr. lloffecker, and received by you ?-A. Yes, Ibis is in bis handwriting.
WELLS
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This would indicate it was banded to me by iMr. Iloffecker, about hall an hour before.
This is iMay 20, 1898.

Q. Will you look at the third letter of May 24, 1898, signed by Mr. Iloffecker,
addressed to you as chairman of the committee, and the note under your initiais and
ini your handwriting 'IDear iMr. Burnham :This letter is the outcome of Mr.
Hoffecker's suggestion that 1 should see him and get from him the lowest amount he
would take.'-A. Yes, that-is Hoffecker's also.

Q. This letter is dated New York, May 13, 189S, and is addressed to J. ID. Wells.
Esq., Chairman of the Executive Committee, and is as follows :

'DEÂR Smi-I respectfully beg to bring before your committee, the matter of My
present compensation, wîth the request that an early and satisfactory adjustment be
made thlereof.

I have for the past two years rendered faithful, and so far as I can ascertain,
efficient service, in this department, on a salary of $35 per 'week.

'With my knowiedge of the basis upon which our prcscnt disbursenients are
made, this amount is unnecessarily small and unjiist, when the responsibility of my
duty is considered.

'I have been compeiled to cease my $10,000 policy of insurance in the associa-
tion, and on June 1, will be obiiged te give up my present home in this city, which. to
the most critical cannot be but called modest.

'I therefore ask that beginning with May 1, my saiary be piaced at $100 per week.
'I have other prospects that promise such a return, if not more, and under the

circumstances now existing, feel obliged te place my services where they wiil be the
most appreciated and remunerative to me.

'Yours very truly,
'J. S. JHOFFECRER.'

A second letter is dated IMay 20, 1898, and addresscd also to J. ID. Wells, Esq.,
Chairman, &c., and is as follows :

'DEAR SiR,-As T bave re-reived onfly mny iusiia1 v.ql-,ry frorn the pi3,mastQr to-day,
I desire to know if your committee bas acted on my letter of May 13, or intends taking
any action thereon

Yours truly,
' J. S. IIOFFECKER'

Then, there is a third letter by the same party, addrcssed in the samc way, and
datcd IMay 294, 1898. It is as foilows

'IDEAR SIR,-In reply to your inquiry, I beg to say that for the present I wil
accept $75 per week.

'By this, I do flot makgý the admission that my first amount was too high, but I
am wiiling to assume my share of the burden naturally arising from the depressed
condition of our business at present.

'Yours very truly,
'J. S. HOFFEOKER'

Then, there is a note under the initiais of Mr. Wells, as foliows
' DEAn IMR. BuRNHAm,-This letter is outcome of Mr. Moss's suggestion that I

shouid see Hoffecker and get from him lowest amount he would take.'

Now, iMr. Wells, how do you reconcile this with the two repeated statements in
your evidence that you neyer heard of any demand on behalf of Mr. Iloffecker for an
increase of salary, and that if any had taken place, you would have heard of it ?-
A. I forgot ail about it, that is ail. Hie evidently had asked, by these letters, for an
increase'of saiary. They werc coming from alniost every quarter. I had forgotten
or I would not have made that statement.

WELLS
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Q. Will you please look at these two vouchers filed before this Oommittee for
identification and tell us whether you recognize your signature on bofh ?-A. Yes, 1
recognize my signature.

Q. On both ?-A. «Yes, on both. One is dated May 3, and the other Mvay 22,
made out by order of the executive by IMr. Underhuill, who represented Mr. Burnliam
I do nlot know why that is signed by Mr. IMoton D. Moss. It is signed by two, Mr.
Vrooman and myseif, and the other by Mr. Baldwin and Mr. Vrooman.

Q. Let us take the one dated May 3, 1898. That was just about the date of your
return f£rom Europe ?-A. Just about.

Q. It is a voucher signed by iMir. Moss, yourself, and IMr. Vrooman ?-A. Yes.
Q. And reads as follows :
' The bookkeeper of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association will credif IMoton

D. Mosa, general manager, with $1,134.75, and charge the same to the accounit of
sundry agents and accounts.'

A. Those were, I should say, for amounts retained by the agents-premiums due
by the agents of the company. I should judge that looking at the voucher now. It
was in order to balance the accounts that those amounts were made up, due hy Mr.
Mo8s or by some one. I should suppose they were premiinns ini the bands of agents
that they were to be charged with, failing f0 remit for them. If Nvas the only wvay
they would credit the amounts.

Q. But does not this confiict wifh your interpretation of the contract that IMr.
Moss was not to be credited with the amounts advanced to agents l-A. That does not
say credit Mr,. IMma.

Q. Yes, look again. At the beginning it says, 'credît to Moss.' Rare is a credit
te Mr. Moss which. is charged at the same time to the agents. iFow can you explain
this, in view of your interpretation of the contract ?-A. I cannot tell just now.
There must bie some explanation of it. If I had access to the accounts and books. I
could explain it. I cannot just at this late date fell exactly what this refera to, lie-
cause if that is the only voucher, for ail the arnounts advanced to agents, it is a very
snmail proportion of it. If is for something else besides unquestionably advances to
agents, hecause those advances te agents amounted te one hiundred and sixty-eight
te one hundred and seventy thousand dollars, and I cannot tell what this voucher
may bc. It is probably somefhing Mr. Moss was entitled f0 credit for, perhaps com-
missions, I cannot tell.

Q. However, if is an amount credited to Mr. Moss, and debited f0 the agents?~-
A. Unquestionably.

* Q. And you are positive it cannot be for advances to agents t-A. Taking a single
voucher that way, I cannot ftell.

Q. Would you have signed a voucher to credit IMr. Moss with advances made to
agents i-A. I do flot think I would.

Q. Yen are pretty positive you would flot i-A. I arn pretty positive I would nlot.
Q. And you say that is not it e-A. I do not think if is.
Q. And you cannot say what it is e-A. I cannot, looking at a single voucher thiS

way. Bring ail the vouchers and I would know.
Q. Please look at this othier voucher, marked for identification, dated January

21, 1897 ?-A. The samne answer would apply to that.
Q. It would bo something aise ?-A. I cannot tell. You hand me a voucher dated

1897, and ask me il that conflicts witli my testimony in regard to the contract; I Say
it does nof.

Q. Does the memorandum annexed and pasfed to that voucher help you to
undarstand 2-A. No, because that would not be attached to the voucher when I
signed if. The voucher would corne te me witli some explanation. I cannot fell what
the explanation was now, but the explanation at that time no doubt was satisfactory
in regard f0 if, or I would not have signed it.
WELLU
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Q. Can you for a moment imagine any circumstances under which iMr. Mass
would be entitled to the credit of a certain amount charged to agents, under the in-
terpretation that you give to the contract ?-A. There wouid be the commissions.

Q. What commissions ?-A. For instance, agents sending in business, Mr. Moss
was entitled by bis contract to eigbty-:five per cent of a commission upon the whole
business done by the agents and by himself.

Q. That is when the company would receive the money ?-A. That is the inter-
pretation of the contraet, but that was deviated from, as I explained the other day;
agents often retained the whole of the premiums and stili Mr. Moss was credited with
tihe commissions.

Q. Which, as you say, was irregular under the contract ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you ciaimned thnit linder no cirelimstances should Mr. Moss be credited

without payments were made by the agents or by Mr. Moss bixnseif bo the association?
-A.. Tbat is tbe way the coutract reads.

Q. That is your interpretation?-A. Yes.
Q. Under that; interpretation, under no possible circumstances couid Mr. Mos

bava a rigbt to bcecredited with an amount which the association did not receive, but
whieh was at the same time cbarged ta, an agent ?-A. No, I do not say he would have
a riglit to credit fo'r tbe commissions, but stili to balance the accounts, the agents
having rctained the entire preminîns, tbe policy-holders who paid the money had to
have credit and the books had to be balanced.

Q. Tbe policy-holders could be given credit, I can understand, but I read from
your evidence.tbat you bold that you never conseuted to moneys being credited to IMr.
Ifose when tbe moneys were not actually paid to the association i-A. I forget what
my evidenca was, but it ahould not bave been.

Q. It would bave been contrary to, the spirit of the contract i-A. It would have
been contrary to the spirit of the contract. A great many irregular things were doue
about tbat time, unqu.estionably.

Q. And that i s what you complined of when you returned from Europe ?-A. Not
iinmediateiy, but sometime aftcrwards, whcn I found out tbe state of things. 1 did
riot immediately alter my return from Europe.

Q. You would have objected when you found it out probably a short time, alter
your return from Europe i-A. Whatever time it was.

Q. It is possible you would not bave tixae to find it out on tbe third of May g-A.
I do not think it; I may say I 'would not.

Q. You would bave found it out later on i-A. I would have found it out later on.
Q. Tiow is it that on .Jannary 27, the year previous, you signed a voucher ex-

actly in tbat sense at the very beginning of tbe contract l-A. You bave to bring me
tbe particulars whîch this voucher covers. I cannot at this date, from handing me
cne or two vouchers, tail you what thosa vouchers represent.

Q. I will band them ail to you i-A. Ail of them i
Q. I will flot guarantee ail, but I have a good many. ilere is a voucher submitted

ta you February 4, 1897, with the same words exactly, and signed by you also, and
with a memorandum attached. Look at the voucher of June 17, 1897, bearing your
signature also ?-A. Precisely.

Q. And one of July 1, 1897, bearing your signature and worded in exactly the
same manner ?-A. Yes.

Q. And another dated July 6, 1897 g-A. Yes.
Q. That is about the date you left for Europe i-A. Yes.
Q. During your absence, of course, you did not sign any vouchers i-A. I did not.
Q. I have shown you the voucher of May 3, 1898, immediately after your return.

There is another, dated June 2, 1898, worded the same way, and signed by you-
A. 'Yes.

Q. ilere is one dated July 5, 1898, worded the same way and signed by you 1-
A. Yes.

WELLS
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Q. And here is a voucher of July 27, 1898, worded the same way and signed the
same way ?-A. This is a voucher that iMr. Eldridge brouglit to me after my return,
and it was to balance 1Mr. Moss's account. I said: 'I will siga it, but, Mr. Eldridge,
you wiii have to take the responsibility.' I tbink lie will remember and bear me out.
It was in the discliarge of the first year's commissions accruied nnd to accrue, and in
discharge of renewai commissions. It was a voucher made up, as Mr. iMioss showed
a debt balance of thirty or forty thousand dollars. It was no0 good anyway. I ex-
plained to him : 'Now, I signed this, Mr. Eldridge, simply to get it off the books.'

Q. This was the vouéher closing iMr. lVoss's account ?-A. Yes, and in discliarge
of whatevÉr was to accrue in the future.

Q. That bears your signature also ?-A. Yes.
Q. Looking at ail those vouchers, can you suggest, under your interpretation of

the contract, a single case, stili less cases, arising as fvequently as these, where Mrv.
Moss wonld be entitled to have credit for such amounts without actual payments
being made to the association, with such amounts being debted to sundry agents ?-
A. They kept three accounts, a special account, a regular account, or general agents'
account, and there was another account I forget. But theve weve three accounts kept,
and these accounts heve wbich were to be placed to Mr. Mioss's credit it neyer was in-
terpreted or understood-while my signature is theve, I do not dispute that-stilli h
was never understood they were to bie taken out of Mr. Moss's account, and you will
frnd iii Mr. Moss's account the ordinary account rendered him for this, commissions
due him ecd month, that the $3,500 a week does not appear-I have one or two of
them witb me now-in those accounts at ail, and it may have been, and I am satisfied
it was, a question of bookkeeping to take it out of some certain account i11 wbich it
was placed, but it was neyer intended that iMr. Moss should get credit for these
accounts paid in1. There is no question of that.

Q. T understand you, then, that you signed this voucher crediting Mv. Moss, on
the understanding that lie would not be credited ?-A. EDecidedly, that it was not to
be taken out of bis account; it was to remain charged to bis account, and not taken
out of bis account.

Q. That is your explanation of these signatures i-A. Decidedly.
Q. The iast point to which I wish to draw yonr attention is concerning this

voucher of May 22, 1896, which you have identified, signed by yon and authorizing
payment in cash to Mr. Eldridge of $9,50 for special services in connection with
auditing in 1895 ?-A. Yes.

Q. That wouid be for the $250 every two months for the services of Mv. Eldridge?
-A. Precisely.

Q. Therefore, when you stated i11 your evidence, pages 558 and 559, that you
neyer knew Mv. Eldridge to get $250 for auditing the books until you caime to give
evidence here, you must have been mistaken ?-A. I neyer knew about $1,500 a yeav
being allowed to him. That special item theve, cevtainly 1 signcd that, but it neyer
came to my knowledge that lie was to be allowed $1,500 a year.

Q. It neyer came to your knowledge that lie was to be allowed $250 every two
montha ?-A. Neyer.

Q. llow did you come to sign this ?-A. It was signed by two executive oficers,
and for some special services it mentions:-'FoX special services rendered in connec-
tion with audits called 1885.' That je in rcfcvcncc to that particular caîl in 1885.

Q. So cach $250 xvould be fur a special e ail? A. Judging from Mr. Eldridge's
evidence which lic gave the other day, he was allowed $1,500 a yeav, which lie had
forgotten when lie first gave bis evidence, but lie afterwavds recalled. That was for
special services. The words 'Special services' would indicate that Mv. Eldridge
was flot ailoxved a regular stated sum pev annum of $1,500; it was for that special
eall.

Q. The voucher shows that lie was allowed for two months? -A. It does not say
WELLS
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how much. It says cail 85,317. That takes him up to the next two months. It was

for that special cali-special services.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.Take, for instance, the voucher of January 21, 1897, a credit to Mr.

Moss of $1,750.55, and you have the details of it on the sheet annexed, which shows

what this amount of $1,750.55 was made of t-A. That is added to it since. That is

an account made up by iMr. Mioss, but did flot accompany the voucher at the time it
was signed.

Q.Did not the vouchcr refer to the statement l-A. To that statement ?

Q.To that statement l-A. It speaks for itself. I do flot remember the reading
of it.

Q. Were flot the two punclied together ?-A. No, it is very easy putting in a

punchi; that punch was flot on it wben it was signed.
Q. You have bere, for instance, another voucher for $10,105. And you have a

statement annexed to if, showing the details of the amnount, giving the namcs of the

parties and putting up an exact amount. Do you suggcst that these are made up

statements, that they are not bona, fide statements ?-A. I do flot know anything about

it. They are published statements referred to, which Mr. Moas presented when

accounting for his disbursements; he was to account in detail by his contract.

Q. You know this $1,'750.65 is really the same amount appearing on the statement?
-A. That was a statement instead of producing vouchers.

Q. Therefore he was credited with advances made on commission, properly or

flot ?-A. H1e was evidently credited with these and I have testified to that, from bis

memorandum that he brouglit in. That memo. was credited to Mr. Moss.

Q. You consider it was not according to, contract l-A. Decidedly flot.

Q.Nevertbeless you have, as one of the officers of the company, been a party to

allowing this to be donc fromi these vouchers ?-A. Evidcntly I was moisled, because

I never underqtnod-and I say so now-tbat it was not the intention of the contract

to credit Mr. Moss with thoso advances. That is Mr. Moss's accoiunt was to remain

charged, and Usq contract simply provided for the distribution of the money, $3,500

a week; that he should produce those vouchers so that the company could keep a check,

but it neyer contemplated taking out of bis account tbe $3,500 a week, neyer.

Q. But you were evidently quite aware, before inaking up your mind, that it was

tbe practice ?-A. No, evidently there is some explanation which I cannot remember

now. I was always umder the impression-and such is the wording and interpretation

of the contract by flot only the Commissioner of Insurance, but by every other expert

who bas read that contract-that Mr. Moss was to remain charged with the $3,500 a

week, and that was Mr. Burnham'g interpretation of it, and we talked it over at first

and we ail understood it so. The vouchers brought in this way were simply vouchers

that would account for the distribution of moneys. Otberwise we were giving $3,500

a week and eighty-flve per cent, which would cost immensely more than the entire

premiums receîved.
Q. I do not suggest that it was proper, but what appears plain is that you 'were a

party to crediting bim in that way v-A. That decidedly was wrong, and it is con-

trary to my impression of the contract and contrary to the understanding of every

officer in that association; vouchers were only given as evidence that we had distributed
tbat money.
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JAMES THompsoN, PATTERSONI sworn and examined.

B1, Mr. CJoster, K.C., Cou'nsel for the Committee:

Q. You reside in New York 1-A. Yes.
Q. Your occupation 1-A. Life insurance.
Q. Are you an actuary 1-A. Consulting actuary.
Q. How long bave you been engaged in the business 1-A. About eighteen years.
Q. Have you published any works on the subject 1-A. I have.
Q. Would yo-n name some of them 1-A. Fundamental Principles of Life Insur-

ance, The Different Systems of Life Insurance Combined, and The iMutual 'Under-
writers' IManual-those are the principal ones.

Q. And others 1-A. Yes..
Q. Have those books been circulated pretty well 1-A. They have had an ex-

tensive circulation.
Q. Were they, as far as you know, usually accepted by the companies as being

pretty good works on the subject ?A. They are, as far as I know, accepted as
authorities on life insurance.

Q. From what sources did you get your knowledge of the business, the informa-
tion which enabled you to compile these works 1-A. Principally from the officiai
reports made to the insurance departmnents of the varions states by life insurance com-
panies, by the returns made to the IRegistrar General in England and other countries,
and by standard works on life insurance.

Q. Then you say you have made a special study of the annual reports of different
companies submitted to the liisuranee Department, have you?-A. I have been study-
ing them for eighteen years.

Q. Were you ever connected with the Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association?1-
A. I was.

Q. How long, and in wliat capacit.y 1-A. 1 first hecame connected with it in 1886,
umder Mr. Wells, in Canada, and remained tbere until 1889, when I was manager for
the province of Quebec, and local treasurer or collector in iMontreal, and was called
to the home office in New York, and from there sent over to the Old Country, where
I remained for a little over two years, was recalled to the home office, and appoiuted
corresponding secretary, and remained corresponding secretary, with the exception of
a period of a few inonths, until 1896. At the time of the death of the late E. B.
Harper, I was also private secretary to the president, and in the president's office.

Q. Private secretary to the late President llarber ?-A. Tbe late iPresident E. B.
Harper. That finishes my connection with the Mutual Ileserve.

Q. IDuring the~ time that you wcre there, the rates were reapportioned, were they
not ?-A. They were.

Q. Were you consulted in any way prior to the reapportionmient of the rates, in
1895 ?-A. I was. Sometime prior to the reapportionmient of rates, Mr. Frederick A.
]3urnham, wbo was then counsel for the Mutual Reserve, and chairman of the Execu-
tive Committee, sent for me and showed me a document by Mr. George D. Eldridge.

By thie Tnn. Mr. Béique :
Q. Whcn was that ?-A. In 1895 :Setting forth the reasons why a reapportion-

ment of rates should be made. Mr. Burnham told me that hie had been up the previous
evening to see IPresident Harper, and that President Harper told him that bie wished
somne one in whom he had confidence to go over that document and report on it, and
Mfr. Burnham said that President Harper suggested that I shoiild go over that docu-
nment, and Mfr. Burnham. said that that was his own view, and asked me to drop ail
other work, and report on that document at the earliest possible date, wbich I did.
PkTTER$ON
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Bj Mr. Coster, K.J., Counsel for the Committee

Q.That is on the reapportionment of the rates ?-A. Yes-on the reasons which
went to show that the rates should be reapportioned.

Q. You were of the opinion then, that the rates should have been reapportioned
at that time ?-A. I was.

Q. Were you also of the opinion, and was it rather the opinion of the company,
that the reapportionment as then made, would bie sufficient ?-A. That was the repre-
sentation made, that the reapportiofiment then made, was sufficient to provide ample
means for the payment of death losses without further increase.

Q. And that representation was made to the members of the company, the policy-
holders ?-A. It was.

Q. Dld thls reapportioinineuL cause some dissatisfaction at that time, do you
remember ?-A. It caused a very considerable dissatisfaction. Indignation meetings
were held by policy-holders in diflerent parts of the United States with a view to
putting the association inito (li bands of a receiver, and I was deputed by thie
management to attend these meetings, and in the best way 1 could explain the causes
which had led up to the reapportionmçnt of rates, and satisfy thle members that it
was necessary, and do what I could to induce them to continue as members.

By the Hon. Mfr. Béique
Q. And promise that it would flot be increased again, I suppose ?-A. I did not

make that positive statementk but the argument ail tended in that direction.

B~y the Hon. 3fr. McSweeney :
Q. llow mucli was the advance ?A. The advance was, in some ages, about one

hundred per cent. At the higher ages, it would bie about a hundred per cent, and at
the lowcr aos, rangîng from twenty-five to fifty per cent.

Duy eh Hon. 3fr. Béique:

Q.Did it reach a higher prpmiium than they would ha charged under the levai
premium systam ?-A. it did not.

Q. About how much below did'it remain in a rough way ?-A. I should think it
would be at least 25 per cent less, in most cases.

By 3fr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve

Q. It would depend on the age of each man ?-A. Yas.

By Mfr. Coster, Counsel for the Commi4tee:
Q. lJid the Pittsburg committee, to whieh you rafer, make a report to the policy-

holders at that time in iPittsburg ?-A. There was a committea appointedl by the
policy-holders of Pittsburg to visit the home office with a view to getting informa-
tion as to the financial condition of the company, as to the likelihood of any further
increase and ail othar information which they might be able to gather to satisfy the
policy-holdars. They visitad the home offie, got the information and afterwards
made a report.

Q. The iPittsburg committee made a report ?-A. Yes, and that report was pub-
lished along with the address of President Burnbam at the annual meeting held in
January, 1896.

Q. Have you that report ?-A. I hava. (iReport filad for identification.)
Q. And that report was made after the article was submitted to the committea,

was it not ?-A. I should have axplained that when the committee visited Pittsburg,
N.Y., they brought along with them a series of questions to be answered by the asso-
ciation; among others, information to satisfy thea that the reapportionmant which
had just been made was suficient, and that there would be no necessity for any fur-
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ther increase. The duty of answering that particular question devolved upon me,
and I prepared the best answer that I possibly could, submitted it to President Burn-
ham, and it was forwarded to the Pittsburg committee, and on that, and the informa-
tion which they gathered fromn the home office, they made their report. The purport of
that whole article was to furnieli evidence that there would be no nccssity for any
further increase in rates.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q.That was the article prepared by you ?-A. Yes.

By Mfr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. Was that approved of by President Burnham and Mr. Eldridge ?-A. It cer-

tainly was approved by either President Burnham or Mr. Eldridge, because it was
sent fromn the home office, as I understood, along with the letter and the other informa-
tion fromn the presidenV's office.

By thse Hon. Mfr. Watson:
Q. Mr. Burnham had confidence in your statement I-A. Certainly. Well, lie went

over the statement and made certain corrections in it and amended it in certain
places.

By the Hon. Mfr. Wilson:
Q. Are we to understand by that, that the Mutual iReserve Association of New

York were satisfied with the report that you made, endorsed the report and had that
report sent to this comx-nite ?-A. They were. I have a copy of thiat; and the original
draft of the article.

By Mfr. CJoster, K.C., (Jounsel for the Gommittee:
Q. Is it your opinion that with honest and economical management that the rate

paid by the membors insured on the fifteen-year plan, we will say, in 1888 and 1889,
would have been sufficient to enable the association to pay its death losses in fuil -
A. It is my opinion.

Q. What reason have you for making this statement I Look at this statement.
Is that taken fromn the sworn insurance report I-A. I compiled that paper.

Q. That statement is compiled from the sworn insurance report I-A. Yes. I
compiled this table fromn the sworn reports or fromn the published printed reports of
the Bankors' Life Association, of Des Moines,' and I have with me the literature of
the Bankers' Life of Des Myoines, which practically shows the saine thing.

Q. This is the Bankers' Life Association, organized September, 1879, home office.
This was on the sanie principle as the Mutual Reserve. It was an assessment com-
pany I-A. Purely assessment.

Q. The same as the Mutual Reserve I-A. Yes.
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Q. This statement reads as follows

BANKERS LIFE ASSOCIATION.

ORGANIZED SEPT., 1897.

Home Office, Des Moines, la.

Insurance
Year.F losses incurred. Expenses. Income.

Force. oïe nurd

$ ets. $ ets. $ ets. 8 ets.

1893......... ... .... ........ .... 49,370,000 00 326,000 00 110,074 84 614,823 74
1894 .... ....... .... ...... . 59,296,000 00 354,000 00 129,957 00 705,029 51
1895 .......... .. ..... . ..... 74,308,000 00 774,000 00 193,742 02 979,291 17
1896........ . ... ............ .... 86,754,000 00 488,000 00 181,148 57 950,727 69
1897......... ............... ..... 100,538,000 00 588,000 00 178,090 43 1,172,695 90
1898........ .. .... .. ........ 114,868,000 00 638,000 00 202,286 89 1,317,376 40
1899 ...... ........................ 129,366,000 00 808,000 00 220,907 03 1,505,025 48
1900 ...................... ..... 143,256,000 00 901,000 00 221,074 83 1,639,939 51
1901... ......... ...... .......... . 159,766,000 00 1,008,000 00 239,251 62 1,577,270 44
1902... .... .................. 178,534,000 00 1,054,000 00 407,186 88 2,121,228 90

Admitted assets. Dec. 31, 1893. . . ................... S 231,999 27
. 1902............ .. ..... 4,798,333 14

COST PER $1,000 INSURANCE AT ALL AGES.

Year, Expcnses. Both.

$ cts. $ cts. $ cts.

1893.......-... ................. ................... 6 61 : 2 22 8 33
1894-....................... 5 09 2 06 7 15
1895-..................... .............. 501 261 762
1896...... .................... ... ............... ..... .. 5 62 2 09 7 71
1897................ ... ........ ......... ...... 5 84 1 77 7 61
1898....... ............. .............................. , . 5 55 1 76 6 31
1899 .......... .... ........................................ 624 1 71 7 95
1900.. ......... ....... ...... ............................ 6 29 1 54 7 83
1901.............--......... .................. .. ... 6 31 1 49 7 80
1902........ ................... ............... ,......592 222 8 14

Q. What do you say as to the rates charged by the Bankers' Life, of Des Moines?
-A. I simply wish to state that in no year-no entire year of the Bankers' Life
Association, has its death rate exceeded eight dollars to the thousand; that is, eight
dollars a thousand dollars of insurance, and in no year during its entire history has
its expenses exceeded an average of two dollaras and about twenty-five cents; that its
death rate in the year 1902, with about two hundred million of insurance in force,
is less than it was fifteen years ago, and it is less than $6 to the thousand insurance
in force.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. Was the company open to the general public ?-A. It was.

By the Honourable Mr. Lougheed:

Q. The same kind of insurance?-A. The same kind of insurance.
PATTERSON

1--21-



SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE POSITION OP

4 EDWARD Vil., A. 1904

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:
Q.Not the same management i-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q.Same principle i-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.How did the ýrates compare g-A. The cost to a member insuring at the age

of forty has neyer in any year exceeded $10 to the thousand for death losses and ex-
penses ail put together.

Q. But at the outset, were the rates as low as the rates in the Mutual Reserve,
as they were established at the outset l-A. The rates, if you can say it had any rates,
were no higher than the rates adopted by the Mutual iReserve in the year 1898.

Q. I amn speaking at the origin of it, when the iMutual iReserve was organized,
there were rates that were adopted, were there not ?-A. The rates adopted by the
Baiiker' Life ?

Q. By the lMutual iReserve ?-A. I suppose it may be taken for granted that they
did adopt a table of rates, but they only collected the actual amount required for
death losses and expenses, with 25 per cent for the reserve. The Bankers' Life Asso-
ciation, on the other hand, collects whatever is required for death losses, and prac-
ticafly bas no real rate.

Q. At any rate you say that the parties insured in this Bankers' Life Association
were assessed smaller amounts than those insured in the Muttiil iReserve ?-A. Tak-
ing the whole history of the company, yes.

Q. During the frrst five years ?-A. During the first five years of the Bankers'
Life I cannot testify to that, because I arn not farniliar with what the Bankers' Life
did some twenty years ago. I examined the Bankers' Life with a view to furnishing
this infrmation.

Q. When were they organized l-A. 1879.
Q. Can you speak of 1890 to 1895, and miake a comparison hetween the two?-A.

Yes.
Q. And you say tbat the assessments were smaller ini the Bankers' Life than in

the other ?-A. I would prefer te say that the cost of insurance to the members of the
Bankers' Life Association was less than the cost to the members of the Mutual IReserve
Fund Life Association during that period.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Cou&sel for the Committee:
Q.And the Bankers' Life have the large surplus of four million l A. Something

in that neighbourhood. It had admitted assets at that date, IDecember 31, 1902, of
$4,798,331.14.

By the Chairman:
Q. Do you know what the assets are composed of l-A. Those assets are composed

of real estate, bonds and other investments approved by the Insurance Department of
the State of Iowa.

Dy Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel fur the Cornrnittee:

Q.No liens on that?-A. No.
Q.No imaginary loa.ns on promissory notes ?-A. None whatever.

By the Hon. &6. Lottgheed:
Q.flow did the rates compare with those of the Bankers' Lif e when you mnade the

first increase ini the rates ?-A. The rates we were collecting in 1895, so far as I re-
collect,-I had n«yer cômpfted t1hem-
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Q. What is the year that you reapportioned ?-A. 1895. The Bankers' Life is
one of the associations I examined withi a view to preparing that article.

Q. How closely did you adhere to the rates then in force ?-A. I should explain
that 1 had nothing whatever to do witli making the reapportionment of rates further
than passing on that document to which I referred. I neyer was afterwards con-
sulted and knew notbing about it.

Q. You adopted your own views upon the subjeet i-A. Certainly, but I did flot
have anything to do with the reapportionment or the basis or principle upon which
it was made.

Q. You made representations to the public that it was sufficient, to continue the
cornpany as then ?-A. I believe the reapportionment of rates was ample to provide
for the payxnent of deatb losses withoiit further increase, and T was warrantedi that
by the statements made by the officers of the company, by the published literature of
the company, and especially by the statement and works of Mr. George D. Eldridge,
the actuary.

Q. To what extent did that statement correspond in the matter of rates with the
Bankers' Life, wbich you seem to select as being properly conducted l-A. 'Which
statement do you refer to?

Q. The reapportionment ?-A. The reapportionment made the cost much larger
than the Bankers' Life Association.

Q. What approximately was the excess?-A. I cannot testify to that without
having the information before me. It is many years ago now.

Q. Why did you, as an insurance expert, feel justified in taking £rom the public
an amount so far in1 advance of the Bankers' Life as you state?-A. I neyer demanded
it. I had nothing whatever to do with the reapportionment of rates furtber than
passing upon the data furnished to show that the rcapportionment was necessary.

Q. 'But yoli took the responsibility of appealing to the public and approving of
the position taken by the Mutual Reserve at the time, did you not ?-(No answer).

By the Ilon. Mr. Watson:

Q. You said so at the Pittsburg committee l-A. Certainly. As I have already
explained, when Mr. Eldridge lad gone over ail the mortality experience of the cern-
pany as furnished by its books, when he lad, as I saw, letters written, the purport of
which. was to show that the reappartioninent was simply to provide for ail death losses
and no further increase, and when as a matter of fact iMr. Eldridge made a table of
rates for the new policy, which at ail ages from 25 to 35 inclusive were lower then
the members of the fifteen-year class or plan which lad been reapportioned, had paid
from. the beginning from the date of the policy, and with that data Mir. Eldridge
-'-arnished. a mathematical demonstration which le said was based on the experience of
coinpanies extending over a period of 40 years, at that rate it would be ample to carry
to policy level during the whole lifetime of the insured.

Q. You are called as an expert. You were then an expert and had published
different publications of life insurance and you had a reputation to maintain. You
seem to have been familiar with the fact that the Bankers' Life was then conducting
business successfully under a much lower rate than yen were seeking to obtain from
the public i. the Mutual Reserve i-A. Yes.

Q. How do you explain or vindicate your consistency as an insurance expert?~-
A. I was flot an officer of the Mutual Reserve Fund. Life Association. I was an
employee, the corresponding secretary. My dýutie were to reply te letters, to give
whatever information I was able to give in my departinent, and I dlaim I lad a right
and was justified in assuming tlat the rates then apportioned were equitable. They
were high enougli. They were not too high.

Q. TIen you make a distinction between making a report as -an emn-ployet and
failing te make a report as an expert t-A. I wasn!ot then qupified as an expert.
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By the Hon. Mr. Wilson~:

Q. You were acting on the suggestion of the New York Mutual Pteserve to niake

out the proper ratio of assessments, and upon that you acted and reported: to the

Mutual IReserve and they were the ones who assumed the responsibility ?-A. No, I

did not make out the rates at ail.
Q. You acted upon IMr. Eldridge's advice and suggestion to you ?-A. No. May

I explain, tliat ail that I had to do with the reapportionnient of rates was to pass upan

a document-
Q. 1 understand that.- If I conveyed the meaning that you had something to do

with the rates I mislead you. 1 merely stated to you that iMr. Eldridge stated to you

the whole faets of the case, and upon that you made the report ta the IMutual Reserve

that you did. You were not responsible to the publie ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. I want to know if you were doing that as an employee of the campany in

cantradistinction to your knowledge andi opinion as an expert ?-(No answer.)

By, the Hon. Mr. Béique :

Q. I understand that this report wbich was made to the Pittsburg committee

was practically prepared by the president i-A. No, sir.

Q. You have in your pocket the original report ?-A. Not the original report

of the Pittsburg committee, but my article which I prepared for the Pittsburg coin-

mittee.
Q. Is it practically what is published here under the signature of the presiden t

of the association ?-A. No, it is an entirely different matter altogether.

Q.What was published here was not prepared by you ?-A. No.

Q. l that the document which was prepared by you when they went to you as a

man of experience ?-A. Who went to me?
Q. You said some of the officers were referred to yau by the president as a man

who had large experience ?-A. It was naturally referred to me, because I had made

a special study af the subject, and referred to me in my capacity of corresponding

secretary to prepare that particular part of the answer.

Q. The preparing of this document was referred ta you as a muan of experience-

speciftd experience ?-A. Yes, and ta, ha approved by Mr. Burnham.

Q. Rlad you anything to do with the report signed by the president ? Was it not

submitted to yau ?-A. No.
Q. Iad you anything to do with the preparing af the report of the Pittsburg

conmittee i-A. Not that I recollect.
Q. Are you quite sure ?Did yau read it recently ?-A. My impression is that

the report was prepared in the homne office of the Mutual Reserve, but 1 do nat think

I had anything ta do with it.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. Were yau nat ta consuit with them, and quietly ?-A. I was deputed ta do

my share af that, but T had nothing to do with the repart.

Q. But yau approved af the repart, so f ar as the I'ittsburg people were concerned?

You gave theni ta understand that the reports were justifled ?-A. I did not see the

report complete until after it was printed.
Q.But you were a inember af the committee i-A. I was only ane.

By the Chairman:
Q. What were the instructions af the manager ? What were you told ta do with

these policy-holders-that is what we want ta know-what were the instructions iom

the manager ?-A. Do yau mean when the committee visited the home office ?
PATTERSON
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Q. On hoth occasions ?-A. I do flot recollect exactly what I was instructed ta
do, but I was flot in the entire charge of this delegation. I was, I fancy, toid ta, do
my best to make everything as agreeable for them. as could be, and to satisfy them as
to the various questions and information which. they wanted, and I can testify ta
nothing more.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. I{ow did you proceed to do that ?-A. I showed themn round the office, showed

thenx the large number of clerks we had there, the fine building we lad, and the
substantial condition of the company, as far as I could, and the circumstances required
at the time.

By the Hon. Mr. Béicjue:
Q. And fed them, as weli as you could I-A. No, the entertaining was done by

some one higher Up.

Bp Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. Can you state shortly what this article, or whatever you eall it, is-what was

the object of it ?-A. This is the first draft of the article.
Q. What article ?-A. An article whieh I pr2pared in answer to the question of

the ?ittsburg committee, how many changes have been made in the rates since the
organization of this society, and what they were.

By the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q.Did you make a subsequent one-you say this is the first ?-A. I rnade a

complete article £rom this. So far as I recollect, the article which. was sent ta the
Tittsburg commwittee was, an exact copy of this article with corrections, and was
handed hy me ta IPresident Burnham, and as I understand it, sent by him. with bis
letter answerîng other questions to the Pittsburg people.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan :
Q. Pd you see the letter that President Burnham. sent ?-A. 1 did not.
Q.You do not know what lie wrate ?-A. I do not.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. What are these erasures ?-A. Ail the parts marked with blue pencil were

lef t out of the final article.
Q. Was that a critioismn of the working of the company 1-A. It was an article

the purpose of which. was to satisfy the members of the Pittsburg committea that the
reapportionment which had been made was sufficient to meet ail lasses in future with-
ont further increase.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:
Q.Was it written truthfully and without reservatior' 1-A. It was written

truthfully and without reservation.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Gomrnittee:
Q.You said that, in your opinion, if the affairs of the company had been lionestly

and econamically managed, the original rates which were charged in 1889 would have
been sufficient ta pay ail the death lasses, did you not I-A. I sa stated.

Q. In what respect were the members nat; treated f airly, in your opinion, and
from your knowledge 1-A. It was a grass injustice ta the members of the association

*to place them in separate classes, as was donc.
Q. Explain what that separation Ineant, and what was done, and when 1-A. The

first policy that was issued by the association was called the flfteen-years plan, and
aIl the business done by the association was written by that plan up ta the year 1890,
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when the ten-year distribution deposit plan was adopted, and from that date no new
business was written orn the fifteen-year plan. Business was written on the ten-year
plan up to 1895 or January, 1896, when another new form of poiicy, calleti the five-
year distribution option plan, was udopted and a new ten-year deposit plan. Wben
the reapportionmient of rates was madie on ail members who entcrcd the association
prior to 1890 that is, the flfteen-year membrs-were ail reapportioncti, and no
others.

Q. Andi their rates were increaseti, you say?-A. And their rates were increaseti.
Then, abouit ti e year 1897, if I recolleet rightly, the first reai officiai act in settirLg
aside the fifteen-year members in a class by themseives was madie, when data was fur-
nisheti to show that they hati not contributeti the full amount which was requireti té
pay the losses in that particular class, anti from, that date on this particular class haî
stood by itself.

By lhe Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Wbat class l-A. This fifteen-year class, to provide from their own resources
ahl moneys requireti to pay the losses chargeabie to that class. The injustice doue in
that action is very evident. That was just the saine as if you hati starteti an assess-
ment life association with no capitali, with no means of providîng for the paymcnt of
loases other than assessments anti stopping taking in more business in that company
without consulting the members, anti by that action utterly destroying the sccurity
for the payment of thc elaims of the hast man or the last mon i a company so con-
ducted. It is a weih-understood f act, understood by ail men who understand life in-
surance, that an influx of new business tends largeiy to keep down the death rate,
anti consequently to decrease the cost of insurance, because in a company tioing a f air
amount of new business there is not only the ativantage of thc new blooti that cornes
into the company, but there is also the ativantage of a considerable amount whiicb
the company gets from men who lapse out otf the conlpany, men who have kept up
their policies for five, six or more years anti go out of the company, leavîng whatever
they have contributeti as a benefil, Lo the company to be useti in paying death hosses.
Then, another injustice arising out of that was that, of course, the rates hati to bc
enormously increased on this fifteen-year business, increaseti to such an extent that
if the principle is carrieti out to the fuihest extent, when the company is reduceti to
two men, one will bo looking at the other ,and tbey wilh say, 'If you go first, I will
have to pay ahi your dlaim, and there will be nothing to pay my own with whatever.'
Not only titi they separate these flfteen-year members into a separate class, but they,
'during the years of 1891, 1892, 1893, 1894, andi so on, hati a large income from expetise
'dues contributeti by these flftcen-year members, which was useti to heip to builti up
another and a separate class from them, andi thon in the yoar 1895 or 1896, 'whatover
time thoy were entirely soparated, anti took from those fifteon-yoars members the best
lives belonging to, that class anti placoti them in another class, icaving the remnant of
the fiftoen-years members still more impaircd than they would have beon if that action
bat not taken place.

Q. In what other class h-A. The flvo-year plan, the ten-yoar plan, and so-called
whoie-lifo plan.

Q. Was it flot open to ail mombers of the fifteen-year class to atopt the flvo-year
plan h-A. It was.

Q. It lias been stateti by other witnessos here that the flvo-yoar plan was better,
£rom the insurance stantipoint, was more conservative than the fteen-year plan. I
shoulti hike to know whether you agroe to that statement h-A. In Miy opinion, the
five-year plan was flot as desirable a poiicy as the fifteen-year one was, from the
pohiey-holtiers' stantipoint.

Q. But from the company's -A. Not from the company's stantipoint, was it
any more desirable than the flfteen-year plan.

Q. You differ from Mr. Wells. You hearti his evitience on that h-A. I dit.
PATTERSON
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Q. And you heard Mr. Eldridge's evidence ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you differ from them ?-A. Yes, and I will give my reason, if I may.

For example, the data furnished by the experience of if e insurance companies shows
that the average age at entering among insured lives for the past, I miglit say, cen-
tury, has varied between thirty-four and thirty-five years-that is the average age of
entry. The amount which a member insured on the five-year plan would contribute
for death losses, after deducting expenses, is less than: a mati insured on the fifteen-
year plan in 1899 contributed for the paymen~t of death losses from the commence-
knent of bis policy, if being a fact that the average age of entry is thirty-four to
thirty-five years. It follows that the average income for mortuary losses or for ex-
penses would lie as of age thirty-four or thirty-five, and consequently be working out
of the company, if I underestand the basis, would in reality, from a large experience,
get less money on the five-year plan than if would on the original fifteen-year plan,
as members paid in 1899.

Rp the lion. Mr. Lougheed:

Q.That is, if they had a fixed rate on the fifteen-year plan ?-A. In preparing
that table, Mr. Eldridge furnished a mathematical demonstration that if would carry
the policy forty years and leave a large surplus at that time.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.When did iMr. Eldridge prepare that table?-A. He prepared it after having
made the reapportionment of rates on fthe flfteen-year members in 1895.

Q. And if came to your knowledge i-A. If is in the agents' manual here.
Q. Do you disagree wifh the stafement lie made then h-A. I was not consulted

at aU.
Q. Did yon think if was wrong at that time?-A. No, that was one of the reasons

ai. thatL ime why I thoutlit thât tht 2?afcs were amply suflicient. 1 took it for granted
that Mr. Eldridge thoroughly understood the whole matter and lie had information
which I had not.

Q. And 110w yon think you have found that lie was in error h-A. No, I do nof. I
still maintain that wifh strict economy, careful selection of risks, and honest and fair
dealing, if would have been sufficient.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q.You said a moment ago with reference to the fifteen-year plan they took the

better risks out of the fifteen-year plan and put them. under fthe five-year plan, thus
impairing the remainder of the risks ?-A. Yes.

Q. In whaf way did fhey manage to differentiate betweeiî the good and the bad
under the fifteen-year plan? In whaf way would they have personal knowledge to
discriminafe in that way and make a Ëelection h-A. As a rule, life insurance men have
somo intelligence and they would not make any desperate effort to gef a mati who was
about f0 die to go on this plan.

Q. But the policy-holders were scattered over the whole continent. How did they
manage tb do that by a preconcerted method ? Did they instrue cd of their agents?~
-A. They sent ouf agents, paying them a commission, to go among those fifteen-year
members; agents having a list of members went among those fifteen-year members and
oflered them inducements to change from tie flfteen-year plan te the flve-year plan,
and to my certain knowledge those agents represented that at the end of five years a
man taking that policy would be paid fthc whole face of the policy, as an inducement.

By the Chairman:

QIs that to your knowledge ?-A. I know of several cases where that was done.
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By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q Did they go to ail the parties insured, under that system?. Were they in-

structed to 'go everywhere among the policy-holders l-A. They went everywhere, I
presume.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. The opportunities were equal. They were interested in securing as many

changes as possible. The more they induced to change the plan, the greater their
commission ?-A. Yes, but do you not see that a man who was in ill-health would not
be likely to change from a lower policy to a higlier policy, even with any inducement
that might be made to him.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. What you mean to say is that it was simply the logical sequence of what they

did. By your statement you lef t in my mind the impression that there was a pre-
concerted arrangement by which. they were to make that selection from the flfteen-year
class to the five-year class, but what you now state shows that it was the logical
sequence of the general instructions they got ?-A. I did not intend to convey the im-
pression that the Mutual iReserve Fund ]Life Association sent out men and said " now
go and get the very best men out of the flfteen-year class and leave the rest."

Bp the Hon. Mr. Béique :
Q.Do you suggest that the list of members to whom tbey were to apply was pre-

pared in that way ?-A. No, I have flot the slightest doubt-
Q. In the working out of the system those who are in ill-health are flot likely to

consent to be converted from one plan to the other ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen :
Q. You stated a mome~nt ago that a list of those that were in for the fifteen years

were handed to those that went out to seek applications for the five-years plans. When
those roturns were made and applications were received te be put into the five-year
class, had not that application to corne before the board in New York and be sanc-
tioned by them ?-A. Certainly that would ha the usuel course.

Q. In sanctîoning these applications if the hoard at New York rejected a man
at flfty-five or flfty-eight and they had bis policy and know everything about him, that
man simply remains in the fifteen-year class where lie ws ?-A. So I understand.

Q. Thei officers at New York, under those conditions, lied an opportunity of pick-
ing from the lists that were sent in, the choice applicants out of the ftfteen-year class
and putting them in the :five-year dlass, and they rejected those that they thouglit it
would not be well to put into the flve-yeer class. Iled they not an opportunity of
doing that ? As a matter of fect did they reject it ?-A. I do not think so.

Q. You think they furnished them with a list of all the fifteen-year members 1
A. Yes, I think they did, and went but indiscriminately.

Q. You do not know whether euy were rejected by the board at ell ?-A. I do
not know.

Bp the Chairman:
Q. Would the agent have eny ohject in getting the fifteen-yeer men to go into

the flve-year cleass ?-A. Certainly-commission.

Bp Mfr. CJoster, K.C., (Jounsel for the Committee
Q.As a matter of fect when the ten-year class wes founded no fuither business

was put into the fifteen-year cless, and when the five-year was founded no further
business was put into either the ten-year or the f[fteen. That is what I want te get
at.-A. When the ten-year class wes formed in 1890, the first ten yeer, the agents were
instructed to write no further business on the ftfteen-year plan.
PATTERSON
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Q. And when the five-year plan was founded, in 1897, what were the agents
instructed them to do-to write no further business on the ten-year plan ?-A. No.
A new ten-year policy was gotten with the rates even lower at some ages than mem-
bers had contributed on the fifteen-year plan in 1888 and 1889.

Q. Have you any reason for thinking that in the opinion of the president of the
company, we will say, that the resuit would be to freeze out these flfteen-year men
-A. I hesrd the president, Mr. Burnham, saying, in speaking of the resuit of the
apportionment of rates, that itbad the eflect of getting rid of a large number of old
members. I think I heard several other officers-I do not name, them-nake the same
statement. That was the resuit.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. But at the tixne of its adoption, was it introduced for that purpose, as far as

any statements of leading officers of the company were concerned ?-A. I do not think
80.

Dy the Hon. M1r. McSweeney

Q. That was the resuit ?-A. Yes, that was the resuit, but the reapportionment
was a necessity under the conditions which then existed.

B2y Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Gommittee
Q. That is ail you want to say about tbat ?-A. I tbink tbat is about enougli.
Q. What was your position wjth the Mutual Reserve in 1895 ?-A. I was corre-

sponding secretary and private secretary to the late President E. B. Harper.
Q. I should like you to state the circumstances under which you severed your

connection with the company as shortly as you can ?-A. Several months after the
reapportioninent of rates had been made, in 1895, there appeared an advertisement
in the New York daily papers : 'Meeting of difflatîsfied policy-bolIdere to be held in the
Equitable Building, New York; none but dissatisfied poliey-holders will be admitted;
bring certifientes or receipt of last mortuary caiL' That was the advertisement, as
far as my recollection goes.

B1y the Hon. .Mr. Watson:

Q. What company ?-A. The Mutual lieserve iFund Life Association. IPresident
Burnham. called mue into his office and called my attention to this and asked me to
attend that meeting and do what I could to reconcile the policy-holders and have
them endorse the reapportionment of rates and action of the management. I replied
that the meeting was for dissatisfled policy-holdcrs, that noue but dissatisfied policy-
holders would be admitted. Mr. Burnham. replied that that was ncthing, I eou2ld go
and represent that I had been dismisscd from the employ of the company and wished
to get even with them. I replied that I could flot make that statement unless lie mnade
it truc and dismissed me, and lie argued the question that it was the duty of any officer
or employee even to lie if it would be in the interests of the company, and I replied
that I could not and would not be guilty cf stating a falsehood to gain admission to
any meeting, and be pressed upon mti iihat it wns ail right, 'You ned net mind about
it. You need not bother about it,' and I afterwards learned that an agent cf the
Mutual IReserve Fund iLif e Association-

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve

Q. From. whom did you learn it ?-A. From an agent cf the Mutual Reserve by
the name cf E. iRandoipli Taylor. H1e attended a meeting of dissatisfied policy-hold-
ers and succeeded in having bimnself appointed chairman cf a committee to visit the
president and to get information as to why the reapportionment had been made, and
(-ther sucli information. That commîttee went through the farce cf visiting the
president's office and made a report.

Hlon. M1r. BiIQUE.-That bas notbing to do with the dismissal cf the witness.
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Mr. CosTRn.-I think it lias to do with it.
Hon. IMr. BÉiquE.-To my mind-and I have had sonie experience in legal mat-

ters-this is flot evidence at ail. It is simply hearsay.

By the Chairman:
Q. Are you personaily aware of the faet that this committee visited the president l

-A. iMr. Taylor consuited.
Q. The only item of hearsay is, that you heard Taylor went there? Then, the

evidence as to f acts you have given us, you say Taylor got there, did you l-A. 1 did
flot.

Q. H1e consulted you ?-A. Yes. As a result of my refusai to attend this meeting
of dissatisfied policy-holders, things were made rallier uncomfortabie for me. Cor-
respondence that I had heretofore attended to was withdrawn, and I was finaliy re-
moved from the position of corresponding secretary to the agency department and
given a commission contract to go and solicit business as an ordinary agent. I went
by instructions of the company for a month and visited one or two speu.ial agencies,
during which my salary was continued, and at the end of that time I ieft the company.

By Mr. Cos ter, K.C., tJounsel for the Commiltee:
Q. You resigned, did you l-A. Yes, practically resigned, just left without say-

ing anything about it, without formally tendering my resignation.
Q. You did not go back i-A. No.
Q. Was a suit commeuced against you by the company ?-A. I was sued by the

company.
Q. Have you the bill of complaint which was served on you in that case ?-A. I

have.

IMr. CosTEli-I wish to, put in the bill of complaint, if the Committee will per-
mit me. This is an action for $50,000 brouglit by the company againat him for libel
in 1900.

By the Hon. Mr. McMulen:
Q. When did you leave?-A. 1896l.
Q. And thîs is some four years after you lef t?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. MciSweeney:
Q. Dîd the company psy the costs e-A. They did.

By the Chairman:
Q. Cari you not state in a few sentences what the nature of the libel was and

what the charges against the company were I-A. The article appeared in 'The Coun-
selor' of January, 1900.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., tJounsel for the Commîttee:
Q. Were you the publisher of that ?-A. IPublisher and proprietor, and when it

appeared in gailey formi-I wrote the article myseif. That article charged iMr.
'Burnham, the president of the company, and IMr. Eldridge, vice-president of the
company, with having inisappropriated the funds of the company, with havîng un-
fairly treated the members of the association, witli having taken money under the
Harper contract, which the documents of the association showed was an illegal con-
tract. The article was made up of the charges fiied ini the New York Insurance
Department and of the petitions made by poiiey-hoiders to the Attorney General. I
got my information largely from these documents and summarized it in this article.

By the Ohairman:
Q.These are' the charges you made againat the company ?-A. They are.
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Q. And when the charges were published, what did they do to 7'ou i-A. They

brought suit against me for libel and arrested me, demanding $50,000.

By the Hon. Mr. Béîque:

Q. You entered a defence to the suit, I suppose l-A. Through my counsel I had
the case placed on special preferred calendar, and it came up for trial a short time

afterwards, and I, through my counsel, answered that I was ready for trial, pleaded

1for trial. That happened three or four different; times, extending over twelve or

fiifteen months, and ail that I could do I could flot get the case to trial.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q.You -wcre imprisoned ?You Lad to give bonds to get out of prison ?-A-
I did not get into prison at that particular time.

Q.You were arrested i A. Yes. The bail was $10,000.
Q.Were you allowed your liberty, or did they restrict you? A. 1 was arrested,

but flot taken to j ail.
Q.Brought to the court-house l-A. No. I wa.s in charge of the deputy sheriff.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Comm ittee:

Q.You gave bail for $10,000 l A. Yes, and a month afterwards the court re-

duced it to $400.

B~y the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.And finally they discontinued the suit and paid the costs i-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster,. K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q.State what happened, as shortly as you eanu? You tried to get the ca5se on, and

what hiuppened i-A. Finally, the case was ordered for trial by the court.
Q. Peremptorily ?-A. Peremptorily, for the flrst Monday in October, I think,

and shortly before that, probably three or four weeks before that, negotiations were

opened. I should say, in the meantime I had sued the company for $15,000, and

negotiations were opened with a view to settlement of this suit, and finally the case
was settled and they paid the $5,000 and withdrew all the suit and gave me a diseharge.

By the Hon. Mr. MoMudlen:

Q.Did they pay the costs g-A. Why, of course.
Q.Did they give you $5,000 and pay tbe cost of the proceedings i A. No, they

did not. They gave me $5,000, and I paid my own costs.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the tjommittee:

Q. Your suit was for f aIse imprisonment i-A. It was false imprisonment in the

case of a criminal action which they also brought against me, on which the magistrate
discharged me.

Q. Anyway they paid you $5,000 and withdrew the suit g-A. Yes.
Q. You tried to get this suit on many times and could not do it i-A. I could

neyer get it tried.
Q. And you neyer didî-A. No.
Q. And whexi the case was ordered on for trial peremptorily they would flot go on?

-A. No.
Q. Eiow was that $5,000 paid to you l-A. It was paid to me by my counsel.
Q. llow was the money paid to you? Cash or cheque ?-A. I have a copy of the

cheque here.

By the Hon. Mr. Bé;q'ue:

Q. A cheque of the company i-A. No, not a cheque of the company, but a cheque
out of which the $6,000 proceeds came to me.
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counse! for the Committee:
Q. this a- phatograpli of it ?-A. Yes. It is signed James Scheiks & Elkiss.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Who were they ?-A. Oounsei%for the IMu tuai Reserve in those suits.
Q. A cheque of their counsel l-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. You have spoken about statements having been made by the Company ta the

public which were not; correct, I think. You said that they have mnade false state-
ments. This also mentioned that as one of the libels that you committed. The
matter of the delinquent business-what do you knaw about that i-A. When ail af
the officiai reports ta the various insurance departments, in the officiai reports made ta
the rnexbers at the annual meetings, in the balance sheets and financiai statements,
sent ta the inembers, in the advertisements and in one case in the agents manual a
large amount of business was-

By the Hon. Mfr. Lau gheed:
Q. Have we nat some docunientary evidence of this l-A. A large amoant of busi-

ness was reported as inuac

Hon. Mr. LoUGHEED.-It seems ta me we shauld adhere as closely as passible ta
the ruies af evidence. There must be documentary evidence of this.

By Mfr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. You say that the delinquent business was reported ta the department as being.

in force i-A. That is correct.
Q. In the State of New York ?-A. Y-es.
Q. And what did they da in other states ?-A. The same in ather States.
Q. That is ail you have ta say about it ?-A. Practically ail.
Q. This is an cxtract frarn the report ai the different insurance departments, is

Q. State shortly what the result af that statement is i

Mr. GEOFs'ION.-What has a repart ta anc of the States ta do with the position
in Canada of the Mutual Reserve?

The OHigAmN.-That matter has been decided by us.

By the Hon. Mfr. Béique:
Q. State the effect af it and the abject i-A. The abject is ta show that in the

published literature af the campany the incarne, assets, disbursements, and the in-
surance in force was grossly overstated as compared with their sworn statement ta
the Insurance Department of the State ai New York. Thae statement reads as failaws:

Exhibit No. 34. 19-76-04.
Incarne.

Sworn Report Ins. Dept. N. Y. Dec. 31, 1899. Dec. 31, 1900.
$5,192,030 21 $5,333,969 80

Exhîbit No. 10a.........5,813,494 96

Overstated by. ........ $69,1,464 75
Exhibit No. 10b..........$6,000,000 00

Overstated by..........807,969 79
Exhibit Nos. 10Oc, 10e, lof & log.........$8,000,000 00

Overstated by.................$2,666,030 20
PA'r'ERSON
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Invtested Assets.

Sworn Report Ims. Dept. N. Y. Dec. 31, 1899. Dec. 31, 1900.
$2,672,873 65 $2,849,875 77

Exhibit No. 10a..........3,461,230 22

Overstated by..........788,356 57
Exhibit No. 10b & 10e .... ...... 3,500,000 00

Overstated by .. .... ..... $349,875 77
Exhibit Nos. 10e, 10e, 10f & 10 g...........16,000,000 00

Overstated by.................13,150,124 23

Insurance in Force.

Sworn Report Ins. Dept. N. Y. Dec. 31, 1899. Dec. 31, 1900.
$173,714,683 00 $189,267,374 00

Exhibit Nos. 10c, 10d, 10e & 10f...........225,000,000 00

Overstated by. ............... $24,000,000 00

'In 1900, as lias been stated before in my testimony, the company reinsure-1
partially the business of the North-western Miutual Life Insurance Company of
Chicago.' (George D. Eldridgç, p. 17, part 3.)

Exhibit No. 34. 12-7-04.

NEW BUSINESS.

New York Insurance Report, December 31, 1900.
'F'ulicies or eertificates writton, rovived or cliaiîged

during the calendar year.............$64,501,751

Overstated by................$11,570,17 1
New, revived and exchanged business, 1899 .... ...... 22,931,580

ci C41900.. .. ...... 22,931,580
'The ainount of new, revived and exchanged business

for the past year, exclusive of reinsurance, is prac-
tically the same as that of 1899.' (Annual report
of Geo.' D. Eldridge, Jan. 23, 1901, pages 19 and
20)........................2,931,580

'The actual amount of business that went on the books
from the North-western Lif e was soinewhere be-
twecxi 9C and 30 millions.? (Testimony of Geo. D.
Eldridge, June 17, 1904, part 2, page 43.).....30,000 000

$52,931,580
Overstated by................$11,570,171

NORTH-WESTERN LIENS.

(Reduced Insurance irn Force. George D. Eldridge.)

'When the company was, in 1902, examined by the New York Insurance Depart-
ment for the purpose of reincorporating, the question was taken up betweeen the com-
pany and the department, and the departnment decided that what we reinsured was
the net amount of insurance as of the date when the contract went into effect. That
is, if the policy was originally $1,000 with a lien of $250 on it, we did not reinsure

PATPERSON
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the $1,000 interpreting the written contract, but that we reinsured $750 as of Septem-
ber 1, 1900.

(Part 2, page 64. June 17, 1904.)
'The New York Insurance Department rufled that under the New York Iaw any-

thing received as representing the reserve other than cash could flot be included in
the income or could flot be included in assets because they had no autbority to include
under liabilities and reserve against assessment policies. They, therefore, excluded
this item entireîy of those liens from schedule of assets.'

(Part 2, page 17. June 21, 1904.)

The data in the sworn report is for the year iDecember -31, and the date in the
circuler is for the year ending December 31, and they should both be the samne.

By the lion. Mr. Lougheed :
Q.Would both statements be made contemporaneously ?-A. I tbinki so, but flot

necessarily. It would embrace the saine time.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counset for the Committee

Q. You Say, according to the exhibits that are referred to in this statement, that
the insurance in force is overstated by $24,000,000 ?A. I do.

Q. You L-now no expiïnation of that ?-A. In iMr. Eldridge's report to the mem-
bers for the year ending December 31, 1900, hie stated that the new business, the
reinstated business, apart from the reinsured business was practically the samne as the
ycar previous, that is Pci the year ending December 31, 1900, which. was $22,000,000;
and in his evidence before this Committee hie stated that the actual amount which
went on the books of the Mutual Reserve Fund Association from the North-western
was between $95,000,000 and $30,000,000. If you grant the bighest figures, $30,000,000
added to $20,000.000 makes only $50,000,000 instead o~f $64,0 0 0,000 as reported. of new
business revived business for the year ending December 31.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. You are referring to Eldridge's evidence. Can you give us the quotation ?-

A. I arn referring to the staternent that there was $225,000,000 of insurance in force.
That is No. 2, page 43, which. reads as follows -

'The actual amount of business that went on the books from the North-western
Life was somewbat between $25,000,000 and $30,000,000?"

Q. What year was that ?-A. 1900. Then, again, at pages 19 and 20 of the annual
report of Mr. Eldridge which is in evidence-Mr. IEldridge's report to the annual
meeting I arn referring to-

Q. On the face af tliis it does not appear as if Mr. Eldridge was speaking of 1900?
-A. Speaking of the.reinsurance of the North-westeln, and that was ini 1900.

Q. Hie was speaking of one item of the business of the company ?-A. He was
speaking of the amount they reoeived from the North-western.

Q. Explain that ?-A. Thirty millions of business reinsured from the North-
western and twenty-two million of new business, reinstated business only fifty-two
million, whereas according to the sworn report there was new business to the extent
of sixty-four million that year. Theu the circular which is an exhibit, states that the
total paid for business in force was $225,000,000. The total business in force at the
end of the year prior to 1900 was $173,000,000. Add $50,000,000 to $173,000,000 And it
makes $223,000,000 Kt that tilne, but durinq tie year 1900, 848,000,000 of new business
terminated by lapse and otherwise, and it is fair to assume that at least three-quarters
of it had gone off before Septeinher, 1900. That would leave at tihat particùla, tîme
less than $2W0,000,000 of busiaess actually in force.

Q~. Ins.tead of ý-. [unstead of $225000,000.
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Q. Do you dlaim that their sworn report was incorrect ?-A. I do.
Q. To the extent of how much ?-A. No, that is nlot what I necessarily dlaimn-

yes, I do dlaim that; the facts show that according to iMr. Eldridge's testimony there
could flot have been $64,000,000 of reinsured. business that year.

Q. Let us take the officiai report as made to the Insurance Department. Do0 you
dlaim that that officiai report was incorrect ?-A. In my opinion it is nlot correct.
The business was overstated.

Q. And your opinion is based on the figures which have been stated by Mr. El-
dridge ?-A. And the figures containeil in the annual report for the previous year.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the (Jommittee:
Q. On the bottom of this statement therc is a littie memoraniduma with reference

to the North-western liens. Explain that to the Committee as shortly as you can.-
A. This is also taken from Mr. Eldridge's evidence No. 2, page 64, given June 17,
1904, as follows :

'When the company was in 1902 examined by the New York Insurance Depaýrt-
ment for the purpose of reincorporating, the question was taken up between the comn-
pany and the department, and the department decided that what we reinsured was the
net amount of the insurance as of the date when the contract went into effect. That
is, if the policy originally was $1,000 with a lien of $250 on it, we did not reinsure
thie $1,000, interpreting the written contract, but that we reinsured $700 as of Septem-
ber 1, 1900.'

That being truc, the reinsurance from the North-western was reduced practically
by the whole $8,000,000 of liens on the policies, they being simply consents given by
the policy-holders to reduce their insurance to that amount, and were, therefore, nlot
in force as insurance.

Q. And .yet you say it was stated as being in force ?-A. Lt was, ruported as heing
in force.

Q. t was insuraiiwc in force?-A. IL was not,, in may opinion.

By the Hon, Mr. Lougheed:
Q. t is said it could nlot be considered gross insurance, but net insurance ?-A.

The net insurance was the amount after ail the lieus were deducted.
Q. Were both ternis used in the statement to which you refer, or either term ?-

A. In the statement ?
Q. Ye --. As to the terni 'net' in contradistinction to gross; why did they

use the word gross À-A. I cannot explain.

B~y the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Do you know why they make a difference between the net and the grose ý-

A. They neyer allowed at any time liens either as au income or in anymother way
prier to 1902.

Q. So that they make a distinction. They reduce it te the net. They make it
the net amoiint, and not the gross?-A. This testimony of M.r. Eldridge relates te the
action of the New York Insurance Department two years or nearly two years after
the reinsurance of the North-western.

The Committee thon adjourned until 8&1 p.m.

PA2rTERSON



S~ELECT (JOMMITTEE ON THE POSITION 0F

4 EDWARD Vil., A. 1904

At 8.15 p.m. the Committee resumed, and the examination of the said witness
was continued, as follows-.

Byi the Hon. Mr. McMullen.
Q.You gave us this morning a comparison between the New York Mutual ]Re-

serve LEife and the Ban<ers' iMutual Company, of IDes Moines. I asked you, when the
meeting was over at one o'clock, if you could give us a comparative. statement of the
income and the expense per thousand of these respective comapanies. That state-
ment you have prepared, have you flot ?-A. I have.

Q. I find that in the year 1896 the income of the New York Mutual IReserve Fund
Association was $5,858,476.97, 'and the expenses were, per thousand, $272.46. The
samle year the income of the Bankers' Life Association was $950,727.69, and the ex-
penses per thousand, $190.54. la that correct ?-A. That is correct.

Q. Now, we wiIl take the next year, 1897. The income of the New York iReserve
JFund Association was $6,081,309.87, and the expenses per thousand, $296.06. The
same year the income of the Bankers' Life Association was $1,172,695.90, and expenses
per thousand, $151.09. Is that correct ?-A. It is.

Q. Then, take 1898. The income of the IMitual iReserve Fund Association was
$6,134,327.27, and the expenses per thousand, $292.09. The same year the income of
the Bankers' Life Association was $1,317,376.40, and the expenses per thousand,
$153.55. la that correct i-A. It is.

Q. Then, in 1899, the income of the Mutual iReserve Fund was $5,192,030.21, and
the expenses per thousand, $263.36. The same year the income of the Bankers' Lif e
Association wvas $1,505,025.40, and the expenses per thousand, $146.77. Is that cor-
rect ?-A. It is.

Q. lIn 1900 the Mutual lEeserve I1'und Association had au iiwuu±e uf $5,333,06U.0,
and the expenses per thousand were $245.09. The same year the income of the
Bankers' Life Association was $1,639,939.51, and the expenses per thousand, $134.80.
la that correct ?-A. That is correct.

Q. lIn 1901 the income of the lMutual iReserve Fund Life was $6,700,222.38, and
the expenses per thousand. $264.82. The same year the income of the Bankers' Iife
Association was $1,577,270.44, nad the expenses, $151.68. lIs that correct?-A. It is.

Q. Then, the last year in the statement is 1902. That year the income of the
Mutual Reserve Fund Association was $5,025,862.99, and the expenses, $334.91. The
same year the Bankers' Life Association had an income of $2,121,228.90, and the
expenses ý»ere $19 1.90. la that correct i-A. It is.

Q. The average expenses of the Bankers' Life Association, which. dîd less busi-
ness, and had a less revenue, averaged a littie more than one-haif the expenses of the
New York Mutual IReserve Fund for the years 1896 to 1902, inclusive. lis not that
so?-A. It is.

Q. Now, that goes to show that the expenses of management of the New York
Mutual Reserve were very nearly double the expenses of the Bankers' Life, of Des
Moines, and we are anxious to flnd out wher *e th money has gond. Then, I find, under
the heading 'Premium note account, 1902,' the following-

'lIn the income of the Mutual IReserve Fund Life Insurance Company for the
year ending December 31, 1902, page 8 of the sworn report to the Insurance Depart-
ment of the State of New York,' there is $608,004.35 of premium notes. Consequently,
the actual cash income for the year 1902 was only $4,417,853.64, heing $2,282,368.74
less than the cash income for the year ending December 31, 1901.'
Are you prepared to say that that is correct g-A. It is correct.
PAiTTERSON
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Q. 'In the year 1902 the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Insurance Company ex-
pended $381.01 in management to each $1,000 of its cash income, instead of 334.91.'
Is that right i-A. 0f their cash income.

Q. Then for that year if they spent $381.01 to each $1,000 of actual cash income,
they spent nearly double the amount per thousand that the Bankers' Life Association
expended-is that right g-A. It is.

By the Hon. M1r. Lougheed:
Q. Are those figures taken from the government returns e-A. They are taken

from the annual statement issued by the Insurance Pepartment"of the State of New
York, and ftom the sworn statements of the New York Mutual Reserve Fund Life
Association.

Q. As far as it affects their entire business, or oniy the business donc ini the State
of New York g-A. The entire business.

By the, lion. Mr. McSwoonoyl:
Q.You stated that the Mutuial iReserve Fund paid you $5,000 to settie that suit,

did they not?-A. They did. They paid it through their counsel.

By the Chairman:
Q.What was that $5,000 paid forl What was the nature of your charges e-A.

1 charged the company wth-
Q. Did you put those charges in writing i-A. I published them in the 'Coun-

selor,' a paper of which I was the editor and proprietor.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. As I understaud, this $5,000 was paid in settiement of your action for false

arrest. It has nothing to do with those charges in the journal ?-A. It had ail to do
With. them.

By the Chairman:
Q. There seema to be a rnisunderstanding with regard to your evidence this morn-

ing. Some members of the Committee are under the impression that you were paid
the $5,000 to settie the action for $50,000 against the ýcompany-i& that true ?-A.
That is not true.

Q. Have you the document on which you were paid $5,000 to allow the suit to
drop ?-A. I produced it this morning.

Fol. 1.

NEW Yoax SUPREME COURT,
STATE 0F iNEW YORK, COUNTY 0F NEW YORK.

The Mutual IReserve Fund Lif e Association,]
John Thmson iateînse is aet fiaitfrodro ret
JohnThomo gasn, hs t rtnm t :fdvtfrodro ret

the Plaintiff is unknown and who is herein
designated by the fictitious name of John.

CiTY AND CouiqTy 0F NEw YORK ss:
Camp

being duly sworn says, that he is the seeretary of the plaintiff corporation which, is a
corporation organized and carrying on business under the laws of the State of New
York, for the purposes of insuring the lives of persan.

That in a newspaper, published montlily and circulated in the city of New York,
known as 'The Counselor,' ini its issue of January, 1900, there appeared the following
articles:

PATTERSON
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FOl. 2. 'A TEIRRIBLE AIR1AIGNMENT.

"THE MIUTUAL RESERVE iFUND LIFE ASSOCIATION."

That sajd articles contained false and defamatory words and matter concerning
the Plaintiff, and the officers of the iPlaintiff, ani falsely and maliciously charged the
officers of the IPlaintiff with the commission of crimes, and offences, with dishonest,
fraudulent acts and falsely and maliciously imputed and insinuated that the Plaintiff
was about to become bankrupt.

Fol. 3.-That theDefendant above named, composed, or causcd to be composed,
and published or caused to be published, the said articles, ail of which. are contained
in the subjoined verifled complaint, which forms part of this affidavit, to which re-
ference is made.

Fol. 4.-That ail of said statements arc false. This action has been brought to
recover the sum. of dollars damages incurred by the
Plaintiff for the said tortious acts of the iDefendant, and the summons herein lias
been duly issued and is intended to be served herewith upon the Defendant upon the

day of March, 1900. Said Defendant lias.not appeared or answered.
herein.

Fol. 5.-Th at no previous application for the arrest of the said Defendant has been
made in this action.

Sworn to before me this day of March, 1900.

NEW YonK SUPREME COURT,
STATE OF NEW YORK, Colr'.TY 0F NEW YORK.

The Mutual iReserve Fund iLife Association,
Plaint;if.

Against
John Thomas Patersou, whose flrst narne to Summons.

the Plaintiff is unknown and who is herein
designated by the fictitious name of John, j

Defendant.1

To the above named Defendant:
You ARE HIEREI3Y SuMueONED to answer flic complaint in this action and ta serve

a copy of your answer on the iPlaintifl's Attorneys within twenty days after the service
of this sumamons, exclusive of the day of service, and in case of your failure to appear,
or answer, judgment wilI be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in
the complaint.

Dated, N ew York, March ,1900.

JAMES, SCHELL & ELKUS,,
Attorneys for Plain tiff.

Office and post office address, 56 Pine Stree, Borough of Manhattan, New York
City.

Fol. 1.
NEW YORK SUPREME COURT,

STATE OF NEW YORKx, COUNTY 0F NEW Yoax.
The iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association,1

Against
Jfohn Thomson Paterson, whose flrst name to

the Plaintiff is unkuown and who is herein
designated by the fictitious name of John. J

The Plaintiff for its complaint, by James, Sehell & Elkus, its attorneys, alleges:
1. That it is a domestic corporation, organized and doing business under the

laws of the State of New York for the purpose, of insuring the lives of porsons and
IPATTERSON
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at the times hereinafter mentioned and for about twenty (20) years last past, bas
been and is now carrying on said business in said state and elsewhere.

Fol. 2.-11. Tbat on or about the first day of January, 1900, the defendant
maliciously composed and publisbed concerning the plaintiff and tbe officers of the
plaintiff, in a newspaper called "The Counselor," at the Borougli of IManhattan, in
the city of New York, the following false and defamatory statement, to wit

'A TERRIBLE ARRAlUN MENT.'

Fol. S.-' Attention is called to our arraignment of the presideîit and management
of the Mutual iReserve l'und Life Association, in this issue, our object lu writing
it being te impress upon the policy-holders of the association the pressing importance
of a united effort te save it froma bankruptcy by the removal of the present manage-
ment. Policy-holders and others 'who ire actuated by the same motive as we are,
cau have ail the copies of this article in pamphlet form wbich they want, at actual
cost, viz.: 100 copies, $1.25; 500, $6; 1,000 copies or over, one cent per copy or $10
per 1,000. Sainple copy, 4 cents.

MUTUAL RESEaVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

Fol. 4.-'Illnving devoted the best years of our îf e in advocating the advantages
of tbe system of life insurance upon wbich. the Mutual Ileserve Fund Life Associa-
tion was originally conducted, and being conscieus of the duty which we owe te its
policy-holders, it is with deep regret that we express the opinion that unless a change
of management can, in tbe near future, be effected, a bankruptcy must inevitably
resuit.

Fol. 5.-'That ne financial entorprise, however sound in principle, can long continue
te prosper wbichi is eondocted iy men who have littie or no regard for trutb and arc
honesi. only in se far as the law cempels them te be se, is proved by the fainre of
scores of life insurance cieupanies, building and loulrl association*, baiiks and other
finaneial insti[tutions, through wbich millions of dollars of the people's money bave
been lest, squandcred or stolen by those who betrayed the confidence reposed in themn
by a confiding public.

Fol. 6.--' That the President of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, and
those who are immediaiely associated with him have not a high regard for truth and
that integrity of purpose essential te the well-being and success of a large financial
institution, is evident frorn the followving facts:

'First, that IPresident RBurnbam and bis associates havc made misleading state-
ments te policy-bolders and their committees, and bave, by making false entries in
the books of the company, concealcd from policy-helders and the exarniners of in-
surance departments the real purpose for which money bas been expended.

'Second, President Burnham being sued for the payment of a debt, filed a de-
murrer to'the complaint which demurrer was net allewed, the court practically hold-
ing that the disoharge of the debt had been obtained by fraud.

Fol. 7 'The fellowing are the exact 'words used by .Tudgc Scott, in special tcrma,
Part III., June, 1899, in the case of iMoton D. Mess vs. Frederick A. Burnham, in an
action brought by the said Mess te recover the sum. of $36,000:

Fol. .- ' Where a person effects a compromise of a debt admittedly due by hlm,
by fraudulent representatiens and procures a discharge by payîng another a part ai
the amount due, and an action is brougbt te recover tbe balance, and void the dis-
charge by reason of fraud, it is net necessary, as a preliminary te the riglit of Te-
covery that the plaintiff repay the amount received, for, in snch a case tbe plaintiff
is entitled whetber he succeed or net, te the amount he bas paid. This precise case is
presented bere. The demurrer admits tbe original indehf&dness oif defendant to
plaintiff for a much larger sum than be bas paid.'

Fol. 9--' Third, a committee of policy-holders from. Pittsburg, Pa., spent tbree
days in the offices ai the Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association, and te this cern-

1 92à PATTERSON
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mittee, we being present, iPresident Burnham and Vice-President Eldridge showed
what they represented to be the original contract made with the late E. B. Harper,
by which he was allowed renewal comrniission 20 cents on each $1,000 of insurance in
force on the 31st of December of each year, and positiveiy stated that the contract was
binding upon the association, it having been made prier te Mr. Ilarper's election as
a director and president. As an evidence that what we state is correct we herewith
produce the following £rom the report of the committee:

Fol. 10.-' President Burnham answered tbe queries of the committee with a fui-
ness and alacrity thiat we scarcely expected. fie seemed to be glad of the opportunity
to give to the policy-bolders a statement of facts relative to the business of the cern-
pany, and showed to them a true account of bis stewardship of their interests. Hie
gave a copy of the Harper will and showed the cemmittee a contract of commissions
made with Mr. Harper by the eompany, whereby he and his heirs were to receive'20
cents per $1,000 for ail insurance written from. that date.

Fol. 12.-' This contract was made with the company prier te bis becomig
president of the association, and continued during bis life, and by the terms of cen-
tract to continue during the continuance of the association, on the margin of which
was written by Mr. Harper, the limitation of the terrms of commission to ail business
donc during his lifetime.' fie also gave releases ecd year for one-third of the
amount accruing from sncb commission. Whatever responsibility attaches to the
contract made bas nlot been incorrect by any officer of the company. Wthenever sucli
policies expire the commission cesses, but so long as the policies or renewals of the
same remain in foý'ce the eomMliission accrues te bis legatees.

Fol. 13.-' The report of the iPittsburg committee was published in iPresident
Burnham's annual report, aîîd was signed by 'Alexander iDemster, Chairman, Cad-
wallader, Evans and by Howard Morton, Committee.' The report was mailed to policy-
holders in February, 1896.

' Shortly alter tic death of tic late E. B. Harper, in an effort to obtain a settie-
ment witb bis legafees, Mr. Burnham, according to announcements in thc daily press,
caused a " friendly suit" to bc brougit by them in tic Supreme Court of New York,,
tic Mutual IReserve being the defendant, and iii its answer, whichis~ now a part of
tic court record, among otier things, alleging as follows

Fol. 14.-' Alleges on information and bebaîf that pursuant te said constitution
as so amcnded thc said Edward B. Harper was clcted president for one year, and
was thereafter annually elected sucli president until Juiy, 1895, but at ail of said
times respectively the term of his office was one year only, and ne longer,.and bis
salary was cach year duly fixed by the executive comniittee of the defendant associa-
tion in accordance witb its constitution and by-laws, and was duly paid him, in full.

Fol. 15.-' Alleges on information and belief tiat tic said Edward B. Harper
was a member of the defendant association and iad ne rigbt to make the agreement
alleged, or intended te be allegcd, iii the complaint, by tbe performance of which.
agreement a portion of the annual dues would be diverted from their preper use for
bis benefits. iDenies upon information and belief that any board of directors, or any
officers of tbe defendant association ever at any time bad any rigbt. or autbority te
dispose of the future earnîngs or income of said association in the manner and for
the purposes in said complaint alleged, or to make thc agreement alleged, or intended
to be alleged in the complaint berein.

Fol. 16.-' Alleges on information and belief tint said defendant bas fully paîd
and discharged and performed and settled for every sum. or sums of money due te the
said E. B. Harper or bis legal representatives, now or at any time or times any andi
every obligation now or at any time existing against it, which be or any of bis legal
representatives otberwise would or could bave or bave iad against it, and it denies
that it is indebted to the plaintiffs in any sumn whatever.'

Fol. 1-'To ail of these allegations, madle only a short time alter this statement
to the Pittsburg cemmittee, IPresident Burniam caused the foliowing affidavit te be
made by Chas, W. Camp, Secretary of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association;*
PATrTERWON
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Fol. 1.-' Chas. W. Camp, being duly sworn, says; That lie is the Secretary of
the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, the defendant aliove named; that hie has
read the foregoing answer and knows the contents thereof; and that the samne is true
te lis uwfl knowledge excpf as to the niatters therein sfated to bia alleged on informa-
tion and lielief, and as te those matters he helieves it to lie true.'

Fol. 19.-The aliove allegations and affidavif seeins te prove that when President
Burnham stated to the comrnittee of policy-holders that the Mutuel iReserve was
legally liound te psy 20 cents on eacli thousand dollars of insurance in force under
the Harper contract he stated that which was nlot triie, and what is sf iii more sorious,
:Mr. -urnliam et the time, or sliortly liefore the above allegations and affidavits were
made, received, inl addition te his saIary, large sums of meney claimed te lie due under
the contract, and used if without accounting for if, and stili continues te psy eut
the funds of the association te others, which amounts se paid are charged as comn-
missions accruing under the contract, one payment alone lieing for $38,000. Thc
totvl claires to have licen paid te oea person already exceeds $1 80,000.

Fol. 20.-Second Vice-President Wells, flic treasurer, thle Hon. John W. Vroe-
man and others, having protested against se large an amount being apprepriated by
thec president in addition te bis salary, IMr. Burnliam caused the following resolution
te lie adepted by the board of directors:

'lResolved, That ail payments herefofore made te, the president fromn the contin-
gent fund estahuislied hy resolution of fhe board, dated Feliruary 19, 1896, and flic
expenditures and disposition thereof be and are herehy in ail respects approved, con-
llrmed and adopted.'

Fol. 21.-' As flic aliove resolution was adopfcd August 10, 1898, if appears per-
fectly clear fliaf President Burnhare confinued te draw meney's under fhe Harper
cent ract. For at least fourteen inonflis affer hie caused flic allegafions and affidavifs
te bie made te the Supreme Court, whidh allegations and affidavit show thaf ne meneys
whafevcr could legaily lie paid under flic Harper cenfract.

Fol. 22. ihu faut thiat -Nr. F. A. Burnhar-n wns the attorney wvlîo drew up flic
will of the late E. B. Hsarper, and whicli providcd. thaf in the event of bis net being
elected president, one-third of tlic renewal commission due annually under the Harper
contracf waS te lie paid te him, should nef be overloeked, and if sees te show fIat
lie must have known ail fthc parficulars relating te if. Those, of us who sf iii revere
flic namne and mcmory of the late E. B. Harper remember wifh borror the unseemly
haste in flic election of his successer; the facf s heing fliaf in fhe affernoon'of fhe
saine day IMr. Harper died, Mr. Burnhain being dliairman of flic execuitiva cemmitfee,
eaii*id a 8pecil meeling of the directors and liad hiniself ekected I)residkint.

Fol. 23.-Realizing thaf the amount whicli under any prefext ceuld lie handed
over te him. under the contracte, is rapidly grewi&g smaller by reasen of this discon-
tinuance of the policies written prier te the death of the late E. B. Harper, and being
anxious to have his income remnain at as large a figure as possible, Mr. Burnliam. caused
fthc following resoluf ion te lic passed liy flic board of directors

Fol. 24.-Resoived, Thaf ne flirther peymenfs ho made from flic said contingent
funds, and in lieu thereof flic executive commit tee lie and is hercby insfructed fo
place upon flic pay-roli of flic association flic sum of $200 weekly, te be drawn and
receipted for by flic president, in addition te flic salaries from time te time fixed and
cstablislied and paid te him, whicli wcekly sum of $200 shahl constifute a contingent
fuiîd te lic used and expended by him witliout accountîng flierefor, and in lis sole
discretion, and fo fliaf end, liaf flic sum, as, well as flic ameunt lieretofore drawn, lie
regarded as an addition te his compensation.

We cali flic attention of flic poiicy-liolders of flic lMutual Iteserve te one or two

facf s iridicafed liy fthe above resolutions, viz.:
Fol. 25.-(a.) Thaf it clearly shows tIat flic board of directors, lieing selected

and elected liy iPresident Burnliam, lic liolding the proxies, are directed Ly him and
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always do as he directs. This is the only explanation which can be given of a trans-
action so outrageously illegal and unjust to policy-holders.

(b.) That in passing the above resolution an attempt was made to legalize the
sumas illegally appropriated by MNlr. Burnham undcr the so-calied Harper contract..

Fol. 26.-Fourth, That iPresident Burnham, finding it necessary to explain to
policy-holders why ex-Postmaster General James,' Treasurer Hon. John W. Vroornan,
Vice-iPresident and Chairman of the Executive Comnmittee J. D. Wells, Assistant
Secretary J. M Stevenson, Auditor J F. Hoffecker and John Maclay, editor of the
Insurance Economist, are not now connected with the association, has caused the
statement to be circnlated that they were dîsmissed from the services of the Mutual
Ileserve ; and this iii the face of the fact that ail of these officiais severed their con-
nection hy resignation and refused to ailow their names to be longer associatcd with
the present management, which resignations have been published in the daily press.

Fol. 27.-Fifth, Uindcr the direction of President Burnham or somne other
officers or emnpioye, blaiîk forins for a speciai cali, numbered 106, and dated Sep-
tember 1, 189 wvere printed and a large number of them filled up and entries mnade
upon the assessment registers in red ink, markcd 'Special Caii 106,' the arnount due
on the asssessments being filled in, and yet in the face of ail this, President Burnhcm,
in a letter addressed to us, made the foliowing statement

Fol. 28.-' I will thank yen to furnish me with the source of yeur misinforma-
tion. The iDirectors and Board of Executive Committee of the Association fix the,
timnes and amounts of the assessments, and neither body bas dirccted that a special
ccli bo mnade on September 1, as you say you are informcd, or even considered such
action.'

Foi. 29.-The ahove was in answcr te a letter which we addressed to Presi-
dent Burnham remonsirating againsi tis speciai ccll being scnt ont, an(i also against
the enormous suin of $179,392.91., having been expendcd in cost of *adjusting death
dlaims, cost incurred Lu coliecting assessments, etc., iu the six months previons to.
septemhcr, 1809.

If the statements mcde in the ahove quotation from Presîdent Burnham's letter
are correct, it is easy to see that he, and not the Board of Directors or Executive Coni-
mittee, is the management.

Foi, 30.-That a speciai cali was intended to be made on the lst of September is
cither'truc or thc Mutuai iReserve Le managed hy a set of lunaties ; otherwise how
can we account for the hiank formns having been printed, filied np, ready for mailing,
and the entries made upon the Asscs'sment iRegisters ?

Foi. 31. In addition to having denicd, in the letter referred te, that a special
cali was to ho made on September 1, iPresident Burnham has aiiowed the positive

- statement te ho made in the Insu rance Econemist, the officiai organ of the iMutual
Reserve, and in other insurancc journais, and by a member of the Agency Commîttee
oser his signature, that 'there never was any intention of making a speciat call.' In
every paper and letter where Lt ie denicd that it was the intention of the management
of the Mutuai iReserve te make a speciai ceil, a felse statement Le made, and known
te ho se by iPresident Burnhemn.

Foi. 32.-Sixth, In the year 1896, severai menthe after the first reappertien-
ment of the rates was made, Mr. F. A. Bnrnhem ceiied us inta his office and
requested ns te attend a meeting of dîssatisfied poiicy-hoiders wvhich was te be held
in the Equitahle Building, instrncting us that if objection was made te our presence
we shouid state thct we lied been dismissed from the service of the company, end if
we succeeded in getting in, te miake an effort te influence the meeting and, if possible,
get it to endorse the increase of rates as heing absoiutely necessary. It-Le neediese te
say that, netwithetanding the fact that Mr. Buruhani argned that it wes the duty ef
any officer or employee te lie, if the interests of the association reqnired Lt, we refnsedT
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to comply witli bis request, believing as we do that the man who deliberately lies is
worse than a thief.

Fol. 33.-lt is a matter of history that IPresident Burnbam succeeded in getting
an agent of the association not only to lie himself into the meeting referred to, but
also to have himself elected chairman of a committee of the saine dissatisfied policy-
bolders, and a few days afterwards went through the farce of waiting on the president
for an explanation of the increase in rates, &c. In the report madle by this com-
mittee, as miglit have been expeeted, the management of the Mutual lieserve was not
only endorsed, but highly commended for having increased the rates. The gentleman
who se faithfully served iPresident Burnham in this connection was Mr. E. ]iandolph
Taylor, wbo in this paticular case passed off as E. Randolpb, and a representative
cf one of thc daily papers.

Fol. 34. No oue endowed with even ordinary intelligence can read the report cf
the Superintendent and Examiner cf the Insurance Department cf the State cf New
York in the recent examinatien cf the Mutual IRsreFund Lifé Association witbout
being conviuced that it is iu a mest critical condition, and that the management bas laid
itself open te criniinal prosecutien.

Fol. 35.-Thousands cf dollars cf the funds cf the Mutual iReserve have been
expended in an e-ffort te ccunteract the cvii effeets of this report. Two prominent
lawyers, Colonel James and Edward 'Lauterbach were each paid a retaining fie of
$5,000, and both went te Albany te urge the superintendent te modify bis report. Iu
almost evcry insurance journal carrying the advertisement cf the association there
appeared editorials commending the management and abusing the Insurance Depart-
ment, wvhicb have beeii paid for either in the way cf ordering special copies or as
extra advcrtisiag.

Fol. 36.-We are sorry te be forced te say that iu aur opinion tbe superintendent
lias compromised himself, and te a greater or less extent detracted frem the dignity
cf bis departmeut by failing te de bis wholc duty in this case.

lleferring te the charges made against the management, lie m.akes tbc following
qtqtf-petq

Fol. 37.-'he examiner wvas commissioued te niake an exarnination cf the asso-
ciaticn's affairs. Hie conflued bis report te matters relating te its condition and dia
net go into the matter cf the charges referred te, but derived the information
embraced iii bis report frein the bocks and records cf the association.'

The charges referred te in tbe above extract were made and sworu te at tbe request
of the superintendent by two trustwortby and respectable men, wlihose reputation
for vcrocity was establishied beyond qzuestion long before Presideat Burnham was
connected witli tbe Mutual iReserve, viz.: by ex-President and (ihairman cf the
Executive Committee J. D. Wells and ex-Assistant Secretary J. M. Stevenson.

Fol. 38.-If the charges are false, it fellcws that botb Mr. Wells and Mr. Steven-
sou are guilty cf perjury, and yet tlie Superinteudent cf Insurance, wbo is supposed
te be the guardian cf the policy-holders of life insurance compan les deing business
in the State -of New York, says that he 'did net go into the matter cf the charges
referred te.'

Fol. 39.-lu order tbat policy-holders may know te wbat extent tbe superintendent
did bis duty in this examination, we herewith enumerate the principal charges made
and sworn te by Vice-IPresident Wells and Assistant Secrctary J. M. Stevenson, and
which are still standing and net proved te be untrue, they are as follows:

That IPresident Burnliam lias illegally diverted te bis own personal use and benefit
tbe funds of the association;

That lie illegally and fraudulently paid large sunis cf money te Moton D. Mess;
Fol. 40. Tbe he illegally and fraudulently released the saîd Meton ID. Mess of

indebtedness ameunting te $150,000;
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That lie iliegaliy credited the said Moton ID. IMoss with over $93,0O0 under the
false pretnece that it was due him;

That li lias fraudulently diverted hundreds of tliousands of dollars from the
mortuary fund of the association;,

Fol. 41.-That he borrowed from officers and directors of the association sums
aggregating from, $20,000 to $40,000, a part of which lie paid back illegaily out of the
funds of the association;

That he illegally paid large sums.of money out of the funds of the association
to numerous lawyers for rendering him personal services;

That lie swore to annuial reports whicli were false and untrue;
That lie fraudulently altered or caused to be altered the terms of certain contracts

between the association and Moton ID. Moss, by wliich the association suffered serious
financial loss;

Fol. 42.-Tliat lie fraudulently used tlie pay-rolls of the association for his own
purposes and to cover questionable transactions and to misappropriate the fuinds of
the assoiation;

That he holds tlie proxies of the members of the association and uses tliem for
his own personal ends to appoint ail directors and officers, and in this way lie makes
himself the embodinient of the managemrent, of the association.

Fol. 43.-If the superintendent did not go into these charges in tho examination
which. be made, for wliat purpose, we ask, did he make the examnination? If the charges
were false, why did he not say 50 l If they were true, why did he flot say so, and
place facts before the Attorney General andf urge him to take action?

If the Insurance Department does not exist for the protection of policy-holders,
what is the use of annually expending hundreds of thousands of dollars for its
maintenance?

Fol. 45.-If an officiai examination was made and questionable transactions and
the dishonesty of the management was concealed, the department, instead of pro-
tecting-the policy-holders, is iending its influence for the encouragement of sucli dis-
honoFt i-i iitgoiielit, and iii thia way placcm the coiipaniy 01 abbo(jiatioii twu iiîajiaged
in a much worse condition tlian was the poor man who, on his way from Jerusalem
to Jeriohio, tell aiiiong thie\ os, becatise iinstead of, like the good Samaritan, caring for
tlie wounded man, it practically protects tliose by wbom be was despoiled. This, in
the case of the Mutual IReserve, seems to lie literally true, the Levite and the IPriest-
tlie superintendent and the Attorney. General have botb passed by on the other side.
and tbe Vice-IPresident, Wells, bas been put to the expense of defending a suit for
libel, INr. Burnham having taken this means of making it appear that the charges
are false.

We believe that every one of the allegations made in the charges with the In-
surance IDepartment at the request of the superintendent should have been invcstigated.
and a statement of the facts given to the members of the association.

Fol. 46.-lt mnust be admitted that President Burnham and those associated
with him in the management, in taking advantage of every means possible to delay
the trial of the so-called libel suit against Vice-President Wells, do îiot act like men
wlio court investigation. Despite every effort wliich IMr. Wells and bis counisel, ex-'
Governor Blaek, bave been able to make, it bas been found impossible to bring tii.
case hefore the courts.

Fol. 47.-If policy-holders combine as tbey sbould. do, not only to use their in-
fluence, but aIso te furniali the means necessary to remove the present management,
the association can yet lie saved; otberwise they are sure to lose ail that tbey bave paid,
as, in my opinion, failure is inevitable mnder -he present management. It is our
intention in tlie next issue to expose the disbonest tactics adopted hy the Mutual
Reserve to force the ftfteen-year poliey-boiders either to give ULp their insurance ai-
together or to acoept the new poiicy; suffice it to say that a policy-holder insiiring on
the fifteen-year plan in 1889, age 35 at entry, bas contributed more every year to
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the mortuary fund of the association than a person insured at the sanie age and for
tbe saine amount on the so-called five-year level premaium plan, and yet tbe person
insured on the fifteen-year plan bas bad bis premium increased three different times,
and is now paying tbe amount indicated by tbe table of rates at age, attained, iiisteadJ
of age at entry.

Fol. 49.-A person insured in 1889, on tbe fifteen-year plan, for $1,000, aged 35,
conimenced by paying $11.93 eacb year to tbe mortuary fnnd, and is now called upon
to pay $14.94, being an increase of $3.01 being tbe amount indicated in tbe table of
rates at age attained. A person insured at age 35 on the frve-year plan only con-
tributes $11.82 to the mortuary fund on each $1,000 insurance, L.e., ten cents per
$1,000 less tban a fifteen-year policy-bolder at the same year the first year, and yet
tbe actuary of tbe iMutual iReserve, Mr. George ID. Eldridge, under the beading, ' Five
Year Combination Option Plan,' page 86 of the 'Agents' Manual,' makes tbe follow-
ing statement:

Fol. 50-' Tbis plan is offered to mneet the needs of those who desire to purchase
insurance at a rate, payable from tbe start, pra'ctica1ly ample to provide for tbe in-
creasing cost due bo increasing age by accumulation, tbus rendering payments uniformn
throughout the life of the policy. * * * * The central or principal point is, however,
the sufficiency of the rates to secure tbe payment of every dlaim tbroughout life.
Questions of dividends incidentai. in cbaracter may be regulated to tbe resuits of ex-
perience, provided only the policy-bolder is satisfled of the ample provision made for
deatb dlaim. payment, tbat being the central object of a life insurance policy.'

Fol. 51.-Following this is a series of figures, it being assumed tbat a company
starts witb $10,000,000 of insurance in force at the rate cbarged for the 'Five-Year
Combination Option Policy,' and that no new business be written, tbe wbole $10,000,-
000 being considered by itself . At the end of t1he first ten years Mr. Eldridge inakes
out~ that there would be a balance to the credit of tbe company of $490,304; that at
the end of tbe second ten yeoers there wonld be a balance of $8 50,413; that at the end
(if the là iud ler yeu)s there would be a balanice of $955,89Y; tliat ut the end. of theà
fourth tcrni of ,ten years there would be a balancei of $8115,191; and he conuludes the
demonstration as follows:

Fol. 52.-'Thus the association bas in band resources sufficient; b meet every
dollar of outstanding insurance as it shall mature, no furtber lapse or discontinuance,
otherwise than by deatb, being taken into tbe calculation.'

Fol. 53.-Be it remembered that these calculations were made by iMr. Eldridge,
Actuary of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, after tbe reapportionmient of
experience of its wbole history, andl thierefore bie surely was in a position to know the
rates had been made and when bie bad before him, or should bave bad, the mortality
amount likely to be required for the payment of every deatb dlaim. in full.

Fol. 54.-If tbis is true, bow Qan the management justify its action in increasing
tbe rate on the fifteen-year policy-bolders and forcing them to pay nîl thta way from
twenty-five per cent to fifty per cent more than the amount called for by tbe experience
table of mortality?-

We shahl deal witb tbis subject more at length in a future issue.
III. That tbe prosperity, usefulness, permanency and progress of tbe plaintiff,

are dependent net only on the bistory and skill of the management,* but also in the
confidence of the members and the public therein, and in the officers who conduct tbe
sanie; tbat tbe money bo pay death dlaims are voluntarily paid by tbe members wben
called for in assessments; and tbe faith and credit due to said plaintiff in its said
business, and tbe safety, stability and character of the said plaintiff, are and were
at all times in tbe complaint mentioned known by the public and ail said personst
to be dependent upon tbe bonesty and skill in the conduct of tbe said business and
in the management tbereof.

Fol. 56.-IV. That the said article, matter and words aforesaid, in so far as tbey
state or insinuate tbat the officers of tbis corporation bave been or were guilty of any
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crime, oifence or improper conduct in carrying on the plaintiff's business, were and
are false, malicious and defamatory.

Fol. 57.-V. That the said article, matter and words aforesaid, in so far as tbey
state or insiniiate that the plaintif -is. or is about tri become insolvent, bankrupt, or
that it is unable to meet its just dues and obligations, or that the rights of its share-
holders, members or creditors are about to bc imperilled, were and are false, rnalicious
and defarnatory.

Fol. 58.-VIl. That by reason of the printing and publishing of the said article,
matters and words aforesaîd, plaintiff bas become injured in its business, its credit in
the commercial. and insurance world bas been impaired, and its good name and
reputation bas been Ibrought into public scandai, infarny and disgrace to its damage
in the sum of fifty tbousand dollars.

Wherefore the plaintiff dernands judgment against the defendant for tbe sum
of flfty thousand dollars ($50,000), together with the cost of this action.

JAMES, SOIIELL & ELKUTS,

Attorreys for Plaintiff.
Office and post office address,

56 PINE STRIEET, BOROUOH 0F MANHATTAN,
NEw' YORK CrIY.

By thre lon. Mfr. Lougheed
Q. You state that you received $5,000 for the purpose of allowing this case to drop :

is that it ?-A. That is as I understand it.
Q. Surely the plaintiffs could have discontinued a civil action against you if

they chose ?-A. I wvou1d have liad thcrn arrested the ncxt morning if thiey did.
Q. For discontinuing ?-A. Yes.
Q.- Arresting a plaintiff for discontinuing a civil action ?- A. Yes, certainly.
Q. It is an extraordinary systern of legal jurisprudence if that is so. This was

a civil antiorb T iinderstond ?-A, Ypqý
Q. Arn I to understand that you still labour under the impression tbat you

received $5,OO0 for perrnitting the plaintiMfs in this case to discontinue a civil action
against you ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mfr. MS'weeney:
Q. You got the money, anyhow ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mfr. Lougheed :
Q. That is your understanding ?-A. Yes.Q. So that when it cornes to cross-exarnination or an explanation afterwards there

will be no misundcrstanding ?-A. Oh, no.

By the Hon. 3fr. Béique:
Q. Do you dlaim that under the law of New York that a party who takes a civil

action for damages cannot discontinue the action by paying the costs ?-A. llad they
discontinued the action they would not have paid the costs. The only way they could
have discontinued the action was by abandoning.

Q. Do you dlaim that under the law of New York it is flot open to the party
suing for damages to, abandon the suit and discontinue-do you dlaim it is not open
to do that ?-A. I do flot dlaim that.

Q. It is flot open to every suitor, the plaintiff in the suit, to abandon it, and then
the result is that the defendant recovers costs against hirn ?-A. Yes.

Q. And then it left your right to sue for false arrest open-your right in darnages
against thern for false arrest-it left that right open to you ?-A. Yes.
PA17TERSON



THE MUTUÂL RE>SERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION

APPENDIX No. 1

Q. And therefore it would flot have affected your own suit against them. You had
taken a suit for false arrest ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you would bave the right to continue that suit ?-A. I would.
Q. And the conditions of things heing suh through your lawyers and theirs

they arrived at a settiement whereby both suits were to be abandoned, and they were-
to pay you $5,O00 ?-A. Yes.

By the Lion. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. Then there was a separate action or proceeding taken against you on the

criminal side of the court ?-A. There was.
Q. But flot this action ?-A. Not this action.
Q. We are dealing with the civil proceeding ?-A. Yes, that is riglit.
Q. And there was a crimînal proceeding taken under wbich you were arrested

-A. Yes.
Q. It would be in satisfaction of that you took the money ?-A. 1 was arrested

under the civil suit and put undezr bail to the extent of about $10,000, and about a year
afterwards I was arrested, I was charged with criminal libel and arrested, and I
demanded a bearing before the magistrate and was discbarged, and immediately on
being discharged I entered suit against tbe association and iPresident Burnham for
$50,000.

By the Chairman:
Q. Tell the Committee what was tbe nature of your libel against the company

What did tbey arrest you for ?-A. Tbe criminal libel.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. What was the date of the civil suit ?-A. January, 1900.
Q. At wbat date were you arresti-d on the crimirial cbarge for libel ?-A. Some-

time in the year 1MO1
Q. Beginning of 1901 ?A. Yeq, abouit the. heginning of 1901.
Q. Were you arrested on tbe criminal cbarge before the settiement took place l

A. I was.
Q. So the settiement was tbe last thing ?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. BÙIQUE.-I objeet to this bill of complaint going on the record, and I
move that this document be simply marked for identification.

The motion was declared 'lost.

Hon. MVr. B•aQuE.-I ask that the namnes be taken-tbe yeas and nays.

Tbe CHAIRMAN.-There is nothing before the diair, and I tbink the names cannot
110w be taken.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Gounsel for the Uommittee:
Q. I would ask you to read section 20 of the Dominion Insurance Act, chapter 20

of the iRevised Statutes of Canada ?-A. Section 20 reads as follows:
'Every company incorporated or legally formed elsewhere thon in Canada, and

at present licensed or bereafter licensed under this Act, and every company which is
subjeet to the provisions of this Act, shaHl make annual statements of its conditions
and affairs at the balancing day of the company in each year, and the form and mariner
of making such statements shall as to the Canadian business of sucb company be the
same as far as applicable and as is required of Canadian companies, and as to its
general business shall be in sucli form as sucb company is required by law to furnisb
to the government of the country in which its bead office is situated.'
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Q.Have you made a comparison between the sworn s9tatements furnished by the
Mutual Ileserve Fund Life Association to the Department of New York and also Can-
ada ?-A. I have.

Q. Would you look at those papers now produ.ed to you, and siiy if those are cor-
rect extracts from the reports ?-A. They are.

Q. These are from the report submitted to the Insurance Department of the State
of New York of thig company, and also to the Insurance Department of the Dominion
of Canada ?-A. Yes.

iMr. CosTEa.-I also, caTi the attention of the Commnittee -to the fact that Mr. Eld-
ridge, who swears to thÎs statement, says on June 27, No. 4, page 18, as follows:

'We were required, as far as our general business is concerned, to file with the
Canadian Insurance Department a copy of the report made to the New York depart-
ment.'

These reports, Exhibit 37, read as follows:

MIJTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

SwoRN ANNUAL STATEMENTS TO INSURANCE DEPARTMENTS.

STATE 0F NEw YORK. .DomiNioN 0P CANADA.
Incarne.

Emergency fund (page 1, line 4)...8 9,567 47 Emerzency fund (page 1, line 4) .. 631,032 22
Total income........................ 5,192,030 21 Total income..... .......... ...... 5,813,494 98

Difference .................. $ 621,464 75

.Ledfger A ssets.
Total net ledger assets (page 2, Total net ledger assets (page 2,

line 8) ................... 8 2,672,873 65 (1899) line 8).. .. «................ .... $ 3,294,338 40

J )dference. ..... ............ $ 621,464 75
Not in New York report (1899). Interest bearing prerniurn notes se-

cnred by liens or policies........ $ 621,464 75

Gross .Assels.
<.lross assets ....... .... .... 3,096,709 56 (1899) Gross assets.. ý.......... .... 3,71'8,174 31

Difference.................$8 621,464 75

A4dmitted A4ssets.

~Total ad mitted assets ......... $ 2,729,170 93 (1899) Total admitted assets ...... ........ $ 3,350,635 68

Differenee.-................$ 621,464 75
There is nothing in the sworn report to the Insurance Departinent of Canada, under 'Income ' to

show that any part of it was made up of 'Prernium notes on liens.'

Balance Shect. December 31, 1899.

Balance sheet, Dec. 31, 1899. 8... 2,672,873 65 Balance sheet, Dec. 31, 1899 .... $ 3,294,338 40

.Tncosne.

Emergency fund (page 1, line 4).$ . . ......... (1900) Etnergency fund (page 1, line 4) .. 9,286,378 28
Total incone . ....... ..... 8,006,843 45 (1900) Total incoine.. . ................... 11,623,413 85

Difference..............._8 6,616,570 40

Disbur&see'ets.

Paid for surrender policies (page Paid for surrender policies (page 1,
1, line 3)......... ......... $ 34,870 43 (1900) line 3) ........ .... .......... $ 1,279,525 87

Difference. .... ......... $ 1,244,655 87

Total peid Members.

Total paid members ... 8 3,451,908 33 (1900) Total paid ojenbers ... «..........8 4.969,563 77
Balance ............ 2,929,595 61 (1900) Balance ......... .......... ...... 11,595,848 97

Difference ........ .......... 8,666,253 36
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Adraitted .. ssets.
Total aditted assets .... 8 2,910,095 35 (1900) Total admitted asssets ...... ..... 811,701,682 30

Difference ........... 8,791,586 95
Oross Asmets.

Grossi assets........ .. ... $ 3,379,671 43 (1900) Groiei as-setsi...............$ 12,171,258 38

Difference ..... .... .... 8,791,586 95

CaIl No. 108, February 1..
109, April 2. ..
110, June 1. .
111, Augnst 1...
112, October 1...
113, December 1..

Collected on assesxneot pre-
ViOU8 to No. 108 .... ......

Special mortuary account ex-
chan)ged and re-insured poli.
cles ................ ...

Total...............

List of Àsseurnents made, 1900, page 5.
$ 417,091 85 (1900) Cali No. 108, February 1 ........

398,551 18 ,, 109, April 2 ..... .......
410,964 98 110, Joue 1 ....... .....
400,459 20 , 111, Augiist 1 .... ......
365,674 81 112. October 1 ..........
337,177 48 , 113, Deceinher 1......

Collected on assessinents previous to
37,992 63 No. 108 ......... ............

Special mortuary account exchanged
and re-insured policies ..........

Total.................
Difference .............3,620.288 72

MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

STATE OF NEW YORIK. DomrNioN 0F CANADA.

Bonds .Redeemed and Interest paid, Policies Surrendered.
Bonds redeemed and interest Bonds redeemed aud interest pad

paid policies surrendered. .... $ 129,134 88 (1900> pobejies surrendered including liens
or premini notes voided by lapse. $ 1,373,790 32

Difference..... ......... 1,244,655 44

Transferred to Death .bund.
Transferred to death fond.$ ý 3,0%0,735 53 (1900) Transferred to death fond..... 2,832,409 29

Difference............ 258,326 24

Trensferred to Reserve Fund.
Transferrcd to reserve fond, 8 .3 . < Transferred to reserve fond .... 8 8,368,755 60

There is nothing in the sworn report to the Insurance Departmnent of Canada, under 'Income' to show
that any part of it w'as made uip of 'Premnium notes on liens.'

SwoRN ANNUAL STATEMENT, 1901.

Balance, Dec. 31, 1900 (page 1).

Total income ... ......

Total paid by inembers...

Total incone ...... ........

Paid menibers for dividends
and surrendered policies and
other benefits ............

Total paid to memnbers ...

Balance sheet, Deceinher 31, 1900.,
$2,849.875 77 Balance, D)e. 31, 1900 (page 1)... $11,51 4,932 81

Difference ................ 8,665,057 04
Iecome.

$6,700,222 38 (1901) Total income .................. 87,566,884 60

866,662 22

6,248,481 16 (1901) Total paid by members............. 7,240,442 93

Difforence ............ 991,961 77

6,700,222 38 (1901) Total rncone ................ .... 7,566,884 60

Difference.................. 866,662 22
Disbssrseraents.

Paid metubers for dividends and
surrendered policies and other

$ 151,265 69 (1901) benefits............... ... .... $2,406,956 68

Difference ................ 2,255,690 99

4,941J174 62 (1901> Total paid to menibers ......... ... 7,136,249 32

Difference............... 3,255,075 70
PATTBRON

417,091 58
398,751 58
411,345 98
400,840 20
366,085 81
377,558 48

35,144 016

10,608,555 56

12,975,373 52
9,355,084 80
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MUTIJAL RESERVE FIJND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

SwoRx ANNUAL STATEMENT, 1901 Goiitinued.

STATE OF NEW YORK.

Commissions paid or allowed for
collecting assessînents ..

Salaries and allowances of mian-
agers and agents not paid by
commnissions. . ý............

Medical examiners' fees...

Taxes on premiuîns ...... ....

Insorance Departînent, fees and

51,426 43 (1901)

69,823 49 (1901)

DOMINION OF CANADA.

Commissions paid or allowed for col-
lecting assessments. .. ý......................

Salaries and allowances of managers
and agents -not paid by comnmis-
sions.ý... ............... _........158,035 4

Difference. .................. 89,211 9

16,368 83 (1901> Medical examiners' fees ........ ...

21,623 37 (1901)

451 62.

U4999 10 (1901)

lIent for Association's ose of
own building .............. S3 50,400 00 (1901>

Agency expenses ...........
Expense4 of investigatilg and

adjusting death elaimis and
other benefits .............

36,785 48 (1901)

162,375 50 (1901)

Difference .... >............

Taxes on prerniums .... ..........

Insurance Department, fees and

o
1

23,620 30

7,251 47

21,171 75

licenses ................ .......... 25,450 72

451 62
lIent for Association's use of own
building ................... .... $ 30,000 00

Difference,.......... ...... 400 00
Agency expenses..............
Expensce of investigating n dut

ing death claims8 and other bencflts 155,124 03

Diffetence ..... ... ....... $ 7,251 47

Admit ted A ssets.

Total adrnitted assets ......... $ 2,652,759 88 (1901) Total admitted assets.... ........... $11,133,911 60

Difference' ........... ...S 8,481,151 74

Gross Assets.

Gross assets ...... ........... 2,6b4,535 93 (1901) Gross a .sets ........... .......... $ 11,292,046 06

thifference ......... ..... $ 8,637,510 13

Mortua mi Liablitics.

IJnmatured mortuary liabilities S700,427 63 (1901) IJnmatured mortuary lia'oilities . 1,167,821 46

Difference ............ 467,393 83

Building Sinking Fund.

Building sinking tond ........ 52,260 09 (1901) Building sinking fond .........

There is nothing in the sworn report to the Insurance Department of Canada, under 'Ir.conmo' to

show that any part of it svas moade op of 'Prernion notes on liens.'

Schedule 11, Part 2-Death dlaims reported and under proccess of adj ustment De"ember 31, 1901; andi
Schedule 12 Clainms compromiseti, scaled down or droppeti during the calendar year do not appear in the
report to the Canadian Insurance Departmenr; for tise year ending JYecesober 31, 1901.

MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

ANNUAL STATEMENTS ANiO BLUE BOOK.

Year ending December 31, 1899.

SWORN STATEMENT, NEW YORK. BLUE BOOK, CANADA.

Total paid by members .......... 4,564,311 17 Total paid by memnhers..........$ 5,185,775 92

Difference,.............. 621,464 75

Total income ...... ... .............. 5,192,030 21 Total incomne. ..... ...... .......... 5,813,494 90

Dishorsements-The same in both statements. Dfeec.,....... $ 61447

'PATTERSON
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MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

ANNUAL STATEMENT AND BIuE BooK.

Year ending December 31, 1901.

SWORN STATEMENT, NEW YORK. BUE BOOK, CANADA.

Admitted Assets.

Admnitted assets.... .......... 8 2,729,170 93 Admitted assets....... ........... 3,350,635 68

Difference...............8 621,464 75

Year ending December 31, 1900.

SwORN STATEMENT, NEW

Total paid by members.......

Total income.. .

Cash paid for dividends and surre
der policies. .......... .... ...

Total paid to mebiners...... .....

Adimitted assets .... .... ..

Total paid by neimhers

Totalincome.............

Cash paid for dividends and s
policies..... .. . .........

Total paid to members.

Total disbursenents.

Adinitted assets..........

YORK. BLUE BOOK, CANADA.
Income.

.. 4,836,897 88 Total paid by members..... ...... .$14,126,341 93

Difference....., ........... . 9,289,444 05

5,333,969 80 Total incone . .................... 14,623,413 85

Difference............... 9,289,444 05

Disbursements.
n Cash paid for dividends and surren-

. 148,634 01 der policies..... .......... 1,393,289 45

Difference............ ... $ 1,244,655 44

3,451,908 33 Total paid to menbers...... ....... 4,696,563 77

Difference............. 8 1,244,655 44

.... . .8
Admnitted Assets.

2,910,095 35 Admitted assets............... .. 811,701,682 30

Ineonio,

8 6,248,481 16 Total paid by member. .. ..... ... 7,240,442 93

Difference.. ............. 991,961 77

6,700,222 38 Total income.......... .... ...... 7,566,884 60

Difference.. .... ......... 8 866,662 22

Disbursemcnts.

urrender Cash paid for dividends and surren-
..... ... 151,205 69 der policies ................ .... 2,406,956 68

Difference...............$ 2,255,680 99

. 4,941,174 62 Total paid to menibers.. ........ 7,196 249 S2

Difference.. ...... . ..... $ 2,255,074 70

.... .... 6,850,079 27 Total disbursenients............ .. 8,970,625 25

Difference.......... ...... 2,120,545 98

Adnittec Assets.

. ...... . 2,652,759 88 Adnitted assets................... 11,143,911 60

Difference.. . ............. $ 8,481,151 52

Q. These documents (Exhibit 37) were taken by you from the sworn reports sub-
mitted to the department ?-A. From the sworn reports submitted to the Insurance
Department of the State of New York and to the Dominion of Canada.

Q. By whom were those reports sworn to ?-A. By George D. Eldridge and Secre-
tary Chas. W. Camp. I am not positive that they were all sworn to that way.

PATTERSON
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Q. iRead the heading of one of the Canadian statements. They are the same, are
they flot ?-A. They are exactly the same.

Q. iRead the heading of the Canadian statement ?-A. 'Annual statement for the
year ending December 31, 1900, Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, of the con-
dition of the affairs of the iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association, organizcd under
the laws of the State of lNew York, made to the Superintendent of Insurance in the
State of New York pursuant to the laws thereof; presîdent, Frederick A. Burnham.
vice-president, George D. Eldridge; secretary, Chas, W. Camp,' and so on.

Q. That is the heading of the Canadian ones ?-A. Yes.
Q. And they purport to be the same ?-A. Yes.
Q. They swear it was the same as the New York one ?-A. Yes, the blanks are

the same.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. Can you account in any way for the discTepancy ?-A. I can. In the reports
to the New York Insurance Department premium notes and liens are entirely elîin-
ated. In the report to the Canadian department they are printed.

By Mr. CJoster, K.C., (Jounsel for the Committee:

Q. As what ?-A. As income, as dishursements, and as assets.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Would that account for the difference ?-A. That accounts in part for the dif-
ference-not altoge±her that I can see.

Q. Anything left-anything of a consequence ?-A. No, that practically accounts
for the difference.0

By M1r. CJoster, K.U., (Jounsel for the Committee:

Q. Those statements show the difference there. They speak for themselves. Any-
body can look at them for themselves and see for themselves ini a second what the dif-
ferences are.

Q. Those statements that wcrc made to the Canadian Insurance iDepartment
would be misleading ?-A. They were grossly misleading.

By the Hon. M21r. Béique :
Q. I understand-and I want you to correct me-that the law of the State of

New York is different from Canadian law; that under one systema of law an item is
to be taken into consideration, whereas under the other system it is flot allowed to
be taken into consideration ; then how are they to treat the matter ?-A. Under the
law of the State of New York, as interpreted by the Insurance Department, liens
could not be included either as an income or a dishursement or as an asset, and under
the Canadian law, as I understand it, they could not be included either as an income
or as an asset because they could not legally be a lien against the policy in Canada,
according to law.

Q. According to your understanding, the laws are to the same effect in that
respect ?-A. IPractically the same effect.

Q. And they misinterpreted the Canadian law ?-A. That is as I understand it,
and by so doing-

Q. Have you discussed the matter with thé Superintendent of Insurance here ?
-A. I have nlot.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. The statement, on its face, sh 'ows where the difference obtains ?-A. It does.
Q. Why do you conclude it is misleading if upon its face it shows where the

difference is ?-A. The best evidence that I can produce that it is misleading is the
PATTERSON
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fact that in this printed document, which goes to ail the life insurance agents and
insurance offices throughout the Dominion of Canada, there is in one year, for example,
$92,240,000 reported here as having been paid in cash dividends and surrender values
for policies.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweenep:
Q. What year is that ?-A. 1901, 1 think it is. In these papers it is reported

here as cash paid for dividends; it is here in the blue-book, in surrender values.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson:
Q. iPaid in Canada?-A. iPaid by the company ail over, whereas in the New York

report the total amount paid ini dividends and cash surrender values was only $151,-
000, being a difference of $2,000,000 some odd reported in this book which the Super-
intendent of Insurance and the Insurance Iiepartment here, taking it from the bworn
report, were mislcd, and uliderstood that it was cash, whereas it was merely premium
notes.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. I thought you said the face of the statement showed a certain amount wvas

carried to the credit of the company for premium notes ?-A. There is no item in
any of the reports to show that any part of the income is. for premium notes or liens.Q. In what way do you explain the statement that the sworn statement shows
on its face that a certain amount did appear for premium notes ?-A. It simply stated
the same in the New York report, a certain amount for premiumas and in the dis-
bursements there is cash surrender values-I arn speaking from iieinory-and pre-
mium notes voided by lapses; that appears in the Canaiian report, in the report to the
Dominion of Canada and does not appcar in the New York report.

By the Hon. Mr. Béiqje;
Q. But is there flot annexed to the Canadian report tbis memorandlim whîohi

would explain in the following wvords! ' Tht New York Insurance Department finds no
authorization in law for including this item among liabilities, and therefore excludes
it, and consequenitly exeludes also the item of liens made by the association against
net values from. both assets and income'?-A. That would not be-

Q. Answer the question as to whether this item is not aiaexed to the Canadian
report which I have rcad ?-A. iNot to aIl of them, as far as I know. It is annexed
to that one.

Q. Would not this notice caîl the attention of the Supprintendcnt of Insurance
to the difference betwccn the two reports ?-A. It should have.

Q. It is intended to eall his attention to it, is it flot ?--A. No, that appears in
the New York printed form of report.

Q. But whether it is printed or nlot, if it is there it would cal] the attention, and
it would hetter eall the attention if it is not printed, if it is in manuscript or a#tached
in type in that way, would it not call the attention of the Superintendent of Insur-
ance ?-A. It should.

Q. Did this form part of the hlue-book ?-A. That is in the bine-book also. I
believe-printed in the blue-book.

Q. So that the blue-hook would cail attention to the difference hetween the two
reports ?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. LANDRY moved that the Committee adjourn until to-morrow.

The Committee divided on the amendment, wliich was carried.

PAT'rERSONT
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WEDNESDAY, July 13, 1904.
The Committee met at 10 a.m.

Examination of iMr. J. T. PATTERSON contlnued.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. With reference te liens on policies, I want to cail your attention to the evi-

dence of Mr. Eldridge, on page 61 of part 2 of the printed report, in whîch the follow,

ing questions and answers appear

'By Mr. Coster, Counsel

Q. 'You consider these liens are funds belonging to the company -A. Yes.

Q. 'Ail you have to do to increase your assets is te put a littie lien on a policy

whichi has no cash value ?-A. No.
Q. 'Wh4t do you mean ? You increase your assets by two millions by putting

liens on policies which have no cash value ?-A. These policies have a cash value of

$2,500,000.
Q. 'You wou]d pay that for them?-A. We would pay $92.500,000 to retire those

policies.
Q. 'Cash ?-A. Cash, when the man had paid his obligation the note of a policy

holder procured by a reserve on his policy is admitted as an asset in every country in

the world, and it is an asset of the company.'
Q. Now, what have you got to say to that ?-A. If Mr. Eldridge or the Mutual

Reserva Fund Life Insurance Company paid $500,000 for these liens, as that would

imply, that would amount to more than haîf of his entire available assets, and it

would stili leave $38,000,000 of insurance in force and unpaid losses to the extent of

nearly $1,000,000, and consequcntly the company xvould be practically insolvent.

Q. You say there are unpaid losses of nearly one million dollars now ?-A.

There are.
Q. Where do you get that information ?-A. From the sworn statement of the

Insurance Department of the State of New York for the year endiug December 31,
1903.

Q. When you, speak of $500,000, what Mr. Eldridge said was, that hie would give

$2,500,000-how would hie pa7r the other two millions ?-A. By simply writing off the

liens.
Q. Which had been plac-ed on the policies ?-A. Which had been placed on the

policies.
Q. The assets, then, are increased by putting a lien on a policy--does that increase

the assets of the company by the amount of the lien ?-A. It does on paper.

QIn your opinion what is the effeet of that ? Does that add te the finances

of the company in any way-a company like the Mutual iReserve ?-A. It does not

add a single farthing te the assets.
Q. Mr. Eldridge said hie took notes frein these people-do you know what these

notes were ?-A. These notes are simply consents on the part of the insured to the

reduction of their insurance, te, the amoi.mt of the lien, whatever it is.

Q. If I understand, it is this way: the only effect of putting a lien on the policy

is, that in the event of the man's death hîs representatives do net get the face of the

policy ?-A. That is the effect.
Q.And the only effeet 2-A. No, I could net se testify.

Q.What is it ? Hie is charged the interest on it ?-A. There is the benefit of

whatever interest the insured would pay on the lien.
PATTERSffl
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Q. 0f course the company would get that ?-A. The company would he beneflted
by that.

Q.As far as that is concerned, the putting- on of the $,,500,000 liens means thatsimply li the event of death of the policy-holder lis representative would get that
mucli less money proportionately ?-A. That is it exactiy.

Q. They were referred to as notes given for these liens. Ceuld these notes berealized on ? Have tliey any cash value ?--.A. They could flot be realized on during
the lifetime of the insured.

Q. And then only by reducing the ameunt coming te his personal representative ?-A. Then only by reducing the amount of insurance to be paid to his widow.Q. And therefore you say, wlien they speak of this $2,500,000 worth of assets,
that they are net assets at aIl ?-A. Tliey are flot assets, in my opinion, at ail.ï should like to add to that, that the Insurance iDepartment of the State of New York,in flot admitting these liens whidli are referred to in this testimony: as an asset, is
,in autliority for the fact that they are not an asset. I should like to make that per-fectly clear. I have been asked if these two million dollar liens are an asset. As
I understand it, these are the liens that came from the North-western Life Insur-'
ance Company, and liens on the IMutual Reserve policies prior to that time. Wehave it in the testimony of iMr. George D. Eldridge that the New York Insurance
Department, wlien examining tlie Mutual ifeserve for the purpose, of reincorporation,
struck out ail these liens, and simply considered insurance that they recognized as
net insurance, with these liens ail deducted; therefore, it proves tliey are net assets.

By the lion. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. They reduce the liability of the company, to the insured, te the extent of

the liens, do they net ?-A. Yes; it was a reduction of the ameunt.-Q. A reductien of liabilities '?-A. Yes, a reduction of liabilities. It is an asseqs-
ment, in other words, on a polic.y-hiohfrr alter lie is dead.

By, the lion. Mr. Béique :
Q. The company is under liability towards .the insured ?-A. Tliey are net; hable

to the insured if-
Q. But in every policy the company is liable. The insured liaving paid lis pre-

mium, there is a certain liability on the part of the cempany towards the insured ?-A. Iiability te the extent of the ameunt written in the policy, less tlie lien.Q. Previous te the lien the company is liabe-it formns part ef the liabilities of
the cempany ?-A. (ertainly.

Q. Now, suppose that tho liahility is $1,000. If, for ene reasen or another, $500is advaneed against that liability of $1,000-it is done by insurance cempanies, is it
net ?-A. Net donc unless the policy-liolder has paid the $500 te the cempany.Q. Is it net a common thing for insurance cempanies te make advances te policy-
hiolders on the guarantee of the policies ?-A. It is.

Q. And it bepomes a lien on the policy, dees it net ?-A. It dees.Q. If, on one side of tlie account the company is charged for thé value of thatpolicy, say $1,000, it would lie proper book-keeping to credit the company to the amount
of $500, if $500 lias been advanced against that liabulity of $1,000 ?-A. It would, if
th?3 money had been advanoed.

Q. Now, if instead of advancing the meney, the party lias net paid lis assess-ments, and credit lias been given him by the company fer the amount of lis assess-
ments, and lie lias given a note bearing interest, it would represent tlie advance asif lie lad paid lis assessment and tlie company liad loaned hlm the amount-it would
be thie sanie thing, would it net h-A. It would; but the point is, tlie policy-lolder paidail lie was asked. for, and did not owe tlie company any money wliatever for assess-
ments.
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Q. And the company was not under any liability to those policy-holders ?-A. It

is liable for the whole amount of that policy :when the manl dies, previous to the lien.

Q. In the rcturns to the governrnent, the company is charged for the full arnount

of the policy ?-A. The contingent liability.

Q. And as against that, the company is credited for the arnount of the lien,

against that liability i--A. Yes.

Q. And you say that is a bad practice î-A. I do.

Q. Is it allowed under the Canadian systern of insurance 2 A. No, it is not

allowed under the law regulating assessrnent life insurance companies, or any other

Iaw 1 know of.
Q. Is it allowed in Canada ?--A. I think according to the terms of the law it is

allowed now. I amn not familiar with that.

Q. You do not know 'whether it is the practîce of otlwr insurance companies to

inake advances of that kind ?-A. I know tbat the law expressly states that the com-

pany shall pay the full arnount stated in the policy, without deduction for any cause

or purpose whatever, and that doca not allow the admission of liens.

Q. Is it the practice in Canada to allow liens of that kind-is that your assertion

that it is not allowed iè-A. 1 would wish to look at the law.

Q. I amn not asking aq to the law. I arn asking whether it is the practice in

Canada to allow liens of that kind ?-A. There is a differonce bet.ween the liens that

we are now discussing and what are known as loans, or liens, by regular if e insurance

comparuies.
Q. I shahl put xny question in another way Do you dlaim that it has not been

the practice of the Superintendent of Insurance in Canada to allow reports such as

have been made by the Mutual iReserve, showing as assets the amount of those liens?

-A. Not by companies doing business'on the systern the Mutual iReserve Life Asso-

ciation is doing business. It has not bcen the practice.

Q. And it has been the practice for the Mutual Life ?-A. It has.

Q. And iL has boari H11uwrd by tbe Sulperintendent of Insurance in Canada if-

A. The iMutual Life does net put licns on its poliu4es such as Ilie liens -wo iure u0w

discussing. They advance to the policy-holder, and take the poliey as a collate-ral

security.
Q. I arn speaking of the Mutual iReserve. They have been, in the returns to

the departinent in Canada, mentioning these as part of their assets, have they net ~
A. In the years 1899, 1900 and 12~01, yes.

Q. Not befere ?-A. iNot prior to that.

Q. And the Superintendent of Inisurance has allowed them to do that in Canada?

-A. Apparently.
Q. Do you know, as a matter of fact, whether other insurance companies have

done the sarne thing in Canada, exarnined the reports of other insurance companies

to ascertain whether they have fehlowed the sarne practice ?A. Yes, you will find

in the reports of the Superintendent of Insurance, loans or liens on policies, but they

are not rnerely consents on the part of the assured to reduce the insurance, as the

Mutual Reserve liens are.

Q. Do I understand you to say that in no other case the same practice was

followed as was followed in the case of this cornpany ?A. INo other case that I knowv

of.
Q. Have you exarnined the returns te ascertain whether the practice was followed

by other companies ?-A. You could net determine that solely frorn the returns.

By the Chairman :

Q. You want te establish ai difference between liens made on pohicies by eld linp

cempanies and mutual assessment companies; will you please explain the difterence ?

-A. In regular life insurance cenipanies, after a policy bas been in force for a cer-
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tain number of years, in most cases three years, it bas value in the reserve whicli
stands to its credit, and the money has been paid into the treasury of the company
to provide that reserve. Iu the event of the insured wishing to obtain a Joan from
the cornpany, the cornpany will advance to the insured an arnount somewhere les
than the reserve, and take lis policy as a collateral security, or his note, and in the
officiai reports that will stand as loans or notes on policies.

Q. Which have a value ?-A. Wbich have a value, the cornpany baving received
the inoney, and siinply loaning it and getting interest on it. Lt is a valuable asset,
perfectly secure, one of the most sedure assets the eompany can bave, and the least
expensive to the company. On the other hand, the liens of the policies of the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association have no value, in that the company neyer received any
moneyq to constitute a fund out of which they could make a Joan of the amount
represented by the lien of the policy-holder, and therefore it is of no value to the
insured, or rather it is a detrirnent to the insured by the fact that he bas consented.
iii giving that note or consent, to the redbiition of bis insurance in the event of his
death. Tbe cornpany, on the other hand, bas received no money represented by this
lien, and is only benefited in the event. of the death of the insured.

By the lion. M1r. Lougheed :
Q. Will a note be taken as collateral to the lien ?A. No, there is simply an

agreement or consent which is constructcd as a note, by wbich the insured agrees or
consents to this reduction of insurance or lien, and by which lie agrees to pay the rate
of interest named, or to allow it to he added to tbe lien.

Q. Lt becarne a personal obligation on tbe part of the insured ?-A. No, tbere
îs no obligation on tbe part of tbe insured to pay the lien; on the eontrary, the corn-
pany expressly states to the policy-bolder, that if be does net pcy this lien, or as they
caîl it, an assessment, it will bc cbarged to bis policy, and consequently deducted
froma the policy in the event of bis deatb, thereby reducing the insurance to that
anieunt.

Q. There is no personal obligation to pay ?-A. No personal obligation at ail.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney :
Q. Is it usua] for assessment companies to have those liens ?-A. I have only

known of onie assessment company that ever practised that system, if I iniglit say so,
and that was the National Life Association of Hartford, and that is out of existence.

Q. Lt is out of existence ?-A. Yes, some years ago.
Q. And that is tbe only one ?-A. The only one.

Bp the Hon. Mr. à/cMu lien :
Q. When you talk of a lien as an assessment on the policy, how is that con-

stituted '?When tbat lien or assessment is made on the policy which is charged up
to the policy-bolder as a deht due by bim, can that be done without bis consent ?-
A. Not as I understand the law in practice in life insurance, and I miglit add further
that I bave carefully watcbed proceedings in connectien with thesc liens, and in no
case, so far as I know, where a good stifi figbt bas been put up in opposition to those
liens, when the policy became a claim. by death, lias the Mutual Ileserve Fund life
Association gone into court and fought it out. They bave settled the case, and paid,
in most cases. the dlaim in full, without deducting the lien, and 1 arn thorougbly of
the opinion, after most careful investigation, that no court would permit the lien to
ho deducted from the policy where it bad been put on without a written agreement
on the part of the insured.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. Lt would lie by virtue of the action of the company the policy could he kept

alive, if* the premium was not paid ?-A. The premiuma bas nothing to do with the
lien.
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Q. What is'the lien for ?-A. The lien is simply to reduce the liability of the
company by reducing the amount insured.

Q. Suppose it was to the advantage of the insured to have tbe lien ?-A. It was
greatly to his disadvax¶tage.

Q. Then it was put on without bis consent ?A. IMr. Eldridge bas testified bere
to the fact that if a policy-holder did flot absolutely object when be was notifled of
the fact that tbe constitution or by-laws provided for putting on tbis lien, that was
construed as a consent on tbe part of the insured.

By the Hon. Mr. Gibson :

Q. When tbe lien wa.s put on, did the company get the assent of the insured ?-

A. IMr. Eldridge has admitted-
Q. I arn asking you the question, was the lien put on witbout the consent of the

insured ?-A. If I arn not allowed to sbow the 'grounds on wbicb I make the state-
ment, I must say I do not know. Tbat must be tbe answer to that question. No
doubt, many members of tbis Committee know thflt a correspondence took place
between the ion. Mr.-

Q. That is not relevant to the question at aIl. You made tbe statement that
according to tbe by-laws of this company they had a riglit, without letting tbe assured
know, to reduce the amount of bis insurance by putting a lien on it without the con-
sent of the insured ?-A. If the hionourable member will please put bis question a
little differently I could -testify. I cannot testify positively in answer to that question.

Q. You mnade a general statement that it was done in all cases. I .sbonld like
to be coached as to the question I shionld put to bring out tbe answer. We are here
to elicit aIl tbe information we can get, and I ask you simply the question, if tbe
company put a lien upon the individual policy witbout the consent or approval of the
policy-boider ?-A. I bave testified that according to Mr. Eldridge's evidence-

Q. That is flot a reply to the question ?-A. If you would ask me the question.
whether und'er the constitution and by-laws, the company lias a right to put a lien
on the policy witbout the consent of t.lw, asrared, my anîwpr woîdd be, yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Do you distinguish between old line companies and assessment companies
-A. I do.

Q. You say thiat in tbe old line companies the policies bave a cash surrender valuef
-A. They have.

Qý. Tbat is to say, tbe company will pay the assured a certain amount of cash for
his policy while lie is alive-is tliat the fact 1-A. Tbat is the fact, and it is a liability.

Q. In assessment companies, will they give the man any cash surrender value, as
a rule ?-A. Not as a rule.

Q. Under wbat circumstnces would tbey pay a man any cash for the surrender
of bis policy in an assessment company ?-A. Tbey would pay a casb surr4ender value,
simply if they had the money on band to pay it.

Q. TJnder what eîrcumstances would a policy in an assessment company have a
cash surrender value ?-A. It is difficult to answer tbat question witbont going into
details. For. example, the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association issues a fifteen-
year policy, which states that after it bas been in force for flfteen years, tbe policy
lias a cash surrender value for the member's share of tlie amount to its credit, on the
condition that lie gives the company one year's notice in advance.

Q. Tbat is what you caîl an assessment company-the Mutual Reserve ?-A.
Yes, but there are some, companies which have no surrender value. Most assessment
ecompanies do nlot undertake to pay a surrender value.

Q. In the Mutual Reserve, the policies have a surrender value after a certain
time ?-A. A conditional surrender value only.
PA'PTER8ON
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Q. That is te say, if there is a reserve, they would bc entitled to share that on
giving one year's notice-is that right J-A. That is right.

Q. As a matter of fact, what is the amount of the reserve which is 10W 011 hand
to pay these policies, by the report submitted to the department-roughly speaking ?
-A. As 1 understand the condition of the company at the present time, there is noth-
ing to the credit of these pelicies on1 which a cash surrender value can be paid.

Q. When they speak cf liens te the amount of $2,500,000, it is simply a Joan on
wind, as it were-it is only bookkeeping J-A. A Joan on paper-bookkeeping.

Q. And then you say that that cannot in any way be called an asset of the cern-
pa-ny ?-A. It cannet, as I understand it, be an asset.

Q. Would it be &ny more an asset of the company than if yon were to crcdit the
company with $2,000,000 on the one side of the books, and charge them with $2,000,000
on the other side, and say they had $2,000,000 more cash-is net that the practical
resuit ?-A. That is exactly what it is, i11 my opinion.

Q. In the case cf the old uine policies, the company would enly lend a man the
amount Which ha could get if he came and handed in the policy, te get the cash for
surrendering it-a littie less than that, prebably ?-A. I think the company would Joan
a slightly larger amount on the policy than they would pay outrîght as a cash surrender
value, because they get interest on it, and it is an asset.

Q. If they would lend more, a man who woudd take it as a Joan would flot ba as
well off as if fie had made a sale cf his policy ?-A. That is right. Some companies
do net state the surrender value; they state the Joan value in their policies.

Q. With reference te the expenses of this company, I asked Mr. Eldridge the
question, when he was on the stand, if in the insurance report flled with the Insurance
Department cf the State cf New York, there are salaries cf officers, a certain amount
and salaries and other compensation cf office empîcyees. I asked iMr. Eldridge if the
arnount filled in there covered the whole cf the compensation cf oficers, and if 1
remembierý right, ha, said it practically did. Now, I caîl your attention te the amount
cf actuarial expenses, in the report cf tbe Muttuel Reserve. Do you find that item
in the reports cf other companies?-A. I do not.

Q. ilave you looked ?-A. I have.
Q. And you think that is peculiar te the Mutual Reserve ?-A. I do.
Q. What would bc meant, in your opinion, by actuarial expenses ?
(Objected te by counsel for the cempany.)
Q. What are actuarial expenses, in your opinion J-A. Actuariel expenses, in

my opinion, would mean the salary peid to the actuary or actuaries, and the salaries
of the empicyees in the actuarial department, stationery-

Q. Would that ha an actuarial expense J-A. Certainly, part of the statienery,
paper on which to make your calculations, and the varieus tables; that would be
adinitted as an item of expense belonging te that department.

Q. But in other cempanies, you say they de net have it J-A. I de net sea it in
any other reports.

Q. 'Where dees it corne in, in the other cempanies ?-A. It must be ineluded in
the salary paid te the actuary, and in the compensation or salaries paid te, employees,
and in the printing and statienery, which would include it.

Q. In the year 1896, do yen find by the reports te the department of New York,
an item for actuarial expenses J What ameunt cf actuarial expenses do yen find
there J-A. I frnd entered in the sworn report to the Insurance Department cf the
State cf New York for the year ending December 31, 1896, an item under actuarial
expenses amounting te $14,227.

Q. And in 1897 J-A. $16,795.
Q.And in 1898 ?-A. $17,936.

Q. And in 1899 ?-A. $18,777.
Q. In 1900 J-A. $22,968.
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Q. In 1901 ?-A. $27,441.
Q. In 1902 ?-A. $30,684.'

QIn 1903-A. $31,449.

By thre Chairman:
Q. That ýnight be caused by development of business ?-A. Actîiarial expenses

do not necessarily increase with the increase of business.

By thre Hon. Mr. Landry :
Q. CoulId you explain that increase ?-A. I cannot explain it 0o1 any ground.

By the Hon. Mr. Béicjue :
Q. Would you be able to say that ir can be explaineci by the company ?-A. It

could flot be explained to sa risfy me. I should like to make myseif perfectly clear.
On the admission that the compensation or salary paid to officers, as stated in the
sworn report, included the salaries of ail officers, and the compensation paid to
employees included compensation to ail employees, and there being stated in the
sworn reports an amount representing printing and statio)nery, 1 cannot see how such
a large sumn could bo chargeable to actuarial expenses and explained after the salaries
of ail officers have been paid outside of it.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. In the Insurance Rleport, for instance, take this for one year, 1899, under the
heading, 'Other Compensation of Oficers,' what do you find there ?A. The answer
is 'INoue.'

Q. And is not that the same answer in the other reports ?-A. The same in -al]
the other reports.

Q. And yet you say that these amounts called actuarial expenses, would be pro-
perly included in salaries to officers or employees ?-A. Officers and office emiployees.

Q'Expenses other than Agents' Commissions, .&c.'-nnder that head have you
taken an extract from thc sworn reports submitted to the Insurance iDepartrnent of
New York ?-A. I have.

Q. I would ask you to look at Exhibit 38, now produced, and state if it is correct?
-A. It is.

EXUIBIT No. 38.

Expenses other than Agents' Commissions, &c.

Salaries of
Yer.Offleers and LegalYear.Officp, em- Expenses.

ployees.

1896 ..... .... .......... 352,297ý 7.293
1897 .. ..... .... ........... 367,3761 22,605
1898.... .. ý... .............. 336,748 35,890
1899........... ........ 286,618 81,719
1900..«.... ...... ...... .... 293,677 48,030
1901 ........... 307,822 40,291
1902...1.. .... 285,727 43,3281
1903 ...... ............. 286,016 54,1671

Totals ...... ....... 2,516,281 333,323

Travellinig Actuarial
Expenses. Expenses.

10,291
14.496
21,775
25,127
31,512
28,246
26,825
25,942

14,227
16,794
17,939
18,777
22,968
27,441
30,684j

184,2141 180,2801

Office Total.
Expenses.

63,079 447,187
83,101 504,373
85,1 82ý 497,534
73,6971 485,9Î38

71 ' 466,'289
19 81 533,13M

%103,5471 
501,21

-7,719,6821 3,933,780
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Q. Exhibit 38, 'Expenses other than Agents' Commissions,' you say that is taken
accurately from the sworn reports ?A. I do.

Q. Look at Exhibit 39, 'Mortuary Receipts used for Expenses.' Is that taken
accurately froin the report, or w'here did you get that ?-A. The figures coutained ini
that exhibît were taken froma the swvorn raport to the Insurance Deparatment of the
State of New York for the years 1895, 1896, 1898, and 1897.

Q. And 1900 ?-A. 1900, but for the year 1897 the amount was flot given in the
sworn report, so it is estimated, being the difference between the two years.

Q. You have added the year after and the year before together and dividced by
two and given the average ?-A. Yes.

Q. But in the others it is taken accurately frorn the report ?-A. Yes. I should
add that the $2,053,065.04 are taken from the report of the Mutual iReserve Fund
Life Association by the New York Insurance Department.

Q. What you men, if I understaxid, is that from the date of orgamization. to
Pecember 31, 1894, thiere have been used in expenses from mortuary fonds and interest
earnings on same, the sum of $2,053,065.04. Is that what you 4nean ?-A. That is
what I mean.

Q. And the other sum, amounting to over $450,000 a year on an average about,
also useeI for expenses out of the mortuary fund ?-A. That is correct.

Q. Is that a proper expenditure, in your opinion ?-A. A certain amount of it
was provided for under the constitution and by-laws, but in my opinion that repre-
sents a very mucli larger amount than was contemplated under the constitution and
by-laws.

Q. Then, 'Cost of New Business,' Exhibit 40. Look at those reports for the
years 1901, 1902, and 1903, cost of new business. Is that taken from the Insurance
Report ?A. Yes.

Q. And those are accurate ?-A. Yes.
Q. Exhihits 39 and 40, now filed, read as follows.

EXHIBIT No. 39.

Mortuary Receipts used for Expenses.

The report of the examination of thc IMutual Reserve Fund Life Association
as of Pecember 31, 1894, page 19, shows that ftrm the date of organiza-
tion to December 31, f»894, there had been used iu expenses from. Mor-
tuary Funda and interest earnings on same.. .. $2,053,165 04

lMortuary Funda used for expenses, 1895.. .. ..... 475,376 20
£ý ce1896 .. ........ 445,815 15

ic1897 (not given)* 420,000 00
ci 1898 .. ........ 452,201 60
cc1899........413,579 34

1900........400,418 31

4,658,555 62

*The figures In the above statenent for the years 1895 to 1900, both inclusive, are taken
from the sworn reports to the Insurance Department of the State of New York, except for
the year 1897, whIeh ls estimated, the amnount not being given In the officiai report for that
year.
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EXHU3BIT No. 30.

MUTUÂL RESERVE FUND LIE INSURANCE CO., NEW YORK.

Cost of New Business, 1901.

Commissions and fees to agents (llrst year). ...
Salaries and allowances for agencies........
Salaries of officers and office employees j .... ....
Medical examiners' f ees..... .........
lient i $3M,51.74; furniture, $ 1,472.21.......
Adverstising and printing, à.. .........
Travelling expenses, k............
Actuarial expenses, ~.............
General office expenses, . ...........
Internai revenue, $3,010.84... .........
Postage, k $10,827.29; agency, $36,785.48. ....

$192,089 74
69,823 49

153,910 96
16,368 83
39,123 95
41,491 16
14,122 49
13,720 62
64,668 98
3,010 84

47,612 77

Cost of new business.................655,945 88

First year's premiuxns.................10,906 33'

Cost in excess of new premiums .. .... .... ........ 345,037 50

New business, 1902................. 14,883,327

Insurance terminated................42,281,766

Insurance in force, 1901..............155,358,627
Insurance ini force, 1902..............127,860,188

Deertesf-...,. . .. .. ............... 27,398,439

Decrease in insurance in force, 1896-1901 .... .... ... 169,667,434

(Jost of New Business, 19092.

Commission and bonuses to agents (first year)......$204,765 77
Salaries and allowances for agencies..........150,'674 39
Agency supervision and other agency expenses. . 69,784 02
Medical examiner&' fccs................29,366 92
Inspection of risks.................4,328 03
Salaries of officers and emiployees, k........142,863 72
lient, k of $72,286.68. ................ 36,143 34
Advertising.....................34,536 80
Printing and stationery, .............. 15,071 63
Postage, k......................8,762 73
Furniture, k.....................2,694 55
Actuarial expenses, k.................15,342 12
General office expenses, k.............55,818 21
Miscellaneous expenses, k.............107,791 36

New premiums, 1902.............
$877,743 51)
367,e67 04
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Cost in excess of new premiums............510,276 55
New business, 1902..................14,883,327
Total terminated, 1902................42,9,81,766
Insurance in force, 1901...............155,358,627
Insurance in force, 1902................127,960,168

Decrease......................27,398,439

EXHIBIT No. 40.

MUTUAL LIESERVE FUND LIFE INSURANCE CO., NEW YORK.

Cost of New Bu.siness, 1903.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year).....$232,821 91
Salaries and allowances for agencies. .. .. .. ...... 114,007 19
Agency supervision and other agency expenses......65,319, 24
Medical examiners' fees................13,393 53
Inspection of risks. ................. 2,466 90
Salaries of olicers and office employees, ï.......143,008 17
Rent, î cf $77,464.15.................38,732 07
Advertising.....................21,843 92
Printing and stationery, ~.............10,029 72
Postage, la; furniture, &c., J..............6,758 87
Actuarial expenses, j $15,724.52............1ý,724 52
General office expenses, $51,773.85..........51,773 85
iMiscellaneous expenses, $61,782.91...........61,782 91

Cost cf new business... .............. $777,855 80
Firat year's preTnitms. ............... 395,000 06

Cost in excess cf new premiums........$381,995 714

New business, 1903. ................ $12,527,288

Insurance terminated.................22,913,638

Insurance in force, 1902...............$127,960,188

Insurance in force, 1903. .............. 119,59 6,8271

Decrease .. .... ............... $ 8,363,361

Sumîmarzi, 1900-1908.

Total new business, 1900-1903............$ 49,058,980
Total insurance terminated, 1900-1903..........119,971,816
Pecrease in insurance in force, 1900-1903........69,670,547

Total flrst year's premiums, 1900-1903.........$1,074,133 43

Total cost cf newý business, 1900-1903. . 9....,311,343 72

Oost in excess cf new premiums, 1900-1903 .... ... $1,237,210 29

Q. What is internal revenue ?-A. That is the stamps that had to be affixed to
the policies.

PATTERSON



SELECT COJIMITTEE ON THE POSITION OF

4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904

AQ. You charge a half of the salaries of oflicers to this. Give me your reason
for doing that ?-A. If there was any new business being done there would be no
necessity for a large staff of officers to take care of the old business. Consequently,
I think one-haîf of the salary paid to the officers should be charged to the coe~ of
getting business.

Q. Their principal work is i11 connection with it ?-A. Yes.
Q. And then travelling expenses one-haîf. What do you say with reference to

that ?-A. The samne answer applies to that.
Q. And the general office expenses the samne ?-A. The samne answer for that.
Q. Because you say at least one-half of the expenses are the cost of the new

business ?-A. That is as I understand it.
Q. I have a number of statistics of other companies. We have here the Atna,

the Equitable and North-Western IMutual Life. Take the }Etna Life Insurance
Company, of Hartford, Connecticut ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed :
Q. Are they assessment companies ?-A. No, old life.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. I arn giving you the resuits of the figures ?-A. These are made out on the

saine principle.
Q. Allowing haif of the rent and haîf the salaries of the employees and haîf of

the furniture and haîf the printing, and so on, exactly the samne principle ?-A.
Exactly on the saine priuciple.

Q. Take the IEtna Life Insurance Company :In 1901 what. was the comparison
of the cost of new business ?In the first year's premiums there, was a balance in
favour of the company of $182,535 ?-A. That is correct.

Q. The cost of new business, in 1902 there was a balance in faveur of the coin-
pany of $220,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. In 1903 there was a balance in favour of the company o f $168,-778.40 ?-A,
Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. MciSweeney:
Q. That is the new business ?-A. The new premium remaining after providing

for ail the cost of insurance.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the ijommittee
Q.<alculating fromn the samoe way, taking off the salaries ?-A. Yes, correct.
Q.Take the Equitable Assurance Society of New York, cost of new business.

1901, $4,712,834.16; the first year's premiums, $6,708,656.41, showing a balance in
favour of the cornpany of $1,995,822.25 ?-A. That is correct.

Q. And in 1902, a balance in favour of the company of $1,590,478.35 ?A. That
is correct.

Q. And in 1903 a balance in favour of the company of $2,298,486.94 ?-A. Yes,
that is correct.

Q. Take the North-Western Mutual Life Tnsurance Company, Milwaukee, Wis-
consin; in 1901, cost of new business $1,770,651.49; the first year's premiums amounted
to $2,814,061.10, and the balance in favour of the company $1,033,409.61 ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q. Is that a mutual asseVment company ?-A. It is an old line mutual life

insurance company.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. The samne company in 1902 had a balance in their faveur of $1,014,018.29 t

A. Correct.
PATT1ERSON
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Q. And in 1903 there was a b41ance in favour of the company of $437,799.44 f-

A. Correct.
Q.Those are correctly shown by the sworn reports ?-A. Yes.

£TNA LIIFE INSUIRANCE CO., IHAIRTFORD, CONN.

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT.

Cost of New Business, 1901.

Commission and bonuses to agents (first year).. ..

Salaries and ailowances to agencies.. ......
Salaries of officers and office employees, ~....
Medical examiners' fees.............
Inspection of risks................
Rent j $18,029.74, postage $11,995.36.......
Furniture, &c., ý $2,235.83, advertising $16,508.05..
Printing and stationiery, ~...........
Alother disbursements, j... .........

Cost of new business............
First year's premiums.... ...........

Balance............. ...

Cost of New Business, 1902.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year). . .$

Salaries and allowaflces to agencies... .....
Agency supervision...... .........
Medical examinera' fees. .. ..........
Inspection of risks. .... ..........
Salaries o-f officers and office ernpioyees, ~....
Rent ý $19,S80.20, advertising $11,880.44........
Postage àx $12,167lY15, f iirtle ~$,~.8...
1rinting and stationery, . ..........
Ail other disbursements, . ..........

Cost of new business.. .........
First year's preiniums.. ...........

Balance............. .....

Cosi of New Business, 1903.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (tirst year) ..

SalaÎies and allowarices to agencies. .. .....
Supervision and other agency expenses .... ......
Medical examinera' fees and inspection of risks.
Advertising $12,571.66, rent à $24,434.04. .. ...
Salaries of officers and office employees, J......
Printing and station ery, ý .... .... ..........
Postage à $27.5.......... ..........
Furniture and fixtures, i.............
Miscellaneous expenses, ~...........

Coat of new business...........
Firat year's preiniums...............

>606,836 63
35,539 01
97,779 56
74,065 00

9,442 17
30,025 10
17,743 88
10,989 50
ý38,763 24

921,184 09
,103,719 42

182,535 33

613,034 38
28,876 53
20,165 36
73,049 50
9,736 97

90,277 17
31,760 64
171,665 33
12,293 15
30,681 21

927,540 25
1,147,590 79

220,050 54

607,758 28
33,477 02
19,531 0 4
95,782 03
37,005 70
93,480 95
12,833 08
12,713 35
4,023 62

24,462 95

941,067 94
1,109,846 34

Balance.................$ 168,778 40
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EQUITABIE LIFE ASSURANCE SOCIETY, NEW YORIK.

Oo8t of New Business, 1901.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year). .. $2.659,889 31
Salaries and ail other agency expenses..........308,878 00
Salaries of officers and office employees, j......429,555 95
Medical examiners' fees and inspection of risks.. 476,158 05
iRent j $224,126.23, advertising $318,342.77......542,469 00
Printing and stationery, î.. .... .... .. ...... 95,864 69
Postage and exchange, à...............37,718 33
Ail other expenses, j...............180,800 83

Cost of new business............$4,712,834 16
First year's premiums. .............. 6,708,656 41

Balance..................1,995,822 25

Oost of New Business, 1902.

Commissions and bonuscs to agents (first year). . $3,131,823 96
Salaries and aliowances for agencies..........47,903 05
Supervision atid other agency expenses..........411,343 55
Nedical examiners' fees and inspection of risks .... .... 570,292 61
iRent j $146,596, advertising $257,082.63... .. .. ... 421,678 63
Printing and stationery, j .. .... ........ ...... 98,641 36
Postage j $43,278.78, furniture j$11,962.26 .. .... .... 55,241 04
Ail other expenses, j................173,536 32

Cost of new business. .......... $6,340,461 52
First year's premiums................7,930,949 87

Balance.............. .. $1,590,478 35

- Cost of New Business, 1903.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year).. .. $3,585,596 14
Salaries and allowances for agencies.. .... ....... 564,636 87
Supervision and other agency expenses.. .. ....... 464,697 94
Medical examiners' fees and inspection of risks. ..... 830,961 23
Salaries of officers and office employees, j........544,484 11
%ent j $146,596, advertising $323,328.77.........469,924 77
Printing and stationery, j.. .. .. .. . .......... 112,012 59
Postage j $51,205.82, fiirniture j$19,104.03 .... .... 70,309 85
AIl other exkpenses, ............... 215,914 39

Cost of new business .. .... ......... $6,858,137 89
First year's premiums................9,156,624 83

Balance..................2,298,486 94

Increase in insurance in force 1900-03, $293,043,,695.
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NORTH--WESTERN MUJTUAL LIFE INS. CO., MILWAUKEE, WIS.

Uost'of New Business, 1901.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year)..
iMedical examiners' fees............
Inspection of risks.... ..........
Salaries of officers and office employees, i .... ..
Relit j $17,900, advertising $4,846.34......
Printing and stationery, j --.. ..........
Postage j $23,418.63, furniture j$1,290.7l..
Ail other expenses, J.. ..........

$1,218,415
135,986

292,264
222,678
22,746
20,047
24,709

103,773

Oost of new business............$1,770,651 49

Firsi, year's premniums...............2,811,061 10

Balance..................$1,043,409 61

Oost of New Business, 1902.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (flrst year).. .. $1,283,240 98
Ail other agency expenses...............10,841 64
Medical examiners' fees...............151,994 60
Inspection of risks..................19,994 60
Salaries of officers and office employees, j......456,296 20
iRent j $18,650, advertising j $27,781.72..........1,431 72
Postage à $23,793.49, furniture j$1,290-51 .... .... 25,084 00
AU cther expeinses..................81,674 22

Cost of new business .... ......... n,049,918 12

First year's premiums...............3,063,931 41

Balance.................$1,014,013 29

Cost of New Business, 1903.

Commissions and bonuses to agents (first year).. .. $1,677,032 02
Travelling and other agancy expenses..........11,191 31
Medical examinera' fees................149,707 00
Inspection of risks. ................. 21,115 51
Salaries of officeis and office employees, J.........240,941 -91
IRent j $20,792.50, advertising $6,101.10.........26,893 60
lPrinting and stationery, j.... .... .......... 255,000 14
Postage j $27,567.82, furniture j $1,769.65 .. .... .... 29,337 47
AIl other expenses, ....... ......... 28,679 70

Cost of new business............$2,439,897 96

First year's premiums.. ............... 2,877,697 40

Balance..................$ 437,799 44

Q.What was the effect of this on the whole business of the company I-A. The
effect is to largely increase the cost of the old business, because whatever amçrnnt; is

PATTEBSON
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paid out for expenses of getting new business in excess of what the new business
produces must corne from the proceeds of the business.

By thte (Jhairman:

Q.Fromn the old policy-holders ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. So that that annual loss on the getting of new business had to be paid by the

old policy-holders ?-A. It had.
Q. And what youi say is that there should have been a balance in favour of the

company instead of a balance against the company ?-A. I do.
Q. Here is a summary of the commissions, &c., paid to agents, 1890 to 1903,

Exhibit 42, which reads as follows

(Exhibit No. .4.2).

MUTJAI IRESEIIVE FYUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

New Business.

COMMISSION, ETC., PAID TO AGENTS, 1890-1903.

Insurance commiissions Amnount

fonIncrease. Decrease. paid Agents, eh
orce. salaries of $10

Agents, etc. U ew

- ~ ~ u Q'.7s. k

23.458.960 7122976 12 6832,397,780 705,878 22.03
56,395,535 393,139 17.13
23,506,408 372,91 8 5.75
.34,909147 469,402 321.68
27,398,39 595,950 33.32
18,363,361 520,788 41.42

373,505
422,873
465,808
629,332
591,290
567,633

8.43
8.68
8.06
9.47
9.08
7.77

1890 37,697,685 197,003,435 15,645,235
1891 44,318,905 215,2o7,910 18,204,475
1892 48,646.650 236,421,790 19,213,880
1893 57,749,670 262,607,065 26,185,275
1894 66,408,225 293,366,106 30,759,047
1895 59,738,790 308,659,371 15,293,265
1896 73,026,330 325,026,061 17,366,690
1897 56,234,785 301,567,101 ....
1898 32,027,329o 269,169,31 ........
1899 22,934,580 212,773,786 ... .
1900) 64,501,751 I 189,267,374 ....
1901 21,648,365 155,358,C,27 . .... ....
1902 14,883,827 127,960,188 ....

193 12,527,288 119,596,827 ..... ..

The following items arc includcd in the above table each year; irs[ year's Com-
missions: renewal and commuted commissions; salaries and allowances of managers
and agents not paid by commissions and agency expenses. iRenewal commissions
were not reportcd separately prior to 1897.

RENEWAL AND COMMUTED COMMISSIONS.

1897 .... ..... ......................
1898 ....... .....................

189............. ......... ..
1900 ......... .............. ......
1901...............
1902............. ... .... .....

Renewal Comrnnted
commissions.

d5,575 22
180.342 53

76,933 14
151,115 30
82,978 05
96,226 11
83,646 86

~ominssions.

211,666 67
74,500 0it
25,0W0 00

PA'rTEýfflN

insurance in force.

212:773,786
189,267,374
155,-158,627
127,960,188
119,596,827

Year.

... .... ....

...............
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The sworn report shows that on December 31, 1897, agents' credit balances~ $5,-
438.14. If the renewal commission on $301,567,101 of insurance in force in 1897 was
only $63,575.22, how could it amount to $180,342.53 on $269,169,321 of insurance ini
force in 1898?

The same question applies to 1900.
New business written, 1895-96...........$132,765,120
New business written, 1897-98. ............ 88,252,175

iDifference.................$ 44,519,,945

Commissions paid agents, &c., 1897-98.........$ 1,418,154

Commissions paid agents, &c., 1895-96..........1,158,923

Difference.................$ 2,59,231

Q. What would be the average premium per thousand about ?Could you Say,
roughly speak-ing ?-(No answer).

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. Is that an approximate estimate, the proportion of the entire expenses of the
company?-A. That is made up solely of commissions paid to agents, salaries of
agents and medical examiners' fees and inspection of risks. Itdoes nlot include any
salaries as in the other case.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., (Jounsel for the Committee:
Q. Just the actual amount.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. Then the cost o~f tbe last new business would far exceed the premiums per

thousand? The premilum per thoiisand wouild not amoiint to $40. Wfiar wofld it
average ?-A. I figured it out some months, ago, if I remembor rightly, about $32.

Q. Taking the items that enter into expenses, they would ha made up of commis-
sions in the first instance. 'What would be the proportion of commissions. What
commission was allowed to agents say on the flrst premium ?-A. The usual cam-
mission is about 75 per cent on a brokerage contract where you get nothinig aise,
where you have no renewal.

Q. No renewel would come into consideration?-A. Yes.
Q. A payment of commiqsion on the first premiuirn?-A. It includes renewal

and ail commissions in here.
Q. You do not include the renewals under new business ?-A. Yes, that is the

cost of new business. because if you were not doing any new business the renewals
would increase the receipts.

Q. But Mr. Coster had reference to the new insurance which. had been secured
by the company in that statement ?-A. Yes.

Q. You refer to the new business which, had been secured to the company ?-A.
Yes.

Q. 75 per cent of the flrst premium, was paid upon commission ?-A. There-
about, I cannot speak concisely or definitely on thet, but taking the usuel practice of
life insurance companies it would be 50 per cent to 75 per cent.

Q. What is the next item entering into securing the new business ?-A. Salaries
and travelling expenses of agents and managers.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. 75 par cent is supposed to be the commission if there is no salary ?-A. But
there are a large number of agents who are paid salaries.

PATTERSON
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By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q.Are flheir duties confined to obtaining new business or do thcir duties inolude
looking after old business ?-A. Their duties are in connection with the new business.
The salaries of managers and allowances to agents, the cost of an office in Canada
where an agent might have a fixed salary at fifty dollars or one hundred dollars a
month and a commission on ail the business besides that.

By the lion. Mr. Watson:

Q.Would he get the 75 per cent commission 1-A. No, he would not get the
same commission as if he had no salary.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.1 understood you to say before that if the agent is merely on commission
that it would be about 75 per cent commission 1-A. That is practically it.

Q. But the commnission may be less and be may be given asalary 1-A. Yes, that
is iucluded, because in the sworn report that item is there, 'Salaries aud allowances
to agents not paid by commission'.

Q. Take an agent at an office who is paid the regular salary, bis time is devoted
not only to the new business but to the old business also 1-A. No.

Q. Only to the new 1-A. Entirely looking after new business and agency
business.

Q. Does he not see to the collection of the premiums on the old policies 1-A.
If he does he is paid a commission for that besides. In the officiai report that ap-
pears under tbe heading of 'cost of colleétion'.

Q. You find ini the report ail the expenses chargeable to the new business 9-A.

Q.Entirely 1-A. Yes.
Q75 per cent and what oter expenses would go to that 1-A. The medical ex-

aminers' fees and inspection of risks.

BY the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q.What would you estima te that 1-A. It is ail tbe way from three to five

dollars.
By Mr. CJoster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q.This is made from the sworn report e-A. Yes.
Q.It is not estimated 1-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q.We would like to know how tbe difference is made up between five and forty
dollars ?-A. An agent has to make his living by commissions, and he cau aflord to
take 50 per cent in a strong life insurance company and make more money out of it
at 50 per cent, because be can get the business so much easier than be can in a com-
pany that is in bad repute or a new company which has not the standing before the
public, and therefore the company has to pay more for the business in commissions.

Q. Pid that apply to this company, say at the stage when they were doing
business at $5 ?-A. No. You could write business very easily at that time, be-
cause the company was in excellent position and very popular.

Q. You seemingly did business oheaper in 1900 than in 18981-A. The appor-
tioninent of rates in 1895 and the reasons for the apportinent were such that tbe
policy-holders became satisfied and it did not do the company, for the time being,
very much injury ; but wben the reapportionment of rates was made a feu' years
afterwards and -policy-holders assessed at attained age it changed the grand
army of friends into a host of enemies and everyone went against it and the agents
could do no business.
PATTERSON
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B3î the Hon. Mr. Watson:
Q. What year was that ?-A. About 1897e '98 and '99.
Q. Was 1899 the iowest i-A. 1900 was the iowest.
Q. The company got into bad repute in 1897, '98 and '99 ?-A. Yes.
Q. llow do you account for 1900 being the lowest l-A. I account for it by the

fact that there is included in new business, according to Mr. Eldridge's testimony,
$30,000,000 taken over in a lump sum from the North-Western; the real new busi-
ness was only $22,000,000, and if it was fignred on the saine basis as was the other
business-

Q. Couid you tell me the average cost of doing business of similar companies,
per thousand ?-A. I have flot figured it out on the other companies, but froma the
commissions paid to agents, and examination fees, and so on, I should think it would
be probably about 75 per cent of the first year's preminms in commissions or probably
-weli, I have not flgnred it out. I could not say what the cost wonld be per thou-
sand.

By the Hon. M1r. Lougheed:
QIs that the only expianation of the unpopularity of the company that the

new business cost more than the average premiuma per thonsand ? When did it reach
the water mark i-A. 1903.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Watson:
Q. What is the average cost per thousand of companies doing businessl-ýA. I

do not know.
Q. You thought it would cost about 75 per cent to get the preium? I want to

get the average of annual cost i-A. You want to get the cost of new businessl
Q. Yes, and I want to get the average cost to the company of 'doing the business

per thonsand l-A. Well, I can teli you the average annual expense within a very
close approximate, because I arn thoroughly familiar with that.

Q. What is that l-A. It va-ries ail the way from $5 in sone, companies up to
$10 and $12.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
a Q. There is a statement here that it cost thema $5.61 per thousand of insurance

carried for the expense of doing business i-A. That was true in some years.
Q.That is the staternent of the company i-A. 1901.
Q.Look at that i-A. I do nlot nced to look at that if it does not say the year.

I know the cost of business to the iMutual IReserve Fund Life Association up to 1896
was only a few cents over $5 a thousand.

By, the lion. Mr. Lougheed:
Q.But the explanation of the excessive cost was owing to the unpopularity of the

company ?-A. Yes.

BV the Hon. Mr. McSweeneij:

Q. As un average would it be correct l-A. As an average it would flot be correct.
Well, it might be correct covering the whole experience of the company.

Q.But yeu do not think it is, thougli -A. No.

By the Uhairman:
Q.Not for the thirteen years you have figured it l-A. Not on the years I have

figuired it, it is not correct.
Q. That low year of 1900 is the year the company took over the insurance of the

Western of $30,000,000 i-A. Yes.
PATTER8ON
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Q. That would only cost a few cents on the thousand to get it over e-A. I do not
see that it could be called iiew businss-it was reinsured business.

Q. That is the year it was put down to $5.75 ?-A. Yes. I took the figures 1
found in the sworn report. I cannot do anything else.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. llow many does that cover ?-A. Thirteen. That is the cost of new business.
That is not the general cost.

Q. It does flot include the cost of administration ?-A. No.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Cou'nsel for the Gommittee:

Q. I see by Exhibit 42, that in 1897 the renewal commissions amountcd to
$63,575.22, and that in 1898 the renewai commissions amounted to $180,342.53, and
in 1897 the insurance in force was $301,000,000; in 1898 the insurance in force was
$269,000,000. llow do you account for the great difference of over $120,000 between
1897 and 1898 paid in renewal commissions g-A. 1 do flot believe it was ever paid in
renewal commissions, flot that whole amount. I believe that the amount stated. as
having been paid in renewal commissions is overstated by nearly $100,000; the reason
for that being that there could not possibiy be only $63,575 of renewal commissions
payable under $300,000,000 of insurance in force and $180,000 of renewal commissions
payable on $269,000,000 i force. I believe that that is as clearly as ean bie fictitious
and untrue, and was neyer paid for that purpose.

By M1r. Geoffrion, Ciounsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. What year was that ?-A. 1898.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counset for the Committee:

Q. I see from. Exhibit No. 42, that in 1891 there was $76,000 of renewal com-
missions on $212,000,000 of business ?-A. I believe also that that is overstated for
the samie reason, that there was only $212,000 ini force, and the amount paid in re-
newal commissions is greater than when $300,000,000 was ini force in insurance.

Q. In 1900 tliere was paid $151,115.30 on renewal commissions when the insurance
ini force was only $189,000,000; what do you say about that t-A. I believe that that
is overstated by at least.$100,000 for the saine reason.

By the Chairman:
Q. Where did this money go to l-A. I cannot tell that, but I can say fromn my

knowledge of the insurance business, that that could be entered as renewal com-
missions, and under commission your examiner would not know as to whether it had
been so paid or whether it was so due unless lie had ail the contracts made with agents.
and vouchers for it.

Q. Which lie would not have t-A. H1e would not have, so lie could flot verify
whether the figures were correct or not.

Q. H1e must take the cz3mpany's word for it ?-A. I mean as done by the IMutuai
Reserve Fund Life Association, not by other companies.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. What is the proportion of the renewals compared to the amount of the in-
surance in force l-A. 1 have not figured it out on that business. I could tell you this
evening, if you wish. I would have to figure it out. Before we leave this question,
so that the Couuinittee may intelligently understand the position and 'that I may flot
be put in a faise position; when a company makes a cantract with an agent, that
contract either provides that ail his remuneration shal bie on the first year's pre-
miiums, which la called a brokerage contraet, and in that case it would be mucli higher
PATT5ERSON
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il there was a renewal commission, but they also make contracts, and a large number
of them, where they pay a certain amount of the flrst year's prenliuixis mn commission
and then on the second and subsequent years. some extencting througliout the lifetime
of the policy and sometimes lirnited to ten or fifteen yenrs. ll--gets a snial1omission
when the premiums are paid, varying from a local agent, say seven per cent, to a gen-
eral agent, who has a large extent of earnings, ten per cent; so that if a policy-holder
that hie had insured paid the second year $200 of premium, his renewal commission,
if it was ten per cent would be $20, and that is wlrat is referrcd to by these renewal
commissions, and they could not be payable uLnder eontraets made in the year 1899,
because there would be no renewal commissions under any contract muade that year.
It must be in the previous year.

B~y the Hon. 111r Lougheed:

Q.Why ?-A. Because the renewals would not bave matured. I make a contract
paying 50 per cent ou the first year's premiurn, this year for example, ani then seven
or ten per cent next year, aund ii renewal eould flot be ineluded. No p)art of that
money was on contracts made in the year 1899.

By the Chairmant:
Q.There is one thing about this ; tliere would be less renewals on $200,000,000

than on $300,000,000? A. That is absolutely so. It is a mathematical impossibility
that that .$180,000,000 is a truthful statemient of the purposes for which that moneyý
was expended, according to my views of it.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :

Q. It is an item which enu be explained perhaps ?-A. 1 do not think so. The
way the business used to be conducted when I was there I do flot see how it could be
explained.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. Supposing in one year 1 paid 75 per cent to the agents ail through.-A. Yes.
Q. Then there would be for that year no renewals?-A. That would be a brokeraga

commission.
Q. You would find no0 renewal ?-A. No.
Q. And I did $300,000,000 of business ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the second year I did business for $200,000,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And I pay only 50 per cent and the third year I pay sevent or ten per cent or

fifteen on a less amount of nioney ?-A. I do not tirrk you understand it. Start with
yonr contraet first. What is your contract which you have with the company ?i You
have a contract with the company agreeing to pay yon 75 per cent on the first year's
business.

Q. This is on the new business ?-A. Yes. You had $20,000,000 of business and
paid 75 Ver cent, and you have a renewal commission of 10 per cent and the second
year you had $20,000,000 and you got 75 per cent on the $20,000,000 you had that
year and seven or ten per cent, or whatever it is, on ail that pay the preminm.s on
the business you did the previous year.

Q. You said the 75 per cent was not always paid for the first year's business.
Sometimes it might bie only fifty per cent ?-A. That is right.

Q. But the balance would be paid subsequently on tihe following years ?-A. As
renewals.

Q. The more I get the first year the less I get in the subsequent years ?-A. That
is correct.

Q. So that I may make more business the second year and yet have less money by
the renewals ?-A. Yes.
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B11 Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Cominittee:

Q. In 1901, 1 see the renewal commissions were $82,978.05 and that your comn-
xnuted commissions $211,666.67 and insurance in force was $155,000,000. What have
you to say about that ?-A. I think Mr. Eldridge has testified in lis evidence that the
larger proportion of that entered there as commuted commissions was paid to Mr.
iterriam, who obtained the transfer of the North-western business to the Mutual
Reserve.

Q. Wouild that be commuted commissions?-A. That ought, in my opinion, to be
called cost of new business and ouglit to be inceluded under that $64,000,000.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q.A coinmuted commission would not; be paid ?-A.Perhaps I had better explain
what a commuted commission is. The commuted commission is, the Company buying
the renewal commission fromn the agent. For example the agent bas $10,000 of rýenewal
commissions and they pay five years for that: that is $50,000-comnrnted at five years,
and this leads me to think-I have not the information to warrant me in thinking
otherwise-that possibly this man Merriamn had a renewal commission fromn the
North-western business, and that they commuted it at $212,000, but at any rate. it
should be put down as cost of new business, in my opinion.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. In 1902,, 1 sce $96,266.11 of renewal commissions, and commuted commissions
of $74,500, and the whole insurarice in force $127,000,000 -A. I cannot possibly ex-
plain how there could have been paid $211,000 in commuted commissions by any
renewal commission as it xvas, and then there should be payable $14,000 more in
renewal commissions in 1902 than there was in 1901, on about $34,000,000 less in-
surance in force, after having bouglit up renewal commissions to that amount of
renewals paid, which I canno t explain.

Q. And renewal commission1s as compared with 1897 -what would that difference
be ? $33,000 ?-A. Yes.

Q. $33,000 more renewal commission than in 1897, with a very lîttle more than
a third of the business g-A. Yes.

Q. In 1903, you -have $83,000 of renewal commission, and $25,000 of commuted
commissions, on $119,000,000 of business. Your remarks apply to that, as before.
You do not think those itetms are correct e-A. Why, up to that time, 'there had been
paid about $100,000 in buying up rônewal commissions, called commute-d Commissions,
and the business had gone fromn $155,000,000 in 1901, to $119,000,000 in 1903.

Q. In other words, with $301,000,000 insurance in force, they paid $83,000 of
renewal commissions, that they then paid in renewal commissions, the samne on $311,-
000, in commuted commissions, and yet the renewal commissions increased to $83,000
in 1903 ?-A. That is the renewal commissions in 1903 on $119,000,000 was more than
$20,000 greater than the renewal commission paid in 1897 on three hundred million.

Q. And, in the rneantime, tbey had paid out $311,000 for commuting theý commis-
sion, and it increased $20,000. In 1902 it was $33,000 of an increase on that amount
of business. You say that is a practical impossibilîty? A. For ail I know of the
business, and in my own mind, I am convinced the figures are not correct, that they
do not represent the purposes for which that money was expended, and in that par-
ticular respect it was noteworthy that in 1898, that wben that $180,342.53 was credited
as having been paid in renewal commissions, is the time about which there lias been
so mucli dispute during the Moss management, and referred to by the Superintendent
of Insurance in bis officiai report of the examination made, and also to the further
fact that in the year 1900, when suits that had been referred to here, were going on,
that year there was $151,000, against $76,000 the previous year.
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By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. You suspect the cause of swelling this item?-A. I do. I shouli like to add
something. That cheque that was presented here of $5,000 is a fair sample of what
I mean in1 my charges of false entries being made in the books of the eompany for
moneys expended, covering the real purposes for whieh it was used. No doubt that
cheque is entered in the books of the iMutual IReserve as legal expenses paid to, James,
Sehiell & Elkus.

By, Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q.Do yeni know that?-A. I have no doubt of it.
Q.Do you know it ?-(No' answer.)

By lho Chairman:

Q. You got the money?-A. Yes.

Mr. GEOFFRION.-I objeet that this witness sWears te an entry in the book without
having seen it.

WI'rNEss.-I have no doubt an examination of the books of the cernpany will show
that that particular ameunt is charged as legal expenses, whereas the actual purpose
for which that money was expended, was to give it to me.

By the l1in. Mr. Béique:

Q. llow should it be charged? To what acceunt?-A. A company that wa
honestly and properly manaed and conducted. its business so that it was nlot afraid
to ailow

Q. You say that it weuld be a wrong entry, if the entry was made as you sur-
mised: How should the entry be made? Under what aceount should the $5,000 have
been charged ? Yen say it should net be charged te legal expenses. To what should it
be charged ?-A. To damages paid te J. Thompson Patterson, $5,000. That is the
honest way te put it, because that is what it was.

Q. What difference would it make ?-A. Then the cxamiler on going there would
be able te inquiro what was the cause of the $5,000 they had to pay te >. Thompson
Patterson; whereas the examiner gees in now, and sees 'legal expcnscs, $5,000, James,
Seheil & Elkus,' and they cannet go behind that.

Q. Are~ fot ite"ms of that kind usiially charged te legal acceunt ?-A. I cannot
answer that question-net in an honestly managed cenceru of any kind.

Q. Then the next exhibit is No. 43, ineeme, dishursements and net assets, and
reads as follows-

MUTIJAI RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

Net or invested assets, including 'agents' ledger balances secured, $314,462.59'
and furniture and fixtures, $41,640.77, iDecember 31, 1895, $3,967,316.25.
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INOOME, DISBUE5EMENTS AND NET ASSETS.

Table compiled from sworn reports, sliowing total income, total dishursements
and total net assets, December 31 of each year, including cashin office, in banks and
with collectors:

Year, Dec. 31.

1896 ............................
1897 ..... ............................. .... ....1898 ..... .. ....... ................... .... .........
1899 ..... ... ............. ..... ............
1900.......... ......... ..................
1901.. ý....... ....................................

Totals.... ..................................

To « iTotal net As-
<Total . Toal Dis- se.ts Dec. 31

urements. each year.

5,858,476 97 51585,417 691 4,021,140 29
6,081,309 87 5,963,082 871 4,139,367 29
6,134,327 27 6,3i5,939 30ý 3,334,169 78
5,192,030 21 5,7,M,728 ý2 2,672,873 65
5j,333,969 80 5,077,247 841 2,849,875 77
6,700,222 38 6,850,079 27 2,611,790 19

3,0,W50 35,607,495 69' 19,629,2169

Net or invested, assets, December 31, 1895.......$3,967,316 25
Net or invested assets, December 31, 1901.......2,611,790 19

iDecrease.................$1,355,526 06

The $1,355,526.06 decrease in net assets is accounted for, in1 part, as follows
Disbursements ini excess of income, 1896-1901. .... $ 317,159 69
Furniture and fixturoe, December 31, 1901. .. ...... 69,617 84
' Agents' ledger balances secured'1 December 31, 1895 314,462 50
Loss on disposai of real estate, 1899. .......... 1,856 10

$ 693,096 22

Agents' ledger balances, and furniture and fixtures are nlot included in net assets,
December 31, 1901.

The balance to be accounted for after deducting tbe $693,096.22 as above is
$664,429.84.

In the sworn report, December 31, 1895, page 2, liue 4, there appears the follow-
ing item in invested assets:

' Agents' iedger balances secured '. . . . $314,462 59

If no part of this $314,469.59 'secured' was lost. the amount to be accounted for
is $967,892.43.

Where did you get the information contained in that statement 1-A. I ob-
tained the figures from the sworn reports of the Mutual Ileserve Fund Tife Associa-
tion, to the Insurance Department of the State of New York.

Q. And the figures contained therein are as shown in the sworn report 1-A. Ycs,
they are correct.

Q. You have a copy of that table there. What do you mean by net or invested
assets g-A. Those are the assets which thc company bas irivested, and consist either
of cash or of bonds and mortgages admitted by the Insurance Department of the
State of New York.

Q. And available, for the payment of death losses. Is that wbat you mean 1-A.
Part of that would not be available for death losses.

Q. At any rate, this would be the whole of the actual invested assets of the comn-
pany ?-A. Yes.
PAYrTEReON
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Q. And when you say that the wbole of it would flot be available for thie payinent
of death losses, what do you -mean by that l A. I mean the amount repre.sented by
the Mutual iReserve building is flot available, and the amount of deposits in foreign
cotintrie, of which Canada is onte, are iiot- available for the paymeut of death losses.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. But tbey would be able to go after the company in Canada for the death losses?

-A. After the thing was in the hand of a receiver, but flot before.
Q. If a judgmcnt was revovered, it could be satisfied I-A. I fancy it could, but

I cannet pass on tliat.

By thte fion. Mfr. Lougheed:
Q. If not available for dleath-losees, what would they be for ?-A. Thcy arc hcld

there for the protection of policy-holders in that country, te be held as long as the
cumpany continues to do business, because if the company should at any time with-
draw from the coufitry, that money would be there, to, in part, pay up the death
losses-no, I wish to take that back, and correct that statement. I arn trying to
testify here as honestly and intelligently as I can. No part of that xnoney is avail-
able for the payment of death losses, so long as the company remains solvent, as I
understand it-no part of the money.

By thte Hon. Mfr. Béique:
Q.It is a kind of reserve ?-A. It is a condition-

The CI-AIRMAN.-It is a guarantee.

lion. Mr. BÙIQUE.-That is not a matter of evidence.

By Mfr. Coster, K.C., Go'unsel for the Committee:
Q. I see by this statement, that the net or invcstcd assets. December 31,

1895, were $3,967,316.25, and on December 31, 1901, $2,611,790.19, a difference against
the company, a decrease of $1,355,52W.06. That is correct, is it ?-A. Yes.

Q. That is what is shown by the sworn report I A. Yes.
Q. How do you account for that $1,355,526.06 decrease in the net assets I-A.

I can account for it in part by the fact that tbe disbursements in the years 1896 te
1901, ail the assets inclusive, exceeded the income by $309,157.69, and that there was
included in the invested assets, DL)cember 11, 1895, furniture and fixturesa nd agents'
balances. Deducting that net amount agents' balances, $314,462.69, and furniture and
fixtures, as of IDecember 31, 1901 both were included, and it should be deducted-
and it is a larger amount than in 1895-$69,000. Add these together. and they make
$693,096.22, which, subtracted from. the $1,355,526, leaves $664,429.84 that I cannot
accoutit for in any way.

By thte Hon. Mfr. Lougheed:

Q. Was there any depreciation in any security I-A. There wa s a loss on real
estate, 1899, of $1,856.10. The only way it could be accounted for is that it was written
off and agents' balances paid te agents in addition to what bas been paid te agents.
I should like to state that in tbat item of agents' ledger balances included in the
assets December 31, 1895, the item appears in tbe sworn report 'agents'1 ledger balances
necured.' Well, if you take it for granted that these agents' balances being secured,
no part of it was lost, then there bas to be accounted for $967,892.43.

Q. Wiceh you cannot account for 1-A. Which I cannot account for, taking as an
accountant, charging the disbursements and ail the items, and then 'adding il up, and
taking the assets December 31, 1895, and 1901, and that is the condition of affairs,

PATTERSON



378 SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE POSITION 0P

4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904

and if I w ere an accountant, and passing on the financiai condition of the institution,
I would say the $664,000 was totally unaccounted for.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.You wouid ask the company toý say whether they could account for it before
passing that judgment ?-A. Yes.

Q. Senator Lougheed asked you the question whether it could flot be by de-

preciation of the buildings, for instance, real estate ?-A. No, the building lias in-
creased,

Q. Had they any stockis or anything of that hind hy way of security ?-A. No.
that is specially reported to the Superintendent of Insurance, and there is a inatter

in 1899, loss on disposai of real estate, $1,S56.10. That is ail the depreciation I bave

considered.

By the Chairman:

Q. The property has gone up in value I-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. You have stated the difference between 1895 and 1901. Was it a graduai
difference from year to year I-A. Yes, practicaily so.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. llow about the prelnium notes?-A. No premium note are included in this
statenient. They were neyer in the New York report, until 1902.

B?, the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. As a matter of tact, .you are quitc satisfied it is unaccounted for ?-A. It is
accounted for, probably, in the amount paid to agents, but it does not appear in these
reports. It cannot be accounted for, taking it without any further explanation.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commit tee:

Q. The next exhibit is No. 44, and reads as follows:

(Exhibit No. 44.)

MITTUAT. TWSERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

'Selec lion against the Company.'

Number of ruembers, IDecember 31, 1895, age 60 and under 100,458
Number of members, Deoember 31, 1901, age 60 and under. 61,028

Decreaàe....................39,430
Number of members, December 31, 1895, age 61 and over. 5,420
iNumber of inembers, iDecember 31, 1901, age 61 and over. 7,768

Increase.....................2,348

NoTE.-The number of members, at the various ages is flot given ini reports
subsequent to 1901.
PATTERlO';
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Death Rate and Expenses Increasing.

Death Rate Expenses to
Yer.per $1,000 each 8t,000

Mean Instur- Mean Insur-

__ance in Force. ance in Force.

1900......... ............. .................. ............ 20 86 9 91*
1901.._...... ........ ................................... 26 78 10 29
1902 .... .. ......................... ................... .... ........ 21 64 il 87
1903........................................................23 09 il169

Increasing Cosi Caused Increased Death Rate.

The numbers going out with the increasing rates was undoubtedly the cause
of the death rate going up. It was inevitable that in sucli a case the better risks would
get out, leaving the risks that rernained impaired as to quality, and thereby producing
a heavier death rate, and that is what really happened.' (Testimony of Geo. D.
Eldridge, actuary, Part 2, page 58.)

Death Rate should not Eoeceed 12 per 1000.

'The close conformity of this rate to that experienccd by active life insurance
companies is remarkably noteworthy, and, evkarly slhows that in any community or
mass of livt-%, subject to practically uniform incretuent. or ducreweid , the death rate
will, aftcr having once attained, in a general community, about twenty-three to a
thousand, or in a life in.surance organization about twelve to a thousand, remain there-
after practically uniform.' (Agents' Manual, Muftual iReserve Fund Life Association,
1897 edition, page 73, by Geo. D. Eldridge, actuary.)

'The full tabular death ratios of the American Experience Table of iMortality, a
rate of death decrement that has neyer been shown by any active life insurance coin-
pany, have been taken for deternujning the amount of death dlaims payable.'
(Agents' IManual, Mutual IReserve Fund Lile AsHoiation, 1897 edition, page 87.)

What do you mean by selection against the company ?-A. That is a terin used
in life insurance, wherc the better clasa of lives, younger and more healthy class,
leavA~ tl-e company, and consequently leave the older and impaired lives with the
company, the effect of which is to, cause an increase in the mortality experience of the
company, which goes on and on, getting greater and greater, until it wrecks the coin-
pa.ny, and ail life insurance companies endeavour to fine a mani if he gets out of the
company, by retaining a certain portion of bis reserve, if he takes a cash surrender
value, to provide against that selection as far as possible.

Q. Look at Exhibit 44, marked as 'Selection against the company.' Where did
you get the information contained in that t-A. Frein the sworn reports of the Super-
intendent of Insurance of the State of iNew York.

Q. And aise froin the sworn evidence of Mr. George ID. Eldridge ?-A. Yes, and
lis published works.

Q. And those are accurately stated here ?-A. The figures and quotations are
accurate.

Q. In 1895, 1 see that the itumber of members aged 60 and under, is 100,458 ?-
A. That is correct.

PATTERSON
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Q. And in 1901, there were 61,028, or in other words a decrease of members aged

sixty and under, of 39,430 ?-A. That is correct.
Q. And of the members in the samne time, of the age of sixty-one and over, there

was an increase of -2,348. Is that rigit ?-A. That is correct.

Q. What was the effect of that on the business of the company 1-A. The effect

of that is, that it has caused, for the want of a better termi to express it, a small-pox

hospital death rate, and an abnormal death rate.
Q. And could that have been remedied in any way by the management 1-A. It

neyer would, in my opinion, have existed, had it flot been that by the peculiar methods

adopted by the management, the members and the publie generally lost entire con-

fidence in the management and in the company, and the better and younger class of

men that could get insurance elsewhere have left the company and taken insurance

elsewhere, and the older class of men bcyond insurable age, who have been in ill-health,
have been forced to remain in the company, and thereby are camsing an incrase in the

death rate, which will, iu my opinion, based on an examination of the experience of

life insurance, or study of life insurance, will continually in7creas-

By the lion. M1r. Lottgheed:

Q. That. is the logical sequence ?-A. Yes.

By, the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. It is the sequence of the unpopularity of the company 1-A. Yes, and it is

the sequence of the mistake of the company in taking over and reinsuring other coin-

panies: Take the iNorth-wvestern Life Insurance Company, for example, we find that

on examining this record, that the number of membeis aged sixty-one and over, the

year after'the reinsurance of the North-western, was very much larger than the pre-

vious years, somie two or three thousand members, if I reeollect rightly.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Jo unsel for the (Jommittee:

Q. And the resuit was, the death rate increased, and the expense increased 1-A.

Yes.
Q. llow does the death rate of Llh 5 couïpany from 1800 to 1903, compare with

that of other conipanies, do you know l-A. Taking the Bankers' Life in comparison,

it is at least three times larger. The death rate of the Mutual Ileserve Fund Life

Association for the years ending IDecember 31, 1899, 1900, 1901, 1902 and 1903, is

more than threc times larger than the Bankers' Life.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Watson:

Q.I asked a question yesterday morning, if the Bankers' ILife was open to the

general public for insurance, the saine as the New York Mutual Reserve I The an-,

swer was that it was open to the public. I have been informed that such is not the

case. What is your opinion 1-A. I should like the Honourable Senator te explain

what lie means by open to the public.
Q. I was informed by a Senater who has friends in the United States, connected

-with the banlis there, that hie was informed that hie could not get insurance in that

association; that lie had to be connected with the banks 1-A. That is absolutely not

the case in the Bankers' Life of Des Moines, Iowa. Anyone who can comply with

the conditions of the Bankers' Lu e can get into it, and the conditions are that lie

must not exceed a certain age, and that lie must be in good health.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Wliat age 1-A. I think 55.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q.What is the limît of the Mutual Reserve 1-A. The age is sixty. Probably

this gentleman has been misled by the fact that the Bankers' Life requires a baniker
PATTERSODZ
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to pass on every application ; that is, if you are making application to the Bankers'
Life to-day you would bave to be passed by a medical examiner, and some banker
would have to O.K. the application, as to your moral hazard and your character, and
Bo on.

By the Hon. Mr'. Watsoni:
Q. A man lias to be a custoiner of the bank that passes upon it ?-A. He lias

flot.
Q. You state that he must have knowledge of him, that he must do business with

the bank when he passes on the application ?-A. I stated that you had to get your
own banker or some other banker to pass on the application.

Q. They are very select risks l-A. Certainly. That is one of the things I com-
mend them in. There is ne reason why any other life insurance company should not
take the same care.

The Conimittee adjourned tili 8.15 p.m.

(Exhibit No. 15.)

(This exhibit was referred to in the examination of iMr. Patterson, but xvas not
formally filled ut the proper time.)

Income and Expenses.

TABLE showing total income and amount expended in management to each $1,000

of income.

MUTUA RESRvE FNi). B.i.KEn,' LIFE Associ-

Y ear.____ ___

Income. Expenses. Income. E:xpenses.

$ets. $ ~. 8 ets.: $ ets.

1896 ............................ .......... 5,858,476 97 272 46 950,721 69 190 54
1897 ý.......... ... .... ............-........ 6,081,309 87 < 296 06 1,172,695 90 1Zi1 09
1898. ............. ............ >.............. 6,134,327 27 292 09 1,317,376 40 15.3 55
1899 ...... ........ ......... ............... 5,192,030 21 263 36 1,505,025 48 146 77
1900 ..... ... .............................. 5,333,969 80 1 245 0>9 1,639,939 51 134 80
1901 .......... .................... ....... 6,700,222 38 264 82 1,577,270 44 151 68
1002 ..................................... 5,025,862 99 334 91 2,121,228 90 191 90

Premium Note Account, 1902.

In the income of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association for the year ending
December 31, 1902, page 8 of the sworn report to the Insurance Department of the
State of New York, there is about $608,004.35 of premium notes. Consequently, the
actual cash income for the year 1902 was only $4,417,853.64, being $2,282,368.74 less
than the cash income for the year ending December 31, 1901.

In the year 1902 the Mutual Reserve Fund ILife Association Company expended
$381.01 in management to eacli $1,000 of its cash income.

PATTIERSON
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The Committee met at 8.15 p.m.

Examination of J. T. PATTERSON contrnued.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., (Jounsel for the Committee:

Q.Look at Exhibit No. 45, showing total death dlaims paid and death dlaims
compromised. Did you make up that schedule i-A. I did.

(Exhibit No. 45.)

-MITUAL IRESEIRVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION.

Total Death Claims Paid and Death Claims Compromised.

Total death dlaims paid. Death dlaimis comproulised.

Numnher Number Face value
Year. of Amount paid. of of Amotint paid.

Folicies. policies. policies.

$ $
1897........1,352 4,060,479 67 1 230,714 81,366
1898 ,323,8q7,501 116135 410,881 128,494
1899 .. .. 1,369 3,840,679 145 429,693 170,582
1900.......1,190 3,302,190 118 57',99 14,1361901....... .190 4,789,293 324 1 6,5 7,3

Number Paîd int Full and Number Compromised.

NUMBER of policies paid in ful Number compromised-The per cent of number
compromised to number paid in full, and the, per cent of the face value paid on
compromised claims.

Ya. Number of polic'ies Number of policies
iea. aid in full. cosnpronnseci.

1897 ... ............ 1,285 67
1898 ...... 1,236 i16
1899 1,22-4 145
1900................1,072 1is
1901 ............... 1,584 324

Per cent of
number peid

in fu]l

5'22
9.38

11*03
11,01
20*45

Average Amount Paid-Compromise, 1901.

Average amount paid on 78 $ 1,000 policies ............
24 3,000 "........

48 5,000

" 12 10,000 . . .

PÂTTFERSON

Fer cent of face
value paid as
compromis*.

39,38
.59.79

$495
1,657
3,765
7.031
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A Few of the Reasons for Compromnise.

No. No. No. No. No.
1897. 1898. 1899. 190)0. 1901.

Breach of warranty.. ........................... 0 0 0 65
Excessive ose of liquor.......... ............. 2 10 9 10 22
Lapse ................ .......... ........... 1 28 35 41 25
Suicide ................ ............ ......... 2 7 6 6 20

Amount saved by compromise, 1900-01........$ 605,496
Estimated saving in liens, 1900-01. ........... 800,000

Total saved by liens and compromises. ..... $1,405,496
Last examination of compromised claims by the Insurance Departfnent was made

in 1898. See testimony Geo. iD. Eldridge, No. 4, page 35.

Q. And are the figures correct l-A. They are ail correct.
Q. Whr is this statement taken from l-A. It is taken from the returns to the

Insurance Department of the State of New York and sworn to by the oficers of the
Company.

Q. Take the report of 1901-that is the largest amount of losses, $960,000, sub-
mitted to the Department of Insurance in Canada-and tell the Committee whether
there is any sehedule of losses compromised, such as appears in the report to the New
York Department l-A. The schedule is Schcdulc No. 11, and it is entirely blank in
the reports made to the Insuraince Department in Canada.

By the Chairman:
Q.State the nature of the sehedule l-A. It is a sciiedule of elaine, cornpromiscd,

scaled down or dropped dur-Ing the calendar year covered by statement, with reasons
for doing so.

Q. What does that sehedule contaîn l A. That ought to contain a list of al]
ci aims compromised.

Q. What does it contain l-A. It is blank.
Q. What does the New York one contain ?-A. It -dontains a complete list.

fly the lion. Mr. Lou.qheed:
Q. iDoes tho Canadian Act require that scheduile to bie filled?-A. This is sworn

to be an exact copy of the statement to the New York Insurance IDepartment.

Mr. COSrs.-This report of 1901 is swurn to by George D. Eldridge, vice-presi-
dent, and Charles W. Camp, and it purports to be the annual statement for the year
ending IDecember 31, 1901, of the condition and affairs of the Mutual IReserve Fund
Life Association, organized under the laws ofthe State of New York, made to the
Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York, pursua.nt to the laws thereof.

The CHmÂImAN.-iPlease have the witness state the difference between the docu-
ments ?-A. This whole matter has been gone into in these exhibits which are already
in, except the schedule 11, part 2 and schedule 12 as it is given here. The first one is
death dlaims reported and unadjusted dlaims, and the other is dlaims scaled down.
Both of these'are blank in the Canadian report.

Q. Is there a letter there attached to the Canadian report ?-A. There is a letter
from the Mutual Reserve Fund life Association. It is as follows :

' Owing to the examination of the association by the Insurance Department of
New York flot being completed at this date, the report of the association has net as

PAIrMRSON
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yet been filed with the New, York Insurance Departmient. The association herewith
files its statement as it would be made to-day, but for the incomplete examination, and
if the results of such examinatian should affect this statement it will subsequently
fle with the Dominion departmnent a duplicate, of the statement as it will ultimately
be made to the New York Insurance Departmnent. The association trusts that, under
these circumstances, the accompanying report will be received by the Dominion
department as a full compliance with the requirements of the law. (Signed) Chas.
W. Camp, Secretary.' It is dated New York, February 24, 1902.

By, the CAairman :

Q. That is asking the Canadian department to, accept an incomplete report ?
A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q.Would not the new York report be flled before that ?-A. iNo.

B2, the Chairman:
Q.At the time that letter was written was the report of the compromised dlaims

sent to the New York departmnent ?-A. I amn unable to answer that question.
Q. Can you tell by the dates of the two documents ?-A. No, but the facts are

that these two reports cover the year 1901, bath reports for exactly the saine time, and
bath reports were made a month and a half after the year closed; so it is difficuit ta
see how there could be any change in the condition of the report in ail its important
features by examination. Certainly, I inight add, the schedule of compromised and
scaled down dlaims was complete on December 31, and could flot be changed by any
examination.

Q. Then, according ta yau, the report sent to New York with that schedule of
compromised dlaims was amitted in the Canadian schedule ?-A. It was.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Calling your attention ta the repart, in 1897, the total dlaims paid amounted
ta $4,060,479, of which amount anly $230,714 was campraniised ?-A. That is right.

Q. And of this amaunt compromised, the face value af palicies, there was paid
only $81,366. Would not that shaw that there might have been fair grounds for
comprising those dlaims ?-A. I think that is what it shows. There wes very good
ground for compramising those dlaims or they could nat have paid s0 small an
ainount.

Q. lfrow take 1891; there were $4,789,293 of claims, being less than $700,000 more
than was paid in 1897, and yet of this amount they compromised $960,252 of the face
value of tht policies-is. not that riglit ?--A. That is correct.

Q. Would or would nat that, in your opinion, be evidence that something shouIJ
have been paid in full ?-A. From a very careful examination of the list of compro-
mised dlaims, there is undoubted evidence in my mind that they should have been
paid in full absolutely. I might give an exemple.

Q. I see there are a few exemples which you have noted here. ,Can you give
any ?-A. For example, in the year 1901 the dlaims resisted on the grounds of suicide
are at least three times as great as they were in former years, and in that list there
are policies compromised on the grounds of suicide that the insured has paid pre-
miums an the policies more than flfteen years, and they are nearly paid in full. In
some cases one hundred dollars is deducted, ini sonie two hundred dollars deditcted
on a ten thousend dollar policy.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

QIs the company hable in case of suicide ?-A. Jn the earlier policies they
would not be hiable, according ta the contract.
PATTERSOI
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Q. In the case of suicide to which you have referred, would they cornte under the
ciass of policy in which the company was nlot Hable in case of suicide ?-A. Yes, these
policies I refer to are policies which have no provision that after being in force for a
certain number of years tbey would be incontestable. There was a condition in the
warranty that if the man committed suicide the company would flot be Hable, in the
eanlier policies, flot the later.

Hon. iMr. ILoUGHEED.-W"e shouid have very conclusive evidence whether the con-
tract covered suicide or not. A general statement of that character doos not give us
information Iliat we shouid have.

The CHAIRMAN.-If the witness is allowed to explain what lie knows, lie rnay lie
abie to state what the conditions were.

Hon. Mr. LoucHEED.-If we have the policies we couid tell whether the company
was liable or not. The counsel should present the circurnatances so that we could
letermine.

WITNESS.-I was connected in the agency departrnent with this association for
seven or eight years. I arn thoroughly familiar with the conditions of the policies
issued. at that time and they contained a clause that in the event of the policy-hlder
eornmittng suicide, the association would be liable oniy for the return of the
prerniums that the policy-hoider had paid. Now, here is a policy No. 67791 ; the
arnount iffsued is $5,O00; the amount paid is $3,720. From the number of that poiicy
I know that the poiicy was issued at ieast ten years ago, probabiy tweive years ago.
and the policy-holder was paying the premiurns ail that time.

By the lion. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. This may be oniy the returned premiurn as stipffliateH in the poiioy? A.

Possîbiy.
Q. TIhe inference is irresistable frorn the first answer you gave, that the company

should have paid the whoie policy?-A. That is what every cornpany that I know of in
any part of the world would do.

Q. I understand you to state that the policy provided that only the prerniurns
shouid have been returned ?-A. The company bas the right aiso under that sarne
policy to pay it in f ull, and in the exarnination made by the Insurance Department,
attention is called te the fact in the earlier days of the cornpany that they did pay.
even in cases of that kind, in full.

Ry the Hon. Mr. Robe rt.son:
Q. Do I understand that this is one of the suicide cases?-A. It was.
Q. And do you rnean to say that lie was paying premiums after lie cornmitted

suicide ?-A. 1 did flot intend to say that-I hope I did flot.

By the Hon. Mfr. Béiqve:
Q. But I understand you to say that ail insurance companies pay the fui]

amount of the policy in case of suicide ?-A I have neyer known of a corpany-
Q. I do not ask whether you have known of a company; I ask whethcr you under-

take to say, as a matter of fact, that ail companies pay the full amount of the dlaim
in case of suicide ?-A. I do flot.

Byj the Hon. Mfr. McSweeney:
Q Are flot policies incontestable after three years now ?-A There are life in-

surance companies that make the policy incontestable from the date of its issue on
the ground of suicide.
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. Can you give me a few samples that you abstracted from the report?-Aý.

Policy No. 335,708, amount ten thousand dollars, paid in compromise on this dlaim

$9,106.30; why not paid in fulil? Breach of warranty. ?olicy No. 111,450, and 345,339,

amount paid twelve thousand dollars, face value of policy, amount paid $10,144.40,
why not paid in fulil? Conditions of reinstatement violated. Policy No. 100,373 and

107,702, ten thousand dollars, amount paid in compromise $8,868.50. Why not paid in

full? Breacli of warranty. iPolicies 313,928 and 186,255, ten thousand dollars face

value, ainount paid $8,032.80. Why flot paid in ful? Misrepresentation. Policy

149,636, face value of policy five thousand dollars, amount paid on compromise

$4,925.23. Why not paid in full Conditions of reinstatement violated. iPolicy No.

502,880, $5,000, amount paid in compromise, $4,506.60. Why not paid in full? Ex-

cessive use of liquor.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve

Q.What year's report is that ?-A. 1901. Policy No. 136,353, $5,000, amount

paid in compromise $4,449.51. Why flot paid in full iMisrepresentation. Policy 219,561,

in compromise $4,449.51. Why flot paid in full? Misrepresentation. iPolicy 2,19,561,

amount of policy $5,000, amount paid in compromise $4,811.42. Why not paid ini full?

False certificate of health. iPolicy 134,204, $5,000, amount paid in compromise

$4,130.41. Why îîot paid in full? Breach of warranty. Policy No. 385,510, amount

of policy, $5,000, amount paid in compromise, $4,777.60. Why not paid in full Con-

ditions of reinstatement violated. Policy 133,030, $5,000. Amount paid in compromise

$4,646.84. Why flot paid in full? False certificate of health. Policy 65,274, amount

of policy $10,000, amount paid in compromise, $9,2 18.36. Why not paid in full

Excessive use of liquor. This completes the list. 1 wouid like to say that this last

policy, 65,274, must have heen in existenice, probably, 1 should think, for flfteen years.

By the Hon. 31fr. Lougheed:

Q. You were flot in the employ of the company at that time, in 1901 -A. 1 was

not. I know that from the number of the policy.
Q. Do I understand that you take exception in a general way to the settienient of

the policies on that basis without knowing the facts which may have attended the

compromiseI

The CHAIRMN.-Would it not be better to let the Counsel finish bis examination

before members of the Committee ask questions?

WrrNEss-I should like to cail the attention of the Committee to one more policy,

No. 390,011, one thousand dollars, amount paid in compromise $90. Why not paid

in full? Breach of warranty and excessive use of liquors.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel fo~r the Committee:

Q.I should like y'ou to explain the object of that schedule which is in evidene

now I-A. My object in preparing that schedule was to he able to give testimony or

evideuce here, which I believe would satisfy the Committee that the iMutual iReserve

Fund Life Association have in these recent years compromisd a far larger percentage

than in years in its previous history, as the fact shows. For example, in the year

1897, there was only 35 per cent paid, of the face value. In 1898, 31 per Cent, in 1899,

39 per cent, and in the year 1901, they paid 59.:79, or nearly 60 per cent of the face

value of the policy, and to the further fact that the figures show that on the smaller

policies a much smaller amount is paid in compromise, than on the larger policies.

On the smaller policics, there is only 49 per cent. On the thousand-dollar policies

the average is $495, where the average on the $5,000 policies is $3,765, and on the

$10,000 policies which are recorded here, it is aIl the way up to, $9,000 and over. In
PATTERSON
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no year except the year 1901, was there any policy resisted on the ground of breach
of warranty. 1 have examined ail the statements and policies, and find no0 case in
which breach of warranty was given as the reason for flot paying it in full.

By the (Ihairman:
Q. UTp to what year?-A. Up to 1901, and also to show that in the year 1901,

with almost the saine amonnt paid, in losses, the compromise was nearly five times as
great as it was in 1897. That is the whole thing.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q.Wbat do you mean by breacli of warranty l-A. The warranty is what the

policy-holder agrees to in bis application, signs the warranty, and it is some of these
conditions that be bas violated, that is called a breacli of warranty. Excessive use of
liquor would be one.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. And I suppose there would be a prohibition as to going into certain territory l-A. The policies of the Mutual Ileserve, when 1 was in the company, had no limita-

tion as to territory.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel foi, the C'ommittee:
Q. A question was asked as to what dlaims were compromised-what is the ex-

pression used there ?-A. 'Scaled down.'
Q. Can you find any sucli schedule as that in the reports of any other companyl

-A. No such schedule that I have seen.
Q. Have you looked ?-A. I have examined officiai reports of other comparues-

neot a very large number of them, a dozen or so, I should suppose.
Q. And you can find no such statement in any other eompany? A. No.Q. Why was it that the Mutual Ileserve is the only coiapany that is compelled

to put it ini, do you know that ?-A. The Mutual iReserve is flot the only --Ompany
that is compelled to put it in. It applies to ail companies doing business on the
same plan.

Q. But you could flot flnd it in the statements of other companies i-A. Not any
that I have examined. I ame not aware that I have examined the annual sworn state-
ments like this for assessment companies. I have seen and examined several of the
sworn statements of other companies, and I neyer sa'w it in.

Q.You cannot find it there ?-A. No.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:
Q.Do you know if it is iii the iBankers' Mutual of Des Moines? Did yeu examine

it ?-A. I have flot exained it, but I have never heard of any dlaim of that kind.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:
Q. Is it required under the laws of the State of New York ?-A. Certainly.Q. It is required by the law t-A. Yes, they would have to comply with it.Q. And if any other companies compromise or scale down, they have to present

it in the sehedule ?-A. No, with a regular life insurance company, in the blarik, there
is nothing to show that any dlaims have been scaled down or compromised. That
sebedule, as I remember it, is flot there at ail, I assume, for the reason that there are
se few of there.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:
Q.You assert; that there is no other company of any standing doing business in

the State of New York, known to you, that lias any sucli colum as that, scaled down t
-A. I could flot swear to sucli a broad principle as tbat.
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Hon. Mr. LouGluEED.-I move-now a reconsideration of the decision last night ini
referenQe to the proceedings between this witness and the company, that Exijibit 36l
Le withdrawn, and that we resolve flot to make any investigation of those charges.

Hon. Mr. LoANRY.-J move, in amendment, that Document No. 36, accepted yes-
terday, as a proof of the consideration f or which a sum of $5,000 has been paid by the
company to. one Patterson, be considered as such, and flot as a proof of the truth of
the charges which sucli document contained.

Hon. iMr. BÙIQUE.-I submit the amendment is not in order.

The CHÂIRMN.-If the amendment was a flat contradicition of the main motion,
it would not be in order, but as it is not a flat contradiction, and is merely qualifying
the motion, I consider that it is in order.

Hon. M, r. Bý1QE.-I wish it noted that I appeal from the decision of the chair-

man.

The amendment was carried on division.

The CIIAIRMAN.-Then the main motion as amended is carried.

By 3f1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. With reference to deferred premiums-what are deferred premniums ?-A.
Deferred premiums are the portions of the annual premiums not paid; that is, when
the premium is payable semi-annually, or quarterly-if it is semi-annually, the whole
of the half-.year's premium, if quarterly it might be three-quarters of the year's pre-
mium or one-quarter. Ail the regular life insurance policies assume the premium is
payable annually, but for the convenience of the însured, it may be paid quarterly, or
semi-annually, and it is the unpaid portion or the deferred premium.

Q. So that in this company, where it was paid as a rule, every two moiiths, there
*might be feu months of deferred premîims l-A. lu a very large part of the business,

it would be.
Q. Look at that statement marked exhibit 46, marked 'Deferred premiums.'

Where did you get that information l-A. I compiled that information from the offi-
ciai reports published by the insurance iDepartment for the State of New York, for
the year ending December 31, 1903.

Q. And the statements therein contained are correct, are they l-A. They are.
Q. This statement exhibit 46 reads as folloxvs:

EXHIBIT No. 46.

DEFERRED PREMIUMS.

Mutual Reserve Fund Lii e, 1903.

Total preinium income...............$4,293,790 33
Net deferred premiums and net premiums in transit 1,133,934 33
Per cent of deferred premiums to total premiums

paid........................24*41

,,Etna Lif e, 1903.
Total premium income...............$8,896,452 00
Nct deferred premium. ............... 636,280 38
Fer centage of deferred premiums te total premiums

paid........................71
PATTERSON
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Equitable Lif e Assurance Society, 1903.
Total prexnium income..............$58,637,889 63
Net deferred premîurQs. .............. 7,662,637 00
]?ercentage of deferred prerniums to total premiums

paid........................13'06

New Yorkc Lif e, 1903.
Total premium income.............$73,382,174 10
Net deferred premiums...............6167,726 98-
Percentage of deferred premiums to total premiums

paid .. .... ........ ...... ...... .......

Mutual Lif e Insurance Co., 1903.
Total premium income. ............. $60,151,019 66
Net deférred premiums. .............. 5,032,889 14
iPercentage of deferred premiums to total premiums

paid........................8'36

North-Western Mutual Lif e Insurance Co., 1903.
Total premium income. ............. $26,155,649 60
Net deferred premiums...............2,252,755 u)
Percentage of deferred premiurns to total prcrniums

paid......................

Q. With $4,293,790.38 total prexnium incowe of the Mutual Reserve in 1903, they
had net deferred premiums, and "et premiums i11 transit, of $1,133,934.33. That is
right, is it ?-A. iRight.

Q. In other words, the percentage of deferred premiunis to total premiums paid
was 26*41 ?-A. Yes.

Q. What was the percentage of the 2Etna Life Jasuranco Company in the sm
,year ?-A. 7*15.

Q. What was the perceatage. of the Equitable Life Assurance Society ?-A. 3*06.
Q. What was the percentage of the New York Life in 1903 ?-A. 8*40.
Q. What was the percentaoge of the Mutual Insurance Company of New York?

-A. 8*36.
Q. What was the percentage of the North-western iMutual Life Insurance Com-

pany in that year ?-A. 8'61.
Q. Can you explain why the deferred premiums in the Mutual iReserve are about

three times as much as the other companies ini proportion ?-A. Only on the ground
whieh has already been referred to, that a large proportion of the business of the
Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association is stili on the old assessment plan on the saine
policy ;that is, where the premiurn was payable every sixty days, and all the premium,
in fact on ail that business, when the statement was made up, would be considered
deferred premium, except one mortuary cail, perbaps, sixty days: therefore it will be
ten months of deferred premiums on that business, and ail the rest on the regular
line would be the same as any other company. A quarter or three-quarters would
be deferred premiuins.

Q. And the whole of that $1,133,000 is treated by the company as an asset h-A.
JIt is entered as an asset.

Q. It is an asset in your opinion for the fiill amount h-A. I should not think so
for the full amount.
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Q. Why not ?-A. Because of the large amount of business that has been passing
off the books of the company, ail that xuoney certainly will flot be paid.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheeed:

Q. It is flot an asset to the extent you represented, you mean to say ?-A. Yes,
that is what 1 mean to say.

Q. It would be an asset, nevertheiess. That is, an asset allowed by the Insurance
Department of the State of New York in ail companies ?-A. The only differenoe, as
1 have aiready explained, the condition of this company warrants the conclusion that
a very smail percentage, probably not 25 per cent of that, will ever be paid in cash.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Gounsel for the Committee:
Q. Wouid you have any way of showing what amount of deferred premniums of

the previous ycar had been paid in cash afterwards ?-A. I have no way of showing,
unless it would be hy the amount of insurance that had passed off the books by lapse
and otherwise the previous year.

Q. Do you think then that the percentage of deferred premiiims to total prPlniums
paid is large in the case of the Mutual iReserve. Is it larger in your opinion than i t
should he ?-A. If you mean by that, does that make the impression ou me that it is,
flot an honest statement, I would say no, that it does flot make that impression, and I
cannot say that it is larger or smaller than it should be. Owing to the pecilliar con-
tract of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association it would naturally be larger in
proportion, but flot to he a more valuable asset for that reason.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Did you say it w'as flot an honest statement ?-A. I did not say that.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Jo mmittee:
Q. What have you 10 say about those comparisons I What did you miake them for?

What was thie object t-A. The object in making the comparisons was to show in part
the items, of which the assets of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association are made
up, and that large item, $1,133,000, is ini my opinion based upon the history of the com-
pany for the last three or four years, almost a worthless asset. That is the principal
object I had in preparing that statement.

Q. What other assets have the compauy got that you know of? Could you state
shortly as 10 what they are, as shown by the report t-A. There is an asset of some
$480,000, called 'real estate,' which is a leaseho]d on a building at the corner of Broad-
way and iDuane streets, New York city, which is in my opinion flot, an available asset
for any sum.

Q. What else is there i-A. There are aiso, in the assets of thc iMutual IReserve
Fund Life Association some $2,000,000 of liens, that have already been explained, that
I do not consider as an asset at ail, in the reai sense of an asset.

Q. They could flot realize on them I-A. They could not realize a single dollar
on the two million.

Q. What else have they in the way of assets I-A. They have some available assetîý
in bonds sud mortgages on real estate, cash in hanks.

Q. What is the amount of that, roughiy speaking? You have flot got a statement
of that I-A. I have not. It is in the officiai report.

Q. Perhaps you could put that in afterwards. You couid prepare it 1-A,. Yes.
Q. I shouid like you to explain on the question of putting liens on policies. Ques -

tions were asked you as to whether the company had a right to place these liens on
the policies without the consent of the policy-hoiders. What have you 10 say about
that I Have you looked mbt the constitution and the contraet? Can you refer 10 it 1-
A. I have made a careful study of the constitution sud by-iaws as they exist at pre-
sent, sud the charter provides that the constitiition sud by-iaws form part of the con.
tract, sud by that constitution sud by-laws the board of directors have the riglit under
PATTERSON
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certain conditions to put a lien on any policies, or ail policies, of whatever kind, and
deduct it fromn the policy, when it becomes a claim.

The CHÂ&iRmN.-Can these liens be placed on the policies without the consent of
the policy-holders.l

Hon. Mr. BkiQuE.-That bas been explained and we have the by-law and the
minutes.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:
Q. I want to know, was the thing donc without the consent ?-A. I do not k-now.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Cornmittee:
Q. iMy question was, as to whether you could refer to the section of the by-law ?-

A. I can.
Q. IRead the section of the by-law which refers to that. The by laws are net. copied

in full on the minutes, and were only put in for identification. I want that section
which authorizes putting on the liens without the consent l-A. This is article VII.,
section 2, of the constitution and by-laws of the Mutual iReserve Life Insuranace Com-
pany, whieh reads as follows:

' Section 2. If the net value of the funds which any class, existing at the date of
reincorporation of the company under section 52 of the insurance law, shall bave ac-
cumulated, in excess of its equitable share of the outstanding dlaims and other accrued
liabilities of the company, shall be determined by the actuary of the company to be
Iess in arnount at any time than the reserve required by these capital by-laws, and the
policy -contracts of said class, of which the saine formn a part, or by-law, each certîfi-
cate or policy of said class shail be charged with an amount limited to its equitable
share of sucb deticienry, to ha determined hy the actuary of the compauy, which. amount
may stand as an interest-bearing loan upon the sedurity of such reserve, as provîded in
section 5 of this article, constituting a lien a9gainst the~ insurance undcr nch sucli cer-
tificate or policy, and any dividends or surplus accruing thereon, whieh lien may, how-
ever, at the election of the member or polîcy-holder, bie paid in cash and cancelled.'

'Section 3. Each policy or certificate holder or class of policy or certificate holders
shail share, equitably, and ini accordance with mutual principles, in the administration
and payment of the eost of insurance granted, and in the establishment and maintenance
of the reserve now or hereafter to be provided for the protection of their insurance, or
which may ba required by the nature of each contract or by-law. Whenever the
actuary of the company shall determine that the net contributions to the death f und
of the company for the purpose of paying death claims (being the payment made,
Icss that portion thereof provided or used for expenses) of any class of certifleates or
policies under which the cost of insurance is to, or may, be provided for,
in whole or in part. by asse.ssment. have been less than the tabular mortality
by the actuary's table of mortality, or any gi-cater rate of mortality actually
experienced by the company, in said class, the certificates or policies in said
elass shail be hereafter required to maintain a reserve terminnhie Linder the
standard applicable, as provided in section 1 of this article, in accordance with
the requirements of whole life continnous premium policies, as of age and rate for
the date of original entry. Such reserve, so f ar as it remains unprovided in cash,
may stand as an intere.st-bearing loan against the insurance under aay certillcate of
policy, on and against any dividends or surplus accruing thereen, as provided. in sec-
tion 5 of this article, which boan may, however, at the election of any member or policy-
holder, be paid in cash, and cancelled. Any certificate or policy hereby affected shaîl,
in consideration of the mnaintenance of sucb reserve, be entitled to, the regular surren-
der value, ascsomputed. by said company, applicable to a whole Mie continuons premiîum
policy, of the age and date of original entry, upon the reserve standard above named,
subjeet to the deduction of any lien or charge against the sanie, and payable only ini
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ýevent of written demand prior to lapse, and each certificate or policy shall, in lieu of
any or every method, or participation in surplus now therein provided, be credited
with its equitable proportion of the surplus of the company, apportioned by ihe board
of directors to the payment of dividende, to be determined by the actuary of the com-
pany, annually, the same to be applied to the reduction of any lien charge against the
certificate or policy, or otherwise, as the board of directors may determine. Any such
certificate or policy upon which the full reserve hereby required lias been paid or ac-
cumulated in cash, shall thereafter be subject only to premium paynients In accordance
with the table of rates for whole life continuons premium policies, as of age and rate
for the date of original entry. In the case of ail certificates, or policies under which
the reserve is permitted to stand as an interest-bearing loan, there shahl be added to
the said loan annually interest at the rate of five per cent per asrnum, and the whole
life, continuns premium as of age and rate, for date of original entry, and there shall
be deducted therefrom annually the -cash payments actually made by the policy-holder
during sucli year upon said certificate of policy, and the balance, if any, shail consti-
tute the principal of the boan for the next succeeding year.'

The Committee adjourned until 10 a.ni. to-morrow.

TH-URSDAY, July 14, 1904.
The Committee met at 10 a.m.

«J. T. PÂTTERSON, cross-examined.

By Mr. Geo ifrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Company
QIn 1887 and 1888 yon were with the associatio~n ?-A. I was.
Q.What were your duties ?-A. I was manager for the province of Quebec and

local treasurer or collector in Montreal.
Q. Was that the first position given you ini the association ?-A. I was first a

local agent for the association.
Q. Between what dates ?-A. 1886 and part of 1887.
Q. You entered in 1886 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And in the latter part of 1887, you were appointed manager for the province

of Quebec ?-A. The latter part of 1887 or 1888.
Q. And you held that position until whenb ?A. Some time in 1889.
Q. It was in 1889 that you removed to the head office ?A. It was.
Q. What were your duties at the head office ?-A. I remained there for a month,

and then went over to the old country.
Q. As local manager over there ?-A. As manager for Jreland.
Q. When did you change that position ?-A. In 1891.
Q. You returned to America ?-A. Yes.
Q. To the head office ?-A. Yes.
Q. What were your duties there ?-A. I went out and solicited business for a

tiine, and later on, in 1891, was appointed corresponding secretary.
Q. You held that position tili when ?-A. 'Until 1896, with an interval of a few

inonths, when I was out of the employ of the company.
Q. When yon left the employ of the company, were you still corresponding secre-

tary ?-A. I did not so understand it.
Q. I understood from your examination-in-chief, that in 1895,- shortly after that

incident between President Burnham and you, you practically left the position of
corresponding secretary, and went on the road to solicit business for some time b
A. For a month--that; was the action of the executive committee.
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Q. I want to have the dates. It was after having left your position as correspond-
ing secretary, and having been on the road as soliciting agent for about a month, that
you finally severed your connection with the association ?-A. It was.

Q. It would be in 1896 that you left the association ?-A. Some time in May or
June, 1896.

Q. You left the association finally ?-A. Yes.
Q. IIow long would you have been on the road as a soliciting agent ?-A. Oh,

sornething over a month.
Q.Before that ?-A. Yes.
Q.Su it was in the spring of 1896 that you ceased to act as corresponding sec-

retary ?-A. That is my recollection.
Q. In the earlicr ycars of the association you were familiar with the rates charged

hy the association ?-A. I was.
Q. And I understood you to swear in your examination-in-chief that you cn

gidered, and yon still consider, that those rates were sufllciently high ?-A. With a
careful selection of risks and econornical management, I did consider them so, and
consider them. so still.

Q. I arn speaking of the original rates-I mean the rates charged in 1887 and
1888 ?-A. And 1889; I specially cited 1889.

Q. The rates of 1888 were the saine ?-A. What I mean by rates is the amount
collected per thousand at the various ages, and adopted under the Shields resolution
in 1898.

Q. Have you a table of those rates ?-A. I have a table of them, which I 110w

produce.
Q. You state that the paper you have handed me contains the table of rates ini

force in 1889 I-A. Adopted in 1889, under the Shields resolution.
Q. WAi you please file this table of rates wîth the Committee for identification

-A. 'Yes.
Q4. Whilo in the ernploy of the company, previous to the first in<'rtense, you pre-

pared advertisement circulars for the association, did you not ?-A. Yes.
Q. That was part. of your dutyl ?A. .It was.
Q. INaturally, in those circulars you praised the systein and stated your opinion,

whicli is still your opinion also, that the rates were sufficient ?A. I do flot know
that I ever prepared any statement of that kind as an advertisement.

Q. Whether as an advertisement or otherwise ?-A. I xiever prepared any circu-
lar or any other document that was published that was not flrst passed on by Mr.
Eldridge.

Q. That is not what I am asking you. By Mr. Eldridge ?-A. By Mr. Eldridge
or some other oficer of the company. I had not authority to publish a circular or
make any other statement.

Q. When was Mr,. Eldridge in the association ?-A. In 1894,' I think.
Q. Previous to that, you did net; suhinit them. to hum I-A. I said, to some one

in authority, net having any authority to make statements as to the rates or standing
of the company in any way, without it flrst having been approved by the president,
or sorne one authorized by him.

Q. You prepared those statements, you say ?-A. I did.
Q. In those statements did you flot laim, as you still claim, from what I under-

stand, that those rates were sufficient, and there would be no increase g-A. There was
no necessity for an increase.

Q. You mnade that statement ?-A. I say so still
Q. I arn not asking you whether you say so stili; I arn asking you whether you

made such statements or not ?-A. It is my recollection I did.
Q. You also published certain books, while in the employ of the association, books

which purported to be books of yours as an author, and not advertisements of -the
association, did you not ?-A. 1 did puhlish books, certainly.

PATTERSON
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Q. Among those books there was The Natural Premium Life Underwriter's Pocket
Manual ?-A. Yes.

Q. That was flot issued as a publication of the iMutual iReserve Fund Life Asso-
ciation, was it? It was issued as a publication of yours ?-A. Ail I know about it is
the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association paid ail the expenses, paid the printer, and
they are the ones that used it.

Q. Wifl you please answer my questions? For the moment I arn simply asking
how it was issued ?-A. It was issued under my name, copyrighted by me, and pub-
Iished by the Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association, as I understand it.

Q. There was nothing on the book to show that it was published by the Mutual
IReserve Fund Life Association ?-A. The whole book itself showed that, and it was
prepared for thai purpose, and prepared for the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association.

Q. Do you mean to swear that this book, on its face, appeared te, be a publication
of the _Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, or a publication of yours as an author?
-A. It is my impression that it would show on its face that it was prepared for the
Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association.

Q. I am not asking you whether it would show on its face that it was a book fa-
vourable to the Mutual iReserve, or defending the iMitual Reserve. I arn asking whe-
ther it was a book which purported to be your publication, or like the advertisement;
and circulars of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association ?-A. I thi!lk, looking at
the titie of the booký

By the Hon. Mr. Robertson:
Q. Were you an emp]oyee of the association at the time?-A. I xvas.
Q. Therefore it was the company's book ?-A. Yes. I have no objection to stating

that, looking at the titie of the book, the impression would be that I was the author,
and it was my book, and I arn not the slightest ashamed of it.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Coun sel for the Mutual Reserve Company:
Q. There are a couple of other books to which the same answer applies: 'Which

system of lîfe insurance should I select?'-A. No, not exactly the same answer would
apply to that one. That was rather more of a geileral character than the Underwriters'
Manual.

Q. It would he therefore more a book of your own?-A. It would, and was.
Q. Now, 'The Survival of the Fittest,'-the sarne answer applies as to the others?

-A. The Manua].
Q. Or 'WThich System' ?-A. No, it does not apply to 'Which Systern.'
Q. 'The Mystery UJnvciled' ?-A. No, it does not apply to that.
Q. 'What explanation do you give of 'The iMystery Unveiled' ?-A. The mystery.

unveiled.,
Q. Is it a book which you classify under the same head as ' Survival of the Fittest'

and 'Underwriters' Manual,' or in the same category as 'Which System' ?-A. The
same category as 'Which System of Life Insurance Should I Select.'

Q. For ail those books you were paid, spart fiorn your salary or commission, as
an employee'of the association?-A. In the first place, I prepared 'Which System of
Life Insurance,' if I recollect rightly, when I was not in the employ of the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association, and when I prepared 'The IMystery Unveiled' 1 was
an agent of the Mutual IReserve Fund Life Association, earning iny income by com-
mission, and under no salary.

Q. I put it, i'salary or commission.' 'Mly question was-for ail those books you
were paid spart from your salary or commission as an employee of the association ?-A.
Paid as they bouglit them. In the case of 'Which System of Life Insurance' and for
'The Mystery Unveiled' they paid me $500 for the privilege of using that book and
publishing it themselves.

Q. I see in a letter of yours of the 25th IÇovember, 1893, addressed to Mr. Harper,
this statement
PATTER8)ON



THE MUTUAL RL'SERT'. FUND LIF)E ASSOCIATION 9

APPENDIX No. 1

'You paid me $500 for 'The Survival of the iFittest,' and the samne amount for
'The iMystery Unveiled,' and 1 neyer dreamed you would think of paying me less than
that for the IMauual' ?-A. Yes, I understand the letter thoroughly.

Q.That is correct ?-A. My recollection is that is correct.
Q.Then does flot the saine remark apply to 'Which Systemn of Life Insurance

Should I Select'? You were paid by the association for that also 1-A. I was not in
the same way. They bought copies of it only.

Q. It was published whule you were in the employ of the association ?-A. It was
published when I was flot in the employ of the association.

Q. I see in a letter dated July 6, 18~94, you send 5,000 copies of 'Which System.
of Life Insurance Should I Select,' charged $150 I-A. Likely that is correct.

Q. I have shown you the letter, and that is what the hitter says I-A. Yes.
Q. And it is your letter I-A. Yes, it bears out what I stated, that they bought

these books £rom me, and paid for them as they were delivered.
Q. In ail those books, as in the advertisements, you naturally claimed that the

original table of rates llled here for identification was suificient ?-A. The table of rates
adopted in 1889 was sufficient with proper selection of risks and economical mnage-
ment.

Q. You mean without increase 1-A. I do.
Q. As a level premium?-A. Yes.
Q. Will you please look at this letter of yours addressed to Mr. Harper, dated the

5th iMarch, 1894, and tell us wvhether it is a letter signed by you, and sent by you to
Mr. Harper at the date it bears, and if so, filed for identification ?-A. It is correct.

Q. In 1895 an increase was decided upon 1-A. It was.
Q.A large increase ?-A. Some ages, quite a large increase.
Q.You stated that it varied from flfty to one hundred per cent, I believe 1-A.

That is my recollection, fromn twenty-five to fifty, and one hundred-uearly one hund-
red per cent on some ages.

Q. Please look at thi6 littlc pamphlet, and tell us whether àt is an address Chat
you delivered at St. Louis. on behaif of the association, shortly after the increase Î
-A. That is a copy of the address, as near as I caui see.

Q. You recognize the pamphlet ?-A. It was published in pamphlet form and
circulated.

Q. And you have no doubt this is the pamphlet ?-A. I have no doubt, whatever.
(Filed for identification).

Q. You were in favour of that increase ?-A. I believe it was absolutely neces-
sary at that time.

Q. Wby had it become necessary ?-A. Because there was evidence to show
that while there was suificient funds on hand to pay ail death losses at that Lime, the
time would undoubtedly come wlien there would not be a sufficient amount to pay thé
death losses.

Q. The increase was practically ordered by the Superintendent of Insurance,
I understand ?-A. No, I did not understand that.

Q. You saw the report of the superintendent ?-A. I saw that he recommended
it, but I neyer saw that hie ordered it.

Q. 4ecomnmended it ?-A. Yes.
Q. Pid hie not say the right to advance the rates to the present age exists under

the association's by-laws, and some such action should, at the earliest opportunity,
be taken-are not those the words ?-A. I think that is tbe substance of what hie said.

Q. At that moment the rates were at the age of eéntry ?-A. Tbey were.
Q. In other words, a man was assessed on the basis of the age hie had wben hie

insured ?-A. Yes.
Q. And wbat the superîn tendent meant by 'attained age' was the age at the

moment the assessment was made ?-A. I do not know that hie said the rates should
be advanced to attained age.

PATTERQON
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Q.The present age ?-A. I do flot like to testify that the Superintendent of

Insurance said that they should be increased to attained age.
Q. He said the right exists to increase. I want to have the meaning of the

expression 'present age' or 'attained age'? Tt is the age at the moment the assess-
ment is made ?-A. Yes.

Q. The increase was made to haîf between the age of entry and the attained age ?
-A. It was.

Q. There were hopes that that would be sufficient ?-A. 1 presume so, from the
literature of the company issued at that time.

Q. llow can you explain that such a large increase as you mention had become
necessary as you admitted, and as the superintendent stated it, if the original rates
were sufficient ?-A. Because the company had not been properly managed from. the
beginning.

Q. There had been improper management from the beginning ?-A. Exactly.Q. Therefore, in 1895 you cbarged that the first increase became necessary, on
account of previous extravagance or dishonesty, or bath ?-A. There is no doubt that
is the fact-I do not wish to put my answer exactly in those words ; I prefer ta have
my answer that the increase no doubt became necessary on accourt of the mistakes,
and also the extraivagance, of the management.

By, the Hon. Milr. Robertson :
Q. You mean bad management ?-A. Not exercising sufficient care in the selection

of risks, and in expexiding too lavishly for expenses, the moneys of the company, or
the policy-holders.

Q. Wben did you convince yourself of that fact ?-A. Sometime in 1895.
Q. When the increase became necessary ?-A. iPrior to the increase.
Q. The increase took place, when-in 1895 ?-A. I think the caîl was sent out in

Aug;uat, 1895-cail 81, if I recollect.
Q. This increase caused cunsiderable dissatisfaction among the policy-holders,

I presume ?-A. It did, for a time.
Q. And you, as corresponding secretary, were charged to try and satisfy tbem ?

-A. I was.
Q. Either by answering their letters or by going and making speeches sucl ifs

the one I have just filed for identification ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did your speech at St. Louis, which bas been filed for identification, contain

this passage
'As it bas been publicly stated in the daily papers that the expenses of manage-

ment of the Alutual Reserve are enormous, it becomes my duty to place a few facts
before you. I know of no better way of determining as to whether or not the state-
ment is true tban by comparing the ilutual lieserve expenses with other well known
conipanies. The expenses of management are mnade up of two items, cost of new
business and expense of taking care of oid business. iFirst, the~ cost of iiew business.
In the year 1894 the total amnount expended in new business by the Miitual Ileserve
Fund Life Association was $14.43 per $,000, compared with an average of $20.6-1
expended by Fîdelity Mutuel, H'artford Life Annuity and Massachusetts Benefit.
These three companies combined show that the new business accepted and Éaid for
amounted ta a littie over $47,000,000, whereas the new business accepted and paid
for of this association alane amounted ta aver $53,OOO .000. Thle increase in the
amount of insurance in force by the ather three companies -,vas Iess than $,OOO,O00,
whereas the increase in the Mutual Reserve exceeded $30,000,000. The cost of new
business in twenty-eight of the best aid system life insurance companies doing business
in the State of New York averaged aver $48 ta each $1,000 of business accepted and
paid for. The twenty-eighit aid system companies received in new premiums $L22,-
747,685, and expended $28,557,741 iii agents' commissions, salaries and travelling
expenses of agents, medical examiners' fees, and in printing and advertising-. Theso
PATTERSON
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items are included. as cost of new business ini the ligures given for natural premium
companies.

Cost of taking care of old business, or the total expense to each $1,000 of insur-
ance in force in three naturel premium or assessmcnt companies already referred iii,
was $5,61, compared with $5.60 in the Mutual IReserve. The average expenses to
each $1,000 of insurance in force of ail the old system. companies doing business in
the State of New York in 1894 was $13.11, and several of thèm expended over $14 to
each $1,000 in force.'

XVas that containcd in your speech ?-A. It wûs.
Q. Did you flot then, accor ding to that speech, consider that there had been no

extravagance in the management ?A. 1 did not-do you understand my answer.
Q. I understand that ?-A. I mean, it does not necessarily follow that I meant

that the business had heen rnanaged as eeonomienlly as it couild have heen.
Q. But I understand you to state, from that extract from your speech, that it

had been mianaged more practically than aIl the ûther companies you mention there?
-A. No, not than ail other companies.

Q. 'i lie companies you mention there ?-A. Exactly.
Q. And you stili persist in saying that you had in your mmid, and knew then,

that there had been extravagance in the expenses of management ?-A. I knew then,
and stili believe, that the business cou-ld have been managed much more economically
than it was managed.

By the'Hon. M r. McMullen:
Q. Were you the hired servant of tAie comîpany at that time ?-A. I w-as; I was

under salary.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Cou nsel for lte Mu tuai Rescrve Company:
Q.Shortly after that speech you had a difficulty with Mr. Burnham, the presi-

de~nt ?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell us whien you had that difficulty, wvhen hie asked you to go to a

meeting of dissatisfled policy-holders ?-A. Some time in the latter part of 189 5. It
is my recollection it wvas some time in the latter part of 1895, but I cannot locate the
exact time.

Q. Would it be iii September ?A. Probably it would be some time ini September
or October.

Q. It was almost mmediately after your returil frorn St. Louis ?-A. The meeting
of dissatisfied policy-holders was held in August.

Q. If it was held in August, that interview must have been before the meeting
-A. It was not before tJîe meeting.

Q. Was not this interview almost immediately after your retiirn from the ýSt.
Louis meeting ?-A. No, it is my recollection it was a considerable time after.

Q. What do you mean by a considerable time ?-A. It might he a month or two
months.

Q. It would be in September or October, according to, your recollection ?-A. I
think so.

Q. From that moment you lost confidence in Air. Burnham ?-A. It shook my
confidence very muchi, I must confess.

Q. Did anything else occur between that date and the timie you left . to shake ilt
more, or was that the determining cause ?-A. That was largely the determining
cause. I could not say that nothing else happened.

Q. When you left had you- any other grievances or charges against the associa-
tion, or reasons to leave 1-A. No, riot that I recolleet, but I should like to niake

myanswer more fiilly f0 the question previous to this one. iMy confidernce was still
further shaken when 1 saw a published circular purporting to be a report of a coin-
mittee of dissatisfied policy-holders, recommending the management of the Mutual
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]Reserve and endorsing its action in the increase of rates, and so on, and knew that
that report was made by agents of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association-two
of them, at least, two out of the three.

Q. Who were they ?-A. One was E. iRandolph Taylor; 1 do flot recolleet the
other.

Q. Therefore, those arc the two facts that made you lose confidence in the hion-
esty of the administration of the Mutual Rieserve ?-A. These are the two principal
facts. There may have been others that 1 have forgotten; no doubt there were.

Q. That report of the dissatisfied policy-holders, you sawv shortly after the inti'r-
view with Mr. Burnham ?-A. I could not say how long after.

Q. lIn 1895 ?-A. lIn 1895 or 1896, 1 do not know which.
Q. Did that committee sit very long l-A. They had several meetings, 1 under-

stand.
Q. You cannot say when you saw it l A. No, I couid not swear to when I saw it.
Q. You were stili in the employ of the company then l-A. I ws
Q. As corresponding secretary i-A. I ws
Q. And these are the two facts that really determinedyou to leave ?-A. They

were the main facts, no doubt.
Q. Can yon mention other facts ?-A. Not at the present. No, 1 cannot recollcct

anything else of any consequence.
Q. And after you had left you have no personal knowledge whatever of the ad-

ministration of the association ?-A. No, I suppose I have not any real personal know-
ledge of it. I stili tried to keep myseif versed in regard to the management and the
condition of the association.

Q. But ail your evidence as to what happened subsequently, apart from the settie-
ment of the ]awsuit and the $5,000 paymcnt, is expert evidence merely based on the
reports to the government and the circulars of the association l-A. Yes.

Q. Then fromn the end of 1895, you state that you lost ail confidence ini the hon-
esty of Mr. Burnham g-A. Practically that is so.

Q. And in the honesty of the administration of the association generailly ?-A. -1
think that is also so.

Q. Wiil you please look at this letter of May 6, 1896, and tell us whether it is a
letter signed by you, and sent to iMr. Wells ?-A. That is my signature.

NORTH ADAMS, MASS., May 6, 1896.
J. D. WELLS, 2nd V.P.

IDEAR Sia,-I am sorry to have to tell you that 1 see littie prospect of writ-
ing business here. I have called on about fifty of the bcst business men ini North
Adams and vicinity, and cannot say that I am likeiy to write any of them. There are
three or four, however, who have made appointments with me, and I shahl theni do My
best, and in the meantime hunt up others. lIn this place, as I have no doubt it is ini
many others, our old policy-holders do not help us much. They pay their premiums
but when they are consulted by an intended insurer they do not recommend the Com-
pany. I have made it my business to sec as many of our policy-holders as possible,
and have given them information which has changed their views, and made friends of
them. lIn this way I feel I am doing as much good and probably more than lI can do
in any other way.

Our agent here, iMr. Tower, is a good man, and is very highly iýespected. 1 have
had him with me nearly every day since I came here, and have inspired him with new
life. He iehd. loat ail heart, and has praetically donc nothing since the reapportion-
ment of rates. lI have learned from our collector here that hie has only one on lis list
of over 100 who has flot paid the last mortuary eall.

lit gives me pleasure to state that our policy-holders generally seem to feel that
their intereste are safe in the hands of President Burnham. lIn my interviews with
intelligent and influential policy-holders li always explain the difficulties with whieh
lie bad to contend when lie became president, and the business-like way in which lie
PATTERSON
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overcame thern, and in nine cases eut of ten the reply is 'lie i.s the riglit man iii the
right place.' Others say, 'the association is fortunate in having a man of Presi-
dent Burnharns ability and courage to take iMr. Harper's place.' 1 do not think I
should rernain here longer than Tuesday or Wedaesday of next week, as 1 caii close
ail likely subjects by that tirne. Map out work for me in serne other field, as I arn
anxious to spend my time as profitabiy as I know how. I arn convinced that we should
give considerable attention to our policy-holders, and have some one. from the home
office visit as rnany of themn as possible. It helps the agent more than you have any
idea of.

J. T. PATEIRSON.

Q.This is a let Ver of yours, written in May, 1896, to Mr. Wells, the vice-presi.dent
-A. It is.

Q. IJow ean you reconcile that letter with your statemient that yeu had then lost
complete confidence in Mr. Burnharn?-A. I was an employee of the Mutuel iReserve
Fund Life Association at that time, sent out to do rny best to reconcile the policy-
helders to the increase in rates, and while I had not the supreme confidence in Mr.
Burnham, in the action which lie took in regard to myseif, yet I eonsidered it my duty,
in the interest of the association, as far as I conscientiously could, to place the matter
before the polîcy-holders in the best liglit that I could.

.Q. You considered it your duty towards the asssociatien to try and eanvince the
policy-holders that Mr. Burnham was a competent and lionest man for that position?
-A. I ar n ot aware that I said anything about bis honesty, but about bis ability and
efficiency, and I have not any hesitation in saying that I consider Mir. Burnharn in
many respects a very able man stili.

Q. Then the distinction you are making was, that you were representing Vo the
policy-holders, mereiy, that lie was an able maa, and while believing that lie was an
able man, believing that lie was an honest man. You said lie was an able man and
thc riglit man in the rîglit place, aithougli you did not believe he waq au lionest man?
-A. 1 arn not aware that I testified at that time, or sliortly after that tirne. that I
stated or believe Mr. Burnharnt b li a dishonest manl.

Q. So yeu dlaim tliat is not the effect of your evidence I-A. That is my opinion.
Q. You still believe him te lie an lionest man I-A. 1 liad ne evidence to the con-

trary other than that lie asked me to make a false statement in order to get me into a
meeting of dissatisfied rolicy-holders, which made the impression on me that lie was
niot probably a truthful man under aIl circumstances, but would net perhaps steal.

Q. You refused et his request to go to a meeting of dissatisfied policy-liolders, be-
cause that meant that you sliould try and rnake yourself fast with the dissatisfied
policy-holders. You thouglit that dishonest ?-A. It rneant that I should inake a posi-
tively false statement.

Q. B ut on the other liand yeu considered yourself justified in going round te the
policy-liolders and making efforts to create in tlieir minds the impression that Mr.
Burnham was a reliable man; wliere is the distinction I-A. The distinction is that the
Mutual iReserve at that time was managed net by lMr. Burnham alone, but by the di-
rectors and the executive cemmittee, whicli should lie able te supervise sind control Mr.
Burnham.

Q. Do yeu remember stating before I brouglit eut this letter, that you lied ne con-
fidence in Mr. Burnham and*in the management l-A. I do net remember that.

Q. It is in the evidence ?-A. Tliere is ne harm if it is.
Q. Will yen please look et Vhis letter of April 11, 1896, addressed te iMr. Wells,

and tell us whetlier it bears your signature.
]LowELL, MASS., April 11, 1896.

DEAR lMR. WELLs,-Please send the'names and addresses of five or ten of our be.st
policy-helders in Lowell. As these naines arc wated by twe men who have epplied
fer insurence with us, but ewing te statements made by eur rivaIs new refuse te take
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their policies, it is important that care should be taken to select those who are likely
to speak well of us. Give us a few who have been reapportioned, but select those who
'have flot been increased to any extent. In other words, give the namnes of old men.
Please attend to this at once, and a large amount of business can be written here
almost immediately if the two gentlemen I refer to can be satisfied. I return to Boston
this p.m., and hope to let you hear fromn me with applications in the riear future.

Yours truly,
J. T. PATEIRSON.

A. That is my signature.
Q. This letter was written by you also ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Robertson:
Q. You were stili an officer of the company ?-A. I was being paid by the eompany,

and sent ont for that purpose.
Q. You; neyer gave expression publiely to the fact that you bad no confidence in

M4r. Burnham ?-A. I neeer did.
Q. You neyer eonsidered that it was your duty as an employée of the company to

state such a thing publicly?-A. I did not.
Q. Although you had impressions in your mind that things were nlot right at.

berdquarters, you were acting as a servant of the company ?-A. Yes, and doing so
under the impression that the affairs of the company were managed under a board of
directors duly elected by the members, and not by one man, Mr. Burnbam.

Q. You would flot; think it would be your place as a servant of the company to
go about the country and denounce the management ?-A. No.

By thé Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. At that time you thought the eompany was well managed ?-A. I thought at

the time, notwithstanding what Mr. Burnham had donc and the impression made by
what bie requested me to do, that hie was an ahle man, and the eompany might possibly
succeed.

Q. V/heu you say, notwithstanding wbat Mr. Burnhain had done, what do you
refer to ?-A. I refer to bis action in asking me to make a positively false statement,
and get admitted to a meeting of policy-holders.

Q. So far as the management of the company was conceriied, you werc of the
opinion at that time that the company bad been well managed ?-A. Yes, I was.

By the Ohairman:
Q. I conceive froni your evidence, that your confidence began to slack in Mr.

Burnham. as president of the company, at a certain date ?-A. Yes.
Q. IDid your confidence still continue in many, or the majority of the directors

of that company?-A. Certainly; I had'absolute confidence in ail thé other directors
and officers of the -company.

By thte Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. I presume you stili think Mr. Burnham an able mian ?-A. I stili think that

no otber man of my acquaintance could have gone throughi what lie bas and be where
bie is to-day.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for Ithe Muttual Reserve Company:
Q. Then you dlaimi that you still had confidence in the management of the asso-

ciation?-A. I still, at that time, had confidence in it.
Q. And you deny having previously said in your evidence this morning something

to the contrary effeet 1-A. It is not to my recollection that I have made a contrary
statement. If I have made a contrary statemient, I do not for a moment recolleet it,
and I shall he glad to bave ray attention called to it.
PATTERON
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Q. IDid you flot also state this morning that before the increase of 1895 becamer
necessary you considered there had been bad management of the association ?-A. 1
considered that there had nlot been as economical management as there should have
been, and there had flot been the care in the examinatioil of the risks that there
should have been.

Q. And now you have no longer any confidence in the association at ail ?-A. 1
have every confidence in the systemn on which the association was doing business, but
no confidence absolutely in the present management.

Q. I asked you persistently to tell me the only facts, or the main facts, that made
you lose confidence in MNr. J3urnham and the management, and you mentioned two
wbich had ail happened previous to this letter of 1896 ?-A. I understood your ques-
tion to mnean if I had confidence in the management of the Mutual iReserve Fund life
Association at the present time, and not in 1896, to which I have been testifying.

Q. The only facts that induced you to lose confidence are the two mentioned when
I asked you ?-A. To lose confidence up to the present time, do you mean?

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :
Q. When did you become aware that the company was accepting a bad class of

risks ?-A. I became aware of that fact on reading the report of the Superintendent
of Insurance, made in 1885 or published in 1885.

Q. I asked when did you become aware that the company was accepting a bad
class of risks ?-A. I should think away back in 1890, or even more recently than that.Q. But you were not in the, company's employ then ?-A. Yes.

Q. Thenl as far back as 1890 you were of the opinion that they were not doing
a sound busincss ?-A. They had accepted risks that thcy should îîot have accepted.

Q. 0f course, that is the case with ail inslirauce companies, more or iess, but
they were doing an unsound business in that respect, generaiiy aceepting bac! risks?
-A. If I made a positive answcr to that it wouid not ho correct. What I refer to
is the action of the company in glmoqt the beginning of ils life, reinsuring or takiîîg
over two or three other associations, wîthoiit examination, and thereby got a whioie
lot of impaired risks riglit at the start. That is what I mean.

Q. You stated in a previous answer that you found that they had been taking bac!
risks, and it is in that connection that I asked you at what time you flrst became
aware of that fact ?-A. About 1890, 1 should think, or thereabouts-I cannot recol-
lect. It was when I first saw the report of the examination of the company, which
was in 1885.

By the Hon. M1r. McSweeney:

Q. When did you leave the company ?-A. In 1896.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Beserve Company:
Q. Is it not a fact that up to 1895, perhaps later, the mortality ratio of the

Mutual iReserve was, generally speaking, iower than the majority of other companies i
-A. It compared very favourably with other companies.

Q. And the expense ratio also, if I take the speech which you delivercd ?-A. Yes.Q. Nevertheless, you chargcd the association, previous to 1895,' with taking bac!
risks and extravagant management ?-A. That îs not the way I answered the ques-
tion, and I shouid prefer to answer it in the saine way-that it was not as economi--
cai]y managed as it should and couic! have been, and there was flot that care li the.
selection of risks which shouid have been taken.

Q. Is this copy of a letter, datcd February 14, 1896, and contained in this letterý
book, signed by you ?

PATTERSON:.
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NEw YOaK, February 14, 1895.

Msr. JAcoB AFFELDERY, 124 Shefiield St., Alleghany, Pa.

DEAR Sia,-Your faxour of the lOth instant came duly t'o hand. We take pleasure
in stating that the iMitual iReserve Fund Life Association was neyer in a sounder
condition financially than it is at the present time. he year 1895 showed an increase

in net surplus of over $306,000, and an increase in business in force of over 15 mil-
~1ons, the total insurance in force now being $308,659,371.

We are surprised to learn that you have decided to give Up your insurance in this

-association for the reasons wbich you stated.
I arn inclosing you a four-page circular containin1g tables which clearly provo

that the Mutual Rasarve is one of the most cconomically managed and progressive
life insurance companies in existence, and that its lapse ratio to business written is

smaller than any one of the tbree largest New York level 'premium companies.
Examine tables iNos. 3 and 4, and you will sec that the New York companies termin-
ated nearly 97 par cent of the insuran'e written in 1894, compared with less than 54
per cent terminatad by the Mutual IReserve. The six other companias namcd (table

No. 4) ternmînated nearly 92 per cent of their naw business written, compared with
.53*68 per cent terminated by the Mutual IReserve. From every standpoint that yon
examine the question, the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association is pre-aminently
to be praferred. Table No. 6 is also worthy of your special attention, showing as it
-doas, that the companies named axpended naarly 27 millions in securing new business,
which new business only brougbt in an income of a littie over 21 millions. Table
No. 5 shows that the cost par $1,000 of'new business in the Mutual Reserve is onlly
$14.43 compared with an average of nearly $40 for each $1,000 of new business
.accepted and paid for under old system sompanias.

With reference to the unpaid premiums referred to in your latter, I beg to explaiii
that while we do not admit that your figures are correct. it is a fact tbat ail life insur-
-ance companies report uncollected or deferred premiums. In the casa of the Mutual
IReserve, there ara premiums of which notice bas been givan to the members, but the
premiums are not yet due. For example, in cvery mortuary cail sent out the following
appears: 'Notice is hereby given that the further regular statad assessmants or mor-
tuary calîs, each for at least an amount equal to the amount of this assessment or
mortuary caîl, ara heraby made upon you, which will be due and payable, the first
within thirty days from the lst of April, 1896, and the other witbin thirty days fromn
-the lst of June, 1896.'

The above is a quotation from mortuary cail No. 84 sent out February 1, 1896,
f rum which you will see that notice is also given of the two mortuary calîs in advance,
and in making up the annual report for the various insurance departme3nta under the
'heading of contingent mortuary assets., thoe mortuary calîs, of which notice bas been
gîven, are entered as mortuary assessments called and not yet due, and inasmucli as
one rnortuary caîl naow brings in nearly $800,000, you can see that two mortuary calis
will of themselvas make up quite a large sum.

In looking ovar the annual report of the superintendent of insurance of the
'Stite of New York, I find that at the close of the yaar 1894 the total uncollectad or
dceferred. premiîums of the Equitable amounted to $2,984,112. The same item in the
IMitual Reserve amounted to $3,107,496.24, and in the statemant of the New York
Life it amounted to $4,885,657.67. Under the old systeni of lifçe insurance, the
prerniums are payable annually in adne. By paying interest the insured may take
bhis payments quarterly or semi-annual]y.

The uncollected or daferred premiums given in the report which I have quoted
-are premiumis which are paid quarterly or sami-annually.

I arn sending you under a separate cover a copy of President Burnham's report,
of which we are all very proud, and consider it one of the finest addresses that lias

-ever beev made at the annual rneting of any life insurance company. Your atten-
'PATTERSON
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tion is specialiy called to the report of the Pittsburg committeje as it appears on
pages 31 to 35 inclusive. I arn sending you under separate cover a copy of the Pitts-
burg paper containing a full report of iPittsburg committee which visited the associa-
tion for the purpose of satisfying themselves as to the importance to be attached to
the rumours which were being circulated against the iMutual iReso~rve.

If you stili require the protection of life insurance, you cannot possibly get it in
any company with asgood security and on as reasonable termas as you can in this
association. It is, therefore, to your own interest to carefully examine the question
before flnally deciding to allow your policy to lapse.

If you decide to reinstate, please fi11 up the inclosed health certificate and for-
ward the arrears of premiums.

With best wishes, I arn,
Yonrs truly,

J. T. PATEIRSON,
('orresponding Secre tary.

A. No doubt that is a copy of a letter I wrote at that time.
Q. It is a copy copied through the usual letter press ?-A. Yes.
Q. This letter is written to a policy-holder, is it not ?-A. I presume so-I have

no doubt it is-or to an agent.
Q. You say to this polîcy-holder, 'You cannot possibly get the protection of life

insurance in any company with as good security, and on as reasonable terms as you
ean in this association' ?-A. That is an excellent letter; I have no hesitation in say-
ing that is my letter.

Bp the Hon. Mr. Robertson:
Q. Will you kindly give us the reasons why this man withdrew from the cern-

pany ?-A. I <cannot recollect the regsons now. It wag six or soven years ago, but in
ail probability his reasons would ho the rates-

Bp Mr. Geoffrion, C'ounsel for the Mutual Reserve Company
Q. Is it not a fact that towards that date ail the lapses were due to increased

premiums ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. MlcSweeney:

Q. You stand by that letter ?-A. I do stand by that letter, every word of it.

Bp Mr. Geoffrion, Couisel for the Company :
Q. The part where it says that it is the most economîcal and progressive life

insurance company ?-A. One of the most. It does flot mean that it could not have
-been more economically managed.

Bp Mr. Coster, K.C., for the C'ommittee

Q.Even at that date ?-A. Even at that date.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Co.
Q.Would you please look at another letter in this letter-book at page 36, dated

February 15, 1896, and addressed to J. J. Spearman, in which you înclosed a four-
paged circular containing a table which clearly proves that the Mutual iReserve is one
of the rnost economically managed and progressive life insurance companies in exist-
ance ?-A. That is correct.

Q. It aise incloses President Burnham's address, which is described as being
'brimful of valuable information which should be read by everyone who is, interested.

in life insurance' 1 -A. That is right.
PA¶TERSON
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Q. Then a letter af Mardi 21, 1896, addressed ta Hlenry T. iMorgan, and signed
by you, and which is practically to the same effect ?-A. Those letters are ail practi-
cally the same thing. It is a very different thing to be asked ta make a positively
false statement and ta going out and trying to solicit business for a company that yau

knew at that time was perfectly salvent and managed by men, a large number af
whom yau had implicit confidence in.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. Your duty was ta do what yau were told by yôur employers ?-A. Sa far as I
cauld canscientiausly do so.

Q. But you were flot supposed ta perjure yourself, or tell a lie or deceive a deputa-
tion for that purpose?-A. iNo.

By M1r. Geoffrion, (Jounsel for the Mu tual Reserve Coampany:

Q. Nar a policy-holder?-A. iNo.
Q. After leaving the employ af thc association you started ta publish a newspaper?

-A. Yes.
Q. Called what ?-A. 'The Insurance Counsellor.'

Q.This newspaper you published continuausly tili when ?-A. 1i11 January, 1900.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. You commeneed ta publish it when?-A. The latter part of 1896. The flrst

issue was in 1896.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for thze Mut ual Reserve Company:

Q.This paper, in its first issue, published several articles in favour of the assa-
ciation, did it not?-A. 0f the associatian, yes.

Q. 0f course it accepted the advertisement af the association ?A. It dîd.
Q. And it was absolutely friendly ta it ?-A. To the association, yes.
Q. Till whcn did it remnain friendly ta the assocîation-when I say friendly, I

niean actively friendly, publishing articles ?-A. Till about prabably about 1898, or
perhaps eveti later than that. What I mean by friendly ta the association, is advocat-
ing this system of life insurance on which the Mutual IResérve Fund Life Association
was conducting business, nat necessarily endorsing thc management.

Q. Do you mean ta state that your newspaper, from the period you began ta pub-
lish and for same time afterwards, did not actiVely support the association specitical]y,
as distinguished from the system of assessment insurance ?-A. I have no donbt but
there wore articles which apppared in the 'Insurance Counselor' intended ta benefit
the association.

SBy the flan. M1r. Béique:

Q. To specîal]y favour it?-A. Yes, I wauld not doubt but what t here e.

By the Hon. Mr,. Rob ertson:

Q. Affer you leit ?-A. Yes.
Q. It would show that you had no vindictive spirit towards the association ?-A.

None whatever.

By M1r. Geoffrion, Gounsci for the M'utuai Reserve:

Q. Were there not articles in favour ai the-association as an association, and nat

only in favaur ai its system?-A. I think sa, prabab]y.

Ry the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. After you had Ieft the company's employ ?-A. Yes.
PATTERSON
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Q. I understand the question is as to whether yen did flot recommend in your
paper the association froma the point of view of the business that they were doing after
you had left their employ ?-A. I think I did.

By the lien. Mr. Robertson:

Q.Wcre those advertisements paid for, or written by yourself ?-A. The ndvertise-
ments were paid for.

By Mr. Geoiffrien, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Were there articles ?-A. But there were editorials written by me which ap-

peared iii the Insurance (Jounselior' setting forth the advantages of the iMutual
Jieserve IFund Life Association, as f ar as I recollect.

By the Hon. Mr .Béique:
Q. Were they paid for?-A. No, they were not paid for; they were my editorials.
Q. They neyer paid you for any article l-A. They neyer paid me for any editorial.

By Mr. (Jeoiffrien, (Jounsel for the Mutual Ileserve:
Q. These editorials advised people to insure there i-A. I caunot recollect what

I said. I amn speaking in a general way.
Q. They practically amounted te that. You may net have said se iii express

termas, but if you mentioned te the public the advantages it was te encourage people
te insure there l-A. I do net se tes tify.

Q. Have you the complete file of your newspaper ?-A. I have.
Q. Where is it ?-A. In New York city.
Q. Where could tbey be consuhted ? De yen know where they are kept ?-A.

Thcy could niot be consulted anywbere else than at 219 West 83rd Street, ns far as I
know. I have the only cemplete filc, as far as I know. 1 might ndd that I was paid
twice as much for the advertisement of the à1utual iReserve for the space it occupied
as an'y offher company.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson

Q. And therefore could afford te write an editorial once in a whie ?-A. 1 would
net make that admission.

Q. You could afford te do it 2A. YeS, 1 eould afford te de it, but I weuld net
do it.

By the lon. Mr. Geoiffrien, Ceuinsel for the i1'ulual Reserve
Q. If some ernployee of the association asked permission te go aiîd consuit your

£ile, or some one on their behaif, wovild you allow him ?A. No, I would net care te
put my wife te the trouble; she is net in good healtlî at ail, because I myseif at the
present time scarcely know where te put my hand on it. I wish te state te the Coin-
mittee, that if furnishing a complete set of the 'Insurance Counselior' in three or
four days would be beneficial, I tbink I possibly could do it by writing te New York
for thcem.

Q. And I could consult thema with yen in your presence ?-A. If you like. I
should like te make a statement in order that I may net appear at a disadvantage
Inter on. I cannet guarantee that I will be able te furnish the files of the 'Insurance
Counsellor,' for at the moment I do net know where they are. They are in my pos-
session semewhere. I may net be able te get them, but I will do my best.

Q. On August 24, 1897, you were ne more in the employ of the associatin?-
A. Ne, I was net.

Q. That date you wrote on the paper of the ' Insurance Counsellor' a letter
addressed te Mr. Vrooman, of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association, which is
now shown te yeu ?-A. That is correct.

PAT'rERSON
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Q.The lieading of that letter is :'J. Thomson Paterson, editor and manager;
author of the Natural iPremium. Life Underwriters' iManual, which system of life
insurance should I select ?-A. Yes.

Q. You say, 'I arn now revising the N.P.L.J. Manual,' what is that ?-A. The
National Premiuma Life Uinderwriters' Manual.

Q. 'And which systema of life insurance should I select, and heing forced to spend
nearly $700 before 1 get any returns £rom them, I find myseif rather short of funds' ?
-A. Yes.

Q. 'If the Mutual iReserve will advance me $250 it 'will help me very ranch, and
place me under lasting obligations to it. The amount so advanced can Le charged
against services to be rendered, either in advertising or in furnishing the association
with such of my publications as it may wish to use' ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the last paragraph of the letter says yon were in a hurry ?-A. I wrote
that letter. The circumstances were exactly as represented at that time.

Q. Dîd they advance you the money ?-A. They bought the copies of tlic book.
1 do not recolleet if they did advance me the money; it is my impression they did not.

Q. Look at the letter w11ich Lears your signature, dated October 7, 1898 ?-A.
That is my signature.

Q. Addressed to Su1r. Burnham, the president ?-A. Yes.
Q. This letter reads as follows

INEW YORK, October 7, 1898.
Mr. F. A. BURNII.4M%, President,

Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, City.
DEAR SIR,iMir. MeNichol surprised me very much the other day by telling me

that lie heard that the next issue of the 'Insurance Counsellor' would contain an
attack on the IMutual iReserve.' but as lie ass.ured me that he did flot believe it and
had so stated, I decided nlot to attach importance to the rumour by rèpeating it. I
wouid not trouble you witli it now were it not that Vîce-President Wells met me on
Broadway yesterday and infurmed nme tluît it wiîs reported ta you that I had prepared
an article which would appear in the ' Counsellor,' giving all the particulars relatîng
to the alleged iniulderstanding or contention between certain officers of the -Mutual
iReserve Fund Life Association, noticed in the public press a few days ago.

1 most positivcly assure you that 11o sudh article Las been prepared for the
Counsellor,' nor lias any one ever suggested the idea to me. I have no reason ta

have any other opinion than that tha iMutual iReserve is in a sound condition finan-
eially. and shall continue to do everything in iuy power to assist in keeping it so.
Tlie faîlure cf a well-establislied life insurance cornpany or association, suai as thc
Mutual iReserve, with liundreds of millions of insurance in force, would be a calamity
which would, and ouglit ta mean ruin and disgraae ta thosa wlio are responsibla for ît.

I fully realize the responsibulity whieh I owe ta the public as editor and publisher
of the 'Insurancme Counsellor,' and shall never allow its columns to bie a medium of
attack upon any individuial or coioipany unless there is a prinaiple involved ani the
circumstaures sucli as ta leave no doubt in the mind of anyone that in doing s0 I
arn discliarging a conscientious duty.

Vours trul,
J. T. PAT ERSON.

Editor and Manager.

You wrote that letter ?-A. Yes. I wrote tliat letter, sud would write exactly the same
letter to-day under the circumstances.

Q. On May 15, 1899, you were still on good terms with the association I-A. Yes,
witli tic association. I was neyer on violent terms with anybody.

By the Chairman:

Q. Were you a policy-liolder in tlie company?-A. I ws
PATTERSON
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Q. Are you stili i-A. No, I discontinued my policy.

By the Hon. M4r. Béique:

Q. When l-A. When the suits were discontinued I discontinued my policy. I do
flot know the exact date. About 1902, 1 think some time--either in the latter part
of 1901 or in the early part of 1902.

Q. You were a policy-holder when the company took that step against you i-A.
Yes, I was.

Q. For what amount t-A. Six thousand dollars.
Q. When had you taken the poicy?-A. The first one I had taken away back in

1886.
Q. Was it the fifteen-year policy l-A. Yes.
Q. Had it flot been converted into a flve-year po]icy?-A. It had flot.
Q. And the other policy was taken when ?-A. In 1888.
Q. On the fifteen-year plan ?-A. Yes.
Q. And not converted i-A. Not converted.
Q. So that you were interested in the welfare of the company e-A. I was, and

arn stili.
Q. You would be creating the impression that you are stili a policy-holder l-A.

I arn not interested as a policy-holder, but as interested in if e insurance. I still re-
gard it as a fact that the failure of a life insurance company is a calamity.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:
Q._What do you call a failure?-A. A failure is going entirely out of business, on

account of the inability to pay its obligations.

By the Hon. M4r. Béique:

Q. Tt reflects 011 aIl of the eotipany? A. It does harm 011 insurance generally.

By M4r. (Jeoffrioii, Cuun8el for the MIutual Reserve:
Q. I have another letter, April 20, 1897 l-A. That is my signature.
Q. This letter reads as .follows:

NEW YORKz, April 20, 1897ý
Mr. F. A. Burnham, Fresident,

Mutual Iteserve Fund Life Association,
New York City.

DEÀR,&i SIR,-You will remember that when I last saw you in your office I suggested
tliat the propriety of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association taking 100 copies of
the 'Counsellor' regularly every month, and oflered to furnish you that number, and
advertising space of 1 in. of a columin each for five (5) of your principal agency de-
partments, in eonsideration of yuur paying $150 when you give me the order, i.e., $100
for the 100 copies of the .'Counsellor'1 each month for a year, and $10 each for the
advertisements.

By accepting this offer you can have the IMutual iReserve advertised in five dif-
ferent places. The benefit of this kind of -advertising would be that it will tend to
relieve the home office of considerable correspondence. For example, if Mvr. Chapman,
of Dallas, Texas, was advertised as manager for Texas, &c., any one wishing to repre-
sent the Mutuel IReserve in Texas would be like]y to correspond with him.

Knowing you are willing to do enything within reason to assist in establishîng the
'Insurance Counsellor,' and eweiting your eerly reply, I amn,

Yours truly,
J. T. PATERSON,

Editor and Manager.
That is correct ?-A. Yes.

PK[1'ERSO)t
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B1, Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the (lommittee:
Q. How much did they pay you for the business ?-A. They paid me $600 per

year for the advertisement, and paid other things. Whien they bought books they
paid for them.

By the Hon. Mr. »éique:
Q.When they wanted extra advertisement they paid it ?-A. Yes.
Q.The $600 was the regular advertisement ?-A. Yes, $50 per month.

B1, the (ihairman :
Q. Is that the advertisement you refer to when you state that they paid you twice

the amount other companies paid ?-A. It is.

B1 , the Hon. gr. McSweeney :
Q. Was it for a column or for a half-column ?-A. It was haif a page, if I re-

member rightly.
Q. When did you publish the article cornplained of, the article for which you

are charged with libel 1-A. It appeared in the January number of the 'Counsellor,'
1900.

Q. Was the advertisement in the ' Counsellor'1 stopped before or after that articleI
-A. The advertisement was stopped prior to the publication of the article on which
suit was brouglit, but I had published an adverse criticism of the management prior
to that time when I had the advertisement. The two articles, the advertisement and
uiy criticismn appeared in the same issue, and I was paid $50 for that advertisement.

Q. Is flot the flrst article, the adverse criticism that you publishcd for the first
time against the association, the letter appearing in the number of the 'Insurance
Counsellor' of August, 1899, being a letter addressed by you to Mr. Burnham ?-A.
It is.

Q. That is the first attack ?-A. The llrst adverse criticism of the Mutxa
Ileserve, the flrst adverse criticism of Mr. Burnham, as far as I recolleet, that appeared
in the 'Counsellor.'

By the Chairman:
Q. Did you have the advertising of the Mutual Reserve at that time ?-A. There

is the advertisement; of the Mutual Reserve Life Association in the saine issue.

By Mr. Geoffrioiî, Clounsel for the Mlutual Resert'e:
Q.I understand this letter was first addressed to Mr. Burnhamo ?-A. It ws
Q.Amd flot published in the paper ?-A. The article was wrîtten and addressed

to President Burnham and mailcd to him and on receipt of bis reply, which is also
published, the article was prepared and published within a short time afterwards.

Q. 'You wrote a letter to President Burnham, wlîich is here ?-A. Yes.
Q. And in answer you got the letter published below ?-A. Yes.
Q. And you publishcd the two letters together with an editorial ?-A. That is

rîght.
Q. And in your letter you are complaining of the alleged fact that Mr. Burnham

had called 'a special assessment on certain policies, including your own. Is that not
the complaint ?-A. That is not mny interpretation.

Q. What is thc purpose of the letter that youi addressed to Mr. Burnham. on
Âugust 8, 1899 ?-A. It is a remon.strance against the wisdom of sending out an extra
mortuary cail of which I have notice the blank form.

By the Chairman :
Q.Did you write it as an editor or as a policy-holder ?-A. I wrote it flrst as a

policy-holder.
PATTEfiSON
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Q. The two letters read as foliows -

WI{OM THlE GODS WISII TO DESTROY TIIEY FIIRST MAKE MAD.'

(Copy.)

PRESIDENT'S OFFIC E,
MUTUÂL IIEsERYFE FUND LiFE ASSOCIATION,

IMUTUAL IRESERVE BuiLDIMI, NEW Yonaa,
August 10, 1899.

Mr. J. T. PATERSON,
Editor and Manager 'Insur~ance Counsellor,'

320 Broadway, New York City.

DEAR SIR,-JIn the usual course of business, your letter of 8th instant, addressed
to the president, cornes to my desk for attention. I note your statement that this
letter is written by you as a policS-holder of the association, and flot as editor of the
'Insurancc Counscilor,' aithougli to your signature you append the titie of 'Editor and
Manager,' which appears on your printed letter-bead.

I will thank yen te furnish me with the source of your misinformation. The
board of directors and executive committee of the association fix the timea and
ameounts of assessments, and neither body bas directed that a special eall be made on
September 1, as yen say yen are informed, or aven considered sucli action. As a
policy-holder of the association you will, in the f utuire as in the past, receive the usual
thirty days' notice of ail cails, and rast assured that the presant management will
perform the duty which rests upon it, of calling upon the members as fraquently as
may ha neeessary for such amounts as may be reqiiired to pay in full ail lienest death
dlaims.

With referanca te your attempted criticism of the cost of adjustinent of death
çlaims ani, cost inciirred in i-ollecting assessments, thre bas becn no proporionate
incrcase in the first item, and, as Co the second, sucli increase as there bias bean in
collecting assessments bas bean in the main due te tHe nnsnecessfiil bit, vignoes
endeavours made by some policy-holders te prevent the collection frein them of the
proper cost of insurance in accordance witb the terrms of their contracts, such rasist-
ance being based upon literature issued by yeu and others under tha former manage-
ment of the association, leading the members te believe that they had flxed premnium
contracts. I have hafora me now a cireular bearing yeur name, which is made the basis
of a recent suit, in which, contrary to the foundation principle of the association, and
contrary te the facts and the provisions of its pelicies, this, positive statement is made,
viz.: 'cest dees net increase as age advances.' The management bas been compefled
te defend these suits, and in doing se it bas heen unîformaly suceessful; but, of course,
this success bas been attended witb considarable expense. but for whieh the manage-
ment is in ne wise responsibla.

The statemant wbich you dlaim net te understand the ineaning of, viz.: 'Pay-
inents for policies surrenderad,' flrst appaared in the asscssmcnt notices under the
former management, at a time when you wvere employed by it in the preparation of
literature, and bas been eontinued sinea that time. In this connection, xvhat common
sense and business sagacity would indicate te most men bas been judicially deter-
mined, namely, that corporations ef thîs character possess the same right te protect
the hast interests of their membars as do such individuals in the exercisa of their
persenal prerogatives, and that where, in the judgment of its board of direetors the
redemption of a policy shortly te hecome a death dlaim, will obviate the payment of
a mueh larger sum in the immediate future, it bas authority se te de.

Yeur attempt at critieism of certain items of expenditure bas eaused us te look
into others, and we find that the association is paying yeu $50 monthly, or at the rate
of $600 per annum, for an advertisement in the 'Counsellor,' which the agancy depart-
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ment reports to be entirely =nproductive of resuits. If this unproductiveness con-
tinues, do you as a policy-holder (and, as the letter I arn answering indicates, sorne-
thing of a critic in the matter of expenses) think the present management of the
association, in view of its determination to eut off every unnecessary expenditure,
would bie justified in continuing these payments to you ?

Yours truly,
(Signed) WILLIAM JOHNSON,

Private ,Secrelary..

MUTIJAL RESERVE 'SPECIAL CAL'

(Copy.)
NEW YoaRÇ, August 8, 1899.

Mr. F. A. BuRNAmm, President,
Mutual Ileserve Fund Life Association,

City.
DEAR SiR,-I arn informed that it is the intention of the management to make a

special eall on the 15 and 10-year policy-holders of the Mutual iReserve on the flrst of
September, and write you to say if this is done the members will, in my judgment,
have just cause for complaint.

In the financial report for May 19, 1899, the total cash and invested reserve sur-
plus is stated to be $3,007,560.95, and in the financial report July 20, 1899, it is stated
to be $3,011,848.38.

If the current receipts exceeded the amount required for losses during the sixty
days by $4,287.43, why is it necessary to make an extra cali ?

I also wish to cail your attention to the f act that during the six rnonths previolla
to July 20, the enormous suni of $179,392.91 has been expended in the cost of adjust-
ment of death dlaims, cost incurred in collecting assessments and in payment for
policies surrendered. This amount covers only six months, and is mucli larger than
the amount expended for like purposes in any other year.

I, in common with many other policy-holders, most positively objeet to plyilg
special caTis under a. management which expends such a large surn in adjusting death
losses and collecting assessments.

I do not quite understand what is meant by 'payments for policies surrendercd,'
especially when irnmediately under this statement there appears the following
'Bonds redeemed 15-year plan.?

I was always given to understand that the policies of the Mutual Reserve hiad no
surrender value, and do not believe that those who are willing to keep up their insur-
ance should be assessed ta pay surrender values for others. It is a direct violation of
the principle upon which the iMutual iReserve is f urnishing life insurance.,

I arn writing you not as an editor of the 'Insurance Counsellor,' but as a policy-
holder, as I greatly fear the consequences if this special caîl is sent out. Any infor-
ination which you can give me explaining the circumstances will bie carefully consid-
ered, as I have no other desire than to further the hest interests of the Mutual IReserve
Fund Life Association.

Awaiting your rep]y, I remain,
Yours truly,

(Sîgned.) J. THOMSON PATERSON.

WITNESS.-I think I might 8siy to the Cornmittee that it iq important that the
editorial be read in connection with these two letters, as it will throw sorne light on
what afterwards happened, and on what lias been discussed here.

Mr. GEoFS'IoN--The editorial' reads as follows
If the president of the IMutual IReserve IFund Life Association will place us in a

position where we have authority to do so, we will subpoena the superintendent of the
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mortuary department and clerks, who, if exainined under oath, xvili testify that on
the 9th day of August they xvere at work filiing in the naines and amounts in mortuary
notices for the fifteen. and ten-year members, on which appeared the words 'special
cali,' and which were dated September 1, 1899, and wbich contained the foilowing state-
ment:

'The above payment must be made on or before the second (2) day of October,
1899.'

Article XI., section 5, of the Constitution and By-laws of the M~utual Reserve
Fund Life Association reads as follows.

'On the first week days of the months of February, April, June, August, October
and flecember of each year (or at such date at the board of directors may, froin tuime
to turne, determine) an assessinent shall he made upon the euitire membership in force,
at the date of the hast death of the audited death dlaims prior thereto, for sucb a suin
as the exe<tive committec may deem sufficient to ineet the exîsting dlaims by death,
the saine to be apportioned among the meinbers according to the age *of each member?

It will be seen from the aboya section of the constitution and by-laws that the
regular calis are uxade bi-rnonthly, commencing on the flrst week day of February
each year. This is why the call, which it was iPresident Burnham's intention to make,
was marked 'special eall,' it being dated September 1, and payable on or before Octo-
ber 2.

We have copies in our possession of the blanks rnarked 'special cal],' as above
described, and know it to be a fact that clerks were working after hours, and that extra
help was employed to get out the notices for the 'special coul' on September 1. INa
officer or employee of the association except iMr. IF. A. Burnham would take the ro-
sponsibility of ordering notices printed for a 'speciai coul' and give instruction te
have thein fllled in and addressed; and tuie fact that lic bas done so without even cop-
sulting the directors or exccutive coînmittee is proof positive that he is their director.
and that he knows that they are certain Io do as they are directed.

Mr. Bnrnbam stili insists that it wvos neyer intended thot a 'special cal1 ' 'vos to
be made in September, and the story now told is thot the blank notices were printed
in order that thbey miglit ba on bond when rcquired.

Just thînk of it. 100,000 'special coul' notices printed, and ail of them dated
September 1, 1899, and severai thousand of them ahi ready for the mail, not that it was
the intention of the management to send thein out, but sirnply to have thein reody, and
neither the board of directors nor the executive committee bave 'even considered it.'
If the 'special eall' is not sent out September 1 the notices now on bond will be use-
less, and anothcr 100,000 will have to be printed, just to have thein ready. Can it be
possible that the financial condition of the association is such as to make it probable
that a 'special caîl' must be made and the directors are not aware of it? If tbe di-
rectors bave delegated their autbority to this one man, Mr. F. A. Burnhain, what right
has any one of tbem to the $1,000 in fees whicb tbey receive every year?

If the investigation which is being made by tbe Insurance Pepartinent of tbe State
of INew York confirms tbe cbarges wbich bave been made against Mr. Burnham, tbe
directors are iikely to be held reponsible, and may be cailed upon to pay dearly for
their negleet of duty.

Neither the 'Insurance Counseilor' or any other journal, firin or individuai, should
be paid a single cent for wbich value is not givon in return. The officers of the
life insurance companies are simply tbe custodians of funds entrusted to them by
poiicy-holders or members, not for the purpose of enriching theinselves or their
friends, but to be kept sacredly for tbe protection of tbe widow and the orpban.

If the management bas paid the 'Counseilor' $50 per inontb, knowing it is not re-
ceivin g value for it, it does not require a very great stretch of imagination to believe
tbat this saine management bas misappropriated the funds wbich it is cbarged with
having donc. We shall await with interest the officiai report of the exaînination wbich
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is being made by the Insurance Department of the State of New York, and, after it
is published, we may find it to be our duty to do something more than merely 'attempt
at criticism.' If we know ourselves, and we think we do, 110 man can ever own us.
We realize the responsibilities which devolve upon us as a journalist, and shail con-
tinue to edit the 'Counsellor' honestly and to the best of our ability.

It is quite possible that an advertiscmcnt in the 'Counsellor' is 'entirely unpro-
ductive of results,' in so far as the Mutual Ileserve is concerned, and without any
fault or reflection on the 'Counseflor.'

The following are a few extraýcts from letters addressed to the editor by officials
of life insurance companies advertising in the 'Counsellor,' with Most satisfactory
resulls:

' The benefits received from our advertisement lias already exceeded the cost
many times over, and indicates to us that the 'Counselor' is a popular insurance jour-
nal among insurance men.'-H. S. IIALBERT, President South-western Mutual Life
Associa tion.

'We have remarked the large number of inquiries for agencies that have corne to
us as the direct resuit of our card in your paper.-DOUGL.Âs IPtTNAM, Secretary
Bankers' Life Association, St. Paul.

,Your columns have proved valuable to us as an advertising medium, and it seems
to me that no0 live organizer, agent or insurance officer should be without the 'Coun-
selor.'-S. GALESKI, Supreme Secretary American Guild.

Q. After this exchange of amenities the advertisement was witlidrawn l-A. Yes.
Q. And sliortly after the article which is claimed to lie libellous was published?

-A. That wvas publislied in August, and the alleged libellous article appeared in
January.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coitnsel for- the Comiiitee
Q. The article appeared in January, 1900 ?-A. Yes. That is wliat convinced

me it was my duty to publish the alleged libellous article.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. Up to that tirne you had been a friend of thec association and tlefended it in

your paper ?-A. Up to that time I had neyer said anythiug detrimental to the asso-
ciation or management.

Q. On the contrary, you had spokien in favour of it ?-A. And liad spoken in
favour of tlie assDciation, no doubt.

Q. Tlie action for libel wvas taken against you sliortly after the publication of
the article ?-A. About tliree weeks. after it, 1 sliould think-tie exact date was
iMarcli 8th.

Q. 1900 ?-A. Yes, about two montlis after.

By the Cliuirman:
Q. Two înontlis after the article was printed e-A. No, it couild not be as late

as that.

By Mr. Geoffrion. Couiisel for the Mut'îal Reserve
Q. The January nuinber appeared only in February ?-A. I think it appeared

late in Jenuary.
Q. And the- action for libel would have been taken in Mardi ?-A. It is firrnly

irnpressed in my mind it wvas the Stli Mardli.
Mr. COSTER, K.C.-Tlie summons was issued Mardli.

By Mr. Geoffrion. Gounsel for the Mat ual Reserve
Q. The article appeared the end of Jaunary or the beginning of February ?-A.

iMy recollection is it was the 8th Mardi.
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Q.It was early in iMarch, according to your recollection ?-A. Yes.
Q.And the article appeared late in January or eurly in iFebruary ?-A. Ycs.

Q. Criminal proceedings were afterwards taken against you for libel ?-A. About
from a year to fourteen months afterwards.

Q. It was on another libel ?-A. Oh, practically the same article.
Q. Was there nlot another article ?-A. There was.
Q. I understand it was practically the same article repuhlished in another issue?

-A. It was.
Q. With some slight changes ?-A. IDealing more in detaîl with the subject whvlich

was discussed in the tirst article.
Q. On that second criminal action you wvere discharged by the magistrate ?-A.

I was.
Q. But were you not subsequently indicted by the grand jury ?-A. I was.
Q. For the libel ?-A. For criminal libel. I was indictcd by the grand jury after

having been discharged by the magistrate, and after the association had requested
the same magistrate to reopen the case, which lie corisented to do at the request of
my counsel, and we appeared before the magistrate and the district attorney stated
that he had no new evidence to produce, but that if the magistrate, Leroy B. Crane,
would consent to reopen the case, he feit that lhe could make out a case against me.
The magistrate stated that he had heard ail the evidence-that he had read the briefs
on both sides, and if there was ne new evidence he positively refused to hold me for
the grand jury. The magistrate havîng refused a second tirne to hold me, then the
Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association wvent a second time to the district attorney,
and I heard that I was likely to bc indicted or the case was lîk-ely
te be presented to the grand jury through the district attorney. My counsel
made the special request that I be heard before tne grand jury as a matter
of privileze, and thial roquest wvas grantcd. and tbe bLteiiieît made that
I would be notîfied when this would corne bcfore the grand, jury, and the magistrate,
Judge Leroy B. Crane, made the same request at the district attorney's office, and
was promi§ed that he would also have the privilege of being beard if this inatteir
w-as presented to the grand jury, anti the tirst thing that I kncw of this case was
the notice that I had been indicted hy the grand jury and was liable to arrest, and
only for the influence of mny counsel, who arranged with authorities that 1 might
appear the next morning, I would have again had to furnîsh bail at a late hour at
night. I went up to the court next morning at ten o'clock and went through the
usual procedure, part of w'hich wvas that I was sent down into the Tomhs and the jail,
the tine îny papers were being made out, and I was duly indicted. About seven or
eik-ht months after that, perhaps, the case was called beforq Judge Foster, and at the
request of the district atorney, was dismissed without trial.

Q. Before you were indicted you had taken an action in damages for false arrest
against the association ?-A. I had, and that was in my opinion why sucli a des-
perate effort was made to have me indicted.

Q. When you speak of the request made of the judge and by your counsel to the
district attorney and se on, you speak frorn wbat they told you. That is flot youx
personal knowledge ?-A. That is my knowledge tbrough my counsel.

Q. You therefore had between yourselves three suits pending at the same tirne
-A. Yes.

Q. The civil action against you for libel by the association ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the action for false arrest shortly afterwards against thora ?-A. Yes,

when I was discharged by the magistrate.
Q. And the criminal action for libel which was taken against you and on which

you were indîcted ?-A. Yes.
Q. When dîd you cease to publish your newspaper ?-A. I think the last issue

appeared in October, 1900.
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Q. llow long was it before, you were discharged at the request of the district
attorney, approximately ?-A. I think it was sometime in the fali of 1901, but I
would flot be sure, that I was discharged by the magistrate.

Q. No, on your indictment, at the request of the district attorney ?-A. Sorne-
time in the faîl of 1001. I think.

Q. iNow before being dischargcd at the request of the district attorney, you had
written to the district attorney stating that you would discontinue to publish your
newspaper ?-A. That I had discontinued ?

Q. That you would discontinue ?-A. I neyer wrote such a thing that I recollect.
Q. iDo you swear that you did not write to the district attorney that you had, or

rather that you would discontiune to publish your paper ?-A. I have no recollection
of any such letter at the present time.

Q. You would remember it ?-A. If I had written such a letter I think I would
romember it.

Q. You swear positively that you never wrote to the district attorney that you
would flot publish any further article attacking the IMitual Ileserve Fund lLife Asso-
ciation ?-A. I swear positively that I neyer wrote any such letter.

The CHAIRMAN.-lla, counsel the letter ?

iMr. GEOFFRION.-We will have it, I expeet and will produce it when we get it.

WITNESs.-And further if any such letter is introduced, I have flot the slightes~t

doubt about it being a forgery.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland:

Q. What was the district attorney's name ?-A. IPhilonien, I think at that tirne.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutuai Reserve

Q.He is what we would cal] here the crown prosecutor ?-A. Yes. There were
absolutely no conditions on my part or effort made for the withdrawal of that crimînal
case without trial.

Q. But it was not a condition ?A. 1 wished to go on trial with that case.
Q. You swear positively it was not one of the conditions of the agreement that

your attacks in the newspaper would cease, or that the publication of a ncwspaper
would cease ?-A. The publication of the uewspaper Lad ceased at that time.

Q. Do you swear the publication of the paper had ceased prior to your release ~
-A. IPrior to the release, so far as I arn able to recollect, that ils so.

Q. But Lad you written notifying the district attorney of that fact, yes or no
A.I neyer Lad any communication whatever, dircctly or indirectly, with the district

attorney to the eff ect that I would discontinue publishing articles against the Mutual
:Reserve Fund Life Association, or criticîing it.

Q. Dhd you have any communication whatever about that time with the district
attorney to that effect concerning conditions on which. you would Le released from the
prosecution 1-A. I have no recollection of ever having had any correspondence
whatever with any one as to conditions on which this prosecu.tion should Le discon-
tinued.

Q. Did you authorize your attorneys to write such a letter as that I-A. I neyer
authorized my attorneys or any one else to write such a letter.

Q. What induced you to discontinue the publication of the paper ?-A. I was in-
duced to discontinue the publication of my paper tecause I could not maintaiti
xny independence and make any money out of an insuranoe paper.

Q.On account of the iMutual IReserve I-A. Not only on the Mutual Reserve, but,
on account of the same principle existing in practically all life insurance companies.
An insurance paper is practically the paid organ of life insurance companies, and if
it does not voice their sentiments it may as well get ont of business.
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By the Chairman:
Q.They lose their ads ?-A. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN.-H-aS counsel that letter to which bc lias referred

Mr. GEOFFRION.-We have flot liad time to get it yet. I will produce the letter
wlien 1 get it, but I cannot give an absolute legal guarantee that I will produce it.
Itut I arn asking the questions from my instructions.

WITNESS.--I have no hesitation in saying that the counsel having been informed
of the existence of sucli a letter and believing that, lie was justîiled in asking the
question.

* By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.You have been asked, was it a condition of the payment of the $5,000 made

to you by the Comnpany that you wioulcl disconntinue the publication of your insurance
paper, or tliat you would not puhuish it if it liad beeni discontinued already ? You
u ould not; continue to publisli it if it liad been already discontinued ?-A. The pay-
nient of tliat $5,O00 was made witliout any condition wbatever of any kind.

Q. You stated yesterday-and I suppose you do not propose to take tliat back-
th.qt one of the conditions was that ail the suits would lie discliarged-settled. So
that there was a condition of sorne kind ?-A. I sliould like permission to explain
that Lriefly. When negotiations were opened for the settiement of those civil suits.
the first condition that was made was the criminal suit must lie first disposed of,
that no negotiations could go on until that suit was disposed of, either by trial or by
the indictment bcing witlidrawn, and tlie indictment was accordingly witlidrawn and
the civil suits settled afterwards.

Q. At any rate, you say that it wasz not a condition of payment of $5,000 to yoiu
tliat you would discontinue to publisli your insurance paper ?-A. It n'as ilot a Coli-
dition.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed
Q. IDid you continue publishing it afterwards ?-A. I did not.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Company
Q.Wlat was the date of the $5,000 being paid to yoil ?-A. September 24, 1901.

Q. You stated, if I remember welI, that the consideration of the pnyrmQnt of tho
$5,000 wns mrncly th0at you should allow the association to withdraw their suits
against you ?-A. That is as I understood it.

Q. The only consideration ?-A. Well, if I made that statement I think it would
lie riglit to say, 'and tlie further consideration that I withdraw iny suits,' which would
lie reasonable-

By Mr. Coster, Counsel for the Comrnittee

Q.One suit only ?-A. My suit.
Q.You exchange releases ?-A. I arn not positive, but I think I liad two suits

I think I sued Mr. Eldridgc and Mr. Burnham. I arn not sure but tliat I had tliree
suits. There were so many I cannot recollect tliem ahl. I had been assessed for a
very large amount liy tlie Mutual iReserve in tliat suit, and I wanted to get some of it
liack.

By, Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Rp.çpre
Q.And now you state that the $5,000 was paid for the settiement of both their

suits and your suits ? Is that not slightly in contradiction of the statements you
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made yesterday ?-A. It may be. iBut if it is, it does not follow that it was made
dishonestly.

Q. What was the $5,0O0 to represent to you ?-A. To represent cash.
Q. Payment of what did you claim when you asked for that $5,000, or in pay-

ment of what, did yon take that $5,000 ?-A. I considered it in payment of dlamages
done me by the action taken by the association.

Q. In payment of damages that the association caused you ?-A. Part paymeut
of damages. The damages were far greater than the amount paid.

Q. What sort of damnages ?-A. Damages for the indignity and ineonvenience,
and to the injury of my feelings, &c.

Q. But by the arrest, I want to know ?-A. By the arrest aud by the expense I
was put to.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique

Q. As 1a matter of fact, were you arrested four tîmes ?-A. I arn just thinking,
it is my recolleetion that I was.

Q. So far you have stated that .you were arrested twice at the instigation of the
company, first when you were discharged hy the magistrate, and then on the indiet-
ment of the grand jury. But at whose instance were you again arrested besîdes those
two occasions ?-A. I was arrested first on the civil suit brought by the Mutul
Reserve Fund Life Association against me and hy the civil suit brought by Frederick
A. Burniham, president of the Mutual Reserve Fond Life Association, and then about
twelve months afterwards I was arrested in the crirninal suit-that is three times.

By Mr. Gosier, K.C., Couinsel for the Committee:

Q. Did not G. D. Eldridge arrest you ?A. No, George D. Eldridge did not
arrest me, and after being discharged by the magistrate I was again arrested, when 1
was indieted.

By M1r. (Jeoffrion, (Jounsel for the Mut ual Reserve

Q. When you were arrested you did not go to jail. You just gave bail ?-A. Yes,
I had the honour of spending two hours and five minutes in jail once.

Q. Noxv, to.pome to a dît!creut subjeet, when was the fifteen-year dlass mnade what
you caîl a close body, a distinct body ?-A. The tirst 1 learned of it as a decided
action on the part of the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association xvas, I thînk, in the
year 1898-1897 or 1898.

Q. You do flot know when it was done ?-A. I do not know exactly when it was
done.

Q. You simply learned of it ini 1897 or 1898. Howv did you learn of it ?-A. 1
learned it-

By [lhe Hon. 11r. Beiquie

Q. By what process was it made a close corporation '

Mr, GEOFFION.-lle is mistaken about that.

Q. l-low did you learn it ?-A. 1 do not wish to be uunderstood to have said tlîat

it was made a close corporation. What I intended to say, and what I wish to say
now, is that they were put into at eass by theinselves separatcly.

Q. But to illustrate, do you claim that the death losses on the lifteen-year class

and the death losses on the other class were assessed exclusively on those classes ?-
A. What I meant was and what I understand now, is that the fifteen-year members
were put in a elass by themselves and made to contrihute ail the moneys required for

the payment of death losses and expenses conneeted with their class.
Q. You learned of that in 1897 or 1898 t-A. Sometime thereabouts.

PATTERSON



TElE MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE AS~SOCIATION 417

APPENDIX No. 1

Q. How did you learri of it ?-A. From the literature of the Mutual Reserve Fund
ILife Association, and, I think, from. the officiai report of the Superintendent of In-
surance.

Q. Could you point out anywhere in the Iiteratire of the association or ini the
officiai reports to the Superintendent of Insurance, anything tending to show that the
members of the fifteen-year class were to hear alone the expenses and losses in their
class ?-A. I think I cati.

The CHÂIRmAN.-Quite a number of the inembers of the Committee desire to have
such proof of that letter which bas been referred to in cross-examination hy counsel
for the company as the counsel cari furnish. Il lie caimot do it by primary evidence
hie might procure what secondary evidence he cati.

The Committee adjourned untl 8.15 p.m.

The Committee resumed at 8.15 pa.

EDMUND PENDLETON, of Richmond, Virginia, attorney-at-law, was sworn and de-
posed as foflows:

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Where do* you reside ?-A. Richmond, Virginia.
Q. What is your business or occupation ?-A. Attorney-at-law.
Q. llow long have you been practising ?-A. Since 1884.
Q. Are you a policy-holder in the Xlutual iReserve t-A. I was.
Q. When did you hecome a policy-holder?-A. TI 1886.
Q. In the UJnited States ?-A. Yes.

Mr. GIsoyyHIowN.-Thîs is objected to inasmuci as it bas no bearing on the affaire
of this association in Canada.

Q. What form of policy was it? What year was it taken out I-A. 1886.Q. Then it waa what was known as the :fifteen-year policy I-A. I think that was
the common designation of it.

Q. That is the only policy, according to the evidence, which was issued at that
time I-A. Yes.

Q. Were you asked by the company to change that to the five-year plan I-A. Yes.Q. Who approached you ?-A. A mati who introduced himself and came into my
office in Richmond, I have forgotten the year now, 1895 or 1896.

Q. What was his name e-A. 11e introduced himself as a special representative
of the company and called himself iMr. I. Brown.

Q. Did ho have the particulars of your policy with him I-A. Yes.Q. Why did lie ask you to change it? Would you explain shortly what he said
to you I-A. I will endesavour to tell you what ho said to me. H1e came and introduced
himself as the special representative of the company.

Q. Where was this I-A. IRichmond, Virginia, came into my office in the Chamber
of Commerce, and he said lie came down there for the purpose of seeing varions policy-
holders who were in the city, that lie lad the Iist whidh lie had in his hand, and I
appeared on the list. He said, 'I have you on my list, Mr. Pendieton, as a policy-
holder. and I desire. and the company desires, you to change to a new policy,' and he
proceeded to give lis reasons why it was to my advantage to change: that under the
old policy that I hlid there was every latitude given to the company to increase in-

PENDLE/rON
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definitely in my assessments, and he said with great frankness that the company pro-

posed to avail itself of that privilege with such policy-holders as either would flot or

could flot get out of that elass into a new class which they had created, that it was

the purpose of the company to, save ail of their policy-holdera £rom this mesh-trap,

substantiaily, 'as it was, by getting them out of that class and into the new clasls

wherein they would have substantially a level premium and varions changes in the

policy. Their premium would be a trifle more than they were then paying, but in

every human probability not nearly se mucli as theyrmight ultirnately pay under the old

policies. Hie proceeded to say and to demonstrate: ' ow that a large number of the

flfteen-year policy-holders could flot go into the new class because they were tee old

or because their health was impaired. They would be left ini the oid class of flfteen-

year policy-holders, that no more business would be issued on that fifteen-year plan-

Mr,. GSOFFRION objeets to any statements by any agent te insured, beyond what

was contained in thie application and policy.

WIN'.ESs.-And no new business would be donc on the fifteen-year plan, and that

the renfant of those poiicy-holders who would flot or could flot get into the new plan

would be left to-I do flot remember hia language-but steam in their own grease is

a very good illustration. They would have te psy their own losses amnong themselves,

i11 other words, that the funds of new business and of the other plan would flot be used

te, psy the losses of this plan. New, he said, 'Mlr. Pendieton, a man of yeur age can-

flot afford to do that . and I advise you to take this new policy, and 1 understood

lIim to say that poiicy-helders beyond a certain age could not corne in.

Q. What was the age l-A. My recollection is, that it was sixty years. 11e said

policy-holders over sixty years would not be allowed te change into the new plan, but

would he relegated to the old plan. I toid him that if that was the deliberate purpese

of the company, that business 'of that sort was flot such as commended itself to my

consideration, and I preferred to treat with any such organization as that strictly at

arm's length and on a legal basis. Hie showed me the plan of the new policy, and I

said, 'Mr. Brown, you may show that to somebody else.' But I said, 'There is a

safety clause which I know must be in the policy, a safety clause under certain con-

ditions in the prcmium.' I said that was out of the question, a.nd 'you will have te

excuse me, Mr. Brown ;I do not want your policy on any terms.'

Q. Pid he «r did he flot aay anything about whether they would take any new

business into the flfteen-year plan i-A. lHe distinctly said they would net.

Objected to.

WITNESs.-He distinctly said they would net, as one of the reasons why he urged

me te take the new policy, because ne new business would go into the flfteen-year

plan.

Q.And they were changing the best business from the flfteen-year plan to the

ether ?-A. Yes.
Q. With reference te the increase of rates in the flve-year plan, did he tell you

anything about that ?-A. Hie said at first it was flat. It was flxed, snd I laughed at

him then.

By the Hon. Mr. Domville:

Q.What do you mean by fiat ?-A. Level rate that is not variable at ail, same

rate ail the time, and I simply laughed at hirn, and I said I practised a little insurance

law, and I think T know the meaning of a clause, and I turned the policy over and

showed it te hini, and it shewed a fiexibility and movability in the rate.

PENDLETON
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coun8el for the Committee:
Q.So that they could increase your rate, if they liked i-A. At the end of five

years they could.
Q. llnder the terms of the new policy uffered you i-A. Under the ternis of this

policy offered me.
Q. Was that ail the conversation you had with him i-A. Substantîally. I think

probably I may have suggested to hiin what I thought of the transaction as hie had
presented it to me.

Q.What did you think of the transactioni

By the Chairman:
Q. What did you say to him i-A. I said I thouglit it was a thoroughly dishonest

transaction.
Q. That is what yoig said to him?-A. That is what I told him.Q. Why did you tell him it was a dishonest transaction i-A. My reason for tell-ing him so was because lie had segregated some helpless policy-holders, left them in aclass by themselves to pay their own lossses, and taking aIl of the young blood out ofthat class and putting them, on another plan, and if that was the plan adopted by the

company, it was a dishonest plan, in my opinion.
Q. You told him you would keep your own policy i-A. Yes.Q. And you would continue to pay the premiums ?-A. I did as long as I feitlike it. R1e says: 'The prerniums of the old policy-holders lef t in this class will becontinued until they get too heavy for them to pay,' and I said: ' Then, I will take tomy tent, but in the meanwhile I will stand pat,' whicli I proceeded to do, and when

the assessments did begin to get heavy, I let it go.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. When ?-A. I cannot recail the exact date. I think it was about 1899 or 1900,probably 1899. That is my recollection. It is some years ago, but the assessrnentsgot to be double or largely increased, and lie said they were going to be increased; s0far, in practice, they carried ont whaqt ho had stated. So far the premiums wereincreased largely, what lie liad foreshadowed had been done.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. IPremiums were increased i-A. Yes.
Q. You cannot tell the motive l-A. No.

Dy Mr. Coster, K.C., Uounsel for the Comm'ittee:
Q. Is that ail that occurred between you at that time 1-A. Ail substantially that

I recollect,

By the Chairman:
Q. Was there a question as to other policies 1-A. I asked him: 'Would you putail policies in there 1' And hie says, Oh no, over a certain age will not be allowed.'Q. Did you speak of policies of other people to him 1-A. Nothing except in thematter of age. I took as an Ilustration my father's policy. Hie was rather an oldman, and I said, 'You won't let hirn ini there,' and lie said, 'No, lie is over ag.

By the Hon. Mr. WVilson:
Q. H1e mentioned to you both UJnited States and Canadian policies-that tlieywould corne under tliat 1-A. H1e did flot specify that. Hie said the policy-holders in

the llfteen-year plan.

By the Chairman:
Q.Which. covers the Canadian policies ?-A. Which I understood, and still un-derstand, was meant to cover the wliole business of the cornpany in the world.

PEDLETON
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By .2fr. (Joster, K.C., (Jounsel for the Committee:

Q. Do you know J. M. Stevenson ?-A. Fairly well for about thirty years; he is

rny brother-in-law.
Q. Hlave you seen the printed copy of evidence in this matter l-A. Yes, I looked

at it.
Q. You have rend his evidence ?-A. Yes, 1 looked at it.

Q. Were you present with hirn at a conversation or an interview which he had

with G. iD. Eldridge, the vice-president of the iNutual iReserve, and at wbat tirnel~

A. I think, Mr. Coster, if you will permit me, I know what conversation you refer to.

thougli it is not quite clear just what conversation he is talking about. I know what

conversation was retailed iii that evidence.
Q. Dhd you have more than one conversation when you three were together ?-

A. Not that I recail.
Q. Then give us the only one you had, and what was it i-A. I could flot say

positively that I was neyer present with Stevenson and Eldridge in rny life. I bave

known both of thema for years, and it is entirely possible that I might have~ been

thrown in their presence.
Q. I was looking for the date t-A. I cannot give you the exact date, but it was

along 1899.
Q. 26th January, 1899 i-A. Yes, I believe that was the date. It was about that

tirne.
Q. Can yon tell me wbat bappened at that interview? What occurred t-A. I

can. I was there. iMr. Stevenson* and myseif were in New York together, and be tole

me at the hotel wbere I happened to be, that be bad received a message from M r.

Eldridge asking hima to eall at his office, he wanted to see hima on some business. That

was a day or two after Mr. Stevenson bad sent in lis resignation-a day or two or

a few days after Stevenson bad sent in his resignation. Hie said to me, 'I1 sent word

to Mfr. Eldridge that I would meet bini at one o'clock, and I want you to be present. I

do not know what business IMr. Eldridge bas, I do flot know who will be tbere, and

I want you to be with me.' I said 'assuredly I will be with you.' And at one o'clock

we both went to the office of the Mutual Beserve and sent up our cards to Mr. Eldridge,
and in a few minutes we were usbered up to his office. He met us very pleasantly,

and the flrst thing 1 recali after the general, 'how do you do,' he said, 'Mfr. Stevenson,

you have made a mistake in sending in your resignation and I strongly advise'-

understand, gentlemen, I arn giving substantially wbat I recollect, not trying to quote

Mfr. Eldridge's exact words-' I strongly advise, urge or advise you to witbdraw that

resignation. I tbink that you are making a great mistake. You have been witb the

cornpany a long time, and you bave rendered good services, and I think you are

acting bastily.' Well, the discussion went on. M.Stevenson declined to withdraw.

HTe said no, he would not. 11e bad made up bis mind fully to insist on bis resignation.

It was discussed for probably an bour or more. iMr. Eldridge then suggested to bima

that he would allow bim, if be would not witbdraw tbe resignation, and allow birn tao

take it and put it in his safe. H1e said: 'It would be bere ini My safe and I will bold

it there and it will be subjeet to your disposai. If you insist upon sending it in Inter,

why do so.' I suggested to Mr. Eldridge: 'Mfr. Stevenson is going witb me, Mfr.

Eldridge, to Virginia, to-nigbt. H1e bas promised me to go and be is going, and I

do not think thcre is any chance of you getting bim to reconsider, that is substantially

rny suggestion.' He sa i d: ' Well, go. I know be needs rest. G3o on down and t ake your

holidays and your salary will be sent you. Just leave your resignation iii ny safe,

alllow me ta, put it in there and hold it, and wben you corne back, or when you get

rested or get through with your holidays, stay any reasonable time you like, You are

et liberty to insist upon your resignation. or to reconsider it. Your salary will be

sent yon while you are thereý, and yon will be at full liberty eitber to insist or to

return just as yon please.' I cannot recali the wbole conversation, it is so long ago,

PENDLET'N
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but that was substantially what oecmrred. Mr. Stevenson, when the question of salary
was mentioned, said: 'iMr. Eldridge, that is just one of the things I object to here,
that it is the practice or habit of the Company to pay officers after they have resigned
or are flot rendering services?.' 'Well,' he says, ' it is a practice that lias prevailed
here, IMr. Stevenson, as you know, for a long time, but, of course, things have been
done here that neither you for I can approve of; you know that and 1 know that.'
He says:- 'I think you are supersensitive about flot accepting your salary, and I think
it would be mucli wiser for you to do if.' The discussion went on in that line for soine
time, ail of it appearing or seeming to be an effort on the part of Mr. Eldridge to
induce IMr. Stevenson Wo withdraw lis resignation and agree to reinain with the Com-
pany. IMr. Stevenson declined to do that, would not agree to, it, and in the course of
an hour or an hour and a haif, the conîversation was over and we ieft. Thaf is as I
recollect it, substantially the conversation that occurred.

Q. About how long were you there?-A. About an hour or an hour and a haif.
Q. With Mr. Eldridge ?-A. With -Mr. Eldridge.
Q. And you say fthe whole trend of the conversation seemed te, bc~ towards getting

him f0 withdraw lis resignafion ?-A. That was his sole purpose, as I understood if.
If we were not there for that purpose we were not there for any that I know of.

Q. And Mr. Stevenson spoke about offering to inake an appointment wifh him
some time in Virginia. Was there anything said about that ?-A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Stevenson said that Mr. Eldridge asked him or urged him to make an
appoinfment ini Virginia ?-A. If was a part of the conversation. Mr. Eldridge says:
'Now, Mr. Stevenson, you may think better of this. I want you to think of if. I
want you to turu it over in your mînd. Go on and take your holiday; if you won't
accept your salary then you won't accept it, and if you won't withdraw your resigna-
tion, you won't withdraw it, and there is the end of it; but we appreciate your services
here. You have been of service f0 the association for a long time, and o! value Wo if,
and I think that you should bie recognized. There are things that ought not to be done
and changes ouglit fo be male '-I cannot recail ail.

Q. Changes of management ?-A. I arn trying to give impressions. The im-
pression was that there was room for iniprovement in maffers in the Company that
he was hoping and wishing to improve, and lie wanted him f0 stay auîd :Rght the thing
ouf on the inside and get tbe thing straight, as far as he could, and Iîot gef out and
leave him. 'No,' he said, 'I will mneet you at any time and I will ask you if at the
end of your vacation you xviii have another ineeting with me and ]et us talk this thing
over further. I may have propositions that would be very advantageous to you.' He,
said, 'Will you agree to meet me after your vacation is over, or f0 tell me wbere I
can meet you,' and I answered for him, 'Why, cerf ain]y, Mr. Eldridge, I arn sure
lie will agree f0 that. Hie will do fIat.' We parted thein, and that evening he went to
Virginia with me. I do not recail 111sf how long it was, about a monitb after, probab]y,
lie came back fo my bouse.

Mr. Geoffrion objects fIat that is not evidence.

WIT-NESS.-Mr. Stevenson agreed to make an appointment to meet Mr. Eldridge.
I answered fIat part, thaf he said he would notify Mr. Eldridge wherc lie could meef
him. Hie said le wouid meef hîm in Washington or iRichmond.

By MIr. Geoffrion, fiounsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. And tbere you parfed ?-A. Yes.
Q. And yon did not meet Eldridge and Stevenson f ogether since ?-A. No.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Couasel foi- the Comrnittee:
Q. Do you know that he did or did not meet him afterwards? Do you know any-

f hing about if i-A. I do know something about if.
PENDLEYrON
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Q.What do you know as to whether Mr. Eldridge and Mr. Stevenson met in
Virginia ?

iXIr. GEOFFRION. iDoes lie know? We do not want statements of -Mr. Stevenson.

A. I have nlot put in any statement; of Mr. SLevtjiisOu. Pufruont to the
terras which I mnade on behaif of Mr. Stevenson, and wbich he ratified, when Stevenson
finished bis vacation and returned to my bouse, lie there aid then, on îny reminding
him of his promise to Eldridge to say where he could meet him, if lie desired to meet
him, wrote a note to Eldridge saying, on a certain day he would be in Washington,
and if Eldridge desired to do so, he could meet him. at one of the hotels there. A day
or two after that, next day probably, probably tbe next night, a telegrani w as brouglit
to my house from IMr. Eldridge, addresz-ed to Mr. Stevenson in my e-arë, skiyilng,
'Detained by storm; letter follows.' I arn giving substantially my reeoiieetion of
the telegram. There was a frightful blizzard, as I cali it, vcry heavy snowstorm
swept over the States. It was pretty bad, and the trains wcre all throw'n out, and
wires down, and snow banked up, and this telegram got to me. Mr. Stevenson did
nlot get any letter. HIe was at my bouse for a day or two longer, and w'ent back to
New York, and a few days afterwards I xvas in iNew York, and learning that Mr.
Stevenson had not received that letter whi-ch Eldridge spoke of in bis telegrarn, I
suggested, myself, that I ha7d better write a note to Mr. Eldridge aid say that no
letter had been received; that in view of the heavy snowstorm that prevaileci ilid the
mails being scattered and miscarried, possîb]y Mr. IEldridge might hav e w'ritteu arnd
iniglit think it had been a matter of diseourtesy in failing to notice his letter; where-
upon I 'wrote a note to iMr. Eldridge, stating the fact that since bis toleg-ran], thilt iMr.
Stevenson, I had Icarned, had not received any letter. That was the last corinînnica-
tien, as far as I know, that passed between iMr. Eldridge and MNr. Stev'enson or inyseif.

Q. At any rate, he refused to go baek to the company?-A. Ye-,, lie dîstirîctly
refused te go back to tbe company.

By thte (ihairman:

Q. Stevenson stated that lie had bis resignation under consideration for some
time. Is that a fact ?-A. It is. I adt îsed him to resign, when lie lirst suiiîroned me
from Virginia

Q. When was that?-A. In October, 1898.
Q. Give us the circurnstances.-A. I liad a telegram. from. him, telling me to corne

to New York, that lie wanted me, and I went there, and lie showed me the state of
affairs and state of facts in regard to the Mutual iReserve, sorne matters of practice
and usage and habit and soute acts, what purported te be acta-I arn telling you what
was laid before you-

By the lion. Mfr. Béique:

Q. Nobody belonging to the company was there ?-A. Well, he was an officer of
the ýcompany.

Q. Nobody else ?-A. Mr. Wells was an oficer of the company. I do not know
whether I met them firat together or not. I think probably I met Mr. Stevenson firat,
but at any rate he had some-not facts of bis own-

By Mfr. Coaster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q.He was an officer of the company ?-A. Yes, and I waa his relative and bis
attorney on ai questions that needed an attorney, and lie said: 'We have been in a
terrible fix here, and a terrible row going on, and I '-

Mr. Geoffrion objecta to this as hearsay evidence.

PENDLETON

0 422



THE) MUTUiIL RESERVE FUYD LIFE Â.SOIÂTIONV 423

APPENDIX No. 1

B~y the Chai&man:

Q. Tell us what you know personally in regard to the matter l-A. I simply
know when I reached iNew York I advised him then and there to resigri, for reasons
shown me by himself, and he said he could flot resigil at that time, that he had com-
mitted himself to other officers of the company to remain in the company at ieast
until the annual meeting, and endeavour to get things straight inside the Company,
and, for that reason, unless lie were cailed upon to do something personally himself,
that he considered improper or dishonest, he would flot resign, or that was the reason
why he preferred flot to, resign. At any rate he put it ini sucli a way that 1 could
flot insist upon it, and, therefore, we compromised upon lis waiting until the annual
meeting on the showing he made me. 1 said: 'This is no place for an honcst man.
You must get out.' And that is the reason he did flot get out, just as I have stated,
bis agreeing to endeavour to save the Company; to bring about a change by the annual-
meeting in January.

Cross-exarniiaed bg Mlr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the .Mutual Reserve:
Q. Who were those officers towards whom he hadl compromised himself ?-A. I

did flot say he had compromised. himself.
Q. I mnean taken engagements flot to resign t-A. H1e simply agreed with iMr.

Wells that he would flot resign until the annual meeting at any rate, unless it be-
eame absolutely necessary.l

Q. At the next annual meeting there was an attempt to change the board, I
understand, and lie was to stay to help Mr. Wells in thai attempt?-A. I did not
know there was an attempt.

Q. The purpose ?-A. Undoubtedly the purpose, but a purpose to, be accomplished
by agreement and concession by ail parties. I do flot think any contract was conte--
plated by any of the parties.

Q. You are flot positive about that?-A. Yes, I amn perfectly positive about that,
as far as any information in the circle that I was informed in, Wells or Stevenson.

Q. When was it you advised him to resign and he said he could not?-A. In the
fail of 1898, probably October or November, probably October, I think it was.

Q. On that occasion you met Mr. Wells with Mr. Stevenson t-A. I think I first
met Mfr. Stevenson and then I met 3fr. Wells the next day.

By the Chairman:
Q. Hlave you any knowlodge either as a policy-liolder or as an attorney in the

case of the charges made against the Mutual Iteserve to the Insurance Department of
New York ?-A. I have ail knowiedge of the charges made. I represerited 3fr. Wells
and Stevenson and drew the brief and fled it before the department.

Q. Are you in a position to say whether those charges were examined into by the
departesent or flot i-A. The department told me they were.

Q. Do you know if they were ?-A. I have oniy the department's word for it, or
the representative. I did not see them. actually iookiing at the books or the vouchers.

Q. Did you ever see any documents containing the evidence o! that investigation?
Did you ever see any documentary evidence of the investigation into these charges?
-A. I have seen variolla memorandums that were suhmitted to the department, and
I saw them submitted, and suhmitted somne of them myseif, havîng been put into My
hands for that purpose, and I talked with two memabers of the department, the Sup-
erintendent, Mfr. Payne, and a Mfr. Ilunter, who I believe, did a large part of the
examining, Mfr. iRobert Hunter. Hie is one of the deputies, the first deputy. I simply
remember his name, and remember the fact that lie was examining, and from time to
time I was in bis office and heard his expression of opinion in regard to the matter as
the examination progressed. I gathered from t1iose expressions that he was examin-
ing into these charges that were filed hy me.
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By1 Mr. Geoffrion, Coun sel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q.You said you were a relative of iMr. Stevenson 1-A. I amn. I arn bis brother-

in-law. I married lis sister.

By the Lon. Mr. Béique:
Q. When you met Mr. Eldridge with iMr. Stevenson in New York lie asked you

to accompany him ?-A. Yes.
Q. To iMr. Eldridge's office 1-A. Yes.
Q. Were you made aware before what was the object in view?-A. I lad no ides

what was the object of it, nor apparently had Stevenson. I asked him. 'What does
he want to see you about?' and lie says 'I don't know any more than you do.'

Q. H1e wanted you to be along with him?-A. Yes, I was his representative and
legal advisor and friend.

Q.He was on good terms with Eldridge?-A. Yes.
Q.And an employee of the company?-A. Well, at that time lie had put in lis.

resignation asking that it take effect immediately, so that hie was not then an oificer
of the company.

Q. Had his resignation taken effect 1-A. Yes, I delivered it myseif, and asked
that it take effect immediately.

Q. Had lie leit the premises 1-A. Yes, hie had left and hiad gone back to pay an
assessment ou his own policy-for some such purpose as that.

Q. Was it previous to that lie had sent in lis resignation 1-A. A day or two after
hie re8ignation, I think it was. I will flot be positive, but I rather think Mr. Eldridge
is in error about that.

Q. At any rate we have it on record ?-A. At any rate at the time of this in-
terview the resignation was in, and I drew it myseif, and it was to take effeet im-
mediately, and I inyself turned over the keys.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mulual Reserve:
Q. Then the interview was a friendly one ?-A. Yes, absolutely.
Q. You knew Eldridgc?-A. Yes, just as frierdly Fis I interviewed Mr. Eldridge

a few minutes ago.
Q. You wcre speaking to him ?-A. Yes, I was always on speaking ternis with

Mlr. Eldridge, and I always spoke to him.
Q. You were friendly then?-A. Yes, no reason in the world why I should flot

be on friendly terms with iMr. Eldridge. I disagreed on some matters with Mr. Eld-
ridge, but that is a privilegc that every one lias.

J. THOMSON PATmRSON, examination resumed:

WITNED.-I want te make a statement for the information of the Committee
before I proceed. Inasmucli as an attempt was pade this morning to show that I
was actuated by improper motives in publishing my criticisms of the Mutual Reserve
Fund Life Association in the 'Counselor,' due to the discontinuance of their ad-
vertisement, I sbould like te read just a short letter appearîng on that subject ad-
dressed to me by one of the directors, Mr. Hilliary Bell, and the gentleman who lias
charge of the advertising department, dated JuIy 1.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Have you the letter 1-A. This is a certifled copy.

By the Chairman:
Q. la it a letter you received 1-A. Yes, it is addressed ta me.

PENDLETON PATrrERSON
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Q. Are you able to swear it is the same as the original 1-A. I have positively
sworn to it that that is the case.

Mr. Geoffrion objects to the reception of this letter.

WrrNEss.-I may also add that the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association made
an attempt to buy the editorial columns of my paper, paying for it, and I refused to
comply. This letter reada-

For identification, July 14, 1904.
'JuIy 1, 1898.

'iDEAR SmR,-I have received instructions from the executive comniittee to change
my system of advertising for the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, as each ad-
vertising contract expires. Our~ contract with the " Insurance, Counselor " terminates
on July 1, as you will observe by referring to the original document. In obedience to
my instructions from the committee, 1 herewith rqeuest you to withdraw the card of
the Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association from your columns, and give us instead a
reading notice once a month for the same amount of money. A contract on the new
system adopted by this company I now inclose. You will observe that hy this change
our friends on the insurance press will receive as much consideration as before from
this department, while we shall have a service much more valuable to our agency
force. It will be just as mucli money to you for the year, and much* better aid to, us
in publicity. I am making this change in ail the insurance journals as their contracts
expire, and the editors approve the new system unanimously.

'0Of course you know that in this company there is such a variety of experiences,
incidents and successes, that the Mutual iReserve, beyond ail other insurance organiza-
tions, ofi'ers a chance for fine writing on the part of its friends. We do not necessarily
want long articles abou~t the cornpany, biut a review of our progrena, whether written
in extenso or briefiy, will be much more valuable to us than the mere publication of
our card of the advertising volumns.

'Kindly notify me of your receipt anid acceptance of this contract, and believe
me to be,

'Yours very truly,
(Signed) 'IIILLIARY BELL.

'That deponent on or about the same day received a contract from the said associa-
tion, in the shape of a lette;, a copy of which is hereto annexed, and marked " B." aud
made a part of this affidavit, I)roviding for the use of said editorial advertising at the
rate of $50 per reading notice.'

EXHIIBIT 'B.'
' July 1, 1898.

'DEAR SiR,-You are hereby authorized to publish the first of a series of reading
notices concerning the Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association in the " Insurance
Counselor," in the issue of *Tuly, 1898, unless this order is rcvoked thereto. The
:Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association will pay for each month's publication, made
pursuant to this order, and before sucli revocation, if any, the sum of fifty dollars

($0,after reading notice has appeared, with evidence produced.
'Yours very truly,

(Signed) 'HILLIARY BE~LL.'

That subsequent to the receipt of the said letter and contract, deponent called on
Hilliary Bell . manager of the advertising department of said association, and ab-
solutely refused to seil bis editorial columus, whereupon said Bell stated that the
association would be obliged to discontinue its, advertising in the "Insurance
Counselor"'
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That upon the absolute and unequivocal refusai of deponent te accept the pro-
position made by said association, the said Bell requested deponent to write hirn a
letter stating bis reason for declining to accept the proposition of said association.

'That on or about the saine day upon which deponent had the conversation with
said Bell stated abnve, and before there had been opportunity to write sucb a letter
as requested, deponent received from the saîd Bell a letter, a copy of which is hereto
annexed, marked "C," and made a part of this affidavit, requesting deponent to cal
upon him before writing the promised letter.'

I did net write IMr. Bell, hie being just across the street corner, I stepped into the
offices of the iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association, saw Mr. Bell, and discussed the
question wîth him and called attention te the fact that in the flrs place that contract
implied that if the reading notice was satisfactory to the company the $50 would bie
paid, otherwise it might net; be paid. And, in the second place, I would flot seli my
editorial columns to anybody for any money, and if that action on the part of the
committee was final, the trial must be withdrawn, and hie asked nie te write a letter
to him as chairman of the advertising conmittee, which 1 promised to do, and before
i had written that letter hie himself bad communicated with me in a few lines as
follows:

'August 1, 1898.
'IDEAR -MR. IPATERoN,-Before yen bother your brains writing that promised

letter, corne in te sce me. I arn afraid you do not exactly iunderstand what I meant
in the new contract.

'Ever yours sincerely,
(Signed) 1 HILLIARY BELL.'

On February 6, 1 received the following letter and contract froin the Mutual
Reserve Fund Life Association-

'NEw YORK. February 6, 1899.
'PEAR Si,--I beg to inclose herewith copy of the card sclected for our advertise-

ment for the year 1899. Wil you kindly give it the saine space at the samne rates as
charged during the year 1898, and corntinue it until furtbor orders from this office,

'With kindest regards and best wishes for the success of your excellent journal,
I remain,

'Ever sincerely yours,
(Sîgned) . IFILLIAIRY BELL.'

B$' Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mu tual Reserve:
Q. Before adjourning, I had just asked you to give me in the circulars of the

association and in its reports te the several governments to whitèh it bas to report, the
evidence that you state you can find therein contained of your dlaim that the mem-
bers of the fteen-year class were made alone to pay for any death lesses occurring
in that class ?-A. I think I learned it first in the report by George D. Eldridge,
chairman of the executive committee, Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, made
to the nineteenth annual meeting, January 24, 1900. in which I flnd the following
tables and reading matter connected with it.

By thse Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Shortly wbat is it ?-A. Tables showing the amount contributed by tbe flfteen-

year class up to a certain time, and the business other than fifteen-year class, and the
amount contributed up to a given time by the fifteen-year class, tise amount paid and
so on.

By Mr. Geoffriors, Counsel for thse Mutual Reserve:
Q. To make it as short as possible, will yen please leave that document for identi-

fication here i-A. Yes.
PATTERSON
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Q. And the pages where you flnd that statement are ?-A. Pages 8, 9 and 11.
Q. Those are the pages where you find evidence in support of your statement 1-A.

I wish to put myseif perfectly clear and correct; evidence on which, along with other
evidence that I gatbered at the samne time, that made the impression on me the meim-
bers of the flfteen-year class had been separated into a class by themse1ves.

Q. Then it was a mere impression I-A. I was flot aware that I testified to any-
thing else. T, am aware now they have been separated into separate classes.

1Q. I should like to have the evidence which you possess. If it is mere impression
I should ne take lip the tinie of the Commnittee questioning yeu, but I should like
to have the evidence on which you state that as a fact I-A. I have not the evidence
of any one stating that the members have been separated into separate classes, but I
have seen letters and literature, which have thoroughly convinced mie that that is
the case.

Q. From whom are the letters l-A. A letter written by the company, if I re-
collect them.

Q. Can you show me the letters i-A. I have not the letters.
Q. Then you cannot show us in any way whatever or give us any means of trac-

ing the printed or written statements on which you rely to make that statement as a
certainty. You cannot give it to us ?-A. I have flot them. here.

Q. You are absolutely unable to say to us, apart from this document, where there
has been given out statements by or on behaif of the company to that affect I It is
very important I should know it if you can give it ?-A. I must acknowleclge at the
moment I do flot recal-

By the lion. 3fr. Wilson:

Q. You state positively you have seen papers of that nature ?-A. That I have
seen papers that made that impression upon me. I do flot wish to testify to anything
eise. It is given for what it is worth. That is my impression.

(2. Thiat is a fact that could ha verified by investigating in the books of the
associatîon?-A. That is right.

Q. Otherwisc it is practîcally impossible to know; to have anything much more
than an impression ?-A. The very fact that the menbers of the fifteen-year class
were increased. fromn time to time, and the members of the other and newer class were
flot increased, separates them. into a class in a certain sense, in may opinion.

Q. It is impossible to have more than an impression ?-A. But I think it is right.

Q. Have you bere the by-laws, constitution and rules for the admission of mem-
bers into the Bankers' Associationl You know the association I am speaking of ?-

A. I have not.
Q. Did you ever have them 1-A. I neyer did.
Q. You are flot'insured in that assoc3ation 1-A. I am not.
Q. Can you quote any other company, or association te your knowledge which has

attained any resuit or record approaching that one fromn the point of view of ratio of
expense to insurance in force ?-A. Yes, the Royal Arcanium is stili lower.

Q. That is a fraternal association ?-A. Yes.
Q. Where is the heail office 1-A. In Boston, Mass.-over thirty years in existence

now.
Q. You have nothing else to quote ?-A. I am not hare to advertise, but I thin<

the Independent Order of iForesters would also compare very favourably with the
Bankers'.

Q. That is another fraternal institution. Apart fromn that you cannot quote any?
-A. I do not think there is any.

Q. You cannot quote any company, which is net a fraternal order, which ap-
proaches that record ?-A. I am flot goirxg to give testimony on thinga I have not

made any investigation of.
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Q. You camiot quota any ?-A. I caunot quote any and have flot made an effort
to do so.

Q. I have but on1e letter to submit to you. It is a copy of a letter dated New
York, October 30, 1895, signed by you, I understand?-A. That is flot my signature.
Tt is my signature b, a stamp. 1 had a large number of letters to sign every day,
and ini order to facilitate the matter we had a rubber stamp witb my autograpli.

Q. Look at this letter, October 30, 1895, purporting to be signed by you, addressed
to, Mr. IDavid R. Hyde, and say whether that is the letter that was sent ?-A. I re-
cognize that as the letter in rny letter book.

Q. 1 find this extract whieh I wish to put in evideuce
'We have no objection whatever to your writing the members of the committee

which waited upon the president, viz.: Messrs E. Randolph Taylor, James D. A.
Avery, and J. _M. Becrs, but if you do so, they would in ail prohahility refer your
letter to us, as they have no time to conduct a correspondence with policy-holders.
What they stated over their signature, they are undoubtedly prepared to, stand by.'
-A. It is correct, but if that extract goes in I will request tl'at the whole letter be
filed. The latter reads as follows:

NEW YoRic, October 30, 1895.
Mr. IDAVID R. HYDE,

IP.O. Box 55,
Middleburg, N.Y.

IDEAR SiR,-Your favour 'of the 28th jnst. came duly te hand, and we regret to learn
that notwithstanding the fact that several letters have been written to you, you are
stili unable to see the reasonableness of the reapportionment of rates as per Mortuary
Call No. 81. I arn inclosing you a small pamphlet containing a full explanation which
you may have aiready seen, but I would suggest that you read it carefully as it con-
tains information which, in my humble opinion, ought to convince any one that the
action of the board of directors was a wise one, and in the best interests of the associa-
tion.

I note what you say in reference to Mr. Poil, and cali your attention to the fact
that be is undoubtedly a much youngar man than you are, and consequently pays a
very much lower prernium. To show what I mean, the expectation of life, according
to, the mortalitv tables at age 30 is over 35 years, whereas at 65 it is only a little over
il years, showing that if the two men are to pay the sarne amount, within the ex-
pectation of life, the older man rnust pay three tirnes as rnuch each year as the younger
one does. This is the basis upon which premiums are constructed.

Ail who insured in the association prior to 1890 have had their rates increased,
and Mr. iDoli's rate was increased in tbe same proportion that yours was. This ap-
plies to the increases which. took place prior to the last reapportionment. I have care-
fully read Mr. IDoil's letter and do flot flnd wherein he states that his rate was neyer
increased from the date of his policy.

,We have no objection whatever to your writing the members of the committea
which waited on the president, namely, Messrs. E. iRandolph Taylor, James ID. A.
Avery, and J. M. Beers, but if you do so, they would i11 ail probability refer your
letter to us, as they have no tirne to conduct a correspondence with our policy-holders.
What tbey stated over their signature they are undoubtedly prepared to stand by.

lloping you will corne to, see that the best that eould be doue under the cir-
cumstances bas been done, I arn, with best wishes,

Yours truly,

J. T. PATERSON,
Corresponding Secretary.

PATTERSON
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Q. Wbile you were in the employ of the association your duties were not in any
way connected with the book-keeping, the financing or the accounting of the associa-
tion ?-A. It was not, except that I liad access f0 ail the books.

Q. You neyer made a general study of the system of book-keeping of the associa-
tion ?-A. I did not.

Q. Could you explain to us the manner of book-keeping and accounting for com-
missions i-A. I could flot-at least I will flot undertake to do it, because, as you Say,
I was flot at ail acquainted with the manner of book-keeping of the Mutual Reserve.

By te Hon. Mr. Béîque:
Q. You are flot a book-keeper ?-A. Yes, I arn acquainted with book-keeping.

By, Mvr. Geoiffriva, Counsel for the Mubual Re.serve:
Q. You are flot acquainted with that book-keeping ?-A. No.
Q. You made incidentai references to isolated entries ?-A. Yes.
Q. You are flot in a position f0 explain in detail the manner in which entries

regarding commissions and manner of accounfing for commissions were made ?-A,
I do flot know.

Q. These letters that you have jusf read this evening, to wif, the correspondence
composed of a letter of Mr. Hilliary Bell, of July 1, 1898, f0 you, and the other letters
that you read are published in the 'Counselor,' your newspaper, of October, 1900?-
A. Yes.

Q.Will you please leave the paper for identification ?-A. Yes.
Q.You said that you were a consulting- acfuary ?-A. Yes.

Q. As sucli you consider you are experienced in those matters ?-A. I do.
Q. 1 will put you some simple questions thaf 1 do not attempt f0 understand

myseif. Are you acquainfed wifh the Insfitute of Actuaries f ext book ?-A. I have
studied the Actuaries lnsfitiifi- Text Book.

Q. Who is the aufhor, and bow does hie rank as an actuary ?-A. Quite higli,
first-elass.

Q. Who is he?-A. I du noL lsn0iw that, I reeollect for the moment.
Q. What is the rank, as a body, of the Institufe of Actuaries of Great Britain?-

A. If ranks very high.
Q. Is fhe book izamed thie authoritative publication of fliat body ?-A. It is, I

believe-I can say if is.
Q. Given a table of mortality and a rate of interest, how would you proceed f0

find a net level annual premium for life for a given amounit of insurance e-A. I
do flot know whetlier I can make my answer clear enougli fhat the Commitfee may
undersfand if or flot. There is a regular mathemafical formula in connection wifh
thaf, but I will fry to put if in as few words as I can. You add together the whole
amount, you take ftle amount indicafed by the mortalif y table, and divide if by tlie
number of years of fthe life expectaucy af fbe age givefi, and wifh the inferesf, add
fthe inferesf fo it, and that sbould be divided by flie number of years of expecfancy-
that should be tlie net level premiums.

By the Hon. 11r. Béiqjue:

Q. You are familiar with flua document which lias been placed before the mem-
bers of fhe Senate by this company and which lias been filed here as Exhibit -No. 7.
On page 29, of fIat document I read fthe following-

'During tlie years fIat flie Mutual Reserve lias been doing business in Canada,
excluding the year 1903, for whidh flie full figures were flot available at tlie time
fliat f his compufaf ion was made, the Canadian companies fliaf were doing business af
fthe t ime that flie Mutual iReserve enfered, or that were organized a very short f ime
afterwards, thus excluding fhe recently organized companies, whose expenditures would
be proporfionafely greater, have carried for an average ferni of one year $8,099,311,000
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of insurance. They have collected as premiums on this $105,586,228, or an average of
$34.07 per thousand. They have increased their assets, in addition to the amount of
interest they have received, £rom the premiums $28,056,337, or $9.05 for each $1,000 of
insurance. They have paid to policy-holders $49,253,435, or $15.89 per $1,000, making
the payments to policy-holders and the premiums devoted to increase of assets total
$24.94 per $1,000, showing that for each $1,000 of însurance carried for one year, the
amount used for expenses has been $9.13.

'During the same period, the Mutual Reserve has carried on the asseasmeut plan
Canadian insurance for an average of one year to the amount of $305,125,875. It has
been collected thereon premiums to the amount of $4,937,223, being for each $1,000 of
mnsurance carried $16.18. It bas paid to its policy-holders in Canada $3,061,530, or
$10.03 for each $1,000. Over and above interest receipts it has added to its assets
6I4 cents per $1,000 carried, making the total devoted to the payments to policy-holders
and increase of assets, other thian interest, $10.57, ieaving $5.61 per $1,000 of insurance
carrÎed as the expense of doing business.'

I suppose you have given some attention to that part of the document i-A. Yes,
I have read that document over, and I arn thoroughly familier with it.

Q. You are familier with the portion that bas just been read ?-A. Yes.
Q. I suppose, for the purpose of criticising this document, you have examined it,

have you not i-A. Well, yes, I think I have, but not as fully as if I were going to
criticise it.

Q. I should like to have your criticisma of this statement, both as regards the first
portion and the last portion, the comparison which is made between the two com-
panies, if you have any criticism t-A. I have a criticism, and wish te state, to start
with, that the statemeut is most misleading and unfair. It takes, for example, young
companies, if my recollection is right, just starting on the level premium plan, which,
in the firat place, collect about double the amount tbat this Company collected for à
few years, the first four or five years, up to say about-began in 1886 and I think for
about the first ten years the annuel income of the Mutual iReserve was very much
smaller then the income of these.companies. Its business being solely'the peyment of
death losses, wliereas these level premium companies charged a level premium avereging
about $30 at age 40, and along with that they did a large amount of endowmoent busi-
ness--they did an endowment business, I will not say a large amount-the premiuxn
of which was much larger, and limited payment policies and fifteen-year paid up
policies. Thet made the income of these level preniium policies much larger thon
the income of the Mutual iReserve Fund, and, therefore, naturally the Mutuel ILeserve
would return a larger ainount out of the money actually paid by the insured than the
level premium companies would do, because their endowment policies had not matured;
but they were collecting the money and keeping it for the purpose of paying the claim
when it matnred. To explain thet matter better, I would refer to Mr. Eldridge's
manuel.

Q. I do not think that is necessary l-A. It is the best explanation that can be
given of it. Mr. Eldridge in this manual says thet it is not the proper way to arrive
et a conclusion as to whether one company is more economically managed than the
other. The real and better way is, what is the amount which it costs for management
per thousand of insurance furnished.

ByMr. C'oster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:
Q.What is the page of that book ?-A. Page 48 of the Agents' Manual of the

Mutuel ]Reserve Fund Life Association, edition 1897.

By Mfr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. This document purports to be based upon ail the Oenadian companies doing

business at the time l-A. Yes.
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Q. Therefore, they did flot select any companies; they took ail the companies?
-A. It applies to ail the life insurance companies.

Q. I understood the first portion of your answer to say that they had selected a
certain number of companies which had juat started business 1-A. I did so answer.

Q. Do you inaintain that statement i-A. No, there was a document put iii, an
exhibit here the other day, and that is what-

Q.Then, you correct your testiniony on that 1-A. Yes.
Q.They have taken ail the Canadian companies, and they have taken the total

amounts paid for the purpose of establishing the percentage of expenses ?-A. Yes.
Q.And that was fair enough, I suppose ?-A. No, it was flot fair at ail.
Q.It was not fair as fax as establishing a comparison witli the Mutual iReservel

-A. It did flot prove anything at all.'
Q. But the figures are correct 1-A. I cannot say.
Q. You have flot verified. them 1-A. No.
Q. Have you verified the other figures as regards the Mutual Reserve i-A. I have

not. I have flot gone over that document with that view at ail.
Q. Because, if the percentage of expense was as stated there, $5.61 per thousand,

it would be low enougli, wouid it not 1-A. It was very favourable, but that does flot
give any indication of what the present rate is. It is the average for the nineteen
years.

Q. It is the average for the nineteen years the company lias been doing businessI
-A. Yes.

Q. Aiid if these figures are correct, it would be very low 1-A. Yes.
Q. And compare favourably with the level premium companies 1-A. Yes.
Q. You do flot know whether these figures are correct ?-A. I do flot know; I

have not verified them.
Q. You have stated you have i.rîticiqpd thp rampany in yoirr inslirance paper?-

A. Yes.
Q. Have the company been attacked in other insurance papers that you were

aware of ?---A. There were far more savage attacks made on the Mutuai iReserve
Funld Life Association in the insurance press of New York than I have cvcr pubiished.

Q. You were only one of them 1-A. One of them.
Q. At what time did you cease to have any interest in the company ?-A. About

1900 or 1901.
Q. Sometime shortly after they paid you $5,000 ?-A. Yes.
Q. You have flot continued to give mucli attention to themn since ?-A. I have

been forced to give more attention since-no, flot very mucli attention silice.
Q. What do you mean by not very much ?-A. Oh, I have paid no attention to

them.
Q. What kind of attention 1-A. If I saw anything about thcm or heard any-

thing about them-
Q. You have flot troubied yourseif much ?-A. No.
Q. Since you have ceased to be a policy-hoider, you have not followed the busi-

ness much? -A. No.
Q. You have heard of thcm, but you have given no attention to ýtheir business?

-A. Yes, I have examined the o:fficiai reports made from time to time.
Q. For what purpose 1-A. To see how the thing was getting on.
Q. For mere curiosity 1-A. For my own information.
Q. As a matter of curiosityîi-A. And I have been consuited and written to from

time to time by members of the association.
Q. Anytihng else i-A. Yes, consulted by widows having large dlaims against

thien.
Q. Have you written articles regarding them 1-A. No, not since.

Qla no paper 1-A. In no paper that I arn aware of.
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Q. Could 7011 namne anybody for whorn you acted who was interested in the coin-
pany?-A. A widow by the name of Sprague consulted me in reference to a dlaim.

Q. lier husband, I suppose ?-A. lier husband was dead. I think I have the
papers here.

By the lion. Mr. WVilson:

Q. Do you pretend to say that you have flot kept a fair record of the doings of
the New York Mutual since ?-A. I think I have kept f airly familiar with it ini so
far as its standing as a company is eoncerned, to the officiai reports and otherwise.

Q. And the various parties consulting you in reference to the stability of the
company or the likelihood of their ever getting anything out of the company. I sup-
pose you have been consulted that way ?-A. Quite frequently.

Q. And, therefore, you have kept a good, fair knowledge of the working of that
company since 7011 ceased to have any connection with it ?-A. I have.

By Mr. (hoffrion, Coun.s'l for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. What is meant in science by a commutation column ?-A. It is a colurnm
which enables you to commute the figures or the rates of life insurance companies or
the values of life insurance risks.

Q. What figures, rates or values? What do you mean by that ?-A. I mean the,
figures given in the cýommutation table which enable you to arrive at the result, thEý
net promium and othor cloulations.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. Standard tables ?-A. Yes.

B1, Mr. Geoffrio&. (lounsel for the Midual Reserve:

Q. That is your complete answer on the last point ?-A. That is the answer.
Q. I asked you the question a, few minutes ago; given a table of mortality and

a rate of interest, how would you proceed to find a net level onnual premium for life
for a given amount of insurance? You have answered that question, and I want to
put another question; would it be necessary for that purpose to construet commutation
columns ?-A. You could do it without constructing commutation columns if you
wanted to go the wrong way about it.

Q. If you wanted to construct commutation columns, how would you proceed tû
construct column D ?-A. I should like te siate that I did not corne bere with the
intention of being put through an examination as to my standing as an actnary snd
as to my abilities in that direction. I came here at the request of this Committee to
give evidence on inatters relating to the Mutual Rcserve Fund Life Association, aud
matters other than my mathematical knowledge or my knowledge of actuarial tables,
or the mode by which I arrive at commutation tables, or net values or reserve values,
and if this examination is te proceed in this direction it is but fair te me to give me
an opportunity to prepare myself and answer it.

Q. If you say you require time to make your answer, just say 50 ?-A. I arn aware
that I arn down on record in this matter, and I do flot wish myseif to be placed in an
unf air position.

Q. How would 7011 proceed to construct column ID. -A. I decline to answer or to.
undergo any examination along this line until I have had time to prepare for it.

Q. How columu N., English notation i-A. Same answer.
Q. How column F. -A. Saine answer.
Q. liow coluun. C. -A. Samne answer. To make an intelligent answer to ibhose

questions and put it down on the record so that it would read properly requires a lit tie
time. and I reserve the right, if I arn te be examined along that hune, te prepare mysei.
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Q. Can you give answers that would flot read absolu tely properly ? Yes, or no?
-A. I have no answer to give. I should like to make a statement that I arn under

oath, that I was requested by the Mutual Reserve to make a table of rates for the
joint lives, which table 1 made in 1889, and for which they paid me $250.

Q. Who is the person who asked you on behaif of the Mutual Res3ervet-A.
President Burnham'a private secretary.

Q. What is his nane ?-A. Mr. Johnston, and I wish it strictly understood that
my objections to answering these questions is that they are teclinical questions, and I
have flot given any attention whatever to the answcru which should be made te them,
and which, to have them appear on the record intelligently, and in géod Engliali-
if 1 would attempt te make these answers to-night without having previously studied
the questions, it would flot appear very mucli to my credit.

Q.The iEnglish would be bad. How column 6 ?-A. Siime nswer.
Q.How column M. -A. Saine answer.

Q. How column 11. -A. Saine answer.

B11 the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:

Q. Supposing a population of 4,000 people had an epidemic of cholera and there
were no doctors there, how mucli would you raise the rates l-(No answer.)

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. Do you think it is essential that you should be able te answer those questions
to be an expert l-A. Not at all.

Q. They are only technical catch questions e-A. No, they are questions bearing
on actuarial science ahi rigbt, and relate to actuarial. science.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Questions which an actuary well versed would be expected te be able to answert

-A. I cannot say off-hand.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Spealdng about the Sprague widow case, what was that case Y-A. It was a

widow by the naine of Sprague, whose residence was in Brooklyn, New York, camne to
me in connection with a lam she had. The policy was for $1,500, a.nd the company
sent hier a letter saying they had approved of the lam for-I have flot the exact
figures-something under $600. There was a lien against the policy of some $881,
annual premium some $87, and for extra rnortality some $300, reducing the $1,500
down to something lesa than $600.

Q. What did they pay her Y-A. In the neighbourhood of $600.
Q. When were the liens put on ?-A. I could give you the naine and number of

the policies.

By MWr. (leoffrion, Counsel for the Mu tual Reserve:
Q. Please give the naine in full of the insured, address of insured, and number

of policy.-A. iPolicy 137,678; the naie is John D. Sprague, 66 William Avenue,
Brooklyn, New York, January 10, 1901.

Q. Was it not a North-western policy Y-A. It was.

Hon. Mr. BkiquE.-Is that your last wîtness, iMr. CosterY

Mr. Cos'rER.-I do not know of any other witness at present.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE.-I mnove that it be intimated that no further witnesses will be
examined in support of the charges, and that a day be fixed for the exainination of
witnesses on behaîf of the Mutual Reserve.

Hon. Mr. GiBso.-I move that the Committee adjourn until Tuesday next.

The motion was agreed te and the Committee adjourned.
PÂTTERSON
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OTTAWA, July 18, 1904.

The Connnittee resumned at 8.15.

Mnr Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual iReserve, applied to the Committee for an
order for the attendance of Mr. Thomas Bradsliaw, an actuary in the Imperial Life
Assurance Company, of Toronto.

The Committee agreed to sanction the order.

flon. Mfr. MOMULLEN.-A letter was referred to by counslel for the iMutuai Reserve,

-ileged, to, have been written by the witness, Paterson, to the Crown Attorney of New

York, with reference to stopping publication of the 'Counselor' if the prosecution

were dropped. They have had amplo time to produce that letter, and 1 think it should

be produced before Mfr. Patersons evidence is closed.

Mfr. GnoFRINuoer-We have sent to New York to obtain the letter, but the mes-
senger bas not yet returned.

Hon. Mr. PELLETIER.-InI the meantime I move that the witness be discharged.'
I object to bis being paid whie lie is no longer a witness for the Committee.

The motion was lost on division.

Gnoaoaz D. ELDEIDGE, Vice-President and Actuary of the Mutual Reserve Fund
Life Association, was recalled, sworn, and examined as follows:

Bz, Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:.

Q.You have already becn ezamained in this case. You are the vice-president
and actuary of the association ?-.A. Yes.

Q. You have heard the statement made by Mr. Paterson to the effect that the

policy-hlders kxiown as tlie fifteen-year class had been, towards 1897 or 1898, 1 don't

know which, put into a class with this effect, that they were to pay alone for death

losses occurring in their class, have you heard that statement 1-A. I have.
Q. Wliat have you to say concerning that 1-A. There lias neyer been any action

,of the association placing thema in a clasal by themaselves compelling them to pay their
own losses, and that they have not, as a matter of fact, been placed in a class for
that purpose.

Q. Wlienever a loas occurs in the flfteen-year clasa among whom is the apportion-
ment made 1-A. Axnong ail the members of the company.

Q. Ail the members on the assessment system 1-A. No, ail the members of the
company. There is no division, so far as payin g death losses is concerned, hetween
the different membera of tlie company, but ail must contribute their share towards the

payxnent of the current death loases on the basis of the insurance that they are

caryng.
Q.It bas always been that 1-A. It lias always been that.

By th~e Chairman:

Q.That is indiscriminately 1-A. Yes, witliout regard to class.
E~LDRIDGE
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By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q.You are positive as to that ?-A. I arn.

Q. Tliat point has arisen in litigation, lias it flot i-A. It lias arisen in litigation
in this country, in England, France, Belgium and Sweden.

Q. t lias always been decided that way i-A. Yes.
Q.Could this fact ho verified by the booka of the association i-A. It could. Miy

own report, which I think lias been fiIed liere as an exhibit, shows conclusively the
sanie thing. It was filed by Paterson-the report that I made to the executive com-
mittee.

Q. You mean the report which lie filed in support of li& statement to the effect
that the impression- A. It was my report to tlic annual meeting in January,1900.

Q. You mean the littie book which lie fileil as being the liasis from wliich hie had
taken that impression i-A. Yes. Lt is the duplicate of thîs which I hold ini my hand.

Q. Is this it i-A. This is it. Lt is inarked for identification, pages 9 and Il.
Lt is made to the annual meeting. I reported to the annual meeting, as chairman
of the executive comnhittee, on January 29, 1900. On page 8 will ho found a state-
ment showing the mortuary payments which liave been made by the fifteen-year class
up to December 31, 1897, the interest on any accumulations, the charges against the
members by reason of death dlaims paid and so forth, and showing on that date a
surplus payment of $211,722.98, but with total obligations outstanding against the
class of $1,164,599.74, showing that the amount of benefits thon received by the class
exceeded the payments made by the class by $852,876.76. This, 1 may say, was voni-
fied by the officiai examiner of the New York Insurance Department, wlio made the
examination in 1898. Lt thon shows the resuits at the end of the yoar, Pecember 31,
1899, tliat at that time the bonefits roceived exceeded the paymonts made by $768,613.24
with outatanding obligations of $764,197.42, showing tliat fhe excesa of bcncfitb uver
payments Laid Inorcased during the two years from $852,876.76 to $1,532,810.66, tlie
difference being the benofit that tlie cîsass lad roceived during those two yoars from the
goneral memborship of the compony, and that condition of affaira lias continued
since, the fifteen-year class eeceiving the benefits constantly in excess of the pay-
ments made to the company.

Q.By that cîsassî-A. By that; class.
QIn other words they are contributing since 1895 ahl the time bass than they

recoived i-A. Yes, as they ought to.
Q. It shows that they are not troated as a separate clasa i-A. Yos.

Dy the lion. Mr. Sullivan:
Q. Where would those benefits be derivod from i-A. From tlie general membor-

slip of the company.
Q. 0f the whole company ?-A. Yos.
Q. They as a class received the whole benefit of the wliole company i-A. Yes.

Q.Not of their own class only i-A. No.
Q.And you say that thue benefits they received were in excess of the payments

they made under the assessments ?-A. Yes.
Q. On each individual inember ?-A. On the membership as a clasa; that is the.

benefits paid to the beneficiarios of members of that class exceedod the paymonts.
Q. You mean by reason of doatha ?-A. Yes, by reason of deatlis.
Q. And did tliey recoive more at deatli under tlie agreement than thoy wero enti-

tled to ?-A. No, tliey received more at death than tliey were contributing in assoas-
inents to the general asseasments of the company.

Q. So that that would end in ruin to the company i-A. No.
Q. If you are payiing out more than you got from the people i-A. If it were s0

£rom all lic members it would cortainly end in ruin.
Q. Lt only benefited that one class ?-A. Yes.

ELDRIDGE
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Q. Wby were they placed in th at favoured position 1-A. They are flot placed
in any favoured position. They are members of the entire company, and the death
losses of the entire company must be based upon the mortality among the entire com-
pany; but at this time the death losses occurring amongst that class is in excess of the
asbessments levied on that chass, and ail members must join in the-

Q. That class was flot favoured more than any other class. I thought you said
it was. I thouglit you said they received benefits more than they paid in to assess-
ments 1-A. Yes.

Q. You sai d that that was not sliared in by ail the classes, as I understand it1-,
A. What I say is that the ecst of carrying insurance is assessed the same against one
who is a member of one class as against a member of the other cîsass who is of the
same age and carring the same amount of insurance at the time.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mittual Reserve:

Q. 1 understand the fifteen-year class, speaking geuerally, is composed of the
vider members of the association i A. There lias ceased to be any vusiness written
upon the plan known as the fifteen-year plan since about 1892 or 1893, and, naturally.,
if you isolate that membership by itself, in the remnant of it the death rate is greater
than it is in the general menmbership of thecoompany, but it is a part of the company
and the cost of the insurance is gauged by the entire membership of the company
and not by that in any one class, and if at the present time that class is getting the
benefit-

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:

Q. When did you make those classes 1-A. Tlie distinction in classes is simply
in effect the distinction of forms of policies and just for the convenience of enumerat-
ing the different forms of policies. Ail policies issued up to 1890, about July, 1890,
wtere on what is known as.the fiftecn-year class. Then in 1890 there was introduced
the ten-year form of policy, and that was issued conjointly with the fifteen-year forin
for two or three years until gradually the fifteen-year formn dropped out of use.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. There was a question asked by Mr. Geoffrion, were the fifteen-year class
among the older members 1-A. They were among the oldest members of the company.

Q. You mean to say the longest in the society or the oldest in age 1-A. Well,
they are the youngest in the society and probably their age averages the highest on
any of the classes.

Q. But you are not sure 1-A. I have flot examined it recently to the exact deter-
inination, but I have no question that their ages average greater.

Bg Mr. Geoffrion, Coztnsel for the Mutual Reserve;

Q. What 1 wanted was something with reference to the statement that -Mr.
Paterson mnade, which was the impression that lie gathered froma circulars of the
association, tliat statement to the effect that the flfteen-year class in which you did
net admit an~y more members had to support its own death losses is not correct 1-A.
The impression is incorrect.

Q. And that can be verified by the books of the association 1-A. Yes.
Q. You have been previously examined, I understan1, on the liens of the associa-

tion, but Mr. Paterson again rcferred to those lien~s and objected to the fact of the
liens being put as assets of the associatfon or of the company. Will you please give
a short and concise explanation of that point 1-A. The only liens tliat are treated
as assets are regular notes or certificates of liens signed by the individual member
who lias surrendered lis assessment policy and taken a policy with a fixed and level.
premiuxn.
ELDRIDGE
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Q. In exchange?-A. In exchange for the original policy. In those cases the
premium rate fixed and levied is deterxnined by his original age of entry, and hie, hav-
ing contributed nothing towards the reserve of the company thiat would be required
of that policy that had heen in force the number of years that his poliey bas heen in
force, lias the option to pay either the cash equal to the reserve required under the
policy or else to give bis interest-bearing note therefor. Every one of those policies
has a guaranteed cash or loan value in event of surrender, and in no instance is that
note admitted as an asset in excess of the reserve that is charged against the Com-
pany on account of that policy, or in excess of the cash value that can be drawn from
the association in event of the surrender of policy. Any licns that may exiat against
the assessament policies are not carried as assets, and none of tliem. have ever been
carried as assets. Identically the saine condition exists in many companies, and in-
stead of this, as lias been stated, being a thing peculiar to the Mutual Reserve, there
are many companies that have identically the saine thing, and they are admitted as
assets. These particular liens have been returned as assets to ail the departments to
which this company report, and accompanying in the report thp reserve agaînst those
policies lias heen oharged as a liability. So long as this Company was an assessment
Company, the New York Insurance Department ruled that it had no autliority to
charge as a liability against the company the reserve on these policies, and because
of that it directed the company to'excînde the amount of reserve from the liabilities,
and also the liens from the assets and necessarily from the income and the expendi-
tures. With the exception of the State of New York, no objection has ever been
raised to these liens as assets, excepting in the State of Massachiusetts. When tliey
were lirst returned to the State of Massachusetts, they were accepted as assets and
carried into the report as sucb, and the corresponding liability was charged against
the compsny. Subsequently, liowever, the year following the first return of them, the
Insurance Commissioner of Massachusetts obtained an ex parte opinion from the
Attorney General of the State that they should flot lie admitted as assets, and the Te-
serv e should flot be charged as liabilities, and, accordingly, that year, lie excluded
them from the report. After this ruling was made public, an appeal w'as made to the
Attorney General of Massachiusetts to rehear the matter, whieh lie did, and on the re-
hearing lie decided that tliey were assets, and directed the insurance commissioner to
admit tliem as 'assets and to charge the company with the corresponding liability.
Upon the reincorporation of the company, it becoming a legal reserve Company, under
the law of New York, then the insurance superintendent was directed by the law-to
charge the reserve as a liability and at that time lie admitted the liens as assets, be-
cause the corresponding liability was cliarged.

Q. Every lien which was entered as an asset is a lien evidenced 1w, a note of the
insured ?-A. Yes.

Q. And is a lien on the level premîum policy, on whi-.ch yoin are boid to have a
reserve ?-A. Yes.

Q. And the legal reserve is charged as a liabilityl A. Ycs.
Q. And in New York and everywhere they are admitted as assets l-A. Yes.
Q. And if you remove tbern as assets, you would have to rcmiove a Corresponding

amount as legal reserve?-A. Yes.'
Q. So it would flot affect the balance <-A. No.
Q. You were admitted as a legal reserve company a f ew years prior to being

admitted as sucb in New York ?-A. On the llth August, 1892, and we were not
treated as a level premium Company in New York until the 17th April, 1902.

Q. And for a few years you claimed those liens as assets in Canada, when you
dîd flot have them as sucli in New York?-A. So far as tlie liens existed in Canada,
we were obliged to return tliem in our report as assets to the Canadîaii department
as ('anadian business. That being the case, and it presenting itsclf to us, being a
legal reserve Company under the law and an assessment company iii New York, on
the return to the Canadian department and our report in tlie form required by the
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New York department, it included in the income expenditures and assets these liens
as assets, and charged the company in the liabilities with the reserve as a liability;
but to every sucli report I appended a note calling the superintendent's attention to
the fact that the iNew York department, having no authority to charge the assessment
company with the reserve each year, ruled that that item could not appear in the
liabilities, and, consequently, that the liens eould flot appear in the assets expendi-
ture or income, and I submitted this report to the superintendent with this note
appended, so that if, in his opinion, a different report was required under a law of
Camada, be would notify me and I would submait sncb amended report as was re-
quired, and I înight say here that this matter explains the disecrepancies that appeared
between the published report of the company as regards its general buiness in Can-
ada, and the published report in the New York Insurance IDepartment.

Q. This note is the one which was read to Mr. IPaterson by the lion. Senator
Béique ?-A. It is.

Q. T1he original of that notice was here the other day, and it is here yet?-A. I
presume it is, and it was appended to ail the reports that contained that difference.
iMoreover, I may say that, in submitting this amended report, which excluded these
items, to New York, froma the report, I accompanied every report by a staternent that
the report was miade under the ruling of the department, stating what items were
excluded froma the different sehedules, and asking that such statement ho- received as
a part of the report, so that, if in future years there should come up a question, 'when
the circumstances were forgotten, the document would be on file to exploin just why
the discrepancies occurred.

By the Hon. M1r. Lougheed:
Q.Was that by a separate document, or upon the face of the report? ýA. It Nvas

a typewritten document appended to the report.
Q. And that explains the discrepancy ?-A. That explains every item that was

excluded under the ruling of the department in New York. Those are the three re-
ports on which the differences occur. I have my letters to the department here.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Go ansel for the Committee:

Q. It is not attached to the certificate in this report we have here ?-A. I do not
know how it is. I know it accompanied the report to the New York departmnent.
and 1 know the letters were sent to the departient ii iNew York.

Q. Are these certified copies?-A. Yes. There are two certi6ied copies. 1
think there is one not certified; but I knowv as a fact that those letters accompanied
several reports.

Q. Was that fastenied on it, when you got it fromn the departmient ?-A. Yes.
Independent of the question whether they were attached to the copies, I testify that
those were copies of letters that aceompanicd the several reports to the -N-,ew York
Insurance Department.

By .Mr. Geo ifrion, Comisel for the Matual Re.serve

Q. You sent the letter as you say 1-A. Yes. 'I saw that they were sent to the
department in each instance.

- By the Chairman :
Q. Were they sent after the report, or how ?-A. They were sent w'ithi the report.
Q. Pasted on, as it appears here ?-A. Yes.
Q. It is very strange, the New York department would not give us a certified

copy ?-A. That, I do not know about.

By Mr. Geo ifrion, Cou nsel for the Mutual Ieserve

Q. This copy of the letter is certified also I-A. It could easily be pasted on
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after the certification took place. It is a physical possibility without any trouble
whatever that it should be done, but waiving ail that question, I know that that letter
went in each several case.

Q.You sent the letter?-A. Yas.
Q.You do flot know what thay did witlMit thera l-A. I received an acknowladg-

ment of the letter iii each case. Beyond tbat, I do not know.

By the lon. Mr. Landry -

Q.When are those copies sent ?A. The same time the report is sent.
Q. When ib the report sent ?-A. The report is sent each year, within sixty days.

after the first of January.

By the ilon. Mr. Beique
Q. 1 understand that the copias of the New York report which were sent to the

Insurance flepartment in Canada, contain this information ?-A. It does flot contain
thasa particular letters. It con tains a note-every one of tlin that contains those
discrepancies.

By the Chairman:
Q. Than the latter doas flot fori a part of the report itself ?-A. It doas not

form a part of the report that was submitted to the Canadian department. You will
find in eaeh one of those, I asked the Superintendant of Insurance of New York to
consider that as a part of the report for the purpose of explaining the differance, and
1 have no question that if you wrote to him, and asked him for the letters 'accom-
panying the report at the same tima, that he wonld produce those letters. I do not
mean to swear that those letters were pasted to the New York report. I mar, to
swaar that tbay accompanied the iNew York report in each partioular case.

By Mr. (Jeoffrion, (Joun.sel for the Hutual Reserve:
Q. Witl the request to make them part of the report ?-A. With the requeat to

maka tbem. part of it. This is the latter of March 2, 1900, and rcad-s as follows :
'I have to ask you that this letter may ba considered as a part of our officiai return to
your dapartmant, and as such filed with the amended annual statement as set forth
in the blank furnishad hy your department. I think you will recognize the jiustiee
of this requet, as at soma subsequent date, questions might arise when the details of
this transaction were flot; fresh in the memory of the officiais of tha department, and
as I have, in compliance with your ruling, sworn to' this report as correct, although
it omits certain items carriad in our ledger, on Decembar 31, 1899, as ledgar.assets, it
seems but a fair precantion that the record shonld be made entire on the officiai files
of your dapartmant. I shall, to that end, attach a copy of this letter to the copy of the
amanded report, which we retain as a portion of our records in our cifice.'

I have no doubt if you ask the Insurance Department of New York to return a
certified copy of that latter, they would do so.

Q. Mr. Paterson has referrad to an item of actuarial expensas, and he seerned to
ha under the impression that those actuarial expanss must include your salary, as
actuary. Is that correct ?-A. The actuarial expenses do include my salary as actuary
of the association.

Q.You hava the salary as vice-presidant, and one as actuary ?-A. Yes.
Q.As president yon are an officer of the association ?-A. Yes, 1 arn.
QIs the actuary an oficer of the association ?-A. No, he is an amployea of

the association.
Q. Do the names of the officers appear in the constitution ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you a copy of the constitution ?-A. Yes.
Q. As a matter of fact. the actuary is flot nientioned among the officers. ?-A. No.
Q. And tha vice-president is ?-A. Yes.
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IMr. COSTER objects.
WITNESS.-I say that included in the actuarial expenses is my salary, as actuary

of the company. In my staternent to the Committee, which I arn to render, of the
salaries paid, year by year, in order to make the matter complete, I shail include in
the outgo, my salary as outgo, so that every dollar that is paid to any man that is an
officer of the company in any year, will appear on the outgo that will bie given in that
schedule.

Q. For the purpose of that schedule which you are to file, of the total salaries
of the officers, you will treat the actuary as an officer ?-A. I shall include his com-
pensation in the paynients made.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:
Q. Will you put themn separately i-A. I arn to give the total paid to the office:q

ai the company.

Mr. COSTER, K.C.-I submit, that if hae gives part of the evîdence, hie should give
the whole of it.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q.1 do flot understand that every cent of those actuarial expenses are your

salary as actuary?-A. Not by any manner of means. I wish it were.
Q. Then in volume 4, page 68, your statement that the amount entered in the

report under the head of salaries to officers, included ail compensation to officera, in-
cluded under the head of officers was flot incorrect, as iMir. Paterson seemed to believe?
-A. It was not, as I uinderstood the question, and the facts that existed in regard to
the named officers of the company.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan&:

Q. What would bie the actuarial duties, and what would lie the staff which you
had ?-A. The duties of the actuary are to compute the rates of premium, to adjust the
cost of insurance, to determine the reserves held agaînst the various policies, to adjust
the share of surplus, to determine whether the different classes of members are paying
their fair cost of the insurance, and within the last tbree or four years, it lias been
in general the work of adjusting the business of an assessment company, of a company
that has been conducted for a large number of years as an assessment company, to
the requirements and demand of a company based upon the legal reserve requirements
of the law of New York.

Q. H1e has nothing to do with income and expenditure and general affairs of the
company l-A. 11e lias flot anything to do with those.

Q. H1e simply confines himself to ascertaining, by lis peculiar skill as an actuary,
the rate each man ought to pay according to lis age, and other affairs connccted
with insurance-this expert business. It is something ordinary men could flot under-
ta<e ?-A. It is in a certain degree, the work of an expert. I think some very ordinary
men do undertake it, but it is supposed to require some peculiar training.

Q. Are you an actuary by the riglit of any academy?-A. By the, right of no
academy.

Q. You know there are such societies of actuaries ?-A. I know there has existed
in the United States within the last twelve years, a society of actuaries. Prier to that
there was no society. There was none in Great Britain.

By Mr. Geoffrion. Coin.sel for the J1 thial Rescrve:
Q. As to the increase in actuarial expenses durina' the last year. as lias been

pointed out,,have the great di:fficulties under which the association bas been labouring
during the last few years, compelled you to increase thie actuarial expenses ?-A. They
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necessarily called for the incurring of actuarial expenses, that would flot have been
ixicurred in a company that bad none of these questions to deal with, and they called
for the incurring of a great many actuarial expenses that would have been avoided,
had the company had some actuarial advice i11 the early years of its history, which it
unfortunately was deficient in. The adjustrnent of a business that had been con-
ducted as this business had been, without expert direction, or knowledge of mathe-
maties of insurance on a scientîfie basis, callrd for the very best advice and counsel
that could be bad, and necessitated the expending of money for that purpose, which.
oould flot be avoided if the affairs, of the cornpany were properly conducted, and the
adjustment and reincorporation as an old-line company, called for additional actuarial
expenses fhat could not be avoided.

Q. YVou have had occasion to consuit consulting actuaries, I suppose I-A. I have
repeatedly. I would flot venture on such problemas as confronted me, without obtaining
the best advice I possibly could, of an expert nature, to guide my course.,

Q. Are yon not a member of sorne associations of actuaries I-A. I arn not.

Bu th&e Hon. Mr-. Robertson:
Q. llow long have you been acting actuary of the company ?-A. I have been

actuary of the coinpany since the latter end of 1895.

B y the Chairman:

Q. Was this before there was a school established in the United States 1-A. My
impression is that the actuarial society was established about thirteen years ago, but
it would be practically an impossibility for a man who had been identified with assess-
ment insurance, sud had praetised as an assessment actuary to 'obtain admission to
the American Society of Actuaries, and 1 have neyer applied for that admission.

By Mr. (Jeoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. Mr. Burnbarn, the president of the association, is in England 1-A. Yes, he is.
Q. H1e left on the 25th of the last montb 1-A. Yes.
Q. You were to go?-A. I was to go to England on account of the Foster case,

and had my passage engaged, and on account of this investigation here, and being
engaged in it, wben I went down on the lSthi day of June, I had to insist upon iMr.
Burnham going in my place, because the niatter was one that was likely to corne up
before I could possibly get over there.

Q. Was it a matter of great imiportance that one of you sbould be over there 1-
A. It is a matter of the greatest importance. The case involves issues that are of
great importance to the company and to its mernbership, and the case would have
been beard early in January by the Hfouse of Lords, but by special arrangement it was
postponed.

Hon. IMr. WILSON.-What bas this to do with it?

Mr. GEOFFRIO.-I arn simply proving the fact of bis absence.

Q. There has been some evidence concerning a large arnount of depreciation in
tbe as§ets of the association, wbich Mr. Paterson was of the opinion could in no way
be accounted for satisfactorily to him. I think you will find the exhibit in whicb
Mr. Paterson made that point is Exhibit 43. In that exhibit he finds, between 1895
and 1901, a decrease in assets of $1,355,526.06. lHe accounts for $693,069.22, and says
there are $644,429.80 unaccounted for. Wbat bave you to say as to tbat ?-A. I bave
to say that the report of the association froni December 31, 1898, to December 31, 1901,
as givtrn o iNew York Insurance Departrnent, sbows an exact balance, and tbat every
item of diflerence therein is accounted for, and if the certified report would be given
to, me, I could show it. I have here prepared a balance sheet.

ELDRIDGE



SELECT COMMITTEE ON THE POSITION OP

4 EDWARD VII., A. 1904

By Mr. Ccýster, K.O., Counsel for the Mulual Reserve;
Q. IPerliaps you could show where Mr. iPaterson's statement is wrong ?-A. Yes,

1 can do that, by the reports from December 31, 1895, to December 31, 1902. Mr.
Paterson placed the net invested assets of the company as of December 31, 1895, at
$3,967,316.45, which included $314,562.5~9 of agents' ledger balances, and $41,640.77
of furniture and fixtures. For 1896 lie places the total income at $5,858,476.97 and
the total disbursements at $5,585,417.69, which would have left a balance of $4e240,-
375.53. In bis column of total net assets, lie placed the net assets at $.2,4.J
which was $219,235.24 less than the balance that would have been shown by the iii-
corne and disbursements, and constituted a portion of the disbursements which lie
testified that hie found no ineans; whatever of accounting for. At tlie end of shedt1le
4 of the certified report to the New York Insurance iDepartment, December 31, 1896,
appears these words, 'Total net or invested assets, as per balance 'n page 1, $4,240,-
375.53, less dednction for agents' balances unsecured $219,235.24. Total net assets,
less deduction, $4,021,140.29, which was the amount lie laid dow-n, and which amounts
for $219,235.24 of the amount lie said lie could flot by any possibility account for.
In 1897, starting with the balance, $4,021,140.29, the income was $6,081.309.S7. and
the outgo $5,963,082.87, leaving a net balance of $4,139,367.29, which is the amount
given by him. In the report for December 31, 1898, schedule 1 starts with amount
of net ledger assets, December 31 of previous year, $4,139,367.29, less agents' ledger
balances, charged off to depreciation of assets $200,000, leaving $3,939,367.29, which
accounts for $200,000 more of the deflciency. The income is $6,134,327.27, and the
outgo, $6,375,939.30, reducing the balance to $3,697,755.26. In that year the depart-
ment clianged its blank, and directed the deduction of all those items, and in sclie-
dule 4, after giving the ledger assets as tbey appear in the balance, as between income
and outgo, there is in the printed schednle, the direction from the departmnent,
'Deduct Items 6 and 7 from assets, that are not actual investmen*,s; and there is
deducted $364,457.06, leaving the net balance that is given here of $3.334,169«78 by
direction of the department. Those are items that are marked out of the net ledger
assets, and are no longer carried, but the point is that tliey are stated in those reports
distinctly, su tliat those reports as tliey exist show the exact balance at the end of
1901 as it is sliowu in this report, leaving nothing whatever not accounted for.

Q. And the amount which iMr. Paterson said could not be accounted for is
covered by those reports in every instance t-A. Yes, f£rom thlat time on the agents'
balances were always deducted and tlie items were carried without any account of
the agents' balances wliatever, leaving the assets at the end of 1901, $2,611,790.19,
and balancing to a cent, as tuis statement of the case will show. In addition to that,
I desire to point to this as showing the decrease in assets exclusive of agents' balances,
furniture and fixtures, $999,422.70, and the decrease in liabilities $-)57,S8-6.23.

Q. Exhibit 47 reads as f ollows:

MUTUAI RESEIRVE ILIFE INSTIRANCE COMPANY.

BALANCE SHEET, 1895 To 1901.

1895--Net or invested assets, December 31, 1895, including agents'
ledger balances and furniture and fitures. ..... ....... $ 3,967,316 25

Total income 1896, Schednle II, sworn report to New York
Insurance Department..................5,858,476 97

$ 9,825,793 22
Total disbursements 1896, Scliednle HII, same

report...................5,585,417 69
Agents' balances rnarked off, Sehedule IV, same

report...................219,235 24
ELDRIDGE 5,804,652 93
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1896-Net or invested assets, December 31, 1896, Schedule IV, same
report........................$ 4,021,140 29

Total income 1897, Schedule II, sworn report to New York
Insurance Department. ................. 6,081,309 87

$10,102,450 16
Total disbiirsements 1897, Schedule III, same report.......5,963,082 87

1897-NXet or invested assets, December 31, 1897, Scbedule IV,
report................. ...

Total income, 1898, Sehedule II, sworn report to New
Insurance Department..............

same
... $ 4,139,367 29

York
6,134,327 27

$10,273,694 56
Total dishursemients, 1898, Schedule III, same

report..................$6,375,939 30
Agents' ledger balances marked off, Sehedule I,

sane report.................200,000 00
Agents' ledger balances and furniture and fix-

tures deducted by requirement of blank .
Sehedule IV, same report, $364,457.06, less
credit balance, Sehedule VI, $871l.58.... 363,585 48

$ 6,939,524 78

1898-Nef or invested asêets, IDeceniber 31, 1898, Sehedule IV, same
report......................... -$3,334,169 78

Total income, 1899, Schedule II, sworn report to New York
Insuranee IDepartment. ................. 5,192,030 21

$8,526,199 99
Total disbursements, 1900, Schedule III, same

report..................$5,755,728 22
Agents' ledger balances dedueted by requirement

of blank, Schedule IV, saine report.......97,598 12

1899-Net or invested assets, December 31, 1899, Schedule IV, saine
report.......................

Total income, 1900, Schedule II, sworn report to New York
Insurance Department................

Total disbursements, 1900, Scbedule III, same
report..................$5,077,247 84

Agents' ledger balances deducted by requirement
of blank, Scbedule IV, same report.. .. ..... 79,719 84

$ 5,853,326 34

$ 2,672,873 65

5,333,969 80

S ,006,843 45

$5,156,967 68
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1900-Net or invested as.sets, December 31, 1900, Schedule IV, saine
report........................$ 2,849,875 77

Total income, 1901, Sehedule II, sworn report to New York
Insurance Departinent. ................. 6,700,222 8

$9.550,098 15
Total disbursements, 1901, Schedule Ill, same

report. ................. $,5, 27
Agents' ledger balances, deductcd by require-

ment of blank, Schedule IV, saine report.. 88,228 69
- 6,938,307 96

1901-Net or invested assets, December 31, 1901, Schedule IV, saine
report.. .. .... ......... .. ....... ... ......... $ 2,611,790 19

Net or invested assets, Tkoemher 31, 1895, in-
cluding agents' ledger balances and fur-
niture and fixtures.............$3,967,316 25

Agents' ledger balances and furnitures and fix-
tures, December 31, 1895............356,103 36

Net or invested assets, December 31, 1895, excluding agents'
ledger balances and furniture and fuxtures .... ....... $ 3,611,212 89

Net or invested assets, December 31, 1901, excluding agents'
ledger balances and furniture and fixtures.........2,611,790 19

Decrease........................$ 999,422 70-
Liabilities, December 31, 1895,

sworn report to New York In-
surance Departinent, Schedule
VII.............$456,990 28
Sehedule VII (contingent) 838,149 22
Page 6, note. ......... 291,605 18

$1,586,744 68
Liabilities, December 31, 1901,

sworn report to New York In-
surance Department, Schedule
VI..............$628,490 82

Schedule VI (contingent)_......700,427 63
$1,328,918 45

Decrease. ...................... $ 257,826 23

Mr. Paterson exeludes froin the assets ail the foreign deposits. In the first place,
what foreign deposits have yon with the governinents ?-A. We have the deposits in
Canada, Italy and Spain which are exclusively for the benefit of the policy-holders, in
the respective countries in which they are made. The deposit in Spain I think
ainouuts to between nine and ten thousand dollars, in Italy about $113,000, and in
Canada it amounted to $268,000, 1l think the valua tiou was nt thc ond of a yetir. That
was in round numbers. I do not give the exact amouint. In Canada as the valuation
8tood on December 31, it was $256,922, and if the report of December 31, 1903, c511 be
found, I will supply it to the stenographer. In the three countries it amounts to just
about $380,000.
ELDRIDGE
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Mu tuai Re.serve:
Q. 380,000 in addition to the $268,000 ?-A. No, in Canada, Spain and Italy,

the aggregate deposits are $380,000.
Q. Is there none in England l-A. There is one in England, but it is flot ex-

clusively as the others are, for the benefit of the business in that country. It is a
general deposit.

Q. And in New York i-A. The deposit in the iNew Yorký Insurance Deypartment,
*200,000, is for the benefit of the policy-holders, wherever they may be located, the
entire membership of the company.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mu tuai Reserve:
Q. Have those foreign balances been accepted by the New York Department as

assets 1-A. They have been accepted by the New Y.ork Department as assets, because
i the liabilities as carried by the New York Department, the liabilities those coun-

tries are cbarged as liabilities of the company. We are required to report to the New
York Department the deposits in the several coun tries, and the liahilities in the
countries also.

Q. iReference has been made also to the New York building of the association
as an asset. Have you tbe papers in connection with tbat investment ?-A. Here is
the action of the board of the directors and the meetings of the policy-holders, authoriz-
ing the lease to be executed. The whole matter was covered before 1 became con-
nected in any way with the company. The New York Department bas valued tbis
piece of property in 1894 in its examination, again in 1897, again in 1898, and agaîn
in 1899, and again in 1902, and tbe last time in 1902, it made the valuation, and
certified the extract from. the lease and I file tbat as certificate copy of the lease.

Byj Mr. Costçr, K/J., Covns~i for tho Commillee:
Q. What did the N~ew York Department value it at 1-A. The valuation is in

excess of the lease, $526,471.42.

By the Hiom 31r. Béique:

Q. When?-A. In Marcb, 1902. The company is now carrying it on its books
at $490,121.72, as it charges off eacb year a portion of the value less on account of the
decreasing term of it.

Q. This lease was entered into before you were in the association 1-A. Yes.

(Lease with valuation appended produced and rnarked for identification.)

Q. And this was accepted as an asset to the extent of that amount ?-A. Yes.
Q. In your opinion are those items assets 1-A. Yes.
Q. A statement lias beer' filed by Mr. Paterson, placing the deferred premniums

for a given year at $1,133,934.33, and it was pointed out that the percentage of de-
ferred premiums was larger than in other companies, that those deferred premiums
were ail mentioned as an asset and Mr. iPaterson gave it as bis opinion tbat a greater
part of it was not an asset. What bave you to say as to those statements 1-A. That was
the deferred premiums and premiums in transit, less the loading, but it was flot ail
admitted as an asset. The actual amount adtnitted as an asset was $1.017,053.99, which

voul 'eucethe percentape to z31C)9. 1 he percentage is larger than that in otber
companies, and for the reason partially pointed ont by -MIr. IPaterson in bis testimony,
that a considerable -portion of tbe business of tbe company is still collected on the
bi-monthly basis, wbule the majority of the business douie by ordinary life companies
is upon tbe annual basis, on whicb tbere would be no deferred premiums wbatever,
'Where it is not done by ordinary companies on the annual basis, it is done generally
by semi-annual payments, and on that there would be deferred premiums. The least
that the general company bave tbeir payments upon is quarterly, and very few. if any

ELDR.IDGZ
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of tliem, carry them on bi-monthly payments. This would necessarily, make the de-
ferred premiums of the Mutual Reserve mucli larger, and if lie had compared them
with other companies, which originated as assessment companies doing business ou a
quarterly or hi monthly basis, lie would have found the pèeentages mucli doser on
those companies. The value of Liais as an asset je the saine as it is in every other com-
pany, and rests upon the fact that the valuation is made by the department, and
cliarged es a liability tased upon the fact that this premium lias been paid. It is,
therefore, adniitted as it was by every department in tlie world, to tlie extent whjch the
assumption that this is paîd increases the reserve liability, therefore it resuits that if
any portion of this deferred premium, admitted as an asset failed to be paid, the
liability of the company would be reduced to, at least the extent that the assets of the
2ompany would be reduced, and on that basis the item would bx- admitted and always
liad been adxnitted by every department in the United States and by every department
in Canada.

Q. As every lapse or non-payment of those deferred premiums would redue the
liability of the association for at least as large an amount, it follows that wlietlier the
premiums are to be paid in the future or not they are an equally good asset i-A. As
an offset to the Iiability cliarged against tlie company.

Q. Referring to dlaims tliat have been scaled down, compronilised, you have, I
understand, prepared a statement sliowing £rom 1895 to 1908 the compromises made in
Canada i-A. I prepared a statement of the number of cases, the6 amount, and the
reasons in ail cases wliere the claimants were paid less than the face value of the
policy in Canada for escli year, 1895 to, 1908, botia inclusive, and also, aggregated the
amount

CLAIMS PAID AT LESS THAN FACE IN CANADA 1895 TO 1903, BOTH INCLUSIVE.

1895.

Cause. Number. Ainount. Amit

paid

Breach of warranty ......... ........... ............... 5 18,00Q~ 7,175
Fraudulent application. .......... .......................... 1 5,000 1,000Void reinstatemnent of lapse..... ..... ........... ............ 2 7,000 2,900

8 30,00)0 11,075

Payrnents of clainis .......... $8 163,793
Add discount,................18,925

$ 182,718 Per cent paid................ 89642

1896.

Cause. Nuxnber. Ainount. Amount
paid.

Lapse ................ ... . ... .......................... 1 2,000 1,000
Breauli of warranty....................... .... .... 2 6,000 1,000

3 8,000 2,000

Payinents of 8lii..... 264,728
Add discount .......... ......... ,00

M 20, 728 Per cent paid............. 978
ELDRIDGE ré *784
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Cause. Nuinber. Amount. pAidu

Lapse........ ........ .......................... 1 5,00)0 2m0
Breach of warranty ......................... ................ 12 23,000 8,250

13 28,000 8,500

Add discount: ........ 19,5w0

$ 299,739 Per cent paid ..... . 93.494

CLAIMS PAID AT LESS TRAN FACE IN CANADA, 1895 TO 1903, BOTH- INCLt SIVE-
Continued.

Cause. Number. Amount. Aidu

Breach of warranty. ............................ 4 12,000 2,350
Void reinstatement........... ý ... ....................... 3 10,000 5,050
Jraud in application.......................... ... ...... 1 2,000 3m0
'Violation of contract .... ..... ... ...... .......... ............ 1 2,000 l,'00

9) 26,000 9,250

Payments on dlaims,.......$ 281,768
Add discount ........ .. ...... 16,750

8 304,518 Per cent paid ...... ...... .... 40

1899.

Cause. Number. Aniount. Amoid

Breach of warranty ...................... .. ....... .......... 3 5,00)0 2,000
Void reinstatement ..... .............. ......--..-.......... 3 5,000 2,400
Fraud in application. ..... ....... ..... .............. .... 1 2,000 1,030
Lapse.«... ..... .......................... .... ... ........ 1 2,000 1,000

8 14,000 6,430

Add discount ................. 7,570

S 311,690 Per cent paid. ... 97.577
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1900.

Cause.

Breach of warranty ... ....... .. ... ................
Void reinstatement ... .... ... ........ ...... ..........
Violation of contract............... .......... ........
Suicide premiuns returned............. ............. .

Payments on claims ...... . .$
Add discount........... ....

Number.

2
2
1
1

6

Amount.

6,000
4,000
1,000

10,000

21,000

Amount
paid.

1,075
2,147

213
2,551

5,986

226,475
15,014

S 241,489 Per cent paid........... 93 783

CLAIMS PAID AT LESS THAN FACE IN CANADA, 1895 TO 1903, BOTH INCLUSIVE-
Continued.

1901.

Causes. Number.

Breach of Warranty .... ..... ......... ........ 8
Void Reinstatement ... .................. ............ 9
V iolation of Contract...... ..... ... ... ....... ........... 2
Fraud in Applination....... . .. . ............ .......... . 2

Amount.

24,000
17,000

3,000
7,000

51,000

Amûunt
paid.

8

16,535
9,301
2,293
4,462

32,591

Payments on Claims .... .. . 286,367
Add discount.................. 18,402

8 314,776 Per cent paid. ...... .... .

1002.

Causes.

Breach of W arranty........... ....... ... .............. ....
Void Reinstatement......... ......... ...............
Violation of Contract........ .......................

Number. Amount. Am<nt

$ S

8 19,000 10,084
4 6,000 2,065
3 5,866 3,652

15 30,866 16,401

Paynents on Claims ........ s 163,791
Add discount.................. 14,465

E 178,256 Per cent paid............
ELDRIDGE
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CLAIMS 1'AID AT LESS TRAN FACE IN CANADA, 1895 TO 1903, ]IOTH INCLUSIVE-
Concluded.

1903.

causes. Number.

Breach of Warranty .......... .. ............ ........ ........... 7
Void Reinstatement....,.. ................ ..... ....... _......2
Contract Vjolated ................ .......................... 2

Add discounts .. .... ............. 9,982

$ 184,293 Per cent pai d. ..........

RECAPITUJLATION.

Causes.

Breaches of Warranties,... .................... .......
Vraudiflent Applicationm. .... .>......
Void R4instatement ................. ..................
Lapse.................. ......... .............
Vio1atj.,n of Contract .................... ........ .....
Suicide (Preminuis Return-d> ............. ..................

Number.

25
3
9
1

94

A o t. Amount
Paid.

14,576 10,261
2,000 1,205

12,00)0 7,128

28,576 18,594

94'584

A on. Amount
Ainount. Paid.

127,576 59,730l

51,00 25,668
9,00 2,250
286(; 14,786

10,000 2,551

237,442 110,827

Payxnents on1 Claiis ........... 2,151,592
Add discount ..... ............. 126,615

$2,278,20)7 Per cent paid..........94'442

By Mr. CJoster, K.O., (Jounsel for the (Jommittee:
Q. You do flot give the names of the policy-holdersi-A. We do flot.
Q. It is in the insurance report ?-A. I presurne it is.

By Mr. Geo ffrion, Counsel fQr the Mutual Reserve:
Q. When can you have the names and residences supplied t-A. It will take some

time.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. You were to produce, in connection with exhibit 12, detailed stateinents. Have

you prepared those ?-A. I have it put in shape, but it is flot typewritten yet.
Q. In the Bill H, before the Senate, there is a reference to $152,0O0 whieh is to be

appropriated in the manner mentioned in the draft Bill That i8 only part of the
deposit ?-A. That is oniy part of the deposit.

Q. Why is flot the whole amount of the deposit appropriated h-A. Because the
assessments are levied for death losses that have accrued, and when this Bill goes into

ELDRIDGE
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effeet it cuts off our right of assessment, and the accrued liabilities should be paid
from the extra amounts that have been accumulated. It will be, as an average, sixty
days before we will get a payment ftrm these people when the change is made.

BV the Hon. Mr. McM'ullen:
Q. You purpose paying the acerued policies out of the funds in the hands of the

govornment I-A. We expect to furnish the money. It cannot be taken out of the,
hands of the government. We expect to furnish that money, but the xnoney in the
hands of the government will counterbalance this that we furnish for the payment
of the aecrued death losses.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan:
Q. And you wilI have a dlaim on the government I-A. Only it will be as an

offset against the accu.mulated risk.

BRj the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. If you take $152,000 out and psy the dlaims yourself, what do you do with

the $152,000 I-A. It is not taken out; it is distributed to the members.
Q. And will be apportioned to the members who will flot insure under the old

line, and what is to become of those that stili remain on the annual assesament I-A.
Yes, and they get their proportion of the $115,000.

By Mr. Sullivan:

Q. How do they get it I-A. The Bill defines how they will get it,

By the Hon. Mr. DomvÎlle:
Q. Who gets the money I-A. It remains with the government. Not a dollar of

the money with the government is to be withdrawn under that Bill.

By the lion. Mr. Wilson :
Q. Is that as an asset of the company or in what position will it be when you

take out $152,000 -A. Against that $152,000 whieh remains in the hands of the gov-
ernment, there will be charged againat us a liability. of $152,000 if that Bill goes into
effect, snd that is to offset it.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. The whole deposit remains h-A. Yes.

The Committee then adjourned until 10.15 a.m. to-morrow.

OTTÂwA, Tuesday, July 19, 1904.

The Committee met at 10.15 a.m.

Examination of George ID. IEldridge eontinued:

Byî Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. Statements- have been filed concerning the BRànkers' Life Association of Der.
Mloines. Have you any remark to make coneerning the manner in which they make
their report I-A. In the matter of a comaparison with any company, the manner <of
ELDRIDGE
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making the return to the department of course is important, and the sworn reports
contaiaed in the New York and other printed books bear evidence that; the Bankers'
Life does flot return its entire expenses, nor its entire income, or lias flot; returned it
up to 1902, and that therefore any comparison based on expenses, from those figures,
would be misleading. I amn a member of the Bankers' ILife and have been for a great
many years. I know their method of procedure.

By Mlr. CJoster, K.C., (Joun.sel for the (Jommittee:
Q. They have flot; rettirned their entire expenses i-A. No, they have flot returned

their entire expenses. I know their method of doing business, in that they have
membtrship fees which are equivalent to 25 per cent per thousand dollars on the age
of the party admitted.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Coun.sel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. What do you mean by that I-A. They issue their certificate in two thousand

dollar certificates. If a man is 40 years of age lie pays on a $2,000 certificate $20
admission fee.

Q. If lie is 40 I-A. Yes. 1If lie is 30 lie pays $15. At 36 lie would psy $18 oni
$2,000, or $9 on $1,000. I have taken from the sworn reports of the department the
amount of business written each year fromn 1893 to 1902, both inclusive. I have
estimated that tlie average age of admission would lie 36 years, making a membership
fee of $9 per thousand. On that basis the membership fees for tlie ten years given
should lie $1,735,888; the amount that they have reported $820,811, or $915,077 less
than the computation, and in proof of the fact tliat this computation is correct, I cali
attention to the business written in 1901, $23,122,000 whîch, witli a membership fec
of $9 would he $208,098. Ilioy reported flint year memborship fees $59,906, wliich is
about $2.60 a thousand. Now'in 1902 they wrotu $25,522,000 insurauee, and the
memhership f@îe nt $9 a tliousand would bie $229,698. Ihoir report shows $227,985 'Df
membership fees, or within $1,700 of the computation made. That is on their $23,-
000.000 business in 1901 they claimed to have received less than $60,000 membership
fées. On $2,500,000 more received in 1902 they admit to have received $228,000 of
membership fees, or $160,000 more. I know as a fact that in 1902 there was con-
aiderable discussion in regard to this very matter, publislied discussion in the Press
and elsewhere, calling the attention of the commissioners and of the public to the
fact of this discrepancy in the report, and tliat in 1902 for the frrst time the member-
slip fees did accord in the report practicafly witli the plan of the company.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the CommUttees
Q. Is your statement made from the reports ?-A. The statement is made from

the reports in the Insurance Commîssioner's office here in Ottawa, fromn the New York
Department reports, so, that that would make a difference of $915,000 iu their receipts
and in their expenses, and would make the entire comparison of expenses flot; entitled
to full credence because of thýat discrepancy.

By the Hon. Mr. Landry:

Q. You take 36 as the average age ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Coui2sei for the 3/lutual Reserve Contpany
Q. Ils 36 the age given by IMr. Paterson in lis evidence?-A. No, 35 1l think was

Mr. Patersoa's. I took 36 because it was even dollars. I do flot mean to ssy these are
exact figures, but the computation could be made more rapidly at an even figure
than at $8.75. It shows last year $9 is airnost exactly the amount tliey report.

ELDRIDGE
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BANKERS LIFE.

Business. Mei. eotdIFee at $9.00.Ieot(

1893 ............... ............. ............ ..... 10,516,000 94,644 53,899
1894 .... ................... . .......... ................ 13,482,000 121,W3 62,542
1895.... ................... ........ ............. ....... 19,812,000 178,938 85r,199
1896.. ý... ............ ................ ................. 17,822,000 160,398 77,407
1897 ...... .... ........ .... ............. ........... 19,, 000 179,950 6,4
189. .... .................. ............... 20,648,000 185,832 68,875
1899.. .......... ............... ... ..... .... ............. 21,762,000 195,858 62,5!)8
1900 .......... ... ................. ........ ............... 20,126,000 1 181,134 56,8W1
1901... ... ........ ..................... .............. 23,122,000) 20b,0 9 8 59,W-6
1902................................. .... ...... 25,522,0M6 229,698 227,985

1I,735,P»8 820,811

INot reported, $915,977.

Q. I understand you to say there is a difference of only $1,700 between the amount
reported and the amount which should be reported, if the amount was $9 ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. MoN ulen.

Q.Did you make these abstracts from the reports yourself personally ?-ýA. Yes.
Q. And these abstractsý are open to any person to see them ?-A. Yes, to any

person.

By the Chairman:
Q.There is a statement here No. 48, the one on which the discussion took place-

dlaims paid at less than the face in Canada--did you compile the statement yourself?
-A. No, I did flot compile it myseif. I had it compiled by my clerks in New York,
and I checked up odd items in it, picking them out irregularly.

Q. It is flot; your own personal compilation of the records of the company ?-A.
No, I do flot dlaim that to be so; my clerks did it.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., for the Committee:

Q.You cannot say wbether it is true or not ?-A. 1 cannot say so any more than
I can say of any mass of figures.

B11 thé CMiîrmun:

Q.You take them as an ordinary eompilation of figures ?-A. Tfhe compilation
was given me, and I took every tenth one and verified that, and findiflg no discre-
pancy ini that-

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coun sel for the Committee:

Q.Where did you take every tenth one l-A. From the books of the company.
Q. You were there, when that was made up I-A. No, 1 was there after. 1?hey

compiled individually, number by number the whole ninety-four policies that are in
here. Then I took that list that they gave me and checked every tenth one to make
sure there was no diserepancy.

By the Chairman:
Q.You have no personpl knowledge of if I You cannot personally verify if 1-

A. I cannot personally verify the whole ninety-four.
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By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q.You cannot verify fine out of every ten there ?-A. I cannot verify it to the
axtent of knowing what the business of the company in Canada lias been, what death
loases there have been, and check them f rom the books ini that way.

Q. In your mind -A. It may be in my mind-Mr. President, I do flot think
these side remarks should be allowed.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company

Q.With reference to exhibits 48, these figures were, you say, prepared by your
employees over in Ncw York I-A. Yes.

Q. Have you any moral doubt that they are correct I-A. The figures on whieli
I based in this compilation were prepared by my employees in New York. 1 have no
question that they are correct.

Q. And you checked every tenth ?-A. I checked every tenth in the original list.
I compiled, myseif, this synopsis.

Q. And they can be verified I-A. TIhey can be verified.
Q. By an examination of the books of the company 1-A. Yee, the examination

of the books of the company will verify them.
Q. Do you know for what reason the Bankers' Life Association of Des Moines

reported only part of its membership fees as inconie until it was forced to report
them fully in 1902 ?-A. I do not know the reason. I could not testify as to the
reason.

Q. Are not the commissions of agents, or cost of getting business, paid out of
those membership fees ?-A. They are. That is primarily what they are for.

Q. Does it not suggest to you why the report was incomplete I-A. I think I
know why it was incomplets, but I was asked if I could testify £rom my knowledge,
and I could not.

Q. And as a matter of fact you cou Id not I-A. No.
Q. Cen you give us your opinion on the fact and help to enlighten the Committee I
Objected to by Counsel for Committee. Question withdrawn.
Q. Do you know of any possible explanation of this sudden change in the report 1,

and of this discrepancy between the sum to which the membership fees should amount
and the sum reported.

Objected to by Counsel for the Committee as tending to contradict the sworn
statements to the Department of Insurance of New York state.

Question allowed on reserve.

-A. I know as a matter of fact ,that very many of the assessment companies made it
a practice, ini reporting to the department, instead of reporting their full menibership
fees, to report sîmply that portion of them that were received actually et the home
office, deducting the portion paid to agents. I found that was followed in the Mutuel
Reserve before goîng there, and it was followed in the report to the Cenadian Depart-
ment by the iMutual Reserve, and by the Canadian Department the amount was
changed to the full membership fee; and knowing that fact and knowing that in 1901
there wes a very strong agitation in regard to the Bankers' Life stating this very
same thing was done, I base my opinion that that wes the course that was pursued,
and not in the way of cbarging perjury against the officers, but that simply was the
way of meking the reports.

Q. It was the practice ?-A. It was the-practice. A great many assessment com-
panies to my knowledge did it.

Q. Those amounts retained by agents will not be entered as income or expenses?
-A. Neither as income nor as expenses.
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Q. You say that was done by the Mutl iReserve before, you entered it? -A.

Yes. I do flot mean to say it was always donc, but it was in some years.
Q. Now have you any remarks to make on the statement of iMr. Paterson con-

cerning the Bankers' Life Association 1-A. 11e bas computed the loss and expense
on the basis of the insuranee in force at the end of each year, whilc lie sheuid have
computed it on the average or mean insurance of the year. That is, hoe assumes in
-making bis calculation that the amount that was in force at the end of the y-ear had
been carried the full year, and determines from that the proportion of deatbi lesses to
the expenses, while of course the proper basis is the average of the year which would
be the amount at the beginning of the year, pluis the amouiit at the end of the y-ear,
divided by two, or the mean amount of ï-nsurance. The entire computation, where it
represents the death losses of this company, hie does use that mean amnount instead
of the amount at the end of the year.

Q.What do you mean by this cempany 1-A. I mean the Mutual iReserxe.
Q.The inean amount is, roughly speaking, the mediumi between the amount be-

tween the previous year and thc amouiit of that year ?-A. The mean arnount is a
terni used ini insurance and always signifies half the amount at the beginning of the
year and at the end of the year.

Q. So on this statement of Mr. Paterson's the correction can be made easily,
simply by taking the mean amount of insurance in the year, the amount half-way be-
tween the amount of the preceding year and the amount of that year 1-A. Yes and
thero is what is evidently a typographical errer in this statement in 1895: where it is
$774, it is evident $374 was meant.

Q. Did you obtain a cepy of the rules and conditions for admission of members
in the Bankers' Lîfe Association in Des Moines 1-A. I did.

Q. Have you a copy of this pamphlet with yeu here 1-A. I have.
Q. You obtained this pamphlet by applying te the Bankers' Life itself ? A. 1 did,

to the president of the Bankers' Life.
Q. Can yen, by referring te this pamphlet, mention the conditions necessary te

be admitted as a member of the association ?-A. They are on page 3, and page 6, and
are as follows:

'As an additional safeguard against the frauds and impesitions priictised upon
insurance organizations it was provided that the membership should be selected xvith
great care and that no applicant should be admitted without the approval of the local
banker, both as te the character of the applicant and the examining physician, and
also that the risks should be confined largely te business and professienal men, who
are flot only able to pay their obligations, but who can procure the best medîcal treat-
ment in case of sickness, and whe can take a seasen of- rest and recreation when their
health demands it. This precautionary feature is exch4sively eur ewn, and bas resiilted
in a deatb rate se low as te be called phonomenal by our ablest competitors, and which,
in 1903, the twenty-fifth year of the association, was enly 6 :61 te the thousand; while
the average cost per year, for sixteen years, 1888-1903, bas been only $8.85 pur $1,000
at age 40, with other ages in proportion.

'The association issues certilicates te men only, and confines its mcmbership te
the most desirable elements in each cemmunity. The terrîtory in which membership
is solicited is limited by the board of directors te that portion of the -United States
north of the thirty-six degrees and thirty minutes, except in the extreme west. Certi-
ficates are net issued te those engaged in any bazardous occupation or one which
tends te impair health or weaken ability te resist disease. In this class are included
thiose occupied in underground mining or upon railroad track or train as employee, or
on any boat or vessel; wholesale and retail liquor dealers, those employed in electrie
light and power plants in such capacity as te endanger life, or in manufacturing ex-
plosives, or in milîtary or naval services in tinie of war.
ELDRIDGE



THE MUTUAL RESERVE FUN\D LIFE ASSOCIATION

APPENDIX No. 1

Q. What is the age limit 1-A. Fifty years.
Q. That is mucli younger than the Mutual Reserve?-A. Mucli younger than

most companies.
Q. Those statements which have been read to the Committee have heen taken

from the little pamýphlet which you produce, entitled: ' The Bankers< Life Associa-
tio of Des -Moines, lowa' A. Yes.

Q. They refer there to a local bunker :froin what you know of their organization,
what do they niean by that ïA. They appoint at every point where they do 'business
a banking institution whieh becomes their headquarters, colleets their assessments, and
bccomcs also the point at which votiuig for officers, directors and amendrnents and hy-
laws can be carried on at the time of their annual meeting, and these local bankers
are called the depositary refêrred to there.

Q. And it is of this the approval must be obtained ?-A. Yes.
Q. How bas this system of appointig bankcrs for collecting premiums, &c., any

effect upon the expenses ?-A. It would naturally resuit in a low cost of collection and
of doing away with renewal commissions for payment of business to agents.

Q. As a matter of fact, ean yon say whether their expenses in commissions to
agents compare with those of other companies? A. Undoutedly, they are getting
their business cheaper than alnost any other company I know of that operates, even
in appearance, as a business organization-I mean as distinct frorn a fraternal
organizatioti.

Q. Their commissions are small 1-A. They are. ,There is no denying the busi-
ness of the company is conducted at a very low rate of expense. It is everywhere
admitted.

Q. Is that due in fact to their low mortality and low rates 1-A. Umdoubtedly.
Q. It niakes it more easy to get business?-Much more easy to get business.
Q. Dû the places where they, genprally speaking, do their business have any

effeet on the expenses of their management 1 A. The great bnIk of their business is
dune ini small places. For instance, in New York rity, it is only within a year they
bave had a deposit there, although they have been in smaller places in the State for
some years. They aima to do business in small places.

Q. In doing business in New York, does that save expense 1-A. I do not know
any more expensive place to do business in than iNewv York city.

Q. The Bunkers' Life Company was organized in 1897?-A. It wvas.
Q. Would you eall it, notwithstanding that, a new company, and if so, for what

reason 1-A. It is very largely a new company. Up to ten years ago their entire busi-
ness in force only amounted to $45,OO,OOO--or, up to the end of 1892, it amounted
to $43,000,00O. Ini the next ten years it jumped from that to $178,500,000, four times
the amount that it had been ini 1892, and, therefore, while it was incorporated in 1879,
the great bnlk of its business is practically newly admitted, and within a fair distance
of medical examination and a young business.

Q. fias the admission in recent years of a large amount of new business had a
tendency to reduce expense and mortality costs 1-A. Oh, decidedly.

Q. I read, in the pamphlet from which. yon have quoted, that the deatlî rate bas
been abnormally low-is that the fact ?-A. It is.

Q. So this is considered an exceptional case 1-A. The company is regarded
everywhere as exeeptional in the results it bas obtained.

Q. Is there any other business organization that compares with it 1-A. I do not
know of any.

By the lion. Mfr. Béique:
Q. How do their rates compare with the rates of other companies ?-A. They do

business on a very peculiar hasis. Tliey require a <leposit at the time the insurance is
written on each $2,OO0 certificate of as many dollars as the party is years old. That is

a deposit on account of future assessments. Then they have a scale of rates simply for
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apportioning the losses, flot a scale of premiurns at ail, but a scale simply for adjusting
losses between various agents. The quarterly asseasments they adjust by this scale,
and take it out of the assesernents paid in advance to recoup, and it is almost im-
possible to, compare their rates with othere for that reason. because they have no
ateady premiums.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. llow doca it compare with the iMutual iReserve ?-A. The resuits of costs, the

amount that is paid within a year for insurance is muchl ower than ini any other
organization that I know of.

Q. Even yours l-A. Even ours. 1 arn carrying insurance there and have carried
it for fourteen years. It is the cheapest insurance I amn carrying, and 1 know 1 ar n ot
paying more than 40 per cent of what I ought to pay for that insurance. Sometime
I will have to make it Up.

By Mi'. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. In the Bankers' ILife, do you mean i-A. Yes.
Q. And yet their surplus increases ?-A. Their surplus ilcreases by this deposit.

They received this deposit on account for deposit, and they return it in case of death.
They do flot charge it as a liability, and they say their surplus is the assets.

Dy the Hon. Mr'. McSweeney:
Q. Their business has gone up very rapidly i-A. Very rapidly indeed.
Q. The public muet have some confidence in it i-A. No doubt about it.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. You have yourself l-A. I have for the present. They are giving me very
cheap insurance. If I die before trouble c.omes the insurance wi11 ba ail right.

By the Hon. Mr'. Suilivan:
Q. Are they giving it too cheap ?-A. Yes.
Q. Therefore they will corne to grief ?-A. They will corne to grief ultimately, I

have flot a question.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. You have spoken of a surplus-is it a surplus or. merely an asset l-A. It is
simply their assets less their accrued death losses. It doce flot take into account the
deposits that have been made on account of future assessments. They de flot treat
those as a liability. They have no rescrvc that they charge as a liability.

Q. H-ave you an additional rernark, to make concerning the statement filed by Mr.
Paterson about the inclusion of notes in Mr. Paterson's statement relating to the
Bankers' Life ?-A. It je stated they have no notes. They do have and always have
had notes. They take the deposit in notes. The company takes the notes for this
deposit that is made in advance, payable in four instairnents, and these notes are in-
cluded. in their incorne and in the calculations that have been made as to- the rate
used for expenses; these notes, which are simpiy deposita on account of future assesa-
mente, are included in incorne and ratio of expense, calculated on that, and they have
always included their notes in their assets except where they have heen specially ex-
cluded by the departmnent.

Dy Mr'. Coster, K.C., Counel for the (Jommittee:

Q. Where was that l-A. In New York they bad them as assets until 1899, when
the department excluded them.
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PART 6.

By Mr. Ueo ffrio&, Cot&nsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Those three remarlis about notes being included as incoine, about the total fees

nlot being reportcd until 1902, and about the insurance at the end of the year being
taken instead of the mean insurance-if the figures were corrected in view of that,
would the ratio of expense be changed 1-A. Oh, yes, the ratio of expense would be
changed necessarily.

By the Hon. Mr. iSullivan.
Q. Did you make out a statement of figures on your basis 1-A. No, I have nlot

made the calculation.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Coun8el for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Can you give resoens, if any, why a comparison between fraternal. organiza-

tions' assets, and business organizations' assets, even on the assessment plan like the
Mutual Reserve, lias been untîl recently, nlot fair ?-A. The fraternal organizations
operate under special laws in the varions states of the union, and are largely exempt
£rom taxes snd expenses incident to supervision. They are required to operate through
lodges, councils, or bodies of that kind, and in the majority of states they are for-
bidden by law to employ paid agents to solicit business. The business is obtained
through the lodges, the memberships aggregate i11 the lodges, and the very large pro-
portion of the expense of doing business consists of dues paid to the lodges, which. are
nlot reported in the expenses to the Insurance Department, the only expense reported
to the Insurance iDepartment being the immediate expenses of the supreme bodies and
not of the enitire business; so that no basis of comparison with a business organization
cau be had because of the absence of data as. to ail the expenses of trausacting the
business.

Hy the Chairman:
Q. The (lues paid iu by members of a fraternal association to 'the lodges, and

which, as you say, do not go into the reports to the Insurance iDepartment, represent
value. Wheii I pay $4 a -year into the Independent Order of Foresters, I have my
lodge to go te, and I bave books; do I not get value for my $4 besides the insurance I
-A. lTndoubltPlly.

Q. Then the suggestion that this does nlot go into the annual report would be mis-
].eading, would it not ?-A. It does not seem. so to me. It seems to me the substitute
for what is paid to agents to get business. That is what attracts members and brings
them in.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. The great distinction is, first they have Iess taxes to pay, and second. they do

net pay commissions to agents, and third, the expenses of their lodges are not re-
ported 1-A. Yes.

Q. Do you consider that companies which do not do business on the assessmeut
plan can, uevertheless be compared from the point of view of expenses with the Mutual
Reserve 1-A. At the present time the Mutual Ileserve îs doing ail its business on the
legal reserve basis. I do not think that when an assessment company is simply doing
a Iow cost business in getting business as easily as it is possible at times to get it
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under the low cost and the holding out of the proposition that i t is to continue fbr ever
that way, that a comparison with old line companies or legal reserve companies is a
£air comparison to make. An assessment company, as facts have proved in the past,
during the higli day of that business is able to get business cheaper than the legal
reserve companies on account of its iow premium, and the comparison would not be a
fair one under those condtions with a legal reserve company.

Q. That would bring this association down to 1895, the first large increase ?-A.
The llrst increnqe in assessments was made in 1895.

Q. From the moment of thefirst increase in 1895, you say ý,vou can then begin to
compare this association with level premiumi companies i-A. Well, the conditions
would then more nearly approacli from that time, the conditions that would allow it
to be compared with the legal reserve companies, because £rom tha t turne the difliculties
of obtaining business increased, and necessarily the cost increased, and as it ap-
proached the time when it beame a legal reserve company, of course the conditions
became more and more assimilated to the old lîne company, ancý the comparison of
cost became miore nearly fair.

Q. You say it became more and more assimilated to the old Ufne companies until
it became a legal reserve company. Do you take into account also, in addition, the
increase in the rates whic1L brought thein practically to the saine level as those old
line companies, and, therefore, took away the reason to distinguish, which you have
just mentioned? Do you take into consideration, in addition to that, the unpopularity
of the associationl- A. Cortainly, the difficulties which arose out of the reapportion-
ment of rates and the disappointinent of policy-holders who had at first been lead ta
suppose that their premiums would remain level, or practically level, had an immense
effect in rendering more difficuit the carrying on of the business and increasing the
expenses of the institution. It was inevitable that that should be the result.

Q. The di:ffieulty of getting new business increases the ratio of expenses i-A. Yes.
Q. And the unpopularity of the company bas that effect?- -A. Unquestionably.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q.In your evidence to-day, you said in the case of Lhe Ilankers' Lifo thaV a
deposit in addition to the monthly assessments had been made by Each person insuring
in the company. That is, that they had to pay in $1 a year for the age. Now your
statement on that would ]ead the Comnmittee to suppose that that was paid in addition
to the assessments, and aIl went into the funds of the company without any return
whatever for the $1 a year that was paid. Now let me read you this clause in the
pamphlet of the Bankers' Association :

'The weakness of the co-operative system in its crude state was universally con-
ceded to be its ovcrahadowing fault, and the remedy for this defeet was, naturally
enough, based upon the Bankers' idea of ample seeurity for the performance of the
contract entered into, upon the part of each member, for the protection of every other
member, in the proportion of age and the amount of insuraWce carried.

'Acting upon this idea, it was required that each member should contribute a
dollar for each year of his age, counted at nearest birthday, as a money guarantee
that lie would meet ail quarterly calîs for the purpose of paying death losses, and
the fixed annual allowanee for expenses, which, being paid, entitles the beneficiary to
a return of the guarantee in addition to the $2,000 providpd iu the certificate of memf-
bership.'

Now that fairly shows that aithougli he pays the dollar a year it is a mere tein-
porary deposit; lie gets credit for that dollar a year upon his assessments, snd in that
way it is returned to him, and in the ineantime it lies with the company as a guar-
antee in case of his death.- That is ail, is it not?-A. That is ail, and that îs what 1
testified.
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By Mr. Greoffrion, Gounsel fo.r the Mutual Reserve Company:

Q.Referring to the charge that bas been made to the effeet that the association
had a list every year of scaled down or compromnised policies, while other companies
have no such list, have you any statement to miake as te the obligations, of those other
companies 1-A. Included sehedule of scille or compromise claim in the report to the
Insurance Department is a special provision of the iNew Y ork law relating to assess-
ment companies. It is not required of legal reserve companies, and the sai-le may
be said of the list of death dlaimus paid. That is required of assessment companies,
and flot required of other companies, but those schedules are neyer printed in the
officials reports of the departmcent, so that the only way in whieh one can obtain those
schedules is tu visit the department and inspect, them, or get a certified copy from the
department so that it would only bie by visiting the department, and inspecting the re-
ports of other companies or sending to the department and£etting a copy of them, that
one could know whether other companies reported compromised dlaims and to wbat
extent, they did so; but they eould not obtain that information with regard t0 a legal
reserve company because it is net required of a legal reserve company.

Q. And as to the others, the printed report does flot show it ?-A. As to the
others the printed report does not show it.

Q. So there is no possible basis of comparaison 1 A. No.
Q. As a matter of fact, does nlot every company compromise and scale down

claims 1-A. Every one with whieh I have any acquaintance.

By the Chairman:
Q. The question is what proportion 1-A. That is something you cannot say.

By Mr Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve C7ompany:
Q.You have heard statements mode by ANir. I>endeloi that were made declara-

tions of a solicitor of business thaL were made to him conceruing transfers from the
flfteen-year class to the ten-year class 1-A. I was present and heard him.

Q. As a matter of fact, can you give us the policy and instructions of the coin-
pany to its agents? Was it tu discriminate among the fifteen year people or te get
the whole of them 1-A. To do ail that was possible to get them ail transferred to the
new plan.

Q. Ail of them 1-A. Yes.
Q. Indiscriminately 1-A. Indiscriminately.
Q. No new examination was required 1-A. There was largely a new examina-

tien reqnired, but it was the determination of the condition of the risk, and we re-
served the right in connection with impaired risks to place them at an age for the
purpose of transfer if we desired, if it was deemed for the interest of the company,
but the effort was made to transfer just as largely as possible the frfteerx-year elass to
the ten-year elass.

Q. Was any policy-holder of the fifteen-year elass refused transfer 1 A. They
were not refused transfer. They were given the privilege of transferring at a rate
age in vicw of attained age.

Q. Was there a medical examination 1-A. Yes, a medical examination was taken
for the purpose ascertaining whether we should transfer them at the regular rate or
at a rated age.

Q. But they were admitted anyway 1-A. Yes.
Q. And the more transfers the agents could get the more commission they receir-

ed ?-A. Yes.

By the ]Ton. Mr. Sullivan:
Q. What commission did yon give 1-A. Where a policy had been in force five

years, we gave the samne commission that we gave on new business. TTnder five yearis,
we gave haîf the increase in the prernium for one year.
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By the Hon. Mr. Domvile:

Q. This exhibit about dlaims paid at iess than the face in Canada in 1895 shows
that there wa.s paid thereon 89 per cent. 1If it was taken down that way it is not;
riglit; the amount was $89,642 ?-A. 89 per cent of the face of ail dlaims that year
was paid.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve Company:

Q. In one statement liled bi Mr. iPatterson it igi stated that you testified that the
last examination of compromised dlaims had been made in 1898 i-A. At the bottom
there is a note ' See testimony, part 4, IPage 35 '. I think a reference to the testi-
mouy on that page will show that Mr,. Patterson is xnislead. 1 stated that in ail the
examination they examined the matter of compromise and redliced dlaims but that
in the report of 1898 was last reference that lie made in the report tliereto.

s

By Mr. Ueo ifrion, Cotinsel for the Commillee

Q. On page 35 you were asked the question 'What was the last of'those examina-
tions by the New York department,' and you answer 'One in 1898, one in 1899, one
in 1902. 1 think the one tirat deait specifically with it was the on~e in 189.'-A. Yes.
Il simply refer to page 35 aud the varions questions there in regard to the matter as
ihowing what 1 did testify to, which 1 think lias been certainl> misappreliended by
Msr. Patterson in his note at tlie bottoma of that exliibit.

Q. Mr. IPatterson iiled a statement, selection agaiust the s.ystem, showing that
the deatli rate has increased in the later years. Have you any statement f0 make in
regard to that ?-A. 'There is no question tliat the deafli rate has inereased in tlie
later years, as would naturally be the case with the decreasing proportion of new
applicauts, aud with tlie larger lapse wlich has unquestiouably produced to a greater
or less extent a selection against the company as to the character of the risks. It is
a thiug that would ha inevitable. However, in the last three years the larger portion
of deatli rate arised from iucluding in the general exhibit among the reinsured mem-
bers of the Nortli-western Mutual of Chicago in which company the deatli rate is
very large, but by the provisions of tlie contract of reinsurauce witli tlie Northi-
western, we simply accept them as a class by themselves and arrange their premium
payments, they having to pay their owu deatli rate, and noue of if is* imposed upon
the general membership of the compauy, so that tlie sliowiug cf a large deafli rate
based upon the entire membership as it must be from. the reports of thli department
would not necesasrily show that if was an increasing deafh r'îte from the general
membersliip on account of tliis special class.

Q. You state fliat the North-western members bear their own death losses and are
kept separafe ?-A. They do.

Q. Do they bear their owu expenses ?-A. They provide for ail expenses incurred
in the business.

Q. And so the Canadian policy-bolders are not iuterested in thaf section of the
business at all ?-A. There are none of the assessmenf policy-liolders in Canada
included in fliat business. There are a few reinsuired members in the North-western
in Canada but that is included under tlie legal reserve businesý.

Q. Reference lias been made in Mr. Wells' ýevidence to an advance of £1,500 made
to Mr. Moss while he is in Europe and which was siibseqiiently credited f0 him or
balanced in the books ?-A. 1 have nofhiug new to sny on thaf. In the mass that 1
have had to festify f0, I had over-looked the fact that I had festifled in regard to
that.

Q. Did you give the ratio that this amnount cosf ?-A. It amounfed fo about $1
per thoi sand.

Q. The fifteen huirdred pouunds paid to him represented about $1 per tliousaud on
insurance obtained outside his departmeut hy liim ?-A. Yes.
ELDRIDGE
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Q.He had claimed 10 per cent, which would be about $2 ?-A. Y es.
R.le was paid 5 per cent, $1 ?-A. Yes.

Q. You prepared four or five copies, did you flot ?-A. Yes.
Q. Are they ready r-A. Not quite ready.
Q. You heard Mr. Wells' evidence concerning the Moss contract ?-A. Yes.
Q. You heard him charge that it had been changed, and in addition te that it

had been improperly carried out, resulting in a very large loss to the associatio'i r
A. Yes.

Q.I understand that was in reference te the contract of 1897 ?-A. Yes.
Q.Generally speaking the provisions of the contract of 1897, se far as they bear

on this question, were that lie was te get advanoes of $3,500 per week e-A. Yes.
Q. In order to mako advances, and that on die business obtained by bis agents

or by him lie was to get a commission of 85 per cent on the first year's premium out
of which he was to pay the agents and he was to get a renewal commisýsion of a cer-
tain sum ?-A. Yes.

Q. Is that it ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Cou'nsel for the Uommittee
Q. What was the renewal commission ?-A. One dollar and one-haîf a thousand

on the five year business, and seventy-five cents per thousand on the ten year business.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :
Q. For how long ?-A. Five years. In addition te that, there was a provision

that the company would allow him $200 per week for clerîcal force, expenses in bis
office, and that they would pay rentaIs to the amount of $20,000 for agency offices.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Couinsel for the Comr*ittee:
Q. Ta thüt iii the contract ?-A. Yes. yeu will find it in the last two paragrapbs

of the contract of 1897. On the ten year distribution the first year's commission was
50 per cent, flot 85 per cent.

By Mr. Geoif rien, Counsel for the Mo tuai Reserve
Q. Have you prepoared a statement of Mr. Moss's account, or have you caused to

have prepared a statement of Mr. Moss's account showing aIl entries on the books
relating to the 1897 contract ?-(Statement produced.)

By Mfr. Coster, K.C., Goitnsel for the Committee
Q. Was that made by yourself? Is the book-keeper here ?-A. The mon wbeh made

it is here.
Q. And he will be calîed to verify that ?-A. Yes.
Q. That is the same as was submitted to the Insurance iDepartment of the State

of New York ?-A. Oh, no. This is a Mtaternent showing everything that was paid
under that contract, every dollar that was paid, advînces retained by agents for M-r.
Mess, the first year's premiums that were neyer received, and the renewals that accrued
te the end of the five year, showing the whoe rcsults of the contract.

Q. And yen submitted to the department Mr. Moss's accounts, and those differ,
yen say, from these l A. At the time that examination was made, in 1889, they could
net be brought down to the five-years renewals. This brings it down te the termina-
tien on the renewal contract, and is a synopsis of what is contained in several hun-
dred pages of reports that were made te iMir. Moss at different times, and reports that
were mode te the departmcnt, and is. of course, a consolidated report. We coulé[ net
bring it in te attempt te explain hundreds of pages of report. I understood the Cern-
mittee desired presented to-day the resuit of that contract, and that is what 1 have
made eut. 0f course, the amounts have te appear in lump sums, or eise yen wouId
have an exhibit here that would fill hundreds of pages. They can be verified en the
books of the company at the home office.
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Q.There was an order to produce those accounts fled with the department l-A.
I know of no0 such order.

Q. I mean the account rendered Moss hiniself ?-A. We have the letter-books
here <.ontaining it.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutuai Reserve:
Q. I u.nderstand this is a recapitulation of the entries in the books concerning

the Moss am-ount i-A. This is a recapitulation of the entries in the books concern-
ing the Moss account, and an entire statement of that contract of 1897.

Q. Carried down to to-day l-A. Oarried down to the expiration of the five years.
Q. Did the department examine the books of the association ?-A. Yes.
Q. The examination of the department was made in the office of the association

itself ?-A. It was.
Q. Aùnd therefore, they looked into the books theniselves l-A. Yes.
Q. So this summary statement was not submitted to them l-A. No. This sum-

miary could not be submitted, as the accounts had not been fufly completed.

Bai the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. The five years had not then expired i-A. No.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Is this statement you 110w filed correct, and does it show ail the entries i-A.

So far as I have been able to verify the entries-and I have been able tu verify very
many of them and the footings, &c.-it is correct, and embra-ces the entire considera-
tions under that contract.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilso,â:

Q.You have flot identified ail of themn -A. No.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. Are the books of Mr. Moss here ?-A. I think the letter books are here, con-

taining our letter press of thie various reports submitted to iMr. Muss that cover several
hundred pages.

Mr. COSTER.-I object to this going i11 as it is flot the sanie as that submitted to
the department.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mut cal Reserve
Q. Wifl you please file this staternent to which you have referred.-A. I file it as

exhibit No. 50a.
Q. Will you produce two other statements prepared also, recapitulations of the

books of thec ornpany, and relating to this contract tendered in evidence ?-A. Yes.
Q. I arn informed that I can prove these statements afterwards. The three

statements wili be fled as 50a, 50b~ and 50c. Tbey read as foliows

(Exhibit No. 50a.)

In re Moton D. Moss.

STÂTEMENT; SHOWING ExPENDITURES AND REOEIPTS IJNDER 1897 CONTRACT.

Cash advanced by Moton ID. Moss, General Manager, during
the year 1897*..................$9,47,695 45

ILess amounts credited by error.......$485 00
Less arnounts returned by agents.....366 63 851 63

Balance.........................$246,843 82
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Cash retained by agents, during 1897 on 1897 business .... ......
Cash retained byagents during 1898 on 1897 business.........
Cash paid IMoton ID. iMoss, during 1897 on account of commissions on

1897 business.......................
Cash paid IMoton D. Moss, January 15, 1898, on account of commissions

on 1897 business......................
Cash paid Moton D. MoM, during 1898, as per part of compensation )'f

1898 contract, but included here to, remove ail question.. .... ....
Cash retained by Moton D. Moss, during 1897, from premiums on sun-

dry policies.................. .....
Cash retained or paid to 'solicitors of Moton D. Moss, during 1897..
Cash premniums retained to applicants and chargcd to Moton ID. Moss..
Cash 'draft met by association and charged to Moton ID. Moss.. .. . ...
Cash to make good 'N. G. check,' and charged to Motoi ID. Moss.
Cash medical examination fees, and charged to Moton iD. Moas... ..
Cash commissions charged Moton D. Moss on N. G. check.. ......
Cash salaries paid in excess of $200 per week, and charged Moton D.

MOS.s...........................
Cash rents paid, in excess of $20,000 per annum, and charged Moton D.

1 es.........................

207,376 66
64.671 13

74,151 17

2,392 06

8,074 75

15,078
3,141

412
374

35
6
5

5,548 17

98 82

Total expenditures. .................... 6811

Contra.

Gross premiums on 1897 business reueived a~nd crtdited
in 1897.....................45255

Gross premiums on 1897 business received and credited
in 1898........................03,085 52

Total first year premiums.................$678,311 02

Aniount of renewal commissions on five-year plan at $1.50
per $1,000 of insurance on $43,203,240, averaging to pay
one year's renewal premnium from 1898 to 1902, both
inclusive (5 years)................

Amount of renewal commissions on ten-year plan at 75 cents
per $1,000 of insurance on $1,783,640, averaging to pay
one year's renewal premaiuma from 1898 to 1902, both
inclusive (5 ye~ars)...............

64,804 86

1,337 73

Total renewal commissions .... ......................

,Summary.

Total cash expenditures as per statement..........$628,141 35
Total renewal commissions for 5 years, January 1, 1898,

to IDecember 31, 1902, as per statement. .. .. .. ... 66,142 59
Balances representing expenditures on first year's pre-

miums.. .. ...... .......... ........ ..... $561,998 76

Total first year's premiums as per above statement.. $678,311 02

Percentage, of cost on first year's premiums 82, 85, 100 per cent.

66,142 59
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(Exhibit No. 50b.)

MOTON D. MOSS COMMISSION ACCOUNT, 1897 ACCOUST.

IN ACCOUNT with Mutual ]Reserve Fund Life Asseiation of New York.

Summarti.

To cash received at Sundry times in 1897, account com-
mXlisons................................$74,151 17

To c~ash received January 15, 1898, on account of commis-
sions on 1897 business.................2,392 06

To cash retained at sundry times in 1897, on sundry
policies.......................15,078 91

To cash retained or paid to solicitors at sundry times iii
1897........................3,141 60

To cash premiums returned to applicants, and charged to
Moton D. Moss....................412 96

To cash drafts met by the association, and charged to
Moton D. Mose....................374 92

To ,cash to make good 'N. G. Chec, an cage t
Moton D. Moss.....................35 17

To cash medical examination fees, and charged to Moton
D. Moss........................6 00

To cash commissions charged to Mýoton D. Moss on 'N. G.
Check'.........................5 21

To cash salaries paid in exceas o 'f $200 pe r week , and charg-
ed to Moton iD. Moss......................5,548 17

To cash, rent paid in excess of $20,000 pe annum,,an
charged to Moton ID. Mvoss................28 82

Total cash deis.................$101174 99

Credit.

By commissions on personal. business written and paid for
in 1897......................$ 4,351 14

By amount charged Moton. D. Moss, general manager, ac-
count of adjustment of personal account .. .... ....... 9,815 07

By overriding commissions on 1897 business, paid for dur-
ing 1897......................93,810 78

Total credits......................107,976 99

Oredit balance, 1897 business............... 6,802,00Y

(Exhibit No. 50c.)
MOTON D. MOSS, GENEIAI MANAGER, 1897 ACCOENT.

IN ACCOUNT with Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York.

Summary.

Tc cash advanced him by the association, lst advance
January 7, 1899, last advance IDecember 27, 187..$236,500 00

To amounts recharged, credited by error............485 00
To amounts recharged, returned by agents...........366 63
To amounts charged, adjustment M. ID. Moss personal ac-

count........................9,815 07
- $247,166 70
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Credit.

By amounts advanced by him to agents and accounted for

by vouchers of such agents. .................. 247,695 45

Excess advances.................... 528 75

O.K., J. A. IIYLAND,
Chie f bookkleeper.

Coxild you explain exhibit 50a ?-A. It is a statenient that shows ail advances made by

Moton D. Moss to his agents under the contract of 1897, ail cash retained by agents

during 1897 on 1897 business, cash retained by agents during 1898 on 1897 business,

cash paid Moss 1897 on account of commissions, and subsequent payment on January

15, on account of commissions; also certain cash that was paid him in 1898, which

we dlaimi was paid under the terms of 1898 contract, but for comnpleteness we in-

cluded here as one of the 1897 items, and then the various sub-iterns small items of

payments and detentions, &c., charged to him of the salaries paid to him in excess of

$200 per week; also excess cf over $20,000; thereby giving the total expenditures per

contra, giving the grosa business received on that business during 1897, gross pre-

miums reoeived in the saine business during 1898, and then the renewal commissions

on the payments actually made to the company since then down to the end of five

years. That deducted from the expenditure leaves the balance of expenditures of the

flrst year and as against the premiums and the calculation of percentage thereof.

This is the statement that was under discussion.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. These bave ail to be verified by the book-keeper ?-A. Yes. Aside from the

renewale of businessa ,ctually~ cuuitiiiuiua, thiere was a balance of expenditure the first

year of $561,998.76, a total of the first year's premiums of $678,31 1.02, the percentage

of cost the first year beîng 82 and 85-100 per cent.

By Mr. Geoffrion, K.C., Counsel.for the Mut ual Reserve:

Q. llow did the association make that proit ?-A. After we had paid the renewals

out actually there would have been more than that. That is, we would not bave had

the samne credit on account, and by the commutation of the account a slight margîn,

and probably in part it arises from the fact that of the ten-year business there was

only 50 per cent commirission paid. While the business wvas very small indeed compared

with the others, it would make a slight difference in that regard.

Q. You say there was a commutation? This contract was therefore

]PART 7.

changed, I understand, lst January, 1898, I amrn ot speaking of the change to which

Mr. Wells testified, but in the contract of 1898 was there not a change ?-A. It was

already in evidence that in 1897 we assumed the obligations for liability under this

contract for consideration of release of commissions and released Mr. Moss.

Q. Yon relensed Mr. Moss of bis liability, and in excbange lie tr2tnsferred to

yoîî his renewal commissions ?-A. Yes.
Q. Biit in this statement of 1898 you assumed tlhc contract wvas carried on ?A

Yes.
ELDRIDGE
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Q.And you have debited hima with ail the agents' balances ?-A. Debited him

with every dollar paid out on account of that contract, and credited ourselves with
the reserve therefrom.

Q. Can you give us the purport of Exhibit 50b ?-A. This is Mr. Moss's own -m
npision account. In that account nothing was kept of the advances at ail but the
payments made to him and the credit under the contract. He lias charged himself
with ail the payments made to him and with excess of salaries and excess of rents.
There are two credits, one to commissions on personal business-that is the 65 per
cent on business done by himself personally, and then lie is credited witb the over-
r;hli,-.g commissions 0on thepremiims received during 1897, and the balance shows
a eredit to his account of $6,802 at the end of 1897.

Q. That is Moss's personal account ?-A. Yes.
Q. As distinguished froma bis account as general manager ?-A. The general

mnanager's account simply covered the moncys tliat were deposited to bis account before
ii counted for them. The general rnanager's account contained nothing of com-

missions of that kind, but was just an account througli wlich the advances passed.
Q. This exhibit, 50a, really contained to the debit of Moss. The same items as are

contained in the statement Exliibit No. 50a, apart; from the moneys advanced to,
agents or retained by agents ?-A. Yes, that is it. iPerliaps I can make it a litle
plainer this way : y oursystema of book-keeping every agent had an aceount and
lie would be charged witli bis advances or witli the moneys paid to bita and credited
with bis commissions thereon. If lie retaîned any money it was cbarged to him, and,
of course, the commission credited. As far as the 65 per cent on busines actually
Oine Mr. Moss was treated in the sane way as an agent of the company, and lie was

charged witb what was paid to him or retained hy him anîd creditvd with bis 65 per
cent commission. The 20 per cent had been nowbere credited tben. At the end of the
year we credited on that account 2Q per cent. That is the first time the 20 per cent
Lad been toucbed. Up to that time it lied been the 65 per cent ; so that it was really
just the same account as kept with the other agents, except that at the end of the year
lie got bis credit for the overriding commission on the prcimiums actually received.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Covnsel for the Committee
Q. lJoes it show the amount of the 20 per eent overridîug commnission ?-A. Yes.
Q. Whiat is the aniont ?A. $93,S10.78.
Q. That is the amount we have come up against so often ?-A. That is the 20

per cent overriding commission.
Q. Hle got that in addition to the $182,000 ?-A. No, lie did not.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual lieserve:
Q. What does Exhîbit 50c purport to show ?-A. It is IMr. 2Moss's account as

general manager, charging him with ail advances made by hima to agents as shown
by the vouchers oif those agents. It is simply an accout to show tliat he used the
money that was advanced to him for the purposes for wbicli it was advanced. H1e was
charged witli the advances made and credited when lie accounted for that by vouchers
as advances to agents, and tlien those amounts were cbarged to, thie agents.

Q. And lie advanced $52S.75 more than lie received for advances ?-A. Yès.
Q. Are the amounts put here year by year ?-A. It is a consolidated statement to

get it into tbat sliape.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Will you tell us this :Did the company, as a matter af fact, pay for the

business done tlirougli Moss under that contract of 1897 more than 85 per cent, in-
cluding the 65 per cent which as a mIle was paid to the agents ?-A. They did not pay
any more than the 85 per cent.

Q. The business did flot cost the company any more than the 85 per cent ?-A.
No, no more than tbe 85 per c'nt of the Trenewal commissions.
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By the Hon. .Mr. Wilson:

Q. He asked the question, 'What amount did you pay V You paid the 85 per
cent plus the renewal commission ?-A. The total amounit of money that was debited
was $628,141.35 ; the total first year's premiums were $678,311.02 ; so that the fist
ypa"'s premiums exceeded the total expenditure by $50,169.67. Then there accrued
$66,142.59 of renewals.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.Apart fromn the renewals what was paid ? The $66,0O0 which was paid-A.
We did not pay that.

Q. The $66,OOO which are mentioned in the statement as renewal commission,
what percentage did tbe company par as expenses on that business done through Mr.

éWliat presenit rate of expense would they pay ?-A. It is here.

By Mr. Geoffrion, C'ounsel for the Mu tual Reserve

Q. What was the percentage ?-A. 82*85.
Q. In other words you debit this account with everything advanced to Mr. MVoss,

or to Mr. Moss's agents, or retained by them or paid by them ?-A. Yes, every portion
of expense in regard to an individual contract.

Q. You deduct £rom that amount recorded in the first place the renewal commis-
sions to which Mr. Moss was entitled. under the contract ?-A. Yes.

Q. Ieaving therefore a balance to his credit, $561,998.76 ?-A. Yes.
Q. And the gross premiums, $678,311, and the proportion between the $561,00O

which he owed you and $678,0OO which you received again.st percentage of the first
year's cost of the business-is that it ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Couiisel for the Cornmittee

Q. When you spoke of the $66,OOO renewals crcdited Mr. Moss, did that mean for
the wholc five yearýs or only for one year ?-A. It means the whole five years.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve.

Q. I sec I stated in my question that hce owed you $561,998 ?-A. It is not what
lie owed ; it is the net cost of the business.

Q. It is what you spent for the business after deducting renewal commissions ?-
A. Yes, the net amount vie spent for the business.

Q. And for which you got $678,000 premiums ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, about that percentage, or that approximate percentage of cost, can you

speak frorn personal knowledgeï ?-A. I know in a general way that that was the
cost of the business, and I have not verified every figure in that report. I have
examined these accounts time and time again and arn very farniliar with them, and
have no question whatcver as to the correctness of this report and its completcness as
to expenditures.

Q. When the $3,500, or any other amount, was advanced to MVr. Moss for advances
to agents under that contract, it was debitcd to him ?-A. It was debited to him in
the general manager's accounit.

Q. When be paid out advanccs to agents, what was donc about the vouchers and
the credits and so on ?-A. He made a statement of the parties to wbom hie bad made
the advapces from this sum, prescntcd the vouchers sbowing that hie had made thcm,
and that they bad received the amount, which was checked by the auditor, and a book-
keeper's warrant or voucher was issued directing the general manager's accounit to be
credited with siinh amourit as was foiînc to have heen actually advanced, as proved by
vouchers presented.
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Q. As a matter of fact, was lie credited for the amounts lie sfated as having
advanced to agents, merely on a list of amounts furnished by him ?-A. He had to,
produce vouchers for it. iMr. iMoss was always liable for the full amount until we
'exelianged discliarges af the end.

Q. Then it was a matter of bookkeeping ?-A. Yes.
Q. You had an account opened in the naine of each agent ?-A. Yes.
Q. And wlienever the agent got an advance, yon had to charge him wifh that

advance ?-A. Yes.
Q. In order to keep track of bis business ?A. Yes.
Q. And as soon as; you charged him wif h that advance, you had to credit Moss

-A. Yes. It was the only way we could keep it.
Q. That was done on]y upon the presenfation of a voucher showing ftic amount

advanced ?-A. Yes.
Q. Either a receipt or clieque endorsed by the agent ?-A. Evidenice te the

auditor that hie had received thaf money.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. 1 think you stated that a certain amotint, $335,000, was deposited to Mr.
MNlcss's credit ?-A. Thirty-five hundred dollars a week.

Q. ]Deposited te his credit ?-A. No.
Q. If thai, were su, in whaL. way was hie responsîble te flic company other than

to the agent ? He paid that, as hie thought proper, f0 the agents, did lie nef ?-A. H1e
advanced it to flie agents.

Q. And you later on lied to look to the agent for the refond ?-A. To look to,
the agent, and to the entire business done under his management.

Q. If lie did nof get if ouf to fhe agent, you would not get the moncey ? You
could nof look fo him for ift ?You advanced if to hini f0 pay fthe agents, and you
liad to look f0 flie agents for ift \VWas lie responsîble for geffing fliat amount out of
.lhe agents ?-A, lie was responsible for the cnt ire amount.

Q. You gave him flic money, and lie was responsible for flie repaymenf of that
money by fthe agents f0 himself, and lic liad f0 pay flic money info flic society. 18
thaf se ?-A. 11e liad f0 account for tlie commiss~ions, and for flic rcturn of tliaf
uioncy

Q. Tlien, tlie agents wcre responsibie f0 him, and lie te flic company ?-A. YLs

By Mfr. Geoffrion, Coun.sel for the Mututal Reservc

Q. Will you look in those lisf s of namnes of agents wliicli have becu filed for
identification here, and 'whicli I undersfand from you wcrc annexed f0 tlic voucliers
aufliurizing thec fransfer from. Mr. Moss's account te flic agents' accounit, of flie
advances te agents, and ftell us flic meaning of fliose cases wlicrc naines are sfruck
ouf fromn flose 11sf s. Whaf is this. ?A. Tliis dlaim by Mr. IMoss for credif fo~r
advanc *es includes one te H. E. Wrhite, struck ouf before if is allowed. se that flic
amount of credif asked by him is less flic item te Mr. Whit e. We have not flie
vouchers liere.

Q. But are yon positive there were vouchers t-A. There were voucliers.

By 3fr. Coster, K.C., Couiasel for the Cemrnittee:

Q. You have seen flicm yourself ?-A. I have nef seen them in cvcry instance,
but I have seen fhem, in several insfances, and if bears flic signature of IMr. Hoficker,
fliaf lie lias cxamined tliem.

Q. You have seen flic vouchers yourself ?-A. I liave in many instances, but
not ail.
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By MIr. G6offrion, (Iozinsel for the Mutual Reserve

Q. These are credit warrants-is that it ?-A. Bookkeepers' warrants.
Q. Several of these bookkeepers' warrants, instructing the bookkeeper to credit

Moss with amounts advanîues to agents, bear the signature of Mr. Wells, as was pointed
out when hie was examined l-A. Yes, after these were exarnined by Mr. Hoffecker, even
then the credit coiild not be given until three officers of the company had signed the
order for the credit to bc givcn.

By the <Ihairman:

Q. Wbat naines are on the vouchers ?-A. J. D. Wells, George W. ilarper, Chas.
WI (Camp, Moton D. Moss, and J. D. Baldwin.

Q. Were these parties the executive committee ?-A. They wcre flot the executive
committec.

Q. It xvas flot the executive committee who signed ?-A. No.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve

Q. Any three officers sîgned ?-A. Yes.
Q. And this was the regular systemi of bookkeeping of the association under the

contract of 1897 and 1898 ?-A. Lt was the regular systema.
Q. And these debit and credit orders which are xiow before the Committee for

investigation, and which bear the signature of Mr. Wells, relate exactly to those trans-
fers from the account of Mr. Moss ?-A. No, the account of Mr. Moss as general
manager, of those amounts.

By the Chairman :

Q. Do 1 understand that in dealing with iMr. iMoss, you liad two accountm ? Did
he have two accounts with the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. Whýat you would cali a special account and a regular accounit ?-A. Yes',
general managers~ aceount and a personal account.

Q. 1 mean lis own account ?-A. Yes.
Q. That would he like a special account and a regular account ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coun8el for the Commit tee:

Q. here was another account in which Mr. Moss remained charged with ail the
advanccs made to agents, until they were paid by him or by the agents t-A. No.

By M1r. Geoffrion, Counsel for lhe Mutual Reserve:

Q.As far as the matter of book-keeping was concerned, the amouint lie advanced1
did not appear to him, charged in the books, the moment they were advanced and pro-
perly accounted for by voucher 1-A. Y es.

Q. But at the closing of lis account the amounts due by agents to jhim were
charged to him ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q. And when was it charged to his account ?-A. It is in the varions accounts con-
solidateil and presented in that sheet, the entire amount that was to the debit of the
agents that had been employed by him.,

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mu tuai Reserve:

Q. As to the agents' accounts, once the amounts that they received liad been
charged te them, when they obtained the policy they were credited with tlîeir commis-
sions, and debited with whatever proportion of the premium they did not forward ?-
A. When the premium came in, when the settiement was made for the policy, they

ELDRIDGE
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were charged with any amount that they r -tained, and credited wîth their commission.

Q. 0f sixty-five ?-A. Yes.
Q. So they remained debited with the amount advanced to them, and with wbat-

ever amolint they retained oiît of the premium, if they retained anything, and cre(lited
with their commission of sixty-five ?-A. Yes.

Q. And Mir. iMoss's personal account was credited witb bis twenty per cent ?A.
It xvas at the close of the year, and flot before.

Q. Anid when you closed accaunts with him, yau lumped in ail those agents' ac-counts, and charged the debit balances of those agents' accounts lu bim?--A. I do xîot
know that that was actually done upon the books of the company, but that is the way
in which the account bas been treated and is treated.

Q. But from the point of view of settiement ?-A. Tbat is what was dune.
Q. If you had flot given hnm a release in exchange of bis having traiisferred toyou deferred premiums and renewal premiums, that is what wou]d have been done ?

A. Yes, and that is in essence what lias been done.
Q. But in view of the fact that you gave him a releaae of bis indebtedness to theassociation in exchange for bis transferring to you the deferred premiums that be-

ioriged tu him-A. That those actual ainounts were transferred in a lump on the
books to his account, I ar nfot prepared to say.

Q. But in bis statement, in which the cost is shown to be less than eighty-five per
cent-A. Other agents' balances are debited to Mr. IMoss.

Q. Su ChaL, by that syst-ei of book-keepiug, the ass'ociation niade no loss ?-A. No.Q. And even assuming the contract would have been altered, as stated by -"r.
Burnbam, the alteration did flot change the carrying out of il i-A. Tbere was nouhange from the beginning to the end, in the method of carrying out the contract, or
keeping the accounts.

Q. And tbey wpep kept in acurdane with the terms oif the contract as originally
drafted &-A. As the executive committee understood the contracts, yes, and as I per-
sonally understand it.

Q. You know nothing about that alleged change in the contract ?-A. 1 neyer
heard of il, until the cbarges were laid with the Insurance Department in 1899.

Q. Do you see any difference in the meaning of the cuntract, and the alleged-
Mr. CosTRl3 objects.
Question withdrawn.
Q. Then there was a final warrant drawn, when IMr. Moss left, for the purpose of

closing al] his accounts and meeting his commissions, and so on?-A. Yes.Q. This document reads as follows:

EXIIIBIT No. 51.
No. 5774. $37,390. NEw YORK, July 27, 1898.

The bookkeeper of the iMutuaI Reserve Fund Life Association will credit :Matan
D. Mass, general manager, $8,352.34 Moton D. IMoss special account $29,038.63, thirty
thousand tbree bundred and ninety 97-100 dollars ($37,390.97), and charge the same
ta accaunt of committed commissions.

In discbarge of first year commissions accrued and ta accrue and in discliarge of
renewal commissions accrued and commutation and discliarge of renewal acmmissjons
ta accrue under contracts between the association and the said Moss, in accordance
witb the general release executed July 23, 1898, and approved and ratifled by the
board of directors under date of July 27, 1898.

By order of the Executive Committee.

J. D. WELLS.
GEO. D. EL]) RIDGE.

Entered Journal I. folio 63, J. A. H. GEO. BITRNHIAM, Ja.
Examîned :August 5, 1898.

E. A. Powers.
ELDRIDGjE
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Mr. Moton D. Moss, Special account (1896 account) in account witli Mutual Reserve
Fund Lufe Association.

Aug. 1 To Balance, accolant rendered. .............................. .2,038 6

July 23 Inactive agents, account Dr.. ..- ý......... ........... ... ...... ý9,038 63

M. D. Mioss special açccount, transfer to balance the account............29,038 63

'Mr. Moton D. Moss, General Manager, in account with Mutual Reserve Fund Lji e
Association.

Aug. 2 To Balance ............... .................. ............ 8,35'2 34

Inactive accolant Dr ........... ..... ................... 8,352 34

July 2.1 Moton D. Muss, tranisfer to close this accolant............ .... ............... ,352 34

Annexed to this voucher thiere is a special account of Moton D. Moss, showing

a balance of $29,038.63, which this credit order xvould balance t-A. Yes.

Q.And did balance ?-A. Yes.

Q.And there is another account, Moton iD. IMoss, general manager, in account

with the Mutual iReserve Fund Lufe Association, showing a balance against him of

$8,352.34 ?-A. Yes, inactive account, Dr., July 23, Moton D. Moss.

Q. The item of $8,852 is also balanced by the credit order just referred to. That

is correct ?-A. Yes.
Q. In other words, the two accounts mentioned in that year were exactly to offset

his debit balance ?-A. Yes.

The Committee then adjourned.

1PA6RT 8.

OTTAWA~, WETYSESDAY, July 20, 1904.

The Committee met at 10 a.m.

Examination of Mr. GEORcE D. ELDRiDGE, continued.

By Mr. Geoffrioyb, Coun.scl for the Company

Q.Will you pleaze look at the document nowv shown you and tell us if it is what

it purports to be, a certificate copy by the clerk of the Court of the General Sessi-ons

of the Peace of the city and county of Ncw York, of an indorsement on an indictmnent,

fled June 4, 1901, by the Grand Jury of New York county against one James Thoma-

son Paterson, for libel, and whether this refers to the indictment to which reference

has been made in the cross-examination of Mr. Paterison, the indictment taken agaînst

bim for lioel referred to in this Committee ?

Objected to by Counsel for the Committee unless the whole document is produced,

this purporting to be only a certificated copy of an indorsement ?-A. It is. 1 here-

with tender thi. evidence as Exhibit No. 52 and ask that it be incorporated in the de-

position. ELDRIDGE
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EXHIBIT iNo. 59.

I, EDWARD R. CARROLL, Clerk of the Court of General Sessions of the Peace, of the'City and County of New York, held in and for the county of New York, do hereby,certify that the arncxed is a copy of an indorsement on an indictrnent filed Junle 4,1901, by the Grand Jury, iii and for the county of'New York, against one JamesThiomson Paterson, for the lMisderneanor of Publishing a Libel, and of a certainletter mentioned ini said indorsement now on file in the clerk's office, and that the sainehas been compared by me witli the original, and is a correct transcript tlierefrom and
of the whole of such original.

[SEAL] Given under my hand and attested by the seal of tbe said Court this
eighteenth day of July, in the ycar of our Lord oxie tliousand niue
flundred and four.

EDWARD R. CAR-ROLL.

This is an indictmnent for libel by the defendant Paterson of a corporation, knowl]as the lIMutual Reserve Fund Life Association. While the defendant May be guilty ofa tecbnical libel 1 arn very doubtful if upon a trial a conviction would ensue owingto the technical nature of the evidence for the prosecution and the extremne difllcultyof reovinieîg a jury of tho defeudauf's guilt. The alleged libellous article appearedini an insurance publication of which defendant was editor and proprietor and whichhe lias ceased publishing since this indictmnent was found. The defendaut before thefiling of this indictmnent lias always borne an excellent character. Thli ewspaperattacks upon the complainant company have ceased and tbe Comnpany bas expressedits willingness to bave tbis indictment dismissed, as witness a letter frorn its vice-president, George iD. Eldridge, herewitli filed. In view of those facts and iii orderthat the people may not bie put to the unnecessary expense of a trial, I respectfully
move the dismsal of this iudictmeiit.

JAMES LiNDSAY GORDON,
iD. Asst. Dist. Attorney.

September 29, 1901.

Approved, EUGENE A. PHILBIN,
District Attorney.

The dismissal of the indictment rather than discliarge of bail merely is movedbecause it is impossible for the defendant iii endeavouring to formi business connec-tions witli insurance companies mnust give bond, which lie cannot do witli the indict-ment against liim stili pending,

J. L. GORDON.

September 30, 1901.
HIon. WARREN W. FOSTER,

Judge of tlie Court ýof General Sessions,
Criminal Court Building, New York City.

DEAR Sia,-The M1utual Reserve Fund Life Association, of whicli I am the vice-president, liaving made some months ago a complaint for criminal. libel against Mr.J. Tliomson Paterson, and an indictrnent liaving been found upon that complaint, 1amno 1w advised tliat for reasons wlicl appear sufficient to, liim it is the intentionof tlie District Attorney to move for the dismissal of that indictrnent.
ELDRIDGE
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On behaif of the complainant I would say, under the conditions as they now
exist, it bas no objection to the dismissal. of the indictment iii question, nor bas it any
pecuiniary interest either in having the indictment dismissed or allowed 10 stand.

Very respectfully yours,

GEO. D. ELDRIDGE.

Q.At whose request did you write the letter refcrred to ?-A. At the request of
.Mr. Gordon, the deputy assistant attorney.

Q. Had you been informed then of the fact mentioned in the endorsemeut of
the district attorney, that the newspaper ceased to be publishied, and the attacks com-
plained of had ceased ?

(Objected to by Counsel for Committee as hearsay. Question allowed.)
A. Mr. Gordon, at the time of asking for the letter, made that statement to me.
Q. You dîd ilot succeed in obtainîng any letter from Mr. Paterson ?-A. We did

flot. We found no corresponding letter to mine in the court filcd with this.
Q. How did you corne to be under the impresssion that there was such a letter

the other day ?-A. Mr. Gordon made the statement to me of the discontinuance, and
asked u letter from nme to the judge, and I got an impression from bis request that 1
similar letter was to be given to the judge by Mr. Paters~on or his attorneys.

By the Hon. Miir. Wilson:
Q. You got an impression ?-A. Yes.
Q. Did he state so ?-A. No, it was an impression.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Jo un sel for the CIompany:

Q. From the fact that lie was exacting from you a similar letter ?-A. Yes.
Q. Have you prepared statements showing. the ratio of expenses of the Mutual

Rleserve as compared with other companies ?-A. I have to a crtain extent.
Q. Will you please file and explain whatever statements you have so far pre-

pared ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Coiunsel for thje Commitiee

Q. Is tbis statement taken from the insurance reports A. Yes, I teudered Ibis
document in evidence as Exhibit 53a.

No. 57 74. EXHIBIT No. 53a.

'I.'-As To EXPENSES IN CANADA.

Basis of Comparison.-Expelnses in 'Canada per $1,000 of insurance carried in one
year by :(a) English companies doing business in Canada ; (b) American companies,
doing business in Canada.

Year. (a) (b) Mutual Reserve.
1895..............$8 96 $5 59 $3 77
1896..............6 73 5 29 2 87
1897..............650 5 48 251
1898..............6 68 629 2 64
1899..............6 90 735 2 68
1900..............7 19 777 1 96
1901..............6 47 809 2 50
1902..............6 58 805 2 01
1903..............6 66 786 1 50

Totals. .......... $6 77 $7 04 $2 63
ELDRIDGE
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This document, headed 'I,' relates to the expenses in Canada, first (a) of English
companies doing business in Canada, second (b) of Ainerican companies doîng busi-
ness ini Canada, and, third, of the Mutual Reserve, based on the amount of expense
for each $1,000 of insu1rance carried, an average of one year for each year from 1895
to 1903, by both inclusive.

Q. You mean the expenses. in Canada ?A. In Canada of the varions companies
daing business here.

By the Hon. 3fr. Wilson

Q. Is there a similar statement of your comipany, as the others;, or do you caver
greater gronnd with this ?A. No, it is confined to the same.

By 3fr. (Jeoffrion, Gounsel for Ihe Company:

Q. The basîs of comparison is the sain.e -A. Yes, taien froi flic 1 ]ue-Loo'c
published by the Insurance Department of Canada.

By the Hon. Mfr. Landry :

Q. Who prepared that document ?-A. I prepared it.
Q. Yourself ?-A. Yes. It emnbraes ail the English companies doing business

in Canada as given in the blue-book. It embraces ail the American campanies doing
business in Canada as given in the blue-book, and the figures on wvhich those ratios
are based are taken fram the expediditure tables in 1900, XCVIII., and the correspond-
ing tables in other years.

Q. What are tbey called ?-A. Table showing the cash expen diture of Canadian
companies doing life insurance, and cash expenditure in Canada of British and Ameni-
campanies in that brandi.

Q. There are three columus; (a) represents what ?-A. The British, (b) the
American. It is simnply confined ta Canadian expenses.

Q. The third column is the Mutual iReserve ?-A. Yes.

By Mfr. (Jeoffrion, Counsel for the CJompany:

QI understand this applies only to companies whose head offices are outside af
Canada ?-A. Yes. The third column represents the expcnscs in Canada ai the
Mutual Reserve alone.

Q. That, of course. does not include aIl the expenses changeable to the Canadian
palicy-holdens ?-A. No, it is only the moneys actually expended in Canada sa far
as that exhibit is concerned.

Q. Yau say this is. correct ?-A. It is correct.
Q. The English campanies, from this statement, spent an average for ail those

years, 1895 to 1'9)03, both inclusive, of $6.77 per thousand af lufe'insurance ?-A. Yes,
canried for an average of one year.

Q. And the American companies spent an average of $04?-A. Yes.
Q. And the 1futual Reserve an average af $2.63 ?-A. It did. That covers ail

expenditures in Canada.

By the Hon. Mfr. Wilson:

Q. Do yan give the expenditures in the Unted States ?-A. Not in that exhibit.

By 3fr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. I undenstand you are taking tire sanie basis af cakculatian ?-A. Yes.
Q. Does it include legal expenses ?-A. It includes, everything expended in

Canada as laid dawn in the blue-book.
ELDRIDGE
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By the Hon. Mr. Lau gheed:

Q. On the charges against that, of the proportion which Canada should bear of
the management of the head office ?-A. There are charges in addition, but I will
make that clear in another coluran. This second sheet, Exhibit 53b, relates to the
gross expenses charged to Canadian business. The basis of comparison is expenses
for $1,000 of insurance carried one year, and the comparison is made with Canadian
companies on their entire business. First, taking from the samne sources, I give a
column 'a' showing the expenses per thousand dollars of insurance carried of al
Canadian companies engaged in businoss each year as shown by the blue-book. but as
that includes local and new business, &c., in order to get what seems a fairer basis
of comparison, I take ail companies that were in existence prior to 1885, and that are
doing business outside of Canada, so as to get a generai business, sud give the same
in column 'b,' the expenses per thousand dollars of insurance carried one ycar, and of
course that gives a lower rate, tbey being older companies and doing a more extended
business. This is for every year from 1895 to 1903 inclusive. Then, in the third
column, I give the expenses per thousand borne by the Canadian members of the
Mutual Reserve, including their share of aIl their expenses for maintenance in the
general office.

EXHIBIT No. 53a.

AS To GRoss EXPENSES ClIARGED CANADIAN BusiNESS, 1895 TO 1903.

Basis of comparson:-Expenses per $1,000 of insurance carried one year by (a)
aIl Canadian companies engaged in business eacb one year as shown by the blue-book;
(b) those Canadian companies in existence prior to 1885 which do bilsiness outsidc of
Canada as shown by the blue book.

Dividends ou capital are flot counted iii expenses.
Expenses of the assessment business of the MUutual Reserve in Canada arc $1.094,-

39; based on total receipts, less payments to policy-bolders and sains invested for
deposit. This is made up of membcrship and inedical fees $196,894, and other expenses
proportioned to business carried $897,445.

Year. (a) (b) Mutual Reserve.
1895..............$8 76 8 57 5 93
1896..............8 54 806 4 61
1897..............9 51 870 4 52
1898..............9 82 880 5 29
1899..............9 91 853 5 49
1900..............10 64 966 5 92
1901..............10 34 9 33 8 31
1902..............10 93 9 61 8 27
1903................ 170 10 39 7 99

Totals..........$10 20 $9 06 $5 66

By M1r. Geoffrion, Jo unsel for the Company
Q. Column 'a' wbich gives the ratio of expense to each thousand dollars of insur-

anoe for ail Canadian companies, as shown by the blue-book, gives for the years 1895
ta 1903, bath inclusive, a percentage of $1.0.-.These are the gross expenses of
the campany. As far as the Mutual Reserve is concerned, it is the gross expenditure
cbarged to Canadian business every year, snd I compare it witb the rate of expense to
each thousand dollars in those ather companies.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen :t

Q. You keep the Canadian account separate by itself ?-A. We do flot keep the
Canadian account separate by itself, but I have, at the request of Mr. Béique, made

ELDRIDGE
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an apportionmeîit of the general expenses of the company, showing what proportion is
properly chargeable on the basis of the average business carried, and the general
expenses and the Canadian business, and fromn that I have taken that columui.Q. Can you say what proportion of rates the Canadian business should bear ?-
A. I did not distribute them item by item with the legal and rent expenses to make
the aggregate expenses of the company outside of membership fees and medical fees.
Membership fees and medical fees depend on the fact of doing new business or flot do-
ing new business. Outside of that the expenses of the company I distributed on each
thousand dollars worth of business carried everywhere so much. Then I added to
tbat, and in Canada this gives the nverage amount done in Canada. llaving added
the expense outside of medical fees and admission fees, the rate per thousand of the
general expensesý, then I determined from this mean amount of insurance in force the
amount apportionable to Canada each year, and add to that the membership fees and
medical fees collected in Canada, giving as a resuit the total amount of expenses
chargeable to Canada.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilson:
Q. Why did you eliminate the charges making a dîfference between Canada and

the Ulnited States ?-A. I did not treat it differently in Canada fromn the UJnited
States.

Q. Your statement indicates it ?-A. I charged to each country the membership
fees and medical fees collected in that country, because they would be there expended,
and it was in favour of Canada, because I had divided the medical fees and member-
ship fees received everywfiere into the business during these yeai s that we have beendoing any business in Canada on the assessment plan, it would have made the Cana-
dian members contribute towards the expense of membership fees, &c., taking their
shares of it in othcr countries, whieh, of course, would not be proper as long as there
were none collected or expended here, but outside of membership fees and medical
fees, I distributed the entire expenses of the company,'no matter where contracted,
over the business actually in force per thousand dollars, treated Canada and the
Ulnited States and other countries the same.

By the Chairman :

Q.I understand it would be easy to figure that out according to the returns of
the books, but are you in a position to say actually what Canada contributed ? 0f
course you can take the general amount of expenses and apportion them to the differ-
ent countries. That is a matter of figuring, but as a matter of fact can you give a
statement to the Committee of what Canada paid ?-A. We keep, of course, the amount
of income fromn and the expenditure in Canada. The actual expenses chargeable to
Canada on this basis of business fromn 1885 to 1903 was $1,735,668. The proportion-
ate amount for that time was $1 792,229, and the actuial contribution was $1,735,668.

By M1r. Geoffrion, Counsel for the CJompany:

Q. Can you not arrive at the actual contribution of Canada to, expenses by putting
on one side the amount collected in Canada, deducting fromi it the amount paid in
death losses in Canada and the amount still remaining to the credit of the policy-
holders in Canada I-A. That is what'determines the actual amount they have con-
tributedý either towards expenses or towards the general mortality of the company.
What this exhibit is for, is for the purpose of showing that upon a proper basis of
apportionment of ail the expenses to aIl the business, Canada lias not been called to
contribute more than its proper share.

Q. When you say this exhibit, you mean Exhibit 54, which I now mark merely for
the purpose of identification, as I will take it up later on l-A. Yes.
ELDRIDGE
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By thte lion. Mr. lcMulleil.

Q. On this exhibit that is rnarked 53 b, you give us a statement of companies do-
ing business in Canada as compared with the Mutual Reserve. Are those joint stock
compan*es t-A. I under.,tand that ail of yotur coxapanies are. They are legal reserve
companies. There is one mutual company, I understand, the Mutual of Canada.

Q. Yoiu unierstand that this abstract you have taken refers alinost entirely to
joint stock companies. Now, if you wanted to make a fair comparison, why did you
flot give us a comparison with uxutual companîes, that is, companies conductcd on a
cheap plan, suceh as you dlaim tu conduet yours. You take, stock companies and put
them in comparison with the iMitual Reserve ; now, stock companies have expenses
that mutual companies do flot have at ail, expenses in connection with the investmnent
of their money, which costs a great deal both in paying agents and in making invest-
ments, in paying lawyers' fees, and so on-you have no expenses of that kind, because
you have no moiiey to invest ?-A. Is that so.

Q. The policies have ixo surrender value !-A. That is su, but we have money to
invest.

Q. When you said the policy hiad no surrender value, it neinis they have nu xuuney
behind thein?-A. The nssessment polîcies have ixo guaranteed or stated surrender
value. Our legal reserve policies ail have a surrender value.

Q. What about the stock companies? Are not ail these stock cuxnpanies?-A. Ail,
wvith the exception of the Muitual of Canada.

Q. The Ontario MNutual? A. Yes.
Q. They are ail stock companies, and you inake a comparison betwecn stock coin-

panies that have expenses of a kind that you do not have at ail, in place of inaking
a comparison with assessment companies. There are assessment conipaliies in Con-
ada ; why not givP. a comparison with themn ?-A. 1 arn told ours is the only asse.ssmnent
company.

Q. Oh, no, there is the Ancient; Qrder of United Wurk-ii'm t-A. That is a frater-
ini, organization ; it i.s not an assessment company.

(2. It is in a sense?-A. It is not the saine as ours, hecalise uve have expenses thait
they have not.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. The objection raîsed hy the lIon. lMr. MeMullen is that it is not a fair coin-

parison to compare your company, which is an assessrnent company, with tliese Cana-
dian joint stock companies. What bave yon to say to that t-A. In the first place, we
bave done a general business, competing with these companies, involved iii the saine
expenses for gettxxg business, excepting so far as I explained yesterday. those expen-
ses were modilled during the time when the dlaimi would be made that, it was exceed-
ingly cheap andl the advantage got of that.

Q. That was hefore 1895 -A. Befcore 18915. More than that, from the time the
present management went in in 1895, the company has shaped its course to the estab-
lishing of itself upon a legal reserve basis, and in point of fact it has dorAe business
in Canada since 1899 as a legal reserve comnpany, antI in -Massachusetts sinee 1900, and
ail of its rates since 1898-the latter part of 1898 and early part of 1899-have been
legal reserve rates, and it bas done a legal reserve business the saine as the others.

Q. As far tis you are concerned, (Io I understand that you consider the comparison
fair t-A. I consider it is the fairest comparison that could be made. I do not elaim
that it is an absolute comparison by any manner of means. 1 simply present it as ',e
fairest comparison that could be presented.

lion. -Nr. MO'IMULLEN.-There is the Independent Order of Foresters ; you eould
have given that along with the others?

Hoi.. Mr. BÉIQUE.-I would invite the witness to inake a comparison with the Ia-
dependent Order of Foresters.

ELDRIDGE
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The WrNŽESS.-I will do it.

BV the Hon. Mfr. Landry:

. In this statempent the figures given for the Mutual Reserve Fund represent the
expenses on the Canadian business 1-A. No, that represents the total expenses of the
Company. The share of the business in Cairada-their share of the entire expenses of
the company.

Q. Compared with the entire expenses of the others 1-A. Yes, it is the entire ex-
pense charged to those compared with the entire expense charged to the other.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counselfor the Company:

Q. In order to arrive at the ratio of expense charged to the Cnadian companies,
have you taken as a basis the difference between the amiount contributed by them and
thec amount returned to thera for deathi losses, and the arnount of money deposited
here'l-A. That bas been found in their contribution f0 the expenses.

Q. You charge thema as expenses ex-ery single dollar that lias flot been returned t')
theni or deposited in Canada ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. Then you cover the amount of sonie $î»28,000 which appears in the evidence?
-A. Yes.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for thue Company

Q. The average expenses froin 1895 f0 1903 of the 1\ufuar Reserve would be $5.66
per thousand ?-A. Yes.

Q. The average expenses indicated in column 'b' being companies incorporated
before 1885-over fan years hefore-which do business both in Canada and outside.
would be £romn 1895 f0 1903, $9.06 per annum ?-A. Ycs.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. How many ?-A. Six; I wiII give the names-The Canada Life, the Confed-
eration Life, the Manufacturers Life, the North American Life, the Ontario Mutual
and ftic Sun Life of Montreal.

By the Hon. Mr. MoMullen:

Q. These are virtually old line companies ?-A. They are ail old line compunies.

By Mr. Geoffîsbon, counsel for thue Company:

Q.Column 'a,' which gives the expenses from 1895 to 1903 of ail Canadian Coin-
pallies, shows an average of $10.20 per thousand ?-A. Yes.

Q. This is coînpiled froin the bine-book. you state, and is correct?-A. It is corn-
piled from the blue-book and is correct.*

Q. Will you please file your next stafement ?-A. The next statement, 53c, deals
with the question of whether there has been a material increase or nof in the share
of expenses charged to Canadian policy-holders under the present management of the
Company.

EXIIIBIT No. 53 C.

As to gross expenses charged Canadýan business, (a) 1885 f0 1894 ; (b) 1895 to
1903.

Basis of comparison :Expenses per $1,000 of insurance carried one year.
Ail moneys received in Canada on asse.ssment business, and not returned f0 policy-

holders or invested for deposit are counted as, expenses.
ELIYLIDIGE
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The total amount is $1,735,668, of which $716,049 was received £ rom 1885 to 1894,
and $1,020,619 fromn 1895 to 1903. For the purpose of this comparison', however, the
expensesof the first period are placed at $641,329, and of the second at $1,094,339, the
division being made on the basis of actual expenses to proportionate Canadian ex-
penses before determined.

Year. Year.
185.........$5 05 185........$5 93

1886 .................. 5 83 19.........4 61
188..............~ i 187.............4 52

1888 .................. 4 91 19.........5 29
1889 .................. 4 86 19.........5 49
1890 .................. 5 02 190 .92

181..........5 27 10.........8 31
182..........5 34 10.........8 27
183..........5 89 10.........7 89
189.............6 20

Totals ........... $5 45 Totals ........... $5 66

By the Hon. Mr. Loitgheed:

Q. From what date do you consider the present management begun ;-A. From
the lt January, 1895.

By Mr. Coster, K.J., Cou asel for the Company
Q. When did von join the cornpany ?-A. I went with the company in 1894.
Q. And when did Mr. Burnhain go with it ?-A. My impression is, in 1890.
Q. Was it not in 18~89 ?-A. _31y impression is it was in 1890 as counsel.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company
Q. Hie cntered as president only in 1895 ?-A. Hie became president in 1895.

This statement gives simply the expenses per thousand of insurance.

By Mr. Cos ter, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:
Q. Are the head office expenses and everything taken int that ?-A. Ail expenses

are taken into consideration. This is the total .amount per thousand dollars insurance.Q. In the States ?-A. This is the share of each thousand dollars of insurnace
carried in Canada in ail the expenditures of the coinpany for each year.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:
Q. The remark is made about it representing at least the total difference betweein

the amount contributed by the members and the amount returned to them and the
amount deposited ?-A. It is the distribution of the entire amount of $1,735,669
which the Canadian policy-holders have contributed towards the entire expenses of
the company. It runs from 1884 to 1895, one division, and 1895 to 1903, both inclui-
sive, in the other. The average expeuses are $5.45 froni 1885 to 1894, and $5.66 from
1895 to 1903, and it shows in eaehi year.

Q. Exhibit 53e is taken from the blue-books, and is correct ?-A. These aýe the
figures returned to the Canadian departiment year by year of income and outgo, &c.,
as determined from these ratios.

By Mr. CJoster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. Those figures are not shown in the books ?-A. Oh, no.
Q. You made those up yourself ?-A. Ail those figures I made up myseif.

ELDRIDGE
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Q. On soine method of your own?
çCounsel for the company objeets to the cross-exaniination of witness until the

direct examination is closed.)

By M1r. Geoffrion, <Jounsel for the Company
QIs Exhibit 53e a correct calculation based upon the figures appearing ini the

blue-buis ?-A. it îe.
Q. iReference has been made to the choice that you made of the six Canadiani

companies in Exhibit 53b. ls the effect of your choice that the ratio of expenses

for tàose six companies is larger than it would have been by choosing others ?-A.

The column (a) gives ail the Canadian companies, and, as I explained, I did flot regard

that as fair, because it did flot include the younger and smaller companies, and there-

fore I took the older companies. and those doing most business for colunin (b), with

the resuit that the ratio of expenses was reduced materially from column (1), and flot

increased. 1 think it is a fairer basis of comparison.

By the Hon. M1r. McMullen :
Q. Dhd you take ail the old line companies doing business before 1805 '?-A. I do

flot know.
Q. Are you prepared to say there were only six companies in Canada doing busi-

nesss before 1895 ?-A. I do not know whether there were or not.

Q. IDid you take all the companies doing business in Canada before 1895, and

were there only six ?-A. That is my impression, but I arn not certain in regard to

that. The eornpanies we did take were the coinpanies in existence prior to 1885. wbich

are doing both a Canadian and a foreign business, so as to get the broadest basis.

By MIr. (jeoffiriot, (Jouisel for the CJompany:

Q. iPlease look at statement 53b, and tell us on what that is based, how it was

prepared and whether it is correct i-A. It is based upon the sworn reports of tbe

compa-ny to tbe New York Insurance Department, with the single exception tbat in

those years in w'hich the company did not report its membership fees to the INew York

1nsurance Department, the membership fees are added both to the income and the

outgo, so âcs to get the uniform basis.

EXIIIBIT No. 53 D.

As to gross expenses, (a) total business; (b) business outside of Canada; (c)

Canada business.
Basis of comparison :-Expcnscs per $1,000 of insurance carried one year:,

Year. (a) (b) (c)
1885 .... ......................... $ 526 $5 27 $5 05
1886.... .... ......... ............ 4 67 461 5 83
1887...................4 24 419 5 11
1888..................417 412 4 91
1889 ..... ............ ...... .......... 4 25 4 21 4 86
1890 ...... .... ............... ........ 4 36 4 31 5 02

1891 ........ .... .... .... .... .......... 4 66 4 61 5 27
1892 .... ...... ........... ............ 4 82 4 78 5 34
1893 ...... .... ........... ............ 5 21 5 16 5 89

1894....................560 566 6 20
18 .......... ......... ....... ..... 584 5 84 5 93

'1896....................504 508 4 61
1897...................5 75 590 4 52
1898 ...... ........ ..... ...... ........ 6 28 6 40 5 29
1899 .... ... ............... 617 626 5 49

1900 .... ..... ...... .......... ........ 7 17 7 32 5 92
1901......................10 71 10 90 8 31

1902 .... .... .............. ........... Il 04 il 22 8 27
1903................. 149 174 7 99

'iûtls.................$5 96 $5 99 $5 58
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By the Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. Is this taken from the books I-A. It is taken from the books.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for CommW.ie

Q. And they all can be taken by anybody from the reports I-A. Except the cor-
rected item of the membership fées which were not returned. You will find in the
early years of the company, that with some $30,000,000 business done, it returned only
$417 membership fees. To make a just comparisen you have te introduce the correct
return.

Q. And you get that from the books of the company, do you ?-A. 1 get that by
the scale adopted by the Canadian department in dealing with the same question of
$5 per thousand membershîp fees.

By Mr. Ge f rin, Counsel for the CJompany:

Q. Can yeu say for what years i-A. The sworn reporte will show it.
Q. Are those figures correct i-A. They are.
Q. What do they give I-A. They give in colinn 'a' the ameunt, of expense te

each thousand dollars of insurance carried, taking into account the total business of
the cempany. From this total business each year I deduct the insurance carried in
Canada, and the expenses charged te the Canadian business, and determine in column
' b' the dollars of expense charged te each theusand dollars of insurance outside of
Canada. Celumn 3 reproduce the Exhibit 63c, showing the expenses per thousand
dollars charged te Canadian business, and given here for the purposes of cemparison.

Q. This statement, Exhibit 53b, deals only with the MIutual Reserve I-A. Only
with the Mutual lieserve.

Q. The first column gives the general expenses of the cempany for ail its business
in and out ef Canada I-e-A. Yes.

Q. Columu 'b' givcs the expenses on the business of the company throughout the
world, exclusive of Canada I-A. Yes.

Q.And lc' the expenses on Canadian business I-A. Yes.
Q.But' 'c' includes ail that is charged te Canadian business, whether expenditure

inside of Canada or eutside ef Canada ?-A. Yes.
Q. The general. expenses throughout the world are equivalent te $5.96 per tho*

* sand I-A. Yes.
Q. Throughout the werld, outside of Canada, the general expenses paid by pelicy-

hoiders ameunt te $5.99 per thousand ?-A. Yes.
Q. And ail expenses charged te Canadian pelicy-holders amount te $5.58 per thou-

sand i-A. Yes.

By, the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q. You directed the Oomnxittee's attention a short tine ago te a cemparison be-
tweeu a certain number of Canadian cempanies that had been in existence prier te
1885, and yeu comapared their cost per thousand 'with the cost per thousand of th.e
Mutual IReserve if e. Yen show that in one case it is frein $9 odd for expenses, and
the other $10, while there was only some $5.66 per thousand expenses in connection
with the Mutual Reserve. Do net the old ue cempanies, the joint stock cempanies,

do a business different altegether from your lime ef business, and a more expensive
business I For instance, they issue limited life pelicies and endowment pelicies ?-
A. Yes.

Q. Do you do anything of tliat kind I-A. Yes.
Q. Only since 1899 I-A. I think it was 1897 we began te issue limited payment

policies. 1 think we issued the first limited payment policies in 1898.
Q. This gees back te 1885. A very large anieunt of the joint steck companies

business is in limited life sud endewment policies, and yen, as an insurance mn,
ELDRIDGE
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,know that that business is much more expensive than the ordinary straight life
business ?-A. No. I do not know that.

Q. Do you flot know that they pay abnost double the amount ini yearly prerniumsl
-A. That is true, but the expenses on it are flot larger.

Q. But they pay double the amount yearly for such policies, and as a rule it is
mnore expensive getting them than getting ordinary life policies, and a great deal of
your comparison is useless ?-A. On those policies they d& fot pay the saine rate of
commission that they do on the ordinary life policies.

Honi. Mr. IMCMUILEN.-I know that in most companies the rate on limited life
policies is higher and the commissions are hWgher tban on straight lite.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company :

Q. Is the percentage higlier ?A.* I know of none in which they are as high as
to percentage, except the twenty pay life. That is usually the same as full life, but
on flfteen-year the percentage is less than the whole life.

Q. The percentage would be lower, but the amount would be higher if the prtemiuîn
is higher ?-A. That might be. Usually the ten years they pay the same commission
as straight; life.

By the lon. Mr. AflIMullen

Q. Iu the joint stock companies, too, do îlot the joint stock comnpanies pay the
doctor out of the fees they receive ?-A. Yes.

Q. And in your case you require the applicant to pay his own doctor's fee ?-A.
Not since 1895.

Q. That is what you do on straignt lufe business ?-A. That is cbarged into the
expenses, whetber paid by the applicant or nlot.

By the Hon. Mr. Sullivan :

Q. What do you pay a doctor ?-A. Our usual fee is $3.
Q. Does bie make a microscopic examination for tbat ? -A. No, a miîcroscopic

IVamînation costs $5.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counset for the Company

Q. The senator bas stated, and I know it is correct, that the premiums on limitcd
policies, say twenty-year or ten or flfteen-yeur endowment policies, are mlieh higber
than on ordinary lufe ?-A. Yes.

Q. But, as a consequence, would not the amount of expenses i order to increase
that business be larger than the amount of expenses to obtain ordinary lufe business
and nevertheless the percentage be not larger ?-A. Yes.

Q. Your figures are based on percentages ?-A. No, my figures are based on the
$1,000 risk and the expenses for each thousand dollars.

By the Hon. Mr. McMullen:

Q.Which included endowments and limited life ?-A. Yes, and it dots with our
own company, since it begun that b)usiness. Ail of it for the last four or five years
has been legal reserve rates, and a large proportion of our present policies are lîînited
pay-twenty years.

By Mr. (leoffrion, Gounsel for the Company:

Q. Will you please look at this other statement marked 53e, and tell us how you
prepared it and wbether it is correct ?A. As to expenses of companies doing business
in New York -
ELDIÎIDGE
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EXHIBIT 53e.

(A.) Companies incorporated in New York.
(B.) Companies incorporated outside of New York.
(C.) Combined amounts.

Basis of comparison :Expenses per $1,000 of insurance carried one year.
Figures fromn published reports of New York Insurance Departrnen t for each

alternate year.
Total amount of insurance carried

(a) $19,955,820,000; (b) $12,554,682,O0;(c $32,510,502,000.

182...............$ 10 28 $ 9 85 $ 10 13
1894..................1033 9 20 9 93
1896....................10 24 10 59 10 37
1898..................10 21 10 75 10 42
1900..................10 88 il 72 il 2)1
1902..................il 79 il 18 il 54

Totals.............$ 10 73 $ 10 71l $ 10 72
A. I took it froin the sworn report of the New York Insurance Dcpartment for the
years named, and it is correct.

By Mfr. Coster, K.C., C>ounýse for the (]ommittee:
Q. That is ail froru the sworn reports ?-A. Yes.
Q.» We can get ail that is iii the reports ?-A.,Yes. This is taken from the two

tables published in thx, New York reports, the one disbursements and the other insur-
L1i(c in force.

Q. This does flot apply alone ta the New York Mutual Iteserve ?-A. No.
tè. This is a ý,oinparison between general companies '?-A. It is to Show' îbe

aino)uiit of expense for $1,000, the mean insuraiice carried tirst by ail New York coin-
pallies., second by ail companies of other states authorized to do business in New York,
andl thitd, a combination of the two. For the purpose of verilkcation, I rnight Say that
froni the New York compaiies I have omitted the Metropolitan life, and from the
companies outside of -New York I omitted the iPrudential Life, because they do an
industrial business alinost entirely, the expenses of which are very mineh largor than
the ordinare business, and it did ilot sem to be fair to include them. It would have.increased the expense a couple of dollars peir thousand average, and it gives the
alternate years from 1892 to 1900.

Q. You have prepared a statement with explanations, which lias been referred
to as Exhibit 54. Could you tell us from where the figures in that statement were
taken, and whether tbey are correct ?-A. They are taken from the books of the
company, au(d prepared by the controller-certain of the figures are taken from the
books of the compaily. The deterntination of the main amount of risks is taken from
the sworn report of the varions departinenIt.

By the lion. Mr. Beique :
Q. Taken from ail sources ?-A. Yes.
Q. One frotu the sworn repurts, and the balance £rom the books of the comnpany 1

--. Yes.

By Mr-. Coster, K.G., C'ounsel for the Gommittee
Q. And you took it from the books yourself ?-A. The main amount of insurance

1 took from the swvorn. reports.

ELDRIDGE
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Q. IDid you take it fromn the books of the company yourself ?--A. I did not. The
Hon. Senator Béique asked me with reference to the statement, which lias already
been put in, Exhibit 12, which gave the figures for Canada and the United States,
to give the saine figures for the foreign business, and that has been compiled, and is
given in these various exhibits. While I did flot check the figures myseif, 1 checked
the items from the books, and verified them by comparison with the sworn statements,
to the Insurance ])epartments, so as to satisfy myseif that these figures are correct
as far as I could, in the mass of figures.

By th&e Hon. Mr. Béique:-
Q. They were prepared by your instructions ?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman :
Q.Who prepared them ?-A. The controller of the company and his office force,

that is, s0 far as they were taken fromi the books of the company, to niake the division
between foreigu and the other, and the concluding pages, are the apportionment of
the (Janadian expenses, on the basis of the general expenses, and the two opening
pages explain the xnethod in which it was donc. If was in compliance with a request
specially made by Senator Béique for that.

By, Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Re.serve:
Q. It is correct ?-A. It is correct.

B2 , the Hon. Mr'. McSweeney :
Q. It is thc saine as you submittcd July 28, 1898 ?-A. This covers fthc foreigu

business-that is business outside of the United States and Canada, which, the otiier
figures did flot cover.

By Mr. Geofrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q. That i8 ail busiiness of the company ?-A. The entire business of the company.

By the Hon. Mr'. Wilson :
Q. You did not compare ail the items ?-A. Oh, no.
Q. Then only comp&ratively, you think it is correct ?-A. I compiled it in answer

to lion. Senator Beique's request. Exhibit 54 reads as follows

EXHIBIT No. 54.

In the Matter of the Determination of the Proper Share of Expenses Ch.argeable ta
the Ganadian Assessment Business.

The proper basis for determining the distribution of expenses is the amount of
insurance carried for an average of one year, that is, the mean amount of insurance
at risk.

On the first sheet herewith is given, for one year during which the company bas.
been in business in Canada, the total mean amount of insurance carricd by the com-
pany during the year, and aise the mean amount of assessment business in Canada
se carried. The exhibit is divided into two periods, the first covering 1885 te 1894,
both inclusive, and the second 1895 te 1903, befli inclusive, flic first period being that
preceding the present management, and the second period that of the present manage-
ment.

The second, thîrd and fourth pages give fthc facts4 flrst, for the first period natned;
second, for the second period named, and, third, for tlic total nineteen ycars, covering
total income, memb)ershîp and medical fees, total expenses, expenses lesa membership
and medical fees, and payxnents to members.
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Membership and medical fees (which after these fees cease to be distinctly
charged were covered by the first year's premiums) relate entirely to, the production
of new business, and vary xnaterially with such production. While ail other expenses
are properly distributable by the mean ainount of insurance carried, these expenses
are affected entirely by the amount of new business written, and since these fees are
iu practice expended in the country where they are received, they should be treated
separately, and for that reason these figures are presented in the manner indîcated.

Pages 5, 6 and 7 are a resumné of the figures presented on the three preceding
pages for each of the respective periods thero named. They show what proportion of
the total cxpenses over and above fees are properly chargeable to the assessment
business in Canada, and when to this amount is added the fees collected in Canada,
the balance is the proper proportion of expenses chargeable to the Canadian business.
From the total receipts in Canada is then deducted the amount paid Caiiadian mei-
bers and the amount invested for deposit with the government, and the balance is the
actual contribution to the expenses of the company by the Canadian members. It
will be seen that during the period from 1885 to 1894 the actual expenses are $57,091
in excess of the proportional expenses. For the years 1895 to 1903 the actual expenses
were $56,561 les& than the proportional Canadian expenses.

As showing the effect of this inethod of separating fees, it is to be noted that
had the distribution been made on the gross expenses, without separation, the amount
chargeable for the whole terni, 1885 to 1903, would have been $1,852,903, as against
$1,792,229, which is the proper proportion, $1,U35,668, which has been charged. These
resuits arise from the fact that during the first period the proportion of new business
in Canada was greater than the proportion of new business generally done. During
the second period, however, it was less, so that by the method of adjustment adopted
equity is insured. with due regard ta the actual amount of new business written.

MEAN INSITRANCF. IN FORCE .% CNANADA.

Year.

1885.............................. .. .
1886.. . . . . . . .. ... . . . . . . . . - -
1887 .. . . . ... . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . .
1888.............. .. ....... -............ .
:1889 ...... .................................
1890.............. ................... ... -...
1891 ........................ ................
1892 ........... ...........................
1893...... ....... ..... ............ ..... ..
1894.. ....................... ............

In Company.

104,403,000
136,765,000
153,365,000
162,728,000
175,131,000
189,181,000
206,106,000
225,815,000
249,514,000
277,987,000

Totals........ ....... ............ 1,880M,995,000

1895 ............... ............... .....
1896................. ........................
1897................ ................
1898.. .. ý... .......... ... -.......... ... ..
1899............ .............. ....... ...
1900... ......................................
1901 . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
1902 . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . .
1903 . . ... . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

301,013,000
316,843,000
313,297,000
285,368,000
221,442,000
181,491,000
165,72q,000
152,412,000
12r),921,000

Totals............... .......... 2,063,516,000

Grand total...................... 3,944,511,000

Mean
Insurance in

force Per Cent.
in Canada.

(Assessment).

7,036,000
8,348,000
9,408,000

12,1 42,00M
13,8C3,000
15,203,000
17,264,000
2013W0,000

117,655,000

22,457,000
29,080,000
34,423,000
31,5r28,000
26,624,000
19,572,000
12,278,000
8,977,000
8,812,000)

193,251,000

310,906,(00

~0514459
*054422
0578143
060547
~0641819
066904

~0673250
~0691915
07.31688

0746048

1104819

107M41
-0740848
'0588996
0660W,6

-09M613

07i88199
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Years 1885 to 1894, both inclusive.

United States. Canada. Foreign. Total.

Total income ............. ............ 28,861,261 31,764,436 $ 2,117,550 332,743,247
Membership and medical fees .. -..... ..... 2,255,440 267,5M0 316,800l 2,839,770
Total expenses ..... .... -......... .......... 7,417,630 491,223 1,080,624 8,989,477
Expenses less meinbership and medical fees 5,162,190 223,693 76,824 6,149,707
Payments to members .............. ....... 18,289,690 941,811 731,312 19,962,813

Years 1895 to 1903, both inclusive, (Canada).

-United States. 1Assessinent. Leg. Res. Foreign. Total.

Total income......... .......... 3 42,691,038 $3,268,082 8 384,667 $36,250,871 352,594,6M8
Menibership fees and first year's

premlumsn8. ....... ..... .. ....... 3,195,624 196,894 59,100 475,000 3,926,618
Total expenses .....-...... .. ....... 12,136,469 508,642 67,438 1,806,004 14,518,553
Expenses less fees ... ................ 8,940,845 311,748 8,33m 1,331,004 10,.591,935
Payments t.o members .... .......... 29,158,306 2,118,218 186,032 15,696,682 35,159,238

Years 1885 to 1903, both inclusive, (Canada).

Total icone .................... $8 71,552,299 35,032,518 $ 384,667 $8,368,421 $ 85,337,905
Mernberhip fees, medical fês, c 5,451,064 464,424 59,100 791,800 6,766,W8
Total expenaes ... ................. 19,554,099 999,86 67,438 2,986,628 23,508,030
Expenses, lesa fees ..... ........... 14,103,035 535,441 8,33 2,094,828 16,741,642
PayrnentB to members ............. 47,447,996 3,060,029 186,032 4,427,994 55,122,051

Years 1885 to 1894.

Mean ainount at risk........ ................. .. .............. ......... ....... 1,880,995,000
Canadian assesernent business-

Mean arnotnt %t risk ..... ............ ................. ..... ..... ....... 117,65500
Percentage............ ................................... ..................... 6,255

Total exp.'nses, les fees....................................... ........... 6149,707
6,255 per cent equal 3384,664.
By annual percentages............ ........ . ................... 390,428
Fees (Canadian) ................ ........... ...... .............. 267,530

Proportionate Canadian expenses .................. ................. 657,958
Total receitsn Canada........................ ......
Paid Osudian ineinhere ................................. A,6,3
Deposite in Canada.............................. ...... 107:576

- 1,049,387

Actual expenses ............. ............ ... ..... .. ..................... 715,049

Excess... . .......... ........ .. .......... .. ................... 57,091
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Years 1895 to 1903.

Mean ainount at risk ... .... ...........
Canadian aasefflment busineRss

Mean amount at risk........ ........... ........ ...
Percentage .-...... ........ .......... .. ... ..........

Total expenses, less fees. ............... ..... .............
9 -365 per cent equal M91,935.
By annual percentages ............... ....
Fees (Canadian).... ...... ..........................

Ppotýionate Canan expensem .................. ..........

D o i t .in an d ........ . .. . ............... 1 ), 4

Actual expenses ........... ................. ...........

Deficit....................................

937,377
196,8%4

3,268,082

2,247,463

2,063,516,000

193,251,000
9,365

10,591,935

1,134,271

1,020,619

113.652

Years 1885 ta 1903.

Mean alnount at risk .......... .. ...... .. ......... ....... .......... 3,944,511,000
Canadian assessinent business-

Mean amount at risk ............................... ........ ...... ........ 310,906,000
Percentage. ... ...... ,..................... ............. ................ 7,882

Total expenses, less fees .... .... .... ........... ... ......................... 16,741,642
7'882 per cent equal $1,319,576.
Ey annual peentages,.... ................ ............... ,327,905
Ff-,s (Canadian)................... .... ................. 464,424

Proportionate Canadian expenses..... ............. ........... ............... 1,792,229
Total reo*i L in Canada......................... ... ......... 5,082, t18
Paid Ca nnmembers .................... ... .... $s 3,060,029
Deposit in Canada,... .............................. 2n68 21

3,296,850

Actual expenses................................ .............. ........ ....... 1,735,664

Deficit ...... ........ ..... ..... ................... 56,561

Q.Do Youi Say the figures there are quite correct and true ?-A. No answer.

By the Hon. M1r. Lougheed:

Q.Did you verify them i-A. I do flot mean ta testify that 1 verifled figure by
figure, but I verîied so as fo Satisfy my8eif that they were correct.

Q. I *suppose the insurance reports flled with the department are mnade up in the
saY Way ?-A. Just in the saine way.

By Mr. Geoffr'ion, Counsel for the Mittiwl Reserve

Q. Statement No. 38 has been filed by Mri. Patterson, and evidence given on it.
'Increase in expenses other than agents' commissions, which shows from 1896 to 1903,
an increase in legal expenses, and a subsequent decrease-an inerease for some time,
and a subsequent decrease in travelling expenses, and an increase ini actuarial expenses,
and an increase in office expenses, and a decrease in salaries of officers and office em-
ployees. HUave you any remark to make concerning this statement ?-A. I have
already explained the increaFe in actuarial expenses. The increase in legal expenses
is largely due to the ifficulties attending the reapportionnment, the increase of the
assets brought about, as I think it has been already testifled ta.

ELDRIDGU
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Q.Tho8e are expenses that would naturaliy increase with iucreasing difficul-ties
of the association ?-A. Yes. Wliat I said in regard to the legal expenses was, that
it was due to increase of suits caused by the re-apportioninent.

Q. Speakiug generally, what would be the general cause of it ?-A. To a very
large degree, the increase in those expenses, is due to the difficulties the company lias
liad to overcome during this period, arising in a very large degree out of the manuer
ini whicli business was done in the early part of the company, the creation of the
impression that the rates on which business was doue were level rates that would neyer
be increased, and the creation of a condition of mind among the policy-holders, which,
in order to carry forward the company and discliarge the contract, had to be disposed
of by the increasing of the rates.

Q. Two statements have been filed, exhibits 40 and 41, by Mr. Patterson, the firet
statement showing the cost of new business to the association in certain stated years,
and the second the cost of new business in, I believe, the saine years, to other coin-
panies. Have you any remark to make concerniug those statements ?-A. I have to
say simply, that that is Mr. iPatterson's opinion as to the distribution of expenses
between oid and new business. As far as the figures are concerned, I bave checked
tliem. up oniy as far as regards the Mutual iReserve for the year 1901, and those fiures
are correct ; but wbat I was speaking of was bis deciaration that those were the cost
of new business. They were not returned by the company as the cost of new business
at al, and tliey are not ail of thein figures or amounts that are caused by the doing
of new business. For instance, the salaries of officers and employees, one-hlf is
charged to uew business. The fact is that a good deal more than one-half is necessary,
because of the oid business of the company, and so I niight go through it. The dis-
tribution is simply lis expression of opinion as to what is the cost of new business,
and wbat is not; the cost of new business. H1e lias presented some figures for coin-
parison, picking ont tliree companies. One is the Aetua Life, whicli does two brancbes
of business, and the oflicers are the saine iu the life and accident branches. snd lie lias
made the divisions in tbe saine way. Tbe second is the Equitable, and lie lias made
the divisions in the samne way. Why lie took that compauy I do not know, but 1 eall
attention to the fact-

By Mr. Coster, K.J., Counsel for the Committee
Q.He bas charged the whole of the expenses of the Aetna Iife ?-A. l'or tlie

purpose of comparison, the company that does two branches of business, wouId not be
as fair a comparison as one that confincd itself to the one brandi of business. I have
flot cliecked up the figures-the Equitable is the second one, and the Nortliwesteru
Mutual is the third. These three, I presume, were selected for some reason. I have
not cliecked up 1901 and 1903, because wlien I was at tbe departinent for the purpose,
those volumes were not at the departinent. I have checked 1902, and I cali attention
to the fact that the charge for the business of the Equitable in 1902, althougli the
Equîitable paid $988,000 in salaries to officers and employees, no portion qf that is
carried into tbe cost of new business. On the other baud, you take the Korthwestern,
and the entire salaries are carried in. Take the Northwestern Mutual, and lie lias
carried in the entire amount of salaries of officers and office employees, and lie bas
,charged nothing for printing and stationory. The others T bave not been able to
cheek. I did not regard it as very important; because it is simply an opinion, as to
what partieular expenses belong to new business, and what do not. There is no sucli
division made by the department.

BV Mr. Geoffrion, (Jounsel for the Mutual Réserve:
Q.Wheu an insurance compauy is in difficulties, the cost of obtaining new busi-

ness does increase unavoidabiy i-A. Yes, and any arbitrary for ascertaining wbat
portion of certain expenses goes to new business, must certainly be inaccurate, unless
there is somne correspondeuce between the amount of new business written to the
amount of oid business in force.
ELDRIDGEI
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Q.Have you any statement to make, concerning the payment of the $200,00O
to lMr. Merriamn, in connection with the transfer of the Great Northwestern business?~
-A. Simply that the testimony I formerly gave, may have left an impression on the
minds of the Coimnittee that the money went to Mr'. :Merriam. Mr. Merriam had a

contract under which lie was entitled to certain percentages foi, bringing to the
company reinsured business, if lie brougl•'t any the company would accept.

Q. 11e did bring the Northwestern ?-

By Mr. CJoster, K.O., (Jounse.l for the (Jommittee

Q.Ts that contract here ?-A. it is nop.

Mlr. COSTER.-lI subinit it should be produced, if you are going into it

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed :
Q.Was the contract between Mr. Merriam and your company ?-A. Yes. 1

anewered the question of the counsel that this was paid to Mr. Merriam or under

Mr'. lMerriam's contract. 1 amrn ft going into the terms of the contract, but 1 want to

explain what became of the money, and not leave the impression that it did go to IMr.

Mserriam. After the reinsurance took place, it was found that the assets left with

the Northwestemn were flot sufficient to meet the outstanding accrued liabilities.

We assumed ail accrued liabilities, and Merriam surrendered his contract, and it was

commuted and paid into the receiver of the company for the benefit of the creditors.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Courêsel for the Mutnual Re8erve:

Q.Was this sum of money charged to any of the members of the association

outside of the Northwestern i-A. lIt came entirely out of the Northwestern.

Mr. COS'TER.-I observe by thc report of our proceedillgs that Exhibit No. 12 lias
not heen printed. lIt miglit go in. lIt rends as follows

RETURN TO CANADA.

1. The total amount of income during the year in Canada and in the United
States, separately.

Year.
Assessment
Business

xi Canada.

1885............. .... .. ......... ... ......... ...... %UL
1886 ......... ...-...... ..... ................ ..... .... ........ 10(),213
1887 ... ............................................ 129,213

18M ... .... ... ... .... .. ....- . .- .... ... ... 144,469
1889 ........ ............................. ......... ..... 161,877
1890 ..... ............................... ... ...... ... ... 18&5, 275
1891........................ ......... .......... ........... 190,081
1892. .......... .... ............ ............. ... ...... ...... 220,073
1893..... .................. ............. ..... ........ . .... 272,235
1894. ............... ... .......................... .......... 318,384
1895..................... ............ .... ................ ... 327,298
1896.... ........ ..- »............................ .... ... 419,616
1897............... ....................................... ..... ... 525,869
1898.............. ................................ .......... 463,891
1899........ .......... ............. ..... ...... ............... 412,522
190 . -.oo... ................ .... ..... .............. 352,963
1901 ................... ... ...................... 282,257
1902............. ......... .............. .......... ........ 275,874
1903....................... .................................... 207,792

Totals .. .ý......-....... ................ 5,032,518

Ail Business
xin United

States.

1,669,548
2,036,420
2,341,758
2,M4,166
2,873,401
3,027,206
3,197,979
3,466,882
3,662,341
4,037,260
4,567,372
4,782,114
4ý812,336
4,973,491
4,704,180
5,424,889
5,803,732
3,946,001
3,676,923

71,552,299
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LEGAL RESERVE BUSINESS IN CANADA.
1899 ..... ...... .. .......... ..... .........
1901.1901,.................... ..........1902 ........................
1903 .............

Total

8 14,139
95,461
87,270

102,135
85,662

8384,667

RETURN TO CANADA.

2. The total amount paid during the year to policy-holders in Canada and in theUnited States, separately.

Assesstment Percentage AI] BusinessYear. Business of in United
in Canada. Gross Incorne. States.

s s1885. 1........ .1,044 30-54 825,8651886 . . ............... 37,800 37·72 1,111,8061887 ......................... 62,650 48-49 1,316,031188 ............................................ 73,200 50-67 1,504,4291889 ........................................ 82,600 51'02 1,736,588
1891 ............... »..................... 105,597 56-99 2,003,334- 111,800 58-82 2,112,1141892. . .. .................................. .133,650 60-73 2,444,126
1894 ................................ 1........ 160,905 59*11 55,507
1895 - 160,595 50-44 2,681,890
1896.......... ........... .......... 163,7b3 50-04 3,557,494189 265,353 63 24 3,376,0221898 - 280,239 53'29 3,562,937
1899 300,693 64-82 3,435,611189 ................... 304,251 73 75 3,101,7041900.. .................... 2...... ...... 235,101 66»61 3,062,1921901 ... ........................ 277,434 98-29 3,800,8531903 151,959 55·08 2,672,766139,395 67'08 2,588,727

Totals ....................... 3,060,029 60-81 47,477,996

LEGAL RESERVE BUSINESS IN CANADA.
1899 ..

1901 -.................................. ............... 23,306
1902 .......... ..................................... 55,709
1903 ... .......... ..... ................ .................. 51,554

55,463
Total.- ................................... 186,032

ELDRIDGE



THE MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION 491

APPENDIX No. 1

RETURN T CANADA.

3. The total amount paid out during the year for general or other expenses in

Canada and in the United States ; giving separately amount of salaries paid to officers

and home offices employees.

Year.
Assessment

Business
in Canada.

1885. ....... .................. ...... ...
1886... ................................
1887................. .... ............ ........

189......... ............................
1893. -............ . -.................
1891. .................................
1892...... .. ....... ................ .......
1893. .. -. ............. ...............
1894...... ... ............................

189. . ......................
189. .. .............. ........
189. . ........ ........................
1898. -. . .. . .. . .. . .

1901. .. . . . . .. . . . ... . -
1902. .................................
1903. .. .. .. .. .. . ... . -

T otals .... ... .. .....

17,289
35,694
33,803
39,058
39,754
48,867
56,108
65,083
75,372
80,195
84,566
83,524
86,362
83,231
71,324
38,414
30,697
18,051
12,473

9w,865

Percentage All Business
of in

Gross Income. United States.

4057 531,328
35-62 602,518
26-86 579,597
27-04 615,870
24-56 666,248
26'38 683,244
29.52 720,233
29-57 826,9f8
27-69 963,582
25-19 1,228,092
25 84 1,401,078
19-90 1,285,380
16-41 1,522,643
17-94 1,508,112
17'29 1,114,405
10-88 1,088,435
10-88 1,531,638
6,b4 1,455,701
6-00 1,229,077

19-87 19,554,099

LEGAL RESERVE.

1899..... .... .... ..... .... .... ............. .... ..... . 1,948

1900..... .................... ...........----- · · · ·.. 13,662

1901........................ .............. ... .... ...... 21,692
1902.......... .............................. ....... ... 15,243

1903........... . ............. . ................. . 14,893

Total»............. ........ ...... --- ........ .. .66,438

ELDRIDGE
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SALARIES HOME OFFICE.

Ineluded in Expenses.

Year. Officers. Employees.

* cts. $ ts.
1885 ..... .............................. .... 41,045 00 26,3M8 36
1887.................... ........ .......... ............. ...., ... 39,610 00 36,.151721888.......... ............................ .......... ........ 50,235 00 32,280 78
1889.»ý.......................... .......... .............. 39,025 00 41,417 2
1890............ ................................ 41,150 00 43,465 00

.......... 45,240 00 49,277 971891 ............. ....................... ............. ........... 58,120 00 56,637 46
1893.. ý.......... ....... ........... ........................... 72,767 15 68,506 67
1894 ...... ...... ............................. 79,636 20 88,542 40
1895 .... .. .... .............. ............................... 14129655 0 2,19:40

189 - .. . ... ...- ... ... .. ... . . .. .. ... - - :* ".*-*»,l 104,791 68 247,505 20
189. .... . . .. ..» ....... ý .. 116,485 47 250,890 56189 . < .. ... ... . . ...... .. . .... . .. 92,918 00 243,829 591899 . .. . . .. . . . .. . . .. .. . . . .. ... .. . 70,889 80 215,736 64

1i9001... ............... ............................ ..... 81,454 02 212,222 61
1902 ....... ........................ ... ................. 99,379 72 208,442 21
1903 ............ . .. . 97,714 72 188,012 72

....... 85,832 19 200,184 15
Totals................................ .. 1,500,045 95 2,634,907 79

RETURN TO CA2NADA.

4. The amount appearing at the credit of the reserve fund at the end of the
year:

185. ........................... ........... ........ s 85Wo02
1887 ........... ..... ........ ....... .............. ............ 933,510
1888 ..... ........ .............................. ,8,9
1889 ... ... ................................ 1,886,418
1890 ....................................... 2,450
1891............ ................................ .............. ,10,561

1894 ........ .......... ..... ..... ............. .............. 3,87,7961895... .. ý............... ........ ...................... .. 3,45,252
1894.6 . . . . .. . . . .9
1897 .......... ............................. 3,507,826

1898....................................... ....... 3,30,216
1899............ ......... .. ........ ......................... 3,07,926
190................ ......................... ............... ,392,116
191..... ...... ............ ............... ....... ........... 3,075,956

1902 ......... . !,017,527
1902 ..................... 2,060,584

.. . ... .. - . ...... 2,031,532

ELDRIDGE
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RETURN TO CANADA.

5. The amount on deposit with the Canadian Government at the end of the year:-

End of

1885 . ... ........ ..... .....-.. ....... .. . ........
1886............. ........................................
1887.............. .............. ............... ...
1888..... .... ... .... .... ............. .. ........
1889................................................
1890........... .. ............ ..... ... ...........
1891.. ..............................................
1892............. ....................... ... ......
1893... . . .. ... .. ....... ..... ....... ....... .. .. ..
1894...... .. ..................... ... ....... ...... ...
1895.. . . ............... . .......... .... .. ... ....
1896..... ...... ................. . .. ................
1897.. .......... .... ........... . . ........ .........
1898.................................... ........ .
1899......... .............. ......................
1900.. .... ..... ... .. .. ................
1901.. ........ ............ ......... ............ ,.
1902....... .... ... .... ... .. ..........................
1903...... .................... ...... .......... .....

LEGAL RESERVE.

End of

1900...... ........ ........ ............
1901............. ....... .... ..............
1902 ........... .................... .. ...
1903. ..... ............................. .

Par vahw.

25,962 26,607
25,962 26,607
25,962 26,607
25,962 26,607

Cost.

51,375
51,375
51,375
51,375
55,251

107,576
107,576
107,576
107,576
107,576
107,576
107,576
142,576
262,783
262,783
236,821
236,821

,236,821
236,821

Par value.

50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
50.000

103,533
103,533
103,533
103,533
103,533
103,533
103,533
138,533
265,067
265,067
238,460
238,460
238,460
238,460

50,000
50,000
50,000
50,00050,000

100,867
100,867
100,867
100,867
100,867
100,867100,867

135,857
251,295
253,045
228,045
228,045
228,045
218,938

Cost.
Accepted

value.

25,000
25,000
25,000
23,984

10,000
15,000
15,000

ELDRIDGE



494 SELECT COMMITTRE O-V THE POSITION 0F

4 EDWARO VII., A. 1904

RETURN TO CANADA.

6. The total amount of assets of the company at the end of the year, and what
portion thereof in Canada. Distinguishing, as far as possible, in ail the above,
between policies issued previous to and subsequent to August 11, 1899, and between
the business resulting from policies issued under the assessment plan and level prexn-

TOTAL. CANADA.

Aset Policy.holders Assets Policy-holders
ohrthan preinîum other obligations ni

jpolicy.holders adgitlon ln Policy.holdersadtint
prnnrn amount i n reum ainount in

obligations. Çoî.m» 1. olgtio Column 1.

1885 - .. . . . . . . . - . . . . . .

1887 . .. . . .-. . . . . .
1888 ... .. . . . . ... . .- .
1889 . . . . . . . .. .. .

1891................ -
18 92.. .......... ..
1893 .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . .
1894 . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .

1 ..... . .. 6.. . . ...
1897 . . - . . .. . .. . .
189 ... .,.. .. 8....- .

1 8...... 9 9 .. .
19 00. -... ........ .
1901 .. . . . . .. . . . .. . ..
19 02. ...... >.... . ... .
191 ..........

590,623
915,113

1,408,370
1,894,840
2,436,68<>
2,847,597
3,276,853
3,524,M7
3,763,M2
3,989,882
3,660,655
3,818,346
3,543,735
.3,386,418
8,339,683
4,649,862
4,475,M01
4,908,58M
4,975,016

428,088
565,255
674,348
771,591
804,979
885,028
898,073
958,614

1,M48,713
1,106,M2
1,378,436
1,397,660
1, 136,993

713,472
592,655
562,811
8111M9
832,594
731,296

8
50,000
50,000i
50,000 1
50,000:
55,000

110,960
111,350
111,3w0
106,278
124,426
155,504
162,147
260,116

336,843
363,525
349,%*0
380,6w3
.398,678

47,586
49,074
52,059
58,735
,.62,791
70,648
83,241
91,599

109,146
139,231

80,158
77,926
35,537
32,975
26,720
20,764
44,480

Division of Canada assets between assessment and legal

Assessuient.

... .. .. .. .. ... .. 299,652 32,851
... .. .. . .. .. .. . ... .. .. . 67,841 20,452
.. .. .. ..- .. .. ... .. 244,408 16,703
.1.. . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. 241,308 8,607

... .. ... .. .. ...1 . ... . .. 244,076 27,074

reserve business:

Legal Reserve.

37,191 2,686
95,684 12,523

105,552 10,017
139,295 1.2,157
154,600 17,406

There is also something left out which was read froi Mr. Payne's report, which
I read, and which I wish to appear in the notes of evidence. The document ils Exhibit
6, and the portions I read are as follows :

IEXHIBIT No. -

1 cali your attention to accounts No. '3V and '4'. The transactions reprP,ý
sented by acconnt No. ' 3' are those provided for in contracts ' 3' '4' and ' 5.' Ac-
count 'No. 4' is connected with contracts '1,' '2,' '3V and '4.' Contract 'No. 5'
beîng a caneellation of prior contracte.
ELDRIDGE
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Contract 'No. 3,' among other things, stipulated for the payment each week of
the sum stated therein, by the association to the party of the second part, said moneys
to be used by himi as advances to sub-agents in the procurement of new business. Ha
was to be charged with the moneys thus given him. wflicb were to bie deposited in hank
weekly to his credit as general manager, and subject to bis cheque, and he was to
account to the association in detail, with proper vouchers, as ta the dis-
position lie may have made of the sum thus placed at bis dfisposai,
in distributing the samne among sub-agents in the nature of advances to
them. This contract was dated January 7, 1897, and was to continue for the pt±riod
of two yeare if satisfactory to te association. It was terrninated on January 222
following hy the execution of contract 'No. 4.' This latter was annulled and supple-
mented by -No. 5,' dated Jnily 93, 1898. The ledger account, containing the record of
the advances mentioned, was opened January 7, 1897, the last entry having beau made
August 5, 1898, closing the account as of July 27, 1898, by a credit of commuted com-
missions. The last debit to the account, in the nature of an advance, was July 27,
1898. From the openiug of this aceount to the date of the last antry, or a pariod of
aigliteen months, the sum of $360,915.07 had beau invested for the purpose of pro-
during new business. Tha amnount thus invastad, it wi.11 ha seen, being the nature
of sums advanced or loaned to agents, could only ha reimbursed to the association by
agents aarning commissions to the extant of the monay so loanad or by returning the
samne in cash. Otherwise the boans would become debît balance due from agents. 0f
the $360,915.07 advanced during the period stated, $244,954.07 had become debit
balances, on July 1 last and stood at that figure on that date. The following coin-
parison will indicata the significance of this resuit.

Frors the commencement of business by the association in 1881 down ta the ex-
ecution of the contract of Jannary 7, 1897, or for soute sixtean yaars, the total amouint
of agents' balanccs created was $529,459.93. For the ciglitcon inonths during which
the cuutracts for which 1 speak of ran, tae agents' debit balances amounted to $244,-
954.07. The value of thase balances owing the association is extrcmely uneertain. 0f
a total of $744,414 of these items accruing sinc its organization it badi ua rked off ta
the end of 1897, $419,235.24, or over 50 par cent of the total.

A reference to 'Account No. 4,' indicates that the pontract of January 7, 1897,
contemplated tbe payment ta the general management of a commission ta him on new
business in addition ta tbe commissions providad for in the contraet ta ha paid by birs
ta sub-agents, and the account shows this commission ta bave bean sa allowed him ta
the extant of $93,810.78, notwithstanding the fact that at the samne time bis sub-agents
were becoming indebted ta the association for moneys belonging ta it, and which they
ultimately failed ta remit. These unpaid balances of 1897 form the largar portion of
the $244,954.07 of agents' debit balances, to which attention bas beau called. The value
of these accounts could nbît ha reliably ascertained at the data of the last examination,
thcy having been sa recently created, but an axamiînation of tbam at tbis late day must
lead ta the conclusion already given in presenting this manner ta you, viz., tbat tbay
are of nominal value only.

The value of the business acquircd in 1897, ta wbichi year these business chie:fly
pertain, can best hae judged by the length of time this business continues lupon the as-
sociation's books. Its abilîty likewise ta raimburse itself wholly or in part for the
moneys advanced ta agents and not subsequantly earned by tbem. in commissions,
would depend upon tbe persistency of this busines~s. The insurance effected iu 1897
was iu the main writtan upon what is known as the 'Five-year combixiation option
policy'. The business then procured amountad ta $-30.700,000. On May 16 last but
$16,800,000 remained.

The, coinmission co3t af this binsiness on initial vaar's premiiins froin the time
these policies wera first written iu 1896. ta May 16, 1899. is as follows:

ELDRIDGE
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Initial year receipts, 'five-year combination' polieies. .$1,715,870 19
Initial year commissions, 'five-year combination' poli-

cies......................1,056,361 74

Initial year, balancee of receipta...........$659,508 45
0f which there are agents' debit balances of....321,472 44

Initial year net receipts on 'five-year' new
business..................33,036 01

I cali your attcntion to a seemingly vital point established, I think, as the out-
corne of the association's strennous attempt to secure new business in 1897. The sums
investcd in this direction were considerable. No effort appears to have been spared in
furnishiig its agency department with every available means by which to accomplish
resuits, as is evidenced by the liberality of its contracts with the general manager, yet
notwithstanding this, the business in force fell off from the lat of January, 1897, to
the close'of the present examination, to the following extent:

'I'he associations sworn statement to the Insurance Department for the year end-
ing Dcccmber 31, 1896, showed it to have 118,449 policies in force number 76,592, or a
fallirg off oi 41,857 since the beginning of 1897, wîth an accompanyiug loss of $130,-
970,000 of insurance since then, being a decrease of 35 per cent in number of policies,
and 40 per cent in amount of insurance in force.

TIhis depletion of membership and of insurance in force lias transpired notwith-
standing the fact that every aid lias been extended hy the association to its members
with a view of encouraging the continuance of their premium or assessment payments.

The Committee adjourncd.

OTTAWA, Tbursday, July 21, 1904.

Exarnination of George D. Eldridge continued.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Companyij
Q. The statement, Exhibit 34, lias been flled by Mr. iPatterson, referring to certain

circulars purporting to be from the iMutual iReserve and to the effect that there were
false representation in'thotse circulars. What rernarks have you to make as to that ?
-A. These are the circulars, marked 10a, 10b, 10c, 10d, 10e, 10f and 1Og. Exhibits
1ob and 10g are <luplicates.

By Mr. Costet Counsel for the Committee
Q. They are not duplicates ?-A. Exhibit 10a is a slip showing the condition and

general facts of the business at the close of 1899, and the discrepancy pointed out is
that the assets stated thercin are $621,464.75 more than the amount reported to the
New York Insurance Department. That is the amount of the lien notes that the
department required te be taken out of the statement to them, and the assets here are
the assets reported wherever their notes were included. The other exhibits, so f ar as
figures are concerned, relate to September, 1900, where the figures with which they
are compared are figurçs of December 31 of the same year. They are the statements
that were put out to the policy-holders immediately after the transaction With the
Northwestern and recorded with the aggregate assets of the business, &c., of the
Mutual iReserve, plus the same items as they stood upon the Northwestern books as of
the date of the reinsurance, and any discrepancies that appear faîl under that head,
ELDRIDE
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that they include the North western entire record and convey to the policy-holders that
information.

The business stated in force in this is $225,000,00, while the business in force at
the end of the year was $189,000,000, from which. the witness figure's out that the
business was overstated. The amount of $225,000,000 was in round numbers, the
amount of business in force of the Muth2al iReserve plus the business on the books of
the Northwestern at the time the reinsurance took place.

EXIIIBIT NO. 1OA.

The iMutual iReserve Pund Life Association, of New York, Frederick A. Burnham,
president.

The record for 1899 shows

Incoe..............................$581349496
Invested assets, December 31............3,461,230 22
Net surplus, December 31.............1,045,014 22
Total death dlaimis paid since organization, over 41,000,000 00
Paid-for insurance in force.............173,714,683 00

This association possesses more than $1.43 of assets for every dollar of liability.
Judge of strengtli fromi resuits.

EXIJBIT NO. 10B.

Facts concerning the lMutual Reserve Fund Life Association of New York.
The Mutual iReserve Fund Life Fund Association is the best, the greatest, and the

most successful life insurance company of its age in the United States.
Its annual inrome, in round numebrs, is six millions of dollars.
It returns to its, policy-holders and their beneficiaries, e-very year, a larger pro-

portion of the money they pay 'in for that purpose than auy uther company on earth.
In the nineteen years of its existence, it has returned to beneficiaries in this way

over forty-one millions of dollars.
It now pays in death dlaims, every year, approximately four millions of dollars.
Its invested aseets amount'to, three and one-half millions of dollars.
.Its surplus over every actuel and contingent liability is more than a million

dollars.

ITS STANDING AT HIOME.

In the state of New York, the home of the world's greatest insurauce companies,
there are twelve domestic old line companies, excluding the one industrial Company
and the 'Three Giants' the Mutuel Reserve stands in the front rank, with the lergest
annuel income, the lergest amount of business in force and the greetest annuel pay-
ments to the beneficiaries of its policy-holders.

In 1899 twenty-three old line compenies of other states reported to the Insurence
1)epertment of New York. Excluding one industriel Company, noue of these pay
annuelly as large an emount in death dlaims as does the IMitual IReserve.

This association not only returns more money to its policy-holders or their
dependents then any of these insurence companies, but only one of this large number
reported in 1899 more business and but three of the twenty-thrce a greater income
than the Mutuel iReserve.

In other words, of ail the powerful old hune companies of the country, but four
regular companies reported in 1899 a greater business, a greater sumn paid in death
claims, end only ±liree others heyond those first referred to rry.eived as large an income
as did this association.

ELDRIDGE
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iBy reason of the extent of its business, the amount of its income and the magni-
itude of the resuits accomplished for its members, with the premiums received, the
Mutual Reserve stands in the very front rank among the insurance companies of
-the world. No company during the corresponding period of its history lias ever done
Sucli a business as has the Mutual Reserve sinee its organization nineteen years ago.
It is the greatest insurance company of its age the world lias ever seen.

The Mutual Resorve issues liberal policies, with full reserve, in amounts from
one to flfty thousand dollars. Loan values. Cash values. Extended insurance.
Paid-up insurance. The association possesses $1.43 of invested assets to every dollai
-of liabulity. Remembier the facts!

EX IEIT No. 100.

OROWTH 0F THE MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION 0F NEW YORK.

Jan. 1, 1900. Sept. 15, 1900.
Annual income (at rate of) .. .... ... $ 5,800,000 $ 8,000,000
Invested assets. .............. ,500,000 16,000,000
?aid business in force..........173,000,000 225,000,000

Net surplus ovcr .. .... ......... 1,000,000
Death dlaims paid since organization..........43,000,000

One hundred thousand policy-holders.
From present growth judge of future progress.

EXI{IBIT NO. 10D.

THE WONDERFIUL RECORD 0F THE MUTUAL RERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIÂTION-UNEQUALLED IN
THE HISTORY 0F THE WORLD'S LIrE INSURANCE COMPANIES.

The Mutual Reserve Fund Life Association lias completed nineteen years of
active operation, and a comparison of the resuits accomplished during that period with
those reached by the other great life insurance companies of this country during the
corresponding period of their history shows that the Mutual Reserve has broken aIl
records and stands out as the great life insurance company of its age which the wo;rld
bas ever seen.

Insurance in~ Force.

The Mutual IReserve lias paid for insurance ini force amountîng to $225,000,000,
while the insurance in force at the end of the first nineteen years of exisience in
twenty-four of the leading life insurance companies of the country averaged but
$31,373,847. The Mutual iRescrve's business exceeds the average by over $194,000,-
000.

Premiums Incorne.

The Mutual Reserve possesses no capital stock; it is a purely a mutual life insur-
aune company, oonducted in the interests of the policy-holders, who alone control it and
who receive ail the benefits arising from the 'transaction of its business. From its
premium income is gathered the strength of every life insurance company, and the
great volume to which the business of such company as the New York Life, the Mutual
Life of New York, andl the Northwestern of Milwaukee lias attained and their present
strength bas arisen directly or indirectly frors their premium income.

The premium income of the Mutual Ileserve now amounts to, some eight million
dollars annually, while the premium income during the nineteenth years of the twenty-
four 111e companies just referred to averaged only $1,339,391. The income of the
Mutual Reserve exceeds the average by over six million dollars.
IDLI)RIDGE
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Payments to Polio y-holders.

A life insurance company exists primarily for the purpose of granting to its
policy-holders protection during lîfe and paying to their beneficiaries the face amount
of the insurance upon the happening of death. The usefulness of a life insurauce
eompany can best be judged by the resuits accomplished in the payment on death
claims.

During the first niineteen years of its history, the Mutual Reserve paid clainis
amounting to $40,637,967.46, while the death dlaim payments during the first nine-
teen years by the twenty-four prominenw lifeý eompanies already named averaged only
$4,M50,376. Muýual Reserve over the average more than $36,500,000.

Cost of Benefits Granted.

Cost is a necessary factor in conducting the business of life insurance, but it
will everywhere be admitted that the company which accomplished the greatest resuits
at the least cost, is the one which. is best for policy-holders. The Mutual iReserve
during the flrst nineteen years of its history transacted its business at a cost of but
$33.81 for each $100 paid in death dlaims, while the experience of eighteen prominent
companies in the United States shows an average expense of $54.48 to every $100
paid in death dlaims. The cost of every $100 paid in dlaims by the iMutual Reserve
was therefore over $20 less than the average of the other companies.

Death Claims Paid as Compared with Income.

As already stated, the life insurance company exists primarily for the purpose of
paying death dlaims. The company that pays the largcst amount in death dlaims in
comparison to its income, is the one who furnishes its policy-holders with their insur-
ance at the lowest possible cost and aceomplishes the most for them with Clic prcmiunls
paid to it. In nineteen years the gross income of the Mutixal Reserve has been $58,-
3140,93.92 of which sum it has paid back in dcath claiis, $40,637,967.46. The Mutuai
Reserve lias therefore used in payment of death daims about 70 per cent of its income,
whule the proportion of the income of twelve of the leading life insurance companies
of the country used for the payment of death dlaims during the first nineteen years
of their history was less than twenty-flve per cent.

MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION 0F NEW YORLK.

Its Record made in less than t'wenly years of active operations.

Ann-ual income, at rate of............. 8,000,000 00
Cash and invested assets..............16,000,000 00
Net surplus, over..................1,000,000 00
Paid insurance in force.............225,000,000 00
Death dlaims paid since organization.........43,000,000 00

One Hundred Thousand Policy-holders.

ENDORSEMENTS 0F THE MUTUAL RESERVE.

The excellent showing made, places the fact of solvency beyond question.
In economy the management has been in earnest, as the various annual state-

nxts verify. (See Report, Texas Insurance Department, 1898.)
The association posseses cash and invested assets of more than a million dollars

in excess of its every liability, contingent as well as actual.
The ail important question of solvency must be anSwered ini the affirmative. It

is due to, the association that its undoubted solveney should be unhesitatingly declared.
All new business issued is upon a sound and equitable basis.

EKLDRIDGEM
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The association bas flot to-day a single death claim due and unpaid, and, I find
that it pays promptly and ini full every honest dlaim.

The affairs of the association are in strong, honest, competent banda.
The present healthy condition of the association abundantly assures to it a suc-

cessful future under its present upriglit and capable management. I have no doubt
whatever of its ability to carry out ail its coutracts. (Sec Report, Nebraska Insur-
ance Department, August, 1900.)

The resuit of tJxe examination shows that the association is solvent and pays
full every death clai a that is a proper charge upon the mortuary £und contributed
by the members, and that in every case of settlement or compromise the character
of the dlaim bas beei sucli as to mnake it the duty of the management to proteet the
members againat an injust demand. (Report, New York Insurance Department,

EXIIIBIT No. 10 F.
Advance Issue.

THlE GUAIDIAN.

309 Broadway, New York City, New York.

GEORGE, DYRF ELDRIDGE, Editor.

WILLIAm TILLINGHAST ELDRIDGE, Business Manager,

ALFRED QUINOY COLE, Manager Boston Office,......31 Milk Street, Boston, Mass.

September 30, 1900.

THE GREATER MUTUÂL RESERVE.

The Mutual Reserre Fund Life was organized for the purpose of transacting the
business of life insurance, and the record that it bas made during less than twenty
years of existence shows that it bas transacted that business more abundantly than
ever did any other company in the same length of time.

Up to the date when the present management assumed control, the business was
transacted on the term plan of premium payment, a plan which gives the largest
nmount of insurance returnable for the time being on the amount of premium paid.
The present management has workcd. Btoadi]y and intellîgeutly toward level premium.
whole life insurance, which provides for the accumulation of the reserve, without
%which level premiums cannot be maintained through life.

Content with no half-way measures, it bas adopted the highest and most strin-
gent standard for the computation of premiums and reserves that the law recognizes
with the result that when the law was changed in Massachusetts, so as to compel ail
]ife insurance companies to comply with the same law-that is the legal reserve law-
the IMutual Reserve was able immediately to meet the rquirements, and to qualifý
with a substantial surplus.

This fact alone constitutes unimpeachable evidence of the far-reaching wisdom of
President Burnham's administration-a wisdom which doea not wait for an issue to
Le forced upon it before making preparations to meet it, but which, forcsceing the
trend of eventa and the demanda of the business, aids in shaping public opinion to
broad conservatism. No one force was more felt in the legialation had in Massa-
chusetts, which placed the business of the mutual companies under the general law
than that exerted by the Mutual Reserve.

lIn dealing with the business already on the books, IPresident Burnham's adminis-
tration bas had for its keynote adequacy and equity in rates. The great mass of that
business written before Fresident Burnham's election is on the ten-year renewable
terms basis-a form of insurance under which there are hundreda of millions of busi-
ELDIDGE
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ness in force in 'aid linc,' or legal reserve, companies. iRegarding the business, IMr.
D)avid Parks Fackler, the distinguished actuary, said in IJecember last:

'On examining the annual mortuary payments of the ten-year class, it was found
that they considerably e'xceed the net rates for ten-year termi insurance based on stan-
dard mortality tables.'

As to the resuits attained upon this business, the actuary of the association, in lis
report at the close of 1899, said:

'Considering this form. of policy contract as a ten-year renewal terni, this class
has met its own death losses, provided the full reserve which would have becn required
had it been soibiect to valuation as nid-lino or legal reservc insurance, and acculiiulated
a surplus in addition of $1,264,8125.09?'

In dealing with tbc carlier forin of business, the management, under the advice
cf competent and trained experts, placed it upon equitable and suffcient rates in ac-
cordance xvith the nature of the contract, as that eontract gave ample power for doing.
It was termi insurance, and the management reeognized its nature and the require-
monts of security under such a contract. Tt actod boldly and honestly in the interests
of the holders of this insurance, because it provided for the fulfilment of thoîr con-
tracts, an-d placod behind thein the sccurity necessary to that end.

At the saine turne, it offcred to oach of these members the opportunity frcely to
exehange the contract hoe held for any other contract issuod by the association. Presi-
dent llurnham had cast aside every apparent advantage in the st'ruggle for new busi-
ness due to low rates of premiurn, and had attested bis confidence in the ability of the
institution and its management to conipete with the best, by adopting for new busi-
ness the full rates charged by 'old-line' companies. le offered to ail momnbers the
opportunity to corne under the teris of the newest contracts, with their concomitant
advantages of cash and loan values and of extonded and paid-up insurance.

llavinig, however, placcd ail aid business uLpan iiht ta and cquitablc rates, it
was not necessary, as some other institutions have felt compelled to do, to drive these
members to a change. Un the contrary, [lie policy of the management has been to base
chnnges upon the intelligence anid buwiîess judgment of the members, and to allow
no exchange ta be made except wlbere, the member has had a full and clear statement
of the conditions and knows exactly what hie is doing. It is possible that, because of
this, excbangcs have been somewhat less rapidly made tban wvould otberwise bave been
the case, but it is certain that a superior degree of persistenco bas been and will 'be
secured, wbile almost the entire absence of complaints fromn exchanged members is
in striking contrast ta the dissatisfaction tbat has been created by the methods of saine
ather companies.

The Mutual iReserve did not move as early as some other companies in this matter
of exehange of forin of palicies, in part, becauàe it was relieved fromn the necessitv
ta do so by the policy of the management in exacting adequate rates of ail, and a]
-because tie business that called for earliest action bore so small a proportion ta i_~
entire business, the vast mass being, as bas been sbown above, upan a basis where tbe
compliance with the standard requirements of the aid-lino law was entirely impossible.
It was less than a year since exehange was offered, and less thon $30,000,000 of Lhe
business ta which the option of exehange was presented romains to-day unchanged.

Neither did the association adopt in its entirety the plan of any other company
in making exehanges. While the -lan-note plan for accumulating the reserve was
the principal method offered, it also extended other options, so that ail members had
a choice of inetliods and each was able to select such às met his individual needs.

In adopting the loan-note, the Mutual IReserve simply adopted a method which
lias been the general property of legal reserve insurance ever since the business was
established and a reserve required by law. The reserve is an obligation of the com-
pany, and it is an established principle of finance that no institution can loan on any
other security as unquestioned as its own obligations. ILoans on reserve and against
maturing insurance are always ca-existent with bife insurance.

ELDRIDGE
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At the samne time, in adopting this as the principal metbod of exchange, the
management in arranging the details drew £rom abroad practical business experience
and special knowledge of if e insurance. It avoided increases of liens by requiring
collection of interest in advance, as on the ordinary life insurance loan. It avoided
inequality in periodical payments by collecting interest with premium. instalments, SO
that the insurance is neyer exposed to the bazard of lapse which always arises iii the
face of a required payment greater than preceding or succeeding periodical payments.

The resuit of these and other practical features adopted in the excbange of poli-
cies has been an almost entire absence of lapse ameng the membership that bas
accepted the new contracts.

The permanence of extensive undertakings is net always measured accurately by
the rapidity of their accomplisliment. President Burnham bas had a vast institution
to bandie. During the littie more than five years of this management, the association
had collected $29,994,827 and bas paid to members $21,434,876. During the preceding
fourteen and a haif years of its existence,it has collected $32,535,790, and paid to
members $22,400,619. The yearly basis of collections in the last five and a half years
was $5,453,605 in the preceding term,$2,243,847; and that of payments to policy-
bolders $3,897,250 and $1,544,870, respectively.

But wise management, honest economy and strict business principles applied in
the conduct of the business tell in the end, and their result we read in the present
position of the Mutual Ileserve. The recent accession of business from the North-
western life-faken as it is upon a basis that amply protects the membership of eacb
company-speaks louder and with than could a thousand quibbles or the carpings of a
hundrcd crîtics.

When iMr. iMabie found that the response of bis members to bis, intelligent and
honest work for their protection was net, on the part of a minority, sucb as to
enable him to secure full equity and justice to tbose who, had stood by bim valiantly
in the work bpe was doing, the Mutiial Reserve preseflte<I itself as the natiiral and
proper protector of the entire business. Tbe confidence felt in tbe institution and its
management, both as to ability to proteet and its purpose to deal f airly, is proved by
the ease and swiftness with which this, tbe greatest transaction of tbe kind, has been
accomplished. The mass of individual members gatbered at the Chicago meeting
may be accepted as typical of tbe entire membership. To tbat meeting was read the
full contract; its items were stated in answer to numerous questions plainly and witli-
ont equivocation ; it was clearly stated that not a dollar of insurance would be
accepted save on the full rate and wibh f ull reserve, and thc adverse vote was onp flnd
only one. Seldom basconfidence that a retiring management was doing its best, and
that that best was the best, been more clearly expressed.

IPresident Mabie of tbe Nortbwestern Life joins forces with the Mutual -Reserve
under IPresident Burnham, as witb a eumpany large enough and strong enough to
engage bis unquestioned force, kuowledge and ability, and managed by men in wboni
hie lias full confidence and witb wbom bie can beartily co-operate, IPresident Barnbam
will bave no more loyal supporter tlian bis new lieutenant. iHis knowledge of if e
insurance in ahl its departmnents is broad enougb te make him a competent judge of
the work wbi1ch IPresident Burnham lias donc, of the perplexing cbaracter of the
problems lie bas had te deal witb, of tbe completeness of bis success. lHe knews tbat
the Mutual Reserve bas taken the business of tbe Northwestern Life on safe condi-
tions, equitable and just te tbe members of both companies. No one wlio knows C.
E. Mabie wiIl believe tbat lie comes te bis new position save witb tborougb confidence
in the future and witb tliorougb loyalty te tbe management of tbe association.

President Burnliam. is the bead of a company witli 100,000 members ; $225,O0O,O0
of insurance, $16,00,000 of interest-bearing resources and an annual income of
$8,000,000. Tbere are net bal a dozen cempanies that can sbow this business. The
Mutual Reserve ranks among tbe first, and it will be the bonest ambition of President
]3urnham and his lieutenants te make tbe institution in ail tbings wortby of its rank.
OLERIDGE
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This association no longer issues policies on the post-mortem assessment system,
but writes ail ifs contracts at level rates guaranteed by full 4 per cent reserve.

FACTS CONCERNING THE MUTUAL RESERVE FUND LIFE ASSOCIATION 0F NEW YORK.

The iMutual iReserve Fund Life Association is the besf, the greatest and the most
successful Life Insurance Company of its age in the United States.-

Its annual income, in round numbers, is ciglit millions of dollars.
If returns to its policy-holders and their beneficiaries every year a larger pro-

portion of the money they pay in for that purpose than any other company on eurth.
In the nineteen years of its existence if lias returned f0 beneficiairies in flua way

over forty-three millions of dollars.
It now pays in death dlaims -every year approximately four million of dollars.
Its învested assets amount to some sixteen millions of dollars.
Its surplus over every actual aud contingent liabilify is more thon a million

dollars.

Ils Standing al Home.

In the state of New York, the hiome~ of'the world's greafcst insurange companies,
there are twelve domestie old hune companies. Excluding the one industrial Company
and the 'three giants,' the Mutual iReserve stands in the front rank, with the largest
annual income, the largest amount of business in force and the greafest annual pay-
ments to the beneficiaries of ifs policy-holders.

In 1899 fwenty-thrce old line companies of oflier states reported to the Insurance
Departmenf of New York. Excluding one industrial company, ne of fliese pay
annualily as largo an amouif in dpnth clainis as doi tho Mluti nqv

This association not only returus more money to its policy-holders or their depend-
ents thon any of these twcnty-three companies, but two of tItis large inumber can
report more business in force and a greater income flan the Mutual Reserve.

lI other words, of aIl the powerful old line companies of the country, but four
regular companies reported in 1899 a greater busines in force than the Mutual.Reserve,
fhree a greater sumn paid in death dlaims, and only fwo others beyond those referred
to are receiving as large an income as this association.

By reason of the extent of its business, flic amount of its income and the mnagni-
tude of flic resuits accomplished for ifs members witli the premiums received, tlie
Mufual Reserve stands in fthe very front rank among tlic insurance companies of fthe
world. No company during the corresponding period of ifs history bas ever donc
sucli a business as bas the iMufual Reserve since ifs organization ninefeen years ago.
If is the greafest insurance Company of ifs age the world has ever seen.

The iMutual Reserve issues liberal policies, wifh full reserve, in amounts from
one f0 fiffy fliousand dollars. Loan values. Cash values. Exfended insurance.
Paid-up insurance. The association posseas $1.43 of invesfed assets fo every dollar
of liability. Remember the facfs s

Q. The figures in fliose circulars are correct ?-A. Correct from the si indpoinf
on which fhey were mnade.

Q. A stafement lias been filed by Mvr. Paterson giving flie proportion of commis-
sions to insurance in force; have you any remarks to make concerning fliaf Exhibit
42 ?-A. Exliibit 42 purports to show flie new business writfen and fhe commissions
paid agents f0 each thousand of new business ftrm 1890 to 1903, both inclusive. The
crificism. I wisli to make of tIat is, fliaf in compufing new business for fIe years, 1890
aud 1891, being included new business paid for, new business not faken, and revived
business. For thie years 1892 fo 1898, bofli inclusive, lie included in new business,
new business paid for and business not taken. In 1899 lie includeci new business
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paid for, new business not taken, change and increase, in 1900 and 1901 hie included
new business paid for, new business not taken, change and iincrease, and revived
business; and in 1902 and 1903 lie simply included, new business paid for, so that the
hasis of comparisoii is not the saine throughout. lHe lias taken from the sworn reports
and sometimes hie lias taken some figures, and sometimes left out those figures for
other years.

By Mr. Coster, K.O., Counsel for the Commit tee

Q. Wliat years did lie flot take it aecurately from the report ?-A. I did not
state that lie did not take it accurately from the report. Hie did flot take it on the
samne basis, not tlie samne items. Now there is a schedule of exhibits of policies in
1900, policies and certificates written, revived or changed during tlie calender year
$64,000,000. That includes revived, changed and flot taken business.

Q. It says so there, does it ?-A. It says so fliere.
Q. Where are the ones flot taken ?-A. It states in liere thle amount that weat

out of force during the year, $48,949,000, and it gives in there, those that went out of
force, policies terminated by lapse, and not taken during tlie year.

Q. liow mucli was flot taken ?-A. That does flot define that amount.
Q. What i.s tlie amount flot taken ?-A. It does flot show there the difference

between the amount flot taken and tlie terminated by lapse, but it does show tliat in
tliis item new business is included, revived and changes. When you corne to 1903,
tlic seliedule there is made up more in detail, the blank caling for more in detail,
and it shows, issucd during the yea.r, niew business $12,500,000, revived during tlie
year'$1,974,000. As i t included in most of tlie other the rcvived, f0 make a fair basis
of comparison the revived should have been included in the 1903, but lie excludes that.

Q. Look at the report yourself, and tell me from the report what that would be
-A. You cannot tell from the report wliat the revived would be, but the report shows
t'bat the revived was included in new business, and here with the knowledge of what
was revived, the statement before him in making up bis basis of comparison, lie
excludes fthe revived hcrc whilc tho report shows it was ineliided there, thuis making a
different basis of comparison.

By the lion. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. Wliat was the amount that went out of force in 1903 ?-A. $22,000,000. If
is flot a criticism of the accuracy of any of the figures taken on the basis of which
tliey were computed merely; it is dilterent computation for different years, and allow-
ance must be made therefore in any estimate of the accuracy of tlie ratios. In the
earlier years, 1890, for instance, the report does give the material fact, taking out the
flot taken, but notwithstanding that fact, and fliat tlie last years were based upon
it witi tlie net taken excluded. lie leaves the not taken in.

Q. How mucli is included in 1903 ?-A. Issue of new business was $12,500,000,
the revived of that is $1,900,000.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:

Q. Your own association, of course, keeps books ?-A. They do.
Q. Do they keep their vouchers and documents also ?-A. Tliey do.
Q. Ail these charges conoerning which there is coufliet in1 this evidence eau be

verified, ciii tliey not, by n examination of flie books and vouchiers of tlie associa-
tion ?-A. EveryLhing that relates to expenditures eau bc eertified from the books
and the vouchers of the association.

Q. lias the New York department examined into those charges ?-A. They have.
Q. A statement lias heen mnade that a sum of $1,OO00 was paid to Mr. Macdonald

for the purpose of stopping certain tlireatened lawsuits ; have you any statement to
make on that question ?-A. Iu 1897 tlie company reapportioned a portion of its
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business and called for rates of attained age on a certain portion of its niembership.
It caused, naturally, a great deal of dissatisfaction, and a good deal of contention in
the courts, and worked very much in many ways to the detriment and embarrassment
of the company. In 1898, while those troubles were pending, the second vice-president
came £rom England, and soon after his returu exhibited great dissatisfaction as to the
management, and it became known to us that he was engaged, with a certain ex-
employee of the company, and others, while stili he was drawing his salary and set-
ing as vice-president, in fomenting contention and suits against the company sud jts
management, and those centred about a man named Hoflecker and tbrough him or 'hi.,
brother lhc cmployed General Tracy. iMr. Hoffeeker lisd taken from the office, when
lie went away, copies of a good many papers that bad passed tbrough hîs hsnds, in bis
duties as an officer or employee of the company, snd there was a declaration made and
brouglit to us by the second vice-president at one time that there was a purpose to
move before the Attorney General for leave to begin a suit to remove the off.cers or
remove Mr. Burnham or myself-I think I was, included. That was regsrded only
as one of the incidents of the whole niatter. Attempts were beinçg made to get to-
gether the policy-bolders to, combine in large suits against thie company on account of
MIr. Burnbam and other matters, and the management feit that under the circum-
stances, witb the respportionment recently made, it was an extremely liazardous time
for the association and its interests. It took the advice of tlie best counsel, naturally,
tbat it could bave under the circumstances.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q.Who was tbat ?-A. Frank A. iLawrence, of Lawrence & Hughes. ihere

came to the company flnally a proposition througli our counsel, who stated tbst theý
position of General Tracy with reference to the matter was sucli that if the wliole
affair could be closcd up, and the expense6 paid. ho was not, dispose.d to go ainy riirtlier
in the matter, and that lloffecker and the otliers interested were willing to discontinue
and in thc sanie way restore the papers and stop Llheir attacks on thc association. The
management did not regard, and does not regard now, the fact tbat an application
was to bic made to tbe Attorney General for permission to begin a suit to remove the
oficers as the main point in this matter at all. Exactly such an application was made
at the instance of tbis sanie officer within twelve montbs thereafte, and hea.rd by
tlie Attorney General in the regular course; but tliey did regard the attack as a serious
one under those conditions, because of the large expenditure it was going to involve,
because of the long litigation and tlie trouble it would inake witb the policy-bolders,
and destruction of policies of insurance, and in view also of tbe fsct tbat it hsd slready
been decided at tlie annual meeting that tlie services of the second vice-president
would lie dropped, which would cause a further agitation, and lie took the advice of
our counsel in the matter, but did not rest satisfled with advice simply of counsel. I
consulted personally wbat I regarded as the liest practical insurance men in the city
of New York, and laid the entire matter before them in detail

iMr. COSTEa.-I do not want to stop this, but tbere was objection to a Iittle hear-
ssy evidence liefore, and tlie witness lias now been testifying as to, wliat was in the
minds of tlie association, whicb, I submit is a littie worse than hearsay evidence.

lion. Mr. WILSON -Çot only that, but lie is relating what reports were brouglit
in, and tliese reports are not before us.

Mir. COSTER, X.C.-Tbe Tracy charges were not allowed to go in. If the witness
is going to explain the witlidrawal of the Tracy charges, the charges tbemselves should
go in.

The CIIAIRMAN.-TIie Committee cannot put a value on the evidence until tbey
know wbst was in the charges.
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B1 , Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:

Q. Please continue your answer ?-A. As an officer and director of the company,
before acting in the manner of authorizing the payment, I not only took the advice of
counsel, but I also as stated, laid the entire matter before two of the most experienced,
practical. life insurance men iu the city of New York, with the advice on their part
that in their opinion, as practical insurance men, it was for the best interests of the
policy-holders to enter into the arrangement and make the payment, and that was the
advice of counsel and on that it was paid.

B11 the Chairman:

Q. Was it not a condition, wben these people made these objections against the
company-was it not one of the demands that the president should resign and tham
they would drop proceedings?-A. I neyer saw that objection.

Q. Did you not hear of it ?-A. What is the question ?
Q. Was there not a proposition made on behaîf of the policy-holders to allow the

charges to drop if IPresident Burnham. would retire at the following election ?-A. I
never heard of sucli a thing until it was sworn to in Borne proceedings in New York
a year or two afterwards, and bas been sworn to here, but I neyer heard of it at the
time.

Q. There is no doubt the proposition was made ?-A. They were to apply, as I
understand, to the Attorney General for permission to begin a suit for the removal
of the president, and I think, myseif. My impression is when it was finally filedt it
did not include, me, but I amn not positive as to that.

Mr. COSTER, K.C.-We have the actual documents here, why not let it go in?

Hon. Mr. ]3iîqu.-I think it is perfertly fair and within your rights to offer such

part of the document as is necessary.

Mr. COSTER, K.C.-I will offer the whole of it, and let the Committee direct what

portion of it shall go on the minutes.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Coun.sel for the Comnpany:
Q. 1 understood you to say this application which was brought that year was re-

newed about a year after t-A. An application was made, I think it was the very latter
part of 1899, to the Attorney General, for right to begin a suit to rernove the president
and myself possibly, but 1 think it only included the president at that time--without.
reference to the document 1 could not say.

Q. Was that in 1898 or 1899 ?-A. The application to the Attorney (jeneral was
made in 1899.

Q. Early in 1899 or in the fall of that year t-A. The latter part of 1899.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee:

Q.You are not speaking of the General Tracy matter now ?-A. No.

By the Chairman:
Q.1 know there was a movement in the fali of 1898 to have Mr. Burnbam re-

moved. You are speaking of another suit ?-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.As far as the proceedings through (xeneral Tracy are concernied, the proceed-
inga were prepared but were not presented to the Attorney General, were they ?-A. I
do flot know whether they were prepared or net. I neyer saw thcm.

B1, the Chairman:

Q. That was in 1898le-A. Yes, in 1898.
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Q. As 1 understand if, this firsf action taken against the company was on bel4alf

of certain policy-holders?-A. So was the second.

The CHÂImmAN. Thiese proceedings on behalf of the polit'y-holders were dropped

on two considerations principally. There may have been others, but the principal con-

siderations werc that iPresidenr, Burnham had given his promise to withdraw, and not

be electcd the following elcetion, and $15,000 was paid for expenses. That is what 1
have undersfood.

By Mr. Geoffrion, (Counsel for the' Company:

Q. iReferring to the rernarlis of the chairman, as far as you are concerned, you
know that the $15,000 payment was a condition of sfopping the proceedings rcferred
to, but you do nof know anything about a promise of Mr. Burnham f0 resign 1-A. I
neyer heard of that unfil if was allegcd in a subsequent suit.

Q. Comning f0 the second petLioui, you say it was about a year after 1-A. If wais

either the early part of 1898 or the bcginning of 1895 the petition was filed before the
Attorncy General to begin sucli a suit.

Q. That application was refused ?-A. Yes.
Q. And fthe decision of the Attorney G encrai appears in iPart 3 of the cvidence,

pages 64 and 65 ?-A. It docs.

Cross-examined by 1fr. Coster, K.C., oit behaif of the' Ciomittee:

Q. When your company reapportioned flie rates in 1895, what rate did youl charge
the fifteen-yeaY class i-A. The table was the same fable that had licen in use-

Q. Was if the rate at atfained age which you chargcd fhcm 1-A. The rate af flic
age dcfermined by adding f0 the original age one-haîf the number of ycars the party
bcd been in it îe coripariyl.

Q. You have alrcady statcd fliat affer 189J0 or 1893-if varies in your evidence-

t'ht' age when you sfopped putting new members in the fiffcen-ycar class ?-A. I do
not think I have testificd fhat we have stopped at any fime put ting ncw members in
the fiffecn-ycar class.

Q. if you did say s0 is if truc 1-A. We began flie ncw elass of fen-year miembers

in the middlc of 1890. IDuring the f wo succecding years, bofli systenis werc mLn, and

there was considerable business writfcn on ecd. There neyer was any formai with-

drawal of the flffeen-ycar policy, but flic number of contracf s îssucd under thaf form
diminished until, pracfically, if wcnf ouf of practice, so far as ncw business was con-
cemncd.

Q. You arc not adding any new lives fo flic fiftccn-ycar class -nowv?-A. Wc are

nof.
Q. Whcn do you say you stopped putting new members in ?-A. I do nof give

any date. Affcr 1893 there wcrc vcry fcw policies issucd on the fiffccn-ycar plan, and
probably from and affer thaf date mosfly thcy wcrc reduefions and changes fiat wcre

so issued.
Q. You would say 18992 now I A. No.
Q. Did you nof practically cease in 1890 1-A. No, f icre werc some fhirty odd mil-

lions issued affer 1890 in flic fifteen-ycar plan.
Q. I arn quofing from the report of flic Chicf Examiner of Insurance of flic Stafe

of New York, dat cd September 20, 1889, usually referrcd fo as Mr. Paync's report, at

flic boffom of page 17 and flic top of page 18, I find tlic following words : 'In lcvying

this call'-tflat is flic cail wien you first rcapporfioncd-'flic prcmiums of members

who became sucli froa flic commencement of business in 1881 f0 July, 1890, wcrc for

flic firsf time raised f0 affained age.' Is fIat stafement of flic examiner correct, that

fhey werc tIen raiscd f0 attaincd age ?-A. Thaf relates f0 caîl 96, and is correct.

Q. That is correct, fhey wcre for fhe first time raised f0 affaincd age ?-A. Yes.

Q.Were fhey afferwards reduccd I-A. They were nof.
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Q.They were kept at attained age ?-A. Yes.
Q.Now, is flot the natural premium, or the premium at age attained, sufficient

to carry ai classes?-A. It has been in some years, and in*some years it lias flot been.
Q. Should it flot be sufficient to carry ail classes ?-A. It should be, if the deatli

loss was flot at any time in excess of the tabulai,.
Q. That would be over 100 per cent of the American expcrience of mortality-is

that what you mean ?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, reading from the Bill H, page 3, line 13. 'The holder of any sucli assess-

ment policy shall have the riglit to continue bis said policy for the full amount there-
of as a yearly renewable term policy upon which the premiums shahl fot exceed the
net yearly natural premiums for the attained age of the insured, calculated upon the
basis of the mortality table and rate of interest aforesaid, with a loading of 5 per
cent for expenses.' You consider that that would be sufficient to carry ail classes,
did you flot i-A. I presume that wihl be sufficient to carry ail classes, including
new and old business.

Q. I also want to cali your attention to page 4 of Superintendent iPayne's report,
September 18, 1899, as foilows :-I then held that the bond statements issued in lieu
thereof '-that is, in lieu of bonds-' by their terms are flot a liability, is in my judg-
ment unquestionable. I reached this conclusion in view of the financial condition of
the association sliown by the report of the examiner of this d'-,partment, when it
appeared thiat on December 31, 1897, tbe members holding these bond statements were
indebted to the association somo $852,000. 1 rccognizcd the fact that the association held
a reserve £und of some $3,300,000. It was made apparent, liowever, by the examiner's
report tbat this reserve fund was created, flot by the excess payments of the persistent
members of the fiftecn-year class, but by the excess payments of those who had taken
insurance after the creation of the so-called fifteen-year ciass, holding these bond
statements.' You say that is correct, and that they had received. $852,000 more at that
time than they had contrîbuted ?-A. Yes, that the payments to the beneficiaries of

Ithat class liad been in excess of their contributions.
Q. Tliey had receivcd a largc amo-unt more than they had contiributcd ?-A. Yes.Q. On the same page, 4, of tbe superintendent's report, I find the following state-

ment :' The officers of tbe association now attempt to justify credits allowed the
persistent members holding bond statements on the ground that the increased rate
cbarged the flfteen-year class policy-holders, in the call of February 1, 1898, brouglit
in sufficient funds to make good the impairment referred to, and to leave a balance
to Lheir crediL bumclient Lu ieet the miaLuring bond statemetL obligaitionsb'-is that
correct ?-A. 1 neyer made sncb a dlaim.

Q. Is that statement of the Department of Insurance then false- or is it truech
A. 1 think it states a mistaken conclusion.

Q. It cannot be that; he states positively that the officers of tlie association-
would not that refer to you ?-A. If lie refers to me, I neyer made such a slatement.Q. You say that is flot correct, then ?-A. It is flot correct, in my estimation-
that is, if the language is to be interprcted that tlie eaul for February brouglit in
enough to make up that $800,000-

Q. No, flot tliat; the reason of the premium to the age attained, tlie natural
premium ?-A. Not to make good that $800,000.

Q. Then that is not correct ?-A. Not if tliat îs what lie intends to state.
Q. That is wliat lic does say. Is that statement of the superintendent correct or

flot ?-A. This is the report of Mr. IPayne, or the comments of Mr. Payne on it.Q. Is that statement by the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New
York correct ?-A. It is flot.

BV the Chaïrman :
Q. Did you ever notify the department that that statement was flot correct, in due

time ?-A. This portion of the report does flot appear until after our liearing, and the
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first we get of it is when it is in print and given to the public. The examiner's report

is served on us, a sworn document, and the hearing is given, and we appear before

the superintendent of that hearing. Subsequently this appears, but we do flot see it
in1 print.

Q. You must have seen that five or six years ago; did you protest to, the depart-

ment ?-A. We did, and made a public protest against it, issued by the board of

directors.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Commit tee

Q.At the age of, say 60, how would the rate at age attained compare with the

rate shown in the Ainerican experience table of mortality ?-A. About 141 per cent,

the gross mortuary.
Q. You say the mortuary xvas 40 per cent mnore t'han tbe Americau ezperience

of mortality ?-A. The assessment rate, iess the fixed dues, was. That rate includes

the provision for mortuary expenses as well as for death losses.
Q. What do the expenses amount to that you speak of ?-A. I think they-1

speak on general impression now-have averaged about 12ý per cent.
Q. According to the evidence which you have now given, the fifteen-year ciass

ought; to be paying the full expenses of carrying themseives, shouid they not ?-A.
They would if their death loss was not so heavy.

Q.Tell me wbat the natural premium would be at 95 ?-A. The assessment table
only goes ta 80.

Q. Give the natural premium at the last age you have ?-A. The natural premium
at age 80 is $213.71 per thousand, and that remains level throughout life afterwards'.

Q. According to that table, what are you collecting at age 80 ?-A. Over the
annuai dues, $9,13.71.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.And with the annual dues ?A. $1.1

By M1r. Coaster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q. At age 80 the Anierican experience of mortality the premium is $3.1iA
The correct preminni paid along at intervals is $144.47.

Q. I read to you a letter which purports to come from the son of a policy-holder
of the M~utual IReserve, his name being P. Gorman, and I ask you if the statements

therein contained are true or faise, and whicb statements are true and which are
faise l-A. I have no personal knowledge with regard to the facts stated iii bis letter

and cannot answer now.
Q. Were ail policy-hoiders in the same class treated alike ?-A. I know that prior

to eighteen hundred and-
Q. I want an answer, yes or no ?-A. Do you mean by treated alike, as to the

payments to be made ?
Q.As to the paymcnts, yes ?-A. PFrior to 1895, they were ail treated alike.
Q.After 1895 ?-A. In 1895 ail that were issued prior to January 1, 1890, were

reapportioned upon the assesament numbcr 81. At the next subsequent reapportion-

ment ail members of the fifteen ciass were raised to attained age, and having been con-

tinued at attained age of assessment ever since.
Q. Ever since ?-A. I beg pardon, I shouid not have quite said that. That rais-

ing to attained aýe was under dilTerent conditions. I think in 1897, they were raised

to attained age, and continued at their then attained age for about a year and a half,

and then raised to attained age, and changes made on each succeeding birthday with

ail members of the flfteen-year ciass.
Q. Would ail members taking out policies in 1885 and continuing to, the present

day, be treated alike ?-A. Yes, with relation to the table of rates.
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Q. The letter speaks of a cireular speaking of $793 of a reduetion; that is for
$2,000. Would ail poliey-holders have that circular ?-A. Ail poliey-holders whose
policies were issued iu 1885 were subjected to the assessrnt levied in 1901 under the
by-law that bas already been quoted here, but the amount of that assessment would
vary according to the age of the insure

Q. Would that circular be seut to ail the poli.ey-bolders ?-A. I presume you
mean the assessmeut uotice of 1901, that was sent to ail members of the flfteen-year
class, issued prior to October 1, 1902.

Q. Aud would $793 he the proper reduetion on $2,000 ?-A. That would de-
pend ou the age of the party.

Q.But you are unable to say, from looking at the rates eharged him what bis
age was -. Iarn.

Q. Is that because you have not your tables here I-A. I have not the tables that
were in use in 1885; aud as to the present table, the yeariy payment in any calendar
year rnigâit vary or would vary accordiug to the time in the year when the iusured
passed bis birthday, so that you would have to kuow that, iu order to determine £rom
the table the accuraey of the figures.

Q. With reference to what you call 'foreign deposits with the goveruneuts of the.
foreign countries,' do you speak of Canada as being a foreigu country ?-A. Iu the
relation of those deposits, yes.

Q. You cail it foreigu deposits ?-A. Yes.
Q. You neyer use those foreigu deposits for the paymeut of death lusses ?-A.

No, sir.
Q. As you know they have to stay there; unless the company becomes insolvent,

it would be pretty bard to get at them. ?-A. As I understand, if the eornpany fail to
pay a judgmeut on a dlaim against it, those deposits would become available for that
purpose, but otherwise they rernain there as a guarantee depoXsît of the business.

Q. With refereuce to the building in New York, did you inake up a statement of
the expenses of the building ? I tbink it is already in evidence. I only want to ask
you about it ?-A. I have filed bore an appraisement made by the New York Insurawiý
Departrnt.

Q. Exhibit 55 reads as follows.

HlOME OFFICE BUILDING, NEW YORK.
MUTIL IESERVE BUILDING.

cosT OF CONSTRUCTION, $528,022 (1896 REPORT).

Gross Rentai and Ex penses, inclucling Taxes.

Year. R'ent. Expenses. Balance.

$ ets. 8 ets. $ ets.
1896 ..... .......... ...... ........................ 144,673 94 131,662 58 13,011 36

189 .... .......... . -.. ..... ... .... ..... 147,=0 28 136,697 51 10,605 77
1898............................ ......... -..... 147,706 82 139,463 86 8,242 96
1899.... ... ............ ............. ........ 140,334 04 127,038 113 13,295 86
1900................... ..... ....... ....... .... 131,911 21 130,354 75 1,556 46
1901.--............. ... -.............. .. ........... 128,767 72 135,059 97 6,292 25
1902........................ ...... ........ ..... 139,246 70 125,317 44 13,929 26
1903........................... ........... ..... 142,440 73 120,371 80 22,068 93

Total................ ....... 1,22,36 44 105960 76,419 35

The $1,122,385.44 includes the $401,400 reut paid for borne office rent by the
Mutual Reserve, being $50,400 per year, except 1896 and 1897, the amount for each of
these two years beiug $49,500.
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The net profit is 1*83 per cent on the $528,022 invested in the building, and when
the lease expires the $528,022 will be forfeited to the WeId estate.

The iMutual IReserve building is included in the admitted assets of the IMutual
Reserve Fund Life isurance Company and valued at $490,121.72. (New York Re-
port, IDeceinher, 1903.)

In the Massachusetts Report, 1902, last one issued at present date, the Mutual IRe-
serve building is valued at $483,600.50, but $274,150.42 is classed under assets not ad-
rnitted and listed 'depreciation in value of leasehold. $274,150.42,' thus making the
value of the Mutual IReserve building only $209,510.08, as an asset.

According to this statement, the net profit on the building, as shown by the
swomn report subxnitted to thie Insurance Department, is 1*83 per cent on the $528,022,
and as you know, I suppose, when the lease expires, all the iinprovemnents fail to, the
owner of the building, do they not ?-A. They do.

Q. Would you consider 1*83 per cent a fair interest to receive for money ?-A. I
should not consider it a fair intercst to rcccivc for money. I have not testified. that
that is correct.

Q. Can you see anything wrong with this statement, Exhibit 55. You can verify
that by the reports l A. That would involve the question of what was included in
expenses, and the computation as made. This is 1'88 per cent, calculated on $528,000.
That is flot the amount invested in the building.

Q. That is what you paid for il ?-A. It is not. I think, Mr. Chairman, that
I ouglit to be permitted to make one statement with reference to his document handed
to me, and on which this calculation has been based. There is a typographical error
on the printed statement, the annual report to the Insurance Department of New York.
Opposite the Home Building is carried in what should be the footing of ail the real
estate, $9,28,022, and that is fotted again, making $579,290, and in evidence you will
see the first item in schedule 4.

By Mr. Co.çter, K.C., Cons.e' for the Unmmitte,'
Q.Value of real estate, exclusive of encumbrance, $528,022 l-A. Which is, just

the amount carried opposite the building, without calculating in this. The typograph-
ical error is in these footings which have been carried up there.

By M1r. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Is that done every year ?-A. No, that is the only year in which that hap-

pened. The valuation of the building was dropped off by the printer.

By, the Hon. Mr. MeSweeney :
Q. What year ?-A. Pecember 31, 1896, and the footing was shoved up against

the building, and then refooted and printed. We have corrected it at times, but it
aceidentally passes, soinptimes.

Q. You reduce the val-je of the building every year l-A. Yes.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve
Q.You reduce the value of the building every year ?-A. Yes.
Q.Take another year. What is the value of thc building put et thcre ?-A.

$476,653.50.
Q. What year is that ?-A. December 31, 1897.
Q. What is the cost of the building ?-A. $483,660.50. Thot is the cost of the

building. That is the e-Ad of 1893.
Q. That is what you paid on the Home Office Building in New Y5ork !-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. That is all the real estate you have-the Home Office-A. No, we have some

more.
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By Mr. Cos ter, K.C., Counset for the Com.mittee:
Q. You were examined with reference to the allegations in the petition which

was prepared by General Tracy, and upon which the $15,O00 were paid. I would ask,
as I understand that sonle of the honourable members do nlot want the whole petition
to go in, as to whether pages 2 and 3 are the charges wbich were made l-A. I do not
know wbether this is a copy of the charges that were made in the Tracy complaint or
not. It is a long time since I have seen the Tracy complaint. In general terras, I
tbink these were the charges that were made to the Instirance IDepartment, and made
in the petition which was actually filed wîth the Attorney General, and I pre.sume
the saine charges were embraced in that.

Q. The following are some of the charges of General Tracy in petition to Attorney
General of New York to remove Buruham and Eldridge :

1. That under cover of a clause in the last wîli of iPresident E. B. ilarper releas-
ing the association upon certain conditions of a large dlaim for renewals, IPresident
Burnlisn bas illegally and improperly received £rom the association at least $40,000
for his own private purposes.

2. That IPresident Burnbam. has unlawfully aud upon bis own autbority dis-
charged one Mioton D. Moss from bis, obligations under a certain contract made be-
twecn him and the association to its great loss.l

3. That President Burnbam has improperly authorized the payment to Mr.
Moton D. Moss of enormous sums of the funds of the association.

4. That President Burnham bas permitted untrue entries to be made ilu the books,
and untrue affidavits to be flled in the office of the varions state superintendents,
especially as to the insurance in force and as to new business.

5. That President Burnbam has during the past year abnormally increased the
legal expenses of the association, not because of an increaso of its litigation, but by
weason of his own apprcbcnsions and bis dcsire to protcct himself from the con-
sequences of bis own misconduct. Among tbese extra 'legal expenses' will be found
very large retainers paid, to attorneys who have neyer heretofore donc and are not
expected to do any business for tbe association.

6. That President Burnbam, by bis mismanagement, bas caused within the last
year lapses exceeding $120,00O,000 ; bas reduced the new business of 1898 to about
one-tbird of that written in tbe last year of President Ilarper's presidency; bas use-
lessly increascd, the cost of management and seriously demoralized the association
generally.

This is in connection witb the payment of $15,OOO in connection witb the charges.
Tbey paid tbis to Hoffecker ?-A. No, to IMacdonald for the payment of the costs.

Q.It was only costs, was it ?-A. Yes.
Q.In the Senate, certain alleged statements have been referred to as supposed to

bave been made by Moton D. Moss l
Mr. PSINGLE.-Objected to.
Q. I will ask you now as to wbetber there is any trutb in tbis statement
' In the early part of 1898 tbe Insurance IDepartment was investigating the affairs

of the association and sbortly after their examination I was sbown a report wbicb was
to be issued, in wbicb the Insurance iDepartment cautioned the directors tbat tbe,con-
tinued use of mortuary funds for expenses would nlot be tolerated. The insurance of
bond statements by the management was criticised and some very strong rcmarks in
regards to the position of affairs'. Did yen. ever sec sucb a report ?-A. In 1898 ?

Q. In the early part of 1898 ?-A. I neyer did.
Q. Did you ever hear of it ?-A. I neyer did.
Q. Did you ever beard of any report being made whicb was not issued by tbe

department I-A. I neyer did.
Q. At any time I-A. Ut me explain in reference to that question wbat I bave

already stated about hearings tbat were had before tbe department, and the reports
Eff.ýDRIDGE
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arc sometimes changed as a result of those hearings, but nothing covering any of
those points that have been named liere. If there were any changes-I do flot recaill
any changes, but if there were they were merely minor changes.

Q. 'I was shown this report and I was asked what the effect of it would be, and
I stated that it would mean destruction. Did you ever hear any such statement as
that made by Mr. Moss w-A. I neyer did.

Q. This was flot with you 1-A. No.
Q. You neyer had any such discourse 1-A. No such thing ever occurred between

myseif and Mr. Moqq.
Q. After some days of negotiation I was informed that the Insurance iiepart-

ment has recommended that Edward Lauterback be retained to repiesent the asso-
ciation and he was retained': Is that true l-A. I neyer heard of it.

Q. You neyer heard of him being retained 1-A. I know he has acted for us as
an attorney.

Q. Was he retaineil in 1898 toi go before the Insurance iiepartment e-A. My
impression is that iMr. Lautcrback was our attorney in the hearing before the lnsiir-
ance Department in New York in 1898, but I will not be positive at the present time
that he was.

Q. During the course of the next week I was told that Edward Lauterback had
had several interviews with the Superintendent of Insurance, and that the superinten-
tendent had demanded that $100,000 cash be paid to him to alter the report, and declare
the association solvent'. Did you ever hear anything about that?-A. No, I never
did.

Q. Did you neyer hear it alleged 1-A. I never did.
Q. By any one 1-A. No-oh, I have heard it alleged, and I have heard that Mr.

Wells al]eged it. I heard him allege it as one of the witnesses, but I neyer heard it
allcged bcforc.

Q. 'A few days afterwards 1 was shown a report which would be signed decllaring
the association to bc solvent, lcaving out ail reference to thcir threat against the
directors, snd was told that this could be secured for $65,000.' Did you ever hear
anything about that 1-A. I never heard anything about that.

Q. Who would know about that ?-A. I do flot know; it is a thing absolu tely that
I know nothing about, never heard of before.

Q. iDid you know of $5,000, or any sum of money, being loaned to the president
by Mot on D. Moss?-A. I do not.

Q. Did you know of a suit being brought by Moton D. Moss against the presi-
dent?-A. I know after Moss ceased to be agent of the company he did enter a suit
against Burnham.

Q. Do you rememnber a case being tried and a judgment given by Judgc Scott?
-A. I do not.

Q. Against Burnham ?-A. I do not.
Mfr. PRINGLE.-OIbjected to.
Q. Do you know of J. D. Wc-ls lendiiig the prceident $5,750, said to bc p1tidW te>

the Departuient of Insurance ?-A. I do flot know it.
Q. Did you ever hear of it ?-A. TM r. Wells told me he loancd it to the presidênt,,

and the president told me Wells did not.
Q. Do you know that the president paid it back to him ?-A. I do flot. f
Q. Did you ever hear of ilorace Brockway's loan of $6,000 ?-A. What ?
Q. Loaned to iPresident Burnham ?-A. I did not.
Q. Did you ever hear of 1fr. Horace Brockway being put on the pay.-roll *?-A..

Mfr. Ilorce Brockway was on the pay-roll of the company.
Q. For how much a week ?-A. $300 a week.
Q. What was it for ?-A. For services rendered the company.
Q. What were the services ?-A. Services in connection with our-tînildîi]g-auid'

certain matters that we wisbed looked after by him.
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Q.What is his business ?-A. Hie is a botel-keeper.
Q.low long did you pay him $300 a week ?-A. I do flot remember. It was

subsequeutly reduced to $200 a weekz, and then when bis services terminatedl it ceased
to be paîd.

Q. What were the services ?-A. lic rendercd a number of services for uis of a

special character that tbe board of directors directed him to render.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q.State the nature of tbem?-A. Some in connection with some real estate and

property w-e had, and some in connection witb matters of interest connected with our

riglits to do business and the question of doing business and so forth in the states of
the Union.

Q. As to tbe real estate ?-A. Simply looking after certain interests in our build-

ing and real estate. After Worcester died, bie bad cbarge of tbat part of tbe business.

By the lIn. Mr. McSweeney

,Q. H1e bad a sort of roaming commission ?A. Yes, to do certain things for us.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Couns*l for the Commitlee:

Q. Did bie abandon bis liotel business?-A. Hie did flot.

By the lon. Mr. WVilson.

Di Pd you pay bis travelling expenses wben bie went roun-d ?-A. I did not men
to say bie was travelling around very much, but the payrnents to hiîn covcrcd cvcry-
thing.

By M1r. Coster, K.C., Coun.sel for the Comm ittee:

Q. lie renîained at borne in bis botel ?-A. ie, reniained iii New York miost of
the time.

Q. At bis hotel ?-A. I do flot know bow that was.
~.And that is ail you can say of wbat the services, were ?A. Tbat is ail.
Q.And you say you do not know of bis baving loaned tbe president $6,000 ?-

_A. I do not kiiow.
Q. Did you ever bear of it ?-A. Only as Wells bas told me that bu did.
Q. llow mucb was iEdward Lauterbacb paid for bis services in tbe department in

that year ?A. I do not know that bie was paid anytbing specially for bis services in
the departmnent. Hie was retainied as attorney, and paid bis bills, but wbat tbe amount

was, I do not know.
Q. Was Edward Lauterback paid $20,000 a year ?-A. Mr. Lauterback was

retained by the executive comnmittee, consisting, as I recollect, of Mr. Wells, Mr.

Burmham and myseif for a certified specifled retainer for services to be rendered. I

lhave not refreshed my memory in regard to it, and cannot say wbat the amount was.

Q. Will you say bie did not get $20,000 ?-A. It was a very considerable amount,
,as an attorney of his standing naturally would receive, but wbat -tbe amount was, 1
cannot state.

Q. Would it be twenty tbousand dollars ?-A. I cannot state from memory now

what it was. 1 have no doubt Mr. Wells has a copy of it and if it is here 1 have no

doubt it is correct.
Q. Will you swear it was less than $20,000 ?-A. I will flot swear as to what it

was. It was a very considerable amount.

By the Hon. M1r. Wilson :

Q. Wbat sum would you consider a considerable amount ? iFifteen or twenty-five
-thousand dollars ?-A. It would depend on the services.
"ELDRIDGE
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Q. You mean a considerable amount of money during the y'ear 9-A. I presume
if was somewhere between fifteen and twenty-five tliousand dollars, lie is an expen-
sive manl.

By Mr. Cost1er, K.C., Counsel for the Committee
Q. Wliat services did lie perform for the company that year ?-A. 1 really cannot

tell you what services lie performed, I think he appeared before tlic Insurance Depart-
ment. It was eiflier that or flic succceding year that lie appared before Attorney Gen-
cral llancock on a complaint of Llcwlyn Demining and argued the case against Dem-
ming's action, I think that is the year thaf occurred.

Q. Do you know of President Burnham getting back any money that year, paid
to himself froîti Lime to time ?-A. I do flot.

Q. Did you neyer hear of if ?-A. I beard that MXr. Moss made something of sucli
charge, but as to the details of if I do flot know, and neyer licard in any authoritative
way.

Q. You do flot know of Mr. Moss beîng paid any large amount of money by Pre-
sident Brunliam ?-A. I do not.

Q. Afterwards in settiement of the suit ?-A. I do flot.
Q. Thirty or forty tbousand dollars ?-A. I do flot.
Q. Did you neyer hear of if ?A. I did not. If is something on the general

rurnour and the report here and I have been told by Mr. Burnham titat lie paid noth-
ing of the kind. Thaf is ail I know.

Q. You spoke of fliat fiffeen liundred pounds tliat Mr. Moss got, about bis being
paid $1 a tliousand; xvhat did you mean by thaf? I remember seeing if in your exa-
mination?-A. I meant fliat Moss put out his agents afld did special work towards flic
'<lose of 1896, and tliat tlie $75,OO0 amounted ta about a dollar a tliousand on ftic
business doue by bis agents oufside the mefropolitan business.

Q. And, therefore, it amounted exacfly to flic fiftcen liundred pounds?-A. No,
it did flot amount to that exactly. My impression is, that if was either made a liff le
over one dollar a tliousand or under it; but it n'as approximately one dollar
a thousand. We gave him fliaf amount as compenîsation for flic tirne spent iii Eng-
land and for flic sendiflg his agents outside flic metropolitan district and doing special
business during fliat f ime.

Q. Did you ever licar Mr. Moss dlaim tliat lie paid back flie wliolc of that fifteen
liundred pounds ta Mr. ]3urnham ?-A. I never heard him make fIat dlaim.

Q. And do you, or do you flot, know fIat fliat was provcd in flic suit brouglif by
Mr. Moss ngainsf MvI. Býurnham?-A. I do flot kinow fliaf it n'as proved.

Q. Youa remember flic purchase of wliaf you called flic P.IP.I. intcrest: you made
a confracf by wliel you stated to pay tliem soine large amount of money. Did you
pay any portion of that ?-A. There werc commissionis ta bie paid on flic annual dues
as f hey a<'crued, and flic commisisons up fo flic execuf ion of flic second confract,
whicli was February 9, 1897, whicli we infcrprefed as flic cancellation of fIat contract,
~were paid fo fliese trustees.

Q. Hon' mucli money did you pay fliem, do you remember ?-A, I could nof give
flic amount, but my impression is, tliat if was somewlierc in flic ncighliourliood of
feu or f welve fliousand dollars.

Q. You paid f en or fwelvc fliousaud dollars on account of if, and thlen a suit was
brouglit for flic balance, and tliey failed because flic court lield if was an illegal con-
tract. Is fliat riglit or is if nof riglit?-A. If was f ried in fthc Uniftcd Sfates, 'and fthe
court dccidcd if was a confract under wlicl flic frustees infendcd fa provide by flicir
trust, and fliat if would not lic susfained by the court.

Q. Thaf is, fliaf if was an illegal confract; fliat is about tlie resulf of if?-A.
Ycs. If was nof a contracf of reinsurance fIat was tricd. If was flic confracf wif b
tlie trustees. Tlie policy-liolders af flicir meeting, callcd for fliat purpose, ordcred
fthc trustees fa furn if over fa flic Mufual iReserve for flic purposes for wlidl if had
Ibeen communicafed.

E LDRIDGE
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By the Hon. MJr. Landry:
Q. Have you that document which contains the supplementaiy report you sent-

that sheet explaining about the report?-A. I do flot think 1 have a copy here, but one
has been filed. They are at my room.

Q. There are three of those reports. Two of themn have a letter annexed on the
flrst page. The third report bas the letter bound in by a fastenar ?-A. Yes.

Q. You remember that?-A. Yes.
Q. Were those copies furnished by those who have the original? A. Were tbey

certified by the department?
Q. Yes?-A. iMy impression is, that that one with the pin iii it was flot certîied.

That is my impression now, but the other two were certified.
Q. Were those eopias obtained from. the departmant?-A. Yes.
Q. JPrepared by the departmnent ?-A. No, they were flot prepared by the depart-

ment; thay were prepared by us. We seat most of tham up already prepared, and wa
certified-

Q. Were they sent to the departmant with those letters annexed -A. Nies.
Q. In the three cases?-A. No, the one pinaed, my impression is, wvas flot certi-

lied at ail; but the two others wvere eertified.
Q. In those two cases, xvas thare a document that was gluad-oua that had beau

glued before and taken off and another one put on?-A. On oaa of thein you find
underneath-I think that a letter that the New York department wrote ini answer
wac on thero and takea off. I think that had beca taken off. 1 think there was al
place where the paper had been glued and taken off.

Q. Seratched off? A. .Yes.
Q. Part of the cover was gonie?-A. Yes.
Q. And a newspaper put in?-A. That paper was pasted abova, 1luit there wvas a

place whara something had beau pasted and taken off. 1 noticed that. M-,ay 1 mak<e
one statement in regard to two or thrae matters that the counsel has overlooked, abouit
which my explanation was a.sked, page 34 of No. 3? 11e asked me for certain dis-
acrepancies.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Ce anse? for the Committee:
Q. Is this new evidenca?-A. No. When you asked me for certain explanations

of differencas which had gone juto the sahedule on page 34, the first diserepancy,
$56.92, between the dishursernents and schadule C. Sehedule C represants expenses
simply as regards the rai estate owned, while the dîsbursments given in the sehaedule

*for disbursaments relate to ail of our invastments ' and the diffarence was a matter of
expenditure in connection with the mortgage. The same is truc in 1898 and iii 1899
and iii 1890, as you will ncte the differanca is against sehiedule C, while in 1901 it is
in favour of sehedule C. Those represeat the taxes that we disputed with the City of
New York and rafused to pay, but ini 1901 we made the full payment of the taxes for
the threa years, and, therefore, that covers those discrepancies. I desire also to Say
that in the expenses of real estate in the early history of these liens, the interest on
the investments xvas eharged as an expense and was charged to the amount of $75,366.

THIOMAS B1tADSHAW, of the city of Toronto, actuary, sworn and examined by Mr.
GeofTrion, counsel for the companly.

Q. What is your position ?-A. 1 amn actuary of the Imperial Life Insurance
Company of Canada, vice-president of that company.

Q. Hava you had some experience as an aetiiary '?-A. Yes, I have been abouit
twenty-three years in if e insuranee.
BRADSHAW
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Q. Do you belong to any association of actuaries ?-A. I arn a feliow of the In-
stitute of Actuaries of Great Britain, and a member of the Actuarial Society of
America.

Q. Is there any Canadian insurance association of whieh you are a meminer
A. There is the Canadian Life Insurance Officers' Association, an association which
combines in its membership practically ail of the Canadian and British companies.
I arn secretary of that association.

Q. Did you prepare and publish any work upon actuarial science?-A. I was one
of a committee of three that preparcd a work cntitled 'Net iPremiums and. Values
based upon the Inistitute of Actuaries' healthy maie table of Mortality and premium at
three and one-haif per cent interest'.

Q. You were one of a comrnittce of three ?-A. Yes, the work, I may say, invoived
in that book which you have, wils prepared in the office of the Imperial Life of which
I arn actuary, and under my direct supervision.

0. 011 bebiaif of whom was It published ?-A. It was published on behaif of the
CîainLite -N-anagers' Ass-ociation.
Q. Was it prepared by this committee of three under instructions from that as-

sociation?-A. Yes.
Q. The commrittee was chosen by that association?-A. By that association, yes.
(è. W'hat standing has that work in Canada ?A. It is the standard work of the

life insurance companies in Canada for basing premium rates-and reserves. I tbink
it is also in use in the Insurance Departrnent of Canada.

Q. Will yon please look at this table of rates, published in 1894, thie table in use
in4 1889 ? Look at pàge 1.2, of a book erntitie dua iReserve Fui-d Life Associa-
tion of New York,' E. B. IHarper, president, and marked for identification. I refer
Io the rates ini the foîîrth colurnn iii heavy figures, and teil us whether these rates
w1iich were the rates ini force i the Mîîfitilal Rceerve Finid Life Association in 1889,
îîdîîidiîîg $3 for expe lises, were sufficient to iiiaintaini an) insorance policy through life,

lecl plunîiluli, withouLt ilicruasu '?-A. 011 oi e th~,~ddollars '
Q. Yes,, on on1e thousanid dollars ?A. On one thotisand dollars?
Q. Yes, on one thousand dollars ?-A. No, tlicy would not.
Q. Will you tell us to what extent they would be insufficient ?-A. They would run

frorn about twenty-five to fifty per cent below the proper rate for a whole life policy
hy annual preminans.

Q. Is that a mathematicai certainty?-A. Yes.
Q. The question I ask is, whetlher. under, any systern of insurance whatever,

tb ese rates wcre sufficient if rnaintained level ?-A. No.
Q. Your answer appiies to any system 9-A. There eau te only one systemn.
Q. Would these tables of rates used as level rates for life for apportionment of

losses, assessments being made for an amount sufficient to meet ail losses, resuit in
vii equitable adjustmnent of cost ?-A. No, they would not.

By the li1on. M1r. Béique:

Q.Will you explain the question ? What is meant by the question and answer?
-A. The rates contained on the twelftb page of the manual of the Mlutual iReserve

Association, dated 1894, and which hias Leen admitted to Le the rates in'force, by th-,
Mitual iReserve in 1889, column 4, are not sufficient to furnish an insurance of $1,000
for the whole of life; that they are insufficient in some ages fromn twenty-five to fifty
per cent.

By M1r. Cosier, K.U., Counsel for the Committee

Q. For instance age 100 ?-A. Age 100 is not given bere. The highest age is 60-
at insurable ages.

Q. You take it up to 60 ?-A. That is the oldest age given in the table, from ages
25 to 60.

BRADSHAW
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By the Hon. Mr Béique:
QI think we fully understand the answer you had given in that respect, and

which you have repeated, but what we do flot understand is the last question put to you
by Mr. Geoffrion, and which you have given an answer. The question ia would this
table of rates, used as level rates for life for apportionment of losses, assessments be-
ing-made for an amount sufficient to meet ail loases, resuit in an equitable adjustment
of costs? I do not understand the words 'resuit in an equitable adjustment of cost '?-
A. Even if an addition were made of $3 per thousand for expenses, these rates would
stili be insufficient.

By the Chairman:
Q. Insuflicient for mu tuai purposes or for level rate purposes ?-A. For wbole life

însurance.
Q. Which is level ?-A. Which is level. It maices no difference whetber it is

mutual or stock. A man bas to die. The mortality is no greater in a mutiial than in
a stock company.

Q. But the expensea are Iess i (No answer.)

Bp Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:
Q. Do I understand that a company starting on this basis is cither bound to ini-

crease its rates or to go into insolvencyl A. 0f course that is a big question to an-
swer. The contracta may be re-formed, but these rates are insufficient for any cornpany
to guaraiitee $1,000 of whole lift insurance payable a?. death.

Q. You stated that this insufficiency of rates was for some ages. Wbat do fou
mean ? Are there some ages for which it is sufficient, and if so, point thema out ?-A.
At age twenty-five the rates contained in this manuel, which bas been described, of
$13.80 would, on the basis of four per cent Înterest, be sufficient, piuo'ided there was
a proper provision for expenses made.

Q. In addition to the $13.80?-A. In addition to the $13.80.

By the Hon. Mr' Iéique:
Q. What is the $13.80 I-A. At age twenty-five for $1,000 insurance.
Q. The $13.80 is the premium I-A. Yes, mentioned in this table.
Q. And it would be suifilcient to pay the mortality cost ?-A. To pay the policy

when it became a dlaim by death, but there would have to be some provision for
expenses.

Bp the Chairman:
Q. Would not that be largely a matter of opinion as well as experience I-A. Al

life insurance companies must have a standard of mortality to base their rates upon.
It wonld not be a matter of opinion; it would be a matter of standard rate of mortality.

Q. iDoes that apply as strongly and effectually to mutual as to stock comnpanies ?-
A. Equally so.

Q. Then I do not undcrstand how fraternal organizations live?-A. I amn speakiiig
now of whole life policies by level premiums.

By the Hon. Mr. Lan dry:
Q. What is the average duration of life at twenty-five ?-A. Thc expectation of

life; I can give you the expectation of life at age twenty-five from one of the mor-
tality tables.

Q. iDo 1 understand it is one of the elements of your ealculation?-A. No, it cn
not be. It is impossible.

By the lion. Mr. McSweeney:
Q. Even the old line companies bave increased their rates, bave they not I-A. Not

on the old policy-bolders.
BRADSHAW
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Q. But on new contracts ?-A. Yes, on new business the reserve is three and one-
half per cent.

By Mvr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:

Q. You rnentîoned that this rate to which we are .referring of the Mutual iReserve
would at twenty-five years be practically sufficient if there was soniethig added for
expenses ?-A. Yes, it would be, if there was a proper addition at age twenty-five.

Q. At what age does it begin to be insufficient, even assuming a charge foi,
expensca should be added ?-A. In these calculations, the rate of interest is asseumed
to be four per cent. That is a very favourable rate in vicw of the date of the rate of
interest whieh money is now earning. At age 30 the rate of the Mutual IReserve, as
given on this page, would be insufficient. The rate stated is $14.22, presumed to be for
a whole if e policy of $1,000, payable at death, level annual premium. The rates after
that age would ail be insufficient.

By the Chairman :
Q. Ba sed on the saine proportion ?-A. Based on the saine table.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :
ýQ. Growing more and more insufficient ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:

Q. The insufficiency would increase as the age advances ?--A. Yes.

1By the Hon. Mr. Landry :
Q. What is the rate at 30 in your table ?-A. $16.69.
Q. Does that include expenses ?-A. iNo, we aire not talking about expcnses.

Q.Neither in one case nor the -other?'-A. No, in neither case.

By the Chairmon:

Q. So, when the Mutual Reserve started with that table, they did Dlot know much
about insurance ?-A. 1 do rnot know anything about that.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company :

Q. These tables to which you are referring, as giving correct rates, are based on
mortality experience ?-A. Yes.

Q. A very extensive mortnlity experience ?-A. Yes, they are based upon the
experience of twenty British life offices. They are the tables which are employed
generally by life insurance companies in Great Britain, by life insurance companies
in Canada, and it is the standard table of mortality referred to in the Insurance Act.

Q. And I understand the tables of mortality hsed on experience of several other
companies approximate practically those tables to which you refer ?-A. Very closely.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. In regard to the insulllciency of those rates, you have given the comparative
figures at age 30 as appeaering in this manual of the Mutual Reserve, bêiing $14.22, and
the figures should be, you say ?-A. A minimum rate of $16.69.

Q. There we have the proportion of insufficieney; but what I should like from
you is the proportion of insufficiency-the average insufficiency from 30 to 60 ?-A. 1
would have to go to each age individually and make a calculation, but I could give
you the Mutual iReserve rate at every fifth year if you like, and the proper rate at
every fth year.

Counsel admit that in the rates appcaring on page 12 of the IMitual Reserve
manual referred to above there is included in every one of those rates an amount of $3
for expenses. BRAD6HAWý
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By the Hon. M1r. Landrp:

Q. With $3 added for expenses in that table, the insufficieney would commence at
an earlier age ?-A. Yes, at the very beginining.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed :

Q. What would you estimate should be the expenses for management of a Com-
pany of this kind ?-A. That is a very broad question. I would not like to venture
an opinion on that.

Q. What should be the difference, from your experience of expenses between the
two ?-A. There are two classes of companies in Canada, a mutual company and a
mixed company, the mixed company being a company where there are stock share-
holders. The best type, and probably the oniy type of the regular Mutual Life Insur-
ance Company, is the iMltual Life Insurance Company of Canada, in which there are
no stock-holders and in which surplus returns are given to thc policy-holders. The
rates of the Mutual Life of Canada are practically the saine as the rates of a regular
life insurance company.

By Mir. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Company:

Q. And the ratio of expenses ?-A. And the ratio of expenses approximate some-
what the samne. The returns by way of surplus to poliey-holders may he hetter, but T
will not say they are in the Mutual Life of Canada. There is no provision whatever
for dividends tn stoek-holderî, as theria is no stook, and thoro you havc probably the
purest type of life insurance.

By the Chairman :

Q. Are the rates higher than those of the iMutual iReserve ?-A. They are. We
are in constant competition with ahl the companies in Canada. We know the rates
of the Mutual Life of Canada, and they will only vary fromn about flfty cents per
annuin to, $1.50 per annum. I do flot think the variation will be greater than $1.50 per
thousand. I was colnparing the iMutual Life of Canada with a stock company.

By the lion. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. What, in your judgment, would be the additional rate for expenses in one of
the standard companies ?-A. That varies according to the plan of insurance. It wil
vary on the whole life plan from that on the endowmient system. It will agafin vary
according to whether the policy is with profits or without profits. A without-profit
policy, the addition for expenses in some companies will not amount to more than
8even and one-haif per cent on the net premium.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique :

Q. Without profits ?-A. WitLout profits; and w ith profits policies, the addition
for expenses to net premium will mun alI the way from 25 to 33à per cent.

By the Hon. Mr. Lougheed:

Q. Some companies pay a good deal more than others h-A. It would be neces-
sery to know what those commissions are.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mu tual Reserve:

Q. llow munch will it amount to per thousand insurance in force ?-A. It will vary
with the age of the insured. Take age 35; the net premium, according to, the Jnstitute
of Actuaries healthy male table of mortality, 4 per cent interest, is $19.69, adding
for a without-profit policy, say 10 per cent, if you like, which is a very heavy loading,
that would make $1.97.
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By the Hon. Mr. Watson:

Q. Per thousand ?-A. Per thousand for a profit policy, at, say, 30 per centl,
which would be about $6 per thousand; on the witli profit policy the assured is entitled
to receive profits when and as the company declares such at the end of each five years,
or, if the contract is at the end of each ten years, or if the contract is at the end of
each fifteen years, and so on; so that that rate will be reduced by these profits.

13y Mr. Geoffrioft, Counsel for the Mulual Reserve:

-Q. You have given there the loaïding for expenses, but we want to get what is
actually spent-what are ail the expenses of a company per thousand ?-A. I cannot
give you that. I have not Iooked into that question; that is an individual case.

Q. You cannot give us what is the proportionate expense ?-A. I have flot in-
vestigated the matter in that liglit.

Q. That can be found in the report?-A. By taking the government reports, I
suppose it would.

By the Hon. Mr. 'Watson:

Q. I arn looking for information in this matter; you have taken thirty-five years
of age. Would you please give us the average rate of expense on a policy at fifty
years of Pge?-A. On the whole-life system, without profit?

Q. You gave us one and a half dollars on thirty-five, up to six dollars and some
,cents ?-A. On a without-profit policy it would be about $3.54.

Q. And with profit?-A. And with, it would be between nine and ten dollars.

By 1Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mlutuel Reserve:

Q. There is somcthing I do flot exact]y unidcrstand. You hiave Laketi a preuiiurn
of $19.59 per thousaiid at 35 ?-A. Yez-.

Q. You said the loading for expen-.es would Le about $197 ?-A. For a without-
profit pôlicy.

Q. You have no doubt the expenses of companies, as an average, exceeds con-
siderabley $1.9î per thousand of insurance in force ?-A. Yes, it would exceed that.

Q. You cannot say how inuch it would exceed it t-A. INo, but as a matter of
knoiwledge, I know that it does exceed that.

By Mr. Coster, K.U., Counsci for the Comnijilee:

Q.*To what extent?-A. Well, it wvould more than double that-a good deal more
than double it, probably. 0f course, that would depend a good deal upon the age of the
company, on the volume of the old business, whichi is collectéd for a small perceutage,
and it would depend upon the progressive character of the company, whether it la
seekîng business aggressively, and, in consequence thereof, the expenses would be
increased.

By Mr. Geoffrion, C'ounsel for the Mutual Reserve:
Q. Is not the only way to verify that fact to take the report of the superintendent

and figure it up from ahl the companies, or any company?-A. It is the only way we
can do that.

Q. Have you read questions put to the witness, iMr. Patterson, at the sitting of
this Cornmittee, volume No. 5, page 119, and then. at the foot of page 121, the hast
line, and over on page 122? Have you read the questions and answers beginning:
, I Wil put yoia soute simple questions that I do not attempt- to understand myself,'
and ending in the middle of that page, by the words 'That should be the net level
premiums,' and also page 121, of the sanie part, the last line, and the wbohe of page
122 ?-A. Yes, I bave seen those questions and answers.
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Q.Are all those questions questions that any actuary should be able to under-
stand, off-hand?-A. Yes, in1 my opinion.

Q. Do you consider them as being difficuit questions iu the science, or as ele-
mentary?-A. No, they are elementary questions, and I would thinik that almiost aiuy
student in the science of life insurance would be able to answer them.

Q. What have you to say, from a scientific poinit of view, as to the answers that
were given to those questions that were aniswcred? Are those answers correct ?-A.
Some of them are not.

Q. Point out those that are iiot, iii your opiniioni?-A. For exalaple, 'Who is the
author, how does hie rank as an actuary?' ' Quite Iiigli, first class.' That is a correct
answer.

Q. Then the next one: 'Who is he?'-A. That is a inatter whether a man bas
knowledge or not.

Q. Indicate those that are wrong. Tale the (uestij11: 'Given a table of mortality
and a rate of intere#, how would you proceed to find a net annual preinium for a
given amount of insurance l'-A. That answer is absolutely incorrect, fromn an actu-
anial standpoint.

Q. Take the question on the last line of page 121, and on page 122?-A. 1 would

consider it a very crude answer.
Q. To which question 1-A. That is the one you refer to.-
Q. 'XVhat is meant in science by a commutation coliumn ?'-A. Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Béiçjue:

Q. What do you inean by a crude aiiswer r-A. Indefiinite.

By Mr. Geoffrion, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q. Is there a wcll-known definition to actuaries l-A. Yes. I would iiot think
an actuary would answer a question in that style.

Q. Are there any other questions to which you have any remark to make, simp]y
to avoîd taking them one by one? Take this question-' I asked you a question a 1ew
minutes ago, given a table of iiuurtality,' aiid isu un ?A. I thiuk that is a u'untradic-
tory answer to the question.

Q. Therefore, it is wrong?-A. It is contradictory.
Q. Does it follow it is wrong -Do you consider that a -correct answer or a wrong

answer 1-A. 'If you want to go the wrong way about it,' is an incorrect answer.
Q. Should any actuary know the name of the author of the Actuaries' Institute

Text-book ?-A. I think that every actuary would know the naine of the author, would
know the name of the text-book of the Institute of Actuaries, for the reason that is the
only standard text-book on life insurance in Great Brita~n and on this continent.

Cross-exarnined by Mr. Coster, K.C., Jo unsel for the Committee:

Q. You know the Mutual Life Insurance (Comnpany of New York, do you Dot ?-
A. Yes, by naine.

Q. llow would their rates compare with that of your company?-A. They would
be about the samie.

Q. You recognize this as a book of rates of the iMutual Life of New York i-A. Lt
is dated January 1, 1899.

Q. You recognize that as the book of rates 1-A. Yes.
Q. Page 139, non-participating rates, at age thirty-flve, what ia the rate i-A. The

rate at age thirty-flve, on page 139, of the manual which you have handed to me, which
purports to be the mianual of the Mutual Life Insurance Company of N~ew York, for
a whole life policy without profits, payable at death. premium flot increasing with age.
ia $21.70.

Q. Per thousand 1-A. Yes.
BRADSHAW
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Q. I will call your attention to page 5 of the saine manual, and ask you to read
what you flnd there ?-A. The paragraph which I arn asked te read, is as folloxvs-

'This policy will aIse be issued on the non-participating plan at lower rates of
premiums, on which there will be no surplus, but the policy contains seme guarantees
of automatic paid-up insurance, cash surrender value, and loans as on the ten and five-
year distribution plan. (For rates see page 139.)

Q. That is the reference ?-A. That is the reference.
Q. Twenty-one dollars seventy cents per thousand for twenty years, would

ationînf f0 how muobh ? It would bc 40 woffld it flot ?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. iLook at page 23, the second column, and tell me what the cash surrender value

at the end of twenfy years of that policy would bc, according to that table Z-A. The
cash surrender value on page 23 is for a wliole life policy with profits, such profits be-
ing distributed at the end of twenty years .

Q. At page 103, give me the cash surrender value at the end of twenty years Z-A.
At page 103 of the manual, of the Mutual Life lInsurance Company of New York,
dated Janauary, 1899, page 103, age thirty-five, for a wbole life policy with profits,
the profits te be distribu *ted either at the end of the tenth year or the fiffli year, the cash
surrender value of that policy, at the end cf the twentieth year, is stated to be $280.

Q. lias not the non-participating policy the saine cash surrender value, accord-
ing te the statemients in that book Z A. I de not think that can be determined from
this book, for the reason that if does not say that the saine cash surrender values wiîl
b? given. On the ten and five-year distribution policies contained in this manual, I
could not say that the reference on page 5 bias reference to the values given on page
103.

Q. Whien it says, 'It shaîl have the saine cash surrender value as on the ten and
five-year distribution plans,' you say it does not mean that ?-A. I say that I do nof
know, and canniot state, that if lias speeial reference Wo the teii and five-year distribu-
tion pelicy referred te on page 103.

Q. In other words, you say it migbt refer te another policy and not that one?
A. It might refer te the tcn and five-year distribution peliîes, some form of distribu-
tion policy issued by the cempany.

Q. Look in the book, and see if you can find. any five or ten-year distribution
policy Z-A. You do flot mean to say that this contains ail the policies issuied by the
iMutual Life of New YorkZ

Q. The ten and five-year distribution referred te there Z-A. But if does not state
in this bock.

Q. Look through the book, and see if you can find any others Z-A. I cannot find
any ethers.

Q. Se, therefore, if ià is flot referred te in that table, the table is nef in the bockZ
-A. I say I dob net know.

Q. You cannet find if Z-A. I do net know.

By the Cihairman:

Q. Yeu do -nef kncw Z-A. I cannet tell.
Q. Are you in a position te knew whether if wculd be there or net Z Would nct

your knowledge of the reading enable yen to find out whether it is there or nef Z-A.
If is indefinîte. I say that you caunot say frcm that, that that reference bas refer-
ence te that page.

By Mr. Coster, K C., Counsel for the Commit Iee:
Q.Will you say if is net Z-A. I say I cannot say.

Q. Ycu cannct say that if is not?-A. Ne. The Mutual Life Insurance Cern-
pany cf New York issues a manual, te rny knowledge probably three te fcur f imes as
large is this, ccntaiuing varions plans cf insurance. This reference on page 5, dees
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flot conneet, in my opinion, sufflciently the figures on page 103, to enable me to Say
that the reference on page 5 refers to the figures on page 103.

By th e Uhairman:

Q. Woul you leave me under the impression that that reference is a misrepresenta-
tion ?-A. No.

Q. Why should it be put there?-A. Because the agents of the 'Mutual Life of
New York, which company publishes those books for their information, have other
manuals.

By Mr. Coster, K C., Gounsel for the Goinmittee:

Q. But this is a book they canvass on ?A. Yes, and tbey have others as Weil.

By the Chairman:
Q. If an agent showed me th at book, and pointed out the reference on page 103,

I woul take it l-A. You would have to accept it.
Q.That would be the word of the company -A. No.

Q. Do you say insurance is run on false- ?-A. Oh,no
Q. If that manual is a correct copy of the in:ctructiona given by the coinpaniy to,

its agents, you say that is only part ?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Goster, K.G., Goungel for the Goîinilee

Q. You deduct $280 from $434, and it would leave $254, would it not ?-A. You
are making me a simple sumn in subtraction now-no, it leaves $154.

Q. Or. $7.70 per annum, is it flot ?A. iDividing $154 by twenty gives $7.70.
Q. 'Ihat is $7.70 per annum ?-A. Yes.
Q. Take your book in the iMitual Ileserve - if the $280 is right, the $154 is what

the ilisurance bas cost to instire, is it not <-A. No, he has been ont that amount -for
twenty years.

Q. lire bas been out the interest on bis axînual prerniuîu <i-A. Yes, you have ta
get the interest on tbat.

Q. Take the iMutual iReserve, the saine book we have been using, tbe rates of 189,
and tell me the co'st of life insurance ut age 35, in the fifteen-year class ?-A. I do
i i c, see any flf teen-year class. 'J here is no flfteeii-year class there.

Q. Take the rate at age 35, iii 1889, in the Mutual Reser-ve ?A. On page 12, in
column 4, opposite age 35, the figures are given as $14.94.

Q. For twenty years, bow much would that corne to ?-A. $298.
Q. Or bow much per annum ?-A. $14.94.
Q. Calculated on the saine basis as tbe other company, or very nearly double

-A. Yes. I bave not admitted those figures at ail. I cannot answer that question.

By the Ghairman :

Q.As far as the figures in the book arc concerned, von cau answer it; that is
you can multiply and add ?-A. Yes, but I do nlot want to give anything more than
that.

By Mr. Goster, K.G., Gounsel for the Commilttee

Q. But assuming the figures are correct, that is the resuît ?-A. No.
Q. In what way is it not ?--A. Interest bas been left ont of consideration.
Q. In both cases ?-A. In both cases. In one case, a policy for twenty years is

contra sted with a whole life policy, and the contracts are enitirely dilTerent in their
nature. and, therefore, you are not making any comparison whatever. The comparison
is thoronghly incorrect.

Q. If those figures are correct, thiat is the result ?-A. No.
Q. Is that nlot the case ?-A. No.
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Q. Why flot ?-A. In one case, you are presumed to have a policy that continues
for the whole of life, and in the other case yo-u have a policy which terminates at tho
end of twenty years.

SQ. It hias a cash surrender value at the end of that time?-A. Yes, but you are
contrasting a twenty-year terni policy with the whole-life.

Q. I could get the cash surrender value, according to these tables ?-A. ýYou are
contrasting two differcut contracts.

Q. What is the cost of theýe two policies ?Is ht fot as I have given it to you ?-
A. No.

Q. The cost of the protection is flot the saine for the tweuity years ?-A. 'Ple
contracts are entirely different, and you cannot compare costs on different contracts.

Q. la that flot the cost of insurance for twenty years ?-A. Yo 'u must have regard
to tie condition of the contract at the end of twenty years to define the cost.

Q. One polîcy bias a cash surrender value of $280 and the other bas flot; l'e is
covered for a period of twenty years ?-A. On the one policy you have a right te
continue for life, and on the other if you take the cash surrender value, the contract
terminates.

Q. And the other would terminate at the end of twenty years, if you wanted it
-A. But there is no cash surrender value.

Q. Put the question a littie differently :say both pilicies were terminated at
the eiid of twenty years, would that net .ýe the reà,ult as I have given it te youi?
A.- 1 cannot say, because I have not been able to admit the figures which you have.

Q. But admitting thie figures, would this not be right ?Say both policies ter-
uiiiate ut the end of twerity years? A. You have left out of cousideration the matter
uf ijiterest.

Q. The interest is left out in both? A. What is your question?
Q. Is that not the resuit ? Say both policies terininate at the end of tw'cnty

yvars, adznitting these figures to be correct, for the sake of argument ?-A. In answer
te that question, I will say that the operations which I have made in addition, ',ub-
traction and divis'on are correct.

Re (,ramninied 1)y 11îr. Geoiffriený:
Q. Is the inference that has been drawn by the counsel forîn the operations, that

we are asked to make te the effect that the cost of insurance unld2r the Mutual iRe-
serve rate was practically double the cost of insurance under the Mutual Lifc rates
that were shown te yen ?A. I do not know. I did flot make auy inference. (Book
markcd for identification.)

Q. Take the question of interest, the initial payments in thc Miitual Life policy
are much larger than the initial payments in the Mutual iReserve ?A. I have to look
at the rates of the twi) companies te compa'e.

Q. The rates that were given yen there ?-A. I think the first ycar the rate in
the Mutual Reserve is higher than in the Mutual Life.

Q. I understand you were made to say that the cost of 35 under the pamphlet
would be $21.70 per thousand ?-A. Yes.

Q. And in the Mutual Reserve at the saine age, the cost of $14.94, yen say. The
very first yý,ar the cost in t1ie Mutual Reserve is greater than the Mutual Life, because
there is the membership fee ?-A. Yes.

Q. But in that cest there is included $8.96, which is an extra cost, payable only
iii the first year, and net in the subsequent years? A. Yes.

Q. And the cost leaving aside the extra entrance fee is $14,94 for the first year
-A. Yes.

Q. Se apart from receiving the $8.96 as entrance fee, the iMutual Reserve receive
much less moîîey throughout the twenty years, than the iMutual Life I-A. Yes.

Q. Cons iderab'y less?-A. Receives almeat the difference between $14.94 and'
$21.70--$6.77 per annum.
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Q.The interest on those payments makes a difference ?-A. 0f course.
Q.In the second place, as the result of their being paid, in the first years in the

Mutual Life, the loading which exceeds the inortaiity cost, in those years, for the
piirposc of preventing a subsequcut increase in premiîums, is nlot the risk the company
runs, generally speaking, as an average, throughout, the twenty years less than the
face amount of the poliey ?-A. Yes, each year, under such a contract as would be
issued by the iI\utual Life of New York, a certain portion of the premiums known
as the reserve would be set to one side as a liability. The net amount of risk which
the company wouid run from year to year would be the face of the policy less this
increasing reserve under the policy, consequently, as the contract coninues, the net
cost of the insurance decreases.

Q. On account of those advanced payments?-A. On account of the accumula-
tion of the reserve.

Q. In the tbird place, I understood you to state that by the fact that the insured
dlaims the cash surrender value in the Mutual Life of New York, he practically
converts that poli<cy whioh wa-s originally a whole life policy, into a twenty-year policy,
as far as the risk the company runs, is~ concerned ?-A. Under the policy of the
Mfutual Life of New York, non-participating, if the cash surrender value is taken at
the end of twenty years, the company's liabilîty ceases. The assured bas had insur-
ance for twenty years.

Q. In th(, Mutual Ileserve, the member is frpe to maintain his insurance for ever
-tili he dies ?-A. Yes, I presume so.

Q. These are three important differences between the two icon tracts i-A. Yes.
Q. And under those circumstances, is it possible to make sucli a comparison

as has been suggested ?-A. As I said before it is impossible to compare two entirely
different contracts.

By Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee

Q.You say that the Imperial, your owni coinpany. woffl not givP w; gond a
contract as this one referred to, in the Mutual hife, the non-partieipatîng policy ?-
A. I do not think a gomparison bas yet*been instituted between the policies issued
by the Mutual Life of New York, and those issned by the Imperial Life.

Q. You say you do not knowl A. I do flot tbink tbe comparison bas been
instituted. What is tho question?

Q. 1 arn asking you if you would give as cheap a contrà2t as the Mutijal Life?-
A. I would have to make an examination of the rates, and see how they compared,
and the terras of the contract.

Q. Your rates are practically the same as the iMutual Life?-A. Some policies.
The participating rates are very close to, them. I do not know about the non-part-
icipating rates to which I have referred.

By the Hon. Mr. Louglieed:
Q.One question I want to ask yon, which seeius an anomaly to me. On page

2'. of Exhibit 1, there is a schedule of the expenses. 1 observe, according to Exhibit
16 in No. 1, here is a statement taken from the Insurance Reports (No. 4, page 27).
ilere is a standard company, whose expenses are in round figures, nearly 200 per cent
more than the payments made to policy-holders. In comparison with this company,
we flnd that the payments to policy-holders are nearly twice as much as the expenses.
The position is reversed. lIow would you account for that: that is in one case,
under the standard system the expenses are practically two hundred per cent more
than the payments made to policy-holders, and under this assessment system which
we are inquiring into, we find the expenses are only about one-haif of the payments
to poiîcy-holders ?-A. The expenses of a life insurance cornpany can orily be deter-
mined by a very careful analysis. I would require first to know the age of the two
companies, and I would require to know something in regard to the character of the
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business transacted, the extent of the new business, the general methiod of conduct-
ing the business, before I could give an answer.

Q. Would it flot strike yen as an extraordinary statement, that the expenses of
that company have been, in round figures, two hundred per cent more than the pay-
monts to policy-holders? This statement shows that the expenses ore $363,493 against
$188,770 paid to policy-holders. Would it flot strike you as an extraordinary state-
ment?-A. No, flot without an examination, for the reason that you would have to
find out flrst, what amount of money bad been accumulated for risks. You can very
weIl understand that a companly in the early years, starting its business, will spend far
more, proportionately speakîng, than an old company w1'1. In the early years of a
company, on the other hand, the payments to poliry-holders are cnmparatively small,
for the reason that the lives have been carefully selected, and the deaths are com-
paratively few. The endowinents have flot commenced to corne in in the early years
of the company, and comparatively the payments to policy-holders would naturally be
smaller.

Q. Assuming that this business cost $10.23 a thousand for expenses, will that e~x-
ceed the average which, according to your jiudgment in a general way is the Cost of
expenses for standard insurance companies ?-A. It is impossible to answer that
question.

Q. Or, in other words, it is impossible to say, looking geaerally at the cost of ex-
penses, as to whether the company is well administered or not I A. In some com-
panies, the expense rate is 50 per cent higher than i11 other companies, and yet in the
long run, taking a long period of time, it may be that that company whose expenses
are high, is conducting its business more economically than the company xvhose ex-
penses are low.

Q. In other words, taking the table of expenses of a dozen companies, you cannot
tell whethcr one company is more successfully managcd than anothcr?--A. I would
not give the snap of my finger for the expenses of a company made up in the ordinary
way.

Q. You attacli no importance to comparative statements?-A. I do not know arly-
thing about the statements.

The Committee then adjourned.

OTTAWA, July 22, 1904.

The Committee met at 10.15 a.m.

.ToHTN L,. CITLBERr, of the City Of Ottawa, insurance agent, sworn and examined by
Mr. Coster, K.C., Counsel for the Committee.

Q. You are the manager here of the Mutual Life Insurance Company of New
York?-A. I am.

Q. Look at that book which was referred to yesterday, in the examination of iMr.
Bradshaw. Is that a book of rates adopted by the company which you represent?-A.
Lt is a book of rates on the ordinary life plan.

Q. And the contracts mentioned and referred to therein you are willing to give on
behaif of the company I-A. Whatever is stated inside there we are willing tofulfil.

Q. Look at page 139 of the book and tell me what it would cost for a non-par-
ticipating policy per annum at age thirty-five I-A. Do you want a lif0 policy or
limited life policy?
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Q. Whole life?-A. At, page 35, on the whole life plan, non-partieipating, the
annual prernium would be $21.70.

Q. And that in twenty years would amount to $434, would it not?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, at the end of twenty years what wouid the cash surrender value of that

poliey be? What do you guarantee at the end of twenty years on that polîey i-A.
The end of the twenty years you would be entitled to autornatic paid up insurance-

Q. The cash surrender value?-A. The cash surrender value would be $280.
Q. And that cash surrender value yo-u would guarantee in a contract wjth the

assured?-A. Yes, it w9uld be an absolute guarantee i11 the policy.

No cross-examination.

On this 22nd day of July, A.D.. 1904, personally carne and appeared John A. Hligh-
land, book-keeper Mutual iReserve Fund Life Association, of INew York, who being
duly sworn and examined deposed as follows:

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mu tual Reserve:

Q. IIow long have you been in the employ of the Mutual Reserve ?-A. For four-
teen years.

Q. F'or what length of limne have vou been chief book-keeper i A. For seven
years.

Q. And you have a complete knowledge of ail the books ini the office ?-A. I have.
Q. Do you recognize these three papers, being Exhibits 50A, B and C, which. pur-

port to contain a résumé of the resuits of a contract during the year 1897 with one
Moton D. Moss?-A. I do.

Q. Aro tho figuros in those thrcc exhibits correct, as takon from the books of the
company i-A. They are.

Q. You are aequainted with the system of book-keeping in vogue iu respect of
the Moss contract of 1897, when it first came int effeet ?-A. I was.

Q. Was there at any time, during t he coninuation of the Moss contract of 1897,
any change in the method of keeping the books in respect to that colîtract?-A. iNot
to My knowledge.

Q. Would you have known, if there was?-A. I would, being chief book,-keeper.
Q. Would these three documents previously referred to, cover ail re-ceipts and

expenditures of rnoney under the Moss contract of 1897 t-A. They would.

Cross -exanmtned by Mr. Coster, K.C., Cou4nsel for the Committee:

Q. You say this shows ail the moneys paid to Moton D. Moss by the cornpany?-
A. Under the 1897 contract.

Q. And the credits are ail paid by Mr. Moss in cash?-A. What credits?
Q. The credits to hîr.-A. 1 do not see any credits, only on Exhibit 50B.
Q. Take 60A: on one side of the account there is the $628,000, is there not t-A.

That is right.
Q. Was that ail repaid to the company in cash?-A. No, that represents the

amount the company paid ont.
Q. IIow did they get it back ?-A. They got it back in the way of premiurn,

received.
Q.That would be cash ?-A. Yes.
Q.They got ail that back in cash t-A. Tbey got that and that rnuch-they got

up to $678,000.
Q. And this account is made up to what date ?-A. This is mnade up hetween the

dates-
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Q. What dates is, it mnade up to ?-A. December 31, Ï:897, and ineludes pay-
ments mnade after Decembor 31, 1897, and during 1898.

Q.On that contract I-A. On that contract.
Q.To whom ?-A. Payments made after flecember 31, 1897 1
Q.Yes I-A. They were the payments made on account of the retentions by the

agents during 1898, $64,471.13, and on the l5th January, 1898, paid Moton D. Moss
on account of this business, $2,392.06. There were only three items paid after ]3ecem-
ber 31.

Q. Neyer mind the figure. You say that yau, fram your own knowledge, know
that the campany did not lose any moncy by Moton 1). Mass I-A. 1 know that they
did flot 108e any money.

Q.That is to say, for bis agents ?-A. Yes.
Q.That every dollar of money advanced ta the agents was paid back ta the com-

pany in cashI-A. What' I reafly stated is, that the business on the first year's pre-
mium did flot cost over 85 per cent.

Q. But the advances ta the agents, $182,000, was ail paid back ta the company în
cash, either by Mass or bis agents I-A. It was either paid back in cash or commis-
sions earned by them.

Q. HEow mucli of that wauld be renewal commission?-A. I could nat say. I
can only say that commissions on that business, according ta the cantract of Maton
D. Mass, $1.50 an the five-year plan and 75 cents a thousand on the ten-year plan,
running for a period of five years, would amount ta $66,000.

Q. And that was credited ta Mass in his accaunt ?-A. It was nat.
Q.When did you put that inta bis account I-A. I have neyer put it in.
Q.That is anly a calculation I-A. Yes.

Q. Made for the purpose of estimating this ?-A. For the purpose of preparing
this. It was nat an estimate at all.

Q. You say that, during the year 1897, the first item is, that Moton D. Mas
advanced $247,000 ta agents? Is that what that means ?-A. It is.

Q. Was lie a very wealthy man ?-A. I do not know that he was a wealthy man.
Q. Do you know what bis contract was ?-A. 1 do.
Q. What was it? llow mucli money was lie ta get for advances-A. H1e was ta

get $3,500 per week.
Q. What would it amount ta in a year I-A. About $182,000.
Q. Where did lie get the balance I-A. The company advanced him moneys other

than the $3,500.
Q. That is ta say, they advanced him up ta $247,000 that year I-A. That is

correct.
Q. And that was chargzed ta Mass I-A. To bis agents. The advance was charged

ta Mass, snd lie accounted for the advances, and they were charged ta the agents' as
lie accounted for them.

Q.And the baoks of the company show Moss's account balanoed ?-A. Yea.
Q.Nothing due to-dayl-A. No.
Q.When were they made ta balance as they are naw ?-A. I tbink in July, 1898.
Q.They balanced ?-A. Yes.
Q. 8bwing lie had gotten no marc mancy than lie was entitled ta ?-A. I could

not say that; I could not say haw mudi lie gat. I only know his account waa bal-
anced in 1898.

Q.Balanced as far as baok-keeping was coneerned ?-A. It was.
Q.Who told you ta balance it ?-A. A book-keeper's warrant came: 'The book-

keeper of the Mutual Reserve Fuud Life Association wil credit Motan D. Moss's
account with sa mnucl money/,

Q.And you did it I-A. Yes.
Q.And that is ail yau know about the maney being paid in cash I-A. That ks ail
Q.Did you receive any cash through these agents yourself I-A. I did not.

1--34
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Q.Then furtber than getting an order to credit Moss-that is ail you know about
it i-A. I only know that the books of the association show-

Q. You got an order to, eredit him. with certain amounts, and you did it ?-A.
Tliat is*perfect1y corret.

,Q. Iliat is ail you linow. You do not know whether these are paid or flot?'-A
Paid to whom l

<'Q.' Paid t0 any body l-A. There are statements attached to the warrant showing
it had been paid.

Q.Nothing was paid te you l-A. No.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:

Q. Pid the books balance? I amrn ot speaking of that particular account. I ask
yen whether there was for the year a balance made to the books of the Company ?-
A. Yes.

Q.Were they balanced g-A. Yes, every three monflis.
Q.And for the better information, if the company had flot received value from

the agents they would flot have the books balanced i-A. I do flot just catch the ques-

t'. WIf the company had flot received value from the agents for the advances which
haveebeen made to them hy Mr. Moss, would the books of the company have balanced l
--A. Well, the books weuld balancc from this fact: we would charge the agent of the
company with ail the meneys he -received and we would credit him with bis commis-
siens carned.

By the lon. Mr. Wilson:

Q. You do net know definitely whether the agents had paid the money in at fIe
time when you balanced yeur book or not-thie moneys advanced by Moss to, the
agents? Are you in a position to say that that mency was paid back to the treasury
at the time you balanced the books?-A. I arn in a position to staf e thaf we receivcd
more on acceunt of that business than we paid mit on it.

Q. Were the agents' balances made after if i-A. Yes,
Q. You received auLhority f0 balance thc books from. whom i-A. The three

officers of the company.
Q. They brouglit ne voucher as-te the payment from the agents l-A. No, you do

net understand me. Moten ID. Moss's accounts were ail balanced in July, 1898. They
secured a release from hlm and that voucher has been in evidence, $37,000 on ail bis
contracts and it was charged to connissiion accoulits.

Q. I can undersfand that the autherities of the company should order the books
balanced, but I want te know whether the advances made by the agents had been paid
hack by the agents either te himself or inte the company ?-A. The money was paid
back np to the exfent that the Company sliouid reeive. The agent would be entitled
to his 65 per cent.

Q. Was fhe cempany refunded the meney they ought to receive, that you were in
a position te, know fIat that money was paid back «when you told me a short time ago
that the company ordered the books balanced i-A. That was speaking of the three eon-
tracts, July, 1898. lie asked me if the Mess acceunts were Ialanced.

Q.When did Mess leave e-A. Juiy, 1898.
Q.And you were in a position te say that ail fIe moneys the company ought te

receive on acceunt of the ndvances made by the cempany lad been se received by the
Company,' and yen were in a position te say if had been received and piaced inte the
propýr quarter before fhe books were balanced r-A. I arn nef in a position te state.

By the lion. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. As a bookkeeper, you would caîl that writing it off ?-A. Do you mean the
$37,0001
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Q. Yes ?-A. That was just cliarged off to commission.
Q. Written off ?-A. Yes.
Q. As a bad debt?-A. Yes.

By the lion. Mr. Béique:
Q. You say that the $75,000 were written off as bad delits ?-A. I say. in July,

1898, the three accounts of Moton iD. Moss showed that lbe lad about $37,00O as'a deblt
balance.

Q. Sliowed that lie owned the company about that amount?-A. Yes.
Q. And i-A. And just about the 27th July, 1898, if 1 remember correctly, there

was a warrant prepared crediting ail the accounts of iMoss and clharged to commission
account.

Q. Under bis contract was lie entitled to renewal l Was lie entitled on his con-
tract to renewal commissions l-A. Yes.

Q. Which would bave amounted to how muclil A. I do flot know.
Q. Approximately?-A. I have not any idQa.ý 1 caniot tell from any papers 1.

have what bis commision would be.
Q. Did the company continue to pay him the renewal contracts l-A. They did

not.
Q. Then lie dîd not get those renewal contracts ?-A. After July, 1898, there was

no renewal contracts credited to Moss at ail.
Q. You do not know to bow mucli it amounted ?-A. No, I do not.

By1 the lion. Mr. 'Wilson:

Q. If Moss was indehtcd to the company when fie left, the books would flot bal-
ance the day of lis discharge?-A. They iiay bave balanced if the renewals had' bieein
cashed up.

Q. We are~ muu -~t~deiwhat was to corne in at ail. When lie was dischiargèd
fromn the company, lie paid ail his indebtedness to the company aftcr considerilig the
renewals that miglit or miglit not corne ifl?-A. Hie bad flot.

Q. Then lie was a dcbtor to the conipauiy?-A. lie was.
Q. And upon what grounds do you say that hie was liable to the income from,'the

business that lie had been obtaining in the country and from tlie agentsl What rea-
son have you to say that lie was to receive a certain amount tliere ?-A. On accountof
bis contract.

Q. The contract liad ceased wlien hie was dismissed, when hie ceased to be a ser-
vant ?-A.,Yes, and in consideration of that they wrote off his account.

Q. Tliey liad not received the rnoney, but tliey balanced thc books and considered
lie was not good and dismissed hlm ?-A. Generally rcleased.

By the Hon. M1r. Watson :
Q. I do not understand yen to say that this was written off as a bad debt l-

A. No, flot as a bad debt-debit balance.
Q. Was Mosa, undcr his contracts, entilled to the payrnents on renewal policies

at tlie time, in July, 1898 ?-A. Hie was.
Q. I think you said you did net know tlie amount lie would be entitled to under

bis contract ?-A. Nu.
Q. Have you any reason to suppose that in writing that off it was flotas an

offset for the profits lie was entitled te on the renewals under the contract ?-A. It
wvas in consideration of tliat, I should say.

By the Chairman :
Q. Hie would be entitled to tlie rnoney on these policies if the policies did not

lapse ?A. Correct.
Q. If ail the policies lapsed, the company would ie out the money ?-A. Yes.
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Bai the Hon. Mr. 'Watson,:
Q.Do you consider that when they paid him the $9,7,000 they were buying him

out of his eontract ?-A. Yes.
Q. I should like to ask you if £rom your experience of the company as a general

book-keeper, did you consider it a good arrangement to credit Moss for $37,000 to buy
hlm out of his contract, in the interests of the company ?-A. I should think it would
be considered a good business operation on the part of the company.

Bai the Hon. Mr. Wilson:

QIn the second contract will you explain to me what took place or what was the
agreement under whieh this contract expired ?-A. The second one ?

Q. Yes. Was Mioss, when lie was settled with, in possession of ail the proceeds of
the business of the agents, or was lie flot entirely paid off, and did hie simply release
what lie was to get I-A. ile was.

Q. Then the second contract shows that the matter was closed so far as lie was
concerned ?-A. You are speaking of July, 1898 ?

Q. And if hie owed the company at that time so many thousand dollars, as you
mentioned, lie was settled and phaid ?A. No, lie was flot; hie was written off and
charged commission.

Q. The riglits to renewals was that matter not closed with the contract of 1898?
-A. No, becausie the renewals went for five years after the termination of the con-
tract.

Mr. CosTEa.-The report of the examiner of the state of New York, Auguat 22,
1899, page 20, with reference to the Moss account contains the following statement

'A reference to "Account No. 4" indicates that the contract of January 7
1897, contemplated the payýment to the general manager of a commission Lo hlm 0o1
new business in addition to the commissions provided for in the contract to be paid
bY 11111 t suh-agents, and the iuuui. shows this oommieiiion to hSvQ heen sn allowefl
him to the extent of $93,810.78, notwith2taridhig file fact that at thc sume time bis
sub-agents were becoming indebted to the association for moneys belonging to it and
which. they ultimately failed to remit These unpaid balances of 1897 form. the larger
portion of the $244,954.07 of agents' debit balances to which attention lias beeri
called. The value of these accounts could flot be reliably ascertained at the date of
the last examination, tliey having been so, recently created, but an examination of
them at this late day must lead to tht' conclusion already given in presenting this
matter to, you, viz. :that tliey are of nominal value ouiy.'

Q. In the face of that do you say those were ail paid in cash I?-A. Whiat paid lu
cash?1

Q. There is Moss's agents' balance, $247,000 due the company, of nominal value?
-A. I do not know anything about that report at ail.

Q. But you say these moneys were not paid I-A. No. I was ordered to, credit
:Moton D. Moss's account as $93,000 overriding commissions. There is no bass under
the 1897 contract.

Bai Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mutual Beserve:

Q.Do you know, as a matter of fact, that the company was reimbursed and
recouped for ail matters in connection with Mo8s and bis contract î-A. I know that
the company was recouped in the matter of the 1897 contract lu full, and received
the profit beyond ail expenses.

Q.And do you know the facts and figures that produce that resuit I-A. I do.
Q.Ou the business which was doue by the company tlirough Moss, what amount

of commission did it cost the company ?-A. It cost eighty-two and eighty-five
oue-hundredtlis per cent, plus the renewals.
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Q. And that was taking into con'sideration these amounts that had been written
off ?-A. This includes the 1897 eontract entirely.

Q.It is the entire result of the contract of 1897 ?-A. Yes.

By the (Ihairman:
Q.Did you flot render Moss monthly accounts?-A. That was the custom, te

render rnonthly accounts.
Q.Did you flot credit hirn in this account with 85 per cent?-A. I did flot.

On this 22nd day of July, A.D., 1904, personally came and appeared JAMES
DALTON, of the oity of Ottawa, who, being duly sworn and examined, deposed as
follows:-

B31 the lion. Mr. McSweeney:

Q. You were a policy-holder in this Mutual iReserve Fund LiUe -A. Yes.
Q.What was the amount of your policy?-A. Six thousand dollars.
Q.What time did you go in ?A. 1895.

Q. At what rate per tbousand?-A. IJpon my word, I arn net very ckear; I thirik,
it was six dollars per thousand.

Q. It cost you about $234 a year 1-A. No, it cest me that the last ycar I paid.
Q. The first year?-A. The first year, deducting the entrance fees and the ex-

pense dues, I think it would be just about haîf that. That is my recollection.
Q. llow long did you continue paying that ?-A. iNot very long. The rates began

to inerease somewhat, very shortly after. I think the caifs were then about $6 per
year in bi-xnonth]y calls.

Q. When yen took your policy, you took it at a fixed rate?-A. Yes.
Q. You thouglit it would continue until death?-A. That was the assurance

given by the agent.
Q. And yeu think, at the end of four years they cornrenced to increase the assess-

ment?-A. Yes. Oh, 1 don't know but wbat they did the following year.
Q. They increased until 1898?-A. In 1898 it amounted to $10. The rate per

thousand had net increased, but the number of assessments increased from about six
to ten assessments up te that time.

Q. And you carried it, I think yen said, for about eight years 1-A. From that
time until about a year ago it contained a uniform number of calls and the rate, tee.

Q. And the last year, tee I-A. In 1899 or 1898, 1 arn net sure, tbe 'calls were in-
creased te, 1 suppose, the full number that could be collected. There were twelve caîls.
Net what you caîl single calîs; they were double calîs. They were bi-monthly calîs.

Q. And tbey would amount te, hew much a year 1-A. $23 exactly.
Q. Whien did yen cease paying them 1-A. I cannot say the exact date; just about

a year.
Q. Why did yen cease paying the calîs 1-A. Well, there was a slight increase

then, and it had remained, I thought, ameng ethers similarly situated, that we bad
touched bottom with regard te high rates, as it was generally understood, and I think
there was something cireulatcd te tbat effeet, that there would be ne more than ten
single caîls unless the reserve, consisting of $100,000 or upwards, became exhausted.
Then they had power te increase it te $12, se that in 1898 or 1899 they increased it
te twelve. There was ne intimation the reserve had been exhausted or reduced in any
way, but stili we theught surely it would stop there. Well, the number of calls stopped,
but the rate began to increase last year, and I remonstrated, and stili, net wisbing te
imperil my policy, I paid that first increase, which was a srnall one, insignificant in
itself, but fearing that it might be the entering wedge for a larger caîl, I protested,
and paid under pretest, and the next caîl that was issued about a menth after was con-
siderably larger. I omitted te state that in the communication I had with the agent at
the time, lie stated that after each birth4ay henceforward there weuld be a slight in-
erease, and I supposed then that that slight increase that had been made-for it was
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after rny birthday-covered that, that that woiild be ail the increase for that year;

but the next cali, coming about a month afterwards, made a very considerable i.n-

creaso again. They honoured me with two birthdays in one year, and this increase

would make the aggregate, if they were continued during the year, which 1 could not

elicit frorn them whether it would be or not, it would make the increase in the neigli-

bourhood of $40 increase in a year. So I thought the matter being in that jndefinite
way, and I could flot elicit from the Company any assurance that it would be even cou-

tinued at that, if I were honoured with several birthdays each year afterwards, and in-

creased accordingly, that I would be compelled to, give up, and I thought I miglit as

well give up at once.

By the Hon. Mr. Béique:

Q. How old are you I-A. I ara in my sixty-fourth year.

By Mr. Pringle, Counsel for the Mutual Reserve:

Q.That would make your last assessment -at the rate of $39 per thousand insur-

ance ?-A. Yes.
Q. Sixty-five years of age 1-A. Yes.
Q. Were yon flot a member of the Provincial Provident 1-A. That was the Com-

pany.
Q. And I take it that the agent of the Provincial Provident is the man who, as-

sured you that the premiums would be flxed 1-A. Certainly.

Hon. iMr. LmiDRY.-I move that the Comrnittee rise and. report the evidenco.

Hon. MT. BgIQUE -I move in amendment, that Messrs. Cannon and (Jameron be

heard before this Committee, in reference to the charge published in part une 0f the

evidence taken herein, the two witnesses being in attendance.

The Committc divided on the amendinent, which was lost on the following

division:-

Contents 3.
Non-contents 7.

The motion to adjourn was carried on the same division reversed.


